
 

1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
May 26, 2020 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 
Page 1

mailto:cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 6:30 PM 
 

Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

 

Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor Roger Gaylord, Council Member 
Kerri Howell, Council Member Mike Kozlowski, Council Member 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public are encouraged to participate by 
emailing comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Emailed comments must be received no later 

than thirty minutes before the meeting and will be read aloud at the meeting during the agenda 
item.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public record 
must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public comment 

at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 
teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.   

 Members of the public may continue to participate in the meeting in person at 
Folsom City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA while maintaining appropriate social distancing. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Council Members:     Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

3 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. City Manager's Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20 Third Quarter Financial Report 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Council Members may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Approval of the May 12, 2020 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

3. Resolution No. 10454 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 
3 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Murraysmith Inc. for Design and 
Construction Administration Services for the Misc. Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1 
and Folsom Zoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of Funds 

4. Resolution No. 10455 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction 
Agreement with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Prairie City at Blue Ravine Lane 
Modification Project, Project No. PW2002 

5. Resolution No. 10457– A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Approve Amendment No. 2 
to the Contract with Aquatic Design Group for Additional Design Services for the Steve Miklos 
Aquatic Center Renovation Project (Contract No. 173-21 17-063) and Appropriation of Funds 

NEW BUSINESS: 

6. Resolution No. 10459 - A Resolution Authorizing the Automatic Extension of Zoning Related 
Entitlements and Grading Permits for One Year 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

7. Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

a.  Resolution No. 10435 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom to Form a 
Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy 
Special Taxes Therein 

     *****BREAK*****      

b.  Resolution No. 10436 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to Incur 
Bonded Indebtedness Within Improvement Area No.1 of City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

c.  Resolution No. 10437 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to Incur 
Bonded Indebtedness Within Improvement Area No.2 of City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

d.  Resolution No. 10438 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to Incur 
Bonded Indebtedness Within Improvement Area No.3 of City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

Page 3



 

4 

e.  Resolution No. 10439 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to Incur 
Bonded Indebtedness Within Improvement Area No.4 of City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

f.  Resolution No. 10440- A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to Incur 
Bonded Indebtedness Within Improvement Area No.5 of City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

g.  Resolution No. 10441 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to Incur 
Bonded Indebtedness Within Improvement Area No.6 of City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 

     *****BREAK*****      

h.  Resolution No. 10442– A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling Special 
Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No.1 

i.  Resolution No. 10443– A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling Special 
Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No.2 

j.  Resolution No.10444 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling Special 
Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No.3 

k.  Resolution No. 10445 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling Special 
Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No.4 

l.  Resolution No. 10446 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling Special 
Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No.5 

m.  Resolution No. 10447 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling Special 
Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No.6 

     *****BREAK*****      

n.  Resolution No. 10448 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring 
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 1 

o.  Resolution No. 10449 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring 
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 2 

p.  Resolution No. 10450 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring 
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 3 

q.  Resolution No. 10451 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring 
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 4 

r.  Resolution No. 10452 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring 
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 5 

Page 4



 

5 

s.  Resolution No. 10453 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring 
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 6 

     *****BREAK*****      

t.  Ordinance No. 10305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal Year 
2020-21 and Following Fiscal Years Solely Within and Relating to the City of Folsom Community 
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Introduction and First Reading) 

8. Resolution No. 10458 - A Resolution Determining that the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision 
Project is Exempt from CEQA and Approving a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, 
Planned Development Permit, and the Inclusionary Housing Plan for the Creekstone Phase 1 
Subdivision Project 

9. Resolution No. 10456 - A Resolution Adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2020-21 
Operating and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public 
Financing Authority and the Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council's next regular meeting is scheduled for June 9, 2020. 

 

 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 
Page 5



 

6 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must be 

made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

  

Page 6

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
mailto:cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us


Folsom Crty Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / COIINCII, ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the City Manager's Fiscal Year
2019-20 Third Quarter Financial Report.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Section 5.05R of the Charter of the City of Folsom requires the City Manager submit to the
City Council a financial and management report showing the relationship between budgeted

and actual revenues, and expenditures and encumbrances on a quarterly basis.

This Quarterly Financial Report is an analysis of the unaudited financial status of the City's
major funds for the third quarter of Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20, covering the nine-month period
from July 2019 through March 2020. Tables and graphs have been integrated into the report
to help illustrate financial performance. Please refer to the Appendices of the report for
detailed schedules of the City's key funds for the period ending March 31,2020, including
cumulative fund balances from the prior year.

POLICY / RULE

Section 5.05R of the Charter of the City of Folsom requires the City Manager submit to the
City Council a financial and management report showing the relationship between budgeted
and actual revenues, and expenditures and encumbrances on a quarterly basis.

Section 3.02.050 (b) of the Folsom Municipal Code states ".... within 30 days after the end of
each quarter during the fiscal year, and more often if required by the City Council, the City
Manager shall submit to the City Council a financial and management report."

1

MEETING DATE: 512612020

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: City Manager's Fiscal Year 2019-20 Third Quarter Financial
Report

FROM: Finance Department

Page 7

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



ANALYSIS

As everyone is keenly aware the entire state has been under the Governor's stay-at-home order
as of March 19, 2020. This quarterly report only covers the time period through March 31,

2020; therefore, the actual numbers will not show a significant impact due to the COVID-l9
emergency. The projections for the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2020, do take into account

assumptions made that will reduce the expected revenues due to the stay-at-home order and

the closure of businesses.

During the first two quarters of FY 2020 the economy was already showing consumer spending

slowing, but housing was still going strong. After March 19,2020, everything changed. As
of March 2020, the unemployment rate was 5.6%o in California, 4.7oh in Sacramento County
and 3.4o/o in Folsom. From December unemployment increased from 3.7yo, 3.2o/o and 2.3%o

respectively. The UCLA Anderson Forecast as of April predicts the unemployment rate in
California will peak at 160/o. The Governor's Office recently projected the unemployment rate

could peak at close to 25Yo. AIso, per the UCLA Anderson Forecast the economy is forecast
to rebound by the fourth quarter of 2020 but only by l% (an annual rate of 4Yo).

For FY 2020 the General Fund is projected to end the year with the unrestricted fund balance

decreasing by $5.53 million to $1 1.84 million. The percentage of unrestricted fund balance to
expenditures is projected to decrease from FY 2019 20J% to I2.5%o, which is due to the
reduced revenues while city facilities and businesses are closed. Projected revenues of $86.03
million is a decrease of $6.23 million or 6.75Yo compared to FY 2019. Projected expenditures
of $94.46 million includes a one-time expenditure for final transactions related to the
annexation of the City's transit operations to Regional Transit in FY 2019 in the amount of
$2.9 million. When expenditures are adjusted for that transaction, the General Funds is
projected to end FY 2020 at $91.57 million, which is $254,000 less than the budgeted amount
of $91.80 million.

The FY 2020 projected revenue decrease over appropriated revenues is seen in several

categories but predominately in sales tax, charges for services, and transient occupancy tax.
Property tax received through the third quarter was in the amount of $14.69 million and

compared to the prior fiscal year of $ 13.44 million is an increase of $ 1 .25 million or 9.29Yo.

Property tax is projected to be $27.85 million which would end the fiscal year 4.43%o higher
than the FY 2019 property tax receipts which were $26.67 million. This increase is attributed
to the valuation increase when properties are sold as well as sales of new homes. The average

median sales price through the third quarter of FY 2020 was $570,424 which is an increase of
1.92% over the prior fiscal year.

Sales tax is projected to end the fiscal year lower than the budgeted amount of $26.35 million
by $2.46 million to a projected amount of $23.89 million. The year-end projection would be

a decrease compared to the prior year of $ 1 .47 million or 5.78Yo.

Charges for services are projected to end the fiscal year at $11.67 million which is$2.73
million less than the budget and approximately $4.53 million (27 .92%) less than the prior fiscal
year. The decrease compared to the current year budgeted amount is seen in Parks and

2Page 8

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Recreation fees ($2.29 million) and Community Development Department's fees ($92,300).
During the third quarter charges for services were $9.72 million which is an increase of
$76,000 (0.79%) when compared to the third quarter of the prior year amount of $9.64 million.

The FY 2020 projected expenditures ($91.57 million adjusted) are $245,000 less than the
appropriated amount ($91.80 million). The quarter to quarter comparison shows expenses

increased by $4.26 million (adjusted) or 6.580/o and includes increases of $3.94 million in
salaries and benefits and $570,000 for contracts.

The Water and Wastewater Utility Funds are each projected to end the year with operating
revenues exceeding operating costs. Operating Income for Water is projected at52.78 million
and for Wastewater at $2.96 million. The Operating Income for Solid Waste is projected to
end the year at $587,000. A comparison of the quarter to quarter expenses and revenues show
operating revenue increased for the Water Fund by $1.03 million and operating expenses were
flat. Capital expenses increased quarter to quarter by $ 1.5 million. Wastewater shows a quarter

to quarter operating revenue increase of $400,000 while expenses decreased by $170,000.
Capital expenses also decreased quarter to quarter by $178,000. Solid Waste shows a quarter
to quarter operating revenue increase of $385,000 and an expense increase of $1.26 million.
Capital expenses increased quarter to quarter by $73,000. The operating expense increases are

mainly due to increases in employee costs, contractual services, and maintenance. During this
quarter the rate increase for Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste use fees also went into effect.

The Risk Management Fund is projected to end the year with unrestricted net assets of $8.66
million or 49.96Yo of operational expenses. A quarter to quarter comparison shows revenues

increased by $39,000 and expenses increased by $647,000. The increase is seen mostly in
property insurance, workers compensation and medical, dental and vision costs.

The negative cash balance in the Trail Grant Fund through the third quarter is $1.27 million.
A quarter to quarter comparison shows the negative balance is flat. The negative balance is
mainly due to costs associated with the Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing project of which
$ 1 .03 million of grant reimbursements has not yet been received.

The Compensated Leaves Fund is estimated to end the fiscal year with fund balance of
$662,000. Compared to the prior fiscal year the fund balance would decrease by approximately

$265,000 which is due to a budgeted use of the fund balance in the current fiscal year.

ATTACHMENTS

1. City Manager's Fiscal Year 2019-20 Third Quarter Financial Report

Submitted,

U^A*
Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Stacey Tamagni
Finance Director

3Page 9

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Attachment 1

Page 10

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



FOLS()M
C ITY O F

DISTIXCTIVE BY XATURE

City of Folsom

Quarterly Financial Report

Fiscal Year 2019-20 Third Quarter

May 26,2020

Prepared by the Office of Management and Budget
Financial Analysis and Reporting Division

Page 11

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Table of Contents

Section
Introduction............
Executive Summary

Page N

Economic Update....
Financial Results

a) General Fund
b) Special Revenue Funds

c) Other Funds
d) Enterprise Funds

Risk Management .......,

Outstanding Debt
Plan Area Impact Fees

Capital Improvement Plan ..

Encumbrances .........

Appendix
Revenue Summary by Fund.....,
Expenditure Summary by Fund
Combined General Fund Revenue & Expenditure Statement...
General Fund Departmental Expenditure Summary
General Fund Departmental Revenue Detail..
Housing Fund Revenue & Expenditure Statement

Lighting and Landscaping District Statement
Water Fund Revenue & Expense Statement.............
Wastewater Fund Revenue & Expense Statement..................

Solid Waste Fund Revenue & Expense Statement..........
Risk Management Fund Revenue & Expense Statement

Compensated Leave Fund Revenue & Expense Statement..................
Schedule of Outstanding Debt
Schedule of Capital Improvement Plan Expenditures........... ...............29

o.
1

1

1

2

6

6

7
7
7

...........9

..,,,.,.. 12

.''..,,.. |4

.......... 19

...',,,,..22
,...'..,..23
..'.,.,,,,24

15

t6
18

25
27
28

Page 12

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Quarterly Financial Report

Citl' of Folsont, CaliforniaThird Quarter of FY 2019-2020
$hl

lb-otLsoN4I

INTRODUCTION

Section 5.05R of the Charter of the City of Folsom
requires the City Manager submit to the City Council
a financial and management report showing the
relationship between budgeted and actual revenues,

and expenditures and encumbrances on a quarterly
basis.

This Quarterly Financial Report is an analysis of the
unaudited financial status of the City's major funds
through the third quarter of Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20,
covering the period from July 2019 through March
2020. The report provides an analysis of each fund's
revenues, expenditures and fund balance as compared
to the FY 2019-20 Budget. Please refer to the
Appendices for detailed schedules of the City's key
funds for the period ended March 31, 2020. The
document also includes an analysis of the revenue and
expenditure activity for the City's:

o General Fund
. Special Revenue Funds - Housing Fund, L&L

Districts
. Enterprise Funds - Water, Wastewater, and

Solid Waste
o Risk Management, Compensated Leaves,

Outstanding Debt, Capital Improvement Plan
and Encumbrances

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The COVID-l9 public health emergency and related
stay-at-home orders have caused a sharp downturn in
the City's revenues, beginning in March 2020. This is
due to both the requirement that non-essential
businesses shut their doors and that the City stop all
non-essential programming. This has resulted in a

projected $5.8 million loss in sales tax, transient
occupancy tax, and Parks and Recreation
programming revenues by June 30,2020. The city did
take immediate action to reduce expenditures for the
reminder of the fiscal year, and this has lessened the
impact on the General Fund's reserves. Total projected
year-end General Fund revenues are $86.03 million
and projected expenditures are $94.46 million.

The projected expenditures include an adjustment for
the annexation of the City's Transit operations by
Sacramento Regional Transit. The adjustment is in the
amount of approximately $2.9 million. The projected

expenditures without this adjustment are $91.56
million.

We project that a $5.5 million use of the City's $17.4
million reserye fund will be necessary to finish out the
fiscal year, putting the general fund's unassigned fund
balance at about $11.84 million or 12.5% of
expenditures, at June 30,2020.

Below is a chart ofthe unassigned fund balance over
the last thirteen years and displays the projected drop
inFY 2019-20.

ECONOMIC UPDATE

Unemployment in California at the end of March
elevated to 5.60h from previous levels averaging
around 4Yo and represents the very early economic
disruption from the COVID-l9 emergency. Folsom
was up to 3A% from 2.6%. Since March,
unemployment claims statewide have neared 4.5
million, which represents about 23.3% of the curent
workforce being unemployed at this time. The
continued uncertainty of how COVID-19 protective
public health measures will affect the economy, leaves
us anticipating that high unemployment rates may
continue into the summer and perhaps longer.

Growth in the California economy is expected to end
the fiscal year with the CPI near .loh, compared to
L5oh forFY 2019.

A comparison of home sales through the third quarter
of FY 2020 compared to FY 2019 shows the number
of home sales increasedby 13.3%, with the median
sales price increasing by only L92%.

I1"r

IPage 13

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Qu:rrterly Financial Report

Citv of Folsottr, Calilornia'I'hirrl Quitrtcr of F\' 2019-2020
ih

NT()]LSON4I

GENERAL FUND REVENUE (Appendices C & E)

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the

City. For financial reporting, the following funds are

presented on a combined basis: General Fund, Cash

Basis, Folsom History Interpretive Center, and SPIF

Administration.

Revenues are projected to end FY 2020 at $86.03

million. This is a decrease of $6.23 million from the

FY 2019 revenue amount and a $5,8 million shortfall
from the FY 2020 budget amount. The $5.8 million
shortfall is due to large impacts to the City's Sales Tax,
Transient Occupancy Tax and Charges for Services

revenues related to the COVID-l9 emergency and

related economic downturn.

The following table shows a comparison of budgeted

and projected revenues for FY 2020. A brief
discussion of significant General Fund revenue

sources follows:

General FundRevenues

o

Property tax revenues are currently projected to
come in at budget for FY 2020 at 527.85 million.
This projection is $1.18 million (4.43%) higher
than property taxes received in FY 2019 ($26.67

million).

Sales and Use Tax collections are projected to
decrease signihcantly due to the COVID-l9 stay-
at-home orders in FY 2020 and end the year at

$23.89 million. This is a $2.46 million shortfall
from the FY 2020 budget and compared to FY
2019, a$1.47 million reduction. Through the third
quarter, sales tax receipts were $14.27 million in
FY 20 compared to $14.64 million in FY 19. The

effects of the stay-at-home order will largely be

seen in the fiscal year 4th quarter sales tax results.

Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) collections are

projected to end the fiscal year aI $1.72 million, a

decrease of $658,000 (27 .68%) when compared to
the FY 2019 amount. This decrease is due to hotel
stays being severely reduced during the public
health emergency.

Business Licenses and Building Permits through
the third quarter were $2.61 million. Compared to
the prior year this is an increase of approximately
$319,000. Business Licenses through the third
quarter increased by approximately $16,500,
while Building Permits increased by
approximately $303,000. The current year-end

estimate for all licenses and permits is $3.0 million
which is about $75,000 (2.57%) more than the FY
2019 amount, and an estimated $885,000 (42%)
increase over the FY 2020 budgeted amount. This
increase is mostly due to growth in building permit
activity related to the Folsom Plan Area.

Intergovernmental revenues through the third
quarter were $4,14 million. Intergovernmental
revenues mainly consist of vehicle license in-lieu
fees (VLF), 50Yo of which has been received at

this point in the fiscal year ($3.71 million) and are

projected at $7.36 million. The projected year-end
estimate for all intergovemmental revenues is

$7.86 million. Compared to the prior year, this is
an increase of approximately $483,000 or 6.540/o.

The increase is mainly due to a projected increase

of $455,000 in VLF and an increase of $28,000 of
all other Intergovernmental revenues when
compared to the prior year.

Charges for services received through the third
quarter were $9.72 million. Compared to the third
quarter of FY 2019 this is an increase of
approximately $76,000. The total curent year-

end estimate for FY 2020 for charges for services

is $11.67 million, a decrease from budget of 52.73
million. This is primarily due to all recreation
facilities being closed in accordance with the
public health order, such as the aquatics center,
sports complex, and the zoo. In addition, all
recreation programming and classes were
cancelled, further reducing charges for services

a

a

a

a

a

o/"Budeet Forecast
$27,85r,631

26,349,287
2,346,299

572,000
873,288

1,100,000

2,t19,o00
7,723,869

14,398,625

167,s00
222,200
867,213

7.211,844

$27,8s1,63r
23,892,287

1,7t9,693
600,000
781,536
839,305

3,003,670
7,860,926

11,671,967

142,740
278,373
572,682

6,813,833

100.0v"
90.7yo

73.3y"
l04.gYo

89.50

76.3Yo

t4l.70A
101.80

81.10

85.2Yo

125.3Y"

66.0Y.
94.sYo

Property Tax
Sales and Use Tax
Trans Occup Tax
Real Prop Transfer
Franchise Fees
Other To<es
Lic And Permits
Intergovt Revenue
Charges For Serv
Fines & Forfeitures
Interest Rev
Miscellaneous
Transfers In

93.7Yos 91.802.756 $ 86.028.643Total

2Page 14

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Quarterly Financial Report

City of Folsonr, (lalilorniaThird Quarter of F\' 2(119-20211
$hi

]F(}]tFSOMI

a

revenue. In the Fire Department ambulance
revenues are projected at 54.27 million which is

an increase compared to the budget of $265,000
and an increase from the prior year of $209,000.
Reimbursements from the Office of Emergency
Services (OES) are projected at $209,000, which
is an increase from the budgeted amount of
$ 1 10,000, and less than the prior year of $884,242.

Parks and Recreation charges are projected to end

the year at$2.93 million which is a $2.30 million
shortfall from budgeted amounts. This is due to
actions to close facilities and cancel programming
mentioned previously, in response to public health
orders. Compared to FY 2019, total projected
charges for services of $11.67 million is a $4.53
million (28%) decrease from the prior year's

amount of $16.20 million. Development fees are

currently projected to be $2.63 million, a decrease

from FY 2019 of $1.3 million and just slightly
below the budgeted amount of $2.69 million.

Miscellaneous revenues are projected to end the
year at $573,000 compared to the prior year of
5495,512. The current year-end estimate is

$265,000 less than the budgeted amount.

City Manager - Projected to end the fiscal year

$43,000 (33%) over the budgeted amount, which
is due to an increase in contracts and supplies.

City Clerk - Projected to end the fiscal year

$5,600 (l.01%) over the budgeted amount, which
is due to an increase in staffing costs and supplies.

Community Development - Projected to end the
fiscal year $1.16 million (20.79%) over the
budgeted amount, which is mostly due to contract
costs. Most of the contract costs will be offset by
reimbursements for inspections in the plan area.

Fire - Projected to end the fiscal year $1.69
million (7.96%) over the budgeted amount, which
is mainly seen in overtime costs, vehicle
maintenance and contracts. Overtime costs have

also been impacted due to several employees out
on leave for several months. Contract cost
increases are due to outside costs for plan checks
and ambulance billings of $260,000.

a

a

a

a

a

The current year-end projection for General Fund
expenditures is $94,46 million, and $91.56 million
when adjusted for the Transit annexation. The General
Fund expenditures by category are as follows:

General Fund Revenues SourteTransfers In were budgeted at $7.21 million and

are projected atyear end at 6.81 million. The prior
year transfers in were $7.69 million.

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Expenditures are projected to end the year aL$94.46
million for FY 2020, $2.65 million over budget.
Included in this total is a one-time expenditure for final
transactions related to the annexation of the City's
transit operations to Regional Transit in FY 2019 in
the amount of $2.9 million. When expenditures are

adjusted for that transaction, the general fund is
projected to end FY 2020 at $91.56 million, or

$245,000 under budget. Total general fund
expenditures coming in under budget is due to many
immediate cost savings measures implemented to
lessen the impact the COVID-l9 public health
emergency will have on the unassigned fund balance
this year.

Several departments or divisions are currently
projected to end the fiscal year over the budgeted
amounts. Below is a breakdown of the department's
projected and approved budgeted amounts.

F"f19-20 F"Y19-20 o/o of

s38,2r5,462
27,049,277

23.082.843
2,545,940

909,234

s38,621,862
26,727,827

25,439,s43
2,7s8,943

909,234

Salaries 101.1

98.

100.

Outlay

Service

for Transit Arurex

756 99.

a
JPage 15

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Quarterly Financial Report

Cit1,' of Folsom, CaliforniaThird Quartcr of Fl' 2{119-2020
m

It'(L)il-,S(Oi\fl

The General Fund expenditures by department are as

follows:

General Fund De nt

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Housing Fund
As of March 3l,2020,total revenues of $2,13 million
consisted mostly of $1.76 million in impact fees.

There were $39,970 in expenditures for the third
quarter. Fund balance was $27,075,256 and is

comprised of $13.99 million in cash and 512.74
million of loan receivables.

Landscape & Lighting Funds
There are 29 Landscape and Lighting (L&L) Districts
in the City of Folsom. Each District has its own budget
and maintenance requirements to maintain various
types of assets ranging from shrub beds, mini parks,

walls, fences, monument signs, streetlights, bollards,
landscape lighting, inigation systems, artwork, a

waterfall, walkways/trails, open space, trees, and

electrical services.

Some activities that have taken place in the L&L's
during this time period include:

o Tree planning in several districts including Blue
Ravine Oaks, Briggs Ranch, Cobble Hills Ridge and

Reflections II

o City staff has been working with an arborist to
gather data for the City's Tree Inventory database

. City staff has been working on revised scope of
maintenance due to COVID-19

Below is a summary list of the main projects or
activities that occuned in our L&L Districts during
January-March2020:

OTHER FUNDS

The Compensated Leaves Fund accounts for the leave

accruals paid out that are in excess ofthe current year
accruals. As ofthe third quarter the fund had a positive
cash balance of $761,700. The fund is projected to end
the fiscal year with a fund balance of $662,312. This
would be a decrease of $265,000 which is a budgeted
use ofthe fund balance.

The Trail Grant fund used to capture the expenditures
and revenues for trail projects remains on the Office of
Management and Budget's watch list. As of the end
of the third quarter, this fund had a negative cash
balance of $1.27 million, revenues of $228,500 and

expenditures of $597,000. The fund's negative cash

balance and expenditures is mainly due to costs
associated with the Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
project of which $ 1.03 million of grant
reimbursements has not yet been received. The
revenues consisted of$68,100 in grant revenue (Lake
Natoma Class I Trail final payment from the grant),

$43,560 in reimbursements and $77,500 in impact
fees. Impact fees compared to the prior year is a
decrease of$7,600.

The Park Improvement Fund received an Interfund
Loan in the amount of $2,000,000 from the
Transportation Improvement Fund in order to
complete the construction of the Econome Family
Park in FY 2019. For FY 20, the Park Improvement
Fund paid off $300,000, leaving a loan balance of
$370,000.

4

FY 19-20

Budgeted
FY 19-20

Pnrjected
"/o of

Budget

$ 142,576

1,308,827

593,577

5,019,572

t,029,351
725,089

23,s64,422

21,239,400

5,594,298

14,91 8,500

2,025,890

7,504,407

1,136,847

$ 130,773

1,352,376

599,221

4,835,01I
981,677

690,307

23,553,934

22,930,490

6,757,164

t4,596,484
1,928,370

6,606,987

9,494,615

9t

95

95

0

l0l

lt6.
Works

on-Dept

Out

for Transit Annex

City Council

City Manager

City Cbrk
Mgnt & Budget

City Attomey
Human Res

omm Dvlnlrt

arks & Rec 97

95

88

Total Expenditurts $ 91,802,756 $ 91,557,409 99.7'

Dbtrtct Pmiect Crst
Blue Ravine Oaks Tree well renovation and replanting $2.7s0

Willow Crcek Estate

East / Willow
Springs

Installation of annual spring color $4s0 / $1,3s0

American River
Canyon North

Irail asphalt repairs $12,707

Brcadstone 3 Street tree S-vear pruring $9.76s

Prairie Oaks Ranch Fence repairs $200

Page 16

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Quarterly Financial Report

City of Folsont, (lnlifirrniaThirrl Quartcr of F\' 2019-21l2ll
ihi

lh-(olLsic)N4I

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water Fund

The Water Fund is reported on a combined basis and

includes the following funds: Water Impact, Water
Operating, Water Capital, and Water Meters.

Total projected year-end revenues for FY 2020 are

$16.09 million (58.5% of budget). Of the $27.50
million in budgeted revenues, $9.95 million is a
planned use offund balance. Total projected expenses

are $20.28 million (73.8% of budget), resulting in
expenses exceeding revenues by $a.19 million.

Charges for services for FY 2020 are projected at

$14.55 million; an increase of $995,000 compared to
the prior year ($13.56 million). Charges for services
through the third quarter reflect the rate increase which
was effective in February 2020. Impact fees are
projected to decrease by $414,000 over the prior year
amount of 51.22 million.

The FY 2020 projected expenses compared to
FY 2019 show an increase of approximately $3.00
million, after adjusting for debt service, and are due to
budgeted capital outlay projects. Excluding debt
service, capital outlay costs and depreciation,
projected current year expenses are $10.49 million or
$545,000 less than prior year and due mainly to a

decrease in all expense categories ($1.42 million)
except employee costs which are projected to increase

by $889,000.

Projected debt service for FY 2020 is $2.01 million,
the same as the prior year. Projected capital outlay
costs are $3.78 million, or $2.70 million more than the
prior year.

The FY 2020 projection of revenues and expenses,

excluding capital sources (impact fees) and uses

(capital outlays and depreciation), were $15.29 million
(57.2% of budget) and $12.51 million (85.1% of
budget). This would result in non-capital revenues

exceeding expenses by $2.78 million.

Below is a chart of the Operating and Capital
Revenues and Expenses for FY 20l6through2020:

Annual Revenue & Expense
35,000,000

30p00,000

25,000,000

20,000,000

r5,000,000

r0,000,000

5,000,000

0
FY
l6

FY
11

FY
t8

FY
t9

FY
20

uNd.C.pltd R6dr. .C.plt.l Rd{u. .N6-C.pltd Erp64 cciplad Fitro4

w tr'rrnd

The Wastewater Fund is reported on a combined basis

and includes the Wastewater Operating and

Wastewater Capital Funds.

Total projected year-end revenues for FY 2020 are

$7.52 million (55.6% of budget). Of the $13.54
million in budgeted revenues, $4.10 million is a

planned use offund balance. Total projected expenses

are $6.94 million (5125% of budget), resulting in
revenues exceeding expenses by $583,000.

Projected charges for services are $7.04 million, or
$484,000 more than the prior year ($6.55 million) and
impact fees are projected at $66,000, or $49,000 less

than the prior year ($115,000). Expenses show an

increase when compared to the prior year by $278,000
and are due to budgeted capital outlay projects.

Excluding capital outlay costs and depreciation,
projected current year expenses are $4.50 million, a

decrease of $18,000 over the prior year amount of
$4.52 million

The current projection for revenues and expenses,
excluding capital sources (impact fees) and uses

(capital outlays and depreciation) are $7.46 million
(56.3% of budget) and $4.50 million (82.28% of
budget). This would result in non-capital revenues

exceeding expenses by $2.96 million. Projections of
revenues from rate payers reflect the rate increase

which was effective in February 2020.

Projected capital outlay costs are $708,000 and

$300,000 more than the prior year.

5Page 17

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Quarterly Financial Report

(lity of liolsom, (lalit'rrrniaThird Quartcr of FY 2019-21120
Il.-()ll-,fitCD\\41

Below is a chart of the Operating and Capital
Revenues and Expenses for FY 2016 rhrough2020:

Annual Revenue & Expense
2r,0m,000
10,000,000
18,0m,000
15,000,00
14.000.0m
r2J00,000
l0ro0,o00
E0(n,000
6,000,0m
4r00,000
2000.0m

0
El6 nl7 ry$

lNd-C.ptdR6-r. .CTlldRdim

ryt9
.No'C+[d D{ft3.

ra
ec.plldf,tFr

Solid W tr'und

The Solid Waste Fund is reported on a combined basis

and includes Solid Waste Operating, Solid Waste

Capital, and Solid Waste Plan Area Capital.

Total projected year-end revenues for FY 2020 are

$12.39 million (92.4% of budget) and expenses are

$13.86 million (1043% of budget), Compared to the
prior year, revenues are projected to increase by
$975,000 and expenses are projected to increase by
$1.78 million.

The current projection for revenues and expenses,

excluding capital, are $12.20 million (92.84% of
budget) and $11.61 million (94.88% of budget).
Compared to the prior year, non-capital revenues are

projected to increase by $1.02 million and non-capital
expenses are projected to increase by $646,000. The
year over year increase in expenses is mainly due to
increases in employee costs ($753,000), maintenance
costs ($90,600) and contract services ($585,800) but
offset by a decrease in other operating expenses
($793,600),

Below is a chart of the Operating and Capital
Revenues and Expenses for FY 2016 through2020:

Risk Management

The Risk Management Fund captures the activity
associated with employee and retiree health, dental

and vision insurance, workers' compensation, and

liability insurance expense.

Charges for Services are the payments from all other
funds as payment for the associated costs and
Reimbursements are the employee or retiree
contributions to health insurance premiums,

As of March 31,2020, the City has paid $5.16 million
for medical, vision, and dental premiums for active
employees, $3,29 million for retirees and $1.68
million for workers' compensation premiums.
Liability insurance payments were $ 1.79 million. The
total expenditures for FY 2020 are projected at$'17.32
million. Compared to last fiscal year this is an

increase of approximately $298,000. This is due to an

increase in property insurance premiums of $370,000.

Active employees have contributed $674,000 and
retirees have contributed $440,000 towards medical
premiums through March 31, 2020. Departmental
reimbursements to the Risk Management fund through
the third quarter totaled $11.69 million compared to
the prior year of $11.76 million. The Risk
Management Fund is projected to remain flat with a

slight increase in fund balance of approximately
$45,000.

Unrestricted net assets are projected to end the fiscal
year at approximately 49.96% of expenditures. The
fund is currently at a level to stabilize the cost to the
other funds.

Outstandine Debt

As of March 31,2020, the City had approximately
S195.8 million of outstanding debt comprised as

follows:

Fn() Outstanding Respnsible

Revenue bond debt is supported by a pledge ofspecific

6

Annud Revenue & Expense
15,000,000

13.100,(n0

12,000,m0

10500,s0
,so,m0
r5m,0{0
6n00,000

{"100,000

3,0m,000

1500,0{0
0

nb nt? illE El9

ri'o,olhrtunF .ctrdn6l* rio.oplet&
ilt0

tlndDebt

8,3 million

172 thousand

1.4 million

2.1million

270 thousand

58.2 mitlion

1.4 million

17.3 rdllion

47.3 million

71.5 million

Agency

Crneral

Water

RPTTT

Bonds

Bonds (FPFA)

Debt

Bonds

Allocation Bonds

Page 18

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Quarterly Financial Report

Citv of Folsont, CalilirrniaThird Quartcr of FY 2019-21120
$,hfi

tF'()lI.s(oN4I

revenues. Approximately $17.3 million of the City's
revenue bond debt is supported by the City's water
utility; $58.2 million is supported by the payments of
local obligations owned by the Folsom Public
Financing Authority (FPFA); and another $71.5
million is supported by the payments of local
obligations owned by the Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority (FRFA).

On August 7,2019, the FRFA issued $14,040,000 of
Special Tax Revenue Bonds. These bonds are

supported by the payments of CFD No. 19 Local
Obligations and have a True Interest Cost (TIC) of
336%. On October 17, 2019, the 2009 Water
Revenue Bonds were refunded by the issuance of the
2019 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. The Net
Present Value of the savings on the refunded bonds

was 11.19%, with a TIC for the refunding bonds of
1.27%. And on December 19,2019 the FRFA issued

$9,695,000 of Special Tax Revenue Bonds. These

bonds are supported by the payments of CFD No. 21

Local Obligations and have a TIC of 3.98%.

The Other Debt as listed above is a facility lease

agreement for City Hall and the Central Business
District Fire Station (CBDFS) assigned to Bank of
Nevada. Previously this debt was listed as Revenue
Bonds - General, with a portion also listed as COP's.
The bulk of this debt, which was attributable to the
City Hall lease, matured in fiscal year 2018. The
remainder of the debt, attributable to the CBDFS,
matures in2027.

Tax allocation bonds are issued in conjunction with
redevelopment projects. The taxes pledged to their
repayment came from the increase of assessed value
over and above a pre-established base within a project
area. With the dissolution of Redevelopment
Agencies in201l, the payment for these bonds comes

from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund
(RPTTF), administered by the State.

PIan Area Impact Fees

Total Plan Area Impact Fees received through the 3'd.

Quarter of FY 2020 was $5.17 million. In December
2019,the City used these fees to make the 1't payment
of $310,489 on the new Corp Yard.

Canital Improvement Plan (CIP)

This section presents a summary of all Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP) projects adopted with the
passage ofthe FY 2020 budget. CIPs are projects that
contribute to providing essential municipal services

that make Folsom a community of choice for living,
working, and enjoying leisure activities.

At the end of the third quarter of FY 2020, the City
budgeted projects totaled $55,059,264. Through the
third quarter, the Fire Department spent $794,901
(99% ofbudget) on aType I Fire Engine andthe Police
Department spent $178,509 (27%) on outfitting
vehicles and purchasing four motorcycles and one

truck.

The Parks and Recreation Department spent $177,800
on the Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing and $4,089
(2%) onthe Johnny Cash Trail Art Experience Project
(Culture and Recreation).

The Public Works Department spent $3,637,654
(56%) on the Green Valley Road Widening,
51,996,745 (61%) on Street Overlay, and $412,157
(37%) for traffic signal improvements.

The Wastewater Department spent 543,949 (4%) on
the Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan
Project. The Water Department spent $1,772,309
(46%) on the East Tank No. 1 and $340,218 (7%) on
the Water Treatment Plant Improvement Project.

The following table provides a summary of CIP
activity through March 31,2020:

Encumbrances

This section presents a summary of open
encumbrances/purchase orders. Encumbrances are the
recognition of commitments that will subsequently

7

$ 6,s87,212

1,8 19,839

2,718,y22

1,763,011

9,2&6,345

14,s68,09s

5,814,s30

12,501,310

$ 4,089

531,244

1,1 16,010

832,532

1 1 1,301

6,720,t88
154,49

2,449,n6

Open Space & Greenbelts

Actual

0.

portation

ater

$ $l

)o

41

47

46.1

2.

19

Streets

astewater

oh oI
BuQet

Culture and Recreation

Drainage

Creneral Services

CIP Activity
Bu{et

Page 19

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



IhJ
rForLsoNir

become expenditures when goods and services are

received. An encumbrance does not represent an

expenditure for the period, only a commitment to

expend resources. California Government Code
Section 16304 states that: "An appropriation shall be

deemed to be encumbered at the time and to the extent
that a valid obligation against the appropriation is

created. Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.02.030
provides further clarification: "All appropriations,
except for capital projects involving capital
replacements and capital additions, shall lapse at the

end of the fiscal year to the extent that such

appropriation has not been expended or encumbered,
except: (1) All capital project appropriations shall
continue in force until expended, revised or repealed
by action ofthe City Council; and(2) all capital project
appropriations shall be deemed to be abandoned if
three years pass without disbursement from or
encumbrance against the appropriation."

The following table provides a summary listing of
outstanding encumbrances by operating and capital
project funds at March 31,2020:

Quarterly Financial Report

('itv of Folsom, Califtrrnial'hird Quatrtcr of F\' 2019-2020

Non-Cafltal o/o of
Bu&et Ercuhmce Non-Ca$tal

Ceneml Fund
Public Worls
Traffc Congest Relief
Housing Trust
Crneral Plan Amendrent
Tree Planting & Replacmt
Puk Dedication (Quimby)

Redevelopment Admin
Cas Tax2l06
Gas Tax2l07.5
Cas Tax2l07.5
Planning Seruices

Cns Tax2l05
Sphere Ofhfluence
RDA
Water Opemting
Wastewater Operating
FAC Augrentation
Solid Waste Opemting
Risk Managerent

tn,2B

l0

Maint 701

42,95

450,467

1.3204

2.93%

l0.75Yo

2.n%
0.0@/o

O.00Yo

0.00%

100.00%

$ 83,215,131

6,041,685

88,61 I
122,222

56,73t

136,613

50,000

197,213

I,102,038

tn,n7
9,526

3,387

100.00%

0.00%

7.750/o

11.00%

100.00%

0.61%

0.0to/o

42,95
3,746,900

13,609,11 I
5,450,682

8,426

12,050,27'1

18,290,604

r,o54,226

599,327

8,426

73,808

1,895

333,1'17 73s6%

Tofal NorCarital s 143.568.369 $ 3.603.145 2.51o/o

ErcMbrece
S Tofel

Cadtat
Rtr.bef

9/o ofcaFtal
Budset

l0 Creneral Fund S

223 Humbug Willow Creek

235 Road Maintenmce
240 ParkDedication (Quimby)

243 CasTax2l06
U4 CasTaxzlo7.s
245 Cas^lax2l07.5

7 Cas T*21O5
276 Measurc A
4ll SupplementalParkFee
412 Ptrk Irproverents
414 Johnny Cash Trail
416 CFD#r0
425 Zoocapital
428 Police Capital
431 Redevelopment Capital
Ml Fire Capital
443 Hwy 50Irpnd Capital
M3 Hwy 50 Interchange Cap

445 General Capital
446 Transportationlnpr
448 Drcinage Capital Inp.
449 Transit Capital
451 Light RailTransportation
452 Prk Maintenmce
456 Water Irpact
459 Cory Yard Capital
470 FSPA lnfrastructure
472 FSPASP Capital
520 Water Operating
521 Water Capital
522 Water Meters
530 WastewaterOperating
531 Wastewater Capital
537 FAC Augrentation C€neral

540 Solid Waste Operating
543 Iandfill Closure

2,545,940

1,623,64
3,459,499

r,439,351

1,296,381

655,877

557,257

353,542

1,206,334

265,960

5,240,147

260,066

83,494

2,608

264,818

4,312

853,624

100,038

100,o77

152,505

t4,448,ss9

1,067,211

100,039

228,586

105,149

1,137,332

476,512

1,326

412,366

7,404,969

4,630,U2
229,514

8,070,257

2t,002
1u,ilo

1,050,000

100,000

t4.s2%

6.540/0

3.81o/o

0.2v/o

2227%
1.150/0

O.55o/o

2.120/0

10.380/0

O.0@/o

r.8to/o

6.71o/o

0.Of/o

0.ov/o

0.ov/o

0.00%

0.00yo

0.000/o

0.00o/o

10.|v/o
34.360/o

44j*/o
0.000/0

2.700/o

0.000/0

16.6@/0

0.00%

100.00%

0.Of/o

39.640/0

5.660/o

24.71o/o

14.780/0

o.00%

85.45o/o

98.320/0

to6.59v"

$

6,163

188,806

1,326

369,641

106,196

13t,832

4,113

288,652

7,531

3,080

7,479

125,223

%,893
17,444

15,534

4,964,817

475,7'14

? q?( )?{

262,050

56,7t4
I,l93,tO9

106,505

t,032,380

106,592

798 20.840/0

Grand Tohl s 203.542.167 16.104.234 7.9tvo

8Page 20

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX A

City of Folsom, California

Revenue Summary by Fund

Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Revenues through

Fund # and Description
FY 2019

3t31t2019
FY 2020

3t3l/2020
FY

2019 vs.2020
Percent
Change

Budget
FY 2019D020

Percent of
2020 Budget

FIINDOlO CENERALFUND
FUND OI2 COMMUNITY CENTER

FUND OI5 COMPENSATED LEAVES
FUNDO23 PUBLICWORKS
FIJNDO3I SPIFFEE
FL'ND 032 SPIF PARKLAND FEE

FLIND 033 SPIF FACILITIES
FLTND 034 SPIF OFFSITE ROA
FTJND 2OI COMM DEV BLOCKGRANT
FLTND 203 TRAFFIC CONGESTION RELIEF
FLTND 204 LOS CERROS T"&L AD
FUND 205 BRIGGS RANCH t"&LAD
FLIND 206 TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MGT
FLrND 207 NATOMA STATION t"d.L AD
FI.IND 208 FOLSOM HGHTS t&L AD
FUND 209 BROADSTONE LTNIT 3 L & L
FUND 2IO BROADSTONE t"&L AD
FUND 2I2 HANNAFORD CROSS L & L AD
FUND 2I3 LAKE NATOMA SHORES L & L
FLrND 214 COBBLE HILLS/REFLECT tLl
FLTND 2I9 FOLSOM COMMNTY CULT'L SER

FLTND 22I HOUSINGTRUST FLIND
FIJND 223 HUMBUG WILLOW CREEK
FIJND 225 GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT
FLIND 226 TREE PLANTING& REPLACEMT
FLIND 23I SIERRA ESTATES L& L
FLIND 232 LAKERIDGE ESTATES L & L
FLIND 234 COBBLE RIDCE L& L
FTIND 235 ROAD MAINT & REHAB
FUND 236 PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH t&LAD
FUND 237 SILVERBROOKL&L
FLIND 238 REDEVELOPMENT AGY 20% MNY
FLTND 240 PARK DEDICATION (QUIMBY)
F['ND243 GASTAX2106
FUND244 deSraXZIOZ
FUND245 GASTAX2IO7.5
FI.IND 246 PLANNING SERVICES
FI.IND 247 GAS TAX 2IO5
FLTND 248 TRANSPORTATION TAX(SB325)
FUND 249 WILLOW CREEK EAST T&LAD
FTIND 250 BLUE RAVINE OAKS t&L AD
FLIND 251 STEEPLECIIASE tLl,AD
FLND 252 WLLOW CREEK SOUTH t"&L AD
FI.IND 253 AMERICAN RV CANYON NO L&L
FI.'ND 254 HISTORICAL DISTRICT
FTJND 260 WILLOW SPRINGS L& L
FIJND262 WILLOWSPGSCFD 11 M.DST
FI.JND 266 CFD #I2 MAINT, DIST.

FLIND 267 CFD #13 ARC MAINT. DIST.
FIJND 270 ARC NO. L & L DIST #2
FLIND 27I THE RESIDENCES AT ARC, N
FTJND 273 SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
FUND 274 OAKS AT WILLOW SPRINGS

FL]ND 275 ARC L & L DIST #3

FLIND276 NEWMEASUREA
F['ND 278 BLUE RAVINE OAKS NO.2 T"&L

FLIND 2?9 RDA OBLICATION RETIREMENT
FTIND 280 RDA SA TRUST - HOUSING
FLIND 28I FOLSOM HEICHTS L&L 2
FUND282 BROADSTONE#4
FLIND283 CFD #16 ISLANDS
FUND 284 WLLOW CREEK EST 2

FL'ND 285 PROSPECT zuDGE
FLTND 288 MAINT DISTRICT
FLIND 289 CFD #I9 MAINTENANCE DIST
FLIND 302 CCF DEBT SERVICE
FUND 305 1993 CO SCHOOLFAC D S

FIIND 320 FSAD REFUNDING

49,8'10,499

545

5s6,327
1,3 l0,l4l

6,348

3.5o/o

58.gyo

-243%
-403Yo

496.00/"

$ 5 1,591,484

866

421,059
'782,325

37,836
6,893

934
28,7t3

116,47'7

9 1,86 I
25,36t
44,938
29,29s
93,740
I 1,933

12,609
2t'7,259

10,8'79

t4,tll
24,057
20,226
94,031

228,447
76,522

120,370
4,850

3'7,5'75

t'7,710
8'78,949
l3 1,5 l9

1,974
2,12'7,955

30'1,034

152,099
271,313
335,660

6,826
226,922

2,504
32,927
23,418
19,124
99,248

59,331
s,39t

12,653
30,680

340,506
60,766
9,713

1t,649
3,343

399
152,615

2,0 18,568

21,'734

" 
1<a <1)

a 1)1

36,55 I
174,151

3,986
54,748
4,888

1,546
3,403
5,198
1,623

4,112

l,'720,985

321
(135,268)
(s27,8t6)

3 1,488

6,893

934
28,7 t3
54,441

1,5'7 |
556

(26e)

6,956
7s2
120

(s,824)
6,1 18

(66e)
('17)

(1,017)

18,990
49,1t9

(1,636,078)
16,056

38,442
7t

339
8,53 I

47,126
24,605

(76)
203,579
104,'733

(s6,326)
(60,044)

124,764
( 1,03s)

(s3,420)
(136)

l9
2,685
3,625
2,075

(1,58s)
96

4,055
(3,28 l)
(3,33 l)
2,254

384
(464)

1,008

8

31,321
59, 13 I

l,198
(27t,0ss)

45
1,562
4,650
2,503

385
(4,670)

951

3,403
99

(4,242)
77

$ 88,481,806

854,601
3,320,950

58.30/"

69.7%
55.4%
3.4yo

52.6yo
ll.3vo

1.00/o

4.Oyo

t0'19.30/"

49.3%
23.6%

69.6yo

103;7%
35j%
44.6%

28441.7%
41.3%
10.8%

34.0%
l15.5o/o

26.t%
33.2%
36.t%

133j%
76.9Vo

t4.l%
134.gYo

88.1%
36.8o/o

4'1.7o/o

75.4%
23.4o/o

44.2%
9.2%

1869.00/o

20.6%

tt.7%
4t.4%
60.2%

t.s%
64.2%

2.9%
62.8%
93.7%
62.4%
62.6%
46r'.%

lO0.4Yo

28.0%

l0.s%o

38.4Yo

39.l%o

58.6Yo

30.2%
22.3%

1.7%
56.9vr

167.3%
24.6yo

100.0%

$

62,036
90,290
24,805
45,20"1

tr l?q
92,988
l 1,8 l3
18,433

2tt,t4t
I 1,548

14, I 88

25,0't4
1,236

44,912
1,864,525

60,466

8t,928
4,779

37,236
9,1'79

83t,823
106,914

2,050
t,924,3'76

202,301
208,425

331,357
2t0,896

7,861
280,342

2,640
32,908

20,733
15,499
97,173
60,916
{ rq{
8,598

33,961

343,837
58,5 l2

9,329
t2,t13
2,335

391

12t,294
1,959,437

20,536
4,023,62'7

2,282
34,989

169,501
1,483

54,363
9,558

595

5,099
5,865
4,035

87.8o/o

|.'10/o

2.2Vo

-0.6yo
3l.lYo

0.\vo
1.0%

-3l.6Yo
2.9yo
-s.\yo
-0.50/o

-4.1o/o

1536.4o/o

109.4o/o

-8',1.70/o

26.6Vo

469yo
t.syo
0.gyo

92.gyo
s.7yo

23.jyo
-3.1yo

10.60/0

5t.\yo
-2'l.0Yo

-18.1%
59.2yo

-t3.2yo
-t9.tyo

-5.zYo

0.tyo
t3.lyo
23.4yo

2.lo/o
-2.6vo
t.$vo

47.zvo

-9.'tvo
-t.0yo
3.9yo
4.tyo

-3.$yo
43.zyo
2.0yo

25.8o/o

3.ovo
5.8o/o

-6.',10/o

2.0o/o

4.5vo
2.7vo

t68.gyo
0.1yo

-48.9vo
159.8Yo

t67,4tt
88,61 I
71,4r0

100,844
103

226,829

t6,849
3'7,042

188,064
4 1,658

42,488
66,578

15,146
122,222

t,623,664
56,',?31

136,613
13,172
78,855
23,480

3,759,499
297,661
2t,542

I 13,853

1,489,35 I
1,296,381

655,8'77

55'1,25'7

450,46'7
?s? {1,

86,210
52,434
25,000
30,646

158,486

127,855
5,370

45,238
291,855
886,097
155,754

16,583

38,532
15,000
24,000

268,391
t,206,334

88,359

3,7s4,238

52,404
314,424
tt7,953
103,985

43,061
150,007
85,000

I

l.gvo
-72.30/o

l.9o/o 381

Page 21

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX A

City of Folsomn California

Revenue Summary by Fund

Quarter Ended March 3 l, 2020

Revenues through

Fund # and

FY 2019

3t3t/2019
FY 2020

3t3t/2020
FY

2019 vs.2020
Percent
Change

Budget
FY 2019/2020

Percent of
2020 Budget

FTJND 32I I982.I NIMBUS ADD S

FIJND 325 TRAFFIC SIGNAL COP REFI
FTJND 337 RECREATION FACILITIES COP

FUND 4I I SUPPLEMENTAL PARK FEE

FUND 4I2 PARK IMPROVEMENTS
FUND 4I4 JOHNNY CASH TRAIL
FLTND 416 CFD #IO RUSSELL RANCH
FLIND 4I8 PRAIRIE OAK 92-2 1915 AD
FUND 425 ZOO CAPITAL PROJECTS

FUND 428 POLICE CAPITAL
FLIND 43 I REDEVELOPMENT AGY CAP PRO

F['ND 438 PARKWAYII CFD#14
FUND44I FIRECAPITAL
FL]ND 443 HWY 50 IMPRV CAPITAL
FUND 444 HWY 50 INTER CAPITAL
FLIND 445 CENERAL CAPITAL
FLTND 446 TRANSPORTATION IMPR
FT'ND 448 DRAINAGE CAPITAL IMPRV
FIIND 449 TRANSIT CAPITAL
FLTND 45I LICHT RAIL TRANSPORTATION
FUND 452 GENERAL PARK EQUIP CAP

FLTND 456 WATER IMPACT FEE(ORD9I2)
FLTND 458 LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT FUND
FUND 459 CORP YARD CAPITAL
FIIND 470 FSPA INFRASTRUCTURE
FUND472 FSPACAPITAL
FLND 5I9 TRANSIT
FLTND 520 WATER OPERATING
FLTND52I WATERCAPITAL
FLIND 522 WATERMETERS
F['ND 530 SEWER OPERATING
FUND53I SEWERCAPITAL
F['ND 536 FAC AUGMENTATION CRITICAL
FTND 537 FAC AUCMENTATION GENERAL
FLTND 540 SOLID WASTE OPERATING
FTIND 54I SOLID WASTE CAPITAL
FL'ND 543 LANDFILL CLOSURE
FTJND 544 SOLID WASTE CAPITAL
FLIND 601 MAJOR CAPITAL &RENOVATION
FTIND 602 EQUIPMENT FUND
F['ND 604 FOLSOM MNCH CFD #I?
F['ND 605 FOLSOM PUBLIC FINANC AUTH
F['ND 606 RISKMANAGEMENT
FLIND 702 BLUE RAVINE EAST AGENCY
FLIND 706 LECENDS 93.2 I9I5 AD AGCY
FLIND 707 NATOMA STA92-1 I9I5AD AGY
FUND 708 FOLSOM AUTO PLAZA 1915 AD
FTIND 709 LK NATOMA SHORg3-I AD AGY
FUND 7IO PRAIRIE OAKS AD92.2 P.EFI

FUND 71 I COBBLE HILLS RDGAD AGNCY
FUND 7I2 RIDGE\1EWgs-I 1915 AD AGY
FUND ?I3 CRESLEIGH 95-2 AD AGENCY
FUND 7I5 HANNFORD CROSS 1915 REFI
FUND 720 CFD 2OI3-OI WTR FAC & SUP

FLIND 721 CFD #1 WLLOW CR SO REFI
FLTND 722 CFD #2 NATOMA STATION
FLIND 723 CFD #3 FOLSOM HGTS REFI
FUND 724 CFD #4 BROADSTONE REFI
FLIND 727 CFD #7 BROADSTONE #2

FLIND 728 CFD #8 PARKWAY
FLIND 729 CFD #9 WLLOW CREEK SO
FLIND 730 CFD #10 RUSSELL RANCH
FIJND 73I CFD #1 1 WILLOW SPRINGS
FIJND 733 CFD #16 ISLANDS IA2
FIJND 734 CFD #14 PARKWAY II
FI]ND 735 FOLHIS DISTBUS IMP DIST
FIJND 736 CFD # 16 ISLANDS IA1
FTIND 737 CFD #I? WILLOW HILL PIPELN

14,t12
84t
902

4,612
1,993,538

30,422
9,694

6

t2,442
239,20t

4,615
28,750

392,045
279,409
570,468
566,858

2,860,328
440,99s
289,843
221,808

63,378
293,"101

1,155
)1L L11

85,879
2,'721,'745

326,466
9,672,021

649,974
I'13,177

5,',t36,753
89,887

727
5,174

9,092,'762
68,172
'70,354

t03,275
1,245

123,044

14,380
858

920
4,700

1,966,'771

27,676
9,402

6

2,605
322,996

2,5n
69,927

473,121
329,539
668,68 l
667,329

3,020,53t
446,429
339,432
242,737

65,944

287,441
I,178

93,132
3,838

3,698,228
l7,905

t0,363,852
454,392
145,95'7

6,292,O92
69,774

701
1,605

9,814,523
49,45'7

40,002
140,836

1,269
109,451

268
l7
18

88

(26,767)
(2,746)

(2e2)

(e,83?)

83,'795
(2,104)
4l,l'7'7
8 1,076

50,130
98,213

100,47 |
160,203

5,434
49,589
20,929

2,566
(6,260)

23
(l 8 1,340)

(82,041)

976,483
(308,561)

69 1,83 I
(19s,582)

(27,220)
55{ ??q

(20,tt3)
(26)

(3,56e)

72t,761
( 18,7 l5)
(30,3s2)

37,561
24

(13,593)

15,429
39,066

3

136
(4r4)
(26)
(64)

(23,909)
(77)

(274)
168

(1,396)

252,863
(r)

(504,223)

l.9yr
2.0o/o

2.00/o

1.9%
-13%
-9.0%
-3.0%
O.i%o

-79.tyo
35.0o/o

-45.60/o

t43.2yo
20.1Vo

l7.9yo
t7.zyo
17.7%

5.60/o

l.2o/o

I'l.lo/o
9.4vo

4.j%o

2.!yo
-66.1o/o

-95.5o/o

35.9o/o

-94.syo
'7.2vo

-30.|Vo
-15;1Vo

9.'tyo
:22.40/o

-3.60/o

-69.0o/o
't.9vo

-2'7.syo
-43.lyo
36.4yo

t.9vo
-11.0%

332.4yo
03%
2.3vo

1046.zvo
-399Vo

-2.svo
-'78.jvo
-9'7.0Vo

-123yo
-52.2o/o

7',t.80/o

-66.0o/o

26.1o/o

-4.2Yo

-98.8%
0.iyo
73yo
r.4yo

-t7.3vo
0.ovo
0.4vo

-0.tvo
-0.4o/o

l.9o/o

8.lo/o

72.oyo
21.6V"

265,960
5,240,147

260,066
83,494

I
2,608

264,8t8
4,312
2,696

853,624
100,038
100,017
152,505

14,148,559
1,067,2r1

100,039
228,586
105,149

t,t3'7,332

1,33 I

476,512

412,366

21,0 14,080
5,12t,623

229,514
13,520,939

2t,002
42,515

124,640
13,100,2'77

85,392
100,000
100,014
50,1 l7
5,966

2,598,394
10,846,752
18,290,604

33,106

1,784,849
3,3 l0
2,421
1,118

t t< <)o

1,352,350

2,472,969

344,257

4,826,469
336,790
157,500

1,239,774

100,600
422,639

L8o/o

3'15%
10.60/o

lt3%
600.0%

99.9%
122.0%

58.2%

2593.7%
55J%

329.4yo
668.2%
437.6%

21.3%
41.8%

339.3o/o

106.2o/o

62;l%
253%

1080.4%

19.50/"

896.8o/o

49.3o/o

8.9o/o

63.6%

46.syo
332.2%

l.60/o

l.3o/o
'14.9yo

57.90/o

40.00/o

140.80/o

2.5%
1834.6%

0.0%
0.2o/o

70.1o/o

1.9v"

0.0%
16.60/0

l0.4o/o

34.3%

497.4%

05%

4,642
12,891,462

13l
13

1,038

1,053

82
24,638

625
525
216

2,116
968,440

24
s10,482

23
'143

t,346,545
193,276

581

2,961,273
238,37s
187,694
671,823

4 1,560
67,936

204,959

20,o7 |
12,930,528

134
t49
624

1,027
l8

729
548

251
384
720

1,221,303
23

6,259
23

79't
1,364,900

159,805
581

2,973,'749
238,088
186,887
684,414

44,926
I 16,833

249,296

54
18,355

(33,4',1r)

12,4',16

(287)
(807)

12,591
3,366

48,897
44,337

55.2%

46.4o/o

61.6%
70.7o/o

118.7%
55.2Ya

tt6.t%
59.0%

10

Page 22

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX A

City of Folsom, California

Revenue Summary by Fund

Quarter Ended March 3 1, 2020

Fund # and Description

Revenues throuqh
FY 2019

3t3u20r9
FY 2020 FY

2019 vs.2020
Percent
Chanqe

Budget
FY 2019D020

Percent of
2020 Budeet38u2020

FUND 738 CFD #I8 AREA wID
FT/ND ?39 CFD #I9 MANGINI
FTIND 740 CFD #20 RUSSELL MNCH
FUND 75I POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE
FUND 753 ZOO SPECIAL REVENUE
FLTND 760 WETLAND/OPEN SPACE MAINT
FLIND 766 POLICE IMPOI.'ND

26,363
644,90'7

237
35,500

27,483
7,423
1,736

239,073
1,752,355

374,037
14,6't2

26,365
7,550
1,907

212,710
1,1,0'7,448

373,800
(20,828)

(1,118)

127

17t

806.9yo

17l.7o/o
157721.5o/o

-58.',to/o

-4.1o/o

l.1yo
9.9yo

1,400

t,585,550
663,064

51,354
82,808
10,701

17076.6%

110.50/o

56.4%
28.60/o

3t.\yo
70.6%

11

Page 23

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX B

City of Folsom, California

Expenditure Summary by Fund

Quarter Ended March 3 1, 2020

Expenditures throush

Fund # and Description
FY 2019

3/31/2019
FY 2020

3Bln020
FY

2019 vs.2020
Percent
Chrnge

Budget
Fv 2019t2020

Percent of
2020 Budget

FL'NDOIO GENERALFL'ND
FLIND O15 COMPENSATED LEAVES
FLTND 023 PUBLIC WORKS
FLTND 201 COMM DEV BLOCK GRANT
FI.'ND 203 TRAFFIC CONCESTION RELIEF
FUND 204 LOS CERROS t-&L AD
FI.IND 205 BRIGGS MNCH T.&LAD
FUND 206 TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MCT
FT-IND 207 NATOMA STATION L&L AD
FUND 208 FOLSOM HGHTS t&L AD
FI.IND 209 BROADSTONE T'NIT 3 L & L
FLIND 2IO BROADSTONE T.&L AD
FUND 212 HANNAFORD CROSS L & L AD
FUND 2I3 LAKENATOMA SHORES L & L
FLTND 2I4 COBBLE HILLS/REFLECT T"&L

FLIND 2I9 FOLSOM COMMNTY CULT'L SER

FLTND 22I HOUSINC TRUST FLIND

FLTND 223 HUMBUG WILLOW CREEK
FLIND 225 CENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT
FUND 226 TREE PLANTING& REPLACEMT
FUND 23I SIERRA ESTATES L& L
FLTND 232 LAKEzuDGE ESTATES L & L
FLIND 234 COBBLE RIDGE L& L
FLTND 235 ROAD MAINT & REHAB
FIJND 236 PMIRIE OAKS RANCH L&L AD
FLIND 237 SILVERBROOK I*L
FLIND 238 REDEVELOPMENT AGY 20% MNY
FLIND 240 PARK DEDICATION (QUIMBY)
FLIND243 GASTAX2106
FLIND 244 GAS TAX 2107

FLIND 245 GAS TAX 2107.5

FTIND 246 PLANNING SERVICES
FUND247 CASTAX2lO5
FLrND 248 TRANSPORTATTON rAx(S8325)
FTTND 249 WILLOW CREEK EAST t"&L AD
FLIND 250 BLUE RAVINE OAKS T"&L AD
FLTND 25 I STEEPLECHASE I"&L AD
FUND 252 WILLOW CREEK SOUTH L&L AD
FUND 253 AMERICAN RV CANYONNO I/4L
FUND 254 HISTORICAL DISTRICT
F['ND 260 WILLOW SPRINGS L & L
FL'ND 262 WILLOW SPGS CFD I I M. DST
FIJND 266 CFD #I2 MAINT. DIST.
FLIND 267 CFD #I3 ARC MAINT. DIST.
FT'ND 270 ARCNO, L& LDIST #2

FLTND 271 THE RESIDENCES AT ARC, N
FLIND 273 SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
FLTND 274 OAKS AT WILLOW SPRINGS
FI.JND 275 ARC L& LDIST#3
FI.JND2?6 NEWMEASUREA
FLIND 2?8 BLUE RAVINE OAKS NO.2I&L
FT,IND 279 RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT
FUND 281 FOLSOM HEIGHTS t"d.L 2

FLTND282 BROADSTONE#4
FLTND 283 CFD #16 ISLANDS
FLrND 284 WILLO'IV CREEK EST 2

FL'ND 285 PROSPECT RIDGE
FTJND 288 CFD #18 MAINT
FLIND 289 CFD #I9 MAINTENANCE DIST
FUND 305 1993 GO SCHOOLFAC D S

FUND 320 FSAD REFLINDING
FUND 32I I982-I NIMBUS AD D S

FLIND 4I I SUPPLEMENTAL PARK FEE

FUND 4I2 PARK IMPROVEMENTS
FLTND 414 JOHNNY CASH TRAIL
FLIND 416 CFD #IO RUSSELL RANCH
FUND 418 PRAIRIE OAK 92-2 I9I5 AD

$58,682,78s
1,085,261

4,O3',1,419

89,r3'7
36,139
20,598
48,09 I

59

I 16,060

13,264

9,027
2',14,754

14,752
10,640
40,826

t,467
9,613

1,792,268
t0'7,251

t9,213
3,4',1I

18,760

11,433

65,'199,320 $
565,911

3,831,701
t17,708

9,754
28,30'7
8'7,113

'7',1

165,532
t8,749
50,328

29r,615
2r,769
20,662
64,O40

6,598
3,659

596,792
5,048

107,91 I
6,063

34,108
8,482

1,040,052
194,323

4,953
39,96'7

102,879
277,60s
169,060
195,120
264,679

555

7,116,53s
(s 19,3s0)
(205,?18)

28,57 |
(26,38s)

7,709
39,022

l8
49,472

5,485
4 1,301

I 6,861
'7,01'7

10,022
23,2t4

5,13 1

(5,954)
(1,r9s,4'16)

(t02,203)
88,698
t <ot

15,348
(2,esr)

1,040,052
31,676

723
t9,982

100,192
2'77,605

90,426
(422,"114)

76,684
555

(50,000)

8,179
13,490
7,045

38,865
69,580

(r00)
2,334

25,286
65,917

(28,507)
2,936
9,585

13,593

(r5,012)
(2,s28,3ee)

15,169
(2,610)
"1,48"t

15,936
6,018

(62,11o)
244

22,454
4,229

(4,58 l)
286
998
326

(406,920)

49,4'78

lz.l%o $

47.9o/o
-5.1o/o

32.t%
:73.0%

3'7.4%
8r.t%
30.s%
42.6Yo

41.4%
4s7.syo

6.1%
47.60/o

94.2o/o

56.9o/o

349.8o/o

-61.90/o

-66.7%

-95.3%
46t.',to/o

74.7%
81.8%

:25.\yo

85,761,071
854,601

6,041,685
16'7,411

88,61 I
7 t,410

100,844
103

226,829
16,849
37,042

188,064
4 1,658

42,488
66,578
15,146

1)) 1)1

1,623,664
56,731

t36,6t3
13,t'72
?8,855
23,480

3,459,499
29'7,661

21,542
I 13,853

1,489,351
1,296,381

655,87'7

557,257
450,467
353,542

86,2tO
52,434
25,000
30,646

158,486
127,855

5,370
45,238

291,855
886,097

ls5,'154
16,583

38,532
15,000
24,O00

268,391
1,206,334

88,359

3,7s4,238
52,404

314,424
tl7,953
103,985

43,06'7

150,00?
85,000

381

t,331
265,960

5,240,147
260,066

83,494
I

103,374
3,225,186

7,309
7,565

18,975

86,3 l5
42,s41

103,727
4,593

7,035
1,046
4,58 I

162,647
4,230

19,985

2,68'7

78,634
617,834
t8'7,995

50,000
52,849
2"1,168

15,750
81,284
68,081

9'76
8,800

55,461
218,85'7

tO"t,910
2,218
9,893

16,243

907,881
30,546
13,143

19.syo
t'7.tyo

100.0%

3728.8Vo

115.00/o

48.40/o
40.8o/o

76.7%
66.2o/o

63.40/o

'70.3%

tt.0%
39.6%
86.4%
'14.8%

73.0%
ltt3%
1359%
155.1%

52.3%
48.6%
96.2%
43.6Yo

3.0Yo

36.\Yo

8.9o/o

79.00/o

46.0%
43.3%
36.1%
30.1%
653%
23.oyo
35.tyo

6.9yo

2t.Avr
25.\Vo
35.0%
58.80/o

0.20/o

0.0o/o

l16.4yo
162.60/0

74.4%

75.8o/o

107.7o/o

16.3%
24.60/o

27 .',to/o

32.1o/o

51.0o/o

31.1%
50.6%

1989%
0.0o/o

32.9o/o

5'7 .8o/o

25.4o/o

0.lo/o
50.5%
51.6%
41.2%
39.4%
tt.2%
19.7o/o

6.20/o

75.1%
75.0%
0.1%
9.6%
1.60/0

75.0o/o

0.0%

6 1,028

40,658
22,795

120,1,49

137,661
8'76

I 1,134
80,'74'7

284,7'74
79,403

5,154
19,478
29,836

88362
696,',781

22,478
4,955

26,462
t62,251
48,559
41,017
4,837

29,489
5,2'75

286
998
326

500,961
4,089

62,621

-100.0o/o

15.5o/o

49.',|%
44.'7%

47.8%
1o22%
-to.2yo
26s%
45.6%
30.1%

a6.4%
132.4%
96.9%
83;7%

-t4.5yo
-78.4o/o

207.5o/o

-34.5vr
39.5yo
88.0%
l4.lYo
40j%

53%
319.2o/o

404.3%
100.0%

44.8%
0.0%

376.50/o

12

Page 24

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX B

City of Folsom, California

Expenditure Summary by Fund

Quarter Ended March 3 1, 2020

Fund # and Description

FUND 425 ZOO CAPITAL PROJECTS
FLIND 428 POLICE CAPITAL
FLIND 43I REDEVELOPMENT AGY CAP PRO

FLTND 438 PARKWAY II CFD #I4
FLIND 44I FIRE CAPITAL
FUND443 HWY50 IMPROVCAP
FUND 444 HWY 50 INTERCHANGE CAP

FUND 445 GENERALCAPITAL
FLTND 446 TRANSPORTATION IMPR
FLTND 448 DMINAGE CAPITAL IMPRV
FLIND 449 TRANSITCAPITAL
FUND 45 I LIGHT RAIL TRANSPORTATION
FLTND 452 GENERAL PARK EQUIP CAP

FLTND 456 WATER IMPACT FEE(ORD9I2)
FLTND 459 CORP YARD CAPITAL
FT'ND 470 FSPA INFRASTRUCTURE
FLIND 472 FSPA CAPITAL
FUND5I9 TRANSIT
FI'ND 520 WATER OPERATING
FLTND52I WATERCAPITAL
FLTND 522 WATER METERS

FLI'ND 530 SEWER OPERATING

FUND53I SEWERCAPITAL

FTIND 536 FAC AUCMENTATION CRITICAL
FL]ND 537 FAC AUGMENTATION GENERAL

FLI'ND 540 SOLID WASTE OPERATING
FLIND 54I SOLID WASTE CAPITAL

FLTND 543 LANDFILL CLOSURE

FUND 544 SOLID WASTE CAPITAL
FUND 60I MAJOR CAPITAL &RENOVATION

FUND602 EQUIPMENTFUND
FIJND 604 FOLSOM RANCH CFD#I?
FLIND 605 FOLSOM PUBLIC FINANC AUTH
FLIND 606 zuSKMANAGEMENT
FLIND ?06 LEGENDS 93-2 I9I5 AD AGCY

FI.'ND 707 NATOMA STA92-I 19IsAD AGY

FLTND 708 FOLSOM AUTO PLAZA 1915 AD
FIJND 709 LKNATOMA SHORg3-I AD AGY

FUND 710 PMIRIE OAKS AD92-2 REFI

FIJND 7I I COBBLE HILLS RDGAD AGNCY

FLIND ?I2 RIDGEVIEWgs-I I9I5 AD AGY

FLTND 7I3 CRESLEIGH 95.2 AD AGENCY

FLINDTI5 HANNFORDCROSS 1915 REFI

FLTND 720 CFD 2OI3.OI WTR FAC & SUP

FUND 722 CFD #2 NATOMA STATION

FUND 724 CFD #4 BROADSTONE REFI

FLTND 727 CFD #7 BROADSTONE #2

FUND 728 CFD #8 PARKWAY

FUND 729 CFD #9 W1LLOW CREEKSO

FUND 730 CFD #IO RUSSELL RANCH

FI.JND 731 CFD #I I WLLOW SPzuNGS

FIJND 733 CFD #I6 ISLANDS

FUND 734 CFD #I4 PARKWAY II
FT]ND 735 FOLHIS DIST BUS IMP DIST

FttND 736 CFD #16 Islmds IAI
FLTND 737 CFD #17 W]LLOW HILL PIPELN

FLTND 738 CFD #18 AREA WID
FTIND 739 CFD #I9 MANGINI
FLTND 740 CFD #20 RUSSELL MNCH
FUND 75I POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE

FLTND 753 ZOO SPECIAL REVENUE
FUND 760 WETLAND/OPEN SPACE MAINT

Expenditures through
FY 2019 F'Y 2020

3t3t/2019 38112020
FY

2019 vs,2020
Percent Budget

FY 2019t2020
Percent of

2020 Budget

75.0yo
44.1yo

75.0o/o
't5.,yo

3.\yo
0.00/o

0.1%
tot.r%
32.2%
23!%

O.0yo

s.1yo

8.8Yo

L4.lo/o

67.8o/o

Change

1,162

158,30?

t,s67,B;

44,897

2,394,386
128,348

t13,674
80,935
19,228

I Sqs

8'7,t'7'7

1,964,943

7,'798,523

4'7,893
165,333

3,153,037

245

3,O72

306,586

7,394,43s
'7,tt3

45,184

6,281

1,956
I 18,333

3,234
a Aaa

32,838
29

52
I 54,148

4,651,142
249,525

29
13,137
9,233

160,298
322,864

566
275

4,804,48'7

334,639

t49,913
1,224,824

83,565
'7,148

421,386

8,029

1,919,602

335,281

29,349

2,'t55

526

8,844,664
337,'7'74

69,255

3,463,032
'752

1,490

17,857

8,732,689

2s,304

37,909

ll
88

4,4'75

tlt,827
t3,348,642

3 1,603

2,765

1,763,388

2,483

1,8 l6
839

26

35,332

27,146

2,456,9tr
340,428

794
I 18,333

(r55,073)
) ial

(r,834,2es)
29
52

tog,25l
2,256,'756

t2t,t'l'1
29

( 100,537)
(7 t,702)
141,070
320,869
(86,61 l)

275
(t,e64,e43)
1,046,141

289,88 I
(96,078)

309,99s

507

(1,s82)

(288,729)

1,338,254

I 8, l9l
(7,2',1s)

ll
88

(1,806)

648

647,168

(37,3 I l)
(4s6)

350

(7,000)

10,294

(222,3',16)

(2e4,31s)

(246,8o9)

(467,s79)

600

(2,1e1)

(s,44s)

(1,9 16, r 59)

(7,et0)
(62s)

t,937,O2t
1,926

(23,2s6)

35,514

4,108

(85)

(703, l l0)
3,041

1,883,933

330,426

(16,095)

(9,68',7)

(427)

-88.4yo
-88.6%

733.1yo

16083.7yo
-99.4yo

-100.0%

13/%
605.3%
-58.1%

9.8%

206.9%

-5t.svo

-94.2%

t8.tvo
255.7%

-16.lo/o

:28.gyo

68.3%

-98.0%

-98.2o/o

243.3%

94.3yo
94.4Yo

0.6yo

5.lvo
-100.0%

-t.4yo

t4.syo

-100.0%

0.6yo

-98.9%

-99.4o/o

-99.',lyo

-100.0%

-9.3Vo

-100.00/o

-43.8%

-2.3yo

-100.0%

67.6%

0.6%

-13.4o/o

3.00/o

5.2%

-1.2%

42.5%
61.0%

s281.7%

679'7.5%
:35.4%

:77.9%

44.8%

2,608
264,8t8

4,312
2,696

853,624
100,038
100,07'7

152,505

t4,448,559
1,067,2tl

100,039
228,586
105,149

r,r37,332
476,512

412,366

2 1,014,080
5,121,623

229,514
13,520,939

21,002

42,515

124,640

13,100,2'77

85,392

100,000

100,0 l4
50, I l7

5,966

2,598,394

10,846,752

18,290,604

33, I 06

t,'184,849

3,3 10

2,421

1,1 18

245,529

1,352,350

2,472,969

344,25'7

4,826,469

336,'790

258,100

1,239,'774

422,639

1,400

1,585,550

663,064

51,354

82,808

10,701

0.lo/o

42.1%
6.6%

30.zyo

25.6%

3.6%
3.s%o

t43Vo

66.1Yo

29.6yo

3'7.9vo

0.00/o

o.2yo

75.jyo

0.jyo
1.0%

'13.0yo

95.5o/o

98.8%

75.0%

75.0vo

75.0o/o

ttt,t79
12,701,474

37,3ll
1' nsq

2,415

?,000

t,753,094

224,859

296,131

247,648

467,605

34,732

29,93'7

5,445

4,373,0',70

348,338

625

2,86',7,466

332,713

t'13,169

I, I 89,3 l0
79,4s7

1,124,496

4,988

35,669

4,861

45,444

12,442

953

14.4o/o

2.0%

99.4%

98.9o/o

99.5o/o

99.4%

58.1%

98,gyo

99.1yo

573.5%

121.1%

50.6Yo

5'1.2%

33vo

4.9%

13

Page 25

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX C

City of F olsom, California
Combined General Fund

Revenue and Expense Statement

Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

REVENUES:

Tdes:
Propety
Sales And Use

T@si€nt Occupmcy
Real Prcperty Trusfer
Frechise Fees

Other

Inte rgovemmental

Charyes For Curent Seryices

Fines And Forftitures

Intcrest

Miscellmcous

Opemting Tmsfers [n

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Curent Opentingl

Gcneral Covcmment
Public Safety

Public Ways md Facilities

Community Seryices

Culture md Recreation

Non-Dcpadmental

Opeding Tmsfes Out

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1

FUND BALANCE

FY 2019

As of
Fv 2020

As of
3t3v2020

FY 2019

ACTUAL

w 2020

BUDGET

FY20 Forec6t
As of

VARIANCE
Forecast vs Budget

VARIANCE

Acuhl vs Budget

$ t3,437,481

14,638,277

t,t6t,026
248,397

578,794

2,375,856

3,805,335

9,639,844

80,'1t2

169,940

3 I6,95 I
4,134,926

5r,187,539

7,904,529

32,394,589

5,039,082

4,440,683

I I,130,014

3,934,355

64,843,252

(13,655,713)

l 8,010,708

4,3s4,99s

(329,886)

(3,620,984)

$ 404,125

14,685,205

14,266,080

I,186,394

383,925

8,648,523

35,120,845

4,9t9,043

4,947,109

I 1,205,51 I
7,166,'t52

26,669,899

25,359,293

2,377,895

507,368
'139,092

1,185,070

2,928,513

7,318,385

t6,200,218

t58,197

566,730

495,5t2

t0,825,2t5
42,897,358

6,804,649

6,119,373

15,405,089

3,949,849

$ 2?,85 1,63 l
23,892,287

t,7 t9,693

600,000

781,536

839,305

3,003,670

7,860,926

tt,67t,967
t42,740

278,373

572,682

$

(8,428,166)

(1,066,791)

(2,4s7,000)

(626,606)

28,000
(9t,7s2)

(260,69s)

884,6?0

t31,051
(2,726,658'

(24,'160'

56,t13
(294,s3t)

(t3,t66,426)
(t2,083,201)

(1,159,905)

(188,0?5)

(873,288)

(523,822\
't00,570

(3,586,690)

(4,682,350)

(64,s49)

57,375

(258,434)

3,t92,t7s
9,452,496

2,585,364

641,t89

2,941,654

970,095

$

s16,t78
2,8t9,570
4,t37,t79
9,7 t6,215

102,95 I

279,575

608,779

$ 2?,851,631

26,349,281

2,346,299

572,000

873,288

I,100,000

2, I 19,000

7,723,869

14,398,625

167,500

222,200

861,2t3

7,2tt,844

$ t000/0

9lo/o

73%

t05%
89%

760/0

t420/o

t02%
Et%
85%

t25%
66%

94%

530/0

54%

5to/o

61%

0%

520/o

1330/0

540/.

670/o

6to/o

t26%

70%

5t%

510/"

7Eo/.

91,802,756

(224,188)

t,698,468
(897,420)

1,t62,866
(442,843)

|,357,770

93.70/o

102 90/n

$ I 1,840,698

44,573,341

7,504,401

5,594,298

14,153,I65

8,t36,84'1

I 1,6 16,5 l0
46,2'1t,809

6,606,98'1

6,75't,t64
t3,7 t0,322

9,494,6t7

98%

t04%

8E%

t21%

97%

|7%

73%
't9%

66%

880/0

190/o

88%

$ $

(19,558,?31) 5,659,304

(t,066,79t) (r,105,568)

91,802,156

23,670,012

23,670,012

(r,066,791)NONSPENDABLE FUND BALANCE
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
COMMIT'TED FUND BALANCE
ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 16 $ 22,603,221

14

Page 26

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIXD

City of Folsom, California

Expenditure Summary - General Fund Departrnents

Quarter Ended M uch 3 1, 2020

FY 2019

As of
3t3t/20t9

Fy Z0Z0 FY20 Foreosst

As of FY 2019 FY 2020 As of

3BII2O2O ACTUAL BUDGET 3BII2O2O

97,869

1,028,638

454,937

3,633,264

727,470

52t,887

t7,54t,334

t7,135,64s

4,947,t09

l,142,346
1,491,445

4,9t9,043

VARIANCE

Forccas vs Budget

VARIANCE

Aotu.lvs. Budget
o/^ %

EXPENDITURFJI

Cily Council

City Merger
Ciry Clerk

Omce ofMgmt & Budget

City Alromey

Human R€lources

Police

Fire

Conmunity Development

Parks & R*reation

Libruy
Public Works

O$er

Non Depatuenlal

Opersting Trmsfers Out

82,994

904,993

459,584

3,2a2,512

655,462

506,044

16,684,828

15,859,134

4,440,643

I 1,595,503

1,398,078

5,039,082

|8,222

1,254,O20

591,068

4,387,549

a19,323

't08,826

22,427,590

20,616,893

6,7t9,373

16,223,507

1,860,664

6,804,649

t42,576 $

1,308,827

593,577

5,0t9,572

1,029,351

725,049

23,564,422

2t,239,400

5,594,298

14,918,500

2,025,A90

7,504,407

t30,772

t,352,375

599,220

4,835,013

98t,671

690,30?

23,553,v35

22,930,490

6,757,164

14,596,482

t,924370

6,606,987

01,804)
43,548

s,643

(184,J59)

(47,674)

(34,182)

(10,487)

1,691,090

\ta,a66
(322,018)

(97,520)

(897,420)

(44,707)

(280,189)

038,640)
(1,386,304)

(301,8E1)

Q03,2o2)
(6,023,088)

(3,503,715)

(647,189)

(3,176,154)

(534,445)

(2,585,364)

9t.720/.

t03.33%

t00.95%

9632%

9537%

95.2f/o

99.960/o

t07.96%

120.1y/o

97.840/0

9s.ty/o

4E.04%

6v/.

79Yo

77%

72%

7t%
720/o

74o/o

84o/o

88o/o

7v/.
74r/o

660/0

3,934,355 7,166,752 3,949,849 8,136,847 9,494,6t7 t,357,170 n6.6v/. (970,095) 88o/o

TOTAL ExIENDITURESI _!_____!!,8432s2_ -!-__!r,007183_ _!___jg4qEl_ _!_____2!80a756 _!_r4,4s7,40r_ _!____2i!lM_ 102.8e% JW 78o/o

15

Page 27

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX E

City of Folsom, California

General Fund - Revenue Detail

Quarter Ended March 3 l, 2020

SUMMARY

TAX RELATED REVENUES

PropedyTax

Salcs & Use

Pointsof-S6lc

In-Lieu

Prop 112

Tresient OccupancyTax

Real PropenyTransfcr

Franchise Fees

Other Taxes

TOTAL: TAX RELATED REVENUES

NON-TAX RELATED REVENUES

Liccnss & Pcrmits

Building Pemits

Encroachment Pcrmit

Planning Pemis

Busincss Licenses

Othcr Pemits

Wide Load Pemits

Subiotal: Licetrscs & Pcrmits

Intergovernmentol

Vehicle License Fees

State Granls

Fcder.l Crels
Hom€owners Propeny Tar Relief

Vehicle Ab6tement

Library Reihbursement

Subtotal: lntergovcrnmenlal

Police

DevelopmenFBuilding F@s

Dev€lopmcnFEnginecring Fe€s

DevelopmenbPlaming Fees

DevelopmenLMisc Ffts

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY20 Forecrot

As of As of FY 2019 FY 2020 As of
3BI/2019 3I3II2O2O ACTUAL BUDGET

VARIANCE

Forecast vs Budset

VARIANCE

Aclual vs. Budact
o/o %

TOTALT TAX RELATED RXVENUES

TOTAL: NON-TAX RELATED REVENUDS

TOTALI GENERAL FUND RtrVENUES

$ 30,063,975

2t,t23,564

_!_i!1!rf12-

$ 59,092,505

32,7t0,251

_g_____:1,80r,4!_

$ 3t,097,782 $ 56,838,617

2l

26,669,899

24,742,286

14,266,080 25,359,293

$ 2,819,570 s 2828,513

2,346,299

572,000

873,288

1,100,000

$ 59,092,505

7,276,7t9

15,000

75,000

297,150

60,000

10,500

2,689,775

$ 55,684,452

$

23,892,287

$ (3,408,053) 94% $ (27,ee4,723) 53o/o

$ (13,166,426)

(l 1,896,213)

$$

13,437,48t

t4,t62,226

14,685,205

t3,793,074

$ 27,85t,631

25,689,287

660,000

,6,341281

27,85t,63t

23,339,287

(12,083,207)

530/o

54%

5t%

t666%

0%

44%

69%

I,t6l,026

248,397

1,186,394

383,925

2,377,895

507,368

739,092

578,794

s 30,063p?5

476,05 |

14,638,277

6,156

I,7t9,(93

600,000

78 1,536

(1,159,905)

(188,075)

(873,288)

54%

5t%

67%

0%

1,852,3 l4
t57,287

t4,094

753,6t3

22,746

2,023,999

71,823

17,659

786,078

58

$ 1,549.719

58,652

13,t15

737,134

58

l7,t I 8

s 2,375,8s6

$ 1,303,000

65,000

20,000

700,000

1,000

30,000

$ 2,1t9,000

2,002,979

162,000

14,808

778,641

22,746

t42%

242%

70%

t08%

2275%

650/rl6
700,570 133%

549,3t4

92,287

(5,906)

53,613

2t,746

(3,J66,61 l)
234,866

(75,000)

(t6s,162)

(18,633)

3,470,069

155,436

4,I00

132,88'l

36,687

3,710,108

249.866

13I.988

4t,367

6,902,484

t23,382

5,7 t4

265,774

74,875

1,351,030

I93,046

262,000

45,000

$

s 3,003,670

2,625,053

$ 3,805,335 $ 4,13?,179

ll3

$ 7,378,3E5 S 7,723,869 $ 7,860p26

500 $ l6l

501,486

250,000

204,500

455,000

519,218 2I I,100

I 10,000

5,037,763 4,307,490

$ (3,s86,690) 54%

(387) 23%

Chargcs for Scniccs

Adminisbatirc Fccs

Insuracc Refund

Recorcryof Damages

Recovery of Labor md Benefi ts

Other Charges

$ 117

25,3t6

150

t6,427

141,838

183,848

163

25,316

150

2sr,427

692

93,273

84,530

3,2t4,250

96,74t

4,056,780

197,490

4,000,000

t79,t06

424,674

86,385

4,265,421

(349,6E8)

130,451

(|2,960)
(785,750)

592

l4,t0l

592

(235,899) 6%

105,3t2

374,386 341,551

3,507,805

2,459,056 2.220,350

688,459

I,392,706

377.299

592

739,792

1,161,445

3 t8,962

l5l

928,523

2,578,023

42t,s7l

892

l,l 12,000

I,203,708

363,567

4,561,233

807,484

t,427,609

389,809

44%

23%

t62%

Fire

Ambulancc

OES Reimbursemcnt

7 |,218

2,533,153

3 10,049

2,9t4,420

43%

80%

(799,68s)

(372,208)

(42,263)

(44,605)

8t%

61%

96%

88%

3,929,009 (64.722) (469,425) 83%

$ (5.774.113) 94"/o

$ t00%

9t%

84%

(2,350,000)

(l07-000)

(2,457,000) 9t%

73o/t

t05%

89%

76%

(626,606)

28,000

(9t,1s2)

(260.695)

$ (3.408.053) 94%

s 884,670 142%

$

t54%

249%

740/o

n\%
22'75%

75o/o

699,979

97,000

(5,t92)

78,641

2t,746

(7.504\

t0to/.

t287%

0%

88%

75o/o

80,311

t78,046

(?5,000)

(35,150)

(15,000)

3.850

fl 19 520)

$

692

(1s6,72?)

s 137,057 tn20/"

(339) 32%

31%

420/"

(27s,894) 39o/"

(r l 1,105)

265,421

99 417

213.574 20Io/t

44o/o

l07o/o

1900/"

253,743 1060/o

73o/o

I l9o/o

l07o/o

lo/^

(304,5r6)

223,901

26,242

/t0 149)

16

Page 28

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX E

City of Folsom, California

General Fund - Revenue Detail

Quarter Ended March 3 l, 2020

Public Works Fees

Subtolal. Chrrgcs for Scnicg

FiDcs & Foil€itur€s

Parking

Code Enforcement

Traffic

Court

Library

Other Fines

Subtotal: FiDcs & Forfciturcs

Interest Ermings

FY 2019

As of
3Bl2019

266,121

617,945

484,596

1,063,693

8,376

14,844

647,761

3,163,336

FY 2020

500

2,944,388

$ 9,716,275 s 16,200,278

FY 2020

As of
3/31 /2020

FY20 Forecst VARIANCE

Forccast vs Budget

VARIANCE

Actual vs- BudsetFY 2019

ACTUAL BUDCET 3BII2O2O

24t,507

607,098

547,2r8

892,794

t7,739

13,788

5,018,254 2,932,973

% %

Communily Center

Recreation

Aquatics

Spof,s

Parks Lighting Fec

Youth Field Uscr Fces

Zoo Admission F@s

355,500

I,150,000

1,083,900

1,671,500

20,000

30,000

926,000

5,236,900

253,880

615,554

547,8t5

883,326

17,739

13,788

21,276

12,600

18,321

t9,9t7

30,697

140

42,923

343,941

24,t80

46,805

376,366

1,087,667

999,n2

t,562,603

28,225

18,684

(r r3,993)

(542,902)

(s36,682)

(778,706)

(2,26t)

(t6,2t2)

68%

53%

s0%

s3%
gy/o

460/0

s (4,682,3s0) 67%

(101,620)

(s34,446)

(536,085)

(788,t74)

(2,261)

(t6,2t2)

(2,292,5t2) 56%

(64,s49)

1t%

54%

5l%

53%

89%

46%

660/.

544,798

s 9,639,E44

1,498,360

$ 14,398,625

2t,074

1,250

13,140

I7,488

27,270

490

$ 32,896

6,82r

35,182

45,586

37,687

25,000

1,000

50,000

55,000

36,000

$ r 1,671867

142,140

278,373

n1
572,682

40,923

(39,059)

(15,820)

805

2t46%

90%

60%

r020/.

23,000

t2,600

30,000

45,000

32,000

(3,724)

I 1,600

(3t,67e)

(35,083)

(5,303)

85o/o

t260%

37%

36%

85%

$ 80,712

169,940

102,951

279,575

167,500

222,200

$ 1s8,797 $

57,375

61"/o

126%

Misc€llancous

Rental Income

Cell Tow€r Rentols

Fixed Aset Disposition

Library

Sundry

Subtotsl: Miscelleneous

$ 59,054

t36,461

31,778

60,228

29,430

$ 316,951

93,683

215,774

50,645

63,566

2,000

383,000

40,000

46,000

50,964

333,891

24,403

46,150

$

566,'730

49S,St2

7l 396,2t3

$ 867,213

7,2tt,844

$ _-!32!!!!r_

s 608,7?9 s (2s8,434) 70%

65o/o

Operating Transfers In 4,134,926

TOTAL: NON-TAX RII-A.TED REVf,NUES _9___JJ,rr3,s64

56%

63%

(2,303,927)

(549.432\

s (2,726,6s8) 8ro/.

$

$

$

92%

t260%

60%

82%

89/o

28%

(2,000)

I 1,600

(20,000)

(10,000)

(4,000)

(360)

850/.

t25y.

(24,760'

56,t73

2548%

81%

6t%

t00%

30%

48,964

(49,109)

(ts,s97)

150

(278.939\

1398 0t t)

s (294,s31) 660/.

940/"

s (2.366-O60\ 930/"

17

Page 29

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX F'

City of Folsom, California
Housing Fund

Revenue and Expense Statement

Quafter Ended March 31,2020

REVENUES:
Tues
Intergovernmental

Chages for Curent Seruices

Impact Fee Revenue

Interest Revenue

Other Revenue

Operating Trmsfers In

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Salary & Benefits

Sewices & Supplies

Contracts

Insurmce

Other Operating Expenses

Capital Outlay

Extroildinary loss on Dissolution ofRDAs
Operating Trosfers Out

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1

FUND BALANCE

Fv 2020

BUDGET

FY20 Foreest
As of

3/3r/2020

FY 2020

As of
VARIANCE

Forecast vs Budget

VARIANCE

Actual vs Budget

I 1,461

I,761,950

354,544

8l

FY 2019

4t,536
2,024,070

514,887

17,281

1,948,569

479,544

33.130

2,398,411

2'1,385,680

(27,385,680)

2,281

t,793,569

3'79,544

t56,t47

(3,53e)

1,606,950

254,544

156,14'7

%

l869Yo

$

$

15,000

155,000

100,000

(1s6,t47)

1 13,853

100,000

13,853

I 13,853

24,98'7,269

$ 24,987,269

(24,e8't,269)

tt5%
t25't%
480%

Oo/o

76%

tt37%
3s5%

0%

$

$

t2'7 I 2l48Yo

$

29,578 18,6'75

2,087,98'l 2,555,r7t

$ 2't,075,256 $ 24,987,269

(2,26t,875)(2,261

(66,870) 33% 70,422 300/o

100%

4lo/.

75%

3sYo

$

NONSPENDABLE FUND BALANCE
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
COMMITTED FUND BALANCE
ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) $ $-

't8

Page 30

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX G

City of Folsom, California
Lighting and Landscaping Districts

Revenue and Expenditure Statement

Quarter Ended M arch 3 1, 2020
f,'und 204 Fund 205 Fund 207 Fund 208 Fund 209 Fund aln tr.rnd 212 fi'rrnd 211 ['rnd 21d Fund 231 Frnd 232

Briggs Natoma
Strtion

Folsom
Heiphts

Broadstone
Unit 3

Hannaford LakeNatoma CobbleHills
Broadstone Cross Shores Rellect

Sierra
Estates

Natoma
Lor Cerros Rnnch

Revenues:

Special Assessment 22,72t
2,639

44,607 93,740 n,512
421

10,861

1,234
513

2t2,5t4_

4.145

to,420
459

t2,426
1,684

23,737 4,5t4
JJO

34,20'1

3,368Interest
Other Revenue

332

TotfllReyenue $ 25,360 $ 44,939 $ 93,740 $ 11,933 $ 12,608 $ 21"1,259 $ 10,879 $ l4,ll0 $ 24,058 $ 4,850 $ 37,575

32t

Expenditures:

Communiaations
Ulilities
Contracts

Maintenanae

Supplies

Trmsfers Out

t,346
'7,602

3,90'l

tt,2t6

538

tt,'167
I 1,805

5t,756

1,615

41, I 50

29,634

66,040

5,841

3,593

8,944_

37r

49,208

2,960
107,485

4t,024
92,5t3

538

2,896
4,400

t0,679

269
2,'798

10,535

4,207

2.852

1,346
5,492

12,2'19

36,84'1

8.078

269
865

718
1")

269
2,038

9't7

24,50r

4,236 tt,247 2'7,094

878

243 47.632 3.256 989 6,323

TotalExpenditures$28,307$87,113$165,533$18,749$50,329$291,614$21,769$20,661$64,042$6,063$34,108

19

Page 31

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX G

City of Folsom, California
Lighting and Landscaping Districts

Revenue and Expenditure Statement

Quarter Ended March 31, 2020
Fund 234 Fund 236 Fnnd 237 Fund 249 Fund 250 Fund 251 Fund 252 Fnnd 253 Fund 260 Frnd262 Fund 266

Cobble
Ridse

Praire Oaks Willow Creek Blue Rsvine
Ronch Silverbrook E{st Oaks

Willow Am River Willow Willow Broadstone 3
Snrpc CI'D#I 1 (--I.D #12So

Revenues:

Special Assessment

Interest
Other Revenue

Expenditures:

Communications
utilities
Contracts

Maintenance

Supplies

Trdsfers Out

1,767
t,763
R 180

109,1 19

22 400

32,927 19,055

t,'778
2.585

t3,'128
1,545
1 R{l

88,976
10,272

57,690
I,640

7,848
732

a 011

23,841
6,595

317,01I
22,285t,974

245 1t1

TotalRevenue $ 17,710 $ 131,519 $ 1,9'14 $ 32,92'l $ 23,418 $ 19,124 $ 99,248 $ 59,330 $ 12,653 $ 30,681 $ 340,506

639
t,576
5,26t

l3
992

43,8t7
14,090

88,506

807

13,193

24,782

22,245

538

8,520
1,3 l3

29,6t2

269
3,723

1,294

r4,t37

44,587

42,209

22,703

35,753
98,349

1,943

807

t3,r92
1,860

52,015

630
58,970

'1,84't

t5't,368
5,806

54,153

428
1,554

1,924

4,

6,

t43

230 t2.872

TotalExpenditures$ 8,481 $ 194,323 $ 4,955 $ 61,02'l g 40,658 $ 22,795 $120,149 $137,661 $ ll,l35 $ 80,746 $ 284,774

47,910 1,049 6'75 3.3'12 7.421 t.616

20

Page 32

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX G

Cify of Folsomn California
Lighting and Landscaping Districts

Revenue and Expenditure Statement

Quarter Ended M arch 31 , 2020
Fund267 Fund270 Fund271 I'und 275 Frnd 278 tr'und 281 Frnd 282 Fund 283 F'und 284 Fund 285 Fund 288 hrnd 1t0

ARC No.2
cFD #13

ARC
No. 2

Residences
ATARC

ARC
North #3

Blue Ravine
Oaks No.2

Folsom Broadstone Islands Willow Creek
Hts#2 #4 CFD#16 Estat$#2

Maint Dist Maint Dist
cFD#18 CFD#19

Prospect
TOTAL

Revenues:

Special Assessment 59,238
1,528

6,884
2,829

t0,379
t,2'7 |

135,91 I
14,664
2-040

18,588

3,145
32,850
3,70t

169,000

5,151

53,205
1,543

4,668 1,649,944
102,365

49.842
Interest
Other Revenue

3,986 220 t,546 3,403

TotalReyenue $60,766 $9,713 $ 11,650 $152,615 $ 21,733 $ 36,551 $174,151 $ 3,986 $ 54,748 $ 4,888 $ l'546 $ 3'403 $1'802,151

Expenditures:

Communications
Utilities
Contracts

Maintenmce

Supplies

Trilsfers Out

l9l
t4,036 115

4,165

538

2,624
4,059

8,978

1,884

165
q als

60,982

6,665 1,3,68'1

8,429

2,484

4,885

5

2,33r
t,897

415

632

18,043

455,625
496,043

972,897
16,344

328,809

29,103
l6;
700

4644,604

4,739

15,833 2r5 3,278 I 5,393

5,'192 5',t,235 149

16,464 89,'196 28,6'15

269

4,206 t5,22t t2,802 |,914 3,926

4,259

14,8 l4

3,405

TotalExpetrditures $ ?9,403 $ 5,155 $ 19,477 $ 88,363 $ 22,4'78 $ 26,462 $162,252 $ 48,560 $ 41,017 $ 4,837 $ 29,490 $ 5,275 $2,287'161

21

Page 33

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX H

City of Folsom, California
Combined Water Funds*
Revenue and Expense Statement

Quarter Ended March 31,2020

OPERATINC REVENUES:
Charges For Servics

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING f,XPENSES:

Employee Services

uriliris
Supplies

Maintenuce md Operation

Contractual Services

Depreciation

Other Operating Expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

Impacl Fes
Other

Invstment Income

Intergovemmenl al

Proceeds ofFinmcing
Debt service ExpeNe

Other Reimbursements

Capital Outlay - Projects

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE
(EXPENSE)

tNcoMf, (Loss) BEFoRE CAPTTAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

FY 2019

As of
3l3t/20t9

Fv 2020

As of
313v2020

w 2020

BUDGET

9,965,4t6

9,965,416

3,407,850

476,963

652,3tt
420,340

1,344,815

2,971,803

3,7t9,137

474,845

503,428

279,779

1,3t6,134

2,996,739

FY 2019

4,1t0,704
758,7ss

871,3t4
578,284

I,782,871

3,995,652

5,t'13,428

7'15,500

l,t 15,100

870,750

2,49t,4t4

t,228,733

tt,654,925

2,521,s30

t4,t16,455

t4,t76,455

782,272

t2,070,593

23t,503

(2,0t3,703)

(12,813,917)

(t,743,252)

778,278

241,726
(1,020,004)

Q78,278)

4,999,338

661,898

729,806

356,944

1,604,807

3,995,652

t2 828

(2,012,158)

781

24t,726

VARIANCE

(1,454,291)

(300,655)

(6n,672)
(590,971)

(1,175,280)

2,996,'139

(175,016)

(12,059,347)

l2r,t57
8,285

FY20 Forecdt
As of

103o/o

t03%

18%

18%

(174,090)

(r 13,602)

(38s,294)

(s13,806)

(886,60?)

3,995,652

9t%

tt60/0

430/0

27,403 l04o/o

(12,058,593) 0o/"

238,727 203%

8,506

97%

85%

650/0

4to/o

64%

72%

6to/o

4so/o

320/0

53%

585,901

9,865,983

99,433

(6,905)

(s96,166)

744,064

843,497

(699,244)

(699,244)

144,253

82,691,640

82,835,893

(3,736,16t)

$ 79,099,132

945

1,223,791

13,678,3't8

683,830

253,626

(3,45s) ('r84,02s)

4't%

8s%

820,904

20,664

306,541

t99,626

607,256

n,246
353,260

8,285

809,675

12,000

410,230

8,506

780/o

00/o

l53o/o

00/o

t6%

64%

1,54s t00% 2,010,248

il

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:

Trmsfe6 In
Trmsfers Out

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRA.NSFIRS

20,863 I00,000

(584, loe) t3,44t,96t

l00o/o

1O0o/o

(220,863\ 9%

60%

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, JULY 1

95,549,492

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Includes the following fmds: Water lmpact Fee, Water Operating, Water Capital md Water Mete6

Prior year includes prior period adjustment lor GASB 68

(4,188,894)

96,133,601

96,133,601 96,133,601 9t,944,707

$ 94,922,900

NET ASSETS

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

$ $

22

Page 34

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX I

Cify of Folsom, California
Combined Wastewater Funds*
Revenue and Expense Statement

Quarter Ended March 31,2020

OPERATING REVENUESI

Charges For Seruicc
Prison Senice

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Employee Seruices

Utilities
Supplies

Maintenance and Operation

Contractual SeNices

Depreciation

Other Operating Expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSOS):

Impact Fees

Investnent Income

Other

Debt Seruice

Capital Outlay - Projects

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE
(EXPENSE)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, JULY I

FY 2019

As of
3/3t/2019

Fv 2020

As of
3|su2020

FY 2019

ACTUAL
FY 2020

BUDGET

4,901,01 9

50,400

6,603,200

67,200

6,670,400

1070/0

t00%

1060/.

FY2OFore@st VARIANCE
As of F-*r*" B"dg"t

3/31/2020 $ %

7,016,300 413,1 00

VARIANCE

5,310,107 6,552,594

194 100

Actual vs

(1,293,093) 80%

150/o

800/04,951,419

1,814,765

5t,722

169,842

53,071

t20,724

1,296,111

239,461

3,745,702

1,205,717

78,856

186,967

62,379

(27s,r30)

53,012

1,258,789

(s05,029)

(s05,029)

753,760

46,536,525

47,290,285

(r,31t,0r1)

_!__15,ere,r6!_

1,925,'793

53,828

329,482

t24,'721

324,018

t,297,621

189

56,832

224,750

I 1,837

2,293,626

88,321

2a9,409

109,9t7

200,'735

1,730,161

I 14,800

421,454

12,608,154

75,000

545,014

328,500

870,100

315,t80

4,886,519

1,783,881

2,443,211

81,458

409,039

I't2,3t2
4l'7,063

1,730,161

65,7'16

299,661

30,6t4

963

23,884

582,682

60,221,286

(309,514)

6,458

(13s,e75)

(l 56,188)

(453,037)

1,730,161
'771

(232,563)

t65,667
(6,384,704)

(826,932)

(2r,t72)
(2t5,532)
(203,779)

(546,082)

1,297,621

Q4t,so7)
90,750

(6,403,481)

89%

lO9o/o

1svo

52o/o

70%
't2%

60%

38%

37%

298,339

134,000

6,415,3 18

48o/o

l25o/o

t16%

82yo

224yo

0%

9o/o

86%

89%

19.0%

l680/o

00/o

t00%
270%

95

n,942

814,1 19 13,t02,079

60,452,723 59,638,604

(8.070,25'1)

(1,222,600)

561,281

23,484

(s85,165)

(561,281)

59,638,604

59,638,604

(789,416)

_q_s8,84r,n!_

t%

l6%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERSI

Tmnsfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANST'ERS

0%

0%

(1,e42)

NET ASSETS

Rf,STRICTED NET ASSETS

UNRASTRICTED NET ASSETS

* Includes the following funds: Sewer Opemting and Sewer Capital

Prior yer includes prior period adjustment for GASB 68

$

23

Page 35

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX J

City of Folsom, California
Combined Solid Waste Funds*
Revenue and Expense Statement

Quarter Ended March 31,2020

OPERATING REVEI\UESI
Charges For Seruice

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee Services

utilities
Supplies

Maintenance and Opention

Contactual Setrices

Depreciation

Oiher Opemting Expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPf, RATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)I

ImpactFees

Investrnent lncome
Intergovernmental Revenues

Other

Debt Sefrice-Expense

Capital Outlay

TOTAL NONOPf, RATING REVENUE
(EXPENSE)

lNcoME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPTTAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, JULY 1

FY 2019

As of
3/31120t9

FY 2020

As of
313v2020

FY 2019

ACTUAL
Fv 2020

BUDGET

8,020,648

8,020,648

FY20 Forecast VARIANCE
As of F-*rt r" B,rdg"t

313u2020 $ %

7I 733

VARIANCE
Actual vs Budget

o/o

3,7t6,321

10,297

610,249

530,362

t,23t,582
859,419

399,2t8

165,681

103,051

469

t37,t67

1,009,568

19,840

(t,oo7,12t)

(98'/,281)

22,287

(4,2or,es6)

(4,t19,669)

(2,231,248)

_9____e4r.s2r2

4,045,t92
16,108

708,824

629,026

I,995,907

835,273

180,414

t10,293

33,t56
t26,819

4,599,994

14,63 I
986,629

725,347

1,875,286

I,113,697

238,092

224,62a

49,231

I 80,438

I 1,168,600

I 1,168,600

5,650,732

20,500

1,137,098

538,133

2,886,087

6t8,042

26'1,t00

49,000

40,499

I,8t9,t92

7l

5,353,214

26,254

941,292

815,905

2,461,089

1,t13,697

t94,277

l4'1,385

77,312

200,000

60,318

(r,47t,r28)

(6,33s,2s3)

Qe1,st8)
7 1\A

(195,806)

211,772

(424,998)

1,n3,697

(72,823)

98,385

36,813

(t,619,\92)

(1,60s,540)

(4,3e2)
(428,274)

90,893

(890,1 80)

835,273

7'7

(86,686)

6t,293
(7,343)

(t,692,373)

(30,r5e)

133

133

t05%

I05%

9s%

128%

83%
152%

85%

75%

75vo

'12%

80%

72%

7g%o

62yo

tt't%
690/0

t94

12.1%

30lo/o

19lo/o

68%

225vo

82%
7%

791

to80h

-460/o

7%

340/o

lt

30,159 22,040

(8'72,607) (662,169)

(5,736,732) (4,864,r2s\

t44

651 I,443,799

60,318

(1,385,091)

(t,324,773)

lt9,o26

(4,864,12s)

(4,14s,099)

(t,r49,t49)

$ (s,894,248)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:

Tmnsfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS

ff/o

@/o

-tol%
-273./.

NET ASSETS

RESTRICTf,D NET ASSETS

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Includes the following funds: Solid Waste Operating, Solid Waste Capibl, and Solid Waste Plan Ar@ Capital

Prior yer includes prior period adjustment for GASB 68

24

Page 36

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX K
City of Folsom, California
Risk Management
Revenue and Expense Statement

Quarter Ended March 31,2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Penalty Fines
Interest revenue

Reimbursement
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee Services

Active Employees:
Wages
FICA
PERS
Defened Compensation
Workers Compensation
Liability
Health Insurance
Vision
Dental
Employee Assistance Program

Health Retirement Account
Health Savings Account
Contracts
Small Equipment
Transfers Out

Retirees:
PERS
Health Insurance
Vision
Dental
Retiree HRA

Total operating expenses

CHANGE IN Nf,T ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

RESTRICTED FOR INSURANCE DEPOSIT
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS

FY 2019 FY 2020

lt,764,387 11,694,238 15,728,106 15,542,316

FY 2019
As of

3/31t2019

FY 2020
As of

3/31/2020

101,085
1,023,3s7

2,633

FY 2020 Forecast

As of

1s,s92,317

I 00,000
1,650,000

106,538
1,1 14,038

71s

103,41 I
8,057

42,s60
2,585

I,679,978
I,785,7 53

4,667,624
78,655

4ts,9tl
8,564

108,7"t7

1 7,838
974,999

145,263

11,314
2,9s8,870

49,893
278,589

280,440
1,426,124

718

111,823
9,947

36,760
2,791

2,205,453
1,798,57 4

6,643,987
87,990

600,533
9,845

144,200
43,2s3

646,455
44,000

50,000

|,7 44,704
84

137,899
1I,0ls
43,754
3,447

2,183,973
1,897,925
7,0s0,697

I 18,813
628,256

I 0,839
157,200
27,414

1,007,864

290,s27

13,000
4,281,377

55,780
370,824

12,891.462 17 7

73,634
6,924

24,253
1,837

1.,617,513

1,798,574
4,s62,128

60,631

412,309
8,584

101,125
26,657

6s5,800

142,900
12,000
59,000
3,500

2,168,s36
1,785,754
6,4 1 s,000

101,000
569,306

11,092
1s4,200
22,673

1,05 I,864

290,527

I 1,091

3,021,852
44,s21

274,042

I1,091
4,159,024

70,142
398,182

L1,314
4,053,614

68,8s2
37s,000

12,701.475

10

l7

(41 8,1 13) I,304,668

03

3,726,923 3,726,923 3,726,923
190 60

17

189,987

11.030.415

4s,291

3,726,9233,034,476
8,18s,926

11,220,402 I 5

25

Page 37

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX L
City of Folsom, California
Risk Manf,gement
Revenue md Expense Statement

Quarter Ended March 3 l, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Chugcs for scnices
Fincs

Interest revenue
ReihbursemenLc

Oilrs Rcvenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATTNG EXPENSES:
Aotivo Employec:

Wages
FICA
PERS

Defened Compmsation
Workers' Compensation
Liability
Health Insurance

Vision
Dental
Employe Assistance Prcgram

Health Retirement Account
Health Sovings Account
Contacts
Transfcrs Out

Retireesl

PERS
lnsurance/Retirc
Retiree Vision
Retiree Dental

Totrl operating expenss

CHANGf, IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

RESTRICTED FOR INSURANCE DEPOSIT

UNRESTRICTED

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

- $ 651,733 $ 304,374 $ 880,867 $

393 8t,166 t02,000 n9,7t2

9t,057 679,070 302,854 78t,286

3,308,666

(66,638)

1,526,605

Active Emplolec
Gcneral Redevelopment Waste Solid
Fund Agency W.ter Water Wdto Transit Retirecs

$ 6,913,762 $ $ 678,062 $377,984 $ 930,001 $ $2,7,430

28,376 393 2,627 t,422 2,855 - 7,8t2
s27,349 - 52,2t0 26,968 67,7U - 439,787

r 5,715

$ 7,485,201 $ 393 $ 732,899 $406,374 $1,000,580 $ $3,242,028

Total

$ I 1,694,238

43,484

1,1r4,038

t5,7t5

g t2,867,474

$ 80,334 $
6,259

27,2s4
2,008

1,329,406

1,418,040
3,715,577

62,6t2
331,078

6,853
87,753

15,564

974,999
t45,263

7,879
6t4

6,t7 I
197

ll8,l94
t22,437
350,491

5,906

3t,23t
577

6,388

t,649

4,392
342

2,t09
110

62,390
58,208

156,634
2,639

13,95'7

280
3,I38

176

10,806

842
7,026

2',70

169,988

187,068

444,923
7,498

39,64s
854

11,498

449

103,41 I
8,057

42,560

2,585
1,679,978
t,785,'153

4,667,624

78,655

415,91 I
8,564

t08,777
17,838

974,999

t45,263

ll,3l4
2,968,870

49,893
),7& S8S

ll,3l4
2,968,870

49,893
27R 5flg

$ 8,203,001 $

(?l7,8oo)

8,954,2|

$ 13,348,642

(481,r67)

12,335,083

2,933,069

5.303.342

l39,l4l

265.713

18,075

73.374

269,2t8

491,018

367,420

533.579

3,726,n3

1.126.993t.459,967

26

Page 38

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX M
City of Folsom, California
Compensated Leave
Revenue and Expense Statement

Quarter Ended March 37, 2020

REVENUESI

Reimbursements

Interest

Other revenue

Operating Trmsfers In

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Annual Leave Wages

Annual Leave Benefits

Operating Trusfers Out

Sevices & Supplies

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

APPROPRIATION OF FUND BALANCE

FT]ND BALANCE, JULY I

FY 2019

As of
313U2019

FY 2020

As of
3/3

FY 2020 Forecst

As of
VARIANCE

Forec6t w Budget

VARIANCE

Acutal vs BUDGETFY 2019

1t3,t75

25,336

602,675

619,000

(483,r64)

1,410,900

921,736

w 2020

BUDGET

540,209

25,000

289,392

854,601

854,601

927,'736

921,736

$ 921,736

o/"

534,88t

2t,446

407,4t3

t3,646

426,t11

139,800

(r44,8s2)

927,736

782,884

543,217

18,000

56

547,040

279,60t

(265,424)

921,736

662,31.2

3,008

(7,000)

(289,392)

(27,e60)

(t32;796)

(l 1,354)

(28e,3e2)

(148,889)

(139,801)

l0 15%

55%

00/"

490/o

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

556,327

466,261

619,000

1,085,261

(s28,934)

1,410,900

881,966

$ 881,966

575,000

279,601

95%

t00%

970/o

74yo

5Iyo

66%

FUND BALANCE

RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

27
Page 39

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX N

City of Folsom
Outstanding Debt

Quarter Ended March 31, 2020

Entitv Tvne Date Purpose
Issue Original Issue

Amount
Amount

Outstanding

Final
Maturity

Date (mo/year)

Governmental

Govemmental

Governmental

Governmental

Govemmental

Govemmental

Govemmental

Govemmental

Governmental

Governmental

Govemmental

Governmental

Water

Water

Water

Jul-08

Jul-10

Jul-l I

Jul-12

Sep-15

Jul-17

Aug-17

Jun-l 8

Aug-19

Dec-19

Mar.12

Oct-16

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Other (Assignment Agreement)

Tu Allocation Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Revenue Bond

Prairie Oaks Ranch A/D 11,955,000

Finance CFD Debt 23,180,000

Finance CFD Debt 10,855,000

Finance CFD Debt 15,034,361

Finance CFD Debt 6,675,000

Finance CFDDebt 46,885,000

Finance CFD Debt 28,530,000

Finance CFD Debt 13,255,000

Finance CFD Debt 14,040,000

Finance CFD Debt 9,695,000

Ref02FPFADebt&01COPs 10,538,467

RDA Projects 53,755,000

Total Outstanding Governmental Debt

9,325,000

4,820,000

2,799,921

6,1 55,000

41,260,000

28,395,000

13,255,000

14,040,000

9,695,000

1,441,461

47,275,000

$ 178,461,382

Sep-19

Sep-24

Sep-24

Sep-21

Sep-45

Sep-32

Sep-47

Sep-48

Sep-49

Sep-49

Oct-26

Aug-36

Dec-09 Refund 1998 Water Bonds

Jul-13 Refund 20054 Water Bonds

Oct-19 Refund 2009 Water Bonds

15,825,000

Retunded Oct 2019

12,779,582 9,394,283

Dec-28

Dec-33

Dec-288,780,000 7,92s,000

Total Outstanding Business Type Activity Debt $ 17,3 19,283

28

Page 40

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX O

City of Folsom
Schedule ofCapital Improvement Plan Expenditures - Cash Basis

Quarter Ended March 37,2020

Category Project Description
Budget

FY 19-20

Total
Expended
FY 19-20

Vo of
Budget

Expended

Culture and Recreation

Culture and Recreation
Culture and Recreation
Culture and Recreation
Culture and Recreation

Culture and Recreation

Culture and Recreation

Culture and Recreation

Drainage
Drainage
Drainage
Drainage
Drainage
Drainage
Drainage
Drainage

General Services

General Services

General Services

Open Space and Greenbelts

Open Space and Greenbelts

Open Space and Greenbelts

Davies Park
Benevento Family Park (formerly Park Site #51)
Folsom Sports Complex-Ph II
Johnny Cash Legacy Park
Johnny Cash Trail Art Experience

Lew Howard Park
Livermore Park-Ph V
McFarland Park Community Garden

Cornerstone Storm Water Quality Basin
Localized Drainage Improvements

NPDES
Natoma Street Drainage
Sibley Street Drainage
Storm Drain Pond
Weather Station
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain

Fire Apparatus
Fire Station 38 (Remodel)
Police Vehicle Replacements

Folsom Placerville Rail Trail
Folsom Plan Area Trails
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing

1,819,839 531,244

1,1 04,1 13

3,000,000

706,000

56,083

210,066
360,950
800,000

350,000

4,089

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

t.9s%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00o/o

0.06%

0.00%
0.00%

19.39%
0.00%
0.00o/o

10.76%

1.23%

57.75%
29.19%

99.36%

11.43%
26.60%
4t.05%

0.98%
0.00%

130.73%

47.22%

100.00%

1.92%

5.71%
39.96%
0.00%
0.00%

ss99%
30.50%
54.02%

2.640/o

60.89o/o

0.00%
92.s3%
37.04%
2332%
46.13%

0.00%
t7.75%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.000/o

2.66Yo

6,587 ,212 4,089

50,000

100,000

150,000

250,000
l 00,000

272,974
79,8s9

8 I 7,006

29,092

29,376
985

471 791

800,000

1,247,940

670,982

794,901
142,600

178,509

2,718,922 1,116,010

1,013,8 r3
120,000

629,r98

9,978

822,554
l,763,oll 832,532

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

Streets

City Wide ADA Compliance
East Bidwel Frontage Improvements
East Bidwel Widening & Sidewalk
Energy Efficient Traffic Sig & Lights
Folsom Lake Crossing Bridge Deck Rehab

Folsom Lake Crossing Safety Improvements
Green Valley Rd Widening
Intelligent Transp System Plan
Neighborhood Street & SW Rehab

Signal/Delineation Modifi cation

Street Overlay / Pavement Mgmt
Streetlight / Traffic Pole Imp
Traffic Safety Projects
Traffic Signal Improvements
Traffic Signal System Upgrades

Capital SE Connector Project Seg D3
Empire Ranch Rd Interchange

Highway 50 Facilities
Lake Natoma Crossing-Right Tum Approach
Light Rail Project
Rainbow Bridge Rehab

14,568,095 6,720,188

3,050,000

872,178
204,852
150,000

150,000

1,387,500

154,829

1 50,000

998,5r4
45s,839

46,555

1 50,000

400,000
6,497,r08

308,642

300,000
309, r 80

3,279,174
50,000

t10,447
1,r12,636

400,000

150,000

19,147

26,042
I 8,603

3,637,6s4
94,140

162,067

8,162

1,996,745

t02,200
4t2,t57

93,271

Transportation
Transportation
Transportation
Transportation
Transportation
Transportation

5,814,530 154,829

29Page 41

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



APPENDIX O

City of Folsom
Schedule of Capital Improvement Plan Expenditures - Cash Basis

Quarter Ended March 3l,2020

Proiect DescriptionCategory

Budget
FY 19-20

Total
Expended
FY 19-20

Vo of
Budget

Expended

Wastewater

Wastewater

Wastewater

Wastewater

Wastewater

Wastewater

ARC Sewer Access R&R
Greenback Sewer & Lift Station Improvements
Natoma Alley R&R
Oak Ave P/S Peak Wet Weather Flow Relief
SECAP Ph I
Sewer Lateral R&R

Ashland Water Rehab Project No. I
East Tank No. I
Folsom South Control Valve
GSWC Inter-tie Booster Pump Station
Water System Rehab Project #1

Water System Rehab Project #2

WTP Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

WTP System Improvement
WTP Backwash & Recycled Water Capacity
WTP Lime System Upgrades

9,286,345 111,301 t.20%

29,842
43,949

195,000

3,872,959
120,000

779,106
635,508

150,000

756,012
4,891,065

450,000
65r,660

12,501,310 2,449,906

2,572,989
2,422,557
2,119,952

1 74,888

1,234,060
761,899

, 5?5

34,975
0.10%
r.44%
0.00%

l7.06%
3.56%
0.00%

Water
Water
Water
Water
Water
Water
Water
Water
Water
Water

1,772,309

166,445

57,726

113,208

340,2r8

0.00%
45.76%

0.00%
2r.36%
9.08%
0.00%

14.97%

696%
0.00o/o

0.00%
19.60%

$ 5s,059,264 $ 11,920,099 2r.65%

30Page 42

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



FY 2019-20 3rd Quarter 
Financial Report

Presentation to the Folsom City Council

May 26, 2020
Page 43

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



General Fund Summary

FY 19-20 

Budgeted

FY 19-20 

Projected

Revenue  $     91,802,756  $    86,028,643 

Expenditures       (91,802,756)       (94,457,409)

Adj. for Transit Annexation                       -            2,900,000 

Change in Fund Balance  $                     -  $     (5,528,766)

Unassigned Fund Balance  $     17,364,046  $    11,835,280 

% of Expenditures 18.9% 12.5%

Page 44

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



General Fund Summary

Page 45

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



General Fund – Revenues

FY 19-20 

Budgeted

FY 19-20 

Projected

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% of 

Budget

Property Tax  $   27,851,631  $  27,851,631  $                   - 100.0%

Sales Tax       26,349,287      23,892,287       (2,457,000) 90.7%

Transient Occupancy Tax         2,346,299        1,719,693          (626,606) 73.3%

Charges for Services       14,398,625      11,671,967       (2,726,658) 81.1%

Licenses, Permits & VLF         9,842,869      10,864,596         1,021,727 110.4%

Transfers In         7,211,844        6,813,833          (398,011) 94.5%

All other         3,802,201        3,214,636          (587,565) 84.5%

Total Revenue  $   91,802,756  $  86,028,643  $   (5,774,113) 93.7%

Page 46

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



General Fund – Revenues

FY 18-19 

Actual

FY 19-20 

Budget

FY 19-20 

Projected

All Tax Related Revenue $56,099,525 $58,219,217 $54,902,916 

All Non-Tax Revenue $36,161,312 $33,583,539 $31,125,727 

Development Fees         3,929,009       2,689,775          2,625,053 

Building Permits         2,023,999       1,300,000          2,002,979 

Parks & Rec Fees         5,018,254       5,236,900          2,949,918 

Ambulance Fees         4,056,780       4,000,000          4,265,421 

Total Revenue $92,260,837 $91,802,756 $86,028,643 

Page 47

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



General Fund - Expenditures

FY 19-20 

Budgeted

FY 19-20 

Projected

Over/(Under) 

Budget

% of 

Budget

Salaries  $   38,215,462  $  38,621,862  $        406,400 101.1%

Benefits       27,049,277      26,727,827          (321,450) 98.8%

O&M       23,082,843      25,439,543         2,356,700 110.2%

Capital Outlay         2,545,940        2,758,943            213,003 108.4%

Debt Service            909,234           909,234                       - 100.0%

Adj. for Transit Annexation                        -      (2,900,000)       (2,900,000) -

Total Expenditures  $   91,802,756  $  91,557,409  $      (245,347) 99.7%

Page 48

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



General Fund - Expenditures
FY 19-20 Budgeted FY 19-20 Projected % of Budget

City Council  $                   142,576  $                       130,773 91.7%

City Manager                    1,308,827                        1,352,376 103.3%

City Clerk                       593,577                           599,221 101.0%

Mgmt & Budget                    5,019,572                        4,835,011 96.3%

City Attorney                    1,029,351                           981,677 95.4%

Human Res                       725,089                           690,307 95.2%

Police                  23,564,422                      23,553,934 100.0%

Fire                  21,239,400                      22,930,490 108.0%

Comm Dvlmnt                    5,594,298                        6,757,164 120.8%

Parks & Rec                  14,918,500                      14,596,484 97.8%

Library                    2,025,890                        1,928,370 95.2%

Public Works                    7,504,407                        6,606,987 88.0%

Non-Dept                    8,136,847                        9,494,615 116.7%

Adj. for Transit Annex                                  -                      (2,900,000) 0.0%

Total Expenditures  $              91,802,756  $                  91,557,409 99.7%
Page 49

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Enterprise Funds

Page 50

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Water Enterprise Fund

Actual Budget Projected

FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 19-20

Program Revenues 13,557,821$    14,176,455$    14,552,856$   

Salaries 2,751,335$      3,022,664$      2,895,195$     

Benefits 1,359,369        2,150,764        2,104,143       

Operating Expenses 5,892,159        5,705,997        3,813,385       

Transfers Out 1,036,633        1,020,004        1,020,004       

Debt Service 2,070,691        2,013,703        2,012,158       

13,110,187$    13,913,132$    11,844,885$   

Capital Expenses 1,080,835$      12,813,917$    3,781,452$     

Working Capital 18,198,366$    18,198,366$    17,124,885$   Page 51

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Wastewater Enterprise Fund

Actual Budget Projected

FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 19-20

Program Revenues 6,619,794$      6,670,400$      7,103,500$     

Salaries 1,408,834$      1,567,373$      1,372,431$     

Benefits 884,793           1,185,352        1,070,780       

Operating Expenses 1,552,766        2,133,794        1,473,823       

Transfers Out 673,077           585,165           585,165          

Debt Service -                       -                       -                      

4,519,470$      5,471,684$      4,502,199$     

Capital Expenses 504,733$         8,070,257$      708,399$        

Working Capital 11,100,895$    11,100,895$    12,993,797$   Page 52

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Solid Waste Enterprise Fund

Actual Budget Projected

FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 19-20

Program Revenues 10,701,299$    11,168,600$    11,711,733$   

Salaries 2,840,308$      3,177,807$      3,000,921$     

Benefits 1,759,684        2,472,925        2,352,293       

Operating Expenses 5,022,262        5,199,860        4,871,269       

Transfers Out 1,341,699        1,385,091        1,385,091       

Debt Service -                       -                      

10,963,953$    12,235,683$    11,609,574$   

Capital Expenses 245$                1,050,000$      1,138,882$     

Working Capital 6,009,927$      6,009,927$      4,973,204$     
Page 53

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Internal Service Fund

Page 54

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Risk Management
Actual Budget Projected

FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 19-20

Charges for Services 15,728,106$      15,542,316$     15,592,317$      

Operating Expenses 17,024,050$      18,290,604$     17,322,026$      

Unrestricted Net Position 8,608,160$        8,608,160$       8,653,451$        

Major Expense Categories:

Act Employee Health 7,332,510$        7,797,766$       7,085,306$        

Retiree Health 4,627,348$        4,707,981$       4,497,466$        

Workers Comp 2,205,453$        2,183,973$       2,168,536$        

Liability Ins 1,798,574$        1,897,925$       1,785,754$        Page 55

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



QUESTIONS / COMMENTS

Page 56

05/26/2020; Item No. 1.



Book 75 Page 156
Folsom City Council

May 12,2020

Gity Council Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, May 12,2020 6:00 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Sarah Aquino presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Council Members Present: Roger Gaylord, Council Member
Kerri Howell, Council Member
Mike Kozlowski, Council Member
Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Mayor

Council Members Absent:

Staff Present:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione (via teleconference)

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section
54956.8:
Approximately 3.03 acres of vacant real property located near Riley Street and Glenn
Drive in Folsom, APN: 071-0690-006. Negotiating Parties: City Manager Elaine
Andersen on behalf of the City of Folsom, and the Sacramento County Department of
Finance. Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Sale

Motion by Council Member Mike Kozlowski, second by Gouncil Member Kerri Howellto
adjourn to closed session for the above referenced item. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncil Member(s):
Gouncil Member(s):
Gouncil Member(s):
Gouncil Member(s):

Gaylord, Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Aquino
None
None
None

Drafr - Not Oficial Until Approued fui the Citl Coundl
Page 57

05/26/2020; Item No. 2.



Book 75 Page 157
Folsom City Council

May 12,2020

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steve Wang advised that no final action was taken during closed session

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:30 p.m.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Sarah Aquino, Mayor

Drafr - Nor Oficial Until Approued b1t the Ciry Coundl
Page 58

05/26/2020; Item No. 2.



Book 75 Page 158
Folsom City Council

May 12,2020

Gity Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, May 12,2020 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may pafticipate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Sarah Aquino presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Council Members Present: Roger Gaylord, Council Member
Kerri Howell, Council Member
Mike Kozlowski, Council Member
Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Mayor

Council Members Absent:

Staff Present:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Finance Director Stacey Tamagni (via teleconference)
Senior Planner Stephanie Henry (via teleconference)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle advised that staff is requesting that item 8 be continued off calendar
to allow staff to take the matter to the Planning Commission.

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

City Clerk Christa Freemantle read submitted statements from the following individuals

1. Colt McGraw, regarding littering in city parks
2. Greg Webb, regarding aggressive transients

Draft - Not Oficial Until Approued fu the Ci4t Council
Page 59

05/26/2020; Item No. 2.



Book 75 Page 159
Folsom City Council

May 12,2020

SGHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

1. Presentation of the City Manager's FY 2020-21 Proposed Operating and Capital Budgets
for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, and
the Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority

City Manager Elaine Andersen introduced the item and provided an overview of the anticipated
fiscal year. Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council.

CONSENT GALENDAR:

2. Approval of the April 28, 2020 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

3. Resolution No. 10425 - A Resolution Calling and Giving Notice of the Holding of a
General Municipal Election to be Held on Tuesday, November 3,2020, Requesting the
Board of Supervisors of the County of Sacramento Consolidate the General Municipal
Election with the Statewide General Election, and Establishing Policies for Candidates'
Statements

4. Resolution No. 10426 - A Resolution Acknowledging Receipt of Completed Annual State
Mandated Fire lnspections

5. Resolution No. 10427 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
Change Order with Western Engineering Contractors, lnc. for the Green Valley Road
Widening Project, Project No. PW0804 and Appropriation of Funds

6. Resolution No. 10429 - A Resolution Accepting a 2019 Homeland Security Grant of
$24,825 for Automated License Plate Reader Expansion and Appropriation of Funds

7 . Resolution No. 10430 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design
and Consulting Services Contract with R.E.Y. Engineers, lnc. for the Natoma Street
Drainage Phase 2 Project

8. Resolution No. 10431 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase a 3.03
Acre Parcel (A.P.N. 071-0690-006) in the City of Folsom Made Available Through a
Sacramento County Chapter 8 Auction Process (continued off calendar)

9. Resolution No. 10432 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Non-
Exclusive Agreements with Approved Licensed Contractors to lmplement the
Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency lnter-Agency Contract for the Seniors
Helping Seniors Program

10. Resolution No. 10434 - A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer's Report,
Declaring the lntention to Continue to Levy and Collect Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual
Assessments in the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Assessment Districts and
Setting Public Hearing for American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North
No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2,
Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge,
Cobble Hills Ridge ll/Reflections ll, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford
Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks
Ranch, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at

Draf - Not Oficial Until Approued @ the Citl Council
Page 60

05/26/2020; Item No. 2.



Book 75 Page 160
Folsom City Council

May 12,2020

American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon ll, Willow Creek
Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow
Springs

At the request of staff, item 8 will be continued off calendar

Motion by Council Member Kerri Howell, second by Council Member Mike Kozlowskito
approve the consent calendar with the exception of item 8. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

PUBLIC HEARING:

1 1. Resolution No. 10428 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
the lssuance by the California Public Finance Authority of Multifamily Housing Revenue
Bonds in an Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $20,000,000 for the Purpose of
Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition and Construction of Bidwell Place Apartments
and Certain Other Matters Relating Thereto

Senior Planner Stephanie Henry made a presentation.

Mayor Sarah Aquino opened the public hearing. Hearing no speakers, the public hearing was
closed.

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell, second by Council Member Mike Kozlowskito
approve Resolution No. 10428. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES: Gou
NOES: Gou
ABSENT: Gou

lMember(s
lMember(s
lMember(s

Gouncil Member(s): Gaylord, Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Aquino
Gouncil Member(s): None
Council Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None

Council Member(s): Gaylord, Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Aquino
Gouncil Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

12. Resolution No. 10433 - A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order
DES-04-20 lssued by the Director of Emergency Services

City Manager Elaine Andersen made a presentation and responded to questions from the City
Council.

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howelln second by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowskito
approve Resolution No. 10433. Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

G
N
N

nci
nci
nci

)
)
)

aylord, Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Aquino
one
one

Draft - Not Oficial Unti/ Approued bjt the Citl Coundl
Page 61

05/26/2020; Item No. 2.



Book 75 Page 161
Folsom City Council

May 12,2020

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): None

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen spoke of the ongoing COVID-19 response, curbside pickup for
retail, online services and weed abatement efforts,

GOUNCIL GOMMENTS:

Council Member Kerri Howell expressed concerns about vehicle speeding.

Council Member Mike Kozlowski spoke of recent SACOG meetings and SACOG discussions
regard i ng allocation form ulas for transportation fund i ng.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 8:08 p.m.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
ATTEST

Sarah Aquino, Mayor

Drafr - Not Ofidal Until Approued fui the Citlt Council
Page 62

05/26/2020; Item No. 2.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 5/26/2020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10454 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Munaysmith Inc. for Design
and Construction Administration Services for the Misc. Water
System Rehabilitation Project No. I and Folsom Zoo Sewer Line
Project and Appropriation of Funds.

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10454 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Munaysmith Inc. for
Design and Construction Administration Services for the Misc. Water System Rehabilitation
Project No. 1 and Folsom Zoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department has developed a water and wastewater
infrastructure rehabilitation and replacement (R & R) program through water and wastewater
master plans and ongoing condition assessment programs. Through these efforts, portions of
the water and wastewater system in the City have been identified as needing rehabilitation or
replacement. A comprehensive plan has been developed for the R & R of these aging systems,
and much of this work has been completed in recent years. The projects identified and included
within the Misc. Water System Improvements Project No. I include the replacement of the
waterline serving Negro Bar State Park, replacing the upstream slide gate on the Willow Hill
Dam, rehabilitating the waterline on Rainbow Bridge, and replacing the Folsom Zoo sewer
lines.

1
Page 63

05/26/2020; Item No. 3.



Amendment No. 3 is for design and construction administration services related to the Willow
Hill Valve Project only. The original project contract request and all associated amendments
have been summarized in the table below. No additional cost for design or construction
administration services is being requested for the Negro Bar Waterline Rehabilitation Project,
the Rainbow Bridge Waterline Rehabilitation Project or the Folsom Zoo Sewer Rehabilitation
Project. These three projects have been designed and constructed to date.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Murraysmith, Inc. for design and construction
administration services for the Misc. Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1 and Folsom
Zoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of Funds. Amendment No. 3 is for $225 ,339 and
the new contract amount, including Amendment No. 3 is $ $461,997

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $62,014 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

In April 2016, the original contract scope was awarded to Quincy Engineering, now
Murraysmith, Inc., through Resolution No. 9754 for engineering services to develop bid
documents to replace the existing slide gate on the upstream side of the dan at the Willow Hill
Reservoir. At that time, the City and Murraysmith did not know all of the details to incorporate
into the environmental studies or CEQA documents, with the City receiving limited
information from the Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD) regarding their specific
requirements for the Project. Specific requirements from DSOD were not available until after
the City provided DSOD with a preliminary design. The original scope of the project was based

on the following:

2

Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1 and the Folsom Zoo Sewer Line Project
(Design and Construction Administration Services)

Contract No. 173-21
16-035

Contract
Amount

Resolution
No.

Scope of Work

Original Contract
(April l2th,20l6) $125,000 9754

Design and Construction Administration Services for
Negro Bar Waterline, Rainbow Bridge Waterline,
Willow Hill Dam and the Folsom Zoo Sewer Line

Amendment No. I
(March 28th,2017)

s41,800 9894

Additional Design and Construction Administration
Services for Negro Bar Waterline, Rainbow Bridge
Waterline, Willow Hill Dam and the Folsom Zoo Sewer
Line

Amendment No. 2
(November l3th.20l8) $69,857.50 10198

Additional Design and Construction Administration
Services for the Willow Hill Dam Proiect Only

Amendment No. 3
( Auril28th.2020\ $225,339

Additional Design and Construction Administration
Services for the Willow Hill Dam Proiect Onlv

Page 64

05/26/2020; Item No. 3.



and needed to be replaced

As the project progressed, the project team identified several items that were not in the original
project scope. In order to address these additional items, the City requested that Murraysmith
provide pre-design services instead of the design and construction administration budget as

originally scoped. Therefore, aportion of AmendmentNo. 1 was requested forthe WillowHill
Valve Dam Project through Resolution No. 9894 to address the pre-design services and the
remaining design and construction administrative services for the project.

Pre-design services provided to date include:

valve either in its current location with remote operator cables, or as a slant gate built
into the face of the dam embankment

indicator and remote SCADA operation of the valve

grade

Murraysmith developed 65% design level plans to provide to DSOD for review and comment.
DSOD's review and comment provided information to the City and Murraysmith as to the
additional parameters required by DSOD for the final design. The 65% design submittal
required expending the remaining funds from the original contract and most of the funds from
Amendment No. 1. As a result, the City approved Amendment No. 2 through Resolution No.
10198 for Murraysmith to complete the following:

ofthe project

to confirm dimensions and condition of the existing slide gate

(100% plans and specifications)

access to the slide gate operator

a
J

Page 65

05/26/2020; Item No. 3.



As described above, one of the tasks in Amendment No. 2 included an underwater dive and
assessment of the existing valve. During the assessment, the dive team, CSI Services, Inc.,
encountered several issues that did not allow the assessment to be completed. This included
the following:

valve and the bar screen

The conditions below the surface of the water did not allow for a proper inspection and
assessment of the existing valve and pipe. Based on these findings, the City and Murraysmith
concluded that the proposed design and installation of a new valve by underwater methods was
impractical. After further discussions between the City, Murraysmith and DSOD, a new design
concept was agreed upon. Murraysmith completed a technical memorandum that included
findings to date, recommendations of the abandonments of the existing outlet piping and the
design of a new siphon system. Based upon acceptance by the DSOD of the Technical Memo,
City staff is recommending approval of Amendment No. 3 and the following scope of work:

o Coordination/Meetings with City
o Develop 30o , 600A,90%o plans and specifications for review by the City and

DSOD
o Final Bid Package (plans, specifications, bid quantities, final cost estimate)

o Bid Support
o Submittal Reviews
o RFI Responses

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Murraysmith, Inc. for design and construction
administration services for the Misc. Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1 and Folsom
Zoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of Funds. Amendment No. 3 is for $225 ,339 and
the new contract amount, including Amendment No. 3 is$461,997.

FISCAL IMPACT

An appropriation of funds in the amount of $225,339 is required. Funding for this agreement
is available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520). With the additional appropriation, the
total contract amount will be for a not-to-exceed amount of $461,996.50 and a project budget
of $2,234,261.

4
Page 66

05/26/2020; Item No. 3.



ENVIRO AI, REVIEW

An environmental opportunities and constraints analysis will be performed as part of the design
process to ensure DSOD environmental compliance. The analysis will include a general

approach to the environmental compliance process, including a recommendation for any

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documentation and identification,
identification of potentially required regulatory permits, and a general mitigation strategy and

cost estimate.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10454 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute Amendment
No. 3 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Munaysmith, Inc. for Design and
Construction Administration Services for the Misc. Water System Rehabilitation Project No.
I and FolsomZoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of Funds.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

5Page 67

05/26/2020; Item No. 3.



RESOLUTION NO. 10454

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT
NO. 3 TO THE AGREEMENT (CONTRACT NO. 173-21 16-035) WITH MURRAYSMITH
INC. FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR THE

MISC. WATER SYSTEM REHABILITATION PROJECT NO. 1 AND FOLSOM ZOO
SEWER LINE PROJECT AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City identifies projects that are critical to ensuring the delivery of adequate
and high quality water supply to all residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has identified the Willow Hill Dam Project as a priority to
maintain integrity and operation of the raw water system; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will incorporate comments provided by the Division of
Safety of Dams into the final design and environmental review; and

WHEREAS, Murraysmith by reason of their past experience and abilities for performing
these types of services, are qualified to perform the required consulting services; and

WHEREAS, the amendment with Murraysmith will be in the amount of $225,339 and an

additional appropriation will be required for this amendment; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21
16-035) with Mumaysmith for Design and Construction Administration Services for the Misc. Water
System Rehabilitation Project No. I and Folsom Zoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of Funds
for an amount not-to-exceed $461,997; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to increase the
Misc. Water System Rehabilitation Project No. I appropriation by 5225p39 in the Water Operating
Fund (Fund 520) for a total amount of $461,997 and a total project budget of 52,234,261.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10454
Page I of I Page 68

05/26/2020; Item No. 3.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10455 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement
with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Prairie City and Blue Ravine Lane Modification
Project, Project No. PW2002.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The intersection of Prairie City Road and Blue Ravine Road has been experiencing an increase

in traffic volumes that has led to queue distances in the left turn lane from Northbound Prairie
City to Westbound Blue Ravine to exceed the available capacity. This has contributed to queue

spillback from the left turn lane to extend into the northbound through lane, restricting flow
and has been shown in statistical reports to have an increase in rear-end and sideswipe
accidents. The proposed project addresses this by converting one ofthe southbound lanes into
an additional northbound to westbound left turn lane, reducing the instances of queue spillback,
and potentially reducing the cycle length of the intersection to provide more efficient flow
along both Blue Ravine Road and Prairie City Road.

This project was identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) as a "required off-
site roadway improvement" as mitigation for the FPASP, and a fair-share portion of the
construction costs will eventually be funded from the Off-site Roadway fee as shown in the

financial impact section of this staff report.

1

MEETING DATE: s12612020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10455 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Siena
National Construction, Inc. for the Prairie City and Blue Ravine
Lane Modification Project, Project No. PW2002

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 69

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



Furthermore, this project will allow the Public Works Department to begin collecting high-
resolution data to perform advanced analytics for the traffic signal operations, and also

integrate a larger portion of Prairie City Road into the City's Traffic Management Center

furthering the City's ITS Master Plan.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that
contracts for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,014
or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

Public Works staff compiled the bid package, and the project was publicly advertised on March
25th,2020.

The Engineer's Estimate for this Project was $425,000. Public Works staff recommends that a

contract be awarded to the low-bidder, Sierra National Construction. Staff will use the City's
standard Construction Agreement in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The contract with Sierra National Construction would be authorized for $310,069. with the
project budgeted for a total of $341,076, which will include a ten percent contingency amount
of $ 31,007for potential Change Orders.

Funds in the amount of $341,076 are budgeted and available in the Transportation
Improvement Fund (Fund 446) to be allocated to this project. The project is one of the
identified projects to be partially funded by the Plan Area developers through the Off-site
Roadway fee. Once a sufficient amount of fees have been collected through the fee, the
Transportation Improvement Fund will be reimbursed for $130,034 of the costs.

2

Contractor Total Bid

Sierra National Construction, Inc $310,069.00

Martin General Engineering, Inc $315,990.00

Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. $325,382.50

Western Engineering Contractors, Inc. $416,000.00

Tennyson Electric, lnc $466,565.00

Page 70

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project has been deemed categorically exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10455 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Construction Agreement with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Prairie City
and glue Ravine Lane Modification Project, Project No. PW2002

2. Exhibit 1 - Site Map

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

JPage 71

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. 10455 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Construction Agreement with Siena National Construction, Inc. for the Prairie

City and Blue Ravine Lane Modification Project, Project No. PW2002

Page 72

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 10455

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION
AGREEMENT WITH SIERRA NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. F'OR THE PRAIRIE CITY

AND BLUE RAVINE LANE MODIFICATION PROJECT, PROJECT NO. PW2OO2

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to perform intersection improvements at Prairie City
Road and Blue Ravine Road to add an additional left turn lane; and

WHEREAS, the project will improve traffic signal operations and safety at the intersection of
Prairie City Road and Blue Ravine Road; and

WHEREAS, the project was identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan as an off-site
mitigating project, and the required fair-share funding is available through the Off-site Roadway Fee; and

WHEREAS, the project will allow the City to integrate the traffic signal into the Traffic
Management Center; and

WHEREAS, this Project was publicly advertised, and the bids were received on April 30th,
2020, with Siera National Construction being the lowest responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS' sufficient funds are available in the amount of $$341,076 in the Transportation
Improvement Fund (Fund 446), to be allocated to the Prairie City and Blue Ravine Lane Modification
Project PW2002 for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and

WHEREAS, once sufficient funds are accumulated from the Off-site Roadway Fee the
Transportation Improvement Fund will be reimbursed in the amount of $130,034.

WHERf,AS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a construction agreement with Sierra National Construction for
the Prairie City and Blue Ravine Lane Modification Project in the amount of $310,069,, with the project
budgeted amount to include a ten percent contingency for a total not-to-exceed amount of $341,076.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May, 2020,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10455
Page 1 of I

Page 73

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



ATTACHMENT 2

Exhibit 1-SiteMap

Page 74

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



cl
=a
q)

O
I

Xri

EENCH MARK @ d

h
IMPROEIIENT PJIIS FOR

FOLSOI4 - PRAIRIE CITY AT BLUE MVINE ROAD

IAYO{JT

CITY OF FOLSOM
DEPASfXEN1 OF PUBUC TORKS

I

I

L-'l

Nr$:
i-.6-iAffi{.ffii6-:m6Erm.xrurrEl@s{ruRr{r@&mor{*tr

(mrc6 SffiDgromG
(ndvEl*-q-<dt!4dds aAd3lftEEh.'D.aMr:,s

a4dErr^dffi{ie

Oaumun.uo"o*s 
lffirtu^*o64ft

ffitutmaffiwft{EBrmc6E9ts OH'.gAElGfuror$m&--(
@urc*rzwwm,;a

Od i r.r mrt

Orcm'xrR
^rqrrrtErri.l:'r4du,r-

ffilmri?.f,H"-
[]lcur.x'

,i

l

I

.i
Ei
31
5l

pi

j'

ll

i
I

t'
q-/'q

F.6)

r4\ t- -"1

I{-
t \o .=x'sl-

rc

1

r- - ---- '';

t--------"1

ffi -:
lgEsl^a

I
I
I
L

OEIIIL A EIAIL 8

Page 75

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 76

05/26/2020; Item No. 4.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Move to approve Resolution No. 10457 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to
Execute Amendment No. 2 to the Contract with Aquatic Design Group for Additional Design
Services for the Steve Miklos Aquatic Center Renovation Project (Contract No.173-21 17-

063).

BACKGROT IND / ISSIIE
The Steve Miklos Aquatic Center was completed and opened in May 200I and has provided
the community with 19 years of safe swimming and aquatic programing. Over 4,000,000
participants have utilized the Steve Miklos Aquatic Center participating in activities ranging
from swim lessons, fitness swim, swim team programs, birthday parties, school parties, and

countless hours of recreational swim. For the past several years, staff has been monitoring
the condition of both the pool plaster and the pool deck as the typical life expectancy is
approximately 15 years due to high levels of chlorination and public use.

On October 23,2017, the City entered into a consultant agreement with the Aquatic Design
Group (ADG) in the amount of $32,000 to provide design and engineering services for the
Steve Miklos Aquatic Center Swimming Pools Re-plaster project. During a scheduled site

visit on December 13,2017, it was determined that the condition of the pool deck was also in
need of repair. The additional design services, which constituted Amendment No. 1

(Resolution No. 10074 approved on February 13, 2018), amounted to $32,000, for a total
not-to-exceed amount of $64,000.

1

MEETING DATE: s12612020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10457 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Approve Amendment No. 2 to the Contract with
Aquatic Design Group for Additional Design Services for the
Steve Miklos Aquatic Center Renovation Project (Contract No
173-21 17-063) And Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 77

05/26/2020; Item No. 5.



The original construction documents and specifications included the 5O-meter pool re-
plastering and replacement of the surrounding deck as the base bid. The re-plastering and
surrounding deck replacement for the other two pools, the instructional pool and the activity
pool, were identified as additive alternates to the original re-plaster/deck construction
contract. Due to the bids received and available funding, only the 5O-meter pool and decking
was awarded in the renovation work in 2018.

Since the successful completion of the 5O-meter pool in 2018, staff has also evaluated the
condition of the wet play structure that exists in the activity pool. This wet play structure
was installed in 2001 as part of the original construction and since then, has been continually
used to the delight of many customers. This wet play structure has essentially come to the
end of its serviceable life and now requires replacement. The replacement of this structure
during the re-plastering project saves time and money since the new structure will require
different foundation supports and plumbing than the old structure. This is more easily
achieved when the plaster and decking is already being replaced.

Since ADG prepared the drawings and specifications for the instructional pool and activity
pool as part of the larger bid documents, minimal effort will be required to prepare a stand-
alone package for the renovation of these two pools, surrounding decks, and activity
structure.

Staff has also considered the addition of shade structures between the instructional and
activity pool, as well as the addition of a pool-side basketball hoop. These elements not only
provide an updated operational advarrtage but add to the overall *95630" feel staff always
strives for. The addition of the shade structure and basketball hoop would be an add-
alternate to the design and construction.

The professional services fee for Aquatic Design Group to modifu the existing drawings and
specifications for the re-plastering and deck work for both the instructional and activity pools
is $19,500, for a not-to-exceed amount of $83,500.

POLICY / RULE
Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code states that supplies, equipment, services, and
construction with a value of $62,014 or greater shall be awarded by City Council. By
increasing the scope of work, the contract amount exceeds the City Manager's signature
authority, thus requiring City Council authorization.

ANALYSIS
ADG and City staff determined that 75Yo of the pool deck needs to be replaced along with
the re-plastering of the two pools. The deterioration of the pools and deck is due to the high
volume of participation, pool chemicals, water, and extreme thermal change over the past 19

years. Approval of the ADG consultant agreement for the scope of work does not include
bidding or construction of the project. Renovation of the Aquatic Center Activity pool is
included in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 preliminary budget.

Staff estimates the expense for both the plaster and pool deck repair, along with the
replacement of the wet play structure, to be $1,950,000. Due to current Covid-19
restrictions, the entire Steve Miklos Aquatic Center is currently closed until further notice.

2
Page 78

05/26/2020; Item No. 5.



Staff anticipates renovation, if approved, would start around Labor Day 2020 and the project
is expected to take 90 - 120 days to complete. If COVID-l9 restrictions are modified during
that time, the recently renovated 50-meter pool can still be used for revenue generating swim
activities.

The FY 2020121Preliminary Budget includes $1,600,000 for the renovation of the
instructional pool and activity pool and $350,000 for the activity structure. Once the plans
and specifications are prepared, they will remain valid and viable for use in the fiscal year if
funding is approved.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The scope of work and contract amendment ($19,500) for the additional design and
engineering services will require an appropriation from the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund
602) in Fiscal Year 2019-20 as atransfer out to the General Fund (Fund 010) in the Parks
and Recreation Department. If the project for renovation of the pools is approved in the FY
2020-2I Preliminary Budget the additional design costs will be included in the total project
costs.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10457 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment
No. 2 to the Contract with Aquatic Design Group for Additional Design Services for the Steve
Miklos Aquatic Center Renovation Project (Contract No. 173-21 l7-063) And Appropriation
ofFunds

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Parks & Recreation Director

a
JPage 79

05/26/2020; Item No. 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10457

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO.2
TO THE CONTRACT WITH AQUATIC DESIGN GROUP FOR ADDITIONAL DESIGN
SERVTCES FOR THE STEVE MIKLOS AQUATTC CENTER RENOVATTON PROJECT

(CoNTRACT NO. t7s-21 17-063)

WHEREAS, the Steve Miklos Aquatic Center opened in 2001 and has provided the community
with 19 years of safe swimming and aquatic programming and has withstood high public use and highly
chlorinated water and must soon undergo pool plaster renovations, deck renovations, and wet play
structure replacement; and

WHEREAS, in October 2077, the City entered into a design and consultant contract with the
Aquatic Design Group for re-plastering of the swimming pools in the amount of $32,000; and

WHEREAS, in February 2018 Amendment No.l (Resolution No. 10074) in the amount of
$32,000 was approved for design seryices in connection with the 50-meter pool deck, which resulted in a
total contract cost of$64,000; and

WHEREAS, the pool plaster, deck and wet play structure for the instructional and activity pools
are in need ofrepair; and

WHEREAS, the cost to complete the additional design services is $19,500 for a total contract
amount of $83,500; and

WHEREAS, the scope of work and contract amendment for the additional design services will
require an additional appropriation in Fiscal Year 2019-20.

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the City Manager,
to execute Amendment No. 2, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, and in the amount of $19,500, to
the contract with Aquatic Design Group for additional design and engineering services for the Aquatic
Center Renovation Project for a total contract amount of $83,500.

BE IT X'URTHER RESOLVED that the City Council directs the Finance Director to
appropriate $19.500 from the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602) as a transfer to the General Fund
(Fund 010) in the Parks and Recreation Department.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10457

Page I of I

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Page 80

05/26/2020; Item No. 5.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

In recognition of the current COVID-l9 pandemic and as a means to extend allZoning
Ordinance-related entitlements and Grading Permits, it is recommended that City Council adopt
Resolution No. 10459 - A Resolution Authorizing the Automatic Extension of Zoning Related
Entitlements and Grading Permits for One-Year.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On March 4,2020, Governor GavinNewsom proclaimed a State of Emergency in California as a

result of the COVID-l9 pandemic. On March 16,2020 the City Council proclaimed that the
COVID-l9 pandemic has caused aLocal Emergency. On March 19,2020, Governor Newsom
issued Executive Order N-33-20 ordering all residents of California to stay at home ("Directive"),
unless in the category ofessential services.

The current COVID-I9 public health emergency is delaying the construction and completion of
certain development projects, and the land use entitlement approvals for these projects are at risk
of expiring due to the current pandemic. Because the processing, approval, and issuance of land
use entitlements represent a substantial investment of money, time, and effort toward the
successful completion of these projects, expiratioilof these entitlements represents a significant
loss for landowners, developers, and the local economy. Staff is recommending that the City
Council take action to protect against this potential loss and preserve development opportunities
by granting an automatic extension of I year time to the term of these entitlements that would
otherwise expire in and during 2020 following the adoption of the proposed Resolution.

1

MEETING DATE: s/26/2020

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10459 - A Resolution Authorizing the Automatic
Extension of Zoning Related Entitlements and Grading Permits
for One-Year

F'ROM: Community Development Department

Page 81

05/26/2020; Item No. 6.



If approved, the Resolution would grant an automatic extension of one-year to all land use

entitlements that would have expiredin2020. This would include, but is not limited to, Design
Review Permits, Conditional Use Permits, Planned Development Permits, other Zoning-related
permit types as well as Grading Permits. The Resolution would not affect subdivision
entitlements or building permits. Subdivision entitlements are governed by California's
Subdivision Map Act provisions, which allows substantial extensions for the life of a subdivision
entitlement. Building permits are governed by Title 14 of the Folsom Municipal Code
("Buildings and Construction") and the California Buildings Standard Code, which gives the
City's Chief Building Offrcial discretion regarding building permit extensions.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

An economic benefit is likely to occur by extending the time development projects have to
construct; however, the fiscal impact cannot be quantified.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to activities that will not result
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, or is otherwise
not considered a project as defined by CEQA Statute $21065 and CEQA State Guidelines

$15060(c)(3) and $15378. Each development project that may be extended has been reviewed in
compliance with CEQA statutes and the proposed ordinance will meet the above criteria and is
not subject to CEQA. No additional environmental review is required.

ATTACHMENT:U

Resolution No. 10459 - A Resolution Authorizingthe Automatic Extension of Zoning Related
Entitlements and Grading Permits for One-Year

Respectfully Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

2
Page 82

05/26/2020; Item No. 6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10459

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AUTOMATIC EXTENSION OF ZONING
RELATED ENTITLEMNTS AND GRADING PERMITS FOR ONE.YEAR

WHEREAS' On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a State of
Emergency in California as a result of the COVID-l9 pandemic. On March 16,2020 the City
Council proclaimed that the COVID-19 pandemic has caused a Local Emergency. On March 19,

2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-33-20 ordering all residents of California to
stay at home ("Directive"), unless in the category of essential services; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom finds and declares that the current

COVID-l9 State of Emergency, Proclamation, and Directive are delaying the start and completion
of construction of certain development projects, and the land use entitlement approvals for these

projects are at risk of expiring due to no fault of landowners and developers. Because the

processing, approval, and issuance of land use entitlements represent a substantial investment of
money, time, and effort toward the successful completion of these projects, expiration of these

entitlements represents a significant loss for landowners, developers, and the local economy. The

City Council desires to protect against this potential loss and preserve development opportunities
by granting an automatic extension of 1 year time to the term of these entitlements; and

WHEREAS' notwithstanding the provisions of Title 17 of the Folsom Municipal Code

(Zoning) to the contrary, the period of time within which to obtain a building permit and commence

construction, or to establish a use, under Chapter 17 of the Zoning Ordinance, including any

extensions thereof, shall not include the period of time that this Resolution is in effect. This
Resolution shall apply only to all entitlements and permits issued under the Zoning Ordinance that

are valid and not expired as of the effective date of this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding the provisions of Title 14 of the Folsom Municipal Code
(Buildings and Construction) to the contrary, the period of time within which to obtain a grading
permit and to initiate grading, under Chapter 14 the Folsom Municipal Code, shall not include the
period of time that this Resolution is in effect. This Resolution shall apply only to all grading plans

issued under Chapter 14 of the Folsom Municipal Code that are valid and not expired as of the

effective date of this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the automatic extension of zoning related land use entitlements and grading permits for
one year for all projects that would have expiredin202}.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the aforementioned one-year extension shall apply
prospectively only to projects whose land use entitlements andlor grading permits are valid and

have not expired as of the effective date of this Resolution.

Resolution No. 10459
Page 1 of 2

Page 83

05/26/2020; Item No. 6.



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26ftday of May,2020,by the following roll-call vote

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10459
Page2 of2

Page 84

05/26/2020; Item No. 6.



I''{_f l,s {_}51
() r!rtcrrr0 tr 9st! tt

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolutions and conduct the first
reading of the ordinance:

Resolution No. 10435 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom to Form a

Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to
Levy Special Taxes therein

Resolution No. 10436 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement AreaNo. 1 of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Resolution No. 10437 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 2 of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Resolution No. 10438 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 3 of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

ResolutionNo. 10439 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 4 of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

I

MEETING DATE: s12612020

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch)

FROM: Finance Department

Page 85

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Resolution No. 10440 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 5 of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Resolution No. 10441 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming it
Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 6 of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Resolution No. 10442 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

Resolution No. 10443 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2

Resolution No. 10444 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

Resolution No. 10445 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4

Resolution No. 10446 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 5

Resolution No. 10447 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6

Resolution No. 10448 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 1

Resolution No. 10449 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 2

Resolution No. 10450 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3

2
Page 86

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Resolution No. 10451 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 4

Resolution No. 10452 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 5

Resolution No. 10453 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement AreaNo. 6

Ordinance No. 10305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal Year
2020-21and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to the City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Introduction and First Reading)

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP"), approved by
the City Council on January 28, 2014 via Resolution 9298, is an $877 million plan that

describes the backbone infrastructure and facility requirements, presents a comprehensive
financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time horizon for the development of the Folsom

Plan Area ("FPA").

Landowners within the FPA requested to form the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD No. 23"), and designate six separate

Improvement Areas (each an "IA") therein (designated as Improvement Area No. 1 through
Improvement Area No. 6). Special tax revenues generated from each IA within CFD No. 23

will help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and

facilities, including related environmental mitigation obligations. A detailed list of authorized
facilities can be found under Appendix A of Resolution No. 10414, approved by this City
Council on April 14,2020. A summary of the facilities authorized to be funded by CFD No.
23 include, but are not limited to:

o Transportation Improvements including all public roadway improvements designed to
meet the needs of development within CFD No. 23, including intemal subdivision
streets and related underground utilities

o Water System Improvements
o Recycled Water System Improvements
o Drainage System Improvements
o Wastewater System Improvements
o Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements
. Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Improvements
o Payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program Obligation
o Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs

a
-t

Page 87

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



In addition, the following project-specific services are anticipated to be funded by CFD No. 23
special taxes.

o Enhanced open space maintenance
o Landscape corridors and paseos
o Street light maintenance
. Medians, entries and entry monumentation
o Neighborhood park maintenance
o Community amenities
o Storm water management
o Other miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above
o Anticipated future repairs or replacements costs

The proposed CFD No. 23 is located within the FPA and is generally bounded by U.S.
Highway 50 on the north, Placerville Road on the east, and White Rock Road on the south.
Each IA within CFD No. 23 includes several Assessor's Parcel Numbers, which are identified
in the CFD No. 23 boundary map, which is included in the CFD Public Hearing Report
(Attachment 21). The proposed development plan for each IA within CFD No. 23 includes the
following:

IA SF Units

SF High-
Density
Units

MF Low-
Density
Units

MF
Medium
Density
Acreage

MF High
Density
Acreage

Non-
Residential

Acreage
IAl 0 441 257 0.0 9.8 0.0
TA2 0 0 340 0.0 0.0 5.1

IA3 0 1,069 157 0.0 0.0 0.0
IA4 100 266 2sl 0.0 0.0 0.0
IA5 84 194 401 9.7 17.8 23.5
IA6 0 0 0 9.5 9.3 tl.4

The CFD No. 23 funding stream will be a combination of bonded indebtedness and pay-as-
you-go ("PAYGO") funding, both secured by the levy of special taxes upon property within
the boundaries of CFD No. 23.

On April 14,2020, this City Council appointed consultants, approved a proposed boundary
map and declared the intention to form CFD No. 23 andto levy special taxes within CFD No.
23 by passage of Resolution No. 10414. On that same date, this City Council declared the
necessity for incurring bonded indebtedness in and for CFD No. 23 and in and for each IA
designated therein by passage of Resolution No. 10415.

A Public Hearing is required as part of the formation process of a Community Facilities
District. Notice of the hearing was mailed to the landowners within CFD No. 23 on April 28,
2020 and published in the Folsom Telegraph on May 14,2020. A copy of the required CFD

4
Page 88

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Public Hearing Report has been made available in the City Clerk's office since May 14,2020
and is also included with this report as Attachment2l.

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the formation
of community facilities districts (each a "CFD") to finance the construction, acquisition, and
servicing of FPA backbone infrastructure and public facilities

Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement authorizes
the formation of infrastructure CFDs.

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

ANALYSIS

CFD No. 23 willbe structured as an extended-term CFD and will provide the necessary funding
to help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and
facilities, including related environmental mitigation obligations. The PFFP backbone
infrastructure and facilities will be financed using both bond proceeds and PAYGO special tax
revenues. The extended-term CFD structure is proposed to help meet the challenge of high-
cost infrastructure and facilities while also aligning the timing of future funding availability
with the need for such funding.

The PFFP backbone facilities to be funded via CFD No. 23, and listed above, were originally
anticipated to be funded by either Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area -
Area-Wide Improvements and Services) or funded as part of project specific CFDs established
for each development within the FPA.

The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within each IA of CFD No. 23 will be
comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services. The 202012I
maximum facilities special tax rates, set forth in each IA's Rate and Method of Apportionment,
for each land use category are provided in the table below:

Land Use Catesory

Residential
Floor Area

(square footage)

2020121Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate (All IAs) Per

Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zonins > 3,600 $3,886 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zonins 3,200 - 3,599 3,571 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zonins 2,800 - 3,199 3,559 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 2,400 - 2,799 3,293 Unit
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zonine 2,000 - 2,399 3,000 Unit

5
Page 89

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zonins <2,000 2,900 Unit
Sinsle-Family Detached Property - MLD Zonine > 3,600 3,886 Unit
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning 3,200 - 3,599 3,571 Unit
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning 2,800 - 3,199 3,559 Unit
Single-Family Detached ProperW - MLD Zoning 2.400 - 2.799 3,293 Unit
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning 2.000 - 2.399 3,000 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning < 2.000 2.900 Unit
MMD Multi-Family Attached Property N/A 30.000 Acre
MHD Multi-Familv Attached Property N/A 11.700 Acre
Non-Residential Property N/A 11.700 Acre

The special tax for the authorized facilities within any IA shall not be levied after the earlier
of (i) Fiscal Year 2079180 or (ii) the fiscal year occulring 50 years following (a) the fiscal year
in which the first building permit was issued or (b) the first series of bonds or other debt issued
for the respective IA. Each fiscal year, commencing with 2021122, the maximum facilities
special taxrute will be increased by 2% annually.

The 2020121 maximum services special tax rates, set forth in each IA's Rate and Method of
Apportionment, for each land use category are provided in the table below:

Land Use Catesory IAl TA2 IA3* IA4 IA5 IA6 Per

Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zonins $210 $200 $ 175 $20s $ 16s $ l7s Unit

Single-Family Detached
Property - MLD Zonins.

156 103 t25 140 85 85 Unit

MMD Multi-Family
Attached Propertv

500 s00 s00 500 500 300 Acre

MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 300 Acre

Non-Residential Property 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 Acre
* For Active Adult Property the maximum services special tax rate for SF/SFHD Zoning property is

$100 per unit and MLD zoning property is $40 per unit.

The CFD No. 23 services special tax can be levied and collected in perpetuity. Each fiscal year,
commencing with 2021122, the maximum services special tax rate will be increased by the
June annualized percentage change of the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, for
the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to exceed 4o/o.

As described above, CFD No. 23 will include an extended-term in order to provide the
financing to fund CFD No. 23 authorized facilities through multiple CFD bond issues and the
generation of PAYGO special tax revenue from the levy and collection of the special taxes.
The primary pledge of CFD No. 23 special tax revenues will be to service outstanding CFD
No. 23 debt. Special tax revenues in excess of the annual debt service and administrative
expenses will be used on a PAYGO basis. 100% of the PAYGO revenue year is intended to be

available to the landowners to fund eligible facilities for the first 20 years, beginning the Fiscal

6
Page 90

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Year following the earlier of the first building permit being issued or the hrst series of bonds
or other debt issued for the respective IA. After that, any PAYGO revenues may be used at the
City's discretion to continue to fund or acquire eligible facilities, or the City may elect to
reduce the special tax levy amount to eliminate PAYGO revenues.

Approving the resolutions attached:
o Forms CFD No. 23 and designates six Improvement Areas therein
o Authorizes the levy of special taxes within each Improvement Area therein
o Deems it necessary to incur bonded indebtedness within each Improvement Area
o Calls for a special mailed ballot election within each Improvement Area
o Declares the results of the special mailed ballot election within each Improvement Area

An ordinance is also being introduced to levy special taxes within CFD No. 23 for fiscal year
2020121and following fiscal years. This is the first reading of the ordinance.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct General Fund impact on the City of Folsom. The CFD No. 23 formation,
bonded indebtedness, and expenses are solely the responsibility of CFD No. 23.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Folsom Plan Area
Backbone Infrastructure Project were previously prepared for, and adopted by the City Council
on February 24,2015, in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental

Quality Act. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378(c), the term ooproject" does not mean
each separate govemmental approval for an approved activity which may be subject to several
discretionary approvals by governmental agencies. Additionally, the creation of government
funding mechanisms which do not involve any commitment to any specific project which may
result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment is not defined as a
"project" under CEQA. CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(bX4) and 15061(bX3).

ATTACHMENTS

1 . Resolution No. I 043 5 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom to Form a
Community Facilities District, to Dgsignate Improvement Areas within the District and to
Levy Special Taxes therein

2. ResolutionNo. 10436 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming
it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 1 of City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

3. ResolutionNo. 10437 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming
it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 2 of City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

7
Page 91

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



4. Resolution No. 10438 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming
it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 3 of City of
.Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

5. Resolution No. 10439 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming
it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 4 of City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

6. Resolution No. 10440 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming
it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 5 of City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

7. Resolution No. 10441 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Deeming
it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 6 of City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

8. Resolution No. 10442 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

9. Resolution No. 10443 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No,
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2

10. ResolutionNo. 10444 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No,
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

1 1. Resolution No. 10445 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4

12. ResolutionNo. 10446 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5

13. ResolutionNo. 10447 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No,
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6

14. Resolution No. 10448 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

8
Page 92

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



15. Resolution No. 10449 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2

16. Resolution No. 10450 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

17. Resolution No. 10451 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4

18. Resolution No. 10452 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5

19. Resolution No. 10453 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6

20. Ordinance No. 10305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal
Year 2020-21 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Introduction and First
Reading)

21. City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing
Report

22.Landovtner Petitions and Waivers (without exhibits)

S

S

t
amagnl
Director

9
Page 93

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 94

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10435

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
TO FORM A COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, TO DESIGNATE

IMPROVEMENT AREAS WITHIN THE DISTRICT AND TO LEVY
SPECIAL TAXBS THEREIN

WHEREAS, a community facilities district is proposed to be established (the "Community
Facilities District") under the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter
2.5 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code, commencing with Section 53311

(the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, six improvement areas are proposed to
be designated within the Community Facilities District (each, an "Improvement Area" and,

collectively, the "Improvement Areas"); and

WHEREAS, the boundaries of the Community Facilities District, and each portion of the
Community Facilities District designated as an Improvement Area, are described in a boundary
map on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk"); and

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10414 (the "Resolution of Intention") and No.
10415 adopted by the City Council of the City (the "City Council") on April 14, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 26,2020, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the formation of the Community Facilities District and the designation of the
Improvement Areas, said public hearing of protests was duly convened by the City Council, and

the City Council duly heard all interested parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that a majority protest under Section 53324 of
the Government Code was not made at the public hearing and therefore the proposed formation of
the Communities Facilities District, designation of each Improvement Area and special tax to be

levied within each Improvement Area have not been eliminated by majority protest pursuant to
said Section 53324; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RBSOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1 The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. The City Council hereby forms the Community Facilities District under the

terms of the Act. The boundaries of the Cornmunity Facilities District and each Improvement
Area are shown on the boundary map approved by the Resolution of Intention (the "Boundary
Map"). A copy of the recorded Boundary Map is on file with the City Clerk and was recorded on
Aprll 20, 2020, at Book 130, Page 2l in the Book of Maps of Assessment and Community
Facilities Districts in the official real estate records of the County of Sacramento.

Resolution No. 10435
Page I of 16

Page 95

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 3. The name of the Community Facilities District is "City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" ("CFD 23").

Section4. Pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, the City Council hereby designates

the portion of CFD 23 described as Improvement Area No. I in the Boundary Map as an

improvement area, the portion of CFD 23 described as Improvement Area No. 2 in the Boundary
Map as an improvement area, the portion of CFD 23 described as Improvement Area No. 3 in the

Boundary Map as an improvement area, the portion of CFD 23 described as Improvement Area
No. 4 in the Boundary Map as an improvement area, the portion of CFD 23 described as

Improvement Area No. 5 in the Boundary Map as an improvement area and the portion of CFD
23 described as Improvement Area No. 6 in the Boundary Map as an improvement area.

Section The names of the Improvement Areas designated within CFD 23 are "City
of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1"
("lmprovement Area No. l"), "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2" ("Improvement Area No. 2"), "City of Folsom Community
Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 3" ("Improvement AreaNo. 3"),
"City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4"
("lmprovement Area No. 4"), "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5" ("Improvement Area No. 5") and "City of Folsom Community
Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 6" ("Improvement AreaNo.6"),
respectively.

Section 6. The types of public facilities (the "Facilities") and services (the "Services")
proposed to be financed by CFD 23, and to the financing of which each Improvement Area is

proposed to contribute, are set forth on Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached to this resolution,
respectively. The City Council hereby finds and determines that these Facilities and Services are

necessitated to meet increased demands placed upon the City by new development occurring or
anticipated within each Improvement Area.

Section 7. All of the Facilities to be financed will have an estimated useful life of at

least five (5) years. They are public facilities that the City or another governmental entity is

authorized by law to construct, own or operate or to which they may contribute revenue. The

Facilities to be financed need not be physically located within CFD 23.

Section 8. The types of incidental expenses and bond issuance costs proposed to be

incurred are set folth on Exhibit C attached to this resolution.

Section 9 Except where funds are otherwise available, special taxes sufftcient to pay

for all Facilities and Services will be annually levied within each Improvement Area. Upon
recordation of a notice of special tax lien pursuant to Section 3114.5 of the California Streets and

Higliways Code, a continuing lien to secure the related levy of the special tax shall attach to all
nonexempt real property within CFD 23, and the lien shall continue in force and eff-ect until the

special tax obligation (or any portion thereof) is paid or prepaid and permanently satisfied and the

special tax lien is cancelled in accordance with law or until collection of the special tax by the City
ceases. The rate and rnethod of apportionment of the special tax to be levied in each lmprovement
Area are set forth in Exhibits D-1 throueh D-6, respectively, attached to this resolution. The

Resolution No. 10435
Page2ofl6 Page 96

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



special tax with respect to the Facilities on any parcel within each Improvement Area shall not be

levied after the earlier of (i) Fiscal Year 2079-80 or (ii) the Fiscal Year occurring 50 years

following (a) the Fiscal Year in which the first building perrnit was issued or (b) the first series of
bonds or other debt issued for the respective Improvement Area. The special tax with respect to
the Services shall be levied perpetually until the collection of the special tax by the City ceases.

In the case ofany special tax to pay for the Facilities and to be levied against any parcel used for
private residential purposes, under no circumstances will the special tax levied against any parcel
be increased as a consequence ofdelinquency or default by the owner ofany other parcel or parcels
within any Improvement Area by more than 10 percent of the special tax for Facilities that would
be levied in that Fiscal Year but for such delinquencies or defaults.

Section 10. Advances of funds or contributions of work in kind from any lawful source,
specifically including owners of property within each Improvement Area, may be reimbursed from
bond proceeds or from special tax revenues or both to the extent ofthe lesser ofthe value or cost

of the contribution, but any agreement to do so shall not constitute a debt or liability of the City.

To the extent the Facilities will not be constructed by the City, in the opinion of the City
Council, the public interest will not be served by allowing the property owners in CFD 23 to
intervene in a public bidding process pursuant to Section 53329.5(a) of the Act.

Section 11. The City intends to reserve to itself the right and authority to allow bond
tenders from any interested landowner within CFD 23 to be accepted under Government Code
sections 53344.1 and 53356.8 in full or partial payment of any installment of the special taxes or
the interest or penalties thereon.

Section 12. The Office of Management and Budget, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom,
California, (916) 355-7347 , is designated as the office responsible for preparing annually a current
roll of special tax levy obligations by assessor's parcel number, and for responding to inquiries
regarding estimates of future special tax levies. The City Manager, the Finance Director and the

Chief Financial Officer are each authorized, on behalf of the City, to negotiate and execute, ftom
time to time, one or more contracts with private consultants to provide this service in lieu of the

Office of Management and Budget, provided that the fees and charges for such private consultants
will be provided for out of special tax tevenues in each Improvement Area.

Section 13. Any bonds issued in these proceedings shall be callable in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and as more specifically to be set forth in any resolution providing for
the form, execution and issuance of bonds.

Section 14 The special tax will be billed as a separate line item on the secured property
tax bills, and will be subject to the same enforcement mechanism, and the same penalties and

interest for late payment, as regular ad valorent property taxes. However, the City reserves the
right, under Section 53340, to utilize any method of collecting each special tax which it shall, from
time to time, determine to be in the best interests of the City, including, but not limited to, direct
billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing, and when lawfully available,
judicial foreclosure of the special tax lien.

Resolution No. 10435
Page3ofl6 Page 97

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 15. This City Council hereby establishes the annual appropriations limit for
Improvement Area No. I at $15,900,000, for Improvement Area No. 2 aI $1,400,000, for
Improvement Area No. 3 aI $25,200,000, for Improvement Area No. 4 at $13,300,000, for
Improvement Area No. 5 at $21,600,000, and for Improvement Area No. 6 at $3,500,000, each for
the 2020-21 fiscal year.

Section 16 Based upon a certificate relative to voters heretofore filed with the City
Clerk, the qualified electors for the election to be held in these proceedings shall be the landowners
owning land within each Improvement Area. The City Clerk or her designee will conduct the
election by mailed ballot and hereby designates the City Clerk as the official to conduct the mailed-
ballot election.

Section 17. This City Council now finds and determines that all proceedings up to and
including the adoption of this resolution were and are valid and in conformity with the
requirements of the Act. This determination and finding is final and conclusive in accordance with
Government Code Section 53325. 1 (b).

Section 18 This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10435
Page 4 of l6 Page 98

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT A

AUTHORIZED FACILITIES
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

FACILITIES

The Facilities to be financed by CFD 23 include facilities designed to meet the needs of
development within CFD 23, whether such facilities are located within or outside the boundaries
of CFD 23, and include but are not limited to the following:

Transportation Improvem ents

Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: acquisition of land and
easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts; clearing,
grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and
decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities
and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, guttets,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps;
street lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping;
erosion control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus
shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public
transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements
related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all
necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system
improvements.

Authorized facilities include the following transportation improvements :

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within
CFD No. 23, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System Improvements

Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet the needs of
development of property within CFD 23. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: water
storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,
pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such
as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and inigation;
access gates, and fencing; and stliping and signage.

Resolution No. 10435
Page 5 of 16

A-1

Page 99

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Recycled Water System Improvements

Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system facilities designed to meet
the needs of development of property within CFD 23. These facilities include, but may not be

limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, gate valves,
flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates,

and fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System Improvements

Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain improvements designed
to meet the needs of development of property within CFD 23. These facilities include, but may not
be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurlenances, outfalls and water quality
measures, detentiorVretention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels,
pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping and signage
and other improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System Improvements

Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities designed to meet the needs of
development of property within CFD 23. These facilities include, but may not be limited to,
pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force mains; lift
stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and
related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements

Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to parks, parkways and open space

required for development of property within CFD 23. These facilities include, but may not be

limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, drainage, sanitary
sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including soundwalls),
pedestriarVbicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements.
Authorized facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike
traillpublic access easements required for development of property within CFD 23.

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Infrastructure

Authorized facilities include any and all improvements that are included in the Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on September 8, 2015, including any future
amendments thereto.

Resolution No. 10435
Page 6 of l6

A-2

Page 100

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Obligation

Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities include payment of the following
SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF obligations within the entire
CFD No. 23:

SPIF Infrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equahzalron Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs

In addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-
Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and

designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and

mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs

incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction management;

costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos CFD;
issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or
costs otherwise incurred in order to cary out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other
expenses incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction,
completion, inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Resolution No. 10435
Page 7 of l6

a

a

A-3

Page 101

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT B

AUTHORIZED SBRVICBS
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

The authorized services to be funded from the levy and collection of annual special taxes

include those set forth below in addition to the costs associated with collecting and administering
the special taxes and annual administration of CFD No. 23. The CFD will be eligible to fund all
or a portion of the costs of reconstruction and/or rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and

replacement, and servicing of the following items not otherwise subject to funding from the City
of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide Improvements
and Services):

l. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance
(including general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris
collection, and bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent

subdivisions] within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits,
Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood Conveyance (VegetatiorVtree removals), Beaver dam removals,
Outfall/drainage swale maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native
planting/replanting, Pre and post emergent, maintenance activities as required by a404 permit and

Operations and Management Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9,

2017 , and repair and replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

2. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land
uses within the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and

utility costs.

3. The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.

4. The maintenance of medians, entdes, and entry monumentation.

5. Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.

6. Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

7. Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage

swales constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

8. Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning,
engineering, GIS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

9. The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs
or replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentatiorr, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

B-l
Resolution No. 10435
Page 8 of 16

Page 102

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation,
maintenance and servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting,
fencing, sound walls, sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not
limited to maintaining the enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat
mitigation areas and other buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development,
bike trails, walkways, entry signage, street pavers, and labol, materials, supplies, utilities
(including water and electricity) and equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained
by the City. Annual maintenance costs include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement
of improvements.

CFD 23 may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described

above: obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment,
apparatus or facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or
fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or
convenient to provide the services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for
repairs and replacements for the future provision of services. It is expected that the services will
be provided by the City, either with its own employees or by contract with third par"ties, or any
combination thereof. CFD 23 may also fund administrative fees of the City related to CFD 23.

Resolution No. 10435
Page 9 of l6

B-2

Page 103

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT C

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES AND BOND ISSUANCE COSTS
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

It is anticipated that the following incidental expenses may be incurred for CFD 23

Engineering services
Special tax consultant services
City review and administration
Bond counsel services
Bond counsel expenses
Disclosure counsel services
Disclosure counsel expenses
Independent municipal advisor services and expenses
Appraiser services
Market absorption study and real estate economist services
Initial bond transfer agent, fiscal agent, registrar and paying agent fees
Rebate calculation service set up charge
Bond printing
Offering memorandum printing and mailing costs
Publishing, mailing and posting of notices
Underwriter's discount
Bond reserve fund
Capitalized interest
Bond syndication costs
Governmental notification and filing costs
Credit enhancement costs
Real estate acquisition costs
Rating agency fees
Charges and fees of City other than those waived

Certain annual costs may be included in each annual special tax levy. These include

Annual bond transfer agent, fiscal agent, registrar and paying agent fees
Annual rebate calculation costs
Special tax consultant costs and administration expenses

Other necessary consultant costs
Costs of posting and collecting the special taxes
Personnel and Administrative costs of the City
Arbitrage rebate
Continuing disclosure reporting and compliance

Resolution No. 10435
Page l0 of l6

c-1

Page 104

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT D.I

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

[ATTACHED]

Resolution No. 10435
Page ll of16

D-1-1

Page 105

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area 1

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 1 (CFD No. 23

lA1) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23lA1. Administrator through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property
within CFD No. 23lA'J., unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,
condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal
to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of !982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessor's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots
or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA1.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on
September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lAL under the Act.

"CFD No. 23lAL Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible
for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and
providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2O2O

Page 1

Page 106

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA!" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1.

"City" means the City of Folsom.

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 231AL.

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities SpecialTax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA1 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23lA'J., or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area l-
March 26,2020

Page 2

Page 107

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



231A1, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 1A1., or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow
account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include
amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23lAl for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 IAI to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish
or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23l,A1" Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 231A1-.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each FiscalYear, allTaxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous FiscalYear.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 108

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Services SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means'J,.80%o, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA1. Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201,1and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcelthat is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, onlythat portion of an Assessor's Parceldesignated for residentialland use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201,L and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 4

Page 109

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA1 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably

offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition andlor construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA1.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready M ulti-Fa m ily/Non-Residentia I Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 231A1-, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the

future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 23lAI.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated

average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location

and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA1, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries

and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services SpecialTax levy to the Maximum Services SpecialTax is equal for all Assessors'Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23 lA1.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23lAt, which (a) is owned

by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 5

Page 110

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,
which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 IAI
Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lAt, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA1 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services SpecialTax Requirement,

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percenl (4%). ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"Services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23l.A1. to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated
by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area l"
March 26,2O2O

Page 6

Page 111

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23lAI Administrator.

"Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J.'J. and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable
Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-
family property with a permitted density range of L-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high
density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2A'J.1. and as amended bythe City
Council.

"Special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property bythe recordation of a SmallLot FinalSubdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does
not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision
Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan
pursuant to California CivilCode 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA1 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23lA1- SpecialTax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 7

Page 112

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the FiscalYear that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA1. shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA1.

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be equalto orgreaterthan
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described
below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July 'J.,202I, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created
from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 8

Page 113

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by allof the Taxable Property is greaterthan or equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the totalcurrent Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 9

Page 114

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,
Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property

subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23lAl,
whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA1.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total
Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed
Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential
Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set
forth in Attachment A shall be reduced untilthe Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.
Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area L
March 26,2020

Page 10

Page 115

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set
forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax
Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 11-

Page 116

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equalto the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue. Further, if the sum of the totalcurrent Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed
Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax fer any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the fullor partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area l-

March 26,2O2O

Page 12

Page 117

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,
Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 1-00% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

FacilitiesSpecialTaxshallbe levied on Small Lot Final Map Propertyforthe entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to t)O% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 13

Page 118

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Propertyata rate upto 100%of the EffectiveTaxRate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to !OO% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities
Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23lAl according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2021-, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable
Property within CFD No. 23lAL and the Facilities SpecialTax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services SpecialTax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA1.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 119

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No.23 lA1 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 1-00% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services SpecialTax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DETINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA1 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA1 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than

ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEM toNs

F.1. The CFD No. 231A1, Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1-

March 26,2020
Page 15

Page 120

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities SpecialTax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of allAssessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A1,, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfershall be allowed only if (1")alladjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method
of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA1 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 16

Page 121

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEW/APPEALS

The CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake

the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the SpecialTax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 14L Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lAl Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA1 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City
Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 IAI
Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA1-, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly billthe SpecialTax, may collect SpecialTaxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities SpecialTax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities SpecialTax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lAl Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23i,A1, Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 17

Page 122

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator may charge a fee for
providlng this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in
Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step l-: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lAl-, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 123

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived
by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant
to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 andT (the "Redemption
Amount"),

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment
Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the
"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities SpecialTax prepayment shallbe allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 19

Page 124

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



SpecialTaxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1".1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

R.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.l- above
F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lAL Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA1 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1".1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
SpecialTaxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 20

Page 125

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax
shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2O2L to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 and shall be
levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area l-
March 26,2020

Page 21

Page 126

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
Maximum Special Tax Rates

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI-

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s210

2ro

2to

2to

210

210

156

155

156

156

156

1s6

500

1,000

1,000

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

s3,896

3,57L

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,571-

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

1L,700

LT,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,1-gg

2,400 -2,799
2,000 -2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO -2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page22

Page 127

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
Maximum Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July t,202I, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July l-, commencing on July t, 2O2!, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s210

155

s1,ooo

s1,400

51_,400

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

S2,9oo

2,900

S11,7oo

522,50O

Szz,5oo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Propertv

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 128

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

Minimum Facilities Revenue
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2L)

On each July 1, commencing on July 'J,,2021, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased bythe Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property-SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(2)

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 24

2020-202L
Minimum Facilities

psysnug (rX3)

5L,278,900

745,300

0

1,14,660

0

S2,138,8G0

2020-202L
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x P31g(rXz)

52 ,900

2,900

30,000

IL,700

1,!,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

44L

257

0.0

9.8

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningtal

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 129

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x Pslg(rxz)

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,000-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 25

Page 130

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

(2)

ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 131 ga1s(rxz)

s

5

s

s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 131

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



AfiACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1,) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area l-
March 26,2020

Page 27

2020-202!
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

pgygnug (rX2Xa)

s

s

2020-202L
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

p319(rXzxr)

s

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(l)Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(sl

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningts)

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 132

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT D-2

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.2

[ATTACHED]

Resolution No. 10435
Page 12 of l6

D-2-1

Page 133

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 2

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 2 (CFD No. 23

lA2) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23iA2 Administrator through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 23lA2, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2,5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessor's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA2.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September l-'t in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA2 under the Act.

"CFD No. 231A2 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 1

Page 134

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA2" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA2

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential
Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual
Facilities SpecialTax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any FiscalYearon anyAssessor's Parcelof Taxable
Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual
Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on
any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA2 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set
forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the SpecialTax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs
of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities
Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities
Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23l,A2, or any designee
thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 2

Page 135

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



23''A2, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA2, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow
account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include
amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23lA2 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually.

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23l,A2 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish
or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23''A2 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23lA2.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was
recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 136

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use categoryof Taxable Property, as shown in AttachmentA, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" mean s'J..80/o, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA2 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J,'J, and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of L2-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zOtI and as amended bythe City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 4

Page 137

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means propertywithin the boundaries of CFD No.23lA2 which (a) has been
designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,
the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are
authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA2.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable
Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Perm it Ready M ulti-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential
Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23l,A2, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot FinalSubdivision Maps within CFD No. 23',A2.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA2, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries
and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in
this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23l,A2.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No.23lA2, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No.'23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 138

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includesthe
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No.23 lA2

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA2, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23i'Az for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services SpecialTax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percenl (4%). ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 231A2 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any FiscalYear, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 6

Page 139

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23',A2 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201-1. and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OtI and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property bythe recordation of a Small Lot FinalSubdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA2 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23',A2 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 7

Page 140

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscalagent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA2 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA2
according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for FiscalYear202O-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July'J.,2021", the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.l. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 8

Page 141

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue setforth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any
Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax generated
by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable
Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M ulti-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any
remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater
than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 9

Page 142

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23l,A2,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all
Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA2.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.
Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 143

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 1L

Page 144

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the fullor partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map RemainderPropertyand Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 12

Page 145

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,
Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No, 23 lA2 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities
Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement,

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to lOO% of the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding
only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up lo tOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy
the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 13

Page 146

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up lo tO)% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities
Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVlCES SPECIAL TAX

A Services SpecialTax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23',A2 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July t,2O2t, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable
Property within CFD No. 231A2 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA2.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 147

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to L00% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA2 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA2 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 231A2 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 1-5

Page 148

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.L above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23',A2, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method
of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA2 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 16

Page 149

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of SpecialTaxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA2 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 IAZ Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA2
Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA2, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACITITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent SpecialTaxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23lA2 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 17

Page 150

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C above, lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax)from the date of prepayment through the Facilities SpecialTax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The presentvalue shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step l": Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA2, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 151

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 andT (the "Redemption

Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 19

Page 152

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed
prepayment, is at least 1.1- times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2, Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above
Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.l- above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above
F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency
that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA2 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 20

Page 153

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-202L to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 21"

Page 154

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2L\

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(z)

s2oo

200

200

200

200

200

103

103

103

103

103

103

s00

1,000

1,000

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

s3,886

3,57L

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,571,

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

L'J,,700

IL,7OO

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 22

Page 155

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyL,202l,theMaximumFacilitiesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbytheFacilitiesSpecialTaxEscalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) OneachJulyL,commencingonjuly!,2O2t,theMaximumServicesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbyanamountequal totheServices
SpecialTax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202r
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s2oo

103

s1,000

51,ooo

s1,000

2020-202t
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

S2,9oo

2,900

S11,7oo

S29,ooo

s29,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Categorv

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Propertv

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 156

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-202!l

On each July 1, commencing on July 7,2021, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect forthe previous Fiscal Year.

As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(2)

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 24

2020-202L
Minimum Facilities

pgysnus (rX3)

5o

986,000

0

0

59,670

s1,045,670

2020-202L
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 1"x P31g(rxz)

s2,900

2,900

30,000

Lt,700

1,L,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

0

340

0.0

0.0

5.1

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoningt+l

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+l

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 157

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI-

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 16x P31s(rxz)

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 25

Page 158

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



AfiACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1-, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect forthe previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Special T3x g31s(rxz)

s_

5

s

s_

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 159

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2L)

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates set forth in this table.

(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page27

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

pgygnug (rXzX+)

s_

s

2020-202L
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

pslg(rXzxa)

s

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(l)Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningtsl

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 160

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT D.3

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF'SPECIAL TAX
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

IATTACHED]

Resolution No. 10435
Pagel3ofl6

D-3-1

Page 161

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 3

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 3 (CFD No. 23

lA3) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property
within CFD No. 23l,A3, unless exempted by law or bythe provisions hereof, shall be taxed forthe purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured rolldata, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,
condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal
to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Active-Adult Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Residential Property which has a restriction
recorded against title of the Assessor's Parcel that limits occupancy of the Residential Unit on the
Assessor's Parcel to residents above a certain age. The Maximum Services Special Tax Rate for Active-
Adult Property shall be assigned in accordance with Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment. There are no Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate adjustments for Assessor's Parcels classified as Active-Adult
Property.

"Assessor's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots
or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 1-

Page 162

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA3 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23lAg Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible
for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"CFD No. 23 lA3" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA3.

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential
Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual
Facilities SpecialTax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA3 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set
forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors'Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall
also be designated as Exempt Property.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 2

Page 163

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 l43, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

23i,A3, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%\ annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities SpecialTax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 164

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means 1,.80To, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA3 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zOtI and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 4

Page 165

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201.1. and as amended bythe City Council.

"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA3 which (a) has been
designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition andf or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable
Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel, The City shall
have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential
Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23lA3, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA3, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries
and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 166

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.)within CFD No.23 lA3.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23''A3, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,
which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency,

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential
FloorArea for a residentialstructure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 6

Page 167

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



exceed four percenl (4%). ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated
by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator.

"Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units perAcre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J.1" and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-
family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J.1, and as amended by the City
Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to iune 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 7

Page 168

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



pursuantto California CivilCode 1352, thatcreates individual lotsforwhich building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No.23 lA3 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA3 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflectthe actual propertytax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the FiscalYearthat the Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property not classified as Developed
Property, SmallLot FinalMap Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA3 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual SpecialTax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be equalto or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described
below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O2O-2O2L is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 8

Page 169

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



On each July L, commencing on July I,202'J., the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the
revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the totalcurrent Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 9

Page 170

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximurn Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23',A3,
whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA3.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 171

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set
forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.
Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set
forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated
to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax
Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if allof
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any
remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 1L

Page 172

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed
Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-ResidentialProperty created
from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 1,2

Page 173

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small
Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum
of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
SpecialTax is equalto the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,
Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall
determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities
Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The
Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property forthe entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding
only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Large Lot Property forthe entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 13

Page 174

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy
the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all
SmallLot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax
Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities
Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPE CIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July I,2021., the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be
increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 1"4

Page 175

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

Special Tax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to L00% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services SpecialTax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 1,OO% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENClES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No.23 lA3 Facilities Special Tax

levied against anyAssessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 15

Page 176

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by
the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until
the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable
Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public
Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,
and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bo nds within CFD No. 23i'A3, the City may perm it the transfe r
of Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision
Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1)all adjustments are agreed to in
writing bythe affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2)there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method
of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 16

Page 177

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



No. 23 lA3 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any
vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the SpecialTax with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the SpecialTaxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of SpecialTaxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA3 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special
Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City
Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 l43, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
March 26,2020

Page 17

Page 178

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and
permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA3 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of
redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step L: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in
Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended
by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment
Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 18

Page 179

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step l-: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step l- of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA3, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding
any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,
on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in
the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet
been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived
by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the Indenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant
to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment
Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 19

Page 180

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the
"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or allof the current propertytax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities SpecialTax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

R.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above
Section K.1"; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.L above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above
F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency
that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 l43 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities SpecialTax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities SpecialTax obligation equalto
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 20

Page 181

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least L.L times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
SpecialTaxes) in each FiscalYear.

L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities SpecialTax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax
shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 202O-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 21"

Page 182

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 3

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O20-2O2LI

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate: Active-
Adult Property(2)3)

s1o0

100

100

100

100

100

40

40

40

40

40

40

500

1,000

1,000

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

Si_7s

L75

t75

175

!75

L75

L25

L25

125

125

125

125

500

1,000

1,000

2020-202t
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

s3,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,57L

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

LT,700

L]-,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,000 -2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 22

Page 183

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 3

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-202!l

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July 7,202L, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor
of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July 1-,2027, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services Special Tax

Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) Taxable Property designated as Active-Adult Property shall be assigned a separate Maximum Services Special Tax Rate.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate: Active-
Adult ProPerty(z)a)

sloo
40

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

S17s

125

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

s1,000

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

s2,900

2,90O

S11,7oo

518,000

$18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 184

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI.

On each July 1, commencing on July t,202t, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous FiscalYear.
As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property-SF/SFHD Zoning and
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(21

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
March 26,2020

Page 24

2020-202L
Minimum Facilities

p"u"nus (rxr)

S3,097,200

455,300

0

0

0

S3,552,500

2020-202t
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsx P31g(r)(z)

Sz,900

2,900

30,000

L1,,700

1-1,,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

1,068

157

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 185

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Special 13x P61s(rxz)

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,Lgg

2,400 -2,799
2,000-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 25

Page 186

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI.

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates will be inserted followingthe Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect forthe previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x q31s(rxz)

s

s

s

s

Residential
Fl6or Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Propertv

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 187

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
( ) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property

- SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page27

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

flgygnug (rxzxc)

f

s

2020-202L
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

pslg(rxzxr)

s_

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(l)Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(st

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 188

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT D.4

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 4

[ATTACHED]

Resolution No. 10435
Page 14 of l6

D-4-1

Page 189

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 4

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 4 (CFD No. 23

lA4) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23l.A4 Administrator through

the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 23lA4, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured rolldata, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessor's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA4.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA4 under the Act.

"CFD No. 231A4 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 1

Page 190

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA4" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4.

"City" means the City of Folsom.

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23lA4.

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA4 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors'Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 231A4, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 2

Page 191

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



231,A4, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA4, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23''A4 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23l,A4 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the

City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit

enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23i,A4 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23lA4.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30

"lndenture" means the indenturq, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from

time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each FiscalYear, allTaxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of june 30 of the previous FiscalYear.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family

Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 192

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services SpecialTax" means the total maximum annualServices SpecialTax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means L8O%o, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,

that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA4 Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OtL and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential

land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the

Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcelwith a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units perAcre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011. and as amended bythe City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 4

Page 193

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 231A4 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or {b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably

offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition andlor construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA4.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements

have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Pa rcel as Permit Ready M ulti-Family/Non-Residentia I Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23|lA4, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the

future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 231A4.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated

average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA4, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries

and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services SpecialTax levy to the Maximum Services SpecialTax is equal for all Assessors'Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 231A4.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23,A4, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 194

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No, 23 lA4

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection

schedules (whether bythe City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA4, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 231A4 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services SpecialTax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the

Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percenl (4%). ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equalto zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23llA4 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O

Page 6

Page 195

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the

CFD No. 231A4 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011. and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of L-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20I'J. and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property bythe recordation of a Small Lot FinalSubdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"state" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA4 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23l,A4 SpecialTax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 7

Page 196

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to

the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of

Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to

be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the FiscalYear that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscalagent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, SmallLot FinalMap Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development

plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA4 shall be designated as either

Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA4

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be equalto orgreaterthan
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for FiscalYear2O2O-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this

Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July I,2021, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum

Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 8

Page 197

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue setforth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by allof the Taxable Property is greaterthan or equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased untilthe sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M ulti-Fa mily/Non-Residentia I Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development forthe Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 9

Page 198

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23l,A4,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA4.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page L0

Page 199

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax
Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 1L

Page 200

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates forthe Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is noteliminated bythefullor partial prepaymentof the EffectiveTax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 1,2

Page 201

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

FacilitiesSpecialTaxshall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Propertyforthe entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up lo lOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 13

Page 202

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

SmallLot FinalMap Propertyata rate upto 100%of the EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up Io 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first foUr steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA4 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July L, commencing on July '1.,2021, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23iA4 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shallfirst be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA4.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 14

Page 203

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the

amount of Services SpecialTax equals the Services SpecialTax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 1OO% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order

to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to IOO% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the

three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in orderto satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA4 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA4 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than

ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23lA4 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the

Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or

dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 15

Page 204

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this

may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to

be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.l- above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to

the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A4, the City may permit the transfer

of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from

one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to anotherAssessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from one Assessor's Parcel to another

Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction

in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment

to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method

of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA4 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the

interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 16

Page 205

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal, The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
laterthan one calendaryear after having paid the SpecialTaxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA4 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA4
Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure
shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA4, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent SpecialTaxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23i'A4 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 17

Page 206

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax described in

Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the

calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the

Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step L: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum

Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA4, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes)that could be charged in the

current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 207

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount

of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest

redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the

reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the

redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 andT (the "Redemption

Amount"),

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or allof the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the

Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the

Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the

amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O

Page 19

Page 208

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1".1" times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTaxes) in each FiscalYear.

R.2. Prepayment in Part

The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following

formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the

Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially

prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the

lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No, 23 l44 that there has been a partial prepayment of the

Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial

prepayment, is at least 1.1- times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year,

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 20

Page 209

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 21,

Page 210

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 4

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2L}

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s2os

205

205

205

205

205

140

!40

140

140

1-40

140

s00

1,000

1,000

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

s3,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

11,,700

1,1,,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,000-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 22

Page 211

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 4

Maximum Special Tax Rates

{Fisca I Y ear 202O-2OZLI

(1) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyL,2O2l,theMaximumFacilitiesSpecialTaxRatesshall beincreasedbytheFacilitiesSpecial TaxEscalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect forthe previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July 1,202'J-, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(z)

520s

140

S1,ooo

S1,1oo

S1,1oo

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

52,900

2,900

S11,7oo

s20,ooo

S2o,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 212

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

On each July 1, commencing on July t,2O2t, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect forthe previous Fiscal Year.

As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(21

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 24

2020-202L
Minimum Facilities

pgygnug (rX3)

S1,061,400

727,900

0

0

0

S1,789,300

2020-202t
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x P31s(rxz)

S2,9oo

2,900

30,000

1,L,700

11,,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

355

251

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+t

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+t

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 213

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2L\

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x P31g(rxz)

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,1_99

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,1_99

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M M D Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 25

Page 214

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

(2)

ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 {Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x P31s(rxz)

s

s_
5

s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 215

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property * SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2O2O

Page 27

2020-2021
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

pgygllug (rXzX+)

s_

s

2020-2021
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

psls(rXzxa)

s

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(l)Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(st

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningtsl

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 216

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT D-5

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 5

IATTACHED]

Resolution No. 10435

Page 15 of 16

D-5-1

Page 217

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 5

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 5 (CFD No. 23

lA5) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 23iAs, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessor's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September l-'t in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA5 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 1

Page 218

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA5" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Councilof the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No.23 lA5

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential
Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based
upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual
Facilities SpecialTax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable
Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual
Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on
any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA5 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set
forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the SpecialTax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall
also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs
of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities
Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities
SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 l45, or any designee
thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 2

Page 219

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



23 lA5, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA5, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow
account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include
amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA5 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA5 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish
or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was
recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) tlrereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 220

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Services SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any
Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annualServices SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property,

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" mean s I.8OYo, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA5 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any
Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

".MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could
be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described
in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zOIt and as amended by the City Council.
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-
residentialland use, onlythat portion of an Assessor's Parceldesignated for residential land use shall
be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20LL and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 4

Page 221

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easementorother restriction required bythe City limitingthe use of such propertyto open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23 lA5, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot FinalSubdivision Maps within CFD No.23 lA5.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA5, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries

and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services SpecialTax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors'Parcels
within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final N4ap Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 222

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or

similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA5

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA5, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA5 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services SpecialTax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the

Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percenl (4%). ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA5 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to

the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any FiscalYear, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 6

Page 223

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator.

"Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2ott and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-
family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density propertywith a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units perAcre, which is morefully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J.'J. and as amended by the City
Council.

"Special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does
not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision
Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

"Taxable Property" means allof the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No.23 lA5 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA5 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 7

Page 224

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current FiscalYear. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the FiscalYear that the Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA5

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be equalto orgreaterthan
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described
below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July L,202L, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created
from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 8

Page 225

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any
Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the totalcurrent Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is greater
than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 9

Page 226

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,
Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23l,A5,
whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA5.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.
Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 227

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set
forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax
Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 11

Page 228

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page L2

Page 229

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for,any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,
Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax, The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up lo 1,OO% of the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding
only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up Io \OO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax in orderto satisfy
the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 13

Page 230

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up lo tOO% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities
Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA5 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July'J.,2021,, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable
Property within CFD No. 23 lA5 and the Facilities SpecialTax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 231

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each FiscalYear as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to L00% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 1,OO% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services SpecialTax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA5 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any
Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA5 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in

the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 15

Page 232

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcelof Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of allAssessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.l- above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA5, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is
transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method
of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA5 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 16

Page 233

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake

the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the SpecialTax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA5 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator's decision relative to the

appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA5

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA5, may, at the sole discretion of the

City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities SpecialTax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA5 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 17

Page 234

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step L: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax)
shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax)from the date of prepayment through the Facilities SpecialTax
Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended
by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equalto the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment
Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step l- of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA5, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding
any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 235

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 andT (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the
"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or allof the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 19

Page 236

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.l- above
F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA5 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTaxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 20

Page 237

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



L. TERM OF SPECIAT TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 2'L

Page 238

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2L}

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s16s

165

165

165

165

165

85

85

85

85

85

85

500

l_,000

1,000

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

53,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,571_

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

tr,700

1,L,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 22

Page 239

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fiscal Y ear 2020-2O2Ll

(1) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyL,2O2I,theMaximumFacilitiesSpecialTaxRatesshall beincreasedbytheFacilitiesSpecialTaxEscalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect forthe previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July L,2021, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services

SpecialTax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s16s

85

S1,ooo

5i.,ooo

S1,ooo

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

S2,9oo

2,900

S11,7oo

52o,ooo

52o,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 240

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-202L1

On each July 1, commencing on july L,2O2L, the Developed Property Maximum F

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor ofthe

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranc

acilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year'

As a result of future Assessor's parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

Developed property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.

The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations

being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

March 26,2020
Page 24

2020-202L
Minimum Facilities

psysnus (rxr)

S806,2oo

1,L62,900

291,000

208,260

274,950

s2,743,3L0

2020-202L
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
Special 1sx Psls(rxz)

s2,9oo

2,900

30,000

1_1,700

1,L,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

278

40L

9.7

L7.8

23.5

Land Use

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(at

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+l

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I ProPertY

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

lmprovement Area 5

h)
Page 241

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI.

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x P31s(rxz)

s_

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,1_99

2,400 -2,799
2,OOO -2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,000-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M M D Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 25

Page 242

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effectforthe previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciallsx P31s(rxz)

s

s_

s_
5_

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 243

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenueto be inserted followingthe EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates set forth in this table.

(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 27

2020-202r
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

psysnug (lxzxa)

5

s

2020-2021
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

p"1"(rXzXr)

5

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(1)Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(sl

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 244

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT D.6

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 6

[ATTACHED]

Resolution No. 10435
Page 16 of l6

D-6-1

Page 245

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 5

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 6 (CFD No. 23

146) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 146 Administratbr through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property
within CFD No. 231A6, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,
condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal
to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,
Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessorrs Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots
or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 146.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 146 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible
for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and
providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 1-

Page 246

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA6" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA6.

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities SpecialTax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 146 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23l,A6, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 2

Page 247

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



231'A6, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA6 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 146 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No, 23 146 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA6.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following iune 30

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each FiscalYear, allTaxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 248

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on
any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" mean s I.8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 146 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

'MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could
be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described
in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J.'J. and as amended by the City Council.
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall
be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J.I and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 4

Page 249

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 146 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot FinalSubdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,
the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 146.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable
Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall
have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Pa rcel as Perm it Ready M ulti-Fa mily/Non-Residentia I Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential
Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23|,A6, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot FinalSubdivision Maps within CFD No. 23l,A6.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

146, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries
and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in
this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23lA6.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23l,A6, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 250

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,
which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residentialstructure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 146

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services SpecialTax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 146 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services SpecialTax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percenl (4%). ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in
any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 146 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any FiscalYear, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 6

Page 251

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services SpecialTaxes levied in the previous FiscalYear; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator.

"Singfe-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2O'J.I and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable
Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-
family property with a permitted density range of L-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high
density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201"I and as amended by the City
Council.

"Special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does
not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision
Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.)or recordation of a condominium plan
pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means allof the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 146 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 146 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 7

Page 252

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current FiscalYear. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASS]GNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 146 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 146

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be equalto or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described
below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for FiscalYear2020-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July L, commencing on July 1,2021", the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created
from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2O2O

Page 8

Page 253

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the totalcurrent Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M ulti-Fa m ily/Non-Residentia I Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2020

Page 9

Page 254

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23l,A6,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 146.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 255

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 1L

Page 256

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development forthe Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the fullor partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 12

Page 257

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

SpecialTax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 1-00% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up Io lOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 13

Page 258

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 1"00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to lOO% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Mbximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to allTaxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA6 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July I,2O2I, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 231A6 and the Facilities SpecialTax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 146.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 259

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the

amount of Services SpecialTax equals the Services SpecialTax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services SpecialTax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 l46 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

FiscalYear, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 146 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 15

Page 260

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23'A6, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method
of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 146 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPR ATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 16

Page 261

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method

of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not

later than one calendar year after having paid the SpecialTaxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the SpecialTaxes are in error.

The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

146 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 l46 Administrator's decision relative to the

appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the SpecialTax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 146

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No, 23 146, may, at the sole discretion of the

City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner

as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF LITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent SpecialTaxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

231,A6 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 17

Page 262

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above, lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in
Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment
Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equalthe Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step L: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA6, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current FiscalYear if allTaxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 263

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived
by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4,and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or allof the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 19

Page 264

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTaxes) in each FiscalYear.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1-; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.L above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.L above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 l46 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least l-.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTaxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 20

Page 265

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 21

Page 266

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 6

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s17s

175

175

175

175

175

85

85

85

85

85

85

300

300

0

2020-202t
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

S3,886

3,57L

3,559

3, 293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,57t

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

30,000

30,000

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,000-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,OO0-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 22

Page 267

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 6

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyL,202t,theMaximumFacilitiesspecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbytheFacilitiesSpecialTaxEscalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July 'J-, 202L, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) Excludes Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property zoned for non-residential land use.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

S17s

85

Sgoot't

Ssoo

Ssoo

2020-202!
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

s2,900

2,900

Si_i_,700

53o,ooo

53o,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 268

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-202L1

On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2021-, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(2)

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 24

2020-2021
Minimum Facilities

p"u"11ug (rX3)

so

0

285,000

1_08,810

133,380

Sszl,tgo

2020-202t
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x P31g(rxz)

s2,900

2,900

30,000

1,L,700

1,1,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

0

0

9.5

9.3

L1..4

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+t

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 269

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Special 1sx Pslg(rxz)

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400 -2,799
2,000-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 25

Page 270

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

(2)

ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2L}

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Special 13x P31s(rxz)

s_

s

s_
s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 271

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilifies Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July l-, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates set forth in this table.

(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2020

Page 27

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

psygnus (rX2Xc)

s_

s_

2020-202L
Developed Propefi
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

9"1"(rXzXr)

5

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(l)Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(st

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(s)

M M D M ulti-Family Attached Property

M HD M ulti-Family Attached Property

Non-Reside ntia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 272

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 273

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10436

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DEEMING IT NBCBSSARY TO INCUR BONDED INDBBTEDNESS

WITHIN IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1 OF CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIBS DISTRICT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these

proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10414 and No. 10415 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on April 14, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 26,2020, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the formation of the proposed City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and designation of the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I (the "Improvement Atea"),
said public hearing of protests was duly convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly
heard all interested parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing, the City Council determined that a majority protest under
Section 53324 of the Government Code was not made at the hearing for the Improvement Area
and therefore the proposed formation of the District, designation of the Improvement Area and

special tax to be levied within the Improvement Area has not been eliminated by majority protest
pursuant to said Section 53324;

NOW, THEREFORB, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council now deems it necessary to incur the contemplated bonded

indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section3. The purpose for incurring the bonded indebtedness is to assist in the

financing of the public facilities and services described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes

Therein adopted this date (the "Resolution of Formation").

Section 4. All Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-1 of the Resolution of
Formation) within the boundaries of the Improvement Area shall be subject to a special tax to
repay the bonded indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 5. Subject to the requirements of the Resolution of Formation and this
resolution, the amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, and the amount and timing of each

issuance of bonds, shall be subject to the discretion of this City Council; provided that the
maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the improvement Area is

$76,000,000.

Resolution No. 10436
Page I of3

Page 274

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 6. The maximum term of any issue of bonds under this authority shall not
extend beyond 40 years from their date ofissue.

Section 7. The maximum rate of interest shall be determined by competitive sale or by
negotiation at the time of bond sale, but in any case shall not exceed the legal rate as specified,
from time to time, by Government Code Section 53531 or any similar controlling provision of law.

Section 8. It is the intention of this City Council that any bonds issued may be made

callable on terms to be specified in any resolution or indenture providing for the form, execution
and issuance of bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 (the "Act").

Section 9. The question of the authorization to issue the bonds described herein and

incur the bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area will be submitted to the

voters of the Improvement Area at a special election in accordance with the Act and with the

findings contained in the certificate regarding landowners heretofore filed in these proceedings.

Section 10. The City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk") is hereby designated

as the official to conduct a special, mailed-ballot election related to the Improvement Area pursuant
to Elections Code Sections 307 and320.

Section I 1. The special community facilities district election for the Improvement Area
(which shall be consolidated with the special community facilities district election to levy a special

tax within the Improvement Area) shall be conducted by mailed ballot. In order to be counted,

ballots must be returned to, and be physically received by the City Clerk before 6:00 p.m. on May
26,2020. If all authorized ballots are received prior to that time, the City Clerk shall be so notified
and, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d), immediately close the election and declare

the results.

Section 12. The ballot language shall be as follows:

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for by
Improvement Area No. 1 (the "Imptovement Area") in a maximum amount
not to exceed $76,000,000 and levy a special tax in the Improvement Area
to finance public facilities and services by and through the District and shall
the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21

be established in the amount of $15,900,000, all as specified in the City's
"Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District, to Designate
Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein"
and "Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness
within Improvement Area No. I of City of Folsorn Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of the

City on May 26,2020?

Section 13. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10436
Page 2 of 3

Page 275

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Resolution No. 10436
Page 3 of3

Page 276

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 277

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10437

A RESOLUTION OF THB CITY COUNCIL OF THB CITY OF FOLSOM
DEEMING IT NECESSARY TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

WITHIN IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2 OF CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10414 and No. 10415 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on April 14, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 26,2020, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the formation of the proposed City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and designation of the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 (the "Improvement Area"),
said public hearing of protests was duly convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly
heard all interested parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing, the City Council determined that a majority protest under
Section 53324 of the Government Code was not made at the hearing for the Improvement Area
and therefore the proposed formation of the District, designation of the Improvement Area and
special tax to be levied within the Improvement Area has not been eliminated by majority protest
pursuant to said Section 53324;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows:

Section 1

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council now deems it necessary to incur the contemplated bonded
indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section3. The purpose for incurring the bonded indebtedness is to assist in the
financing of the public facilities and services described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes
Therein adopted this date (the "Resolution of Formation").

Section 4. All Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-2 of the Resolution of
Formation) within the boundaries of the Improvement Area shall be subject to a special tax to
repay the bonded indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 5. Subject to the requirements of the Resolution of Formation and this
resolution, the amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, and the amount and timing of each

issuance of bonds, shall be subject to the discretion of this City Council; provided that the
maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area is

$36,000,000.

Resolution No. 10437
Page I of3

Page 278

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 6. The maximum term of any issue of bonds under this authority shall not
extend beyond 40 years from their date of issue.

Section 7. The maximum rate of interest shall be determined by competitive sale or by
negotiation at the time of bond sale, but in any case shall not exceed the legal rate as specified,
from time to time, by Government Code Section 53531 or any similar controlling provision of law.

Section 8. It is the intention of this City Council that any bonds issued may be made
callable on terms to be specified in any resolution or indenture providing for the form, execution
and issuance of bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 (the "Act").

Section 9. The question of the authorization to issue the bonds described herein and
incur the bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area will be submitted to the
voters of the Improvement Area at a special election in accordance with the Act and with the
findings contained in the certificate regarding landowners heretofore filed in these proceedings.

Section 10. The City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk") is hereby designated
as the official to conduct a special, mailed-ballot election related to the Improvement Area pursuant
to Elections Code Sections 307 and320.

Section I 1. The special community facilities district election for the Improvement Area
(which shall be consolidated with the special community facilities district election to levy a special
tax within the Improvement Area) shall be conducted by mailed ballot. In order to be counted,
ballots must be returned to, and be physically received by the City Clerk before 6:00 p.m. on May
26,2020. If all authorized ballots are received prior to that time, the City Clerk shall be so notified
and, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d), immediately close the election and declare
the results.

Section 12. The ballot language shall be as follows:

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for by
Improvement Area No. 2 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum amount
not to exceed $36,000,000 and levy a special tax in the Improvement Area
to finance public facilities and services by and through the District and shall
the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21
be established in the amount of $7,400,000, all as specified in the City's
"Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District, to Designate
Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein"
and "Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness
within Improvement Area No. 2 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of the
City on May 26,2020?

Section 13. This r"esolution shall take effect from and after its adoption

Resolution No. 10437
Page 2 of 3

Page 279

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of May 2020, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: CouncilMember(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Resolution No. 10437
Page 3 of3

Page 280

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 281

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10438

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DBEMING IT NECESSARY TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

WITHIN IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3 OF CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10414 and No. 10415 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on April 14, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 26,2020, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the formation of the proposed City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and designation of the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Improvement Atea"),
said public hearing of protests was duly convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly
heard all interested parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing, the City Council determined that a majority protest under
Section 53324 of the Government Code was not made at the hearing for the Improvement Area
and therefore the proposed formation of the District, designation of the Improvement Area and
special tax to be levied within the Improvement Area has not been eliminated by majority protest
pursuant to said Section 53324;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows

Section 1

and conect.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council now deems it necessary to incur the contemplated bonded
indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The purpose for incurring the bonded indebtedness is to assist in the
financing of the public facilities and services described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes
Therein adopted this date (the "Resolution of Formation").

Section 4. All Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-3 of the Resolution of
Formation) within the boundaries of the Improvement Area shall be subject to a special tax to
repay the bonded indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 5. Subject to the requirements of the Resolution of Formation and this
resolution, the amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, and the amount and timing of each

issuance of bonds, shall be subject to the discretion of this City Council; provided that the
maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area is

$ 124,000,000.

Resolution No. 10438
Page I of3

Page 282

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 6. The maximurn term of any issue of bonds under this authority shall not
extend beyond 40 years from their date ofissue.

Section 7. The maximum rate of interest sliall be determined by competitive sale or by
negotiation at the time of bond sale, but in any case shall not exceed the legal rate as specified,
from time to time, by Government Code Section 53531 or any similar controlling provision of law.

Section 8. It is the intention of this City Council that any bonds issued may be made
callable on terms to be specified in any resolution or indenture providing for the form, execution
and issuance of bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 (the "Act").

Section 9. The question of the authorization to issue the bonds described herein and
incur the bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area will be submitted to the
voters of the Improvement Area at a special election in accordance with the Act and with the
findings contained in the certificate regarding landowners heretofore filed in these proceedings.

Section 10. The City Clerk of the City ofFolsom (the "City Clerk") is hereby designated
as the official to conduct a special, mailed-ballot election related to the Improvement Area pursuant
to Elections Code Sections 307 and320.

Section 1 l. The special community facilities district election for the Improvement Area
(which shall be consolidated with the special community facilities district election to levy a special
tax within the Improvement Area) shall be conducted by mailed ballot. In order to be counted,
ballots must be returned to, and be physically received by the City Clerk before 6:00 p.m. on May
26,2020. If all authorized ballots are received prior to that time, the City Clerk shall be so notified
and, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d), immediately close the election and declare
the results.

Section 12. The ballot language shall be as follows:

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for by
Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum amount
not to exceed $124,000,000 and levy a special tax in the Improvement Area
to finance public facilities and services by and through the District and shall
the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21
be established in the amount of $25,200,000, all as specified in the City's
"Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District, to Designate
Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein"
and "Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness
within Improvement Area No. 3 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of the
City on May 26,2020?

Section 13. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10438
Page 2 of 3

Page 283

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Resolution No. 10438
Page 3 of3

Page 284

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 285

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10439

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DEEMING IT NECESSARY TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

WITHIN IMPROVBMENT AREA NO. 4 OF CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIBS DISTRICT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10414 and No. 10415 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on April 14, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 26, 2020, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the formation of the proposed City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and designation of the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4 (the "Improvement Area"),
said public hearing of protests was duly convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly
heard all interested parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing, the City Council determined that a majority protest under
Section 53324 of the Government Code was not made at the hearing for the Improvement Area
and therefore the proposed formation of the District, designation of the Improvement Area and

special tax to be levied within the Improvement Area has not been eliminated by majority protest
pursuant to said Section 53324;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council now deems it necessary to incur the contemplated bonded
indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The purpose for incurring the bonded indebtedness is to assist in the

financing of the public facilities and services described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes

Therein adopted this date (the "Resolution of Formation").

Section 4. All Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-4 of the Resolution of
Formation) within the boundaries of the Impr"ovement Area shall be subject to a special tax to
repay the bonded indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 5. Subject to the requirements of the Resolution of Formation and this
resolution, the amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, and the amount and timing of each

issuance of bonds, shall be subject to the discretion of this City Council; provided that the
maxirnum principal amount of bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area is
$64,000,000.

Resolution No. 10439
Page I of3

Page 286

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 6. The maximum term of any issue of bonds under this authority shall not
extend beyond 40 years from their date ofissue.

Section 7. The maximum rate of interest shall be determined by competitive sale or by
negotiation at the time of bond sale, but in any case shall not exceed the legal rate as specified,
fi'om time to time, by Government Code Section 53531 or any similar controlling provision of law.

Section 8. It is the intention of this City Council that any bonds issued may be made
callable on terms to be specified in any resolution or indenture providing for the form, execution
and issuance of bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 (the "Act").

Section 9. The question of the authorization to issue the bonds described herein and
incur the bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area will be submitted to the
voters of the Improvement Area at a special election in accordance with the Act and with the
findings contained in the certificate regarding landowners heretofore filed in these proceedings.

Section 10. The City Clerk ofthe City of Folsom (the "City Clerk") is hereby designated
as the official to conduct a special, mailed-ballot election related to the Improvement Areapursuant
to Elections Code Sections 301 and320.

Section I 1. The special community facilities district election for the Improvement Area
(which shall be consolidated with the special community facilities district election to levy a special
tax within the Improvement Area) shall be conducted by mailed ballot. In order to be counted,
ballots must be returned to, and be physically received by the City Clerk before 6:00 p.m. on May
26,2020. If all authorized ballots are received prior to that time, the City Clerk shall be so notified
and, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d), immediately close the election and declare
the results.

Section 12. The ballot language shall be as follows:

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for by
Improvement Area No. 4 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum amount
not to exceed $64,000,000 and levy a special tax in the Improvement Area
to finance public facilities and services by and through the District and shall
the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21
be established in the amount of $13,300,000, all as specified in the City's
"Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District, to Designate
Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein"
and "Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness
within Improvement Area No. 4 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of the
City on May 26,2020?

Section 13. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption

Resolution No. 10439
Page 2 of3

Page 287

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Resolution No. 10439
Page 3 of3

Page 288

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 6

Page 289

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. IO44O

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DEEMING IT NECESSARY TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

WITHIN IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 5 OF CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10414 and No. 10415 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on April 74,2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 26,2020, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the formation of the proposed City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and designation of the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5 (the "Improvement Area"),
said public hearing of protests was duly convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly
heard all interested parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing, the City Council determined that a majority protest under
Section 53324 of the Government Code was not made at the hearing for the Improvement Area
and therefore the proposed formation of the District, designation of the Improvement Area and
special tax to be levied within the Improvement Area has not been eliminated by majority protest
pursuant to said Section 53324;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows:

Section 1

and coruect.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council now deems it necessary to incur the contemplated bonded
indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The purpose for incurring the bonded indebtedness is to assist in the
financing of the public facilities and services described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes
Therein adopted this date (the "Resolution of Formation").

Section 4. All Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-5 of the Resolution of
Formation) within the boundaries of the Improvement Area shall be subject to a special tax to
repay the bonded indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 5. Subject to the requirements of the Resolution of Formation and this
resolution, the amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, and the amount and timing of each

issuance of bonds, shall be subject to the discretion of this City Council; provided that the
maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area is
$ 105,000,000.

Resolution No. I0440
Page I of3

Page 290

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 6. The maximum term of any issue of bonds under this authority shall not
extend beyond 40 years fiom tlieir date of issue.

Section 7. The maximum rate of interest shall be determined by competitive sale or by
negotiation at the time of bond sale, but in any case shall not exceed the legal rate as specified,
from time to time, by Government Code Section 53531 or any similar controlling provision of law.

Section 8. It is the intention of this City Council that any bonds issued may be made

callable on terms to be specified in any resolution or indenture providing for the fotm, execution
and issuance of bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 (the "Act").

Section 9. The question of the authorization to issue the bonds described herein and

incur the bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area will be submitted to the

voters of the Improvement Area at a special election in accordance with the Act and with the

findings contained in the certificate regarding landowners heretofore filed in these proceedings.

Section 10. The City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk") is hereby designated

as the official to conduct a special, mailed-ballot election related to the Improvement Area pursuant

to Elections Code Sections 307 and320.

Section 1 1. The special community facilities district election for the Improvement Area
(which shall be consolidated with the special community facilities district election to levy a special

tax within the Improvement Area) shall be conducted by mailed ballot. In order to be counted,

ballots must be returned to, and be physically received by the City Clerk before 6:00 p.m. on May
26,2020. If all authorized ballots are received prior to that time, the City Clerk shall be so notified
and, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d), immediately close the election and declare

the results.

Section 12. The ballot language shall be as follows:

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for by
Improvement Area No. 5 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum amount
not to exceed $ 105,000,000 and levy a special tax in the Improvement Area
to finance public facilities and services by and through the District and shall
the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21

be established in the amount of $21,600,000, all as specified in the City's
"Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District, to Designate
Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein"
and "Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness

within Improvement Area No. 5 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of the

City on May 26,2020?

Section 13. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption

Resolution No. 10440
Page 2 of 3

Page 291

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll call vote

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOFS: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Resolution No. 10440
Page 3 of3

Page 292

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 7

Page 293

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RBSOLUTION NO. IO44I

A RESOLUTION OF THB CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DEEMING IT NECESSARY TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

WITHIN IMPROVEMBNT AREA NO. 6 OF CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

WHEREAS, for the preliminary scope of the project and financing contemplated by these
proceedings, reference is made to Resolutions No. 10414 and No. 10415 adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council") on April 14,2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 26,2020, at the time and place scheduled for the public hearing
concerning the formation of the proposed City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and designation of the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6 (the "Improvement Area"),
said public hearing of protests was duly convened by the City Council, and the City Council duly
heard all interested parties desiring to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing, the City Council determined that a majority protest under
Section 53324 of the Government Code was not made at the hearing for the Improvement Area
and therefore the proposed formation of the District, designation of the Improvement Area and

special tax to be levied within the Improvement Area has not been eliminated by majority protest
pursuant to said Section 53324:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows:

Section I
and correct.

The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council now deems it necessary to incur the contemplated bonded
indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The purpose for incurring the bonded indebtedness is to assist in the
financing of the public facilities and services described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes

Therein adopted this date (the "Resolution of Formation").

Section 4. All Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-6 of the Resolution of
Formation) within the boundaries of the Improvement Area shall be subject to a special tax to
repay the bonded indebtedness for the Improvement Area.

Section 5. Subject to the requirements of the Resolution of Formation and this
resolution, the amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred, and the amount and timing of each

issuance of bonds, shall be subject to the discretion of this City Council; provided that the
maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area is

$17,000,000.

Resolution No. 10441
Page I of3

Page 294

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 6. The maximum term of any issue of bonds under this authority shall not
extend beyond 40 years from their date ofissue.

Section 7. The maximum rate of interest shall be determined by competitive sale or by
negotiation at the time of bond sale, but in any case shall not exceed the legal rate as specified,
from time to time, by Government Code Section 53531 or any similar controlling provision of law.

Section 8. It is the intention of this City Council that any bonds issued may be made

callable on terms to be specified in any resolution or indenture providing for the form, execution
and issuance of bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 (the "Act").

Section 9. The question of the authorization to issue the bonds described herein and

incur the bonded indebtedness to be paid for by the Improvement Area will be submitted to the

voters of the Improvement Area at a special election in accordance with the Act and with the

findings contained in the certificate regarding landowners heretofore filed in these proceedings.

Section 10. The City Clerk ofthe City ofFolsom (the "City Clerk") is hereby designated
as the official to conduct a special, mailed-ballot electionrelated to the Improvement Area pursuant
to Elections Code Sections 307 and320.

Section I 1. The special community facilities district election for the Improvement Area
(which shall be consolidated with the special community facilities district election to levy a special

tax within the Improvement Area) shall be conducted by mailed ballot. In order to be counted,

ballots must be returned to, and be physically received by the City Clerk before 6:00 p.m. on May
26,2020. If all authorized ballots are received prior to that time, the City Clerk shall be so notified
and, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d), immediately close the election and declare

the results.

Section 12. The ballot language shall be as follows:

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for by
Improvement Area No. 6 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum amount
not to exceed $17,000,000 and levy a special tax in the Improvement Area
to finance public facilities and services by and through the District and shall
the appropriations limit for the Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21
be established in the amount of $3,500,000, all as specified in the City's
"Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District, to Designate

Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein"
and "Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness

within Improvement Area No. 6 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of the
City on May 26,2020?

Section 13. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 1044 I
Page 2 of 3

Page 295

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Resolution No. 10441
Page 3 of3

Page 296

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 8

Page 297

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10442

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION IN THE CITY OF

FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District,
to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein (the

"Resolution of Formation") and to the Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded
Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. I of City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Resolution of Necessity"), each adopted by the City Council of the
City of Folsom (the "City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the levy of a special tax within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 (the "Improvement Area") proposed in
the Resolution of Formation shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code

Section 53326; and

WHEREAS, the authorization to issue bonded indebtedness proposed in the Resolution of
Necessity shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code Section 53351; and

WHEREAS, the setting of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters
pursuant to Government Code Section 53325.7; and

WHEREAS, the three ballot questions just described shall be combined into a single ballot
measure pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.5. The ballot language shall be as shown
on the form of ballot attached hereto as Exhibit A, which form of ballot is hereby approved; and

WHEREAS, a certificate relative to voters and a certificate regarding landowners have

been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Folsorn (the "City Clerk");

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, as follows

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. This City Council hereby accepts the certificate relative to voters heretofore
filed in these proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that there are no registered voters
residing within the boundaries of the Improvement Area. Accordingly, under Government Code

Section 53326(b) the qualified electors in this election shall be the landowners owning land within
the Improvement Area.

Section3. The City Council hereby accepts the certificate regarding landowners
heretofore filed in these proceedings and further finds, in accordance therewith, that the

landowners of record owning property within the Improvement Area are those set forth in the

attachment to the cerlificate regarding landowners and that the attachment correctly sets forth the

number of acres owned by each landowner and the number of votes to which each is entitled.

Resoh.rtion No. 10442
Page l of7 Page 298

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent
Shortening Tirne Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Proceedings and for Conducting
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. l, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The City Council finds
that the rights, procedures and time periods therein waived are solely for the protection of the
voters, may be waived under Government Code Section 53326(a) and Section 53327(b), and that
the waiver constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by any voter who has executed the form, of those
rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council accepts the Certificate of the City Clerk that 100% of the
voters eligible to vote in this election have delivered to the City Clerk properly executed waivers
in the form of Exhibit B.

Section 6. Accordingly, this City Council hereby calls the special election described
herein and sets May 26,2020 as the election day. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot. By attesting this resolution below, the City Clerk
indicates her concurrence to such date and to the waivers and consents described in Section 4

hereof.

Section 7. The City Clerk is directed to cause the ballots to be mailed or delivered, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to the landowners shown on the attachment to the certificate
regarding landowners. The City Clerk or her designee shall f,rll in the names of the landowners
and the number of votes to be cast on each ballot, according to the certificate regarding landowners,
before delivery or mailing.

Section 8. The City Clerk shall accept personal or mail delivery of the ballots at any
time up to 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020, plgvtdgd, that if all authorized ballots are received by the
City Clerk prior to that time, the City Clerk shall, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
immediately close the election and declare the results to the City Council.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10442
Page 2 of 7 Page 299

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10442
Page 3 of7 Page 300

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

FORM OF SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

This ballot is for the use of a

landowner owning land within City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement Area No. l.

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the

resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to
cast votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail
or in person, before 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the
City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X" OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT ASIIRE
Shall the City of Folsom Cornmunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for
by Improvement Area No. 1 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum
amount not to exceed $76,000,000 and levy a special tax in the
Improvement Area to finance public facilities and services by and
through the District and shall the appropriations limit for the
Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21 be established in the amount
of $ts,900,000, all as specified in the City's "Resolution to Form a
Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within
the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein" and "Resolution
Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within
Improvement Area No. I of City of Folsorn Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of
the City on May 26,2020?

A-1
Resolution No. l0442
Page 4 of 7

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Page 301

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) of the above-named landowner
and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named

landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of May 26,2020.

ILANDOWNERI

By:

Name:

Title

Resolution No. 10442
Page 5 of7

A-2

Page 302

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMTINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. I

The undersigned , is the owner or authorized representative of the

owner of Assessor's Parcel No(s). within the above-captioned
Improvement Area No. 1 (the "Improvement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorized to cast

the ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the
Improvement Area to determine, among other things, whether certain land, including land owned
by the above-referenced owner, shall be subject to an annual special tax.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods relative to the election pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation
and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and
against, under the authority of Government Code Secti on 53327 (b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement
to publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4l 01, and
agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code
Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, liereby waives any right to
notice and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authorized services, expenses and rate and
method of apportionment of special tax as described in the Resolution to Form a Comrnunity
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes
Therein to be adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom on May 26,2020.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
defects in notice or procedure in the formation of the District, designation of the Improvement

Resolution No. 10442
Page 6 of 7

B-1

Page 303

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Area, time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election, whether known or
unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that the election is
being expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and request of the
above-referenced owner.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any

entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings,
to challenge any aspect of the proceedings for levy of the special tax and for issuance of bonded

indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the

foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on 2020

ILANDOWNER]

By

Name:

Title

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an officer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing party is different from the
name of the property owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
property owner(s) or evidence of name change.

B-2
Resolution No. 10442

Pagel of7
Page 304

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 9

Page 305

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RBSOLUTION NO. 10443

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION IN THE CITY OF

FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District,
to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein (the

"Resolution of Formation") and to the Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded
Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 2 of City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Resolution of Necessity"), each adopted by the City Council of the
City of Folsom (the "City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the levy of a special tax within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 (the "Improvement Area") proposed in
the Resolution of Formation shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code
Section 53326;and

WHEREAS, the authorization to issue bonded indebtedness proposed in the Resolution of
Necessity shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code Section 53351; and

WHEREAS, the setting of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters
pursuant to Government Code Section 53325.7; and

WHEREAS, the three ballot questions just described shall be combined into a single ballot
measure pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.5. The ballot language shall be as shown
on the form of ballot attached hereto as Exhibit A, which form of ballot is hereby approved; and

WHEREAS, a certificate relative to voters and a certificate regarding landowners have
been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk");

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, as follows:

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct

Section 2. This City Council hereby accepts the certificate relative to voters heretofore
filed in these proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that there are no registered voters
residing within the boundaries of the Improvement Area. Accordingly, under Government Code
Section 53326(b) the qualified electors in this election shall be the landowners owning land within
the Improvement Area.

Section3. The City Council hereby accepts the certificate regarding landowners
heretofore filed in these proceedings and further finds, in accordance therewith, that the
landowners of record owning property within the Improvement Area are those set forth in the
attachment to the certificate regarding landowners and that the attachment correctly sets forth the
number of acres owned by each landowner and the number of votes to which each is entitled.

Resolution No. 10443
Page I of7

Page 306

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent
Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Ploceedings and for Conducting
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The City Council finds
that the rights, procedures and time periods therein waived are solely for the protection of the
voters, rnay be waived under Government Code Section 53326(a) and Section 53327(b), and that
the waiver constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by any voter who has executed the form, of those
rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council accepts the Certificate of the City Clerk that 100o/o of the
voters eligible to vote in this election have delivered to the City Clerk properly executed waivers
in the form of Exhibit B.

Section 6. Accordingly, this City Council hereby calls the special election described
herein and sets May 26,2020 asthe election day. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot. By attesting this resolution below, the City Clerk
indicates her concurrence to such date and to the waivers and consents described in Section 4

hereof.

Section 7. The City Clerk is directed to cause the ballots to be mailed or delivered, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to the landowners shown on the attachment to the certificate
regarding landowners. The City Clerk or her designee shall fill in the names of the landowners
and the number of votes to be cast on each ballot, according to the certificate regarding landowners,
before delivery or mailing.

Section 8.. The City Clerk shall accept personal or mail delivery of the ballots at any
time up to 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020, plovlded, that if all authorized ballots are received by the
City Clerk prior to that time, the City Clerk shall, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
immediately close the election and declare the results to the City Council.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10443
Page 2 of 7

Page 307

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020by the following roll-call vote

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10443
Page3 of7 Page 308

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

FORM OF SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

This ballot is for the use of , &

landowner owning land within City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2.

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the

resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to
cast votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail
or in person, before 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the

City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X" OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MBASURE
Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for
by Improvement Area No. 2 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum
amount not to exceed $36,000,000 and levy a special tax in the
Improvement Area to finance public facilities and services by and

through the District and shall the appropriations limit for the
Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21 be established in the amount
of $7,400,000, all as specified in the City's "Resolution to Form a

Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within
the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein" and "Resolution
Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within
Improvement Area No. 2 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of
the City on May 26,2020?

A-l
Resolution No. 10443

Page 4 of 7

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Page 309

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) of the above-named landowner
and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named
landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of May 26,2020.

ILANDOWNERI

Name:

Title:

Resolution No. 10443
Page 5 of7

By

A-2

Page 310

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

The undersigned is the owner or authorized representative of the
owner of Assessot's Parcel No(s) within the above-captioned
Improvement Area No. 2 (the "Improvement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorized to cast
the ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the
Improvement Area to determine, among other things, whether certain land, including land owned
by the above-referenced owner, shall be subject to an annual special tax.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods relative to the election pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation
and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and
against, under the authority of Government Code Section 53327(b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement
to publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-reflerenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4101, and
agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code
Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any right to
notice and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authorized services, expenses and rate and
method of apportionment of special tax as described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes
Therein to be adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom on May 26,2020.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, heleby waives any and all
defects in notice ol procedure in the formation of the District, designation of the Improvement
Area, time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election, whether known or

Resolution No. 10443 
B- I

Page 6 of 1
Page 311

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that the election is
beirig expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and request of the
above-referenced owner.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any
entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings,
to challenge any aspect ofthe proceedings for levy ofthe special tax and for issuance ofbonded
indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on 2020.

ILANDOWNER]

By:

Name

Title:

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an officer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing party is different from the
name of the property owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
property owner(s) or evidence of name change.

Resolution No. 10443
PageT of7

B-2

Page 312

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 10

Page 313

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10444

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING SPBCIAL MAILED.BALLOT ELECTION IN THE CITY OF

FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District,
to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein (the

"Resolution of Formation") and to the Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded
Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 3 of City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Resolution of Necessity"), each adopted by the City Council of the

City of Folsom (the "City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the levy of a special tax within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Improvement Area") proposed in
the Resolution of Formation shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code

Section 53326;and

WHEREAS, the authorization to issue bonded indebtedness proposed in the Resolution of
Necessity shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code Section 53351; and

WHEREAS, the setting of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters
pursuant to Government Code Section 53325.7; and

WHBREAS, the three ballot questions just described shall be combined into a single ballot
measure pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.5. The ballot language shall be as shown
on the form of ballot attached hereto as Exhibit A which form of ballot is hereby approved; and

WHEREAS, a certificate relative to voters and a cerlificate regarding landowners have

been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk");

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, as follows

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. This City Council hereby accepts the certificate relative to voters heretofore
filed in these proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that there are no registered voters
residing within the boundaries of the Improvement Area. Accordingly, under Government Code

Section 53326(b) the qualified electors in this election shall be the landowners owning land within
the Improvement Area.

Section3. The City Council hereby accepts the certificate regarding landowners
heretofore filed in these proceedings and further finds, in accordance therewith, that the

landowners of record owning property within the Improvement Area are those set forth in the

attachment to the certificate regarding landowners and that the attachment correctly sets forth the

number of acres owned by each landowner and the number of votes to which each is entitled.

Resolution No. 10444
Page I of7

Page 314

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent

Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Proceedings and for Conducting
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The City Council finds
that the rights, procedures and time periods therein waived are solely for the protection of the

voters, may be waived under Government Code Section 53326(a) and Section 53327(b), and that
the waiver constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by any voter who has executed the form, of those

rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council accepts the Certificate of the City Clerk that l00% of the

voters eligible to vote in this election have delivered to the City Clerk properly executed waivers
in the form of Exhibit B.

Section 6. Accordingly, this City Council hereby calls the special election described

herein and sets May 26,2020 asthe election day. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),

the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot. By attesting this resolution below, the City Clerk
indicates her concurrence to such date and to the waivers and consents described in Section 4

hereof.

Section 7. The City Clerk is directed to cause the ballots to be mailed or delivered, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to the landowners shown on the attachment to the certificate
regarding landowners. The City Clerk or her designee shall fill in the names of the landowners
and the number of votes to be cast on each ballot, according to the certificate regarding landowners,
before delivery or mailing.

Section 8. The City Clerk shall accept personal or mail delivery of the ballots at any

time up to 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020, provided, that if all authorized ballots are received by the

City Clerk prior to that time, the City Clerk shall, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
immediately close the election and declare the results to the City Council.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10444
Page 2 of 7

Page 315

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10444
Page 3 of7

Page 316

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

FORM OF SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

This ballot is for the use of , a

landowner owning land within City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3.

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the
resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to
cast votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail
or in person, before 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the
City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X" OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MEASURE
Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for
by Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum
amount not to exceed $124,000,000 and levy a special tax in the
Improvement Area to finance public facilities and services by and
through the District and shall the appropriations limit for the
Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21 be established in the amount
of $zs,zoo,000, all as specified in the City's "Resolution to Form a
Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within
the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein" and "Resolution
Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within
Improvement Area No. 3 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of
the City on May 26,2020?

A-1
Resolution No. 10444
Page 4 of7

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Page 317

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) of the above-named landowner
and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named
landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of May 26,2020.

[LANDOWNER]

By:

Name

Title:

Resolution No. 10444
Page 5 of7

A-2

Page 318

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

The undersigned is the owner or authorized representative of the
owner of Assessor's Parcel No(s). within the above-captioned
Improvement Area No. 3 (the "lmprovement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorized to cast

the ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the
Improvement Area to determine, among other things, whether ceftain land, including land owned
by the above-referenced owner, shall be subject to an annual special tax.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods relative to the election pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation
and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and
against, under the authority of Government Code Section 53327(b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement
to publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4101 , and
agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the leturn of mailed ballots contained in Government Code
Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any right to
notice and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authorized services, expenses and rate and
method of apportionment of special lax as described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes
Therein to be adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom on May 26,2020.

The undersigned, on belialf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
defects in notice or procedure in the formation of the District, designation of the Improvement
Area, time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election, whether known or

B-l
Resolution No. 10444
Page 6 of7 Page 319

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that the election is
being expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and request of the
above-referenced owner.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any

entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings,
to challenge any aspect ofthe proceedings for levy ofthe special tax and for issuance ofbonded
indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the

foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on 2020

ILANDOWNERI

Name

Title:

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an officer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing party is different from the
name of the properfy owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
property orvner(s) or evidence of name change.

By

Resolution No. 10444
Page 7 of7

B-2

Page 320

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 11

Page 321

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10445

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION IN THB CITY OF

FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT ARBA NO. 4

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District,
to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein (the

"Resolution of Formation") and to the Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded
Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 4 of City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No.23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Resolution of Necessity"), each adopted by the City Council of the

City of Folsom (the "City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the levy of a special tax within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Rdnch) Improvement Area No. 4 (the "Improvement Area") proposed in
the Resolution of Formation shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code

Section 53326; and

WHEREAS, the authorization to issue bonded indebtedness proposed in the Resolution of
Necessity shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code Section 53351; and

WHEREAS, the setting of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters
pursuant to Government Code Section 53325.7; and

WHEREAS, the three ballot questions just described shall be combined into a single ballot
measure pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.5. The ballot language shall be as shown
on the form of ballot attached hereto as Exhibit A, which form of ballot is hereby approved; and

WHEREAS, a certificate relative to voters and a certificate regarding landowners have

been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk");

NOW, THBREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, as follows:

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. This City Council hereby accepts the certificate relative to voters heretofore
filed in these proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that there are no registered voters
residing within the boundaries of the Improvement Area. Accordingly, under Government Code

Section 53326(b) the qualified electors in this election shall be the landowners owning land within
the Implovement Area.

Section 3. The City Council hereby accepts the certificate regarding landowners
heretofore filed in these proceedings and further finds, in accordance therewith, that the

landowners of record owning property within the Improvement Area are those set forth in the

attachment to the certificate regarding landowners and that the attachment correctly sets forth the

number of acres owned by each landowner and the number of votes to which each is entitled.

Resolution No. 10445
Page I of7 Page 322

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent

Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Proceedings and for Conducting
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The City Council finds
that the rights, procedures and time periods therein waived ale solely for the protection of the
voters, may be waived under Government Code Section 53326(a) and Section 53321(b), and that
the waiver constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by any voter who has executed the form, of those

rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council accepts the Certificate of the City Clerk that I00Yo of the
voters eligible to vote in this election have delivered to the City Clerk properly executed waivers
in the form of Exhibit B.

Section 6. Accordingly, this City Council hereby calls the special election described

herein and sets May 26,2020 asthe election day. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),

the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot. By attesting this resolution below, the City Clerk
indicates her concurrence to such date and to the waivers and consents described in Section 4

hereof.

Section 7. The City Clerk is directed to cause the ballots to be mailed or delivered, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to the landowners shown on the attachment to the certificate
regarding landowners. The City Clerk or her designee shall fill in the names of the landowners
and the number of votes to be cast on each ballot, according to the certificate regarding landowners,
before delivery or mailing.

Section 8. The City Clerk shall accept personal or mail delivery of the ballots at any

time up to 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020, provided, that if all authorized ballots are received by the
City Clerk prior to that time, the City Clerk shall, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
immediately close the election and declare the results to the City Council.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption

Resolution No. 10445

Page 2 of 7
Page 323

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020by the following roll-call vote

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10445
Page 3 of7 Page 324

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 4

FORM OF SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for
by Improvement Area No. 4 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum
amount not to exceed $64,000,000 and levy a special tax in the
Improvement Area to finance public facilities and services by and
through the District and shall the appropriations limit for the
Inrprovement Area for fiscal year 2020-21 be established in the amount
of $t3,:00,000, all as specified in the City's "Resolution to Form a
Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within
the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein" and "Resolution
Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within
Improvement Area No. 4 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of
the City on May 26,2020?

A-l
Resolution No. 10445
Page 4 of7

This ballot is for the use of , a

landowner owning land within City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4.

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the
resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to
cast votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by rnail
or in person, before 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the
City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X" OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MEASURE
Number of votes

YES

Number of votes
NO

Page 325

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) of the above-named landowner
and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named
landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of May 26,2020.

ILANDOWNER]

By:

Name:

Title:

Resolution No. 10445
Page 5 of7

A-2

Page 326

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 4

The undersigned , is the owner or authorized representative of the
owner of Assessor's Parcel No(s) within the above-captioned
Improvement Area No. 4 (the "Improvement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorized to cast

the ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the
Improvement Area to determine, among other things, whether certain land, including land owned
by the above-referenced owner, shall be subject to an annual special tax.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods relative to the election pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation
and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and

against, under the authority of Government Code Section 53327(b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement
to publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4i01, and
agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code
Section 53321.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any right to
notice and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authorized services, expenses and rate and
method of apportionment of special tax as described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes
Therein to be adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom on May 26,2020.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
defects in notice or procedure in the formation of the District, designation of the Improvement
Area, time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election, whether known or

Resolution No. 10445 
B- 1

Page 6 of 7
Page 327

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that the election is
being expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and request of the

above-referenced owner.

Fulther, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any

entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings,

to challenge any aspect ofthe proceedings for levy ofthe special tax and for issuance ofbonded
indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the

foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on 2020

ILANDOWNERI

By:

Name

Title:

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an officer of the
properfy owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing party is different from the
name of the property owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
properfy owner(s) or evidence of name change.

Resolution No. 10445
PageT of7

B-2

Page 328

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 12

Page 329

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RBSOLUTION NO. 10446

A RESOLUTION OF THB CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION IN THE CITY OF

FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. s

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District,
to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein (the

"Resolution of Formation") and to the Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded
Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 5 of City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Resolution of Necessity"), each adopted by the City Council of the
City of Folsom (the "City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the levy of a special tax within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5 (the "Improvement Area") proposed in
the Resolution of Formation shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code
Section 53326;and

WHEREAS, the authorization to issue bonded indebtedness proposed in the Resolution of
Necessity shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code Section 53351; and

WHEREAS, the setting of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters
pursuant to Government Code Section 53325.7; and

WHEREAS, the three ballot questions just described shall be combined into a single ballot
measure pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.5. The ballot language shall be as shown
on the form of ballot attached hereto as Exhibit A, which form of ballot is hereby approved; and

WHEREAS, a certificate relative to voters and a certificate regarding landowners have

been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk");

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, as follows:

Section l The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. This City Council hereby accepts the certificate relative to voters heretofore
filed in these proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that there are no registered voters
residing within the boundaries of the Improvement Area. Accordingly, under Government Code
Section 53326(b) the qualified electors in this election shall be the landowners owning land within
the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The City Council hereby accepts the certificate regarding landowners
heretofore filed in these proceedings and further finds, in accordance therewith, that the
landowners of record owning property within the Improvement Area are those set forth in the

attachment to the certificate regarding landowners and that the attachment correctly sets forth the
number of acres owned by each landowner and the number of votes to which each is entitled.

Resolution No. I0446
Page I of7

Page 330

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This City Council hereby approves the forrn of Waiver and Consent
Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Proceedings and for Conducting
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The City Council finds
that the rights, procedures and time periods therein waived are solely for the protection of the
voters, may be waived under Government Code Section 53326(a) and Section 53327(b), and that
the waiver constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by any voter who has executed the form, of those
rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council accepts the Certificate of the City Clerk Ihat l00o/o of the
voters eligible to vote in this election have delivered to the City Clerk properly executed waivers
in the form of Exhibit B.

Section 6. Accordingly, this City Council hereby calls the special election described
herein and sets May 26,2020 as the election day. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot. By attesting this resolution below, the City Clerk
indicates her concurrence to such date and to the waivers and consents described in Section 4
hereof.

Section 7. The City Clerk is directed to cause the ballots to be mailed or delivered, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to the landowners shown on the attachment to the certificate
regarding landowners. The City Clerk or her designee shall fill in the names of the landowners
and the number of votes to be cast on each ballot, according to the certificate regarding landowners,
before delivery or mailing.

Section 8. The City Clerk shall accept personal or mail delivery of the ballots at any
time up to 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020, provided, that if all authorized ballots are received by the
City Clerk prior to that time, the City Clerk shall, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
immediately close the election and declare the results to the City Council.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

ResolLrtion No. 10446
Page 2 of 7

Page 331

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020 by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: CouncilMember(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10446
Page3 of7 Page 332

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMLTNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 5

FORM OF SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

This ballot is for the use of , a

landowner owning land within City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5.

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the
resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to
cast votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail
or in person, before 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the
City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X" OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MBASURE
Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for
by Improvement Area No. 5 (the "lmprovement Area") in a maximum
amount not to exceed $105,000,000 and levy a special tax in the
Improvement Area to finance public facilities and services by and
through the District and shall the appropriations limit for the
Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21 be established in the amount
of $21,600,000, all as specified in the City's "Resolution to Form a
Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within
the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein" and "Resolution
Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within
Improvement Area No. 5 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of
tlre City on May 26,2020?

A-1
Resolution No. 10446
Page 4 of 7

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Page 333

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) of the above-named landowner
and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named
landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and conect and that this declaration is executed as of May 26,2020.

ILANDOWNER]

By:

Name

Title:

Resolution No. 10446
Page 5 of7

A-2

Page 334

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMLTNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 5

The undersigned is the owner or authorized representative of the
owner of Assessor's Parcel No(s). within the above-captioned
Improvement Area No. 5 (the "lmprovement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorized to cast

the ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the
Improvement Area to determine, alnong other things, whether certain land, including land owned
by the above-referenced owner, shall be subject to an annual special tax.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods relative to the election pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation
and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot.rneasure, as well as arguments in favor and

against, under the authority of Government Code Section 53327(b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement
to publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4101, and

agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code

Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any right to
notice and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authodzed services, expenses and rate and

method of apportionment of special tax as described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes

Therein to be adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom on May 26,2020.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-ref-erenced owner, hereby waives any and all
defects in notice or procedure in the fonnation of the District, designation of the Improvement
Area, time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election, whether known or

B-1
Resolution No. 10446
Page 6 of7

Page 335

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that the election is
being expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and request of the
above-referenced owner.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any
entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings,
to challenge any aspect ofthe proceedings for levy ofthe special tax and for issuance ofbonded
indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on 2020

[LANDOWNER]

Name

Title:

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an officer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing party is different from the
name of the properfy owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
property owner(s) or evidence of name change.

Resolution No. 10446
Page 7 of 7

By

B-2

Page 336

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 13

Page 337

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10447

A RESOLUTION OF THB CITY COUNCIL OF THB CITY OF FOLSOM
CALLING SPECIAL MAILED.BALLOT ELECTION IN THB CITY OF

FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 6

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District,
to Designate Improvement Areas within the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein (the

"Resolution of Formation") and to the Resolution Deeming it Necessary to Incur Bonded
Indebtedness within Improvement Area No. 6 of City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Resolution of Necessity"), each adopted by the City Council of the
City of Folsom (the "City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the ler,y of a special tax within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6 (the "Improvement Area") proposed in
the Resolution of Formation shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code
Section 53326;and

WHEREAS, the authorization to issue bonded indebtedness proposed in the Resolution of
Necessity shall be submitted to the voters pursuant to Government Code Section 5335i; and

WHEREAS, the setting of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters
pursuant to Government Code Section 53325.7; and

WHEREAS, the three ballot questions just described shall be combined into a single ballot
measure pursuant to Government Code Section 53353.5. The ballot language shall be as shown
on the form of ballot attached hereto as Exhibit A, which form of ballot is hereby approved; and

WHEREAS, a certificate relative to voters and a certificate regarding landowners have
been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Folsom (the "City Clerk");

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, as follows:

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. This City Council hereby accepts the certificate relative to voters heretofore
filed in these proceedings and finds, in accordance therewith, that there are no registered voters
residing within the boundaries of the Improvement Area. Accordingly, under Government Code
Section 53326(b) the qualified electors in this election shall be the landowners owning land within
the Improvement Area.

Section 3. The City Council hereby accepts the certificate regarding landowners
heretofore filed in these proceedings and further finds, in accordance therewith, that the
landowners of record owning propefty within the Improvement Area are those set forth in the
attachment to the certificate regarding landowners and that the attachment correctly sets forth the
number of acres owned by each landowner and the number of votes to which each is entitled.

Resolution No. 10447
Page I of7 Page 338

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This City Council hereby approves the form of Waiver and Consent
Shortening Time Periods and Waiving Various Requirements for Proceedings and for Conducting
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6, attached hereto as Exhibit B. The City Council finds
that the rights, procedures and time periods therein waived are solely for the protection of the

voters, may be waived under Government Code Section 53326(a) and Section 53321(b), and that
the waiver constitutes a full and knowing waiver, by any voter who has executed the form, of those
rights, procedures and time periods.

Section 5. The City Council accepts the Certificate of the City Clerk that 100% of the
voters eligible to vote in this election have delivered to the City Clerk properly executed waivers
in the form of Exhibit B.

Section 6. Accordingly, this City Council hereby calls the special election described
herein and sets May 26,2020 asthe election day. Pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
the election shall be conducted by mailed ballot. By attesting this resolution below, the City Clerk
indicates her concurrence to such date and to the waivers and consents described in Section 4

hereof.

Section 7. The City Clerk is directed to cause the ballots to be mailed or delivered, in
the form of Exhibit A hereto, to the landowners shown on the attachment to the certificate
regarding landowners. The City Clerk or her designee shall fill in the names of the landowners
and the number of votes to be cast on each ballot, according to the certificate regarding landowners,
before delivery or mailing.

Section 8. The City Clerk shall accept personal or mail delivery of the ballots at any
time up to 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020, provided, that if all authorized ballots are received by the
City Clerk prior to that time, the City Clerk shall, pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(d),
immediately close the election and declare the results to the City Council.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption

Resolution No. 10447
Page 2 of 7

Page 339

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: CouncilMember(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10447
Page3 of7 Page 340

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMI.]NITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVE,MENT AREA NO. 6

FORM OF SPECIAL ELECTION BALLOT

(Mailed-Ballot Election)

This ballot is for the use of , ?

landowner owning land within City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6.

According to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and the

resolutions of the City Council of the City of Folsom, the above-named landowner is entitled to
cast votes on this ballot.

In order to be counted, this ballot must be certified below and be returned, either by mail
or in person, before 6:00 p.m. on May 26,2020,to:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Mailing by that date will not be sufficient. The ballot must be physically received by the

City Clerk prior to the deadline in order to be counted.

AN "X'' OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALLOT,
OR THE VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT MEASURE
Shall the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") be authorized to incur indebtedness to be paid for
by hnprovement Area No. 6 (the "Improvement Area") in a maximum
amount not to exceed $17,000,000 and levy a special tax in the
Improvement Area to finance public facilities and services by and
through the District and shall the appropriations limit for the

Improvement Area for fiscal year 2020-21 be established in the amount
of $3,500,000, all as specified in the City's "Resolution to Form a

Community Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within
the District and to Levy Special Taxes Therein" and "Resolution
Deerning it Necessary to Incur Bonded Indebtedness within
Improvement Area No, 6 of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" each adopted by the City Council of
the City on May 26,2020?

A-l
Resolution No. 10447

Page 4 of7

Number of votes
YES

Number of votes
NO

Page 341

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Certification

The undersigned is or are the authorized representative(s) of the above-named landowner
and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on behalf of the above-named
landowner.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed as of May 26,2020.

ILANDOWNERI

Name:

Title:

Resolution No. 10447
Page 5 of7

By

A-2

Page 342

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF WAIVER AND CONSENT
SHORTENING TIME PERIODS AND WAIVING VARIOUS

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCEEDINGS AND FOR
CONDUCTING SPECIAL MAILED-BALLOT ELECTION

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 6

The undersigned is the owner or authorized representative of the
owner of Assessor's Parcel No(s) within the above-captioned
Improvement Area No. 6 (the "Improvement Area") of the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

The undersigned is (or are) the person (or persons) legally entitled and authorized to cast

the ballot for the above-referenced owner in the election to be conducted within the District for the

Improvement Area to determine, among other things, whether certain land, including land owned
by the above-referenced owner, shall be subject to an annual special tax.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
minimum time periods relative to the election pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(a).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the preparation

and distribution of an impartial analysis of the ballot measure, as well as arguments in favor and

against, under the authority of Government Code Section 53327(b).

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirement
to publish notice of the election under Government Code Section 53352.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding the time to mail ballots to the qualified electors under Elections Code Section 4101, and

agrees to accept either mailed service or personal service of the ballot.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives the requirements
regarding identification envelopes for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code

Section 53327.5.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any right to
notice and hearing and consents to authorized facilities, authodzed services, expenses and rate and

method of apportionment of special tax as described in the Resolution to Form a Community
Facilities District, to Designate Improvement Areas Within the District and to Levy Special Taxes

Therein to be adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom on May 26,2020.

The undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any and all
defects in notice or procedure in the formation of the District, designation of the Improvement
Area, time periods to record the boundary map, conduct of the election, whether known or

B-1
Resolution No. l0447
Page 6 of 7

Page 343

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



unknown (other than the right to have ballots accurately counted), and states that the election is
being expedited, pursuant to this waiver and consent, at the particular instance and request of the
above-reference d owner.

Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the above-referenced owner, hereby waives any
entitlement to initiate or prosecute any form of legal proceedings, including judicial proceedings,
to challenge any aspect ofthe proceedings for levy ofthe special tax and for issuance ofbonded
indebtedness in the District.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that the
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on 2020

ILANDOWNER]

By

Name:

Title:

NOTE: If this form is signed by an authorized representative other than an officer of the
property owner(s) of the parcel(s), or if the name of the signing parfy is different from the
name of the property owner, please attach evidence of authorization to sign on behalf of the
properfy owner(s) or evidence of name change.

Resolution No. 10447
PageT of7

B-2
Page 344

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 14

Page 345

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RBSOLUTION NO. 10448

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT ARBA NO. r

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution Calling Special Mailed-Ballot Election
in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 1 (the "Resolution Calling Election") adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the
"City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of City Clerk Regarding Election Results related to the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1, dated May 26,2020;

NOW, THERBFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section l.
and correct.

The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the ballot measure
submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I pursuant to the Resolution Calling Election has been
passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with California Government Code
Sections 53328 and 53355.

Section 3. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to record the
notice of special tax lien related to such ballot measure in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code Section 53328.3 and California Streets and Highways Code
Section 3114.5.

Resolution No. 10448
Page l of2

Page 346

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4 This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll-call vote

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: CouncilMember(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10448
Page 2 of2 Page 347

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 15

Page 348

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10449

RESOLUTION OF THB CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING BLECTION RESULTS IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution Calling Special Mailed-Ballot Election
in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 2 (the "Resolution Calling Election") adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the

"City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of City Clerk Regarding Election Results related to the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2, dated May 26,2020;

NOW, THEREFORB, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the ballot measure

submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 pursuant to the Resolution Calling Election has been
passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with California Government Code

Sections 53328 and 53355.

Section 3 The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to record the

notice of special tax lien related to such ballot measure in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code Section 53328.3 and California Streets and Highways Code

Section 3114.5.

Resolution No. 10449
Page I of2

Page 349

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSF.NT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10449
Page2 of2

Page 350

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 16

Page 351

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10450

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING ELECTION RBSULTS IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution Calling Special Mailed-Ballot Election
in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 3 (the "Resolution Calling Election") adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the

"City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of City Clerk Regarding Election Results related to the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3, dated May 26,2020;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVBD by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the ballot measure

submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 pursuant to the Resolution Calling Election has been
passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with California Government Code

Sections 53328 and 53355.

Section 3. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to record the
notice of special tax lien related to such ballot measure in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code Section 53328.3 and California Streets and Highways Code

Section 3114.5.

Resolution No. 10450
Page I of2 Page 352

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10450
Page 2 of 2

Page 353

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 17

Page 354

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RBSOLUTION NO. 10451

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 4

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution Calling Special Mailed-Ballot Election
in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No.4 (the "Resolution Calling Election") adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the
"City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of City Clerk Regarding Election Results related to the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4, dated May 26,2020;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the ballot measure

submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4 pursuant to the Resolution Calling Election has been

passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with California Government Code

Sections 53328 and 53355.

Section 3 The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to record the

notice of special tax lien related to such ballot measure in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code Section 53328.3 and California Streets and Highways Code

Section 3114.5.

Resolution No. 1045 I

Page I of2
Page 355

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll-call vote

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: CouncilMember(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10451
Page 2 of 2

Page 356

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 18

Page 357

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10452

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 5

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution Calling Special Mailed-Ballot Election
in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 5 (the "Resolution Calling Election") adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the
"City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of City Clerk Regarding Election Results related to the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5, dated May 26,2020;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1.

and correct.
The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the ballot measure
submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5 pursuant to the Resolution Calling Election has been
passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with California Government Code
Sections 53328 and 53355.

Section 3. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to record the
notice of special tax lien related to such ballot measure in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code Section 53328.3 and California Streets and Highways Code
Section 3114.5.

Resolution No. 10452
Page I of2 Page 358

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll-call vote

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10452
Page 2 of 2

Page 359

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 19

Page 360

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10453

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 6

WHEREAS, reference is made to the Resolution Calling Special Mailed-Ballot Election
in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 6 (the "Resolution Calling Election") adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom (the
"City Council") on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has received, reviewed and hereby accepts the Certificate
of City Clerk Regarding Election Results related to the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6, dated May 26,2020;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1 The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true
and correct.

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and declares that the ballot measure
submitted to the qualified electors of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6 pursuant to the Resolution Calling Election has been
passed and approved by those qualified electors in accordance with California Government Code
Sections 53328 and 53355.

Section 3 The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk to record the
notice of special tax lien related to such ballot measure in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code Section 53328.3 and California Streets and Highways Code
Section 3114.5.

Resolution No. 10453
Page I of2

Page 361

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Section 4. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT: CouncilMember(s):

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10453
Page 2 of 2

Page 362

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 20

Page 363

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



1

2

3

4

ORDINANCE NO. 10305

AN UNCODIFIBD ORDINANCE LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2O2O-21AND FOLLOWING FISCAL YEARS

SOLELY WITHIN AND RELATING TO THE CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby ordains as follows

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby finds, deteimines and declares based on the
record before it that:

The City is authorized to establish a community facilities district pursuant to the terms of
the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5 of Division 2 of Title 5 of
the California Government Code, commencing with Section 5331 I (the "Act"); and

Pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, the City is authorized to designate improvement areas

within the community facilities district; and

On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. _ (the "Resolution of
Formation") establishing the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) (the "District") and designating Improvement Area No. 1, Improvement Area No.
2, Improvement Area No. 3, Improvement Area No. 4, Improvement Area No. 5 and

Improvement Area No. 6 (each an "Improvement Area") therein pursuant to the Act; and

In accordance with the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax relating to each

Improvement Area, the Resolution of Formation approved the annual levy, subject to voter
approval, of a special tax in connection with each Improvement Area (each a "Special
Tax"); and

The Resolution of Formation proposed the establishment of an appropriations limit for each

Improvement Area (each an "Appropriations Limit"); and

On May 26, 2020, the City Clerk, as elections official, conducted an election of the

landowners of each Improvement Area (each an "Election"); and

On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. certifying thal, at

the Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I ("Improvement Area No. l") approved the

Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 1; and

On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. certifying that, at

the Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 ("lmprovement Area No. 2") approved the

Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 2; and

Ordinance No. 10305
Page I of5

5

6

7

8

Page 364

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



9 On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. certifying that, at"

the Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities Distlict No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Implovement Area No. 3 ("Improvement Area No. 3") approved the
Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 3; and

10. On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. certifying that, at
the Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4 ("Improvement Area No. 4") approved the

Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 4; and

1l On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. certifying that, at
the Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5 ("Improvement Area No. 5") approved the
Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 5; and

T2 On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. certifuing that, at

the Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6 ("Improvement Area No. 6" and, together with
Improvement Area No. 1, Improvement Area No. 2, Improvement Area No. 3,

Improvement Area No. 4 and Improvement Area No. 5, each an "lmprovement Area")
approved the Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No.
6; and

13. The City Council desires to levy and impose the Special Tax and to take other related
actions.

SECTION 2

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
RESOLVES:

l. The recitals set forth in Section 1 are true and corect

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Properly (as defined in Exhibit D-l of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 1 for the 2020-21fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-2 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 2 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-3 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 3 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that

Ordinance No. 10305
Page 2 of5

2

a
J

4

Page 365

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



5

6

7

8

this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-4 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 4 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-5 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 5 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-6 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 6 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

The Finance Director of the City of Folsom or designee thereof (the "CFD Administrator")
is authorized and directed, to determine each year, without furlher action of the City
Council, each Special Tax, to prepare the annual Special Tax roll in the amount of each

Special Tax in accordance with the related exhibit and, without further action of the City
Council, to provide all necessary and appropriate information to the Sacramento County
Auditor-Controller's Office (the "County") in proper form, and in proper time, necessary
to effect the correct and timely billing and collection of each Special Tax on the secured
property tax roll of the County;provided, that as provided in the Resolution of Formation
and Section 53340 of the California Government Code, the City has reserved the right to
utilize any method of collecting each Special Tax which it shall, from time to time,
determine to be in the best interests of the City of Folsom (the "City"), including but not
limited to, direct billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing.

The appropriate officers and agents of the City are authorized to make adjustments to the
Special Tax roll prior to the final posting of each Special Tax to the County tax roll each

fiscal year, as may be necessary to achieve a correct match of each Special Tax levy with
the assessor's parcel numbers finally utilized by the County in sending out property tax
bills.

The City agrees that, in the event the Special Tax for an Improvement Area is collected on
the secured tax roll of the County, the County may deduct its reasonable and agreed charges
for collecting such Special Tax fi'om the amounts collected, prior to rernitting such Special
Tax collections to the City.

Taxpayers who have requested changes or corrections of the applicable Special Tax
pursuant to Section I of the Rate'and Method of Apportionment of the related Special Tax

9

10.

11.

Ordinance No. 10305
Page 3 of5 Page 366

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



and who are not satisfied with the decision of the CFD Administrator (whether the CFD
Administrator disagrees with the taxpayer or concludes that the City is not authorized to
consider the change requested), may appeal to the City Council. The appeal must be in
writing, fully explain the grounds of appeal and must be based solely on the conection of
mistakes in the levy based upon the status of the property, and no other appeals will be

allowed. The CFD Administrator shall schedule the appeal for consideration within a

reasonable time at a City Council meeting.

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY

If for any cause any portion of this ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the applicable
Special Tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel by a court of competent jurisdiction, the
balance of this ordinance, and the application of such Special Tax to the remaining parcels, shall
not be affected.

SECTION 4 EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force as a tax measure thirty (30) days following
its second reading and adoption at a meeting of the City Council; and before the expiration of
twenty (20) days after its passage the same shall be published, with the names of the members
voting for and against the same, at least once in a newspaper of general circulation published and

circulated in the District.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on May 26,2020, and the second reading is to occur at the regular meeting of the City
Council on June 9,2020.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council
Member the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom, State of California, this | ]tl'day of
following roll-call vote :

2020 by the

AYBS: Council Member(s):

NOES: Council Member(s):

ABSENT Council Member(s)

ABSTAIN Council Member(s)

Ordinance No. 10305
Page 4 of5

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Page 367

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

C)rdinance No. 10305

Page 5 of5 Page 368

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 21

Page 369

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ctwoF FotsoM
Report for:

Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report

May 2020

Prepared by NBS for and on behalf of the City of Folsom

NBS
Prepared by:

h6lplng communltlea
fund tomorrow

Corporate Headquarterg

3_)605 Tentecu!a P:lrklvlt, 5Lite I 0O

Tanrecui:. CA 925-q2

Toll free 300 6)6 t-5I5

nbsgov.com
Page 370

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



TReLe or CoTTENTS

INTRODUCTION 1

2

2

2

3

3

4
4

6

7

DISTRICT INFORMATION .....
Background

District Purpose ........

District Description...

District Boundaries

DESCRIPTION OF FACITITIES AND SERVICES

Facilities

Services.....

lncidental Expenses.....

Estimated Cost of Public Facilities

Estimated Cost of Public Services.

Annual Appropriations Limit ........

Maximum Bonded lndebtedness.

Maximum Special Tax Rates.........

Annual Maximum Special Tax Escalation

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

Term of Facilities and Services Special Tax .....

Manner of Collection

APPENDIX A: BOUNDARY MAP .....

APPENDIX B: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - lA 1

APPENDIX C: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - lA 2

APPENDIX D: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - lA 3

APPENDIX E: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - lA 4

APPENDIX F: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - lA 5

......10

......10

......10

......11

......11

18

18

18

9

A

c

E

F

B

D

APPENDIX G: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT - lA 6 .......... G

Page 371

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



INTRODUCTION

The City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City") did, pursuant to the provisions

of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (Sections 53311 and following, California Government

Code; hereafter referred to as the "Act"l, on April 74,2020, adopt Resolution No. LO41'4 entitled the

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Appointing Consultants, Approving a Proposed Boundary

Map and Declaring lntention to Form a Community Facilities District to be Named "City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" and to Levy Special Taxes Therein (the "Resolution of

lntention"). ln the Resolution of lntention, the City Council directed the study and filing of a public hearing

report (the "Report") required by Section 53321.5 of the Act for the proposed City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District").

Section 53321.5 of the Act provides that the Report contain the following:

L A brief description of the public facilities and services to be provided by the District; and

2. An estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of providing the public facilities and services, including
the incidental expenses in connection therewith, any City administration costs, and all other
related costs.

For particulars, reference is made to the Resolution of lntention forthe District, as previously

adopted on April L4,2O2O by the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Manager of the City, the appointed responsible officer directed to

prepare the Report or cause the Report to be prepared pursuant to the provisions ofthe Act, does hereby

submit this Report containing the following information:

DISTRICT INFORMATION. lnformation related to the District, including background

information, land use plans, and the proposed boundaries that include those properties and

parcels on which specialtaxes may be levied to pay for the costs and expenses of the facilities

and services.

DESCRIPTION OF FACIIITIES AND SERVICES. A description of the facilities and services that the

City Council has determined to be eligible to be funded by the District.

COST ESTIMATE. The cost estimate for the District facilities and services.

a

a

a

a RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT. The Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special

Tax approved by this City Council on April 14,2020.

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report

(DNBS
Page 372

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



DISTRICT INFORMATION

Background

The District is located within the Folsom Plan Area, south of Highway 50. The Folsom Plan Area is located

on approximately 3,500 acres and is bounded by Prairie City Road on the west, Highway 50 on the north,

White Rock Road on the south, and the Sacramento County/El Dorado County boundary on the east. The

Folsom Plan Area is a master-planned community and, through June 30, 2015, the City has received and

approved several Specific Plan Amendments that have changed the entitlements to include approximately

11,300 residential units of various size and densities and approximately 2.8 million building square feet of

non-residential land uses.

FOTSOM PIAN AREA SPECIFIC PIAN PUBLIC FACILITIES FINANCING PLAN

On January 28,2014, the City Council approved the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities

Financing Plan (the "PFFP"). The PFFP is an 5877 million plan that describes the backbone infrastructure

and facility requirements, presents a comprehensive financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time

horizon for the development of the Folsom Plan Area. The backbone infrastructure improvements

identified in the PFFP include roadways, on-site water, off-site potable water, recycled water, wastewater

(sewer), storm drainage, and habitat mitigation for infrastructure. The public facilities identified in the PFFP

include public schools, parks, transit services, housing trust, trails, fire facilities and equipment, police

facilities and equipment, a municipal service center, corporation yard, solid waste, branch library, a

community and aquatic center, other general capital facilities, and transportation.

District Purpose

This District is being formed, with six separate improvement areas (the "lmprovement Areas") to provide

funding for all or a portion of each lmprovement Area's share of the backbone infrastructure, on-site and

off-site costs, the estimated Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program obligation, and other internal site

improvements necessary for development. The District will provide funding for authorized facilities

through a combination of bonded indebtedness and pay as you go funding (the "PAYGO"), both of which

are secured by the levy of special taxes upon property within the boundaries of each lmprovement Area of

the District. ln addition, a special tax will be levied upon District property to provide funding for

development specific services that include open space, landscape corridors, street light maintenance,

median, entries and entry monumentation maintenance, neighborhood park maintenance, community

amenities, and storm water management.

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report 2
(}NBS

Page 373

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



District Description

The District boundaries include six lmprovements Areas and encompass all of the property designated by

the Assessor's Parcel Numbers below:

lmprovement Area ("1A") 1:

072-3670-001-0000 through 072-3670-008-0000 and 072-3670-010-0000 through 072-3670-023-0000

lA 2:

072-0070-039-0000, 072-3370-007-0000, 072-3370-035-0000, 072-3370-036-0000, 072-3390-003-0000,

072-3390-004-0000, 072-3390-006-0000, 072-3390-013-0000, a nd 072-3390-014-0000

tA 3:

07 2-0060-079-0000, 072-0060-099-0000, 072-0060-101-0000, a nd 072-0060-103-0000

tA4:
07 2-0060-077-0000 and 072-0060-100-0000

rA 5:

072-3190-031-0000, 072-3190-033-0000 and 072-3190-034-00000

tA 6:

072-3380-004-0000 through 072-3380-005-0000 and 072-3380-024-0000 through O72-338O-O27-0000

The current development plans for each lA are presented in the table below.

Proposed Development within the lmprovement Areas

(1) Residential units,
(2) Acres.

District Boundaries

The proposed boundaries of the District, including the lmprovement Areas, are identified on the map of

the District recorded on April 20,2020, in Book 130 at Page 27 of Maps of Assessment and Community

Facilities Districts in the office of the County Recorder for the County of Sacramento. The District map is on

file with the City Clerk, to which reference is hereby made and a reduced copy of such map is set forth in

Appendix A of this Report.

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report 3

Planned Residential Units or Acres

Development Plan tA1 tA2 tA3 tA4 lA5 tA6
Single-Family Detached Property-SF/SFHD Zoning(1) 44r 0 1,068 356 278 0

Single-Familv Detached Property-MLD Zoning(t) 257 340 157 25t 40t 0

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property(2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.70 9.50

M HD M ulti-Family Attached Property(2) 9.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 L7.80 9.30

Non-Residential Property(2) 0.00 5.10 0.00 0.00 23.50 L1..40

CINBS Page 374

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Facilities

The facilities to be financed by the District include facilities designed to meet the needs of development

within the District, whether such facilities are located within or outside the boundaries of the District, and

include but are not limited to the following:

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to: acquisition of land and easements; roadway

design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading,

soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or

pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and

appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and

access ramps; street lights, signalization, and traffic signalcontrolsystems; busturnouts; signs and striping;

erosion control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry

walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for

the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary

sewer, and storm drainage system improvements.

Authorized facilities include the following transportation improvements:

o All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the District,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

WATER SYSTEM I MPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet the needs of development of

property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: water storage, treatment

and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves, pressure reducing stations,

flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as site clearing, grading and

paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by generators; site lighting, drainage,

sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and fencing; and striping and

signage.

RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system facilities designed to meet the needs of

development of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: treatment

and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, gate valves, flow meters, booster pump

pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto - such as site clearing, grading and paving;

curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and

water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report 4QNBs Page 375

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



DRAINAGE SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain improvements designed to meet the

needs of development of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and water quality measures,

detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump stations,

landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping and signage and other

improvements related thereto.

WASTEWATER SYSTEM I M PROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities designed to meet the needs of development

of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to, pipelines and all

appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force mains; lift stations; upgrades to

existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system

improvements.

PARK, PARKWAY AND OPEN SPACE IMPROVEMENTS

Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to parks, parkways and open space required for

development of property within the District. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: grading,

turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer ahd water service,

pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm

drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for authorized facilities herein, access gates and

fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized facilities include acquisition of any and all

parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access easements required for development of property

within the District.

spEctFtc PLAN INFRASTRUCTURE FEE ('SPlF") INFRASTRUCTURE

Authorized facilities include any and all improvements that are included in the SPIF Program adopted by

the City Council on September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto.

SPIF OBLIGATION

Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities include payment of the following SPIF obligations

for all development that would be subject to SPIF obligations within the entire District:

r SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (lncluding the SPIF Set-Aside Component)

o SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

o SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

o SPIF Administrative Fee.

OTHER INCIDENTAL EXPENSES AND BOND ISSUANCE COSTS

ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community

Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report 5
(}NBS

Page 376

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction

staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of

project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation

of the Mello-Roos CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes;

payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments;

or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the District; and any other

expenses incidental to the formation and implementation of the District and to the construction,

completion, inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The authorized services to be funded from the levy and collection of annual special taxes include those set

forth below in addition to the costs associated with collecting and administering the special taxes and

annual administration of the District. The District will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of

reconstruction and/or rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement, and servicing of the

following items not otherwise subject to funding from the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.

18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide lmprovements and Services):

. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and bike

trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] within open

space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood Conveyance

(Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale maintenance, Erosion

control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post emergent, maintenance

activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management Plan-Conservation and

Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9,2077, and repair and replacement of facilities within

open space areas in the Project Area.

. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within the

District, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.

o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.

o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.

r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales constructed

between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or replacement

costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry monumentation,

lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities maintained by the

District as determined by the Administrator,

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report 6QINBS Page 377

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and servicing

of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls, sidewalks,

monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the enhanced

open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other buffer areas

between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry signage, street

pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and equipment, as

applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs include an allowance

for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The District may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to be

maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its own

employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The District may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the District.

lncidental Expenses

It is anticipated that the following incidental expenses may be incurred for the District:

. Engineering services

. Special tax consultant services

. City review and administration

. Bond counsel services

o Bond counsel expenses

o Disclosure counsel services

. Disclosure counsel expenses

o lndependent municipal advisor services and expenses

. APPraiser services

o Market absorption study and real estate economist services

o lnitial bond transfer agent, fiscal agent, registrar and paying agent fees

o Rebate calculation service set up charge

r Bond printing

r Offering memorandum printing and mailing costs

o Publishing, mailing and posting of notices

. Underwriter'sdiscount

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report 7CINBS Page 378

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



o Bond reserve fund

. Capitalized interest

o Bond syndication costs

o Governmental notification and filing costs

o Credit enhancement costs

o Real estate acquisition costs

o Rating agency fees

e Charges and fees of City other than those waived

Certain annual costs may be included in each annual special tax levy. These include

o Annual bond transfer agent, fiscal agent, registrar and paying agent fees

o Annual rebate calculation costs

. Special tax consultant costs and administrative expenses

c Other necessary consultant costs

o Costs of posting and collecting the special taxes

o Personnel and Administrative costs of the City

o Arbitrage rebate

e Continuing disclosure reporting and compliance

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report 8CINBS Page 379

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



COST ESTIMATE

Estimated Cost of Public Facilities

The District is eligible to finance the authorized public facilities described in the Description of Facilities and

Services section of this Report. The authorized publicfacilities and the estimated costs herein are subject

to review and confirmation and the actual costs may differ from the estimated costs presented below.

Through the utilization of the extended-term CFD, and levying developed parcels at the annual maximum

facilities special tax authorized, the facilities special tax for each lA is anticipated to provide a revenue

stream that will fund a portion of the following facilities costs:

District Facilities Cost Estimate for the lmprovement Areas

As previously discussed, the District will include an extended-term in order to provide the financing to fund

the authorized public facilities and estimated SPIF obligation through bond issuance and the generation of

PAYGO special tax revenue from the levy and collection of the facilities special tax within each lA. The

primary pledge of facilities specialtax revenues will be to service outstanding debt. Facilities specialtax

revenues in excess of the annual debt service and administrative expenses will be used on a PAYGO basis.

The developers will retain 100 percent of the annual PAYGO revenues to fund authorized facilities for the

first 20 years, beginning the fiscal year following the issuance of the first building permit or the issuance of

the first series of bonds or other debt for the respective lA, whichever occurs first for each lA. Beginning

the 21st year and thereafter, the City will be able to utilize 100 percent of the annual PAYGO revenues to

fund or acquire eligible facilities.

Once all of the debt service has been satisfied for an lA, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to do one

or more of the following actions:

1,. Continue to collect the maximum facilities special tax or an amount less than the maximum

facilities special tax to fund authorized facilities with annual PAYGO revenues.

2. Discontinue the collection of the facilities special tax altogether.

As stated, there is no obligation on the part of the City Councilto extend the facilities specialtax if allof the

debt service has been paid for an lA. The City Council may choose to extend the facilities special tax

collection after all bond debt service has been retired and can choose for what purpose the extension

would be, subject to those infrastructure and facilities improvements being authorized by the District. The

discretion to continue or extend the facilities special tax is designed specifically not to be an automatic

extension but rather an informed decision at the time based on the community needs and requirements.

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report I

Description tAl tA2 tA3 tA4 tA5 lA5

SPIF lmprovements s29,275,000 s3,4ss,000 532,790,000 S1,53o,ooo Sqs,rzo,sro S1,5oo,ooo

Non-SPIF lmprovements 1,5oo,ooo 4,000,000 5,000,000 27,340,000 10,000,000 4,950,000

Subdivision lmprovements 0 6,ooo,ooo 15,000,000 9,255,000 g,57o,ooo t,42o,ooo

Total Facilities Cost

Estimate for each lAl s29,775,000 S13,455,000 S52,79o,ooo s39,125,000 564,740,516 S7,78o,ooo

SNBS Page 380

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



However, any extension of the facilities special tax levy shall not exceed the final year to levy and collect

the facilities specialtax as set forth in the lA's Rate and Method of Apportionment. The facilities specialtax

for each lA shall be levied for a period no longer than the earlier of Fiscal Year 2O79/80 or the fiscal year

occurring 50 years following the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of bonds or other

debt.

Estimated Cost of Public Services

The District is eligible to finance the authorized public services described in the Description of Facilities and

Services section of this Report. The authorized public services and the estimated costs herein are subject to

review and confirmation and the actual costs may differ from the estimated costs presented below.

District Services Cost Estimate for each lA

Annual Appropriations Limit

The Fiscal Year 2O2O/21 annual appropriations limit for each lA is

o lA 1: 515,900,000

o lA 2: 57,400,000
o lA 3:s25,200,000

o lA 4: s13,300,000
o lA 5: s21-,600,000

o lA 5:s3,500,000

Maximum Bonded lndebtedness

The maximum authorized bonded indebtedness for each lA is:

o lA 1: 575,000,000
o lA 2: s36,000,000
r lA 3: s124,000,000
o lA 4: $64,000,000
o lA 5: s105,000,000
o lA 6: $17,000,000

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report

Description tA1 tA2 tA3 tA4 tA5 tA6

Landscaping s43,8oo s3,5oo so $15,500 s18,8oo $o

Sound Walls 6,600 2,700 8,500 4,500 6,400 L,0oo

Street Lights 35,100 72,40O 13,900 33,800 34,500 3,400

Storm Drain 56,900 2L,500 106,500 56,200 66,000 800

Total Services Cost

Estimate for each lA:
5L42,4oo s4o,1oo S128,900 Stto,ooo $125,700 $5,zoo

SNBS 10Page 381

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Maximum Special Tax Rates

The determination and application of the maximum special tax rates for the lmprovement Areas are more

fully set forth in the Rate and Method of Apportionment for each lA, which are included under Appendices

B through G of this Report. The Rate and Method of Apportionment for each lA of the District was included

as part of the Resolution of lntention, approved by the City Council on April 14,2O2O, and established Fiscal

Year 2O2O/2L maximum special tax rates. The Fiscal Year 2O2O/21 maximum special tax rates for each lA

are presented in the tables on the following pages.

Annual Maximum Special Tax Escalation

On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2021-, the maximum facilities special tax shall be increased by 2% of

the maximum facilities special tax in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

On each July 1, commencing on July t,ZOZL, the maximum services special tax shall be increased by the

June annualized percentage change of the Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, forthe San

Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to exceed 4%. ln the event that the percentage change is negative,

the annualized percentage change shall be equal to zero.

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportDNBS IIPage 382

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



tA1
Maximum Special Tax Rates

Fiscal Year 2O2O|2L

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit
Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate

s210
2to
2to
210

210

2LO

156

156

155

155

156

155

500

1,000

1,000

S210

156

S1,ooo

S1,4oo

S1,4oo

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

s3,886
3,577

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,57'J.

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

\7,70O

7r,700

52,goo

2,900

S11,7oo

s22,5oo

S22,5oo

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportSNBs 72

Page 383

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



lA2
Maximum Special Tax Rates

FiscalYear 2O2Ol2l

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate

$2oo
200

200

200

200

200

103

103

103

103

103

103

500

1,000

1,000

S2oo

103

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

s1,ooo

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

s3,886
3,57'J.

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,577

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

L7,700

tl,700

s2,9oo
2,900

S11,7oo

S29,ooo

S29,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,1-99

2,400-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Propertv - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large lot Property

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportC)NBs 13
Page 384

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



tA3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

Fiscal Year 2O2Ol2l

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Services Special
Tax Rate: Active
Adult Property

Sloo
100

100

100

100

100

40

40

40

40

40

40

500

1,000

1,000

Sloo
40

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

s1,0oo

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate

Srzs
175

175

175

775

t75
725

I25
725

72s

725

125

500

1,000

1,000

s17s
725

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

S3,88e

3,577

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,57I
3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

71,,700

t'J.,700

s2,9oo
2,900

S11,7oo

Si.8,ooo

S18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000
> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

<2,OOO

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category
Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportSNBS 14Page 385

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



lA4
Maximum Special Tax Rates

Fiscal Year 2O2Ol2l

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit
Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate

s2os
205

20s
205

205

205

740

r40
1.40

L40

L40

L40

500

1,000

1,000

S2os
r40

S1,ooo

s1,1oo

51,100

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

S3,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,57I
3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

71,,7OO

77,700

S2,9oo

2,900

S11,7oo

S2o,ooo

S2o,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportSNBS 15
Page 386

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



tA5
Maximum Special Tax Rates

FiscalYear 2O2Ol2l

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate

s15s
165

16s

165

165

165

85

85

85

85

85

85

500

1,000

1,000

Si-6s

85

S1,ooo

s1,ooo

S1,ooo

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

S3,886
3,5-lr
3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,885

3,57t
3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

17,700

1.t,700

$2,900
2,9O0

Stt,zoo

S20,ooo

S2o,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799
2,AOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD M ulti-Family Attached Property

MHD M ulti-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportCINBS 15
Page 387

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



tA6
Maximum Special Tax Rates

Fiscal Year 2O2Ol2l

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit
Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate

S17s
175

775

175

175

775

85

85

85

85

85

85

300

300

0

S17s

85

Ssoo

Ssoo

Ssoo

Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate

S3,88G

3,577

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000
'J.'J.,7OO

11,700

S2,9oo
2,900

S11,7oo

S3o,ooo

s30,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799
2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category
Developed Propefi:
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD M ulti-Family Attached Property

MHD M ulti-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large [ot Propefi

Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing ReportQNBs l7
Page 388

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

All of the property located within the District, unless exempted by law or by the Rate and Method of

Apportionment, shall be taxed for the purpose of providing the necessary facilities and services for the

District. Pursuant to Section 53325.3 of the Act, the tax imposed "is a specialtax and not a special

assessment, and there is no requirement that the tax be apportioned on the basis of benefit to any

property." The special tax "may be based on benefit received by parcels of real property, the cost of
making facilities available to each parcel, or other reasonable basis as determined by the legislative body,"

although the special tax may not be apportioned on an ad valorem basis pursuant to Article XlllA of the

California Constitution.

As shown in Appendices B through G, the Rate and Method of Apportionment for each lA provides

information sufficient to allow each property owner to estimate the maximum special tax that he or she

will be required to pay.

Term of Facilities and Services SpecialTax

The District's facilities special tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020/21 and shall be levied to
the extent necessaryto fully satisfythe annualfacilities specialtax requirement. For each lA, the facilities

special tax shall be levied for a period no longer than the earlier of fiscal year 2079/80 or the fiscal year

occurring 50 years following the fiscal year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of

bonds or other debt was issued within the lA.

The District's services special tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O/21 and shall be levied in

perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer needed to pay the

services special tax requirement.

Manner of Collection

The annual District special tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that the City, may directly bill the District special tax, and may

collect special taxes at a different time or in a different manner as necessary to meet its financial

obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of taxable

property that are delinquent in the payment of special taxes.

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Reportt}NBS 18Page 389

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



APPENDIX A: BOUNDARY MAP

The boundary map for the District, including the boundaries for the lmprovement Areas, is shown on the
following page. The lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel within the District are those lines and

dimensions shown on the maps of the County Assessor, at the time this Report was prepared, and are

incorporated by reference herein and made part of this Report.

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report ACINBS Page 390

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



or,rM?,ffi

t?r.l!|w

o

!

2a

?!

!t

I B

@

@

!

I

1
*n'fo*o

*o"T**

flcromn*y hrffi^d
fleora' V/)t 1

s@dms P.d 888 hz
ffllnr
Nrs
'J6

-,\

0 500 1,0m ?.oooFc€t
I'lrl

htdt
IUAP OF PROPOSED BOUNDARIES

ctTY oF FOLSO|T'
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

crY oF FoLsotu
COUNTY OF SACRATENTO

STATE Of CAUFORNIA

Fuo N iE trFrcE s lE crr cLERx oF BE c* c .w" *," -a(L- ut c 0 fr.r 
0r&-

O*r-mnr,rr .

CfuL4K
cfrtrrcril
SMMEilTOCMI ruIFOfr(

rEre8y cwrB Tut r sthi w SHMG THE wo @utt€s tr Tre gB s FNU
COIHWI FrcmES DEmCr rc 2! I'NM UrcnI Cfr Sfm CO|m S SWO SAIE
tr ffsM. MS^mQ€O.nr Ory com!oFrHEcn ff Folsfl 4TAEflrc TIGREOf. nEo
flrc_fEl_oAvoF erallBynsres*ursNo__lc3lI-_

Dtrl*n^a.
cfi<Ek
CTY ff FOLil
SCRAMENTOMT @fONU

.*or",s 
-?Sl-o^tor 

4ol I mg- ^tmrome -t!3-ocs*Au. rNffi
J3t_ e ffi ur ^$ESN' @ U(&UNlr Y FACrLrr tS UrStrurS At 4e I J fl frE rte
tr lE co(ilrY mmffi oF x c&ffi tr gcRAu€rTo sl^rE ff ffmA

- <\_\
JY:[)NA flLrfu b l\iiMt4l* 4?td:LLNa

aq.q!IE@E=. --j Ditu'l.Jcoumtr$ruErc 4Fonrl

FOR ffiICUls OF frE IIUSN ilENgONS ffA$EsS PARff, BSEFffE E MDE TO TiE *re
tr EASES Cffi tr gCilMENIO, STAIEtr ruFOM

So@ S@arb Cordy 615
Gagrrj,* Cstkp', Ra/'r.c@- 6CS woa, Aj''.@ t963
Aqcctor, t {D t9E3 SlrtrA@ CdttuM tl FIPS uO2 FBt

(}NBS
CrTY OF FOLSC'M

Page 391

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



APPENDIX B: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT.
tA1

The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lA 1

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report B

(jrNBS
Page 392

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITV OF FOTSOM

COMMUNITY FACITITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area 1

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 1 (CFD No. 23

lA1) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lAL Administrator through

the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 23lAl, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessot/s Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assesso/s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA1.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No.23 lAL underthe Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page 1
Page 393

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 IAL' means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area L.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA1

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued priortoJune 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA1 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA1, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 2
Page 394

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



231A1, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lAL, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA1 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney'sfees and other costs related to commencing and pursuingto

completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities SpecialTax Requirement" means that amount of SpecialTax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No, 23lAI to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the

City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit

enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23lAl.

"Fiscal Yea/' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other

instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from

time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous FiscalYear, excluding any portion(s)thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family

Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page 3
Page 395

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means t.8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,

that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA1 Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

'MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2}tt and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential

land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, onlythat portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28, 2OII and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page 4
Page 396

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA1 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably

offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA1.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements

have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23lAL, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the

future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 231A1'.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated

average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location

and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA1, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries

and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.)within CFD No. 23 lA1.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA1, which (a) is owned

by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area L
March 26,2O2O

Page 5
Page 397

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA1

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lAL, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts

estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23lAI for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percent @%).ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA1 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv)cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any FiscalYear, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 6
Page 398

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lAl Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MtD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or

attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J.'J. and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family hieh

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OII and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been ma'pped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each FiscalYear, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA1 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA1 SpecialTax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

PageT
Page 399

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



'"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

'Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA1 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

AllTaxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA1

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 202O-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July 'J.,2O2I, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created
from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2O2O
Page 8

Page 400

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there

will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 9

Page 401

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial

prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to

Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately

increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of

Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA1,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA1.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated

average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to the

Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 402

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set
forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated
to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area L
March 26,2020

Page 11
Page 403

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 12

Page 404

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 14L Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to IOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 13
Page 405

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAT TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA1 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. Increase in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July L, commencing on July L,2O2t, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23l,A1. and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

Special Tax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA1.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area L

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 406

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA1 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any
Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA1 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (L0%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23l,A1. Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in fpll by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 15
Page 407

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities SpecialTax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one,of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23lAI, the City may permit the transfer

of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (L) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method

of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA1 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2020

Page 16
Page 408

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEATS

The CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake

the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method

of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the SpecialTax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not

later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant

must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.

The CFD No. 23 lAl Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA1 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA1

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLTECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA1, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner

as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIALTAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities SpecialTax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA1 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2O2O

Page 17
Page 409

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lAL Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax described in

Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined

in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would

produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the

Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum

Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA1, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the

current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 410

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount

of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest

redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Steo 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption

Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2O2O
Page L9

Page 411

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

R.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.L above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lAl- Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA1 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1.L times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Malimum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page 20
Page 412

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 25,2O2O

Page2L
Page 413

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 {Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 1

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax RateGl

$210

210

2to

210

270

270

156

156

155

156

156

156

500

1,000

1,000

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l}

S3,886

3,577

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,577

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

II,7OO

t'J",-loo

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Propefi

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area l-
March 26,2020

Page22Page 414

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 1

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July 7,2027, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation

Factor of the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(2) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyl,2O2l,theMaximumServicesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbyanamountequal totheServices

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

S210

156

S1,ooo

S1,4oo

S1,4oo

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate{ll

s2,900

2,900

S11,7oo

s22,500

S22,soo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 415

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

Minimum Facilities Revenue
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

On each July 1, commencing on July 7,2027, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(21

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page24

2020-202L
Minimum Facilities

gsygnug (r)lr)

5t,z7B,goo

745,300

0

7L4,660

0

S2,138,860

2020-202L
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 12x Pa1g(rxzl

S2,9oo

2,9OO

30,000

11.,7OO

IL,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

447

251

0.0

9.8

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoninglat

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 416

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates
(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsx P31glr)P)

s_

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

<2,OOO

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MH D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Propefi

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

March 26,2O2O
Page 25

Page 417

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates
(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2!)

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each july 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 12a P31g(rxz)

s

s

(

s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Propertv

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 418

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 {Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates set forth in this table.

(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFH D Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
March 26,2O2O

Page 27

2020-2021
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

p.y.1tu. {rl(zxa}

s

(

2020-202L
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

p"1"{rXzXr}

s

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(1lLand Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningts)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 419

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



APPENDIX C: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT -
tA2
The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lA 2

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report cSINBS Page 420

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOTSOM

COMMUNITY FACITITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOTSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 2

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 2 (CFD No. 23

lA2) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23l.A2 Administrator through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 231A2, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,550.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

'?ssessotrs Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assesso/s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA2.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA2 underthe Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and
providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 1
Page 421

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA2" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA2.

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA2 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA2, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 2

Page 422

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



231A2, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA2, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23l,A2 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23|,A2 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23l,A2 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23'A2.

"Fiscal Yeaf means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 423

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Tota! Effective Tax Rate" means t.8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA2 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-FamilyAttached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described
in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OtI and as amended by the City Council.
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OIL and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 4
Page 424

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA2 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA2.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23l,A2, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot FinalSubdivision Maps within CFD No. 231A2.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA2, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries
and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.)within CFD No. 23l,A2.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA2, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 425

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA2
Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing SpecialTax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA2, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 231A2 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percent {a%). ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 231A2 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O
Page 6

Page 426

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 231A2 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or

attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,Z.OLL and as amended by

the City Council.

"singfe-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of L-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,207I and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Propefi" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA2 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 231A2 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 7
Page 427

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

'Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA2 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA2

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 202O-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this

Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July 'J.,2O2I, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum

Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
March 26,2O2O

Page 8
Page 428

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into [arge Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Fami ly/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 9
Page 429

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23l,A2,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA2.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 430

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more

Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 11

Page 431

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the

Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Slnall Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated bythe fullor partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
March 26,2O2O

Page L2
Page 432

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property

subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the

amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to LOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 13

Page 433

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23lrA2 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July t,2O2I, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23i.A2 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shallfirst be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA2.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 434

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DETINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA2 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA2 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No.23lA2Administratorshallclassifythefollowingas Exempt Property:Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 15
Page 435

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A2, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is
transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method

of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA2 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 16

Page 436

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEW/APPEAIS

The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the SpecialTax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of SpecialTaxes. ln addition, duringthe term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA2 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 231A2
Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA2, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities SpecialTax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA2 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 50 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page L7

Page 437

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward,

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA2, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 18
Page 438

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium ,if any,
on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 5: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1- by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or allof the current propertytax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2020
Page 19

Page 439

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least L.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full

Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K,1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Faci lities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equalto percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii)the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 50 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA2 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA2 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O
Page 20

Page 440

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



t. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
March 26,2O2O

Page2t
Page 441

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 2

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2l

S2oo

200

200

200

200

200

103

103

103

103

103

103

500

1,000

1,000

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(ll

S3,ggo

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,9OO

3,886

3,57'J.

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,9OO

30,000

11,700

t!,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Toning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

M H D M ulti-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
March 26,2020

Page22
Page 442

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 2

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July I,2O2I, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) OneachJulyl,commencingonJuly'J-,2O2T,theMaximumServicesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbyanamountequal totheServices
Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
March 26,2020

Page23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax RatePl

S2oo

103

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

51,ooo

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l}

S2,9oo

2,900

s11,700

S29,ooo

S29,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 443

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

On each July 1, commencing on luly L,2O2\, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(21

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O
Page24

2020-2021
Minimum Facilities

pgyg6Ug lrxr)

So

986,000

0

0

59,670

S1,045,G70

2020-202L
Developed Propefi
Maximum Facilities
Special 13x P31g(rxzl

Sz,goo

2,900

30,000

11,700

17,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

0

340

0.0

0.0

5.1

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(a)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+)

MMD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 444

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2!|

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Special 13x psls(r|(z)

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O
Page 25

Page 445

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x Pslg(r)lz)

s

s

s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Property

Page 446

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



AfiACHMENT D
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 {Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 2

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates set forth in this table.

( ) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2

March 26,2O2O
Page 27

2020-2021
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

P"u"nu" (rXzXl)

s

s

2020-202L
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

921"(rl(zXr)

5

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(llLand Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(s)

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 447

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



APPENDIX D: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT -
rA3

The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lA 3

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report D\lINBS Page 448

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOTSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 3

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 3 (CFD No. 23

lA3) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property
within CFD No. 23 lA3, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel,

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,550.

'?ct" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Active-Adult Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Residential Property which has a restriction
recorded against title of the Assessor's Parcel that limits occupancy of the Residential Unit on the
Assessor's Parcel to residents above a certain age. The Maximum Services SpecialTax Rate for Active-
Adult Property shall be assigned in accordance with Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment. There are no Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate adjustments for Assessor's Parcels classified as Active-Adult
Property.

"Assessoy's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel num ber.

"Assessor/s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September L't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 1

Page 449

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No.23 lA3 underthe Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"CFD No. 23 lA3" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3.

"C,tV" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA3

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA3 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 2

Page 450

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

23 lA3, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities SpecialTax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit

enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2O79-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Fiscal Yea/' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Propertt'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 3

Page 451

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property,

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means 1,.8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,

that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA3 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,ZOLI and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcelthat is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 4
Page 452

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OtL and as amended by the City Council.

"Non-Residential Propertf' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA3 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23',A3, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA3, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries
and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 453

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.)within CFD No.23 lA3.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA3, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 6

Page 454

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



exceed four percent (a%1. ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the
Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zonlng" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-I2 Residential Units per Acre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,z}tl- and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of L-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family hieh

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,lOIL and as amended bythe City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

PageT
Page 455

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"state" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA3 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA3 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

'Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENTTO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA3 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below,

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021- is set forth in Attachment B of this

Rate and Method of Apportionment.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 8
Page 456

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



On each July 1., commencing on July L,2A2L, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum

Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the
revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax revenue is not less than the Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there

will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 9
Page 457

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A3,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA3.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category, Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Prop€rty land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 458

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assesso/s Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 11
Page 459

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if thesum of thetotalcurrent EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect
any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O
Page t2

Page 460

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to L00% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 1OO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 13

Page 461

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfythe Facilities SpecialTax Requirement afterthe
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July L, commencing on July t,2O2L, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 462

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order

to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the

three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in orderto satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than

ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 15
Page 463

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the

Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in

the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or

dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this

may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA3, the City may permit the transfer

of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another

Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction

in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment

to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method

of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 16
Page 464

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



No. 23 lA3 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEW/APPEATS

The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA3 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA3, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page L7
Page 465

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and
permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA3 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of
redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 466

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA3, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 5 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 19

Page 467

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least l.L times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially

prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 50 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA3 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 20

Page 468

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

L. TERM OF ECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 202O-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer

needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 21

Page 469

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 3

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate: Active-
Adult Property(2l3)

Sloo

100

100

100

100

100

40

40

40

40

40

40

500

1,000

1,000

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

$17s

775

775

175

175

t75

t25

125

725

725

725

725

500

1,000

1,000

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l}

S3,886

3,5-11

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,57r

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

L1.,700

71,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Toning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MH D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O
Page22

Page 470

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 3

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyT,2O2l,theMaximumFacilitiesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbytheFacilitiesSpecial TaxEscalationFactor
of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July L,2O2t, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services Special Tax

Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(3) Taxable Property designated as Active-Adult Property shall be assigned a separate Maximum Services Special Tax Rate.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate: Active-
Adult Properly(zlr)

S1oo

40

St,ooo

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(z)

S17s

125

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

Sr,ooo

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

52,900

2,900

Srr,zoo

S18,ooo

s18,000

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 471

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Year 2020-2021)

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July !,2O21, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(21 As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
(3) The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations

being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(4) BasedupontheDevelopedPropertyMaximumFacilitiesSpecial TaxRateforSingle-FamilyDetachedProperty-SF/SFHDZoningand
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O
Page24

2020-2021
Minimum Facilities

p"ys6ug {rXrl

S3,og7,2oo

455,300

0

0

0

S3,5s2,500

2020-202t
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
Special 13x Pa1g(rxzl

S2,9oo

2,900

30,000

t'J.,700

1,t,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

1,068

r57

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(e)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningt+)

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 472

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

{ Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 12x P31g(rxzl

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,000 - 2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MM D Multi-Family Attached Property

MH D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2020
Page 25

Page 473

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

(Fiscal Year 2O2O-2O2ll

1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3

March 26,2O2O

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 16x P31s(rxz)

s_

s

s

s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 474

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates set forth in this table.

( ) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property

- SF/SFH D Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - M LD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
March 26,2O2O

Page27

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

flgyg6Ug (rxzXc)

s

s

2020-202t
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

p31g(rl(z)F)

s

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(l)Land Use Catesory

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningts)

M M D Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 475

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



APPENDIX E: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT -
tA4
The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lA 4

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report ESNBS
Page 476

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

ctw oF FoLsoM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOTSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area 4

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 4 (CFD No. 23

lA4) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23l,A4 Administrator through
the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 231A4, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAT DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessol's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessorrs Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots
or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA4.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA4 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and
providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page 1
Page 477

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA4" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4.

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA4.

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued priortoJune 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA4 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA4, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2A20
Page 2

Page 478

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



23l.A4, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA4, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities SpecialTax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 231A4 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23',A4 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 231A4 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23l,A4.

"Fiscal Yeay'' means the period starting July L and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2O2O

Page 3
Page 479

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"fVlaximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means L8;O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA4 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-FamilyAttached Property" means allAssessor's Parcels forwhich a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OIt and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OL1and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 4

Page 480

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA4 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA4.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 231A4, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 23'A4.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA4, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries
and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services SpecialTax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.)within CFD No. 231A4.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA4, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O

Page 5
Page 481

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or

similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA4
Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or

modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing SpecialTax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA4, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts

estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23',A4 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percent A%1. ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23iA4 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or

replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 482

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OtI and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OIt and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
and the Services SpecialTax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 56410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

'Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA4 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23|.A4 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O

Page 7
Page 483

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

'nTrustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENTTO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA4 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

AllTaxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA4
according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be equalto or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O20-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July 'J.,2O2L, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 8

Page 484

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any
Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned
Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated
by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable
Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M ulti-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any
remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater
than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2O2O

Page 9
Page 485

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A4,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA4.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total
Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 10

Page 486

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 25,2020
Page 11-

Page 487

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect

any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the

Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O

Page L2Page 488

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property
subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,
Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Large Lot Propertyforthe entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 1rOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 13

Page 489

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA4 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July 1-,202L, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23i,A  and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

Special Tax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA4.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 14Page 490

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA4 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA4 Facilities SpecialTaxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (L0%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impracticaltheir utilization for any use otherthan the purposes set forth in

the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 15

Page 491

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this

may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A4, the City may perm it the transfer

of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another

Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction

in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment

to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method

of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA4 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.

lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O

Page 16Page 492

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No, 23 lA4 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the SpecialTax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA4 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City
Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA4
Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years'SpecialTaxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA4, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and
permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA4 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page t7Page 493

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in
Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA4, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 18Page 494

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiplythe Bond Redemption Amount bythe applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 5: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 5 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment
Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O

Page 19Page 495

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least l-.L times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.l- above
F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency
that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA4 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA4 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least L.L times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2020
Page 20Page 496

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



t. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 and shall be
levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page2IPage 497

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 4

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate{z1

s2os

205

205

205

205

205

140

740

740

r40

740

740

500

1,000

1,000

2020-202t
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Ratell)

Ss,ese

3,57r

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,577

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,9OO

30,000

1I,700

Ll,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2O2O

Page22
Page 498

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 4

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

(1) On each July 1, commencing on .luly L,2027, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation

Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(2) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyT,2O2l,theMaximumServicesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbyanamountequal totheServices

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

March 26,2O2O
Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax RatePl

S2os

r40

s1,000

S1,1oo

S1,1oo

2020-202t
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l}

S2,9oo

2,900

s11,7oo

S20,ooo

$20,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 499

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2021)

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July 7,2O2I, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(2) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
(3) The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations

being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(4) Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2020

Page24

2020-2021
Minimum Facilities

pgygnug (rX3)

S1,061,400

727,900

0

0

0

S1,789,300

2020-2021
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x 331g{rxzl

s2,900

2,9OO

30,000

11,,700

11,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

356

257

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Property

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(a)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+)

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD M ulti-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 500

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

{Fiscal Year 2020-2021)

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 12x P31g(rxz)

5

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2O2O

Page 25
Page 501

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2O2O

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x Pa1g(r)lz)

s

s

s

s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 502

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fi sca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
( ) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4
March 26,2O2O

Page27

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

P"r"nu" (rXz)le)

s_

s

2020-202L
Developed Propefi
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

p31.(rXz)(rl

s

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(llLand Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(s)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 503

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



APPENDIX F: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT -
lA5
The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lA 5.

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report F

(JINBS
Page 504

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACITITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

lmprovement Area 5

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 5 (CFD No. 23

lA5) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator through

the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 23 lA5, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of !982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessot's Parcel" or "Patcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor/s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA5 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 1Page 505

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 2t lA5" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5.

"CatV" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA5.

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued priortoJune 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA5 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Propefi" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA5, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2A2O
Page 2Page 506

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



23 lA5, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA5, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA5 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%l annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA5 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Fiscal Yea/' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 3Page 507

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means t.$O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA5 Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zOIt and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential

land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zO1.L and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 4Page 508

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23 lA5, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA5, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries

and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately'' means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Fac.ilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 5Page 509

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or

similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA5

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department, Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing SpecialTax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA5, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA5 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percent $%1. ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA5 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or

replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 6
Page 510

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the

CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MtD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or

attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zOLt and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20L'J" and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA5 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
PageTPage 511

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA5

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O20-2021 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July 1.,2O2'J., the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 8
Page 512

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into [arge Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 25,2020
Page 9

Page 513

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA5,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA5.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned uSing the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 10
Page 514

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set
forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated
to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 11

Page 515

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if thesum of thetotalcurrent EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect

any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small-Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page t2

Page 516

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property

subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created
prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to lOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 13
Page 517

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAT TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA5 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July L, commencing on July L,202I, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA5 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

Special Tax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 14
Page 518

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall
determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on
all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA5 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any
Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA5 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property, Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 15
Page 519

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities SpecialTax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA5, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method
of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA5 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page 16

Page 520

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA5 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City

Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA5

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA5, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the SpecialTax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIALTAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and
permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA5 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page L7

Page 521

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service,

K.1. Prepayment in Full

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined

in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the

Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA5, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 18
Page 522

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount

of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from

the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest

redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the

reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the

redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the

balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption

Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the

Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the

Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the

amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 19
Page 523

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equalto percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii)the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 50 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA5 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Speiial
Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page20

Page 524

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



t. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer

needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page27

Page 525

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fiscal Year 2020-2021)

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Maximum

Services Special
Tax RatePl

SlGs

165

155

155

165

165

85

85

85

85

85

85

500

1,000

1,000

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l}

S3,gg6

3,57r

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

3,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

tl,700

tL,700

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page22

Page 526

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July L,2O2L, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation

Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(2) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyt,2O2l,theMaximumServicesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbyanamountequal totheServices

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
March 26,2O2O

Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate{2l

S16s

85

s1,ooo

S1,ooo

51,ooo

2020-202L
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rateti)

S2,9oo

2,900

s11,7oo

520,000

S2o,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 527

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Year 2020-2021)

On each July 1, commencing on July t,2O2l, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.

The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(2)

(3)

(4)

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page24

2020-202t
Minimum Facilities

pgygllug (rl(31

S806,2oo

1,t62,900

291,000

208,260

274,950

$2,749,}to

2020-202L
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPeciall3x q31s{rxzl

S2,9oo

2,900

30,000

7L,700

t!,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

278

40L

9.7

77.8

23.5

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning{a)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 528

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciall6a p31s(r)(z)

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page 25

Page 529

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
March 26,2O2O

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPeciall2l P31g(r)e)

s

q

s_
s

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 530

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
(a) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
March 26,2O2O

Page27

2020-202L
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

f,gygnUg lrxzlla)

s

s_

2020-2021
Developed Propefi
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

p31"(r)(zIr)

s_

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acre5(11land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(s)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 531

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



APPENDIX G: RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT -
rA6

The following pages provide a copy of the Rate and Method of Apportionment for lA 6.

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Public Hearing Report G
(DNBS

Page 532

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOTSOM

COMMUNITY FACITITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOTSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area 6

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area 6 (CFD No. 23

lA6) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator through

the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real property

within CFD No. 23 lA6, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes,

to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAT DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,550.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessot's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 146.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September L't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA5 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 1

Page 533

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"CFD No. 23 lA6" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6.

"Caly" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 146.

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum,Facilities Special Tax" means the tot;l maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA6 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA5, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 2
Page 534

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



23 lA6, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA5 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Facto/' means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA6 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount design6ted by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No, 23 lA6 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facifities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Fiscal Yeay'' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page 3

Page 535

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means t.$O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 146 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,ZOLL and as amended by the City Council,

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residentialland use, onlythat portion of an Assessor's Parceldesignated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OL7 and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O

Page 4
Page 536

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



"Non-Residential Proper$' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably
offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 231A6, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the
future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 23 lA5.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

lA5, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries
and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately'' means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23 lA6.

"Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5, which (a) is owned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 537

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor rArea" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA6

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing SpecialTax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA6 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services Special Tax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percent (a%1. ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA6 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 5

Page 538

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means,'for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached ResidentialUnitswith a permitted density rangeof 7-!2 ResidentialUnits perAcre and more
fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OLI and as amended by

the City Council.

"singfe-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20lt and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 664t0 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

"Taxable Propefi" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA5 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA6 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
PageT

Page 539

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



'Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

'Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENTTO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 IAG shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAT TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 146

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O2O-2O21 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July I,2O2I, the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page 8

Page 540

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property

When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there

will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision'

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total

current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the

Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the

expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page 9

Page 541

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial

prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately

increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA6,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA6,

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated

average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the
Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2O2O
Page 10

Page 542

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated
to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assesso/s Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any
remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 11
Page 543

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect

any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property.

large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map
Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the
Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equalto the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page L2
Page 544

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property

subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each FiscalYear as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to LOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O

Page 13
Page 545

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to allTaxable Property within CFD No. 23 IAG according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July I,2O2L, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA6 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA5.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 14

Page 546

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the

amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfli the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfythe Services SpecialTax Requirement afterthe
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DETINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 146 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 146 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 15

Page 547

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable
Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,
and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA6, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is
transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method
of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA5 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the
interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2020

Page 16
Page 548

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method
of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of
the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was
made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23
lA5 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action (if any by the City
Manager), the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The
decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 146

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure
shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA5, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAVMENT OF FACI LITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and
permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA5 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
March 26,2020

Page 17
Page 549

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

above. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C above. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the finaldate used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest
that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step L: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 146, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page 18

Page 550

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Steo 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,
on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in
the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet
been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived
by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the
balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be
less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund
below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at
the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant
to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment
Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,
and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the
"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2O2O

Page 19
Page 551

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above
F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equalto percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii)the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date
is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the
lndenture. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA5 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities SpecialTax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities SpecialTax obligation equalto
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2020
Page 20

Page 552

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



t. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O20-2021 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer

needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5

March 26,2020
Page2t

Page 553

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202L
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

S17s

775

L75

175

175

775

85

85

85

85

85

85

300

300

0

2020-202t
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(ll

S3,886

3,577

3,559

3,293

3,ooo

2,9OO

3,886

3,571

3,559

3,293

3,000

2,900

30,000

30,000

30,000

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2O2O

Page22
Page 554

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July L,2O2l, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation
Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) OneachJulyl,commencingonJulyL,2O2L,theMaximumServicesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbyanamountequal totheServices
Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) Excludes Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property zoned for non-residential land use.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2O2O

Page 23

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s17s

85

53oot't

Ssoo

Ssoo

2020-2021
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(ll

Sz,goo

2,900

S11,7oo

S3o,ooo

S3o,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 555

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Year 2020-2021)

On each July 1, commencing on July I,2O2l, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and MinimrJm Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
and Single-Fami[ Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2O2O

Page 24

2020-202t
Minimum Facilities

g"ygnUg (rl(r)

So

0

285,000

108,810

133,380

$szl,tgo

2020-202L
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 13x P21g(rrzl

s2,900

2,900

30,000

17,700

1,7,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

0

0

9.5

9.3

71-.4

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoningt+l

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(a)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 556

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2O-2O2LI

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-2021.
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciall.* P2lglrllzl

s

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,000 - 2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Propefi

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2O2O

Page 25
Page 557

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

{ Fisca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2ll

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
March 26,2O2O

Page 26

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 131 P31s(rxz)

s

s

s

s_

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 558

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fi sca I Y ear 2O2O-2O2tl

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
( ) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6

March 26,2O2O
Page27

2020-202t
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

pgygtrUg lr)lzxl)

s

s

2020-202t
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

pslg(rIz)F)

s

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres{11Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningtsl

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD M ulti-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 559

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



ATTACHMENT 22

Page 560

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



PETITION

TO CREATE A

COMMINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
(Including Landowner Waiver and Appointment of Representative)

City Council
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California

Members ofthe City Council:

This is a petition to create a community facilities district, a waiver with respect to certain
procedural matters, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the "Act") and an

appointment of representative to act for the property owner in voting and casting ballots under
the Act, and the undersigned hereby states as follows:

1. Landowner. This Petition is submitted by the undersigned (the "Landowners") as the
owners of 100% of the area of land proposed to be included within the community facilities
district and not proposed to be exempt from the special taxes proposed to be levied in the

community facilities district. The individual owners are identified on Exhibit A attached hereto

and made a part hereof.

2. Proceedings Requested. The Landowners hereby request that the City Council (the

"City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City") institute proceedings pursuant to the Act to
establish a community facilities district to be named "City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" (the "Community Facilities District"), to designate separate

improvement areas therein as specified in the below referenced boundary map, to levy special
taxes in the Community Facilities District and to authorize special tax bonds for each

improvement area in an aggregate amount not to exceed S422,000,000.

3. Boundaries of Communify Facilities District. The boundaries of the territory
proposed for inclusion in the Community Facilities District and designation into each

improvement arca are described in Exhibit B attached hereto and made apart hereof.

4. Facilities and Services. The facilities to be financed by the Community Facilities
District are described in Exhibit C attached hereto and made a part hereof. The services to be

financed by the Community Facilities District are described in Exhibit D attached hereto and

made a part hereof.

5. Rate and Method of Apportionment. The proposed Rate and Method of
Apportionment of Special Tax for each improvement area is described in Exhibit E attached
hereto and made a part hereof.

4133-2313-6289.8
Page 561

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



6. Elections. The Landowners hereby request that the special elections to be held under
the Act to authorize the special taxes in the Community Facilities District, to designate the
improvement areas therein, to authorize the issuance of the bonds for the Community Facilities
District and to establish an appropriations limit for the Community Facilities District be

consolidated into a single election and that the elections be conducted by the City and its officials
using mailed or hand-delivered ballots and that such ballots be opened and canvassed and the

results certified at the same meeting of the City Council as the public hearings on the
Community Facilities District under the Act, or as soon thereafter as possible.

7. Waiver. To expedite the completion of the proceedings for the Community Facilities
District, the Landowners hereby waive all notices of hearings (other than published notices
required under the Act) and all notices of election, all applicable waiting periods under the Act
for the elections, all ballot analysis and arguments for the elections and all requirements as to the

form of the ballots.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing paragraph, each Landowner hereby

specifically certifies, waives, agrees, states and consents as follows:

(a) such Landowner certifies that, as of the date of this Petition, it is the entity
that would be legally entitled and authorizedto cast the ballots attributable to the parcels

listed on Exhibit A hereto in the above-referenced elections.

(b) such Landowner waives any and all minimum time periods relative to the

elections pursuant to Government Code Section 53326(a);

(c) such Landowner waives the preparation and distribution of an impartial
analysis of the ballot measures, as well as arguments in favor and against, under the

authority of Government Code Section 53327(b);

(d) such Landowner waives the requirement to publish notice of the elections
under Government Code Section 53352;

(e) such Landowner waives the requirements regarding the time to mail ballots to
the qualified electors under Elections Code Section4l0l, and agrees that either mailed
service or personal service of the ballots will be sufficient;

(f) such Landowner waives the requirements regarding identification envelopes

for the return of mailed ballots contained in Government Code Section 53327.5;

(g) such Landowner waives any and all defects in notice or procedure in the

conduct of the elections, whether known or unknown (except the right to vote and to have

the ballots fairly counted), and states that the elections are being expedited, pursuant to
this Petition, at the particular instance and request of the Landowner; and

(h) such Landowner consents to the levy and collection of the special tax on all
parcels listed on Exhibit A hereto and waives any and all rights to challenge the inclusion

2
4133-23t3-6289.8

Page 562

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



of any of such parcels in the Community Facilities District and any and all other
proceedings related thereto.

Each Landowner hereby represents that it has obtained such information with respect to the

waivers contained herein as it has deemed necessary or appropriate. Such Landowner hereby

confirms and represents that it is fully informed with respect to such waivers and fully understands

the consequences thereof.

8. Representations and Warranties; No Registered Voters. Each Landowner hereby

represents and warrantsto the City that (a) the Landowner is, as of the date of this Petition, the
legal owner of the fee interest in 100% of the property identified on ExhibitA as owned by it,
proposed to be included within the Community Facilities District and not proposed to be exempt
from the special taxes and that no other person or entity is the legal owner of all or any portion of
the fee interest in any of such property, (b) the Landowner has the power and authority to
execute and deliver this Petition, and has taken all action necessary to cause this Petition to be

executed and delivered on its behalf, and this Petition has been duly and validly executed and

delivered on behalf of the Landowner. There are no registered voters residing within the
boundaries of the territory proposed for inclusion in the Community Facilities District and there
have been none during the 90-day period preceding the date of this Petition.

9. Appointment of Representative. The Landowners hereby authorize the persons

listed on Exhibit A hereto to act in all respects for the parcels listed on Exhibit A and in casting
the votes and executing the ballots assigned to the parcels listed thereon for the elections
described in paragraph 6 of this Petition.

10. Mailing Address. The address of the Landowners for receiving notices is specified
in Exhibit A.

[Signature Pages Follow]

aJ
4133-2313-6289.8

Page 563

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



This Petition is dated u, of ilIa,il b.zozo.

Folsom Real Estate South, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: HBT Mangtni,LLC.,

a Delaware limited liabilrty company

Its

By
William B. Bunce

Its: Manager

West Scott Road, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: FIBTMangini,LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Its: Mem

By

William B. Bunce

Its: Manager

Easton Valley Holdings, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: HBT Carpenter, LLC,
a Delaware limited liabilrty company

Its: Mem

By
William B. Bunce

Its: Manager

4
4133-2313-6289.8

Page 564

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Oak Avenue Holdings, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: IIBT Hillsborough, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:

WilliamB. Bunce

Its: Ivlanager

HBT Arcadian, LLC,
a California oompany

By:

William B. Bunce, IManager

East Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC,
a California limited liability company

By: IIBT ECIC, LLC,
a California limited liability company

Its: Managing Mgtnber n

h.CLr.t',-.1By
Name: William B. Bunce

Its: Manager

5
4133-2313-6289.8

Page 565

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



KB HOME SACRAMENTO rNC.,
a California corporation

By:

Name:

Title:

Leo Pantoja

Vice President nnrng

FR 68 LOTS, LLC,
a California limited liability company

By: SIGNATURE HOMES, INC.,
a California corporation

Its: Managing Member

By:
Name: Gary L. Galindo
Its: President

6
4133-2313-6289.8

Page 566

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



KB IIOM& SACTTAMENTO INC.,
a Cal ifornia corporation

By,

Name:

Tith:

FR68 LOTS, tLC.
s Califomia limited lilbility somF&ny

By: SICNATLIREHOMES,INC.,
a (hlifomia corporotion

Itr: Mannging Mcmbor

By:
Name:
Its: Presldent

L.

6
,.t3].23t]{249.t

Page 567

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 568

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Community Facilities District Formation

City Council Presentation on May 26, 2020Page 569

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

• Landowners within the Folsom Plan Area (“FPA”) have 

requested that the City form Community Facilities District No. 23 

(Folsom Ranch) (CFD No. 23)

• CFD No. 23 includes six separate Improvement Areas, 

designated as Improvement Area (“IA”) No. 1 through IA No. 6

• Formation of CFD No. 23 is subject to the Mello-Roos Act (Gov 

Code Section 53311) and City policies regarding land-secured 

financing districts
Page 570

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Proposed development within CFD No. 23 will include:

IA
SF 

Units

SF High-
Density 

Units

MF Low-
Density 

Units

MF Medium 
Density 
Acreage

MF High 
Density 
Acreage

Non-
Residential 

Acreage
IA 1 0 441 257 0.0 9.8 0.0

IA 2 0 0 340 0.0 0.0 5.1

IA 3 0 1,068 157 0.0 0.0 0.0

IA 4 100 266 251 0.0 0.0 0.0

IA 5 84 194 401 9.7 17.8 23.5

IA 6 0 0 0 9.5 9.3 11.4
Page 571

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Page 572

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

On April 14, 2020, the City Council previously approved:

• Resolution No. 10414, Appointing Consultants, Approving a 
Proposed Boundary Map and Declaring Intention to Form a 
Community Facilities District to be Named “City of Folsom 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)” and to Levy 
Special Taxes therein

• Resolution No. 10415, Declaring the Necessity for Incurring Bonded 
Indebtedness in and for the City of Folsom Community Facilities 
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and in and for each Improvement 
Area Designated therein and Calling for a Public Hearing thereon

Page 573

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

• Intended to provide funding for PFFP backbone infrastructure and 
facilities, including related environmental mitigation obligations.

• Infrastructure and facilities included are transportation improvements, 
water and recycled water system improvements, wastewater and 
drainage system improvements, park, parkway and open space 
improvements, and payment of specific plan infrastructure fee program 
obligation.  

• Services included are project specific maintenance services including 
landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light maintenance, 
medians, entries and entry monumentation, neighborhood parks, 
community amenities, and storm water management.

Page 574

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

CFD No. 23 Facilities Special Tax

• Can be levied for 50 years the year following the first building permit or debt 

issuance, and no later than FY 2079-80, at City Council discretion.

• Maximum facilities special tax increased annually by 2%.

• Maximum facilities special tax ranges from $2,900 on a low-density multi 

family home to $3,886 on a low-density single-family home.

CFD No. 23 Services Special Tax

• Levied in perpetuity at City Council discretion.

• Maximum services special tax increased annually by the annualized change in 

the CPI.

• Maximum services special tax ranges from $85 to $210 for all residential units.Page 575

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

CFD No. 23 property tax as % of estimated assessed 

value:

• SF/SF High-Density Zoning: 1.84% - 1.87%

• MF Low-Density Zoning: 1.86% - 1.90%

Page 576

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Recommended City Council Action:

• Conduct the Public Hearing

• Approve the resolution forming CFD No. 23 (Resolution No. 10435)

• Approve the resolutions deeming it necessary to incur bonded indebtedness 
for each Improvement Area (Resolution Nos. 10436 through 10441)

• Approve the resolutions calling for a special mailed ballot election for each 
Improvement Area (Resolution Nos. 10442 through 10447)

• Approve the resolutions declaring results of the special mailed ballot election 
for each Improvement Area (Resolution Nos. 10448 through 10453)

• Introduce and provide the first reading of the ordinance levying a special tax 
(Ordinance No. 10305)

Page 577

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



This page intentionally left blank.

Page 578

05/26/2020; Item No. 7.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

Move to adopt Resolution No. 10458 - A Resolution Determining that the Creekstone Phase

1 Subdivision Project is Exempt from CEQA and Approving a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, Planned Development Permit, and the Inclusionary Housing Plan for the

Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Project

BACKGROI IND / ISSIIFJ,

The proposed project site is part of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) approved
by the City Council in 2011, which is a comprehensive development plan for over 3,500

acres south of Highway 50, north of White Rock Road, east of Prairie City Road, and

adjacent to the Sacramento County/El Dorado County line in the southeastern portion of the
City.

The FPASP includes a mix of residential, commercial, employment and public uses,

complemented by recreational amenities including a significant system of parks and open

I

MEETING DATE: s12612020

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision - Southeast Corner of East

Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway in the Folsom Plan Area
(PN 1e-Ose)

I Resolution No. 10458 - A Resolution Determining that the
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Project is Exempt from
CEQA and Approving a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, Planned Development Permit, and the

Inclusionary Housing Plan for the Creekstone Phase 1

Subdivision Project

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 579

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



space, all within close proximity to one another and interconnected by a network of
"complete streets", trails and bikeways. The FPASP is consistent with the SACOG Blueprint
Principles and the requirements of SB 375 (Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection
Act).

The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project site is designated Multifamily Low Density
(MLD) in the FPASP, which provides for development at 7.0 to 12.0 units per acre. An
excerpt from the FPASP Land Use Map is shown below. This designation is consistent with
the site's MLD land use designation in the Folsom General Plan.

FIGURE 1: FPASP LAND USE MAP EXCERPT

Ui!
a

SP-MtD
SP-SFHD

SP-SF SP.SFHD SP.SFHD SP.SFHD
SP-5FHD

sP-os1

SP-sFHD

sP-os2

SP.SFHD
sP-os1

sP-os1

SP-SFHD

The project site is vacant but has been mass graded as part of the development of the
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Subdivision.

Figures 2 and 3, on the following pages, show aerial photographs of the Creekstone Phase 1

Subdivision project site. The balance of the Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Subdivision project,
currently under development, is visible to the right (east) of the Creekstone site.

2

SP€S2

SP-SFHD

SP-SFHD

('u
SP-SFHD

SP-MLD

PROJECT SITE I
=d_
UI

SP.SFHD

sPosl

sP-Mt"D

sP-cc

Page 580

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



FIGURE 2: AERIAL PHOTO (2020)

PROJECT SITE

-tPage 581

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



FIGURE 3: SITE AERIAL (2020)

The applicant is requesting approval of several related actions to allow the development of 71

single family homes on a 9.88-acre project site including the following entitlements:

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
B. Planned Development Permit (Minor Changes to Development Standards)

C. Minor Administrative Modification (Reallocation of Dwelling Units to Other Parcels)

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

The first component of the applicant's proposal is a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map to create 71 single-family residential lots and 3 landscape lots. The proposed
subdivision layout is shown on the following page. (A more detailed version of the
subdivision map is included as Attachment 3 to this staff report.)

4Page 582

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



s

8urlsxe egl u€ql Jell€rus lseg e;enbs 002 am qc1lly\ 'pesodord eJ€ leeJ oJenbs 008(E Jo ozls

runrururu e qlr^\ slol rouroJ 'u€ld cglcedg eqlgo lclr1slp esn puel C'Itr41 eql ul slol Iellueplser
fpwey-elEurs roJ pr€pu€1s luerudolerrep Eurlsrxe er{l u€ql relletus 1ee; erenbs g, sl qclllv\

'1eeg:erenbs 9Z6'ZJo ozrs turuururw u qlr. a slol JorJolur seJnleeJ uoISIAIpqns pesodord eq1

I

I

I

,l it
f:

I

ir.

i6: 8!
ll

?l .t IC

I

t I71

dt

.al8:

tl

.2 I

IL

:r

rt
I
rt

il

!t CI

i;

C{ 7f J
(r

tf !7'

J' E'
tt I

I

lr?l (1

'JC

ca
Ii

it
I

I

i

I

I

I

i

I

I

I

i lo

.rF
EiE

I

!

I

l
,t

?

_[
---.qE.Fi-i

.rl

smF =iftga1$[fiti.r+-' * " -

) 'Io

il

ii'

,j

ril

lii

l

I

I
fr
l-
I

tti
iti

I

,l
Iri
tliil'
ii

Ir

,l

"i-.,-!rirl
il

.i
itl,
lf
'l

--i

!

I

I

1

JNOAV-I NOISIAICSNS CASOdOUd :' IIUNCIC

Page 583

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



development standard for lots in the MLD land use district. (The applicant has requested a

Planned Development Permit to make these and other minor changes to the development
standards for this subdivision. See the discussion of the Planned Development Permit later in
this staff report.)

Proposed minimum lot sizes and dimensions are shown below.

FIGURE 5: PROPOSED MINIMUM LOT DIMENSIONS

45 MtN. 53.S MtN_

12.5 S|DE

2

=

lcoRNER)

(STREEI}
ROW

MINIMUM LOT

DIAGRAM
MlN. LOT SIZE = 2,925 sl

MAX. LOT COVERAGE = 50%

I
TU

a' stoE

TYP.

z

h

Ov<oq<
()h
P-

The subdivision uses standard public street right-of-way dimensions, including an internal
roadway system with sidewalks on both sides of the street, as shown in Figure 6 on the
following page.

6Page 584

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



FIGURE 6: INTERNAL ROADWAY CROSS SECTION

TYPE 1 C&G
(TYP.)

lr'
icae

4', 7', 11', 1',|' 7'

12.5' 12.s',

PUE q PUE

44',

R^IV RiW

In response to projected traffic levels on East Bidwell and to minimize potential noise
impacts associated with these traffic levels, the project proposes a combination of berms (4-

foot-tall berm), soundwalls (6-foot-tall soundwall), and relatively deep 16-foot rear yards (a

10-foot rear yard setback is required within the subdivision) for the homes adjacent to this

roadway, as shown below in Figure 7.

FIGURE 7: EAST BIDWELL STREET-TO-REAR YARD CROSS SECTION

t

3'

4

:r

PL
;MASONRYWALL

6',

3r8Ar

7

TMVEL
I.ANE

TRAVEL
LANE

22' 22',

PARKING

o
10'

Page 585

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



B. Planned Development Permit

The applicant is seeking approval of a Planned Development Permit which provides project-
specific development standards for the project and architectural designs for the proposed

residential units. The Planned Development Permit includes the following major
components:

o Proposed Revised Development Standards
o Proposed Residential Designs
o Proposed Landscaping

These are discussed below.

Proposed Revised Development Standards

The applicant proposes changes to some FPASP development standards:

1. Minimum lot size for interior lots is proposed to be reduced from 3,000 square feet

to 21925 square feet. Minimum lot size for corner lots is proposed to be reduced
from 3,500 square feet to 31300 square feet.

2. Minimum front yard setbacks for the primary structure, which are proposed to be

reduced from 15 feet to 12.5 feet

3. Minimum garage setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 20 feet to 18 feet

4. Minimum side yard setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 5 feet to 4 feet

The applicant's justification for these proposed changes is based on providing a first-floor
bedroom for the homes. The following text from the applicant summarizes their justification
for the proposed changes in development standards:

As part of our submittal we are requesting afew minor modffications to the MLD
development standards. The primary factor driving our request for setback
modifications is so that we can offer a downstairs bedroom in two of the three plans.

This feature has become a very desirable amenity ffiring a space for a home ffice,
guest accommodations or afamily member bedroom. Field surveys in the Folsom
market of active communities has shown this feature being one of the top requests

from buyers. Thirty-sevenfeet is the ideal width to achieve afunctional downstairs
bedroom. Placing the room forward of the garage creates a more desirable front
elevation and pedestrian experience. Our minor modffication requests associated
with architecture include front, interior side, and garage setback modffications.

8Page 586

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Proposed Residential Designs

The proposed project includes the construction of 71 single family homes in three different
configurations-l, 2, and 3-and three architectural styles. All of the homes are proposed in
a two-story configuration, with downstairs bedrooms in Plan 2 and Plan 3.

Proposed architectural styles are:

o Italian Villa
o Spanish Colonial
o Western Farmhouse

All three architectural styles are proposed to be used for all unit types, with a variety of
colors and materials as shown in the applicant's bound submittal booklet (Attachment 18).

The applicant's submittal describes the architectural styles as follows:

Creekstone elevation designs are Spanish Colonial, Italian Villa and Western

Farmhouse, consistent with the fabric of existing historic Folsom community. Each
plan offers each elevation style. Combined with nine pre-plotted color schemes, there

is limited duplication of same plan, elevation, and color combination. These styles

each carry a strong character and together, create a neighborhoodfull ofvarying
interests. Roofs vary informs, pitches, style, and heights. Two-story buildings
include one-story massing. Thoughtful breaks in massing are achieved to provide
visual interest at elevations exposed to public view. The front door, garage door and
coach light selections vary per elevation and are architecturally compatible with the

theme of each home. Combined, all these designfeatures, create visual interest and a
p e de s tri an fr i endly s tr e e ts c ap e.

Spanish Colonial - The simply articulated design combines light colored stucco

wall finish, terra cotta colored villa roof tiles, with pops of color on the window
shutters. Lines are clean, cantilevers are highlightedwith curved corbels, and roof
lines are traditionally low-pitched gables.

Western Farmhouse - This asymmetrical cottage design integrates a series of gable
roofs in the massing and the introduction of siding and brick, for character and
texture. The traditional steep-pitched roof, accentuoted by the gable end board and
batt finish, provides for variety in the eave lines within the streetscope.

Italian Villa - Strong punctuations of material and detail highlight the Italian Villa,
the most formal of the three styles. Stone veneer-finished walls create a strong base,

corner treatments frame the wall planes, andwindows are centered and highlighted
with a wide trim surround, The style calls for a hip roof design.

a

o

9Page 587

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Illustrations of the proposed architectural styles applied to the proposed residential designs

are shown below and on the following page.

FIGURE 8: PLAN 1 ELEVATIONS

Front Elevolion - lA - Sponish Coloniol

Front Elevotlon - lC - ltolion Villo Front Elevqtion - lB - Western Formhouse

10Page 588

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



FIGURE 9: PLAN 2 ELEVATIONS

W',--

Front Elevolion - 2C - ltollon Villo

FIGURE 10: PLAN 3 ELEVATIONS

Froni Elevotion - 2A - Sponlsh Coloniol

Front Elevotion - 3A - Sponish Coloniol

Front Elevotion - 28 - Wesiern Formhoue

ffir"'"

Front Elevofion - 3C - liolion Villo

11

Front Elevotion - 38 - Wesiern Formhouse

Page 589

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Typical floorplans for each unit type are shown in the figures below and on the following
pages. As noted earlier, Plans 2 and 3 include a downstairs bedroom.

FIGURE 1 1: PLAN 1 FLOORPLAN

41f

Floor Plon
3 Bedrooms
2.5 Boths
1896 s.f.

47frSecond Floor
l0S4 s.f.

FIGURE 12: PLAN 2 FLOORPLAN

OPT. iTASTER BATH

:

First Floor

-tY2:t'- - -

Floor
965 s.f.

L,q.t c9!€{CS9 ESlCVlStimt
F6t Floor 842 Sq. Ft.

Goroge 4255q. Ft.

Porch 9l Sq. Ft.

Totol: 1358 Sq. Fl.

Iolol Eullding Coveroge

hth

I
'''r'ftr--iti i n I

, i:[
il

:l

Second Floor
1084 s.f.

Opt. Loft

Floq Plon
4 8€drogms
Opl. l"ott
3 Eoths
2049 s.t.

Lol Coverogs Cqlcublions
F6l Roq 965Sq. Fl.
Gorqge 419 Sq, Ft,
Pdch 72 Sq. Ft.

t:

b

il' '[
ilLnt, .lIJ lrl :''1

'HiAI+II ---l

1

I
I

Gorcrb
a

!olh

ll
i1

,i.f

I

I

).t
._,J

I
t\

d'-r iflr I

'-r I

D ow ns t air s b e dr o om hi ghl i ght e d

t2

Totol: I 456 5q. Ft, 
I

_ _ L p:_.gHi"sc:lgos9_sg_]

Page 590

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



.()

FIGURE 13: PLAN 3 FLOORPLAN

ill-I
OPT, MASTER EATH

Second Floor

o' 't' ''
lt l l't t'lt.._l
| . i.r.! |

I

.-t: 1il,
4,,

Floor

Floor Plon
4 Bedroom! + Lotl
3 Eoihs
2300s.f.

Lol coverooe Colculoliont
itst n@--lsr sqjtr i

Gorog€ 42OSq. Ft. I

989 s.l.

l3l I s.f.

Porch 18 Sq. Fi. 
iTotol: 1457 Sq. Ft. 
I

]:t.*"]1'^" 
.."".1r_ 

Y_l

Downstair s b e dr o om hi ghlighte d

Existing and Proposed Landscaping

Existing landscaping and sidewalks are present within a 20-foot-wide landscape corridor
located along the east side of East Bidwell Street and within a 30-foot-wide landscape

corridor located along the south side of Mangini Parkway. The applicant is proposing to
provide an additional five feet of landscaping along East Bidwell Street in order to
accommodate a four-foot-tall berm, increasing the width of this landscape buffer to 25 feet.
Accordingly, the existing 2O-foot-wide landscape easement located along the East Bidwell
Street frontage is being widening to 25 feet as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map.

The applicant is proposing to install new landscaping in the front yards and street side yards

of the new homes within the subdivision. Homeowners will be responsible for landscaping
the rear yards of the individual homes. Front yard landscaping has been designed by the

applicant to complement the proposed architecture and to work within the front yard areas

available.

The applicant describes the landscaping concept for the front yards as follows:

"The front yard landscaping proposedfor this community has been thoughtfully
planned providing an aesthetically pleasing design that includes a mix of shrub
accent planting and ornamental grasses combined with accent boulders for added

13Page 591

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



vertical interest. By omitting the turf, these designs are more water fficient and
require les s maintenance.

Much effort was put into selecting the trees proposedfor this community. Working
with the Folsom City Arborist, great care was taken in selecting trees with
appropriate characteristicsfor the planting space provided. The proposed trees are
known to be successful in small planting areas, ore considered non-invasive and
utility friendly. In addition, they provide a combination of canopy shapes, colors and
heights rangingfrom I0'-50', The designs provide a tree planting zone averaging
206 square feet offering ample space for the proposed minimum one tree per lot.

Additional planning is in place to mitigate concerns about long term tree success.

First, our target tree planting zone avoids garage sides of the lot entirely reducing
utility conflicts considerably. In addition, as we do with any installation, contractors
will be directed to maintain minimum distances from utilities and hardscapes. Should
any minimum distance not be met, root baruiers will be added."

The applicant has discussed appropriate tree species with the City's Arborist and has selected

a list of trees which will fit within space available (shown below). The updated tree list is
included in the applicant's submittal book, attached to this staff report (Attachment 18).

FIGURE 14: TREES IN FRONT YARD AREAS

20'Canopy
40'Height

I5'Canopy
25'Height

,{

h-1 ----.1

Selected trees for the front yard areas include:

o Arbutus unedo Marina "Strawberry Tree"
o Cercis occidentalis "Western Redbud"
o Lagerstroemia Hybrid Natchez "Crape Myrtle"
o Podocarpus macrophyllus "Yew Pine"
o Prunus caroliniana "Carolina Laurel Cherry"
. Pyrus calleryana Chanticleer "Chanticleer Pear"

I4Page 592

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



A11 of these trees have either a relatively small canopy size (e.g., the crape myrtle) or have a

tall, vertical form (e.g., the yew pine) that will fit in the proposed front yard areas. Due to

their size, these species are more commonly used as "accent" trees in a palette that includes
larger "canopy" trees when enough space is available.

C. MinorAdministrativeModification

The parcel (Parcel 143) on which the Creekstone Phase I Subdivision project is located is

designated by the FPASP for the development of 86 residential units. Because the applicant
is proposing to construct only 71 residential units on the subject parcel, a Minor
Administrative Modification is proposed to reallocate the 15 unused residential units to two
other sites (Parcel 24 and Parcel 173) within the Folsom Plan Area. These other two sites or
parcels have not been mapped, and no development applications are currently on file with the

City.

Parcel 24 andParcel I73 are both designated MLD by the FPASP (as is the Creekstone Phase

1 Subdivision parcel). The increase in the number of units allocated to these sites (6 units
added to Parcel 24 and 9 units added to Parcel 173) would not require a change in the land

use designation for either site as each parcel has available capacity to accept additional units.
The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision site and the proposed locations (all of which are under
the same ownership group/Mangini Improvement Company, Inc.) for the reallocated
residential units are shown in Figure 15 on the following page.

l5Page 593

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



FIGURE 15: PROPOSED REALLOCATION OF 15 DWELLING UNITS

The proposed project was considered by the Planning Commission at its May 6,2020
meeting. The Commission engaged in a thorough review of the proposed project including
discussions regarding the site design of the subdivision, development standards

modifications, placement and orientation of the homes on specific lots, architecture and

design of the master plans, and timing of roadway improvements. A detailed discussion of
each of the aforementioned topics is included within the analysis section of this staff report.

Based on staff 's recommendation, the Commission added a new condition of approval
(Condition No. 53) to the project which alerts the property owner that the subject property is
subject to inclusionary housing requirements for rental units (even though landowner is not
currently contemplating a residential rental project on the subject property) in the event that

the City Council amends its Inclusionary Housing Ordinance in the future to make the

Ordinance applicable to rental units. No members of the public spoke regarding the
proposed project. The Planning Commission adopted a motion (5-0-0-2) to recommend

approval of the proposed project to the City Council, subject to the conditions of approval

included with this report.

TO
HERE

FROM
HERE

r!--'Dt;

a
u

o

I
1

tt It

li

a

ls

t{

,j
'" j.J'

I
I

.J

i" ''

l?t Il

'' ,'.1.

\

0J.

FPASP Porcel 143
Holding Copocity=86du

l-lsdul
Re5ulling Copocily=71 du

a

,,

ra

:,ta\l '

ll

n

at;

n

FPASP Po,cel 24
H,ridinlj Capocily= I 4/d! ( i6ihrJ

Re5r rllir rg C.ip{ri ilv= I 53dfi,

TO
HERE

'"tb'i
s

)

w{sg.!E

Legend
r . FPASPPrtcrlNunbrt| " tseg Tabu 4.3 br mto d.ldl )

Dwetling [Jnit Allocation
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

ffi

FPASP Porcel I 73
I iolding Capqcily=224clu

{ 
+9.t{r)

CoPocilY= 23:idu

T6Page 594

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



POLICY / RULE

The Folsom Municipal Code (FMC) requires that applications for Tentative Subdivision
Maps be forwarded to the City Council for final action, following a public hearing and

recommendation by the Planning Commission. City Council actions regarding Tentative

Subdivision Maps are covered under Section 16.16.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

ANALYSIS

The following sections provide an analysis of the applicant's proposal. Staff s analysis

includes:

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

B. Planned Development Permit (Minor Changes to Development Standards)

o Proposed Revised Development Standards

o Proposed Residential Designs
. Proposed Landscaping

C. Traffrc/Access/Circulation
D. Parking
E. Noise Impacts
F. Walls/Fencing
G. Inclusionary Housing
H. Frontage Improvements
I. Minor Administrative Modification (Shift of Dwelling Units to Other Parcels)

This section also includes a discussion of the project's performance with relation to relevant

policies in the Folsom General Plan and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan:

J. Conformance with Relevant Folsom General Plan Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

Objectives and Policies

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

As shown on the submitted Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (Attachment 3),

the proposed subdivision includes 7l single family residential lots, 3 landscape lots, and two

internal public streets (Cantor Drive and Cash Drive). The proposed project will be required

to dedicate public right-of-way for the two internal public streets. The project is not required

to dedicate any additional public right-of-way along East Bidwell Street or Mangini Parkway

as the right-of-way for these two roadways has previously been dedicated. As shown on the

Subdivision Map, the applicant is also proposing to expand an existing landscape easement

located along the East Bidwell Street frontage from 20 to 25 feet in width in order to

accommodate a new landscape berm.

t7Page 595

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



As mentioned previously, all roadways within the subdivision are proposed to be public

streets. As a result, staff has included a condition (Condition No. 41) that requires the

applicant to dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific

Gas and Electric, cable television, telephone) on properties adjacent to the streets.

As noted earlier, the applicant is proposing changes to the development standards of the

FPASP to accommodate the lots proposed. These include a minimum lot size of 21925

square feet for interior lots and 3,300 Square feet for corner lots.

Based on the proposed subdivision map, more than half of the proposed lots (58%) arclarger

than 3,000 square feet, the minimum size that would apply if the applicant's proposed change

were not approved. A total of six (6) lots would be at the minimum proposed size (2,925

square feet). All lots and their proposed size are shown below. Interior lots below 3,000

square feet and corner lots smaller than 3,500 square feet are highlighted to demonstrate

which lots require the revised development standards proposed by the applicant.

Creekstone Phase I Subdivision Proposed Lot Sizes

Lot# Size (sfl Lot# Size (sfl Lot# Size (sfl

1 3"640 2s (.c\ 3^445 49 2.970

z ) q)\
ry 26 2.970 50 2.970

a
J 2.925 27 2.970 51 2.970

4 2.92s 28 2^970 s2 (.c\ 3.445

5 2.927 29 2^970 s3 (c) 3.398

6 4.1 88 30 2.970 54 2.941

7 6.327 31 2.970 55 3.000

I 4^271 32 2.970 56 5.187

2 3.357 aa
-J -1 2.970 57 s.392

10 3.367 34 2.970 58 3.t99
11 3^377 35 2.970 59 3"195

t2 3.3 88 36 2"970 60 3"195

l3 3.398 JI 2.970 6l 3.1 95

l4 3.407 38 (C) 3.445 62 3"195

15 3.418 3e (c) 3.44s 63 3^r95

T6 3.428 40 2.970 64 3.1 95

t7 3.438 4l 2.970 65 3.t9s
18 3.448 42 2.970 66 3.1 95

t9 3.458 43 2.970 67 3.1 95

20 3^468 44 2.970 68 3^r95

2I 3.478 45 2^970 69 3^r95

22 3.488 46 2^970 70 3.195

18Page 596

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



23 3.498 47 2"970 71 (C) 3^713

24 3^914 48 2^970

(a Lot
lot smaller than

Interior lot 2.951 to 3.000 sf
Corner lot than 3.500 sf

These are discussed below

Staff has determined that the proposed Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

complies with all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of the State

Subdivision Map Act.

B. Planned Development Permit

The following are proposed as part of the applicant's Planned Development Permit:

o Proposed Revised Development Standards

o Proposed Residential Designs
o Proposed Landscaping

Revised Development Stanelarels

The applicant is requesting approval of a Planned Development Permit which would deviate

from the development standards established by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan for
residential lots with an MLD designation. Changes are proposed to standards for lot sizes,

garage setbacks, and building setbacks, as described earlier in this staff report.

The applicant's justification for the revised development standards is provided below

As part of our submittal we are requesting a few minor modifications to the MLD
development standards. The primaryfactor driving our requestfor setback

modifications is so that we can offer a downstairs bedroom in two of the three plans.

This feature has become a very desirable amenity offiring a space for a home ffice,
guest accommodations or afamily member bedroom. Field surveys in the Folsom

market of active communities has shown this feature being one of the top requests

.from buyers. Thirty-sevenfeet is the ideal width to achieve afunctional downstairs

bedroom. Placing the roomforward of the garage creates a more desirable front
elevation and pedestrian experience. Our minor modification requests associated

with architecture include front, interior side, and garage setback modifications.

t9Page 597

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Specific changes and staff s analysis are discussed below

1. Minimum lot size for interior lots is proposed to be reduced from 3,000 square feet

to 21925 square feet. Minimum lot size for corner lots is proposed to be reduced

from 3,500 square feet to 30300 square feet.

Staff concurs with these proposed changes, which are consistent with other

subdivisions approved in the Folsom Plan Area and which will help provide

ownership housing at a more affordable price point than would be possible with
larger lots. Staff also notes that most of the proposed lots would be large enough to

meet the 3,000 square feet minimum size that would otherwise apply, and that only

five of 71 lots would be below 2,950 square feet. Of five corner lots, four would be

slightly smaller than 3,500 square feet (the typical minimum; the applicant is

proposing 3,300 square feet).

2. Minimum front yard setbacks for the primary structure, which are proposed to be

reduced from 15 feet to 12.5 feet

Staff concurs with these proposed standards, which are similar to setbacks provided

in other developments in the Folsom Plan Area. As noted by the applicant, this

reduced setback will also help accommodate the first-floor bedrooms in the Plan2
and 3 homes, which staff views as a benefit. Plan t homes will not need the reduced

setback.

The proposed reduction in the front yard setback for living area will not detract from
the visual appearance of the street scsne, as the design, materials, and colors of the

main residential structure and the garage have been coordinated.

3. Minimum garuge setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 20 feet to 18 feet

Staff concurs with these proposed standards, which are similar to setbacks provided

in other developments in the Folsom Plan Area.

The proposed reduction in the front yard setback for garages will not detract from the

visual appearance of the street scene or the individual master plans as the design,

materials, and colors of the main residential structure and the garage have been

coordinated.

4. Minimum side yard setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 5 feet to 4 feet

Staff concurs with this reduction, which is similar to development standards that have

been approved for other projects in the Folsom Plan Area. However, staff notes that

20Page 598

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



changes to the City's fire codes now require a 5' x 5' clear area below second floor

bedroom windows ("rescue openings"l). Projects approved before the adoption of the

updated Folsom Fire Code in20I9 are considered exempt from this requirement.

The implication for projects such as Creekstone Phase I Subdivision is that standard

side yard fencing that separates homes could not be placed under these second-floor

"rescue openings." Side yard fencing for these homes will need to pushed back from

the front until it is located past the upper floor window, with the result that the

affected homes will have a smaller "private" side yard.

For the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project specifically, this will affect fences

adjacent to the second floor of Plan t homes, which are the only proposed homes in
this project which have a bedroom window that would qualif' as a "rescue opening"
(see below). Both the Plan 2 andPlan 3 units have second-floor bedrooms, but these

open to either the front or rear yard, where there is sufficient clear areato meet the

City's Fire Code standards. Figure 16 below shows an example of a second floor

bedroom with a rescue opening.

FIGURE 16: SECOND FLOOR BEDROOM AND "RESCUE OPENING"

1 Generally, a "rescue opening" is a window which provides for emergency exiting.

&

IJ]

a

&

rrl

a

Shelf &
w.t.c.
22-6" Ll.

Mqster
Bolh

cob.

Lound

Bedroom 2
xll'9

I 5LlO',x

Moster

Low LJnenb

Bedroom 3
I l'O" r l2!3"

Second Floor "Rescue Opening"

2lPage 599

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Based on the fact that a number of side yard fences within the subdivision will be required to

be placed further back from the front property line than is typical for a traditional

subdivision, staff recommends that trash, recycling, and yard waste containers be placed

behind the side yard fence so that they are not visible from the public right-of-way. In
addition, staff recommends that ar conditioning units also be placed behind the side yard

fence or located in the rear yard so that they are not visible from the public righrof-way.
(Condition No. 51 is included to reflect these requirements). Fence placement locations will
be addressed when detailed construction plans are submitted to the City.

As described above, the applicant is proposing to modiS, a number of development standards

for development of the subdivision including reducing the minimum lot size for interior and

corner lots, reducing the required front yard setback for the primary structure, reducing the

required front yard setback for garages, and reducing the required side yard setbacks for the

primary structure. The table (Figure 17) below shows the existing development standards,

the proposed development standards, and development standards for similar single-family

small-lot subdivisions that have recently been approved in the City.

FIGURE 17: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS TABLE

As shown in the Development Standards Table above, the proposed development standards

for the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project are similar to and comparable with numerous

other single-family small-lot subdivisions located throughout the City including projects in
the Folsom Plan Area and projects north of U.S. Highway 50. In addition, staff has

determined that the development standards for the proposed project meet the intent, purposes,

and standards set forth in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan in that they will provide

Development Standards Table
Minimum
Lot Size

Maximum
Lot Coverage

Front Yard
Setback

Front Garage

Setback

Side Yard
Setback

Rear Yard
Setback

SP-MLD
Standards

3,000 sF 50% 15 Feet 20 Feet 5 Feet 10 Feet

Proposed

Creekstone

Standards

2,925 SF 50% 12.5 Feet 18 Feet 4 Feet 10 Feet

Enclave
Subdivision

2,800 sF 60% 12.5 Feet 20 Feet 4 Feet 8 Feet

Meadows
Subdivision

2,925 SF 60% 7.5 Feet 7.5 Feet 3 Feet 5 Feet

Yizcaya
Subdivision

2,504 SF 50% 10 Feet 10 Feet 3.5 Feet 10 Feet

Farmhouse

Subdivision
2,850 SF 55% 8 Feet 8 Feet 4 Feet 5 Feet

22Page 600

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



improved floor plans within the master plans (downstairs bedroom) and enhanced front

building elevations (front facing first floor bedroom).

Residential Designs

The proposed project is located within the central portion of the Folsom Plan Area; thus, it is
subject to the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines (Attachment 15), which were

approved by the City Council in 2015. The Design Guidelines are a complementary

document to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

Community Guidelines.

The Design Guidelines, which are intended to act as an implementation tool for residential

development within the Central District of the Folsom Plan Area, provide the design

framework for architecture, street scene, and landscaping to convey a master plan identity.

The Design Guidelines also establish the pattern and intensity of development for the Central

District to ensure a high quality and aesthetically cohesive environment. While these Design

Guidelines establish the quality of architectural and landscape development for the master

plan, they are not intended to prevent alternative designs andlor concepts that are compatible

with the overall project theme.

As a regulatory tool, the Design Guidelines are intended to assist applicants in creating

single-family residential neighborhoods that reflect the City's rich history, reinforce the sense

of community, andvtilize sustainable best practices. The Design Guidelines also provide the

framework for design review approval of Folsom Ranch, Central District residential projects.

In addition, the Design Guidelines are intended to be used by builders and developers when

designing their Master Plot Plans. Any development project that is submitted to the City must

be reviewed for consistency with these Design Guidelines. The following are the general

architectural principles intended to guide the design of the Folsom Ranch, Central District to

ensure quality development:

o Provide a varied and interesting street scene

o Focus of the home is the front elevation, not the garuge

o Provide a variety of garage placements

o Provide detail on rear elevations where visible from the public streets

o Choose appropriate massing and roof forms to define the architectural styles

o Ensure that plans and styles provide a degree of individuality
o Use architectural elements and details to reinforce individual architectural styles

In addition to the general architectural principles referenced previously, the Design

Guidelines also provide specific direction regarding a number of architectural situations and

features including: edge conditions, corner buildings, building forms, off-set massing forms,

23Page 601

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



front elevations, roof forms, feature windows, architectural projects, balconies, lower height

elements, garage door treatments, outdoor living spaces, exterior structures, building

materials, and color criteria. The following are examples of architectural situations and

features thatare relevant to the proposed project:

o Provide a mix of hip and gable roof forms along the street scene

o Provide off-set massing, forms, or wall planes

o Provide recessed second-story elements

o Provide enhanced style-appropriate details on the front building elevation

o Provide decorative window shelves or sill treatments

o Provide architectural projections (recessed windows, eaves, shutters, etc.)

o Provide garage doors that are consistent with the architecture of the building
. Provide variety in the garage door patterns

o Provide outdoor living spaces (porches, balconies, courtyards, etc.)

The architectural design styles selected for the Folsom Ranch Central District have been

chosen from the traditional heritage of California home styles, a majority of which have been

influenced by the Spanish Mission and Mexican Rancho eras. Over the years, architectural

styles in California have become reinterpreted traditional styles that reflect the indoor-

outdoor lifestyle choices available in the Mediterranean climate. Suggested architectural

styles in the Design Guidelines include American Traditional, Craftsman,Early California

Ranch, European Cottage, Italian Villa, Monterey, Spanish Colonial, and Western

Farmhouse. Additional architectural styles compatible with the intent of the Design

Guidelines may be added if they are regionally appropriate.

As discussed earlier, the applicant has provided proposed architectural designs for the homes

to be built in the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision. As described in the applicant's proposal,

the proposed project features three architectural styles:

. Spanish Colonial
o Italian Villa
o Western Farmhouse

In evaluating the proposed project, staff also took into consideration building and design

elements that could be-considered unique to the Folsom Plan Area. Staff has determined that

the proposed master plans are consistent with the Folsom Ranch Design Guidelines.

Based on this analysis, staff forwards the following design recommendations to the City

Council for consideration:

24Page 602

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



1. This approval is for one product line with three two-story master plans in three

architectural styles with 12 color and material options. The applicant shall submit

building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building elevations

dated February 24,2020.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the single-family residential units shall be

consistent with the approved building elevations, materials samples, and color scheme

to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

3. The Community Development Department shall approve the individual lot permits to

assure no duplication or repetition of the same house, same roof-line, same elevation

style, side-by-side, or across the street from each other.

4. All mechanical equipment shall be ground-mounted and concealed from view of
public streets, neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings. For lots abutting

the open space areas (southern project boundary), mechanical equipment shall be

screened or located out ofview from open space areas.

5. Decorative light fixtures, consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design

Guidelines and unique to each architectural design theme, shall be added to the front
elevation of each Master Plan to the satisfaction of the Community Development

Department.

6. A minimum of one street tree shall be planted in the front yard of each residential lot
within the subdivision. A minimum of two trees are required along the street-side of
all corner lots. All front yard inigation and landscaping shall be installed prior to a

Building Permit Final.

These recornmendations listed above are included in the conditions of approval presented for
consideration by the City Council (Condition No. 50).

C. Traffic/Access/Circulation

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan established a series of plans and policies for the

circulation system within the entire Plan Area. The FPASP circulation system was designed

with a sustainable community focus on the movement of people and provides a number of
mobitity alternatives such as walking, cycling, carpooling, and viable forms of public
transportation in addition to vehicular circulation. The circulation plan evaluated regional

travel, both in terms of connectivity and capacity as well as local internal connections and

access. The circulation plan also addressed the concerns of regional traffic, including parallel

capacity to U.S. Highway 50, and connectivity with surrounding jurisdictions while

25Page 603

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



considering community-wide connectivity, alternative modes of travel, and the provision of
complete streets.

The 2011 Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report/Environmental

Impact Statement included not only a detailed analysis of traffic-related impacts within the

Plan Area, but also an evaluation of traffic-related impacts on the surrounding communities.

In total, there are 55 traffic-related mitigation measures associated with development of the

FPASP which are included as conditions of approval for the Creekstone Phase I Subdivision

project. Many of these mitigation measures are expected to reduce traffic impacts to East

Bidwell Street. Included among the mitigation measures are requirements to; fund and

construct roadway improvements within the Plan Area,pay a fair-share contribution for
construction of improvements north of U.S. Highway 50, participate in the City's
Transportation System Management Fee Program, and Participate in the U.S. Highway 50

Corridor Transportation Management Association. The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision
project is subject to all traffic-related mitigation measures required by the 2011 FPASP

EIR/EIS (Condition Nos 52-25 to 52-79).

On September 6, 2}lg,Kimley Hom completed a Supplemental Traffic Evaluation (included

in the attachments to the CEQA Exemption Analysis, included as Attachment 9 to this staff
report) for the proposed project2 to determine whether additional impacts would occur that

were not previously identified and addressed by the2011 FPASP EIR/EIS.

The Kimley Horn study analyzed traffic operations at six intersections and two roadway

segments:

Intersections

1. East Bidwell Street @honPoint Road

2. East Bidwell Street @ Placerville Road

3. East Bidwell Street @ US-50 Westbound Ramps

4. East Bidwell Street @ US-50 Eastbound Ramps

5. East Bidwell Street @Mangini Parkway (formerly Street'oA")
6. East Bidwell Street @ White Rock Road

Roadwav Sesments

1. U.S Highway 50 Eastbound Ramps to Mangini Parkway

2. Mangini Parkway to White Rock Road

2 Note: The Kimley Horn study also included development of a separate project, Creekstone Phase 2.

26Page 604

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



The Kimley Horn study concluded that the proposed project would not result in any traffic-
related impacts not already identified and would not require any new traffrc improvements

that have not already been required as mitigation by the prior environmental analyses.

As shown on the submitted Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (Attachment 3),

access to the project site is provided by a new driveway on the east side of East Bidwell
Street and a new driveway on south side of Mangini Parkway. Internal circulation is

facilitated by two new public streets (Cantor Drive and Cash Drive) that provide circulation

throughout the project site.

On April 14,2020, Kimley Horn completed a Supplemental Access and Circulation Analysis
(included as Attachment 10 to this staff report) that evaluated specific access and circulation

related issues associated with the proposed project under two different scenarios (Scenario 1

and Scenario 2). Scenario 1 is an interim condition that assumes the Toll Brothers project

improvements have not been constructed, while Scenario 2 is an ultimate condition that

assumes the Toll Brothers project improvements have been constructed. Toll Brothers project

improvements include modifications to East Bidwell Street and the intersection of East

Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway.

With respect to project access, the Analysis determined that the East Bidwell Street project

driveway will accommodate right-in, right-out, and left-in turning movements, with no left-
out turning movements be permitted due to traffic safety concerns. The Analysis also

concluded that Mangini Parkway project driveway should be limited to right-in turning
movements until such time that Westwood Drive is constructed and ready to accept vehicle

traffic between Mangini Parkway and Alder Creek Parkway. The Analysis further
recommends that interim improvements be constructed to prohibit right-out turning
movements from the Mangini Parkway project driveway prior to issuance of the first
certificate of occupancy for the proposed project. The interim right-turn restriction for the

Mangini Parkway project driveway is necessary due to the fact that there is currently no safe

method for vehicles traveling east from the project site to return to East Bidwell Street due to

the fact that the Mangini Parkway/Westwood Drive intersection does not physically

accommodate U-turn movements. In addition, there is currently no egress from Mangini
Parkway for vehicles heading north, south, or east from the project site.

The following are recommendations from the Supplemental Access and Circulation Analysis

which have been included as a condition (Condition Nos. 48 and No. 49) of approval for the

Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project.

27Page 605

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Condition No. 48:

Scenario 1 (Toll Brothers Required Improvements Completed)

A. The owner/applicant shall construct a southbound left turn lane with a minimum storage

length of 255 feet and a 60-foot taper to provide left turn access to Cantor Drive. The

owner/applicant shall install median improvements and required signage and striping in
East Bidwell Street to prohibit left turns out of Cantor Drive to southbound East Bidwell

Street.

B. The owneriapplicant shall modiff the existing traffic signal, signing and striping at the

intersection of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway to the satisfaction of the City

Engineer.

Scenario 2 (Toll Brothers Required Improvements Not Completed)

A. The owner/applicant shall;

1) Widen East Bidwell Street to include an additional southbound through lane which

extends from approximately 640 feet north of the intersection of Mangini Parkway to

the left turn lane into Cantor Drive.
2) Widen East Bidwell Street to provide a left turn lane with a minimum storage length

of 255 feet and a 60-foot taper into Cantor Drive. Construct median island

improvements together with signage and striping to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer to prohibit left turns out of Cantor Drive to southbound East Bidwell Street.

3) Modi$ the existing traffic signal, signing and striping at the intersection of Mangini
Parkway and East Bidwell Street to accommodate revised lane configurations and

revised turning movements including a northbound East Bidwell Street U-turn and a

westbound left turn from Mangini Parkway to southbound East Bidwell Street.

Condition No. 49:

The owner/applicant shall construct interim improvements to the satisfaction of the City

Engineer at Cantor Drive on Mangini Parkway to prohibit right turns out of the driveway

until such time that Westwood Drive is constructed and ready for traffic between Mangini
Parkway and Alder Creek Parkway. The interim improvements prohibiting right turns out of
this driveway will be required to be complete and operational prior to issuance of the first

Certificate of Occupancy in the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision. If Westwood Drive is

complete and open for traffic prior to issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy in the

subdivision, the interim improvements prohibiting right turns out of the driveway will not be

required.

D. Parking

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan requires that single-family residential units located

within a Multi-Family Low Density (MLD) designated area provide two covered parking

spaces per unit. The FPASP also requires that single-family residential units located within

28Page 606

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



an MLD designated area provide a minimum of 0.8 guest parking spaces per unit, As shown

on the submitted residential schematic design (Attachment 7), each of the homes will include

a two-car attached garage, thus meeting the covered parking requirement of the FPASP. In
addition, the project provides 71 on-street parking spaces (one space per unit), which exceeds

the minimum of 0.8 on-street guest parking spaces per unit required by the FPASP.

E. Noise Impacts

A Noise Assessment (Attachment 11) was prepared by Bollard Acoustical Consultants on

August 15,2019 to determine whether East Bidwell Street or Mangini Parkway traffic-
related noise would cause noise levels at the project site to exceed acceptable limits as

described in the Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan, and to evaluate

compliance with the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan EIR Noise Mitigation
Measures.

Outdoor Noise Levels

The study projected noise levels adjacent to these roadways (based on future traffic levels)

and determine what types of measures would be needed to ensure that noise levels at homes

adjacent to the roadways would not exceed City standards, which are:

o 60 dB Lon3 for outdoor activity areas (such as rear yards)

o 45 dB Lon for interior areas in dwellings

The noise analysis concluded that,without mitigation, noise levels along East Bidwell Street

would reach 67 dB Lon in the rear yards of homes, and 65 dB Lon in the rear yards of homes

along Mangini Parkway. These levels exceed the City's standard (60 dB Lon) for outdoor

activity areas.

However, the noise analysis also concluded that the installation of a 6-foot-high masoffy
wall along both of these street frontages (East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway) would
reduce rear yard noise levels to 56 dB Ldn on East Bidwell Street and 59 dB Ldn on Mangini

Parkway, which would comply with the City's outdoor noise level standard. It is important to

note that the noise analysis assumed that a four-foot-tall berm (as proposed with this project)

would be located along the project's East Bidwell Street frontage. The six-foot-tall masonry

wall referenced above would be located on top of a four-foot-tall berm, resulting in a ten-

foot-tall noise barrier (berm/wall) along the East Bidwell Street frontage of the project site.

The Mangini Parkway street frontage would include a 6-foot-high masonry wall, this wall is
not required to be located on top ofa berm feature due to reduced noise levels on this

3 dB Ldn is average noise level over a 24-hour day, measured in decibels (dB). The average includes a +10

decibel weighing applied to noise occurring during nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) hours.

29Page 607

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



roadway as compared to East Bidwell Street. A map of recommended walls is shown in

Figure 18 below.

Interior Noise Levels

The noise study concluded, based on projected noise adjacent to the adjacent roadways, that

standard residential construction (including STC 32 window assemblies on the second floor

of units adjacent to East Bidwell Parkway) would reduce interior noise levels to acceptable

levels.

FIGURE 18: RECOMMENDED NOISE WALL LOCATIONS

Ii NGINI

'l
ti'r'

l

d
i?ro
:a
lF
i3

I

i

,

_l:;f-

rzl2l.1.
I,' l' "l'

las

sa:

ra?

*,

r) It

2':o

2tt4'

ll

at

6

al

'A'oawE

i
I

rt
l?
!

ioi

i

i

i

i

'r

L.lta,rd

-
Progd I Ffia tll r*t5 B*F
tl@6ad.d ljgtsr'Fu SIC al
nt|&A&ffi A

sobltFtl

-Io tJ ld!

Mangini Ranch Phas€ 1 Lots 10 & 15
Folsom. Califomia

Lot 10 Site Plan

Figure 3 ('r) I O. rARl)

30Page 608

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



F. Walls/Fencing

The applicant is proposing a combination of masoffy walls and wood fencing for the

Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project:

. Along the Mangini Parkway and East Bidwell Street frontages, a six-foot-high

masonry wall will.be constructed to provide an attractive appearance for the

subdivision and to reduce traffic-related noise for the homes adjacent to these

roadways (see the previous discussion of Noise within this staff report). The six-foot-

tall masonry wall along East Bidwell will be positioned on top of a four-foot-tall

berm.
o Wooden fencing will be provided between residential units. Wooden fencing will be

consistent with the guidelines for fencing provided in the Folsom Ranch Design

Guidelines. (As discussed elsewhere in this report, changes to the Fire Code will
affect the placement of fences between homes where second-floor windows require a

5' x 5' clear area on the ground.)

o Along the eastern property boundary, an existing masonry wall will remain in place.

o Along the southern property boundary, adjacent to the existing storm detention basin,

a low retaining wall topped with an open, tubular steel fence with a combined height

of six feet will be installed for Lots 2-7 . One lot along the southern property boundary

(Lot 1) will have a six-foot-high masonry wall as required by the noise analysis.

The recommended conditions of approval (Condition No. 18) require the applicant to provide

a final design for all walls and fences for review and approval by staff prior to construction.

G. Inclusionary Housing

The applicant proposes to comply with Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 17.104

(Inclusionary Housing) by paying in-lieu fees per Municipal Code Section 17.104.060(G).

(See the applicant's Inclusionary Housing letter, included as Attachment 13 to this staff

report). Homes within the subdivision will be sold at market prices. Fees paid by the

applicant will help provide affordable housing elsewhere in the City. The applicant is

required to enter into an Inclusionary Housing Agreement with the City. The Final

Inclusionary Housing Plan is subject to approval by the City Council. In addition, the

Inclusionary Housing Agreement, which will be approved by the City Attorney, must be

executed prior to recordation of the Final Map for the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision

project. Condition No. 39 is included to reflect these requirements.

3T
Page 609

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



H. Frontage Improvements

Although most of the physical improvements (streets, curbs, gutter, sidewalks, and

landscaping) to East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway adjacent to the project site have

been constructed, the applicant will be required to install landscaping in a five-foot-wide area

along the East Bidwell Street frontage where the four-foot-tall berm will be located. In
addition, the applicant will be required to construct the perimeter masonry walls along the

frontages of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway (see the Noise discussion earlier in
this report). Walls and landscaping will be required to comply with Folsom Ranch Design

Guidelines. The recommended conditions of approval require the applicant to submit detailed

plans for all landscaping and walls prior to construction.

I. Minor Administrative Modification

As described earlier within this report, the parcel (Parcel 143) on which the Creekstone Phase

1 Subdivision project is located is designated by the FPASP for the development of 86

residential units. Based on the fact that the applicant is proposing to construct only 71

residential units on the subject parcel, a Minor Administrative Modification is being

requested to reallocate the 15 unused residential units to two other parcels (Parcel 24 and

Parcel 173) situated within the Folsom Plan Area.

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan provides for Minor Administrative Modifications,

" ... that are consistent with and do not substantially change its overall intent, such as minor
adjustments to the land use locations and parcel boundaries shown in Figure 4.I - Land Use

and Figure 4.4 - Plan Area Parcels and the land use acreages shown in Table 4.I - Land
Use Summary. " IFPASP Section 13.3]

The FPASP states that Minor Administrative Modifications can be approved at a staff level,
provided the following criteria are met:

o The proposed modification is within the Plan Area.
o The modification does not reduce the size of the proposed town center.

o The modification retains compliance with City Charter Article 7.08, previously
known as Measure W.

. The general land use pattern remains consistent with the intent and spirit of the

FPASP
o The proposed changes do not substantially alter the backbone infrastructure network.
o The proposed modification offers equal or superior improvements to development

capacity or standards.

)zPage 610

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



The proposed modification does not increase environmental impacts beyond those

identified in the EIR/EIS.

Relocated park or school parcels continue to meet the standards for the type of park

or school proposed.

Relocated park or school parcels remain within walking distance of the residents they

serve.

Based on stafls review, the proposed reallocation of 15 residential units from the Creekstone

Phase 1 Subdivision site to two other parcels within the Folsom Plan Area meets all of the

required criteria mentioned above. As a result, staff is able to approve the proposed Minor

Administrative Modifi cation.

J. Conformance with Relevant General Plan and Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

Objectives and Policies

The applicant prepared a detailed analysis of the project's consistency with all of the policies

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan; that analysis is included in the CEQA Exemption and

Streamlining Analysis in Attachment 9 to this report. Staff concurs with the applicant's

analysis that the project is consistent with the Specific Plan.

The following is a summary analysis of the project's consistency with the Folsom General

Plan and with key policies of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan.

GP and SP OBJECTIVE H-l (Housine)

To provide an adequate supply of suitable sites for the development of a range of housing

types tq meet the housing needs of all segments of the population.

GP and SP CY H-l.1
The City shall ensure that sufficient land is designated and zoned in a range of residential

densities to accommodate the City's regional share of housing.

Analysis: The City provides residential lands at a variety of residential densities as

specified in the General Plan and in the Folsom Municipal Code. The Folsom Plan

Area Specific Plan includes specialized zoning (Specific Plan Designations) that are

customized to the Plan Area as adopted in20l1 and as Amended over time. The

FPASP provides residential lands at densities ranging from 1-4 dwelling unit per acre

(SF),4-7 dwelling units per acre (SFHD),7-12 dwelling units per acre (MLD),12-20
dwelling units per acre (MMD),20-30 dwelling units per acre (MHD), and 9-30

dwelling units per acre (MU).

o

a

a

JJPage 611

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project is designated MLD and is proposed to be

developed at7.2 units per acre, which is within the density range for the MLD
designation.

SP POLICY 4.1

Create pedestrian-oriented neighborhoods through the use of a grid system of streets where

feasible, sidewalks, bike paths and trails. Residential neighborhoods shall be linked, where

appropriate, to encourage pedestrian and bicycle travel.

Analysis: The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision proposes a traditional single-family

neighborhood with local streets provided with sidewalks on both sides of the street.

Biking and walking will be accommodated within the project, which will be

connected via sidewalks and Class I and Class II bicycle lanes with nearby

neighborhoods, parks, and schools.

SP POLICY 4.4

Provide a variety of housing opportunities for residents to participate in the home-ownership

market.

Analysis: The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan provides home ownership

opportunities within the SF (Single-Family), SFHD (Single-Family High Density),

and MLD (Multi-Family Low Density) land use designated areas. Residential

development in the MLD, MMD (Multi-Family Medium Density), MHD (Multi-
Family High Density) and MU (Mixed-Use) land use categories may provide 'for
rent' opportunities; however home ownership may also be accommodated in 'for
sale' condos, townhomes, etc. at the time of development of these particular parcels.

The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project is consistent with this policy in that it
will provide detached single-family home ownership opportunities within the MLD
designation zonedparcels at a more affordable price point than in other, less dense

residential developments.

SP POLICY 4.6
As established by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the total number of dwelling units for
the Plan Area shall not exceed ll,46l. The number of units within individual land use

parcels may vary, so long as the number of units falls within the allowable density range for a
particular land use designation.

Analysis: There have been a number of Specific Plan Amendments approved by the

City Council within the Folsom Plan Area, which has generally led to an increase in
residentially-zoned land and a decrease in commercially-zoned land. As a result, the

number of residential units within the Plan Area increased from 10,210 to ll,46I

34Page 612

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



from 2011 to 2018. The various Specific Plan Amendment EIRs and Addenda

analyzed impacts from the conversion of the commercial lands to residential lands;

impacts and associated mitigations measures can be found in the individual project-

specific environmental documents. The increase in population was analyzed and can

be accommodated in the excess capacity of the school sites provided in the Plan Area.

The proposed project does not result in any change in total dwelling units in the

FPASP. Allocated units originally planned to be constructed on this site that are not
part of the current proposal will be reallocated to other parcels. The reallocation of
units to these parcels will not exceed the allowable density for the parcels, which are

designated MLD.

SP OBJECTIVE 7.1 (Circulation)
Consistent with the California Complete Streets Act of 2008 and the Sustainable

Communities and Climate Protection Act (SB 375), create a safe and efficient circulation

system for all modes of travel.

SP POLICY 7.1

The roadway network in the Plan Area shall be organized in a grid-like pattern of streets and

blocks, except where topography and natural features make it infeasible, for the majority of
the Plan Area in order to create neighborhoods that encourage walking, biking, public transit,

and other alternative modes of transportation.

Analysis: Consistent with the requirements of the California Complete Streets Act,

the FPASP identified and planned for hierarchy of connect "complete streets" to

ensure that pedestrian, bike, bus, and automobile modes are travel are designed to

have direct and continuous connections throughout the Plan Area. Every option, from

regional connector roadways to arterial and local streets, has been carefully planned

and designed. Recent California legislation to reduce greenhouse gas emissions (AB
32 and SB 375) has resulted in an increased market demand for public transit and

housing located closer to service needs and employment centers. In responss to these

changes, the FPASP includes a regional transit corridor that will provide public
transportation links between the major commercial, public, and multi-family
residential land uses in the Plan Area.

The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project has been designed with multiple modes

of transportation options (vehicles, bicycle, walking, access to transit) consistent with
the approved FPASP circulation plan.

35Page 613

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



FINANCIA I,IMPACT

This is a private development, not a City project. No financial impact to the FPA Public

Facilities Financing Plan is anticipated with approval of the Creekstone Phase I Subdivision
project as the project will not result in any change in the total number of residential units or

total amount of commercial square footage within the Folsom Plan Area.

AL REVIEW

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provides that residential projects which

are consistent with an approved Specific Plan for which an EIR was prepared are exempt

from a requirement to prepare additional environmental analysis. CEQA Guidelines section

15182(c) provides specific criteria to determine whether this exemption applies:

(c) Residential Projects Implementing Specific Plans'

(l) Etigibility. Where a public agency has prepared an EIR on a specifi.c plan

after January I, 1980, oresidentialproject undertakenpursuant to and in

conformity to thqt specffic plan is exemptfrom CEQA if the proiect meets the

requirements of this section. Residential projects covered by this section include

but are not limited to land subdivisions, zoning changes, and residential planned

unit developments. ICEQA Guidelines section 15182]

The applicant has prepared an analysis (included as Attachment 9 to this staff report), which

determined that the Creekstone Phase I Subdivision project qualifies for the exemption

provided in CEQA Guidelines 15 182(c), since it is consistent with the Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan.

The applicant's analysis also includes a review of the impacts and mitigation measures

addressed in the EIR for the FPASP, which concluded that the project will not result in any

impacts not already identified, and that mitigation measures in the EIR will be sufficient to

address project impacts. None of the events described in CEQA Guidelines 15162 which

would require preparation of a subsequent EIR (substantial changes to the project, substantial

changes in the circumstances under which the project is undertaken, or new information of
substantial importance) have occurred, as detailed in the CEQA Exemption Analysis

(Attachment 9 to this staff report).

The City has reviewed the applicant's analysis and concurs that the project is exempt from

additional environmental review as provided in CEQA Guidelines 15182(c).

36Page 614

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10458 - A Resolution Determining that the Creekstone Phase 1

Subdivision Project is Exempt from CEQA and Approving a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, Planned Development Permit, and the Inclusionary Housing Plan for
the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Project

2. Vicinity Map
3. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated April2l,2020
4. Preliminary Grading, Drainage, and Utility Plan, dated Apri|2l,2020
5. Conceptual Front Yard Landscaping, dated December 9,2019
6, Wall and Fence Exhibit, dated January 3I,2020
7. Residential Schematic Design, dated Feb.24,2020
8. Exterior Color/Materials Specifications, dated February 24,2020
9. CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis for Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Project

10. Access and Circulation Analysis, dated April 14,2020
11. Environmental Noise Analysis, dated August 15, 2019

12. Site Photographs

13. Applicant's Inclusionary Housing Letter, dated February 15,2019
14. Summary of Amendments to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan,20lI-2020
15. Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines

16. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated May 6,2020
17. City Council PowerPoint Presentation

18. Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Booklet including the

following, except where superseded by separate documents or illustrations listed above:

o Illustrative Site Plan (Booklet page 10)

o Residential Architecture (Booklet page 12)

o Conceptual Landscape Design (Booklet page 16)

o Building Elevations and Floor Plans (Booklet page A0.0 to A3.5)

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

37Page 615

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Affachment I

Resolution No. 10458 - A Resolution Determining that
the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Project is Exempt

from CEQA and Approving a Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Mapn Planned Development
Permit, ffid the Inclusionary Housing Plan for the

Creekstone Phase I Subdivision Project

Page 616

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10458

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT THE CREEKSTONE PHASE 1

SUBDMSION PROJECT IS EXEMPT ['ROM CEQA AND APPROVING A SMALL-
LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

PERMIT, AND THE INCLUSTONARY HOUSING PLAN FOR THE CREAKSTONE
PHASE T SUBDIVISION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on May 6, 2020, held a public hearing on the
proposed Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, considered public comment and based
on the proposed configuration of the 7l single-family residential lots, determined the proposed
subdivision complies with all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of the State

Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on May 6,2020he1d a public hearing on the
proposed Planned Development Permit, considered public comment and determined that based

on the proposed site design, building heights, building setbacks, lot configuration, lot areas,
building coverage, density, and parking, the project is consistent with the City's General Plan,
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and Chapter 17.38 "Planned Development District", of the
Folsom Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on May 6, 2020held apublic hearing on the
Inclusionary Housing Plan for the proposed Creekstone Phase I Subdivision Project, considsred
public comment and determined that the proposed Inclusionary Housing Plan is consistent with
the City's General Plan and Chapter 17.104 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

WHEREAS, notice has been given at the time and in the manner required by State Law
and City Code; and

WHEREAS, a CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis has been prepared for the
Creekstone Phase I Subdivision project in accordance with the Califomia Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby determine that the Creekstone Phase I Subdivision Project is exempt from CEQA
pursuant to Section 15182(c) of the CEQA Guidelines.

B[ IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
creating 7l single-family residential lots, a Planned Development Permit, and the Inclusionary
Housing Plan for the Creekstone Phase I Subdivision Project is hereby approved, subject to the
conditions of approval attached as Exhibit "A" and the following findings:

Resolution No. 10458
Page 1 of33

Page 617

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



B.

C

D

E.

F

G

H.

GENERAL FINDINGS

A. NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER
REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN, THE FOLSOM
PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN, AND THE FOLSOM RANCH CENTRAL DISTRICT
DESIGN GUTDELINES.

CEOA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIRONMENTAL TMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE CREEKSTONE PHASE 1

SUBDIVISION PROJECT IS UNDERTAKEN TO IMPLEMENT AND IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE IMPACTS OF THE CREEKSTONE
PHASE 1 SUBDIVISION PROJECT ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE
FTNAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PLAN AND ASSOCIATED MTTIGATION MEASURES AND THAT THE
CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 SUBDIVISION PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM THE
REQUIREMENTS OF CEQA PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
65457 AND CEQA GUIDELINES 15182(c).

NONE OF THE EVENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 21166 OF THE PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE OR SECTION tst62 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES HAVE
OCCURRED.

THIS PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTTON 65457 AND SECTTON 15182 OF THE CEQA
GUIDELINES.

TENTATIVE SUBDIYISION MAP X'INDINGS

THE PROPOSED SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THE
SUBDIVTSTON MAP ACT IN THAT THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS
OF APPROVAL THAT WILL ENSURE THAT THE PROJECT IS DEVELOPED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS.

Resolution No. 10458

Page2 of33

Page 618

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



I

J

THE PROPOSED SUBDTVISION, TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISIONS FOR ITS
DESIGN AND IMPROVEMENT,IS CONSTSTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN,
THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN, AND ALL APPLICABLE
PROVTSIONS OF THE FOLSOM MI.JNICIPAL CODE.

THE SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT
PROPOSED.

THE SITE TS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE PROPOSED DENSITY OF THE
DEVELOPMENT.

AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATTVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LTKELY
TO CAUSE SUBSTANTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE OR SUBSTANTIALLY
AND AVOIDABLY INJURE FISH OR WILDLIFE OR THEIR HABITAT.

AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVTSTON MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LTKELY
TO CAUSE SERIOUS PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY PROBLEMS.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE TYPE OF IMPROVEMENTS WILL NOT CONFLICT WITH EASEMENTS
FOR ACCESS THROUGH OR USE OF PROPERTY WITHIN THE PROPOSED
SUBDIVISTON.

SUBJECT TO SECTION 66474.4 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE LAND IS
NOT SUBJECT TO A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE
CALTFORNIA LAND CONSERVATION ACT OF 1965 (COMMENCING WITH
SECTTON 51200 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE).

PLANNED DEVELOPIVTENT PERMIT FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF
CHAPTER 17.38 OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE, THE FOLSOM PLAN
AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND OTHER APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY
AND THE GENERAL PLAN.

a. THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE OBJECTIVES, POLICIES
AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE CITY.
THE MINOR MODIFICATIONS TO THOSE STANDARDS PROPOSED AS PART
OF THIS PROJECT WILL RESULT IN A DEVELOPMENT THAT IS SUPERIOR TO
THAT OBTAINED BY THE RIGID APPLICATION OF THE STANDARDS.

R. THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN THE
PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND
AREA CHARACTERISTTCS IS ACCEPTABLE.

Resolution No. 10458
Page 3 of33

K.

L.

M

N

o.

P

Page 619

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



S AS CONDITIONED, THE PROJECT WILL MAKE AVAILABLE NECESSARY
PUBLIC FACILITIES, TNCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATER, SEWER
AND DRAINAGE, AND THE PROJECT WILL PROVIDE FOR THE FURNISHING
OF SUCH FACILITIES.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL
TMPACTS WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN MITIGATED TO AN ACCEPTABLE LEVEL.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE LINACCEPTABLE VEHICULAR
TRAFFIC LEVELS ON SURROI.INDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED
PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE TNTERNAL CIRCULATION, INCLUDING
INGRESS AND EGRESS.

AS CONDITIONED, THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL
TO THE HEALTH, SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE PERSONS OR
PROPERTY WITHIN THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND THE CITY AS
A WHOLE.

ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE
DEVELOPMENT.

DESIGN REVIEW FINDINGS

THE PROJECT IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL PLAN,
THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND THE APPLICABLE ZONING
ORDINANCES.

THE PROJECT IS IN CONFORMANCE WTTH THE FOLSOM RANCH
CENTRAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES.

THE BUILDING MATERIALS, TEXTURES, AND COLORS OF THE PROJECT WILL
BE COMPATTBLE WITH SURROLINDING DEVELOPMENT AND CONSISTENT
WITH THE GENERAL DESIGN THEME OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26tr day of May, 2020,by the following roll-call vote:

T.

U

V

w

X.

Y

Z.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Resolution No. 10458
Page 4 of33

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Page 620

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10458
Page 5 of33

Page 621

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit A

ResolutionNo. 1045E
Page 6 of33

Page 622

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



COI'DITIONS OX'APPROVAL FOR THE CREEKSTOI\IE PHASE 1 SIJBDIVISION EN T9.059)
SOUTIINAST CORNEROFTHE INTERSECTION OT EASTBIDVYELL STRIET AND MANGIM PARITWAY

SLWSM. PD PNRMIT. AI{D MINOR N)MII\IISTRATIVE MODIFTCATION

Condition
No.

Mitigation
Measure

Condition of Approval Whcn
Required

Responsible
Department

I Flnal Development Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community
Development Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced
below:

1. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated April 21, 2020
2. Preliminary Grading, Drainage, and Utility Plan, dated April 21, 2020
3. Creekstone Phase 1 SuMivision Project Narrative Book, dated February 26, 2020
4. Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 3I,2020
5. Residential Schematic Desigrr, dated Feb,24,2020
6. Exterior Color/lvlaterials Specification, dated February 24,2020
7. Conceptual Front Yards, Creekstone Phase I SuMivision, dated December 9, 2020
8. Inclusionary Housing Plan, dated F€b. \5,2019
9. Access and Circulation Analysis, dated April 14,2020
10. Environmental Noise Analysis, dated August 15,2019

The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, Planned Development Permit, and
Inclusionary Housing Plan are approved for the development ofa 71-unit single-family
residential subdivision (Creekstone Phase I Subdivision). Implementation ofthe project
shall be consistent with the above referenced items and these conditions of aooroval.

G, I,M,B cD (PXE)

2. PIan Sabniltal
All civil engineering, improvement, and landscape and irrigation plans, shall be

submitted to &e Community Development Deparhnent for review and approval to
ensure conformanoe with this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and
other requirements of the City of Folsom.

c,r cD (PXE)

Resolution No. 10458

Page 7 of33

Page 623

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



cotiDrTroNs oF AppRovAL FoR TrrE cREfKsToIvf, PHASE I snBDrvlsroN eN 19{59)
SOUTHEAST CORIYEROFTTIE INTERSECTION OF EAST BIDWELLSITEET ATTD MANGIM PARKWAY

SLWSM. PD PERMIT. AND MINOR ADMINISTRATIVE MODMCATION

Condition
No.

Mitigation
Measure

Condition ofApproval When
Requircd

Responsible
Deprrtment

J Volidi$
This approval of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map shall be valid for a
period oftwenty-four (24) months pursuant to Section 1 6. I 6.1 I 0A ofthe Folsom
Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map Act. The term of the Planned Development
Permit and approved Inclusionary Housing Agreement shall haok the term of the Small-
Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, as may be extended from time to time pursuant
to Seotion I 6. 16. I l0.A and 16.16.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code and the
Subdivision Map Aot.

M cD (P)

4. FMC Compliance
The Small-Lot Final Map shall comply with the Folsom Municipal Code and the
Subdivision Map Act.

M cD (E)

5 Development Righa
The approval of this Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map conveys the right to
develop, As noted in these conditions ofapproval for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, the City has identified improvements necessary to develop the subject
parcels. These improvements include on and off-site roadways, water, sewer, storm
draina"ee. landscaoins. sound-walls. and other imorovements.

OG CD (PXEXB)
PW, P& FD.

PD

6. Puhlic Right of Yay Dedicotion
As provided for in the First Amended and Restated Development Agreement (ARDA)
and the Amendments No. I and 2 thereto, and any approved amendments thereafter, the
owner/applicant shall dedicate all public rights-of-way and corresponding public utility
easements such that public access is provided to each and every lot within the
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map Gots l-71).

M cD (EXP)

7 Street Nancs
The street names identified below shall be used for the Final Small-Lot Map(s):
Cash Drive
Cantor Drive

M cD (EXP)

Resolution No. 1 0458
Page 8 of33

Page 624

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



CoNDTTIONS OF APPROVAL rOR TIm CREEI(STOND PEASn r SUBDMSTON (PN r9-0s9)
SOUTMAST CORNER OT TEE INIERSECTION OF EAST BIDWELL STREET AI\D MANGINI PAru(WAY

SLWSN'. PD PERMIT. AIYD MINOR ADMIMSTRAITYD MODIFICATION

Condition
No.

Mitigation
Megsure

Condition ofApproval When
Requirrd

Recponslble
Dcpartmetrt

8. Indemnitylor City
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnifu, and hold harmless the City and its
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or
its agents, officers or employees to attrack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the
City or any of its agencies, departments, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or
legislative body conceming the pruject, which claim, action or proceeding is brought
within the time period provided therefore in Govemment Code Section 66499.37 or
other applicable statutes of limitation. The City will promptly notiS the
owner/applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the
defense. Ifthe City should fail to cooperate fully in the defense, the owner
owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemniff and hold
harmless the City or its agents, ofncers, and employees, pursuant to this condition. The
City may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim,
action or proceeding ifboth ofthe following occur:

r The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and
r The City defends the claim, action or proce€ding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement of such
claim, action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant.
The owner/applicant's obligations under this condition shall apply regardless of
whether a Final Man is ultimatolv recorded with respect to this proiect.

OG cD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

9. Small-Lot Yesfrng Teilaive Subdivision Map
The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon
compliance with all environmental mitigation measures identified in the Folsom Plan
Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS as amended by the Revised Proposed Water Supply Facility
Alternative (November 2012), the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Baokbone
In&astructure Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 2014), and the Westland
Easle SD€cific Plan Amendment (September 2015).

OG CD

Resolution No. 10458
Page 9 of33

Page 625

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



coNDrrroNs oF AppRovAL FoR THE CREnKSTONE PHASE r S{JBDTVISTON (PN l9-l}59)
SOUTMAST COR$TER OF THE INTERSIBCTION OF EAST BII}WELL STREET A"IID MANGIM PARKWAY

SLVTSM. PD PERIIIT. ATID MINOR N'MINISIR,ITIVE MODITICATION

Condition
No.

Mitigation
Meesure

Condition ofApprovel When
Requirrd

Responsible
Department

10. AR.DA andAmendnents
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendments No. I and 2 to
tle First Amended and Restatod Tier 1 Development Agreement and any approved
amendments thereafter by and between the City and the owner/applicant ofthe project,

M cD (E)

l1 Miligalion Moniloring
The owner/applicant shall participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting program
pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 2634 and Public Rosources Code 21081.6.
The mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan FEIR/EIS have been incorporated into these conditions ofapproval in
order to mitigate or avoid sigrificant effects on the environment. These mitigation
monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the mitigation measur€ column.
Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis all mitigation monitoring (e.g., staff
and consultant time).

oc cD (P)

POLICE/SECUruTY REQUIREMENT

12. The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Departrnent in order to incorporate all
reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be

considered:

a

a

a

A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be

consfucted around the perimeter of construotion areas.

Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances.

Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at
intersections or screen overhead liehting.

G,I, B PD

Resolution No. 1045E

Page l0 of33

Page 626

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



AND T'EE
13, Taxes and Fees

The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at
the rate and amount rcquired by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendments
No. I and No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Tier I Development Acreement.

M cD (PXE)

14. Assessments
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall pay olTany existing assessments against the

DroDerty, or file necessary seFegation roquest and pay applicable fees.

M cD(E)

15 FPASP Development Impacl Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area
development impact fees in place at the time of approval or subsequently adopted
consistent with the Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement
and amendments thereto, unless exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant
shall be subject to all applicable F'olsom Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees

in effect at such time that a building permit is issued. These fees may include, but are

not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee

(SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation Management F€e,

Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment Fee, Housing 'l'rust

Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on
this project will begin on the date offinal approval (May 26, 2020), or olherwise shall
be governed by the terms of Amendments No. I and 2 to ARDA. The fees shall be

calculated at the fee rate set fortlt in the PFFP and the ARDA.

B cD (P), PW, PK

16, Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services of outside legal counsel to assist

in the implementation of this project including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing
and/or revising agreements and/or other documentation for the project. If the City
utilizes the services of such outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the
owner/applicant ofthe outside counsel selected, the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and
the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for all outside legal fees and costs incurred
and documented by the City for such services. The owner/applicant may be required, at
the sole discretion of the City Attomey, to submit a deposit to the City for these

services prior to initiation of the services. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for
reimbursement to the Citv for the services resardless of whether a deposit is required.

OG cD (PXE)

Resolution No. 10458
Page 11 of33

Page 627

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



17 Consultant Servb'€s
Ifthe City utilizes the servioes ofconsultants to propare special studies or provide
specialized design roview or inspection servicos for the project, the City shall provide
notice to the owner/applicant ofthe outside consultant seleoted, tha soope ofwork and

hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for aotual oosts incuned
and documented in utilizing these services, including administrative costs for City
personn€I. A deposit for these services shall be provided prior to initiating review of
the Grading Plan, Final Map, improvement plans, or beginning inspection, whiohevar is
aonlicable.

G, I,M,B cD(PXE)

Resolution No. 10458
Page 12 of33

Page 628

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



GRADING PERMIT REOUIREMENTS
18. WaIIdFences

The final location, design, heigh! materials, and colors ofthe walls and fences shall
consistent with the submitted Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 31,
2020 subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department to
ensure consistency with the Folsom Ranch Central Dislrict Desigr Guidelines. In
addition, side yard shall fencing shall be located behind second-story bedroom "rescue
windows" as required by the Folsom Fire Code subject to review and approval by the
CommuniW Development Department.

G, I,B cD (PXE), FD

19. Mine Shafl Renedlotion
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open
cuts, tunnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project
site, with specific recommendations for the sealing filling, or removal of each that meet
all applicable health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be
prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans shall be
reviewed and aooroved bv the Citv orior to aooroval ofcradinc olans.

c cD (E)

20. Prepare Truffrc Conlrol PIan
Prior to construction, a Trafiic Control Plan for roadways and intersections affected by
construction shall be prepared by the ownerlapplicant. The Trafiic Control Plan
prepared by the owner/applicant shall, at minimum, include the following measures:

r Maintaining the maximum amount of Savel lane capacity during non-construction
periods, possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision of
conskuction signage.

r Maintaining alternate one-way traftic flow past the lay down area and site access

when feasible.
. Heavy trucks and other construction transport vehicles shall avoid the busiest

commute hours (7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. on weekdays).
r A minimum 72-hour advance notice ofaccess resfrictions for residents, businesses,

and local emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification of
altemative routes and detours to enable for the avoidance of the immediate
construction zone.

o A phone number and City contact for inquiries about the schedule ofthe
construction throughout the construction period. This information will be posted in
a local newspaper, via the City's web site, or at City Hall and will be updated on a
monthly basis.

G cD(E)

Resolution No. I 0458
Page 13 of33

Page 629

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



21, State and FederuI Permi*
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide
evidence that said permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject
to staffreviow orior to aooroval of anv cradinc or imorovement nlan,

C, I cD (PXE)

)J Lands lide /Slope Fdlure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during grading
activities to identif, existing landslides and potential slope failure hazards. The said
engineer shall be notified a minimum oftwo days prior to any site clearing or grading
to facilitate meetincs with the cradinc contractor in the field.

G cD (E) PW

IMPROVEMENT PLA}[ REOUIRf, MENTS
23 Improvement Plans

The improvement plans for the required public and private subdivision improvements
necessary to serve any and all phases ofdevelopment shall be reviewed and approved
bv the Community Development DeDarfin€nt prior to aDDroval of a Final Map.

M cD (E)

24. Standard Construction Specifrcallons and Denib
Public and private improvements, inoluding roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks,
bicycle lanes and bails, sheetlights, underground infrastrucilre and all other
improvements shall be provided in accordance with the latest edition of the City of
Folsom Stotdard Construction Speci/ications and Detalls and the Design and
Proecdwes Mqrusl qtd laprovenedSt@tdsr&.

I cD (PXE)

25. Waler and Sewer Infrasfiucture
All City-owned water and sewer infrastructure shall be placed within the street right of
way. In the event that a City-maintained public water or sewer main needs to be placed
in an area otler than the public right of way, such as through an open space corridor,
landscaped area, etc., the following criteria shall be met;

r The owner/applicant shall provide public sewer and water main easements
. An access road shall be designed and constructed to allow for the operations,

maintenance and replacement of the public water or sewer line by the City along
the entire water and/or sewer line alignment.

. In no case shall a City-maintained public water or public sewer line be placed on
orivate residential nrooertv.

I cD(E)

Resolution No. 1 045E
Page 14 of33

Page 630

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



26. Lighting PIan
The owner/applicant ofall project phases shall submit a lighting plan fbr the project to
the Community Development Departrnent. The lighting plan shall be consistent with
the Folsom Ranch Central Disftict Design Guidelines:

a

a

a

a

a

Shield or soreen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill
on adjacent properties;
Place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for consbuction activities,
nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential
areas and passing motorists;
For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light fixtures
that are ofunusually high intensity or that blink or flash;
Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building
glaze or finish, neutral, earth toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or
screened lighting, and appropriate sigrage in the o{fice/commercial areas to prevent
ligbt and glar€ from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways; and
Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscaping
design in the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally
consistent with the overall site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to
lic,ht onlv the sisr face with no of-site clare.

I cD (P)

27 Utlllty Coordinuion
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion oftlris
project with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.), The
owner/applicant shall provide the City with written confirmation of public utility
service prior to approval ofthe final map.

M cD (PXE)

28. Rep laci ng H azailo as Facil il ies
'l'he owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or
hazardous public sidewalh curb and gutter, andlor bicycle trail facilities along the site
liontage and/or boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damage,
to the satisfaction of the Communitv Develooment Deoartment.

I, OC cD (E)

29 Fuare Utilily Llnes
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project shall be
placed underground wirhin and along the perimeter ofthe project at th€ developer's
cost. The owner/applicant shall dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground
eas€ments for the olectrical facilities that will be necessary to service development of
the proiect.

M cD (E)

Resolution No. 10458
Page l5 of33

Page 631

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



30. Waler Meler Flxed Networh System
The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, furnish and install all infrastructure associated
with the water meter fixed network system for any City-owned and maintained water
meter within the proiect.

I cD(E),EWR

31. Closs II Blhe Lanes
All Class II bike lanes shall be striped, and the legends painted to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Departrnent. No parking shall be permitted within tha Class
II bike lanes.

I cD (EXP)

32. Noise Banierr
Based on the Environmental Noise Assessment (the "2020 Noise Assessment")
prepared by Bollard Acoustical Consultants on August 15, 2019, the following
measures shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Departnent:

r 6-foot-tall solid noise barriers shall be constructed along all residential property
boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway prior to
occupancy ofany residencss adjacent to these streets. The 6-foot-tall solid noise
barrier adjacont to East Bidwell Steet shall be located on top ofa 4-foot-tall berm,
effectively creating a l0-foot-tall combination barrier as measured from the pad
grade the homes adjacent to East Bidwell Stre€t. The 6-foot-tsll solid noise barrier
adjacent to Mangini Parkway shatl be measured relative to the pad grade ofthe
adjacent homes.

r Suitable materials for the taflic noise barriers include masonry and precast concrete
panels. The overall barier height may be achieved by utilizing a banier and earthen
berm combination. Other materials may be acceptable but shall be reviewed by an
acoustical consultant and approved by the Community Development Department
prior to use,

r Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residonces in this
development to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to
achieve compliance with the applicable interior noise level criteria,

Second-floor building facades shall maintain minimum window assembly STC
ratincs of 32 for all homes with rear vards adiacent to East Bidwell Steet.

a

LO cD (EXP)

Resolution No. I 0458
Page 16 of33

Page 632

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



33. Master Plan Updales

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, waier and storm drainage
improvements with corresponding eas€ments, as necessary, in accordance with these
studies and the latest edition of the City of Folsom Standard Cowtruction
Speciftcations and Details. andthe Design od Procedwes Manual otd Improvement
Standtds.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-
develooment conditions.

G'I cD(E),EW&PW

34. B est Manag eme nt h octic es
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that
meet the requirements of the water quality standards of the City's National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality
Control Board.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the owner/applicant shall prepare a
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and implement Best Manag€ment
Practices (BMPs) that comply with the Genoral Construotion Stormwator Permit from
the Central Valley RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during construction.
Detailed information about the SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9,
"Hvdrolorry and Water Ouality."

G, I cD (E)

35. Lliler Contrul
During Construction, the owner/applicant shal! be responsible for litter ooutrol and
sweeping of all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm
drains shall be cleaned immediately before the official start ofthe rainy season
(October l5).

OG CD(E)

Resolution No. 1045E
Page 17 of33

Page 633

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



r.IRE DEPT REOI'IREMENTS
36. All-Weolher Access and Ftre Hydrants

The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants bofore
combustible materials are allowed on any project site or other approved alternative
method as approved by the Fire Department. All-weather emergency access roads and
fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided before combustible material or
vertical consfuction is allowad on any project site or other approved altemative method
as approved by the Fi€ D€parment. (All-weather access is defined as six inches of
compacted aggregate base from May I to September 30 and two inches asphalt concrete
over six inches aggregate base from October I to April 30). The buildings shall have
iltuminated addresses visible from the steet or drive fronting the prope4y. Size and
location ofaddress identification shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire
Dopartment.
o Residential Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow

for the proposed subdivision is determined to be 500 gpm per minute for 30 minutes.
r All public str€ets shall me€t City of Folsom Street Standards.
r The maximum length ofany dead-end steet shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance

with the Folsom Fire Code (unless approved by the Fire Department).
r All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be

provided boforr combustibl€ material storage or vertical construction is allowed. All-
weather acoess is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May I to September 30 and
2'AC over 6" AB from Ootobcr I to April 30

r The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Plan Area may be required to be
completed and operational at the time that the threshold of 1,500 occupied homes
within tho Folsom Plan Area is met.

G,I, M, B cD (P), FD

Resolution No. 10458
Page 18 of33

Page 634

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



LANDSCAPf,/TREE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS
37 Landscaplng Plans

Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape
architect and approved by the City prior to the approval ofthe first building permit. Said
plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree
planting exhibit demonstrating sufficient diversity and appropriate species selection to
the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. The ree exhibit shall
include all ste€t trees, accent trees, parking lot shading trees, and mitigation trees
proposed within the development. Said plans shall comply with all State and local rules,
regulations, Govemor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to water oonservation
and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan fuea Specific
Plan where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water efficient
requirements as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill l88l) (State Model
Water Elficient Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant shall comply
with any new ordinance. Shade and omamental trees shall be mainained acoording to
tle most current American National Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300)
by qualified tree care professionals. Tree topping for height reduction, view protection,
light clearance or any other purpose shall not b€ allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such
as pollarding, shall be specified within the approved landscape plans and shall be
implemented during a 5-year establishment and training period. The owner/applicant
shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on water usage. The
owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to
landscape water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought
conditions on all landscapins in the Creekstone Phase I SuMivision proiect.

B cD (PXE)

Resolution No. 10458
Page 19 of33

Page 635

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



MAP REOUIREITIENTS
38. S ubdivis b n Inrptovemenl Agreemcnl

Prior to tho approval of any Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a suMivision
improvement agreement with the City, identi$ing all required improvements, if any, to
be consfucted with each proposod phase ofdevelopment. The owner/applicant shall
provide security acceptable to tle Ciw. suaranteeing construction ofthe improvements.

M cD(E)

39. The Firul Inclusionary Housing PIan
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan shall be approved by the City Council. The
Inclusionary Housing Agreement, which will be approved by the City Attornoy, shall be
executed prior to recordation ofthe Final Map for the Creekstone Phase I Subdivision
Droiect.

M cD (PXE)

Resolution No. 10458
Page20 of33

Page 636

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



40. Departmenl of Real Eslale Public Repon
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Deparfinent ofReal Estate
Public Report and/or the CC&R's the following items:

l) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity
to the proposed subdivision, and that the public parks may include facilities
(basketball courts, a baseball field, softball fieldq soccer fields, and playground
equipment) that may g€nerate noise impacts during various times, including but
not limited to evening and nighttime hours. The owner/applicant shall also
disclose that the existing public parks include nighttime sports lighting that may
generate lighting impacts during evening and nighttime hours.

2) The soil in the subdivision may contain nahrally occurring asbestos and
naturally occurring arsenic.

3) The collecting digging or removal of any stone, artifact, or other pr€historic or
historic object located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance ofany
archaeological site or historic property, is prohibited.

4) The project site is located close to the Mather Airport flight path and overflight
noiso may be present at various times.

5) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or o$site area zoned or
used for agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by
written disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City ofFolsom,
advising any transferee ofthe pot€ntial adverse odor irnpacts from surrounding
agricultural operations. which disclosure shall direct the transferee to contact
the County of Sacramento conceming any such property within the County
zoned for agricultural uses within one mile of the subject prcperty being
transferred.

M cD (P, PK)

ResolutionNo. 10458
Page 21 of33

Page 637

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



4t Public Utility Easements
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities on
properties adjacent to the public and private streets. A minimum oftwelve and one-half-
foot (12.5') wide Public Utility Easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD,
Pacific Gas and Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be dedicated adjacent to all
public and private street rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional
width to accommodate exfraordinary facilities as determined by the City. The width of
the public utility easements adjacent to public and private right ofway may be reduced
with orior aooroval from oublic utilitv companies.

M CD (E)

42. B a c h b o ne I nfras lr uc I ur e
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. I thereto, the owner/applicant
shall provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary
Infrastructure to serve the project, including but not limited to lands, public rights of
way, public utility easements, public water main easements, public sewer easements,
irrevocable offers of dedication and temporary construction easements. All required
easements as listed necessary for the lnfrastructwe shall be reviewed and approved by
the City and recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder pursuant to the timing
requirements set forth in Section 3.8 of the ARDA" and anv amendments thereto.

M cD(E)

43 Nent Pemanent Benchma*s
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new permanent benchmarks on the
(NAVD 88) datum in various locations within the subdivision or at any other locations
in the vicinity of the projecVsubdivision as directed by the City Engineer. The type and
specifications for the permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the City. The new
benchmarks shall be placed by the owner/applicant within 6 months from the date of
approval ofthe vesting tentative subdivision map.

M cD (E)

44. Centalized Mall Deltvery Uni*
All Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions for the placement of
cenftalized mail delivery units, The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for
the placement of any centralized mail delivery unit. Specifications and location of such
base shall be determined pursuant to the applicable rrquirements ofthe U. S. Postal
Service and the City of Folsom Community Development Department, with due
consideration for street lisht location. trafic safew. securitv. and consumer convenience.

M CD (E)

Resolution No. I 0458
Page22 of33

Page 638

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



45. Recorded Finol Mop
Prior to the issuance ofbuilding permits, the owner/applicant shall provide a digital copy
of the recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development
Department. The exception to this requirement is model homes. Building permits for
model homes only may be issued priorto rccording of tho Final Map, subject to
aonroval bv the Communitv Develooment Deoartnent.

B cD (E)

46. Recorded Flnal Mq
Prior to issuance ofbuilding pernits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-
Cordova Unified School Distict with a copy of the recorded Final Map.

B cD (P), FCUSD

47 Credtl Reimb wsement Agruencat
Prior to the recordation of the ftrst Smdl-lrt Final Map, the owner/applicant and City
shall enter into a credit and reimbursement agreement for oonstructed improvements thal
are included in the Folsom Plan Area's Public Facilities Financinr Plan.

M cD(E)

ARKING
48. 1) Tho following conditions ofapproval are related to roadway and trallic related

improvements for the Creekstone Phase t Subdivision project (PNl9-059) under
two (2) separate scenarios:

A. The Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Subdivision project (PN 19-091) has

constructed improvements required for East Bidwell Steet and the intersection
of Mangini Parkway.

B. The Toll Brothen at Folsom Ranch SuMivision project (Toll Brothers) has not
constructed required improvements to East Bidwell Stre* and the intersection of
Mangini Parkway.

See Attachment 12 (KH Memo and M&S Exhibit) to this stallreport for reference for
the followinr improvemsnts under each scenario:

B cD (E), PW, FD

Resolution No. 10458
Pago 23 of33

Page 639

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



4E.
Cont

Sccnrrio I (Toll Btother: Rcouircd Imrrovemeuts Comnletedl
A. The ownar/applicant shall oonstruct a southbound left tum lane with a minimum

storage length of255 feet and a 60-foot t6per to provide left turn access to
Cantor Drive. The owner/applicant shall install median improvements and
required signage and stiping in East Bidwell Sheet to prohibit left tums out of
Cantor Drive to southbound East Bidwell Sneet.

B. The owner/applicant shall modi$ the existing traffrc sigrral, sigring and striping
at the intersection of East Bidwell Sbeet and Mangini Parkway to the
satisfaction ofthe City Engineer.

Scenerlo 2 (Toll Brcthen Reouircd Imnrovemen& Not Comolcted)
A. The owner/applicant shall;

l) Widen East Bidwell Sheet to include an additional southbound through lane
which extends from approximately 640 feet north ofthe intersection of
Mangini Parkway to the left tum lane into Cantor Drive.

2) Widen East Bidwell Sheet to provide a Ieft tum lane with a minimum
storage length of255 feet and a 60-foot tapcr into Cantor Drive, Construct
median island improvements together with signage and striping to the
satisfaction ofthe City Engineerto prohibit left turns out ofCantor Drive to
southbound East Bidwell Steet.

3) Modifr the existing traffic signal, sigring and striping at the intersection of
Mangini Parkway and East Bidwell Stroet to accommodate revised lane
configurations and revised tuming movements including a northbound East
Bidwell Steet U-turn and a westbound left tum from Mangini Parkway to
southbound East Bidwell Street.

B cD(E), Pw'FD

ResolutionNo. 10458
Prge24 of33

Page 640

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



49. 2) The ownerlapplicant.shall construct int€rim improvements to the satisfaction ofthe
City Engineer st Cantor Drive on Mangini Parkway to prohibit right tums out of the
driveway until such time that Westwood Drive is consfucted and ready for haffic
bctween Mangini Parkway and Alder Creek Parkway. The interim improvements
prohibiting right tums out of this driveway will be required to be complete and
operational prior to issuance ofthe first Certificate ofOcoupancy in the Creokstone
Phase I Subdivision. If Westwood Drive is complete and open for traftic prior to
issuance ofthe first Certificate ofOccupancy in the subdivision, the interim
improvemenh prohibitinc risht tums out of the driveway will not be required.

o cD (E), PW, FD

ResolutionNo. 10458
Page 25 of33

Page 641

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



50. The Creekstone Phase I Subdivision project shall comply with the following architecture
and desigr requirements:

l. This approval is for one product line with three two-story master plans in three
architectural styles with 12 color and material options. The applicant shall
submit building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building
elevations dated Febrwry 24,2020.

2. The design, materials, and colors ofthe single-family residential units shall be
consistent with the approved building elevationsn materials samples, and color
scheme to the satisfaction of the Community Devolopment Deparhnent.

3. The Community Development Department shall approve the individual lot
permits to assure no duplication or repetition of,the same house, same roof-line,
same elevation style, side-by-side, or across the street from each other.

4. All mechanical equipment shall be ground-mounted and concealed from view of
public streets, neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings. For lots
abutting the open space areas (southom project boundary), mechanical
equipment shall be screened or located out ofview from open space areas.

5. Decorative light fxtures, consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central Distict
Design Guidelines and unique to each arohitectural design theme, shall be added
to the front elevation of each Master Plan to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Depafiment.

6. A minimum of one street ffee shall be planted in the front yard of each
residential lot within the subdivision, A minimum of two trees ore required along
the street-side of all comer lots, All front yard inigation and landscaping shall be

installed prior to a Buildins Permit Final.

B cD (P) (B)

Resoluti<inNo. 1045E
Prge26 of33

Page 642

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



51 Trash/Recycllng Contalnerc and Air Conditioner Sueenlng
Trash, recycling, and yard waste conteiners shall be placed behind the side yard fence so
that they are not visible from the publio right-of-way to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Departnent. In addition, air conditioning units shall also be
placed behind the side yard fence or located in tho rear yard so ttret they are not visible
from the public right-of-way to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Departnent.

OG cD (P) (E)

Resolution No. 10458
Page27 of33

Page 643

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



MITIGATION MEASURES
52 Creekstone Phase I Subdlvlslon MilEotion Monitoring Reporting

Program (MMRP). The conditions of approval below (numbered 52-l to
52-89) implement the applicable mitigation measunes from the FPASP
(May 2011) MMRP, as amended by the Revised Proposed Water Supply
Facility Alternative (November 2012), the Folsom South of U.S.
Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructuro Mitigated Negative Declaration
(December 2014), and the Westland Eagle Specific Plan Amendment
(Seotember 201 5).

Conditlon
No

Mitigation
Number
(Sourcel

Mitigetlon Measurco Timing Rcsponriblc Agency

AESTHETICS
52-l 3A.l-4

OPASP
ErR/ErS)

Screen Construclion Staging Areas.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development
application shall locate staging and material storage areas as far away
from sensitive biological resources and sensitive land uses (e.g.,
residential areas, schools, parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage
areas shall be approved by the appropriate agency (identified below)
before the approval ofgrading plans for all project phases and shall be
screened from adjacent occupied land uses in ea.rlier development phases

to the maximum extent practicable, Screens may include, but sre not
limited to, the use of such visual barriers such as berms or fences. The
screen design shall be approved by the appnrpriate agency to further
reduce visual effects to the extent possible,

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's
jurisdictional boundaries shall be developed by the project applicant(s) of
each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, and Caltrans) to
reduce to the extent feasible the visual effects of consruction activities
on adjacent project land uses that have already been developed.

Before approval of
grading plans and
during constuction
for all project
phases.

City of Folsom Community
Development Department.

s2-2 3A"1-5
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

Establish and Reqaire Confomunce to Lighling StandsTfu and
Prepare and Implenenl a Lighling Plan
To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the City shall:

> Establish standards for on-site outdoor lighting to reduce high-
intensiw nishttime liehtins and clare as part oftle Folsorn Specific Plan

Before approval of
building permits.

City of Folsom Community
Development Depaftnent

Resolution No. 10458
Page 28 of33

Page 644

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



design guidelines/standards. Consideration shall be given to design
features, namely directional shielding for street lighting, parking lot
lighting, and other substantial light sources, that would reduce effects of
nighttime lighting. In addition, consideration shall be given to the use of
automatic shutoffs or motion sensors for lighting features to further
reduce excess nighttime light.

> Use shielded or screened public lighting fixtures to prevent the light
from shining offofthe surface intended to be illuminated.

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the project applicant(s)
ofall project phases shall:

> Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and
prevent light spill on adjacent properties.

> Flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, nighttime
sporting activities, and/or security shall be screened or aimed no higher
than 45 degrees above straight down (half-way between straight down
and straight to the side) when the source is visible from any off-site
residential properly or public roadway.

> For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of
light fixtures that are ofunusually high intensity or brightness (e.g., harsh

mercury vapor, low-pressure sodium, or fluorescent bulbs) or that blink
or flash.

> Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-
glare building glaze or finish, neutral, earth-toned colored paint and
roofing materials), shielded or screened lighting, and approptiate signage

in the office/commercial areas to prevent light and glare from adversely
affecting motorists on nearby roadways.

> Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and

landscape design in the Folsom Specific Plan area. Lighting fixtures shall

be architecturally consistent with the overall site desigt.

> Lighting of off-site facilities within the City of Folsom shall be

consistent with the City's General Plan standards.

> Lighting ofthe off-site detention basin shall be consistentwith
Sacramento County General Plan standards.

Resolution No. 1045E
Page 29 of33

Page 645

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



A lighting plan for all on- and off-site elements within each agency's
jurisdictional boundaries (specified below) shall be submitted to the
relevantjurisdictional agency for review and approval, which shall
include the above elements. The lighting plan may be submitted
concurrently with other improvement plans, and shall be submitted before
the installation ofany lighting or the approval ofbuilding permits for
each phase. The project applican(s) for any particular discretionary
development application shall implement the approved lighting plan,

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s)
ofeach applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies)
(i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

AIR
52-3 3A.2-lr

(rPASP
ErR/XrS)

Irnplemenl Measarcs to ContrcI Ab PoAatunl Emissions Generuled by
Consfiaction of On^qite Elemcnts.

To reduce short-term construction emissions, the project applicant(s) for
any particular discretionary development application shall require their
contractors to implement SMAQMD's list of Basic Construction
Emission Control Practices, Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control
Practices, and Enhanced Exhaust Contol Practices (list below) in effect
at the time individual portions ofthe site undergo construction. In
addition to SMAQMD-recommended measures, construction operations
shall comply with all applicabte SMAQMD rules and regulations.

Basic Construclion Emission Control Proctices

> Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces

include, but are not limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking
areas, staging areas, and access roads.

> Cover or maintain at least two feet offree board space on haul trucks
transoortinc soil. sand. or other loose material on the site. Any haul

Before the approval
ofall grading plans
by the City and

throughout project
construction, where
applicable, for all
project phases.

City of Folsom Community
Development D€partrn€nt

Rssolution No. 10458

Page 30 of33

Page 646

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



trucks that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways should
be covered.

> Use wet power vacuum street sweepers 1o remove any visible
hackout mud or dirt onto adjac€nt public roads at least once a day. Use of
dry power sweeping is prohibited.

> Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).

> All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lotsto be paved should
be completed as soon as possible. In addition, building pads should be
Iaid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are
used.

> Minimize idling time either by shufting equipment offwhen not in
use or reducing the time of idling to 5 minutes (as required by the state
airbome toxics conhol measure [Title 13, Section 2485 of the California
Code ofRegulationsl). Provide clear signage that posts this requirement
for workers at the entrances to the site.

> Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition
according to manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be
checked by a certified mechanic and determine to be running in proper
condition before it is operated.

Enhanced Fugillve PM Dust Conlrol Pructices - SoiI Dislurbance
Areas

> Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil.
However, do not overwater to the extent that sediment flows offthe site.

> Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind
speeds exceed 20 mph.

> Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinating native grass seed) in
disturbed ar€as as soon as possible. Water appropriately until vegetation
is established.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Pmctices - Unpaved Roads

> Install wheel washers for all exiting hucks, or wash offall frucks and
equipment leaving the site.

Resolution No. 10458
Page 3l of33

Page 647

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



> Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with
a 6 to l2-inch layer of wood chips, mulch, or gravel to reduce generation
ofroad dust and road dust carryout onto public roads.

> Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to
contact at the construction site regarding dust complaints. This person
shall respond and take corrective aotion within 48 hours. Tho phone
number of SMAQMD and the City contact person shall also be posted to
ensure compliance.

E nhanced Exhoust Conlrol Praclices
> The project shall provide a plan, for approval by the City of Folsom
Community Development Department and SMAQMD, demonstrating
that the heavy-duty (50 horsepower [hp] or more) off-road vehicles to be
used in the constuction project, including owned, leased, and
subcontractor vehicles, will achieve a project wide fleet-average 20%
NOX reduction and 45%o particulate reduction compared to the most
current Califomia Air Resources Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at
the time ofconstruction. Acceptable options for reducing emissions may
include use of late-model engines, low-emission diesel products,
altemative fuels, engine retrofit technolory, aftor-treatrnent products,
and/or other options as they become available. The project applican(s) of
each project phase or its representative shall submit to the City ofFolsom
Community Development Dcpartment and SMAQMD a comprehensive
inventory of all off-road construction equipment, equal to or greater than
50 hp, that would be used an aggregate of40 or more hours during any
portion ofthe construction project. The inventory shall include the
horsepower rating, engine produofion year, and projected hours of use for
each piece ofequipment. The inventory shall be updated and submitted
monthly throughout the duration ofthe project, except that an inventory
shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no construction
activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the use ofheavy-duty off-road
equipment, the project representative shall provide SMAQMD with the
anticipated construction timeline including start date, and name and
phone number of the projeot manager and on-site foreman. SMAQMD's
Construction Mitigation Calculator can be used to identifr an equipment
fleet that achieves this reduction (SMAOMD 2007a). The proiect shall

Resolution No. 10458
Page 32 of33

Page 648

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ensur€ that emissions fiom all off-road diesel powered equipment used on
the SPA do not exceed 40% opacity for more than three minutes in any
one hour. Any equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or
Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired immediately, and the City and

SMAQMD shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of
noncompliant equipment. A visual survey ofall in-operation equipment
shall be made at least weekly, and a monthly summary of the visual
survey results shall be submitted throughout the duration ofthe project,
except that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day
period in which no construction activity occurs. The monthly summary
shall include the quantity and type ofvehicles surveyed as well as the
dates of each survey. SMAQMD staff and/or otJrer officials may conduct
periodic site inspections to determine compliance. Nothing in this
mitigation measure shall supersede other SMAQMD or state rules or
regulations.

> If at the time of construction, SMAQMD has adopted a regulation or
new guidance applicable to construction emissions, compliance with the
regulation or new guidance may completely or partially replace this
mitigation if it is equal to or more effective than the mitigation contained
herein, and 11SMqQMD so permits,

53 The Landowner acknowledges that the State adopted amendments to
Section 65850 of the Califomia Govemment Code (specifically Section
65E5(g)), effective January l, 2018, to allow for the mplementation of
inclusionary housing requirements in residential rental units, upon
adoption ofan ordinance by the City. The Landowner is not currently
contemplating any residential r€ntal projects within the Subject Prope(y;
however, in the event the City amends its Inclusionary Housing
Ordinance with resp€ct to rental housing punuant to Section 65850(9),
Landowner (or successor in interest) agrees that the Subject Property
shall be subject to said City Ordinance, as amended, should any

residential rental project be proposed within the Subject Property.

OG cD (P)

Resolution No. 10458
Page 33 of33

Page 649

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Affachment 2

Vicinity Map

Page 650

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



6

ll

7 tt

t
Y

I
g

e

=E

t

9E
s7

=a

i:I
IDta-l=
ito
aa
r3
!!
t6

4
?_

z
a:.!
?

?

=

K
SD
)

oqHH,-,
li

F
sD
P
C)
Ef

F-
cJ)

-lF

=

Ffi-
z
trl
X

=;

I

a

JF.

b
trt
Ut

I

I
I
t t

t

E*
f3
lf, I

t
R

!
i

tzoc
@
m
oc33

I
a
m

reui=,!iEi$llllllrrrrrrrrrrrlttltttts388E..i:J:l!5ltll!

o-i-a-f--a---

isl.rtelurr t

t:

it
tiiiisEtr
I ifirill'iitlsti

55S t

ffi

frrr.rrroor"lrcr:!3!!?;..rtir€=a..-..--. - I I

ilrff*'!*!uu*uiiiiuiiliiliiiiililii -
zo
c
@
mq
c

1
!T
a
m

.erarseeresBeaias,tseliEEEE:iSlEliiilliii;+iiiiitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiaiiiiii.sert3re3E8isra3s"{r::iStEEEl!:!!!l9t

a,
)
it
itt9
tl

E

:!a:r:arir-:;;;.- E

Page 651

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Affachment 3

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
Dated April 21,2020

Page 652

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ffir--
1q?ww)

^rr,-6 v
(01 to1 1 a*qd qcwa

I aseqd gNoJsxg!ruJ
dVINI NOISIAIqANS SAIJVIN.qI ONIIS:IA

.'..*r
*

z+Ifi-..' "
.€4._IF.F

'l -
t-,..*Y,.

@
o0
F

:".i:{ii

-ffi;i---\l,its- --.-.-.+r.+ -+, +!.I hT-i-3-+d rll+ll+l ,

-:1___

.*-*"*,
-F5E-F\91

....#
:g+El] ..'.+-+-fi lg'^-S:I #'t -+.{ {+ | I

1:

lif*lt
1

a

,l

Page 653

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachmerfi 4

Preliminary Grading, Draindga, and Utility Plan
Dated April 21,2024

Page 654

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



-iffi6Ia' 
<or "; "*; qi*u i,iGvtj '

I eseqd gNoJs)afluJ

-- -:F.ffi-a+z

dvl I NOISTAICAnS SAlwrNlt 9NITSA --.3n-r,-'1 
'"''

;,t'"'lgi:*
"l

1- . ., l;,.:

..e
dl

-tl+r
* ---i;F <92

*J---.- * , -1---I lr++rt*ar t+, I i+t
\r_4. *\ )\, r*::.

;' ':. -;t, '4

rill

. t!'

),

i
q

I

Page 655

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 5

Conceptual Front Yard Landscaping
Dated December 9,2019

Page 656

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



l

CREEKSTONE
Mangini - Lot 10

Mffi.
m

WTEN
M@.4

w&ffitud
MWIMM

TYPICAL FRONIS

,/tfMWwwa
/MMWN
M4@

fi@NMruffitu,OffuLOIbLNEMNffi
ffiwlM

*AtE*lmrmsFw MMIdM MdNM @

ffi@@g{ l^sv

ffilsU&'
rlrrla,a'BF^ ro4
N@sfiNrff

PLAM-P7LEritl5Offr-C1{,ESn'
*r -1il5 t MN^w u€ F trM MNrc&NAve drcNNIW

nsc.wnmMr F&ceMffif

. T,F omrw *ll* r

{
'TE!i_ 

rtll4llru qlid r t
-,lt^ .

s4E

{

{

t
I

L-i
ilil

ilaa -' 
1

dlsiii^b - 
I

a*n.@qbNuq _j

Dmn9.

!EE--- @rspls 
-:ffi-

CONCEPTUAL FRONT YARDS

Page 657

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 6

Wall and Fence Exhibit
Dated January 31,202A

Page 658

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



o CREEKSTONE
9---I--.!9--------lF

robq etif@n toryll,2m

n$fttf&ms

6'Souffi
CANTOR DRIVE

Op.n Vld

'
z
o2

a
I
2o

25 25 u n n s 3r I 33 3 s 36 37 36

I 5t 5o 4 6 17 a5 € 12 41 o 3? o
o
z
o

3

CASH DRIVE

FASI SIDWEITSTREEI

g

7tL7 6S 69 rou 6S 4& 6t 52 63$ I

Page 659

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachmerfi 7

Residential Schematic Design
Dated February 24,2A2A

Page 660

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



PLAN IAR
SPANISH

PLAN 2BR
FARMHOUSE

PLAN 3C
ITALIAN

!ruilffi-lo**

Mangini Ranch Phase 1 - Lot 10 Creekstone Phase 1

CREEKSTONE SCHEMATICDESIGN
ffia .tld Lffiy.a

S}IEEI ITOEX:

489!!rE0rURe

A0.0 lnEgt{EEr
AO,1 ART|CUIATIOTI DfiIBIT

E4!l-i!
B.O PLAil g COLORED ROilI EI.EVAMNS
8.1 M3FLMRilK
m.t-i FW 3aDmf,oa
A32 FLAtl3rr E(TERIoR EtlVATPlld
A3.3 PLAN 38 OfiERTOR ErlVAnOr{S
A3{ PLAN 3C EdERIOR ELETAIIOI{S
A3.5 @T COVERED OUTDOOR ROOI' EIEVATIOI{S

X.O COLOR / IIATERIAL SCHET'E8

PI.AN I
A1,O PLAN 1 COLOREO ELEVATIOi{S
A1.I PljN 1 FLOOR PI.AMI
AI.1,I PIAN 1 AOOEM}A
'I2 PI N lAEXTERIOR ELEVAIIOI{S
AI,3 PIAN 18 EXTEROR EI.EVATIOIIS
A1.4 PW IC EXTERIOR €LEI'ATK}IS
A1,' OPT. CO\iEREDOI'TD@R ROd{ EIEI'ANON9

PIAN 2
A2.O PLAII 2 CO{,OR!D ELEVATIONS
A2.1 PTAN2FLOORFUNA
A2.1.I PLAN2ADDEilOA
P.2 FUN A trTGRIOR EI,EVATIo{S
AZ3 PTAN zSEXTERIOR EIEVATOTS
A2.4 PIAN 2C E(TERIOE ELEVATIOI{S
,A.5 OPT. COVEREO OUTDOOR ROOI4 EI.EVATIONS

TITL€ SHEET A0.0

Page 661

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



PLAN IAR
SPANISH

PLAN 2BR
FARMHOUSE

PLAN 3C
ITALIAN

!ruil ffix*r-lo** CREEKSTONE SCHEMATIC OESIGN t*F.rF , ARTICIJLATION EXHIgIT A0.1

Page 662

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Front Elevotion - lA - Sponish Coloniol

Front Elevotion - lC - ltolion Villo

CREEKSTONE SCHEMATIC DESIGN

Froni Elevqtion - lB - Western Formhouse

PLAN 1 - EXTERToR ELEVATTONS A1 .0r:i':ts--
!ruilffi"1@**',

Page 663

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



GFot R6m

Gsoc€

I af

b

Floor Plon
3 BedrMs
2.5 Bolhs
1896 s.f.

I

I

I

I

I

L__
Floor

Lol Coverooe Colculolions
FiFt Floor 842 Sq. Fl.

Goroge 425sq. Fl.

Porch 9r sq. Fl.
Toiol: l358Sq. Ft
Totol Building Covsogr€Second Floor

I 054 s.f. 8,12 s.l.

!ruU ffiFl@**n CRTEKSTONE SCHEMATIC DESIGN
Eas .t!- M&a

, EF'TI , PLAN 1 FLOOR PLAN A1.1

Page 664

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Lol Coverooe Colculolions lC
Frst Fbs 842 Sq. tl.

Second Floor
I 054 s.f.

Goroge 421 Sq. Ft.
Porch 185q, Ft.

Tolol: l28l Sq. Fl.
Tolol Building Coveroge,f4X

Goroge 421 Sq. Fl.
Porch 9l Sq. Fi.

Tolol: 135.1 Sq. Ft.

Tolol Euilding Coveroge 46t

Floor
842 s.f.L

Lol Covorooe Colculotlons lB
Frsl Fhor 842 Sq. Ft.

Second Floor
1068 s.f.

I

L
Floor

s.f.

,-r.l- , PLAN I FLOOR PLAN ADDENDA

I

!ruilffi-l@**o CREEXSTONE SCHEIVIATIC DE$IGN A.1.1.1

I

!tst

-

Page 665

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



!ruUffi1@**o

SPANISH COLONIAL
Chareclorizsd by simply arlioulated
dstails and adaptobllity

DESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Story Marsing
Stucco Eltorior Finish
Ville Shspod Consote Til€
Gently Pitchad Roots

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

CoD€lDebils
Shuttorg
Faux Chy Outlookers

Right Elevation
,5r'? ,

Right at Enhanced Lots
,bF.tt ,

Front Elevations - 1A - Spanish Colonial

Rear Elevation
,bF.r ,

Rear at Enhanced Lots
F_i:::g__..._.r

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

ROOF PIAN IA

,-.-,f ,

Left Elevation
,bF.'f ,

, bP-f , EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS. PLAN 1A A.1.2CREEKSTONE

+ t
4> +

I
C ,

e t

Page 666

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



V\IESTERN FARMHOUSE
Charectsrlzed by an aEymmetrical,
ca3ual cottage look. lt rspr€.ronls a
prac,tlcel and pic'turgsqug country
home.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Sto.y Messing
Stucco Ext6rior Flnbh
Flat Concrete Tile
Stecpcr Pitcfied Roots

ENMNCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

Boad and Baft
Brid( Veneer
Shu(ers

Right Elevation
,bP'r ,

ROOF PLAN I8
33- fu..c

er:'f '

Front Elevations - 1B - Westem Farmhouse

, bF'S

Rear at Enhanced Lots
'--f,!f-J

SCHEMATIC DESIGN EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PTAN IB A1.3

Left Elevation

'rp'q ,

at Lois

!ruilffi1@'*', CREEKSTONE gfji(J

t
i+ rt

I
t I

i I

Page 667

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ITAL!{N VILI"A
Chsracterizgd by I ftrmel and el€gant
tacad€.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Story Massing
Stucco Exterior Finish
Vllle Shrpcd Concrete Til€
Gontly Pitchod Rooft

ENHiCNCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

Corb€ls
Slone Vsneer
Faux Clay Oullookers

Right Elevation
L=-Aji-Ll

Right at En
tbF'rf 

'

Front Elevations - 1C - ltalian Villa

Rear Elevation
,bF.Y ,

Rear at Enhanced Lots
.rf ,?

SCHEIvIATIC DESIGN

ROOF PnN lC
E- l.ruro

bF.r, I

E_.:::C_r

' -'*.'r I EXTERIOR ELEVA,TIONS. PLAN 1C 41.4!ffiil ffiFl@rp** CREEKSTONE

Page 668

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



r+t
+ r+

9
t

t il
Right Elevation - 14

Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Right Elevation - 1B
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 1C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

CREEKSTONE

Rear Elevation - 1A
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 1B
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Right Elevation - 1C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

ROG PIN IC

,bf.ts , OPT .OI,/IDOOR ROOMS - PTAN 1

RMf PS IA

ROOf PTAN I8

l[!ilffi-l@'**** 41.5

4;I
+ a{t

{}
G t

t I

a

ri

t
{}

t

C

+

Page 669

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



lfi!il ffi-1@"*p*,.

Front Elevotion - 2C - ltolion Villo

Front Elevotion - 2A - Sponish Coloniol

CREEKSTOIIE SCHEMATICDESIGN
ffiA .!116 ffi!.D

Front Elevolion - 28 - Western Formhouse

t *,F.'F , PIAN 2 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 42.0

Page 670

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



hth Solh

1C

I
@T. MASTERBATH

Opt. Lofl

Second Floor
1084 s.f. Floor Plon

4 Bgdrooms
Opl. Lolt
3 Eolhs
2049 s.l-

kt
ld

l]

Floor
965 s.f.

Goroge 419
Psch 72
Totol: 1456

Iolol Euilding Covoroge

Sq. Ft.

Sq, Fl.

Sq, Ft.L I

s01r I

!ffiilffi-l@** CREEKSTONE SCHEiNATIC DESIGN ,br.r , PLAN 2 FLOOR PIAN A2.1

Page 671

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Second Floor
Second Floor
I 084 s.t.

Second Floor
1084 s.l.

Floor
I

I

I

I

I

I

965 s.f.
Lol Cov€roos Colculqlions 2C
RBI Floor 965 Sq. Fl.
Goroge 419Sq. Ft.
Pqch 27Sq, Fl.
Tolol: l4l I Sq. Ft
Totol Buildlng Coveroge 48i

Gorogo 419 Sq. Ft.
Porch 275q. F.
Totol: l4r I sq. Ft.

Totol Buildlng Coveroge 48fi

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

Floor
9d5 s.f.

Lol Coverlaa Colculolions 28
Fint Floor 965 Sq. Ft

!ruil ffiF-l@*o*,*
CREEKSTONE ,df.? , PLAN 2 FLOOR PLAN ADDENDA M.1.1

Page 672

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



SPANISH COLONIAL
Charsdorlzed by simply articulated
detells and edaptabllity

OESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Story Mssslng
Slucco Exterlor Flnlsh
Vill6 Shep€d.Concr€te Tile
Gsnlly Pitdred Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

CorbelOetail6
Shutters
Faux Clsy Outlooksrs

ROOF PIAN 24
:l- {,,..o

,EI'F ,

Right Elevation

Front Elevations - 2A - Spanish Colonial

r_f'rf ,

Rear at

Elevation
,Bf.,t ,

' 
b:&tF

Lots

lfi!ilffi1@'n*',

hF"f ,

SCHEMATIC DESIGNCREEKSTONE EXTERIOR ETEVATIONS - PLAN 2A M.2

+

I

tt

+

l

i,lrrr

Page 673

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



WESTERN FARMHOUSE
Char8c:todz€d by sn esymrr€trlcal,
oaEual cottage look. lt rcprosenb a
practical and piclur€sque count y
hore.

OESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Story Masslng
Stucco Ext6.ior Finlsh
Flat ConcrBto Tib
Steeper Pitchad Rools

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

Board and Batt
Brid( Venoat
Shutters

Right Elevation
,*F.f ,

Right at Enhanced Lots
,hi-.F ,

Front Elevations - 28 - Westem Farmhouse

ROOF PLAN 28

;?f::f-......:

!:i'11' ,

Rear at Enhancrd Lots
,bF.T I

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

Left Elevation
,-f.'f ,

Erl:'!: EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 28lE!ilffi1@**o CREEKSTONE 42.3

il} I

I

It
I

Page 674

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ITALIAN VILTA
Charecterized by a formal end olggant
facado.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Story Massing
Stucco Exterior Finish
Vilh Shaped Concr€te Tile
G€ntly Pitchsd Roofr

ENI-IANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

Coriels
Stone Vgnegr
Faux Clay Outlookers

Right Elevation
,bF.FJ

Right at Enhanced Lots
,-F.r

Front Elevations - 2C - ltalian Villa

Lbj''f ,

Rear at Enhancsd Lots
.-F"?

CREEKSTONE SCHEMATIC DESIGN

PMF PLAN rc

:-fr:f-

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PtAN 2C

,hF.r ,

lE!ilffi1@** , -F'rf , M.4

1i

{9
f

+

Page 675

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Right Elevation - 2A
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Right Elevation - 28
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Right Elevation - 2C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 24
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 28
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 2C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

CREEKSTONE SCHEI\ilATlC DESIGN

Left Elevation - 2A
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Left Elevation - 28
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Left Elevation - 2C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

ROOF PIAN 2A

ROOF MN 28

5- to*o

ROOF PLAN 2C

!ruil ffiF,F-l@'0",
,-F'rl , OPT .OUTOOOR ROOMS. PLAN 2 42.5

+

lll
I/+,:
\;ilr

,;

I

Page 676

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Front Elevqiion - 3A - Spqnish Coloniol

Front Elevotion - 3C - llqlion Villo

CREEKSTONE SCHEMATICDESIGN

Front Elevotion - 38 - Westem Formhouse

!::8iC- PLAN 3. EXTERIOR ELEVATIONSffi!il ffil@*** A3.0

Page 677

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 678

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



€f

w4

Opl. Covd

Floor

PLAN 3 FL@R PI.AN

I
l

b

a1
OPT. MASTER BATH

h

i
I

l

I

i

I
I

I

u

989 s.f Lol Coveroqg Colculolions
Firsl Fbd 989 Sq. Ft.

Gorcge 120 &. Fl.

Pmh 48 Sq. Fl.

Tolol; l,{57 Sq. Ff.
Tolol Building Coveroge 50t

Second Floor
l3l I 5.1. Flotr Plon

4 Bedrmms 4 Lofl
3 golhs

23@ s.l.

I

I

I L_

!ruil ffitr-l@'n*,,
CREEKSTONE SCHEMATIC DESIGN , -r.'a _ -r A3.1

idlhSolh

@ oGml R@m

Gorcf

Page 679

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



6.d@m3

Floor
989s.f.

Second Floor
I 3l I s.f.

Second Floor
l3l I i.l.

Lol Cov_erd g€ 
.C.. 

g lcrJlqIgn! 3q
Fint Floor 989 Sq. F .

Goroge 420Sq. Ft.

Porch 48 Sq. Fl.
Tolol: 1457 Sq. Ft.

Tolol Building Coveroge 506

Goroge 420Sq. Ft.

Porch 48Sq. Fl.
Totol I 457 Sq. Ft.

Totol Bullding Covarcga 50*

Floor
989 s.f.

PLAN 3 FLOOR PLAN ADDENDA

Lol Coveroqe Colculolions 38
FiGl Floor 98tsq. Fl.

l[!il ffis-l@mnn*
CREEKSTONE SCHEMATIC DESIGN b,r.F , 43.1.2

hm2

Page 680

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



SPANISH COLONIAL
Charaderiz€d by simply articulated
detaile and adaptability

DESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Story Massirg
Stucco Extotlor Flnhh
Villa Shaped Concroto Tila
Gently Pitchsd Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

Corbel Detailg
Shutters
Faux Clay Outlookerg

Right Elevation

Front Elevations - 3A - Spanish Colonial

t3f:i[J

Rear at Enhanced Lots
,-F.'? .

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

ROOF PTAN 3A

,-F'rf ,

Lefl Elevation
ET:T_-

E=!J EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PI.AN 3A

,hts.f ,

!ruil ffiFl@'*".*
CREEKSTONE A3.2

r1

t t t

Page 681

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



WESTERN FARMHOUSE
Choraclerizsd by en asymm€tricel,
€sual cottage bk. lt repregents a
preclical and pict{reEquo country
home.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Slory Massing
Stucco Exbrior Finbh
Flat Concrate Til€
Steeper Pitched Rools

ENIIANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

Bosrd and Batl
Shuftors ROOF PTAN 3A

,*F!f ,

Right Elevation
. bF.r?

Front Elevations - 38 - Westem Farmhouse

Rear Elevation
rbi''f ,

Left Elevation
,5F"4 ,

-_1

!ruil ffiFl@,n*, CREEKSTONE

Rear at Enhanced Lots
'b!'tf 

,

SCHEMATIC DESIGN , -f-!t , EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS. PTAN 38 43.3

+

{*

Page 682

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ITALI{N VILI.A
Chaa.datiz€d by a bmaland elsg8nt
tacade.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

Two Story Mssslng
Stucco Exbrior Finlsh
Vilb Shsped Concreto Tlls
Gently Pihh.d Roofi

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

Cortol!
Stone Vene€r
Feux Chy OutlookeF

Right Elevation
t-F.V t

ri
ROOF PUN 3C
g- etM

EE:.:IJ

!ruil ffiF-l@**o CREEKSTOiIE

Front Elevations - 3C - Italian Villa

Rear Elevation
,-F.t ,

Rear at Enhanced Lob
r:"E:g-J

SCHEMATIC DESIGN EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PIAN 3C

Left Elevation
.bg'rt ,

A3.4

+
G

+

{,
I

t

*

1
I I

fl

Page 683

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



I

+

\14.

I

tt
Right Elevation - 3A

Opt. Govered Outdoor Room

Right Elevation - 38
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Right Elevation - 3C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 3A
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 38
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Rear Elevation - 3C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

CREEKSTONE SCHEMATIC DESIGN

Left Elevation - 3A
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Lefi Elevation - 38
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

I

Left Elevation - 3C
Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

r:Lt:fJ

ROOF PUN il

R@F PUN 3A
Et- n,""o

TOOFPHN 3C

OPT.OUTDOOR ROOMS - PLAN 3

II

!ruil ffiF-l@'n** 43.5

Page 684

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



WrcIMRS
ffiffi8

E5a Rooito
Eltffi Sm

M8h
SCHEME 58 SCHEME 68 SCHEME 78 SCHEME 88 OruffifrddSCHEME 1A SCHEME2A SCHEME 3A SCHEME,TA

'*w ..r,.,,-:r,.: ffiffi*a|@

ffi,I.* *flH"-
rF;TF

*ffiI;lIF;l;:
**;rFrtr;r
$m I;lQrr;lt;r
#i3H*tFt;tFF
ffiffirF;r;rrI

ffi @ C6re, ffi.
ffi.h Flff

!ruil ffiFl@**u

ffiry r,l':d.:, ffiI
tdr F*r r

*.*. III TF TA6il ffilu

fts ,r5r ss

reMs r;: r:

TFl T;T
rFlFrF
HH;#:sj#

ffisI
ibffn

ffffi!*;I_&.wFu
i--- e->

is, a'!-'-..!'
tEtwd T--'a:c'J-

nE.@.H

COLOR / MATERIAL SCHEMESCREEKSTONE SCHEMATICDESIGN
Eq ,F ffia.& A4.0

coLoR.rt€
At !65rO*

DESIGN'.f .. l

Page 685

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



muFsruEs
gDdffih

E4t. tudp
Elffitu.

kdStm
mOffiPduGSCHEME 9C SCHEME 1OC SCHEME 11C SCHEME 12C

;F;TTF
ffi,;F
qrewr

**;lr;t;l
:Hg{*FFF
ffF$;lCr;r

:iff**;F tffi
!!!il g*F'l@rn*r, rssErslels

#
I
rF
r;I

SCHEMATIC OESIGN COLOR / MATERIAL SCHEMES 44.1
tcotoR
DESIGN

Page 686

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 8

Exterior Color/IVlaterials Specifications
Dated January 10,202A

Page 687

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



@rPst''

PLANNING SUBMITTAL
Exterior Color/Moteriol Design
01. r 0.2020

E AT DESIGN CONSULTING, INC
221 I Michelson Drive Suite 450 fivine,CA 92612

? : I 4?.721.1 619 WWW.ATDESIGNCONSUTTING.COM

@ Copyright - AT Design Consulting lnc. www.otdesignconsulling.com

Page 688

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonning submilol - 01.10.20 I 2

@m*"t't'
All sonrples ore opproximoie, A,l photo inroges only represeni the
generol chorocleristics ond colors of the moleriols, but rrroy not
sotisfoctorily represent the ocluol color/msieriol or ovoilobilily ot
lhe lime of conslruclion.

ln our coniinuing efforis to improve our communilies. these
specificoiions ore subjecl io chonge rrvilhout nolice. SrLme colors
on ihis forrn nroy be snown with upgrodes.

CREEKSTONE
Exterior Color/Mcteriol DesignFOt-SOM. CAtRl

e- acpyng^i - /; Der'lln Co.!u iing r.c vr.r, oldelrgrccritu riii).coilr

Page 689

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonning Submitol-ol.l0.2O I 3

Exterior Color + Moterial Specificoiions

Ihese color / moleriol speciftcc-,tiorrs .rrd creotive design corrcepls ore ihe
inlellecluol prope:'iy 9i Al Desigrr Consulling. c Coli{ornic Ccrponrlir:n.

Th's creoti'/e rvork is priviieged cont]denliol. ofid exertf-rl frr-)rlr <li;clo:ure uncler
cpp,icoble low. ihe g59 6i ihele rrroleri<rls is re:;lricled.

Ihese nrciericls cre :nfenciecJ {or tne use ryithin this :pecific projer:l 'yty during lhe
corr.se of ce./eiopment ono mcy ncl oe used for ony otner reosoa wi:holJt the
exor'esseo'{riiieo outhcrizolion of AT Deslgn Ccnsulling, lnc.

AT Desiqn Ccrsuitinq, inc. is responsible for oestnell.j r:hoiccs. All co;ors or,d
.rr,:leriols lis'leal cre 'or color purposes only. Monufoctu'cr for oll producrs rvill ce
desig.oled o.d copcinled by Ciierrl.

All unouthorized ,rse. clissenrirrolion, clist:ibLrtioa. or reprodLrclio'r ol lhese
,noteriols is rtricily pron.oited. Any unoulhorized use. ciissenrinolior,. dislribution cr
rep'oduciiorrs will ile prosecu:ed lo the full exteni oi ihe ovr.

C A- :,'"1i0. CoilJltinE lcc

CREEKSTONE
Exterior Color/Moteriol DesignFOtSOM, CAIt{

a Ccpy.ghl At )eS:J. Cc-sj.:inq iri *9.-{.cld45ic..aoe;i_rin?Colr

Page 690

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonningsubmilol -Ol.lO.20 | 4TABLE of CONTENTS

nEusroNs

MISCETIANEOUS IIEMS TON PAINIING

E)OERIOR COI.OR + MATERIAT SPECIFICATIONS
' Elevollon A. Sponish Colonlol

Scheme I

Scheme 2

Scheme 3
Scheme 4

Elevotlon B, Weslem tormhouse
Scheme 5

Scheme 5

Scheme 7

Scheme 8

ElGvollon C, llolion Vlllo
Scheme 9
Scheme l0
Scheme ll
Scheme l2

5

6

7

7

7

8

9

l0

il
lt
t2
l3
14

t5
l5
l6
l7
l8

CREEKSTONE
Exterior Color/Moieriol DesignFOLSOM, CAIRI

q aaa)y! lhi - A' latlr.,:..)_.,r1,iQ l.i v,_,vr ordf:,g.rjo.J!'rlJ acni

Page 691

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



REVISIONS
Plonningsubmitol-01.10.20 I 5

CREEKSTONE
Exterior Color/Moteriol Design {\;FOTSOM, CAIRI

. :r.:\'aili, ,:'lli'rilnC-.tiituiiii\l,;i !r.\',., /ce:i:.-ciliL,i!: V:j.|

Page 692

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonningsubmilol -O].10.20 | 6MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS for PAINTING

'AilT 
MAilUFACIURER

PAIl{T A?PIICAIIO}I

l{ON.DECORATIVE lTEi'tS

noonoP itErArs

All pqinl to be Sherwin Willioms, unless otherwise stoied ditferently,

Typicol,

Foscio boords, overhongs, eoves, heoden, etc. should be pointed thek specificolly designoied colors with ihe
color being opplied on oll sldes ot eoch item, lncluding the undersides.

All non-decorotive llems such os meter doors, non-decorotive venls, eic, to be polnled lhe some color os the
odlocent fleld color.

All rooftop metols to be pointed to motch the dorkesl color from the roof lile blend from the Color Scheme
specified for thol porticulor lol,

Exterior Color/Moteriol Design {vCREEKSTONE
iotsc)M, cATITI al t:i,i:r,

': at.:r'\,'' f, j,'i),': ., -ir'Jr'_ .r 1..iiji'.:1'{", j!r' 1..:)"

Page 693

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EXTERIOR COLORiMAIERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEITAE l: Elevotion A, Sponish Coloniol

Pldnning Submitol - Ot.lO.ZO | 7

t6oln Body (Stucco) Sherwin Willioms 7551, Greek Villo

Tdm (Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, Corbels, Window Trim,
Gorog€ Mon-Door, elc.) Sherwin Willioms 7054, Suitoble Brown

Gorcge Dool Shenvin Willioms 7054, Suitoble Brown

fronl Doo. Shen,vin Willioms 7061, Nighi Owl

Sherwin Willioms 7054, Suitoble BrownShullen

Foux Cloy Oullooker Sherwin Willioms 6061, Tonbork

Gulte't & Downrpoulr Sherwin Willioms Point to motch odjocent surfoce

WhileWindowr

Concrele Rool llle ("S"-Tile) Eogle Roofing Copislrono - 3645, Sunrise Blend

TRI Exterior Color/Moteriol Design

Page 694

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonning Submitol-01.10.20 | 8EXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME 2: Elevolion A, Sponish Coloniol

Sherwin Willioms 7569, Sluccolltqln Body (Stucco)

Tdm (Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, Corbels, Window Trim,
Goroge Mon-Door, etc.)

Shen,vin Willioms 7047, Porpoise

Shen,tdn Willioms 7047, PorpoiseGorogc Dool

fronl DooI Sherwin Willioms 6061, Tonbqrk

Sherwin Willioms 7047, PorpoiseShulteR

Foux Cloy Oullookcn Sherurln Willioms 6061, Tonbork

Gultcrr & Downrpoub Sherwin Willioms Poinl io motch odjocent surfoce

WhiteWlndowr

Eogle Rooffng Copislrono - 3536, Piedmont BlendConcrcls Rool llle ("S"-lilel

Color # & Nomellem Monutocluret

'N
Ai D€SIGN

Page 695

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME 3: Elevotion A, Sponish Coloniol

Plonningsubmilot-Ol.lO.ZO | 9

llloln Body {Slucco) Sherwin Willioms 6133, Muslin

Tdm (Wood Trim, Foscio Boords. Corbels, Window Trim,
Goroge Mon-Door, elc.l Sherwin Willioms 7034, Slolus Bronze

Gologe Doot Sherwin Willioms 7034, Slotus Bronze

tronl Door Sherwin Willioms 281 l, Rookwood Blue Green

thutlen Sherwin Willioms 7034, Slotus Bronze

Foux Clqy Oullookelt Sherwin Willioms 6061, Tonbork

Gullcn & Downlpouh Sherwin Willioms Point to motch odjocent surfoce

Wlndows White

Concr.te Roof llle ("S"-Tilel Eogle Roofing Copislrono - SCC8806, Tucson Blend

Page 696

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plqnning Submitol - Ol.lO.20 | lOEXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME 4: Elevotion A. Sponish Coloniol

lioln Eody (Stuccol Sherwin Willioms 7527, Noniuckel Dune

Tdm {Wood Trim, Foscio Boqrds, Corbels, Window Trim,
Goroge Mon-Door, etc.)

Sherwin Willioms 7060, Aitilude Groy

Sheruin Wllliqms 7060, Attilude GroyGorogc Door

Fronl Door Sherwin Willisms 7048, Urbone Bronze

Shullca Sherwin Willioms 7060, Attitude Groy

Foux Cloy Oullookcr Sherwin Willioms 6061. Tonbo*

Sherwin Willioms Point to molch odjocent surfoceGullcn I Downrpoulr

Wlndowr Whlle

Eogle Roofing Cop'strono - 3646, Sunset BlendConcrele Roolnle ("S"-Tilel

CREEKSTONE
Exterior Color/Moteriol DesignfortoM, c^TRI

ia:t' ir,- ..ij,J --- r.i",ir{j. t.i..J, :,:

Page 697

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plqnning Submilol - Ol.l0.2o I llEXIERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME 5: Elevotion B, Western Formhouse

Sherwin willioms TOl l. Nolurol ChoiceMoln Sody {Stucco)

Sherwin Willioms 7061, Night OwlSoord e Bofien

Trlm {Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, Window Trim,
coroge Mon-Door. elc,)

Sheruin Willioms 701 l, Nolurol Choice

Sherwin Willioms 701 l, Nolurol ChoiceGorog€ Door

Sherwin Willioms 2814, Rookwood Antique GoldFronl Doot

Shuller! Sherwin Willioms 7061, Nighl Owl

Gullcr & Downspouts Shenarin Willioms Point to motch odiocent surfoce

WhiteWindowc

Eogle Roofing Ponderoso - 5590, Pewler Bronze BlendConcrele Rool Tlle (Shoke)

Borol Brick, lnsignio Series Slogs Creek Crest, QueenErick

ORCO Blended Products {OBP) Sofl WhileBrick Morlot

Bondlng Sudoce: All surfoces musl be cleon, free of ony dirt ond loose debds 10 creote
on even ond flol surfoce for b,ick instollotion-

Bdck toy-Up: Brick to be loid in running bond. Unless olherwise direcled difterenlly on
orchileciurol drowings.

Brlck JolnF: Brick ioints should be I /2". Mortor should be flush wilh foce of brick with
minor obscuring of bricki edge detoil. Joinls should be brushed ond sponged lo bdng out
the sond in lhe morlor.

Brlck FocG: DO NOT cover brick ioce with mortor. continuolly use cleon woter to brush or
sponge ihs mortor. Brick foce should remoin cleon, nol morlor woshed or sponged.

See somple imoge lo left.

4z
oq
{

...,t*;{ffiJ.f .*

ldck
lcy-Up

tnt Exterior Color/Moteriol Desig n @

Page 698

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonning Submilol - Ol.l0.2O I 12
EXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME 6: Elevotion B, Western Formhouse

Mqin lody (Stucco) Sherwin Willioms 7541, Grecion lvory

Sherwin Willioms 2843, Roycroft BrossSoord & Botlen

Sherwin Willioms 7551, Greek VilloTrim (Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, Window Trim,
Goroge Mon-Door, etc.l

Sherwin Willioms 2843. Roycroft BrossGoroge Dool

Fronl Door Sherwin Willioms 7710, Brondywine

Sherwin Williqms 2843, Roycrofi BrossShullers

Point to motch odjocent surfoceGullcr & Downrpoulr Sherwin Willioms

WhiteWindowt

Eogle Roofing Ponderoso - 5502, Arcodio Conyon BrownConcrelc Rool Tlle (Shoke)

Tundro Brick - LoligoBdck Eldorodo Slone

ORCO Blended Producis (OBP) Soft WhiteBdck ftlodor

londlng Sudoce: All surfoces must be cleon, free oi ony dirt ond loose debni 1o creote
on even ond flol5urfoce for brlck inslqllotion.

lrlck Loy-Up: Brick to be loid in running bond. Unless olherwise dhected differenlly on
orchilecturol drowings,

Brkk Jolnlr: Brick joints should be l/2". Mortor should be nush with foce of brick wilh
minor obscuring of brictc edge detoil. Joinls should be brushed ond sponged 1o bring out
the sond in lhe mortor.

Brlck toce: DO NOT cover brick foce wilh mortor. Conlinuolly use cleon woter to brush or
sponge lhe morfor. Brick fqce should remoin cleon, not mortor woshed or sponged.

See somple imoge lo left.

E-o
-

' 1-:r--k.:'"ii

Irlck
!oy-Up

,.. t- ..,.,Siffiif,.0:.-..

L--

I

Exterior Color/Moteriol Design AT
A! 9:3iGnIttT

Page 699

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonning Submilol - 01.10.20 | 13EXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME 7: Elevotion B, Weslern Formhouse

iltoln Body (Stucco) Sherwin Willioms 2542, Nolurel

Bootd e Botlcn Sherwin Willioms 2053, Adoptive Shode

6385, Dover WhiieTdm fwood Trim, Foscio Boords, Window Trim,
Goroge Mon-Door, etc.)

Sherwin Wlllloms

Gorqge Door Sherwin Willioms 7053, Adoplive Shode

Sheruin Willioms 7055, Enduring BronzeFronl Door

Shuller Sherwin Willioms 7055, Enduring Bronze

Sherwin Willioms Poinl io moich odiocent surtoceGutlen I Downlpoult

WhiteWlndows

Concrele Rool llle (shoke) Eogle Roofing Ponderoso - 5582, Fown Groy Floshed

Eldorodo Stone Tundro Brick - Cholk DustEdck

ORCO Blended Products (OBP) Soft WhileBdck Modor

Bondlng Surloce: All surfoces musi be cleon, free of ony dirt ond loose debris io creole
on even ond fot surfoce for brick instollolion.

Bftk loy-Up: Brick to be loid in running bond. Unless olherwise direcied differenlly on
orchilecturol drowings,

BrlckJolnbl BrickjointsshouldbeI/2". Mortorshouldbef,ushwithfoceof brickwith
minor obscuring of bdcks edge detoil. Joinls should be brushed ond sponged lo bring out
lhe sond in lhe morlor.

Bdck foce: DO NOT cover brick foce with morfor. Conlinuolly use cleon woter lo brush or
sponge the morlor, Brick foce should remoin cleon, not mortor woshed or sponged.

See somple imoge lo lefl.

e2o

€

1--"
lSrlck

[oy-Up

I. ..t

Color t E NomeMonulocturerItem

.IRI Exterior Color/Moteriol Design @

Page 700

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EXTERIOR CO LOR/MATERIAL SPEC IFICATIONS

SCHEME 8: Elevotion B, Western Formhouse

Ptcnning submilot - ot.to.zo I t4

Sherwin WilliomsMoin lody (Stucco) 9170, Acier

Boord & Bollen Sherwin Willioms 6070, Heron Plume

Irlm (Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, Window Trim,
Goroge Mon-Door, elc.) Sherwin Willioms 6070, Heron Plume

Sherwin Willioms 6070, Heron PlumeGoroge Door

tronl Door Sherwin Willioms 0006, Toile Red

Shullers Sherwin Willioms 7069,lron Ore

Gullarr I Downrpouls Sherwin Willioms Point to motch odjocenl surfoce

WhiteWlndows

Concrele noolnle (Shoke) Eogle Rooling Ponderoso - 5679, Lighl Groy Ronge

Eldorodo Sione Tundro Brick - AshlondBrick

Srlck Modol ORCO Blended Products (OBPI Chloe

ez
o

T ldck
loy-Up

Sondlng Surlqce: Allsurfoces must be cleon, lree ol ony dirt qnd loose debris io creole
on even ond flqt surfoce for brick instollotion.

Brlck loy-Up: grick to be loid in running bond. Unless olhe{wise direcled differently on
orchileciurol drowings.

ldckJolnF: Brickiointsshouldbe l/2". Mortqrshouldbeflushwithfoceof brickwith
minor obscuring ot bricks edge defoil. Joinls should be brushed ond Jponged to bdng oui
the sond in lhe morlor.

Brlck toce: DO NOT cover bdck foce with morlor. Continuolly use cleon woler 10 brush or
sponge the mortor. Brick foce should remoin cleon, not mortor woshed or sponged.

see somple imoge lo lefl.

Color * t Nomollem i onulocluter

Exterior Color/Moteriol Design
-{\t

TRI .l o_5,c.(

Page 701

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EXTERIOR COLOR/MATER IAL SPECI FICATIONS

SCHEME 9: Elevotion C, ltolion Villo

Plonning Submitol - 0l .l 0.20 | 15

Sherwin Willioms /516, Keslrel White,tltoln lody (Slucco)

Trim (Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, e1c.) Shen,.rin Willioms 6080, Utterly Beige

Gqroge Doot Sheruin Willioms 7019, Gountlel Groy

Sherwin Willioms 7020, Block FoxFront Door

Sherwin Willioms 6061, TonborkFcux Cloy Oullooken

Sherwin willioms Point to moich odjocent surfoceGuller & Downrpouls

WhlieWlndows

concrelo noot Tile {"S"-Tile} Eogle Roofing Copislrono - 3605, Son Benilo Blend

Cosl-Fit - French GroySlone Borol Stone (Cullured Slone)

ORCO Blended Producis (OBP) SmokeSlone l/lofot

t2
o

=
Slone
Loy-Up I

Eondlng Surloce: Allsurfoces must be cleon, free of ony dirl ond loose debris lo creole
dn even ond not surfoce for stone inslollolion.

Slone Loy-Up: Stones should be loid in o horizontol or'tenlolion. Sione offsel should be
5M..

Slone Jolnls: Sione joinls should be l/4".

Slone Foce: Slone foce must remoin cleon, nol mortor woshed or sponged. Use only
cleon woter io sponge off lhe morior from foce of sione. DO NOT cover slone foce ond
edge wilh mortor.

See somple Loy-Up imoge to left.

TRI Exterior Color/Moteriol Design

Page 702

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonning Submitol -0r.r0.20 I 16EXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME l0: Elevotion C, ltolion Villo

Moln Eody {Slucco} Sherwin Willioms 6]57, Fovorile Ton

Sherwin Willioms 7013, lvory Locelrim {Wood Trim, Foscio Boords. elc.}

Goroge Door Sherwin Willioms 7013, lvory Loce

Fronl Doot Sherwin Willioms 5201, Thunderous

Sherwin Willioms 6061, TonborkFoux Cloy Oullookers

Guller & Downrpoub Sheruin Willioms Point to motch odjocenl surfoce

Whitel{lndowr

Copishono - 3645, Sunrise BlendConcrele Rool file ("S"-Tile) Eogle Roofing

Slone Eldorodo Stone Longilude24 - Snowdrifl

ORCO Blended Products {oBP) Sofl WhiieSlone Morlor

42o

I Slone
tcy-Up

Bondlng turfoce: All surfoces musl be cleon, free of ony dirl ond loose dobris to creole
on even ond flol surfoce for slone insiollotion.

Slone [oy-Up: Stones should be loid in o horhontolorieniolion. Stone otfset should be
fi%.

Slone Jolnk: Sione joinis should be I/4".

Stone fqcci Stone foce must remoin cleon, noi mortqr woshed or sponged. Uss only
cleon woter to sponge off lhe mortor from toce of slone. Do NoT cover slone foce ond
edge wilh morlor,

See somple Loy-Up imoge to lefl.

Cob'r * t ilomellem Monufoclurer

lRt Exterior ColorlMoteriol Design

Page 703

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Plonning Submitol - 01.10.20 | 17
EXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME ll: Elevotion C, ltolion Villo

Mqln Body lStucco] Shemin Willioms 6101 , Sonds of Time

Sherwin Willioms 7516, Keskel WhiteTdm {Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, elc.}

Sherwin Willioms 7516, Kestrel WhiteGoroge Door

Sherwin Willioms 7041 , Von Dyke BrownFronl Dool

foux Cloy Oullookcr: Sherwin Willioms 6061, Tonbork

Sherwin Willioms Poinl lo motch odjocenl surfoceGullers t Downtpoult

WhileWindowr

Eogle Roofing Copislrono - 3646, Sunsel BlendGoncrcle Rool lile ("S"-Tile)

Borol Sione (Cultured Slone) Cosl-Fil - PorchmeniSlonc

SmokeSlone Moilor ORCO Elended Products {OBP)

londlng Sudocc: Allsurfoces must b6 cleon, free of ony dirl ond loose debris io creote
on even ond floi surfoce for slone inslollotion.

Slone [ay.Up: Slones should be loid in o horizoniol orienlolion. Stone offset should be
50%.

Slone Jolnlr: Stone joinls should be l/4".

Slone Foce: Slone loce musl remoin cleon, nol mortqrwoshed or sponged. use only
cleon woler to sponge off lhe mortor ftom foce of sione. DO NOT cover sione foce ond
edge wilh morlor.

See somple Loy-Up imoge lo left.

Ez
o

=

i

Slone
Loy-Up

Tru Exterior Color/Moteriol Design @

Page 704

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Submilol - Ol.l0.2O | 18
EXTERIOR COLOR/MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

SCHEME l2: Elevotion C, llolion Villo

7539, Cork WedgeSheMin WilliomsMoln lody (Stucco)

7010, White DuckSherwin WilliomsTrim (Wood Trim, Foscio Boords, etc')

7053. Adoptive ShodeSheMin WilliqmsGoroge Door

91 00, Umber RustSherwin WilliomsFronl Door

6061, TonborkSherwin WilliomsFoux Cloy Oullookan

Point to motch odjoceni surfoceSherwin WilliomsGutleF & Downrpouls

WhiteWlndowr

Copislrono - SCC8805, Tucson BlendEogle RoofingConcrele Roof llle ("S"-Tile)

Longiiude24 - SnowdriflEldorodo SloneSlone

Soft WhiteORCO Blended Producls (OBP)tlone Morlor

Bgndlng Sutlocc: All surfoces must be cleon, free of ony dirl ond loose debris lo creole
on even ond flot surfoce tor sione instollotion.

llonc toy-Up: Siones should be loid in o horkonlol orientolion. Stone offset should be
50%.

Slonc Jolnb: Sione joints should be I/4".

Slone toce: Slone foce musl remoin cleon, nol mortor woshed or sponged. Use only

cleon woter to sponge off the mortor from foce of stone. Do NoT cover slone foce ond
edge with morlor.

See sonrple Loy UP imoge to lefl

Slone
Lay-Up

Izo

=

'ftil Exterior Color/Moteriol Design @

Page 705

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 9

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis

Page 706

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Cnv or Forsovr

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis
for Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangrni Ranch Phase l Lot 10)

L. ApplicationNo: PN 16{26

2. Project Title Creekstone Ph+e 1 (Mangtni Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)

3. Lead Agency Name and Address:
City of Folsom

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA95630

4. ContactPersonandPhoneNumber:
Scott lohnson" AICP, Planning Manager
Community Development DePartment
(916)3s5-7222

Steven Banks, Principal Planner
(916) 35s-7385

5. Project Location:
9.88 acres located south of Mangini Parkway and east of East Bidwell Street

APN:072€370413 (9.88 acres, Mangini Improvement Company, Inc.)

6. Profect Applicant's/Sponsor's Name and Address:

Mangini Improvement Companp tnc.

c/o Bill Bunce, Managing Member
4370 Town Center Boulevard Suite 100

El Dorado Hills, CA 95752

7. GeneralPlanDesignation:![@

8. Zoning:SP-MLD

9. Other public agencies whose approval may be required or agencies that may rely on this document for
implementingproject:

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (for Section 1602 agreement)

Capital Southeast Connector |oint Powers Authority
Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

Folsom{ordova Unified School District
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District

Page 707

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



I. INTRODUCTION .3

A.
B.

c.
D.
E,

n.

PROIECT LOCATTON 4

PROIECT CHARACTERTSTTCS......

1. Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map............

3. Water, Sewer, and Storm Drainage Infrastructure
EXEMPTION AND STREAMLINING ANALY$S.

Folsom Plan Area Specific PIan.............

Documenb Incorporated by Reference.................

Introduction to CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Provisions ..,..........

1. Exemption provided by Government Code, S 65457, and CEQA Guidelines, S 15182

2. Streamlining provided by Public Resources Code, S 21083.3 and CEQA Guidelines, S 15183..10

Environmental Checklist Review........,... ...,.... 10

Where Impact Was Analyzed.... ...................... 11

Do Proposed Changes Involve New orMore Severe Impacts? ,........,..11

Any New Circumstances Involving New or More Severe Impacts? 12

Any New Information of Substantial Importance Requiring New Analysis or Verification? ...12

Are There Effects That Are Peculiar To The Project Or The Parcel On Which The Project

Would Be Located ThatHave NotBeenDisclosed In A Prior EIROnThe ZoningAction, General

Plan, Or Community Plan With Which the Proiect is Consistent? ....,...,...... 13

6. Are There Effects Peculiar To The Project That Will Not Be Substantially Mitigated By
Application Of Uniformly Applied Development Policies Or Standards That Have Been Previously

7. Are There Effects That Were Not Analyzed As Significant Effects In A Prior EIR On The

Zoning Action, General Plan Or Community Plan With Which The Project Is Consistent? .............. 15

8. Are There Potentially Significant Off-Site Impacts And Cumulative Impacts That Were Not
Discussed In The Prior EIR Prepared For The C:eneral Plan, Community Plan, Or Zoning Action?15

9. Are There Previously tdentified Significant Effects That, As A Result Of Substantial New
hrformation Not Known At The Time The EIR Was Certifie4 Ate Now Determined To Have A
More Severe Adverse Impact? t6
10. Mitigation Measures Addressing Impacts....... ................16

E. Checklist and Discussion.....,........ ....................... 18

2. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES............. ...... 20

4

5

5

6

6

6

7

9

9

A.
B.

C.

D.
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phaee 1 Lot 10)
CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis

-1-
December20L9

Page 708

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



4. BIOLOGTCAL RESOURCES................... ...........26

5. CULTIIRALRESOTIRCES

6. GEOLOGY AND SOrLS .............. 33

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMSSIONS
Discusgion:

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
Discuseion:

9. HYDROLCGY AND WATER QUALrrY,.

10. LAND USE AND PLANNING

11, MINERAL RESOURCES

Discussion:
12. NOISE

31

35

37

38

39

43

45

49

50

52

53

54

55
58

6A

6'.1

62

&
65

66

67

78

80

80

81,

82

..7't

,,73

..76

13. POPLILATION AND HOUSING

14. PUBLIC SERVICES..

15. RECREATION

16. TRANSPORTATIONi TRAFFIC..

17. UTruTIES.

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The City finds that:

Creekrtone Phase 1 (Mantini Ranch Phaee 1 Lot t0)
CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis

-2-

December2019

Page 709

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



I. INTRODUCTION

The Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot L0) development ptoposal is located in the

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP). As discussed later in this document, the project is consistent

with the FPASP.

As a project that is consistent with an existing Specific Plan, the Creekstone Phase 1 development is

eligible for the exemption from review under the California Environmental Quality 6s1t 1"QEQA")
provided in Government Code section 65457 and CEQA Guidelines2 section t5182, subdivision (c), as

well as the streamlining provisions in Public Resources Code section 21083.3 and CEQA Guidelines
section 15183.

Because the Project is exempt from CEQA, the City is not required to provide the following CEQA

analysis. Nonetheless, the City provides the following checklist exploring considerations raised by
sections 15182 and 15183 to disclose the City's evidence and reasoning for determining the project's

consistency with the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan ("FPASP") arrd eligibility for the claimed CEQA
exemption.

Ir. PROIECT DESCRTPTTON

A. PROTECTOVERVIEW

The Creekstone Phase 1 project proposes the development of 71 single-family residential lots on 7.25

acres of the 9.88-acre project area.

The requested land use entitlements for the Creekstone Phase 1 project are:

(1) a Vesting Tentative Small Lot Subdivision Map;

(2) a Minor Administrative Amendment - Transfer of Development Rights to designate a new
location in the Specific Plan at which these units will be buil$ and

(3) a Planned Development Permit Residential Architecture and Development Standards.

The holding capacity under existing plans and zoning for this parcel is 86 dwelling units. The 15

residential units not proposed to be built at this site (86 -71:75, are the subject of the proposed Minor
Administrative Amendment - Transfer of Development Rights. No change to the overall FPASP unit
allocatiory toAl population, will occur. The proposed proiect does not affect the overall amount of
non-residential development in the FPASP.

The Project will connect to the City's infrastructure.
Creekstone Phase I (Mangini Ranch Phaee I Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis
-3-

December2019

Page 710

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



The Creekstone Phase 1 project is located within the Folsom Ranch Central District and is designed to
comply with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines (approved 2011 amended 2018).

t California Environmental Quality Act, Pub. Resources Code S 21000 et seq. (hereafter "CEQA").
2 The Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Cal. Code Regs.,

trt.14, S 15000 et seq. (hereafter "CEQA Guidelines" or "Guidelines").

B. PROIECT LOCATION

The Project site consists of a 9.88-acre parcel in the FPASP plan area that is within the Westland Eagle

Specific Plan Amendment Are4 south of U.S. Highway 50 and west of Placerville Road. The project site

has been known as Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10.

The FPASP is a 3,513.4-acre comprehensively planned community that creates new development
pattems based on the principles of smart growth and transit-oriented developrnent

See the Creekstone Phase 1 Proiect Narrative for the regional location of the project site. The narrative
includes maps depicting the project location and surrounding land uses.

C. EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

Currently, the 9.88 acres of the Project site is undeveloped, but was pad-graded as part of the Mangini
Ranch Phase 1 Grading Plan.

The Specific Plan zoning for the Project site is Multi-Family Low Density (SP-MLD).

D, CONSISTENCY WITH THE FPASP

The Proiect is consistent with and aims to fulfill the specific policies and objectives in the Folsom Plan

Area Specific Plan. An analysis of the proposed project's consistency with the FPASP is provided in
Exhibit 3, the Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis.

1. Land Use Designation and Unit Types

The proposed small lot vesting tentative subdivision map would subdivide 7.25 acres of the parcel into
71 residential lots suited for single-family dwellings. The residential density achieved is 9.84 du/acrg
which is within the range allowed for the MLD zone (range of 7-12 du/acre). The site plan indudes 0.81

acres of Backbone Landscape Corridor on Lots A, B, & C along East Bidwell Street and Mangini
Creeketone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)
CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis December2O19

4-

Page 711

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Parkway. The site plan also includes 1,82 acres of Backbone Right-of-Way.

The vesting small lot tentative subdivision map proposes to create" 71 residential lots on the parcel. The

Creekstone Phase 1 project site is designated for Multi-family Low Density (SP-MLD) land uses by the

FPASP.

Creekstone Phase 1 proposes to create 71 residential lots for detached single-family dwellings.) The

FPASP defines the MLD residential designation to include "single family dwellings (small lot
detached, zero-lot-line and patio homes), two-family dwellings and multi-family dwellings." (FPASR

p. 4-'1..4, emphasis added.) Therefore, land which is designated SP-MLD can be subdivided into
residential lots suited for single-family dwellings in conformance with the FPASP.

The single-family homes proposed by the Creekstone Phase 1 Project are permitted uses as shown on

Table 4.3 of the FPASP. (See also FPASP DEI& Table 3,4..104.)

In summary, the proposed land uses and the density of residential uses in the small lot vesting

tentative map are consistent with the FPASP and the Westland Eagle FPASP Plan Amendment.

2. Circulation

Creekstone Phase f. includes a street pattern, which indudes a primary connection ("A" Drive)

between East Bidwell Street at the south-west comer of the parcel and Mangini Parkway at the north-

east corner of the parcel. A second street ("8" Drive) creates an interior loop by connecting to "A" Dtive
in two places, as depicted on dre site plan. Two entries are provided: (a) a north-westem entry located

off Mangini Parkway, and O) a south-eastem entry located at East Bidwell Street.

The street sections used in the Plan include the same pavement widths as specified in the FPASP and

the Folsom Municipal Code. As depicted in the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, most of the

sidewalks on one side of the strcet frontages on " A" Drive and "8" Drive have been removed due to

site grading constraints (large slope bank resulting from the development of approved subdivision to

the east). Lots A, B, and C provide Backbone Landscape Carridors along East Bidwell Street and

Mangini Parkway.

Traffic signals are planned at the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway.

Creekstone Phase 1 is located on a planned Transit Corridor, as identified in the FPASP. The Project is

located south and east of the Transit Corridor. This design complements the downtown core of the

FPASP land use plan and provides a compact development pattern near transit opportunities.

Every single-family dwelling will have a standard two-car garage and a typical fuIl-length driveway,

accommodating two off-street parking spaces per unit. On-street parking is provided on both sides

of the intemal streets.

Creekstone Phaee 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis December 2019

-5-

Page 712

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



The proposed project it consistent with roadway and transit master plans for the FPASP"

3. Water, Sewer, and Storm Drainage Infrastmcture

Water infrastructure

Creekstone Phase 1 is being served by Tnne 3 water from the north via Mangrni Parkway and from
the west via East Bidwell Street. The project is located within the Zone 3 pressure zone. Water mains

are provided within the perimeter streets, including Mangini Parkway and East Bidwell Street, along
project frontage in order to serve the site.

Sann infrastructure

Creekstone Phase 1 will be served by the sewer infrastructure within Mangini Parkway and East

Bidwell Street.

S tor m dr ainage infr astruc tur e

Creekstone Phase 1 will connect to the existing storm drain infrastructure within Mangini Parkrray
and East Bidwell Street.

The proposed project is consistent with planned infrastructure for the FPASP

III. EXEMPTION AND STREAMTINTNG ANALYSIS

A. Folsom Plan drea SpecificPlan

The City adopted the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan on June 2& 201L (Resolution No. 8863).

The City of Folsom and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers prepared a joint environmental impact
report/environmental impact statement ('E[FVEIS' or "EIR") for the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50

Specific Plan Project ("FPASP"). (See FPASP EWEIT SCH #2008092051). The Draft EWEIS (DEIR)

was released on June 28,2010. The City certified the Final EIF/EIS (FEIR) on fune 14,2011(Resolution

No. 8860). For each impact category requiring environmental analysis, the EIR provided tr,vo separate

analyses: one for the "Land" component of the FPASP proiect, and a second for the "Wate{'
component. (FPASP DEm, p. 1-1 to 1-2.) The analysis in this document is largely foctrsed on and cites

to the "Land" sections of the FPASP EIR.

On December7,2012, the City certified an Addendum to the EIR for the FPASP for purposes of
analyzing an altemative water supply for the project. The revisions to the "Water" component of the

FPASP project included; (1) Leak Fixes, (2) Implementation of Metered Rates, (3) Exchange of Water
Creekstone Phaee 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis December2O19

-5-

Page 713

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Supplies, (4) New Water Conveyance Facilities. (Water Addendum, pp. $1 to 3-4.) The City concluded
that, with implementation of certain mitigation measures from the FPASP EIR's "Water" sections, the

water supply and infrastructure changes would not result in a.y new significant impacts, substantially
increase the severity of previously disclosed impacts or involve any of the other conditions related to
changed circumstances or new information that can require a subsequent or supplemental EIR. (See

Pub. Resources Code, 5211,66; Guidelines, S 15162.) The analysis in portions of the FPASP EIR's

"Wale{' sections that have not been superseded by the Water Addendum are still applicable.

The FPASP includes the Westland Eagle development, which is located in the central portion of the

FPASP flanking Scott Road and Easton Valley Parkway. Since approval of the FPASP, the Westland

Eagle development was transferred to new owners: Westland Capital Partners, Eagle Commercial

Parbrers (applicant), and Eagle Office Properties. The new owners subsequently evaluated the

approved land use plan and determined that many of the assumptions underlying the typ" *d
distribution of retail commercial and residential land uses in this area needed to be reevaluated to
respond to current and future market conditions for retail commercial and residential development.

Accordingly, the applicants proposed an amendment to the FPASP that would significantly reduce the

area of commercial retail land use in the Westland Eagle plan area and increase the number of allowed
residential dwellingunits. The City adopted an amendment to the FPASP for the Westland Eagle

Properties in |une 2015 (WestlandlEagle SPA) that reduced the amount of commerciaf industrial/office
park and mixed-use acreage from 451.8 acres to 302.3 acres and the potential building area from
approximately 4.5 million square feet to approximately 3.4 million square feet. The WestlandlEagle

SPA also increased the number of proposed residential dwelling units from 9,895 to1A,817.

B. Documents Incor?orated by Reference

The analysis in this document incorporates by reference the following environmental documents that
have been certified by the Folsom City Council:

i. Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project EIR/EIS and Findings of Fact and
Statement of Overriding Considerations, certified by the Folsom City Council on June 1{,
2A11, a copy of which is available for viewing at the City of Folsom Planning Public Counter
located on the 2nd floor of the City Hall Building at 50 Natoma Street in Folsom, CA (from

8:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. Monday through Friday).

ii. CEQA Addendum for the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project- Revised Proposed

Off-site Water Facility Alternative prepared November, 2012, ('rdater Addendum"),
certified by the Folsom City Council on December 11., 2012, a copy of which is available for
viewing at the City of Folsom Planning Public Counter located on the 2nd floor of the City
Hall Building at 50 Natoma Street in Folsom, CA (from 8;00 a.m. to l:ffi p.m. Monday
through Friday);

iii. South of Highway 50 Backbone Infraskucture Project Initial Studyffitigated Negative

Creekstone Phaee 1 (Mangini Ranch Phaee 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis December2O19

-7-

Page 714

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Declaration (Backbone InIrastructure MND), dated Decembet9,2014, adopted by the City
Council on February 24,20'J"5, a copy of which is available for viewing at the City of Folsorn

Planning Public Counter located on the 2nd floor of the City Hall Building at 50 Natoma
Street in Folsom, CA (from 8:00 a.m. to t:00 p.m. Monday through Friday).

lv CEQA Addendum and Environmental Checklist for the Westland Eagle Specific Plan

Amendment, dated June 2015, ("Westland Eagle Addendum") a copy of which is available
for viewing at the City of Folsom Planning Public Counter located on the 2nd floor of the

City Hdl Building at 50 Natoma Street in Folsom, CA (from 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. Monday
through Friday).

Each of the environmental documents listed above includes mitigation measures imposed on the
FPASP and activities authorized therein and in subsequent projects to mitigate plan-level
environmental impacts, which are, therefore, applicable to the proposed project. The mitigation
measures are referenced specifically throughout this document and are incorporated by reference in the

environmental analysis. The Applicant will be required to agree, as part of the conditions of approval
for the proposed project, to comply with each of those mitigation measures.

Pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21083.3, subdivision (c), the City $rill make a finding at a

public hearing thatthe feasible mitigation measures specified in the FPASP EIR will be undertaken.

Moreover, for those mitigation measures with a financial component that apply plan-wide, the
approved Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amended and Restated Development Agreement bind
the Applicant to a fair share contribution for funding those mitigation measures.

The May 22,201.4 Record of Decision (ROD) for the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan

Project-City of Folsom Backbone Infrastructure (Exhibit 2) by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers is

also incorporated by reference.

All impacts from both on-site and off-site features of the Creekstone Phase 1 project have been analyzed

and addressed in the CEQA analysis and other regulatory permits required for the Creekstone Phase 1

project and/or the Backbone Infrastructure project.

C. Introduction to CEOA Exemption and Sbeamlining Provisions

The City finds that the Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot L0) development proposal is
consistent with the FPASP and therefore exempt from CEQA under Government Code section 65457

and CEQA Guidelines section \51,82, subdivision (c), as a residential project undertaken pursuant to
and inconformity with a specific plan.

The City also finds that the Creekstone Phase 1 project is eligible for streamlined CEQA review
provided in Public Resources Code section 27083.3, and CEQA Guidelines section 15183 for projects

Creeketone Phaee I (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemptionand StreamliningAnalysis December2O19

-8-

Page 715

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



consistent with a community plan, general plan, or zoning. Because the Project is exempt from CEQA,

the City is not required to provide the following streamlined CEQA analysis. Nonetheless, the City
provides the following checklist exploring considerations raised by sections 15182 and 15183 because

the checklist provides a convenient vehicle for disclosing the Cit5/s substantial evidence and reasoning

underlying its consistency determination.

As mentioned above, the City prepared an addendum to the FPASP EIR in December 2012for purposes

of analyzing an alternative water supply for the FPASP. Although this Water Addendum was prepared

and adopted by the City after the certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS, it would not change any of the

analysis under Public Resources Code section 21083.3 and CEQA Guidelines section 15183 because it
gave the Plan Area a more feasible and reliable water supply.

The City also prepared an addendum to the FPASP EIR in June 2015 for the purposes of analyzing the

effects of an increase in residentially-designated land and a substantial decrease in commercially-
designated land in the Westland Eagle development area. The Westland Eagle Addendum
supplemented and updated the analysis in the FPASP EIR that is relevant to the Creekstone Phase 1

Protect.

The City has prepared or will be completing site-specific studies pursuant to the requirements set forth
in the mitigation measures and conditions of approval adopted for the FPASP under the FPASP Etr{,

Water Addendum, and Westland Eagle Addendum for subsequent development projects. (See Exhibits

4 [Noise Assessmentl and 5 [Transportation/ Trip Generation Consistency Letter Memo].) These studies

support the conclusion that the Creekstone Phase 1 development proposal would not have any new

significant or substantially more severe impacts (CEQA Guidelines, S 151.62), nor would it result in aty
new significant impacts that are peculiar to the project or its site (CEQA Guidelines, S 15183).

1. Exemption provided by Government Code, S 6t457, and CEQA Guidelines, S

15782, subdivision (c)

Government Code section 65457 and CEQA Guidelines section 151A, subdivision (c) exempt
residential projects that are undertaken pursuant to a specific plan for which an EIR was previously
prepared if the projects are in conformity with that specific plan and the conditions described in CEQA

Guidelines section 15162 (relating to the preparation of a supplemental EIR) are not present. (Gov.

Code S 65457, subd. (a); CEQA Guidelines, SE 15182, subd. (c), 15162, subd. (a).)

The Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis attached as Exhibit 3 provides exhaustive analysis

that supports the deterrnination that the Projectis undertaken pursuant to and in conformity with the

FPASP.

2. Streamlining provided by Public Resources Code, S 21083.3 and CEQA
Guidelines, S 15183

Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phaee 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis
-9-

December2019

Page 716

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Public Resources Code section 21083,3 provides a streamlined CEQA process where a subdivision map
application is made for a parcel for which prior environmental review of a zoning or planning approval
was adopted. If the proposed development is consistent with that zoning or plan, any further
environmental review of the development shall be limited to effects upon the environment which are

peculiar to the parcel or to the project and which were not addressed as significant effects in the prior
EIR or which substantial new information shows will be more significant than described in the prior
EIR. Effects are not to be considered peculiar to the parcel or the project if uniformly applied
development policies or standards have been previously adopted by the city, which were found to
substantially mitigate that effect when applied to future projects.

CEQA Guidelines section 15183 provides further detail and guidance for the implementation of the

exemption set forth in Public Resources Code section 21083.3.

D. Environmental Checklist Review

The row titles of the checklist include the full range of environmental topics, as presented in Appendix
G of the CEQA Guidelines.

The column titles of the checklist have been modified from the Appendix G presentation to assess the
Project's qualifications for streamlining provided by Public Resources Code section 21083.3 and CEQA
Guidelines sections 15189 as well as to evaluate whether the conditions described in Guidelines section
15162 are present.

Pursuant to Guidelines section 15't"62, one of the purposes of this checklist is to evaluate the categories

in terms of any "changed condition" (i.e. changed circumstances, project changes, or new information
of substantial importance) that may result in a different environmental impact significance conclusion.
If the situations described in Guidelines section 75762 arc not present, then the exemption provided by
Govemment Code section 65457 and Guidelines section 15182 can be applied to the Project lherefore,
the checklist does the following: a) identifies the earlier analyses and states where they are available for
review; b) discusses whether proposed changes to the previously-analyzed program, including new site
specific operations, would involve new or substantially more severe significant impacts; c) discusses

whether new circumstances surrounding the previously-analyzed program would involve new or
substantially more severe significantimpacts; d) discusses any substantially importantnew information
requiring new analysis; and e) describes the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined
from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.
(Guidelines, I 15162, subd. (a).)

The checklist serves a second purpose. Public Resources Code section 21083.3 and its parallel
Guidelines provision, section 15183, provide for streamlined environmental review for projects
consistent with the development densities established by existing zoning general plan, or community
plan policies for which an EIR was certified. Such projects require no further environmental review
except as might be necessary to address effecb that (a) are peculiar to the project or the parcel on which
Creeketone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)
CEQA Exemptionand StreamliningAnalysis December20l9

-10-

Page 717

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



the project would be locate4 p) were not analyzed as significant effects in the prior EIId (c) are

potentially significant off-site impacts or cumulative impacts not discussed in the prior EIR, or (d) were
previously identified significant effectsbut are mor€ severe than previously assumed in light of
substantial new information not known when the prior EIR was certified. I{ an impact is not peculiar
to the parcel or to the project, has been addressed as a significant impact in the prior Etri or can be

substantially mitigated by the imposition of uniformly applied development policies or standards, then

an additional EIR need notbe prepared for the project solely on the basis of that impact.

A "no" answer does not necessarily mean that there are no potential impacts relative to the

environmental category, but that there is no change in the condition or status of the impact since it was

analyzed and addressed with mitigation measures in the prior environmental documents approved for
the zoning actiory general plan, or community plan. The environmental categories might be answered

with a "no" in the checklist since the Creekstone Phase 1 pr<{ect does nnt introduce changes that would
result in a modification to the conclusion of the FPASP EIR.

The purpose of each colurnn of the checklist is described below.

1. Where ImpactWasAnalyzed
This column provides a cross-reference to the pages of the environmental documents for the zoning
action, general plan, or community plan where information and analysis may be found relative to the

environmental issue listed under each topic.

2. Do Ptoposed Changes Involve New or More Severe Impacts?
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(1) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether the changes

represented by the proposed project will result in new significant impacts not disclosed in the prior EIR

or negative declaration or that the proposed projeet will result in substantial increases the severity of a

previously identified significant impact. A yes answer is only required if such new or worsened

significant impacts will require "major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration." If a
"yes" answer is given, additional mitigation measures or alternatives maybe needed.

3. Any New Circumstances Involving New or More Severe Impacts?
Pursuant to Section 151,fn@)Q) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether changed

circumstances affecting the proposed project will result in new significant impacts not disclosed in the

prior EIR or negative declaration or will result in substantial increases the severity of a previously
identified significant impact. A yes answer is only required if such new or worsened significant
impacts will require "major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration." It a"yes" answer is

given, additionai mitigation measures or alternatives may be needed.

4. Any New Information of Substantial Importance Requiring New Analysis or
Verification?

Pursuant to Section 15152(a)(3) of the CEQA Guidelineq this column indicates whether new

Creeketone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phaee 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis December 2019

-11-

Page 718

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



information "of substantial importance" is available requiring an update to the analysis of a previous
EIR to verify that the environmental conclusions and mitigations remain valid. Any such information
is only relevant if it "was not known and could not have been known with reasonable diligence at the

time of the previous EIR." To be relevant in this context, such new information must show one or more

of the following:

(A) The projectwill have one or more significanteffects not discussed in the previous EIR or
negative declaration;
(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the

previous EIR;

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be

feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the proiect, but the

project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or altemative; or
(D) Mitigation measures or altematives which are considerably different from those analyzed in
the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment,
but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation me:Niure or altemative.

This category of new information may apply to any new regulations, enacted after certification of the

prior EIR or adoption of the prior negative declaration, which might change the nature of analysis of
impacts or the specifications of a mitigation measure. If the new information shows the existence of
new significant effects or significant effects that are substantially more severe than were previously
disclose4 then new mitigation measures should be considered. If the new information shows that
previously rejected mitigation measures or alternatives are now feasiblg such measures or alternatives

should be considered anew. If the new information shows the existence of mitigation measures or
altematives that are (i) considerably different from those included in the prior EIR, (ii) able to
substantially reduce one or more significant effects, and (iii) unacceptable to the project proponents,

then such mitigation measures or alternatives should also be considered.

5. Are There Effects That Are Peculiar To The Proiect Or The Parcel On Which The
Project Would Be Located That Have Not Been Disclosed In A Prior EIR On The
Zoning Action, General Plan, Or Community Plan With Which the Project is

Consistent?
Pursuant to Section 15183, subdivision (bxl), of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether
there are project-specific significant effects that are peculiar to the project or its site. Although neither

section 21083.3 nor section 15183 defines the term "effects on the environment which are peculiar to the

parcel or to the ptoiect," a definition canbe gleaned from what is now the leading case interpreting
section 210ffi.e Wal-Mart Stores,lnc. a. City of Turlock (2006) 138 Cal.App.4th273 (Wal-Mart Stores). In
that case, t{re court upheld the respondent city's decision to adopt an otdinance banning discount

"superstores." The city appropriately found that the adoption of the ordinance was wholly exempt

from CEQA review under CEQA Guidelines section 15183 as a zoning action consistent with the

general plan, where there were no project-specific impacts - of any kind - associated with the

Creekstone Phaee 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)
CEQA Exemptionand StreamliningAnalysis December2O19

-12-

Page 719

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ordinance that were peculiar to the project. The court concluded that "a physical change in the
environment will be peculiar to [a project] if that physical change belongs exdusively and especially to
the [project] or it is characteristic of only the [project]." (ld, atp.29a.) As noted by the court, this
definition "illuotrate[s] how difficult it will be for a zoning amendment or other land use regulation
that does not have a physical component to have a sufficiently close connection to a physical change to
allow the physical change to be regarded as 'peculiar to' the zoning amendment or other land use

regulation." (lbid.)

A "yes" answer in the checklist indicates that the project has effects peculiar to the project relative to
the environmental category that were not discussed in the prior environmental documentation for the

zoning action, general plan or community plan. A "yes" answer will be followed by an indication of
whether the impact is "potentially significant", "less than significant with mitigation incorporated", or
"less than significant". An analysis of the determination will appear in the Discussion section
following the checklist.

6. Are There Effects Peculiar To The Project That Will Not Be Substantially
Mitigated By Application Of Uniformly Applied Development Policies Or
Standards That Have Been Previously Adopted?

Sections 21083.3 and 15183 include a separate, though complementary, means of defining the term
"effects on the environment which are peculiar to the parcel or to the project." Subdivision (f) of
section 15183 provides as follows:

An effect of a proiect on the environment shall not be considered peculiar to the project
or the parcel for the purposes of this section if uniformly applied development policies
or standards have been previously adopted by the city or county with a finding that the

development policies or standards will substantially mitigate that environmental effect

when applied to future projects, unless substantial new information shows that the
policies or standards will not substantially mitigate the environmental effect. The finding
shall be based on substantial evidence which need not include an EIR.

This language explains that an agency can dispense with CEQA comptiance for environmental impacts

that will be "substantially mitigated" by the uniform application of "development policies or
standards" adopted as part of, or in connection with, previous plan-level or zoning-level decisions, or
otherwise - unless "substantial new information" shows that the standards or policies will not be

effective in "substantially mitigating" the effects in question. Section 15183, subdivision (f), goes on to
add the following considerations regarding the kinds of policies and standards at issue:

Such development policies or standards need not apply throughout the entire city or county, but can

apply only within the zoning district in which the project is located, or within the area subject to the

community plan on which the lead agency is relying. Moteover, such policies or standards need not be

Creeketone Phaee 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)
CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis December20l9

-13-

Page 720

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



part of the general plan or any coilununity plan, but can be found within another pertinent planning
document such as a zoning ordinance. Where a city or county, in previously adopting uniformly
applied development policies or standards for imposition on future projects, failed to make a finding as

to whether such policies or standards would substantially mitigate the effects of future projects, the

decision-makingbody of the city or county, prior to approving such a future project pursuant to this
section, may hold a public hearing for the purpose of considering whether, as applied to the project,

such standards or policies would substantially mitigate the effects of the project. Such a public hearing
need only be held if the city or coun$r decides to apply the standards or policies as permitted in this
section.

Subdivision (g) provides concrete examples of "uniformly applied development policies or standards":

(1) parking ordinances; (2) public access requirements; (3) grading ordinances; (4) hillside development
ordinances; (5) flood plain ordinances; (5) habitat protection or conservation ordinances; (7) view
protection ordinances.

A "yes" answer in the checklist indicates that the proiect has effects peculiar to the project relative to

the environmental category that were not discussed in the prior environmental documentation for the

zoning action, general plan or community plan and that cannot be mitigated through application of
uniformly applied development policies or standards that have been previously adopted by the agency.

A "yes" answer will be followed by an indication of whether the impact is "potentially significant",

"less than significant with mitigation incorporated", or "less than significant". An analysis of the

determination will appear in the Discussion section following the checklist.

7. Are There Effects That Were Not Analyzed As Significant Effects In A Prior EIR

On The Zoning Action, General Plan Or Community Plan With Which The
Proiect Is Consistent?

Pursuant to Section 15183, subdivision (b)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether
there are any effects that were not analyzed as significant effects in the prior EIR for the zoning action,

general plan, or community plan with which the project is consistent.

This provision indicates that, if the prior EIR for a general plan, community plan, or zoning action

failed to analyze a potentially significant effect then such effects must be addressed in the site-specific

CEQA analysis.

A "yes" answer in the checklist indicates that the project has effects relative to the environmental

category that were not analyzed as significant effects in the prior environmental documentation for the

zoning action, general plan or community plan. A "yes" answer will be followed by an indication of
whether the impact is "potentially significant", "less than significant with mitigation incorporated", or
"less than significant''. An analysis of the determination will appear in the Discussion section

following the checklist.

Creeketone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis
_14_

December2019

Page 721

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



8. Are There Potentially Significant Off-Site Impacts and Cumulative Impacts That
Were Not Discuseed In The Prior EIR Prepared For The General Plan, Community
Plan, Or Zoning Action?

Pursuant to Section 15183, subdivision (b)(3), of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether
there are any potentially significant off-site impacts and cumulative impacts that were not discussed in
the prior EIR prepared for the general plan, community plan or zoning action with which the project is

consistent.

Subdivision (i) of CEQA Guidelines section 15183 makes it clear that, where the prior EIR has

adequately discussed potentially significant offsite or cumulative impacts, the project-specific analysis

need not revisit such impacts:

This section does not affect any requirement to analyze potentially significant offsite or cumulative
impacts if those impacts were not adequately discussed in the prior EIR. If a significant offuite or
cumulative impact was adequately discussed in the prior EI& then this section may be used as a basis

for excluding further analysis of that offsite or cumulative impact.

This provision indicates that, if the prior EIR for a general plan, community plan, or zoning action

failed to analyze the "potentially significant offsite impacts and cumulative impacts of the [new site-

specificl prgect," then such effects must be addressed in the site-specific CEQA analysis. (Pub.

Resources Code, $ 27083.3, subd. (c); see also CEQA Guidelines, S 15183, subd. (i).)

A "yes" answer in the checklist indicates that the project has potentially significant off-site impacts or
cumulative impacts relative to the environmental category that were not discussed in the prior
environmental documentation for the zoning actioru general plan or community plan. A "yes" answer

will be followed by an indication of whether the impact is "potentially significant'', "less than

significant with mitigation incorporahd", or "less than significant". An analysis of the determination
will appear in the Discussion section following the checklist.

9. Are There Previouely Identified Significant Effects That, As A Result Of
Substantial New Information Not Known At The Time The EIR Was Certifie4
Are Now Determined To Have A More Severe Adverse Impact?

Pursuant to Section (bXa) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether there are previously
idenffied significant effects that are now determined to be more severe than previously assumed based

on substantial information not known at the time the EIR for the zoning actiorL general plan or
community plan was certified.

This provision indicates that if substantial new information has arisen since preparation of the prior
EIR for a general plan, community plan, or zoning action with respect to an effuct that the prior EIR

identified as significant, and the new information indicates that the adverse impact will be more severe,

then such effects must be addressed in the site-specific CEQA analysis.

A "yes" answer in the checklist indicates that the project has significant impacts relative to the

environmental category that were previously identified in the prior environmental documentation for

Creeketone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis December 2019

-15-

Page 722

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



the zoning action, general plan or community plan but as a result of new information not previously
known, are now determined to be more severe than previously assumed. A "yes" answer will be

followed by an indication of whether the impact is "potentially significant", "less than significant with
mitigation incorporated", or "less than significant". An analysis of the determination will appear in the

Discussion section following the checklist.

10. Mitigation Measures Addressing Impacts.
Pursuant to Public Resources Code section 210$.9 this column indicates whether the prior
environmental document and/or the findings adopted by the lead agency decision-making body
provides mitigation measures to address effects in the related impact category. In some cases, the

mitigation measures have already been implemented. A "yes" response will be provided in either
instance. If "NA" is indicated, this Environmental Review concludes that the impact does not occur

with this project and therefore no mitigations are needed.

Subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code section 21083.3 further limits the partial exemption for
projects consistent with general plans, community plans, and zoning by providing that:

[A]ll public agencies with authority to mitigate the significant effects shall undertake or
require the undertaking of any feasible mitigation measures specified in the prior [EIR]
relevant to a significant effect which the project will have on the environment or, if not,

then the provisions of this section shall have no application to that effect. The lead

agency shall make a finding at a public hearing as to whether those mitigation
measures will be undertaken,

(Pub. Resources Code, S 21083.3, subd. (c).) Accordingly, to avoid having to address a previously
identified significant effect in a site-specific CEQA document, a lead agency must "undertake or
require the undertaking of any feasible mitigation measures specified in the prior [EIR] relevant to a

significant effect which the project will have on the environment." (Pub. Resources Code, $ 21083.O

subd. (c).) Thuq the mere fact that a prior EIR has analyzed certain significant cumulative or off-site

effects does not mean that site-specific CEQA analysis can proceed as though such effects do not exist.

Rather, in order to take advantage of the streamlining provisions of section 21083.3, a lead agency must
commit itself to carry out all relevant feasible mitigation measures adopEd in connection with the

general plan, community plan, or zoning action for which the prior EIR was prepared. This
commitnent must be expressed as a finding adopted at a public hearing. (See Gentry u. City of Munieta
(1995) 36 Cal.App.4th 1359, 1408 [court rejected respondent city's argument that it had complied with
this requirement because it made a finding at the time of project approval "that the Project complied

with all'applicable' laws"; such a finding "was not the equivalent of a finding that the mitigation
measures in the [pertinent] Plan EIR were actually being undertaken"l.)

Creekstone Phaee 1 (Mangini Ranch Phaee 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis
-16-

December20L9

Page 723

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



E. Ch€&lirt and DbGi6

1, AESTHETICS

EnviloMntal
Isrue
Atea

Ost6hElE
N.w $ttrdt

Srt sddlyM@
Sd.EhF.t?

98d0dhp* 6
$b6bblt Md
hhFd?

M&l

R4drrgk

AcTl4 EAd
Tt!&MTo
ftrydoft

bWoldE
hdTITEE
NdKDH

b.hmQrt*
htg rd4

Gds.l tu!&
hdyh

kTlw 86.6
Th.t ftG lbli* lo
ft46tumr
Mbbdt

Yldt bd tt
Applbhof

ffiyArdH
D6.L?l6tPoU*
&grd.*lfr.t

tu lf.n lfi.cts

$Strf,tEtuh
APfuMAfu

tud PLnOr
Cotuiy PLn
UUrwftrdrTlE

AEf,EnPobut
Slsnsdtof-k

CundEhFd

DldhTtE
tu EInPif.d
ldfttul
naC()ll:Mtt
Hu Or hhg

ldm$6cd $Sifidt
6tufr{ea

laltOtg,htLl

TETtEuw-
C.dnd.eNow

AdYe hp.d?

Ad&lsinSl!"s

l. Aadade psPudcR
oD. U.l.l b -g

a. l{fv6 a

$brhtialadv@
.{ied6. sdc

pp.3A.1.24 to -25 No No No NO No No No MM 3A.1-l

b. Sr$d.ndally
d{Dterdk
@!ry
irdudiit tutd
llrdhd tq uq
mddtupplnSt
rd lrbhdlc
bdldlryr rlthtn .

p?. 3A.l -26 lo -27 No No NO No No No No Nof4lbkw

c $rh.tl.ly
detndirh€
qi{ingvlsrl
deffidqalry
oa th. tiF .nd ib

pp S/dl-zbfl No No No No No NO No No MM3A.l-l
tA.?1
g14

d. (!dh.w

lobimid$ght o

pp 3A.1-31 b -*l No No No No No No No No MM3AT5

crlelrlon. Ph.& 1 (Msglni lanah Ph.te 1 Lot 10)
CEQA EErplioeld Sf anlinin8Arlyrir

-1&
De6rbs,2019

Page 724

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircm@tal
lsue
Area

Dohpocd
Ch!6hwlE
NGe SlAnifint

subrhEly MN
$ttutttPs*
$bffilyk kTdtiry NG,

KftEffi

T€ry6eh
P@IQffift

BWdldB.
bbdTluthE
JotbDidd

h. hERGThc

klPhnC
Cffi(yPh
WithWhidrlll

hlhk{tuTo
ft h*6118! Will
Nd&Mdy

MugrdBy
Applddd Of

Udtomly AppLd

eWTfi.l
kwh

kftRffi

Sgtratrnkh
AtumGThe

ZdiryAde
Gffilh&
CMtytu
Wlh ffidTlE

PrFLC.)]et?

rgdfalO(f.Sh

Dbsd hrl!
hr mhp.!d
IortuCa6l

nsOhlf

hffiliFiiol
wsTh& &A

Hrtr$hu

ImftUWs
hti.4eNtr

1. lrrflroa
wddtuhke

FPASImffi
DD. S.1-1 b 3l

.dv6*lydled
dlyd n8hnltrE

Dlt{rd@

th. bbl€ above ffibin the rclevdt aMlFb of lhe pMlirl imprG

r, MM 3.A.1-{, MM 3A1-5. (W6[.d E.glo Adderd@ pP. dr{3)

Guidelic) Ior @ dhcadon oI th..rchiffiril d€i8n lsiddln6 rnd latldeFd.dg! tuiddlG lhd.Pply b Ol Prcr6 (SttL I, pp.lg{}

MtdtrddMslru
. MM3A.L1
. MM 34,14
. MM3A,!-5
. WS-74
r MM3B.1-24
r MM38l-2b
r MM38.13.
r MM3DJ-3b

condqCG

/cniddiE. a tsrot. ld w6!ld lt |€illr tn rnv |rd rllnlfiilt lfficb th.l.m Dglbr b tlE Dtdd or i6 Cte (Cdddl€ S 15183).

Ct€€krton€ Phato I (Mrnginl
CEQA Grenptimrnd Sbilrlinin8 An ly6is D.6nh6,2019

-1+

Page 725

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



2. AGRICI,JLTURE AND FOREST NESOUNCES

Cr€ckiaon. Ph.k I (Msgini
CEQA Emptic and Sfarrlining

R.rch Ph.$ 1 Lot 10)
Adlylig

.20

Envirmmtal
Igsue

fuea

bhpd
OnE6hd€
kgtdfiert

gJhEutMc
Seelbpftb?

Si!'d6otI!9s
aSt&frrddyu4

&G!InFb?

sMbl

nquHst b

tut&lMTo
TtEP!4detu

Pttd Or lilhidr nE
ryWddd&
hLdtutlllE
Ndh D&lo..d

h.hqUOtrk
htEffi@
GdEltuao.

frl&MrTo
ftP4RttutWlU
Not e $Dd.ndly

Mld8rd !t
Appl&Ol

UnihltAplH

ch&Th
HaE 86

fuWarcMr

ggtuiEdsb
A ftcmorrTle

Zonln8 Adbt
CdftlPh&

WI& WhidrTlE
Prcid&Cffit?

SEtuldf&

Dbod hllE
kBneqcd
lorThGh

tuOrhE

htfedggdmr
E k611A AA

HOailM

NChM Atl!.
tullEmWr

ffiTobE

ffitdmtu
Adddtht*B

2,A8doll{& IPASP Dr!fi 8lR

a, Convd Prime
f.dilan4 Unlque
larnlil46
Pmlddof
Sffiid€
Ibporbm
Sadrlmd), a
ghom qlhcnF
prcp.r.d puMnt
b the Fdndrnd
Mrpglngrnd
Monltodng
Protrmof dc
C.Ufq.Ii
RslruAgdcy,
to non-.gledtur.l

p 34.10.t No M No NO NO No No N@rcquind

b. Coflldwllh
arbdng zonlng tor
igliol@lwd
6 Unllr@nAd
6trErct?

pp. 3.{1l}41 lo -{i} No NO No No No No No k NofEdl,hMM

s hvolE otls
dungF in d*
slednt

whL}! du. b th.lr

p,3rdlGzt No No No No No No No No N@requiFd

D.cdS.r, 2019

Page 726

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvircMdtal
Isgue

Als

ClBr6 hd*
Nogsrdffdl

hpsn
sffiitk

hd6gN#
SEnlodrthpd

cg)hdtLly MG
SaEhp&b?

Subd$l

R.qretBk

V.dtutu?

TlBr e Rotr 1o
ft hl*tOrTh€

PftldWdrld &

h . Pdor BIR On ft
zdtA.Uq

kdPLe Or
Cmdtyn n

&h8tub

TlprydtutWU
NdLgld.d![y

Yidt td !y

^pde0UnffiyApH
[H@tH&
OSEdr*Tld

$Snic.nt EtiG h
AkEROInE
hgki&
G66l PbOr
CMtyh
Wi&WhbTlE

hoidbffit?

AErbIM'
g!iltu|tr-g,!

tuLtEInp*!

Dldhft
hmPrt?atd
trdftCi@l

Ftu! C66dly
nsGZdls

ldddt dSlgtrd
EISIut &A

HtO{$tlbrdd

tuftmW6

Iffif.fsMffi
AdddrhFt.

zActicde rPASP Dr.i BIR

ould twltin
dv6iono,
Frmbn4 bm-

Irlaqd6:

irnp.S

d r.duc.d imFd b EricrnMl IB@ wlaMpr€d to ttr FPAS? p.+$ il.Mlyz.d in th.2mr EIR (W6tlrd 8.tl€Addaidq pp. a.gs)

Se Exhibit 3 f6 di*gi6 of d* GelhPfe l F(*r{r @$tdy with open sp.e polki.r in dE FPASP ih.t my berddrnt brtticatm snd r@t lwUG inpre (Eth t pp. g 12-14)

Mldt ddlt aE
. MM3B.r05

C6d[i@

IGr r&ur€ lmffi (cslddha q 15162I B @utd tt r6uft tn env w rlrrdficet impG dut tte mltrN b the E# 6ib rile (Guid€liE S 15180).

Creekrton. Phaaa 1 {Mrngini R.nch Ph..r 1 Loi 10)

cEQAlpnpdon ild stultnht ADtFi6
-21-

Dddnlcr,2019

Page 727

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmqlal
Isue Area

e Rsp6.d
ChSE hdE
It*ggdht

9MeryMoE
l;didhFs

dSbdnbtryvoE

Subddll

Iqulfit k

TlEeqdorfre
rdGWhldrft
4dWd&
hn{ro lkn
&hM

h.ftb m &nE
hryA.dq

Ca6d n&O

wrhffift

hl&MTo
IEh4dtuMl
NdRSshily

Mdt HDy
Apdbh Of

unifody ApdH

Orgddrdst.lgt
HlEBa

9tnfi6ttuh
AH*morft
rugd4
klFL^Or
Comdth
trftffidrh

PrqdECffit?

gFitultrSF

Disndhft
hRPq.rd
forTLCrEl

naOrZ6nS

Idadn dItdht
E adrtug sa

kultqffi

kTh!ERW&

$tlletu

3. rir Qsdtty.
Wooldlhc mLd

IPASF DnItElR

a. Cfillid with o.
obcftct
ttnpl€Mblid ol
dE rpplioble rlr
quli9 phn?

pp.3A.2-A b {9 No No NO No No No No No W3A2ir
tA,2-lb
3A'2-1c
*2-ld
3A.2-l€
3A2-il
3A2-rt
3A2{h
3A2-'
34l-t
3Ar{b
3A:-5

b. Violab dy air
qultly lbrdrd d
@ntsibul€
sb.bdially btn
qbtint or
proFEd.tr

5.m d (a) rNe NO No No No No No NO S.m€ B (a) abde

a, R€ult ln.
omuLtlv.ly
@ider.ble tr
iwa*of my
slEi. pollubnt
fd whlch the
proidt r€ld tr
nm{hirlffit

S.ft a (a).bore No No No No No No NO 5.m a (.) ,bovc

3, ATRQUALITY

Creck.lone Ph..e I (Mrngini Rench Phl* 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Emplio and SFddlldng Anrlytie I)ffiflhr.Zll9
-22-

Page 728

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvircM6tal
I$ue Ar€a

ChFhY.lE
kfutu

hFSd
tubffiyil@

StdhlhFb
r $rldddly MoE

$Mel

kqd4k

kIl@8th.b
Ttuthktufo
turydo.ftt

PelolrWhdTtE
ftoFdWofiE

Nd h Dklo.d
h6 HorSRhTt

hEAdq
CdH.l ?bLG
Cffiudiyh

&tutu
ftde FFuhTo
TLWTh.tHI
Nd&Sdily

MHt.H sy
AppX&d

Unilody Ardid

Ghtrtur
kEDa

htu{yAdopld?

ktkftb

$Fm€ntEfts h
APfuMfuft

hin8ffiq
klhc
Coffityh
ffith Whldrk

bdLcMt?

Ackffily
$!tu!dr*

hFdM
Cunul*inhFb

DidhTIE
hLmhtrd
IcftM

nmlhi$

ffii8trd
UIfrht AA

ndft O{g'&6dJ

nnftmW-
Cdd.4 hNd
Di.di.dToBE

t AlrQuxt PAFDn'TK
ms2-1bd

rpp[6bbHsd
c abb ilnbiht .ir
qudliy Bbd.rd
(tndrdlnt
re-lc.rirymi$i6
whichoced
qundbllw
trEhold!ror

d. ErpcesdoE
rePb6lo
subabntlr!
poltuht
@@brdoB?

Sim a (.).bov. No No No No No No No No S.d ar (a) above

e C6E
oti6d@bLod6
afui8r
rublhtitl ruabc

pp.3A.Z-g b€ NO No No NO No NO w3A.2{

Cr.akstonr Ph.rG I (Mudni nilch Phric r Loa 10)

CEQA Brdpdd .nd shanlnlrg AMly.ie Dc.db.r, 2019

AT

Page 729

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviromotal
Lcue Aea

htubl

hlbopd
tur6hdE
l*xStdtd

ffidlygc
CgnifhthFb

stdt

tuqeh8k

vdfitu?

AGhn Ef*

TIE P(i(Gft
Pdfrffirl.

BoFrW4dd 8e
hHTtEtbE
NothD|#

htHorERGfie
hiryAds
kJh,O.
Cffidtyh

ftryhdw0
NUt€gShd{y

Ml6g.dBy
AppfdoO{

UftmtAp?lLd
D.wbpFtPdG
O*.ddrtu

llgtrd I'EG h
APtumotrft

Zc*EAd4
CaRlPhr&
C@ntyfh
wi6ffift

Pddbffi?

tigilfdrqnEb

Ddhft
Ptu [RPE?r.d
lorIE Carrd
tu,Cffidty
tuOhE

hndtu tgnlfdrl
EfiEaeTlut a A

H!C[$hrd

TidtbUWa
Cdi6.d, hNil
kfittu d fo Hr€

Wghk5E

3. Alr QEllty. mA.gDrat!8lR

Diruid

polluhb dd pffiF oDFd 3A2-1, 6r PMn ffihtlds[ longffi oF.tioFrdrhd, ntlorul sni$ioE o{ stEtu .ir polluhB .rd Fsm gfrp.d 3f2-2} dpque b TAC5 Cmp.d 3A2-4} nd qpo.re to odds

DEI& p.3A.2{3.) Th€patF indbtd tn dr hbleabove Mln th! rclcv.il.Blysb d lh€ pmtal inprc&

ta MM3.A.2-rb, MMSA2rc MM3A2-rf, MM3A2-2, MM:rA.2-{aMM3A2-|D, MM3a2.t MM3Az{, (W6drnd E gleAddad@ pp,lA.r7.)

Mffi
MMgA2-tt
MM3A2.1b
MM3A,2.rc
MM 3A"2-rd
MM:1A.2-1e
MM3A2.1r
MM3,{.2-lt
MM3A.2-lh
MM:IA2-2
MM3A24.
MM3A'4b
MM3A2.5
MM3A2{
W$.2-1t

cre€liloae Phr.6 I (Msnlinl
CEQA Ersptis.d Sbsdirig

Rsch PhrE I Lot 10)
Andyli Dembd,2019

-2+

Page 730

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmatal
Ise Area

Ailbddh tsk
Dohpd

Ons6hElE
kgfildd

$MbnyMG
knhFd?

SlrnliilthFts
dSubddrlyh

S"@ Inprcb?

lnffioo(
Slb.hu

R.quifrU Ncr
An:Iyltotr

tul h F!or[.rTo
ItEu$O!T!f,

P-alOnffilhc
Pr*dwd,ld&

MThrtHae

hrkmftft

CcHd tu\e
Co@Vh
wfrffift

&lhre
n5&RdlbTo
ftryturwI
Not [. $bdedily

Mllf.ld By

^ppleOlUnlhmly A!?li.d
hdopdatPoxd
OrShdrdrtu

hh

TfuI W@Nd

Sttut[&<! h
Akufrft

ZdrtlHs
C66.lPLnot
CoMudy f4n
ffiWhtdrTlE

hCd&CNi6?

fudfantOlf"h
hFdkd

CuddEhp.6

Dhredhtu
tumPaFrd
IdhGsEnl

I'leftZ6lry

Id6ffiSEtu!
Efb6llu{, AA

brltOI$&rdd

Ndhh AItE
ThTlEmwa
Cd&d &Now

hhMd

Md8rtuk
Addshp6

aequll. IPASPrHTBTR

MM3Ar-rb
MM3g2-1c
MMgBzSs
vM3B.2-3b

Cord[i@

ffi .GrildiE t ISIAI M uotrId lt ralt in ilvEw Csrinonl hB6 thrt.r. Eqlirr b tlc Drdd s ib3iE (Guiddiq S 15163).

Cructlton. Phr€ I (M.!6ini R8.h Ph&e 1 Lot 10)
CEQAErErpli.hrd SMlinint Andyrb

-25-

lffi,ml9

Page 731

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



4. BTOLOGICATRESOURCES

CreaLrtone Phse 1

CBQA Etmptim.nd

Envirommtal
Isue Area

tuE6hrla
NdSFi[dnt

ShElyM@
SEnturhpdd
Subldny Mm

So!.hdd

r.qdhSk

elhtu

fth*dGllE
ndhWldne

khBlF.d
hr Hd uOnft

elldE&cb

nrPrq.dtuffiu
NdEtuMily

M6Ed 8y
AppIeOl

(a 3ndrd, Thrt

fuThUK

ggnffol Ef&cb h

Z6hrAe!
krbo
MtyPLtr

g8dhltrgE

Dhndhft
tuffiPnp&d
Forft(]6gd

Plmfthn!

rhukSrtrdl
Eftd!fr|eA

HtOaW

ThftmWa

Wphk
Addd{hpr6

I Biorodol
ldGwould

ffaSf OranER
pp.3A.U bg

stsndd.dvg*
effr.t rathd
diEdy q duough
hrbibl
rFdi6di66
any3Fi6
id{dfr.d -.
endid!b,
sEtdvq d sFci.l
*tu5Fi€in
l@lcr.dwl
plsq polidq d
..8u.LdG aby
tltCditmi.
D€prdffi ofFi6h
&dGdrcdU's.
Fitr.rid Wiulift

pp. 3A.950 to -72 NO No No No No No No No WSll.
3A31b
3A'}2.

3A}?r
3A'gU
3432t
:tA32h
3A$3

b. Hil€ !
$b6bnddrdv6*
.{ftd on ffiy
itp.rhn hrblbt d
dh.gEitiE
EMIco.Muity
i&ilifi.d ln l@l

pp.1A.Tn6-?5 No No No No No No No WreTA
3Allb
3A3&
:lA3{b

lMs,20l9
-2G

Page 732

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envirmstal
Issue Aru

e@
tu86hda
Nd grdfid

tubb&IyMm
$gnndlhp*or
Sub.htblyM@

$bsrdd

R.qffiBk

k]hfr
nrryclE

PelhWhihThc
Il+twold h

NdhDKH
ha Ha mOnfic

hn'gA(&\
HPh\O

WIfrffih

krhffi

ThBr14$lr
NdeS!$ffll{b

rdfrHty
Aldffitr

UdIEilly Apdid

OMh

hlktu

Stdnat 6ItG In
A Hd moi Th.

hgA.tb\
klFLnOt
MryPh

$tFfistCff-SiE

ksd hlh.
Ptumh?&d
fortuhl

tu&hB

Udnff.d Sttul
trktutaA

n6ult dScbrdJ

kIt!mW6
6ftrr,hk
ffiToHrw

MUfek
nddElshp.G

amolH
R*o*wodd

IPASPMllR
pp. 3A3-1 lo ,{

pdici6,
EgnhlidBdbt
th.Cslifornis
D?6ffidFdt
.rd GTtuGUS
rbhad wf,dfir!
S6vi..?

s Hma
obahtirl idv#
ef&ddbdaly
prd6Fdwrdrdr
s&{rrdby
S.dtd{Xd the
ClmwlEAd
(itdrdturt botd
lniEd tq nrdr
vqDlpol,
l:sl,e)
tludshdnd
@v.L(ilfnlt,
hyddodal
inhpaid!*

pp.3A.'A b-50 No No NO No No No No Wl S3'lt
3A3lb

d. terf*
:ubcouially wlth
oE@rof
rnt Etiw6i.l nt
dmtt6Eynsh

pp.3A.+86 b 4t No No No No No No No No N@ requlFd

C!.€Lrlon. PhilG I
DeEnb.r, 2019

-27-

Page 733

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircm6tal
Isue Area

Cha8a hwh
ewgttrdt

Sderfr[rM@
Sifnifiol hpSfi
ffi&nyM@

hbl

nryAigk

Tt.Weft
Pralorr MtthL
qrtwoH&
Ldtuhs
Ndhklo.d

h.Fbim&ft
ffitA.tHv
CdEllb& C

uh W{dr h

ftki.dfrnwu
Nc Bc Subrbu.Uy

MtfdEy
AppH6Of

Uddy Appli{
lHWsPde
Org-ddfrl

kBqr

Sbd8drt tlhd h
A Pds monTh.

hhSd@
C6s.lh&
CoMdty Plh
Wllh Wlildr Th.

SiSituOGSE

DbEdhft
PdorUPEpad
lo.TLCdd
HoCdMdty
Pie OZ6hS

Idaffistniht
Efi6 th.l & A

HtOlSob.FUi

ThTLUWs
c.tritu,kNd
Dtm6.d Toh

AdhlEhps

a, Elolodol
n@wqdd
lhffild

FPASF Dnft EIR

PP. 3A.'r b .9{

sp€i6 or wlti
eblbh.d Mdve
r6ldoto.
mitEhy wildlile
@rid6d
impade tha @ of
rli€wtldlitu

a Cdl8idwith
oy lool polict6
trddtrulm
Pr*{ng
tlot Btot
!wG,SChe
iEpt€vrt'M
poli('6

pp 34.?E to S
(qk woodhrrt ard

tI6)

No No No No No No No No MM3A}'

f, Cotr{id wilh tlE
pwidNolrn
addpFd tLbilt
CM.tionPbe
Nabr.l
Cmurdty
ClMddPLD
d dls rppDvld
leal. r.tr!fiul d
st E h.blbt
ffiatlmohn?

pp. 3A.!96 b 44 No No No !r'o Nd No No No NcEqui.sd

Cr€.krton. Phroa 1 (Mrnglni R.nch Phaie I Lol l0)
CEQ{ EEdpdnand StsdlliniryAsl}rit

-2&
D.cflbs,2019

Page 734

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviffiotal
Issue Area

Ct6!6hvdE
kSgdfidt

Sir!.hbuyMN

hvdvilglh
StnnmtrrT6n
tub6sIdlyMG

hftrilhot
nb.hLl

R.quiiiq k

rlDl&!6&To
TIEPn*dOft

FdclG Wl{dr Ttr

MITTh{
Ndhtuldd

h aHor motrTh!
ZdtgAe,

CealPb! &
MtyPIe

tu&hkTo
tulrqdThrwll
Nd & SubrbEdly

Midt.Fd By
ApltuOl

Unifod{y AtpH
hdpffitDde
&Mhi

hh

ggdidt EIbc! h
AkmotrTh.

hhgAer
(klhor
Cffirntyh

Prci.dbCM?

$rrilhtOtI{t

Cl,ddEtFG

Pfrr m rllp&d
ForhCsRl

nuez*E

hdfidgsdldt
afftGn4 & A

bl:tOfMtl

fimTh.RW*
Cdf,.4 &Nd

CHtdbk

r Bdolotldl
R@Woukl

FPA.SP Dr.It EIR
pP.3.{}1 b 44

Dldel@

County, S.o.!Mto Couty, q Calhffi, (FEI& pp 1-3t lo l{3; DEIR p.3A}9{)

Th€ pag6 tndiot.d lr 0rc bble tbove onhin th€ rd.vrnr aulysk od dE pGdrl inp-&

Additi@ll, d* 2012 W.F Add6dum indud€ i ,hd di(uslm of lw the dErlG lo dE e.E a.dult€ 8F.6 o{ 0t FPASP Fqd wdld hrw the me or ld lnPd b biologi€I t6Nc ulE mFrcd lo dE FPASP PKi4 .5

MM {s. MM 4.+5, MM d6, and MM 4&7, (w6tLnd FrtbAdd€due pp.4I&43.)

S.e Erhitit 3 br dleslff of th. C@ldN Phe I proJ<ds @n &tdry wlrh *sLndr ard wfililc poli(b in $e fPASf th.t Ny be rdd.il b blolotlol t@G |tnPae (E lL 3, PP. f $18.)

Thd@ongdngdtorbbffipltthesdths.emnbHCP,whichierd6qadintl€F?ASPElADuttlESouthSa.lMbHCPi!dreldntbOcCrcldomPlelPridlcrEdEcilydiddcll@bp{tkip.bitdE HO

MiliSrtimMffi
. MM3A"+1.
. MM3A-!1b
. ffi3A3-2a
. Mlr,t 3A3-2b
. ldvgA.}lc
. WS.32d
. Wreh
. MM3A.$21
. Wrctr

cre.krlotr€ Phaie 1 (Mindnl R.trch Phse 1 Lol 10)

CEQA EEmptis srd Strcanlinin8 ABlysis
-29

Dt(@bq,2ol9

Page 735

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envitom6tal
Isue Am

Dotuld
ChlihdE
hgldfdd

Sdlyh
khF6?

fun6onthpsag$.dltM@
S.6Inps?

S'rbrffil

Xadtrgk

trfha!ffi

11:Pn{dOrltu
hhWhrchTlE
B{wold&
bdlidhE
MhDKH

h r Hor Bn Or fhc
htts Ar{@
G6alPh\O

kkE&cts

Th. P(i(tut Wil
Not k $brsddly

Ieg'HDy
Appt&Ol

Unltomly Apdhd
hd.?@Pde
& S6d.rdJ n t

tbR B€r
PdidCy Ad.pld?

AETTE Ithd

grnnd 6rftG h
AhUAnE

htAdq
hlPlnO
GMdtyPlrt

BbCl'ffi?

ktugourdal,
SladlortOtgt

Ohrsd hTlE
Ptu BnPii+.d
fotfth

E n Or Zodrg

kftanstutrCy
L,Lr{kgfdld
Er&61lr(, tu A

HO{9ed.l

hkUWe

ffiToHrE

Wteki

r EHogqr
RmWoold

FffitHU
pp,3A-!l b-91

r MM3A,92h
. MMil.H
. MM:tAJe
. MM3A34b
. MM3A.'5
. MM3B.H,
. MMsB.glb
. MM38,$lc
. MM3A.}lr
. MM3E!2
. MMd+r
. MMw
r MM4+3
. MM44-4
r MMl']r-s
. MM44-5
. MM4+7

Condrd@

Wtth llpLtMbdd of dE sbovc nrldgtltlo. l'ElG lds{i6.d in dr FPASP EI& We Addsdq end Wdtbnd Ertle Addad@ Crc&rbne Phc 1 wdrld d hE my Iw itrilioil 6 {D&nddly @ .v@ holodel
@Gltnscts{Guld.llEg15la),d@tdlt@!thry,wr&rilliontirusth*eFdidbdEprddctBdE(CuldelbES$1&}).

cr€cklotrc Ph$s 1 {Mrndnl
CEQA Edtption and Sbdnlinint

R.!.h Phe I Lt 101

Anty!& lM,2019
"3G

Page 736

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envirom4tal
bse Area

OunlEheotr
kgctu

$ffiilyM@
S.rehFi?

sEddhFba
$t hbUyMG R4*tUk

TEBsOft
klOnffiT!

bdltsthE
Nd 8a Dt<tdd

hrllbrm&ne
h8Afiq

GdE lg&O
C6tutPhtr

ftryfrrml
Nol & $bfibny

MtrFd Bt
Applffioa

Un(mly App!.d
Deal.?rFtle

Or Sa&&Idr Th.l

hdouly Adop$?

SiFfrilt Eli6 h
Akhmorft

hhtA&!
klhG
Cffidtyh
WtrhMdrnr

Stturd-ft

CltdinhFd

Di6lrrd h Tt
PtuRh.Pd
Forfthl
n n,Cmity
HdOZonif,

Llhdff.d CEdfdrl
Eftslt l,&l

Mdg$su.l

hftwWd
htu,kNw
DsniFdro hE

Mrd8.iimkllG

ACdhrd
RmffiWodd

ENHU
pp. 3A..tr l,o .25

a. Cae a

iubabnthl dv*
chrnge in OE

rlanldoN dt
hlrtorlolHue
ar ddlncd ln

pp.3A^l17b -23 No No No No Nd No No liLV 34,$13
3A.5.lb
34.$2

b. Crus.
subctanlirl dv@
duq. in dE
Eitnifie@ o, an
ardE€<ilo$cal
r.Mp!G@t
b61ffi?

S6m c (a)aboE No No No No No No No No Saft.s (s).bov.

c. l]idyd
indicdy d6hy a

unlque
prbontologiol
aryeot ritss
uniqu. telogtc
Iatu?

s.ild (a).bde No No No No NO No NO 5.@ I (r) abve

d. Dd&ey
humn ramlB,
Irdudin8lh*
lnffiedilldde
dE 6orNl
ffi?

pF 3A.SZ' to -2a No No No NO NO No No MM 3AS3

5. CULTURALRESOT'RCES

Cro€Lrlonc Phila I (ManSinl R.nch Phu 1 Lot 10)
CBQA €Elptl@ and ShrilInlry Andydi Daaen$6, Zll9

-31-

Page 737

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvAomqtal
l$ue Area

ChtR hvdE
kCldid

Sh$flyMm
li8tuthpsG
SuLbbly M@

Sub.hhl

Rrquftlg Ns

ft4dGTfi.
tualftWNdlTh.
k*d wsuBc
ktsdIlEl lla€
NdhOilded
hrftdmorft

hb3Ae!
C@.1tu!&
Comityh
w'ihWhd Ur

DdkMrTo
Ttrhqdrnd ffiU
Nd &$&ruly

Utdlrd By
AppllohOf

UilGlntApDLd

O.h&r&frI
trrk

Thd flbe;{oa

gttulfth
APtu mfrtTlE

Ca6lho
CdtMlYh
trhffillE

ffiECffif

SttnfiotOtf-$E

tuubfEhp.d

P&mftlFld
t6ThCrr6.l

hOhht

tddtuslsi66t
Eift.ts11$ A A

kllt Of $rbbdid

hn mW&
C€64.d" &r Ns

MlitrhLh'iF
Add6hB lrnprh

t.mM PASPhflU
pp.3A}1b-25

Disd@

t€s€0mFd3r{tl.nd3A52}fdlsF6t6off{tbirprw@b@ted.d ina@urdsthejuridictiondElDordoCffity.Sf.ffiCddy, GC.lEf0mpreg^.tl [MBh3A,5€). (FEm, pp.1{r b1-grDBIR,
p. 3A-F25,) Ihc p.t6 irdiBlrd in lh. b$le rbove qhin th. r.larnt elFis o{ thc pohdrl imp.ce

how prdGr .dEdffi tuH hrw the 9m d Edu..d imp.d b sltil Fuc wh6 @p..!d b the FPASP prol.d & tulyzd h UE 21111 EIR with lnpkrHbdd of dE to[oBlig nid8.d6 lMure ftm dt FPASP 8I& 5@
otwhichh.vebenupdrt4dindpWdhrdE tlcAddsrduftMM3A,7-10,MM3.4.s1aMM3A,$1b,MM3A$2,WssA(W6d$dErSLAddndu4pp.4J14"9.)

Se Erhlbit 3 fd di.@i{ oarh€Cn*M Ptte I Fojqt'r 6robt69 with o}oral lt.wc polldGln the PASP ttd @y b. rd@tbculnrel rc inp6, (Exh 3, p 21.)

MiiigrumMc*rE
MM 3AFla
MM3A'1b
MM3A"*2
MM3A.}3

C6alul@

With idplaBbtim of lh. .boE nitit tiot |f idddf.d in UE FPASP tR, WaE Addmdua and W6{.trd E de Addndu4 C.eelcbrc Pl* I *dld d ht€ dy R siEnifot or su!6hti.lly mr€ wer <dual
@c6lnp..b (cotddq 515152), Mrdld it @lt in dy Fw Ctnmoil Lnpas rhat @ pdrfrr to tbc Plord d lb dE (Guid.$E S 15183].

cr..k.tor. Phuc 1 (MfiBlni R.n.h Ph.te 1 Lol l0)
CEQA Exdrptioard Shnliniq Aely.b

-32-

D.enb6,2019

Page 738

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



6. GEOLOGYANDSOILS

Ce.t.lon. Phr.. I (MrnElnl Rinch Fh... I Lol 10)

CEQA Erdpdd{rd SGnllilngAEly3lr
-3!

Envimotal
Isue Arq

MydhHs
8ntubl
lMB

tuFhwln
Negtddd

hpd6
irb.bd.Iy Mc

bvol6tNew
Slsnihthp6

dSdyU@
S.@hp.$?

Subffi
hpoee

nc$ffiyk

Th.t &tcu$-?o
IrWOrk

P.d qi Whlri Tlr
ftoF(Wd &
hbdhH.a
MB6rDtu

h rH6mOtth.
hn€&iq!

CdEl Pf4C
C@tMLyh

ThdktulkTo
IrrrydnnW-il
l,ld &$l*it'dly

UidCfiSy
ap?hOl

Lhhhtt AppXGd
D6ilofGtFol*
&ffifrt

tu W.ENd

ggnildt 8ft6 h
AkmOnIE
hie!
Gd@lPhO
CMtynn
Hh Whrdnr

4$Lffii?

Sltdoon Oft€ts

CuhdrliEInFb

DMhtu
hmPqd
ItrTlEM
h!Cmdty
heh!

l&l!tuSEffiat
EfufuIfuA

Rarlro.$bddid

NottuAtTtF
fieftmW*

Door6Ys
Mdgek
AddFkUhpd

aCetu8l&d
S.il.. rftdd6.

FPASP Dr.ft Ell
pp.3,{7-1 lo{)

. Drpd! p.o9E
qslnrcaF to
podrl
$hbnddadvd
.{kr$ iftltding
th.rbkoalC
Iriut d dath
involvtit;
f. RlpioEof.
fmMdthS!&
tEE - ddnEFd

Al$ds&Pfdo
ErdqulaFftlt
Zd{r€Mry bo.d
by tlESbh
G.dogbt torlt.
a@dbat d6
drE.ri6nti.l
dtddEo{r
*ffiAuh?
n 16 b Dlvlrio of
l'0c.rd G6bty
Sp.dd Puhildlih
&.
2. Sbrgr.ifiic

pP.3A,7-246-B No No No No No No No No MM 34.7.1a
3A"7-1b

DGnld, zn9

Page 739

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envimqtal
Iesue Area

hffid

hPoPcad
Chs!6bdE
Nd 96dA6t

tohndlyMG
klf,F-b?

hd*UNw
9filfidthps

ngrbd.nddyh

$bsrdftt

r.quli|! Nd

&rcre
tul&RilkTo
ftkixrOrTlr

&d6t would E

Ndhffi
brh@a&ft

Zd&E Ad@
hIh!q

W&ltlddr tlr

lbl&n(u&rTo
Il'rffiTl'dWil
Nd&Sbuly

Min6.ldBy
AppteOl

Unihlt AFIH

&Mtu

&kEgffi

fu.ifd cf&cb h
A h.EROntu

zdaHoto
hPhO

lhid BC6*hP

$ttr6rdf-98

lbsdhtlE
bmhp.nd
for Th.Ca6rl

Amehg

I&trffi9!tr6t
EftCTh.! AA

bttdghd

TidTh. mwa
CdH,kNow

WSbntBc

AGdlo$rud
S.dlr Wfildde
mid

?PASPD€ftAR
pp.3A.7-t b {

g. S.{rmt-rdrbd
getd f.IN,
lrduding
Uqu.ki@?
4- LnddHd?
b. Rrult in
ilt bti.lrcil
di6dth.16

pqr.34.7-28 to -37 No No No No Na No No No MM3A7.3

c &lGt€dona
B@lotic unit or
xil llut b
ucbbL, q lhrt
suldbdiF
uEhblo s.6rlt
oa tha prqbrt, .rd
p6tirilyralt
ln@{ofi.db
li.ndslidq l.ld.l
sPtcdllt;
rubd.lsE
liq@6cddot

pp. 3A.7-31 lo -3{ No Nro No NO NO No No Wil'-IA
3A7l
34,7"5

6FDdE rcil.s
d€6ndinT.bte
l& 1.4 d rh€

UnilamEuiHinS

PF il.7stotr No No No No NO No No MM3A'.1I
34.7-rb

C...kston. !h.ie 1 (ManShl Rrnch Ph.e 1 Lot lot
CEQA Emption md SkeanltnlryADlytii D.c.r$6,z)19

"3rl-

Page 740

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircm6tal
Isgue Area

htub,

Dohpd

Ndqrtrdt

tuhdyU@
gftutIapG

aSubrllyh

fuIEEel

n qultf Nd

TIE EdOrk
PdOnmldfr
rytWouldb

NotbDbd6.d
h.hdmhft

Ocdtu&or
CorqntyPhn
Hb\ Whldt llt

tut k hcut* To
Th. hdRt Th.t WU
NdeMly

Mldg.dEy
Applddq

hfomly Apph

OM&ht

Pplordy Adol$?

lhrt WftNd

ggdRdt ghd h
AkmhTh.

' Garcrdfbnor
ColmdlyPh

hl.<bMt?

AFtlftFdrEly
Sgdht Off-Slt

PtumPl?ad
lorlfi.CFd

PlaOrblE

It nti.d$Strd
EllcIh& AA

htq$Ml

InftERWa

MtEel&.@

5. Crolo!' 6d
6olh Wdld dr.

IPASP MI EIR
pp. 3A.7.1 to {

@dng$bbntal
ri*r b lift or

o Haved3
iEFbleol
rdquEly
suppcdnt lh. u
of sptl( bnli or
almdEwaE
w.u dirF6.l
9y$6wltc
wHilarcl
.valLble for the
di.pc.l of earb

pp.3A7-Sb-5 No No No No No No No No Nftnquid

Crsekrtone Ph.as I (Mfi8ini R.(ah Ph.6. 1 Lot 10,
c6QA Eroptid ..d Slramllning AnlFb D@nb6,z)r9

-3$

Page 741

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviromstal
Isse Arca

N3 5lfni66t

$ffiltUm
Sittuthp*

dMyk
khFd?

fub6bfl

kquhry N8

&lkMads

ftRqdorTh.
Pml& WhldrTt:
ryrwod&
bEdlldbr
Nd Dcl Dlsdd
h.tumqrft

htf,Ad@
CaldlL4 or

mmfi€

tulhhlLrTo
rl.Pr#IhdWn
Not ksutffirly

mlgrHry
App[ou6tr

Unituly ApD[.d
DsdopMtFolid
&Mtfrt

&Ek

$Srnd{ Eftch
APfuBhfu

Z.dhg Ad&
hPhC
CrmudtPl&
trSffiTl*

kCdbffio

r\tnitdofFg!

@EfhFc

Mhrb
H6uP.rDltd
forTlEGqEl

Plen orzdfE

ld!'dfi.dgfrih
E&CThi A A

MdSb.dirl

nmft&W6
htu,kNow
lhhdTolbE

U{g&lL|sE

6.hloord
Souri W@Id tr

KNlmu
pp. 3A.7.1 lo .4)

DtMi@

Sscffib Counti€5.rd Cdb.c (FBIR, pp 1{9 b f-9e DEI& p.3A-74) Th. p.ts Ldtc.d ln tho bble above mbln tha relevnt elystt of th€ Pddu.l lnF*

3a7.lr,MM3A7-rb,MM34.7-t,MM3A74MM347-5.(WdhdE tk^ddadq pP. 6S4.{t)

Sc€ Bxhibit 3 fd dl*&td d the crettrc nr r F9Ff6 srdndicy dlh 0oodplein protf{on polici6 in lh€ FPASP ilut my be !tunt to 8.do8y snd lolle imFC (8xh t pP. ?a-2a)

Mid,.tidM.ffi
. MM 34.7-1a
. WS.7.lb
. MM3A,7-3
. MM3A,7-4
. !w3Ar-5
. MM3D.7-1.
. MMSB.zlb
. MM!8,74
. MMS.7-S

C6dudm

Witi impLbeMdd o( dE abow mitig.tld m6 lddilld ln ItE F?ASP EIR, W.tr Ad&!du4 and WdLnd frgle Addmdw Cr€.Lslm Phg
iffid aculd.ltrE a 151e1- mrrould it cult ln ev ffi dsi8ot lmm U.l rreDculin to th. F# d ib6lb (Ctid€IG, € 151&]).

I wdld rct h.w sy lw li8nifi@t o suhmtLly m ffie tploty .nd sil3

Creel.tont Fh.aa 1
Dsqnhd, mr9

-36

Page 742

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmtal
Ilsue Area

hlrdhk ctEt* hblE
Ndgldql

Suffi[yMN
khFe?

hvoldng Nfr
SttrotImp$n
tr!frtuily MoE

htm.u6 of
Subilnu

R.qrdhg Nw

ft4dATrE
?dal o'r Wtkfi Th.
ft*dwdfre
td:bdtuhE
MhDklcd

ha Ho! ERfrtu
ffigAd@
CrEdlh! C

tueMTo
llt hidrfi.twil
NoteffiS.lty

Yilt.d8t
Apdffior

Udro.!'ly ApplH

&hffih

|IgdndEes h
AHamfrft

hlEM@
CGEdh&

wdtgftrdrft

$gtuioff-3!
hFsed

OarLdEhpxb

hr..dhIh.
PdEmBrprd
Fdft.M
Pl4C@nhffy
tuqhA

rdadlH SlFUdt
Ek$llut eA

TmftWWa

IhlrEdTok€

MffA.feMs

,.GrulrauC-
Edrd@ Wodd

TPASPhTgR
pP.3A.+l b3

a,GffiF
tcnlosS3
ols6toqeids
dicdyo
t dldly,thd

sigilfenttmpd
dlh

tF 3A,+!:t b -I No No No No No No No No MM 342-1.
3A,2lb
3A,41
3A2.2
3A.&2.
3A+2b

b. Cdfldwtthu
.pp{tobh plr&
policy I
ragubliilsdqid
ld th€ putpGe o{
r€dwing the
dldtuof

pp. :lA.{.10 b -13 No No No No No No No No N@!qui.Ed

7. GREENHOUSEGASEMISSIONS

Cr..k3tor! Phe€ 1 (M.ntiil R.ach Ph$. 1 Lot 10)

CEQA ErmPdd dd st€mliniry AEIFb Dccan*er,2019

-37-

Page 743

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envimtal
hsueAru

hlt.d h ffi6
hElped

Cftfg6hwlE
trwSlgdG$

hpr<$d
$hbUy MoF
khFd?

hvdd4Nw
Stilhtlnpsd
$bhuryVG

$hd

nq@rk

k]htu
Ttr t&It&To
It: PNfdo'ITE

tudolrrutnft
BWd&
hdrturh€
Nd BcOir&.d

b a hdBnCtn!
hl8ffir

CsE llLr,o.
CohsdyPli
wdlwhhtu

&lls!Eftb

fth*dtuw
Nd&slMy

r$lrEdtt
Appnctu d

U.{i'dyApdH

G Sbddd.ltu!
k86

kIlqEEfis

$gnfratBkh
AtumOrna

klhG
CMlyIh

ft(i(bC6ffi?

kllraP66.lly
gttulqlllh

c\eb8whFe

Ptu BnRtP.d
Iorftk d

PlaGhg

AETrE hvbo.ly
lhfifid Stdfonl
H&$nrt A A

hftOf SuMdrl

k Ttc lR Wa

ffi8,hk
Adddthps,

7.GnaUEICr
Soidm l{odd

FPASIP Dnft AIR
p,p,3AJ.l b4

ItlEic

rifriid.d wvol&He (fEIn' pp,1"m b l- 7} D!IR, pp 3A$23,3r+30.) Th. p.t6 itrdlod ln dE bblr rboveffiin lherddiltnlyds o{ 0E pffitlal inp.6

Addidfrlly, dr 2012 W# Addandm indudg a CM dbd.dd ot h@ Ur ch.nts b tlE wlE Irddd€ aFb d dp PPASP pnid @ld hrv. *f, s@ 6 16 inp*b b GHG nisbE and c{tmE chrnge ehd @mpucd b th.

riradf wdrld h& th. !.f a flc LnFf b GHG ankds! rnd dimb dur. wh6 6sF .d b rh€ IPASP tr# d .ndyrrd in tlE Uttr EIR wlth implftin of th€ idlowint rdut don rsG fr@ dE I?ASP EtR
MM3A+I,MM3A,a-2aMM3A,+2D.(W6ilrndE tl€Adddrdun pp,{{r-{52.)

S.! Erhibit 3 tor dbdsim ot th. CrrdGtm Phu I priffs oriltency wlth eMS/ €ff.i.rry poltckr tf rlE IPASP thrt ruy b. relsi b GHG alrrlN rnd dttub ch.nge lhp.e GxtL 3, pp. ?.29)

l,{i6t lionlr6|G
. MM3Ar-la
. MM3Ar-lb
r MM3A*1
r MM3A"2-2
. MM3A.+2.
. MM3 ",t 2b
. MM38.+1.
. MMS.+tb

tutu
WiA impl66btiq of th€ rbo!. lmlE id6li6€d ir lhc FPASP ElR. Wats AddddW .nd Wgtlard Segle Addddq C.r.l6@ Ple I wodd d hry€ rny 

'w 
signiffdt or iubBbntidly lMe *vd CftG

615162l.ff{dld lltEllt in tutr.tdr b tL Drtu6ibdb(dtu g l51B).

Crllkshrc Phue I (Matrtiil natrch Phse 1 lri l0)
CBQAEffipfn.d Sksdini^tABlyds

€&
D.c€nb6,2019

Page 744

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



& TIAZARDS AND IIAZARDOUS MATBRIALS

Envircmqtal
Issu€ Ar€

hMd

hefd
tutBhdE
NagF6d

ShutyHm
$FtuthFGd

Sub.bdrUy leE radrtt; k

TbP!q.deIh
P.drftWhihT.

hrF bfnOtTh.

cskl P,.& O

wfliwMtu

ftry{tum
Nol &$bndqty

MUSrEd By
Appl€don Of

lhrdnly Applid
DillopmtPoX&
GMfrt

hwk

futrdlftsh
AH6mftft

C.6al Phn O.
CoMdtyPler
WlhWhidrft

lipiffcntffil

Dhsd hTlr
bmftprd
!dftCrsd

PLnOr ZohE

lffiCgtu
EIfuTft& &A

btC$bdnu

ThThemWr

Mtuttutu
AdddglmFb

6,llEd! rid
ltedru
Mfri.h wcld

FPASDEftEIR
p?, 3A.&l lo €5

a, Qdtsa
tl8ni6dh.zrd
to lhe plblk d tl*
6vtM
dtdgh th.
Mtlnets rqo&
ue, c dirpcl ol
haardG
mEi.L?

pp 3A&19 b -rc NO No No No No No No NO NftEquind

b. c6Fa
6ignif6nt haard
b dE public q dr

dtrdth
l€&rbly
fwHeupaet
atrd*ddht
odidd
involvinS ttb
rd@of
hrzrdu
@i6lale itu the
mviffit?

pp.3A.&A b-2 No No No No Nb No No No MMSA}?
3A'91

C.6st.lotrG Ph.u. I (Mrnglnl n.nch Ph..s I Lot 10'
CBQA Exmptton .nd Slffltnlng Amly*t

a19

Dlccdbcr, 20f9

Page 745

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvlrcMmtal
bsu€ Area

tuFhvolw
WSttul

$bhfltyMm
Sittrotbvsa
tobere[yYd

hpo.ba
ft4thgk

frrkkbrTo
ftbdAL

PIGI Ot Wl'id TtE
&+qw@ld&
bdftdH.E
Nd hDido.d
hrhEnOrIl€

ZmhgAds
MPbDe
CMryh
wfrffih

Tft.ftdd tut Wil
Ndhs1tuf.Iy

MdFH By
Aptqhq

UddyAppH
hdopdatPolk

Or 9.nd.!6 frl

htudy Adoptd?

qgdnfit gItG h
AhsmOrft

Zshtd4
Gd!LnG
Comdtyh
Wlh Wh.fr fr!

g8dhtCf-Sl

CudLBEhp.6

kdhft.
kmPqd
FqtLC6Kil

hGht

lbuf,.dryht
&16frt aA

kIq$!ddd

hftmWe

Ad&ah8hpd.

l.nadrsd
llurdd
M.dd. Wordd

IPASP Itraft EIR
pp.3A.&1b€6

s EdtlladN
qdsdoc6
hrdl! hrardou!
dady
hrardou
mtdialt
6ubabnq6
wdc wilhin (F
qurt6 mih of rn
alltingor

pp. il.&3r b -3 No No No No No No No No MM:I4,8{

d.8et@hdoa
.ih which i6
lndud dalira
of haadru
dEirlsib
6rpil.dplmet
bG@ffit
Cod.56dd
6,9,6j1.5 End, a a
r6ulL wdd it
qdFr sistrlflonl
hurd lo ths
public d 0E

pp,3A.&Z b-?E No No Nd No No No No Wil,R
3,{E€b
3At-3c

e rorrpdlrt

.lryGtlrd@

pp. il&r6 b -rt No No No No No No No NO Necql)K

cleekrlotr€ Ph.r. 1 (M.ndni
CEQA Exemptiq ild SkEfilining

Ranch Phr.o I Lot 10)

Atultrh De<snla, 2019

-4G

Page 746

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircuqtal
lrsue Area

el@
GIEEhvolE
Ndllgdld

Slb.b&tlyMG
9@hF6?

hvolw$k
gStutlhpx6q
grldddly Mw
S"@Impra?

Sub.hU

Rlquidn N.w

Vdtou6?

&lkElK
hi&hlbrTo
ft l4dOrrn.

kftrl On wrehft
PridWddBe

leEdrhr &n
NdldtDldd

h a Hor BIROrnw
htgAfrt

G3s.l !h! ot

It.i Ar Bfruh To
Tft. Md ltar Hll
M LSut{hbuy

MHtadry
Applolid Of

UdtulyApplH
h/doPldPdtu
OM&TI4

&Eh
Padssly ft.pFd?

&lhffi

Sl8tuEft$h
APddEnOrIl.
htAds
CaEd t'l$ or
Coffiiiyh
Wlhmdnr

P.qdhhk?

&]hbblly
Std6anrtr"ft

DklhTc
Prtq nRftqrd
ld1h.Cd6l
Ph!C6dlt
PhOrZd&s

ld.ndf.d $gdfd
E&*tut AA

h[qg$ddi.l

ThftmW6
Cd6.4&Nw
D+nnldToXrE

Mdt d6M.M

AHsr&6d
lLrardos
Mrdd. Wo{fd

fPAsP Dr.fr 8ln
pp.3A.&l br5

ruch a phb d
bFn rdopd,
withinffi fril6 of
. pubuc rirpd d
public e .iryort
would 0*p.oJcl
t6ult in a dfaty
h.a.d ft( p.opl€
r€ldln8 q
worklnS in the

L ld. prqd
witldn Oa viddty
of a piv*
.r*lp, Nuld the
pKftt r6ult in a

dety lbard Id
popLEcding*
woikint6 tlf

pp. 3A&18 b -19 No No No No NO No NO Nmnqulnd

& hFtr
inplffiadonof
or phFiolly
inffie wlthan
adopr.d
€rot4y
6poe plan fi
66t*y
evrfftld Dls?

Fhery No No No No No No NO No N@FquH

cr..krton. Phasc I lMilglnl Rrnch Ph.r. I Lot 10)

CEQA Ermptio and StrsilldnSADlyti!
41-

D$mbs,m9

Page 747

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvAomatal
bsue Am

hhpd
ChtE hdF
k$lntfi@r

$hiLlyMc
$Srfiatlrybc
SubfrbUy Mc

tuEl

R.quhgNs

hhEftb
Th.t&hh To
tuPr#Grtu

ft*dwd}
ffilbtHiE

hrtuEn&e
hkuAc64
kdlL&o

nd &hl.tTo
lLPmldTh.lWil
Nd 8. $b.h.6tly

Mmf..d It
AppbhOa

Udidfily Applkd

OrSbndtugrE86

lifdol GftG h
AKEBftTb

Zq6f kh

Cmdlyh

bLhhr?

Csd0drtOFSIE

Dh*dhft
hcuhtsEd
Porftkl

H$ezdg

AcTR&6dNly
rhtrd$riltd
EllS:ht a A

HIO($bffil

hhmWG
Clrdtu, tuNoP

Hd&froGH

MdghM

&Earn$d
H&edd
ttrlddr Wodd

FPASHIEIR
gp,3ASl b€6

lL Expep.opL
a3h@tor
sltntftd rirl of
16, inhryd
d€lh lftolYing
wildhnd fim,
irdudlig*h@
wildlrnd3.c
edFKdlo

wh@r6id@
eiffii{d

pp, 3A.St8 b -19 NO No No No NO No No No Nom.!qqk€

Crc.krton. Ph.t€ I
D.{sbd,2019

4-

Page 748

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviromatal
I${eArea

Dot,itpo..d
Cht6hdF
N€* 9Fin6l hvolviryId

Sgtrstlnpeor
Suldnti.l

rqdtuENs

Trr PrjdCft
P.ElAffidft
hdhbE

hshffiOrn'r
ZdftEA(h!
hln4O

w$hlmh

&tu€Eb
ftrt&htuTo
ft4drtdwill
NCLM'

u6td ty
AppffiOf

qMtu
hFh

k]ktu
ndw@ Nd

gstu8!t(th
ahmO'ft

hlho
CMtytu
wthwludTrr

&khbuy
Itdht CrNf"$r

Diidhlfi.
Pdd &B frr?.'rd
F6ftCdEnl

Pluftht

lhEHStdfdt
EftrbTlt l,AA

bltqsMil

hktRwE
h[.4 AENw

Mldtffilr6E

L ltard..r!d
H.5d@
Mei.la Would
d.frld

FPASP Ddlt BIR
pp.3A-&l b"36

ING!dG

DEIR.tro rmly6 Inl|P.d 3.4,&7 r.l.d to nqqullo .nd ydor @nkol. (S.c pp. 34.&33 b.35, MM 3A.&7.)

Addadum &o iEluds a dboEton o( how prdd .rodtmt would hrve th€ eme q rrduc€d t@rd! snd ht4.dN NEtrb lmtc shd MF cd lo dF IPASP pK*d a anlyzld ir thc 201 1 En *lth ilPhrhbtid d tlc
ioDowing rdtit tld ffic ft6 0E FPASP BlR: Mlrl 3A.&A MM 3A.&5, MM 3A+7. (W8datd Eatle Addddnn f,P 4j3J7 )

Mid!ilioMdG
MM 3AS2
MM3A},1
vM3A.8{
w#3
MM:tA.&3b
MM3A&3c
vM3A.&7
MM3D.&1i
w3a&1b
MM 38.16&
MM38.l63b
MMitB&s.
MMSr&sb

Cond!de

wiri r#bd.n * tu ,h' milidddn lrq{rE lddritu in tb IPAS m W.b AddRdlm rd Wdthnd E s:h Addsd@ Crcldc Pl& l wuld nd ts€ ily w si4nifid q $blbnthlly mrc ffi hu& ard

Cnekrton. Phr& 1
Dcmbcr,2019

-,4!

Page 749

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmetal
bsue Are

hRo'pd
OEu6hwln
\tw9!dn6t

hFda
$t ailyMN

9Fl86thP66
$lrEdrlyk

M

equlbtNd

vdffi?

&lMre
frtkhtuTo
ft4dOft

lldorrWffift
Pfridtwold B.

bldllah
Ndldr Di*16.d

hr k 6ll(lrTl'.
h!€ A.b!

GdE llb\ot

Hlh Wldd d.

&ture

tuF+dturHIl
Nor & i$dnEly

Htdr.Ed It
Applicdd O(

rhishly Appl$
hdbFtPoltu
O.hd.dfrt

&rkffi

gtdffot EdRb h
APdo.m&Th.

klPln&
c'llMryrLn
Wil WhidrTtE

lhidbcdFr?

etu6bffily
gftr@tOf.Slts

Cuntilehp.ft

DktdhIE
Ha mPEldrtd

Plu&Zoh!

l,Ldf.dfutrdt
ETh6Tbt AA

kdto{$Ddi.l

hkBWa
h6.4eNw
MTotlrF

t ltr.rd. ild
llr.rda
MitaLh Wddd

IPASP Drelr m
pp. 34.&l to -36

ia

C{.Liton. Ph.r. 1 (M.nBini nrn.h Ph... I Lot 10}
CEQABrmpd@ild Stdnlhlng Anrlyllt

+
D@tb6,Zll9

Page 750

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9. I{YDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Cr..Latona Ph!8a 1 (Mrnglnl Rarch Ph.!e 1 Lot l0l
CEQA Empdd od S[edinin8 Adlytir

.1$

Envircmstal
Issue Area

tugahdE
NdCgd8gt

ffibllyk
khFe?

gttfuthp.G
orSlhetLly MG

$btrl

lqidick

Ih{kffiTo
Tlt!?FldOft

PIEI On Whthfk
h6dwold8.

Noth Di!d6.d
h.hERqft

Cdi..l PL^ O
CoffiityPh
wthwhid tu

ThitklhlbTo
ftPnolKitutWill
Nol & giLhddly

Midtd By
Apphtdof

t ilhlt^pplkrd
DatLpffit

r&GSbrtu3
Thri lLw16

AEIhRnft$

ctturlltdh
A PdBmGTh.
h6A&,

eThrnhli.ly
Itdnod O{t-Sl

Dked hTh.
kid mPcfsld
PqTkM

hGh!f,

huHstdht
Etr dTbl&A

k&OtS.tebl

nmftRW-

Mdr.d6MsG
AffithtsG.

9. Hydelodl sd
WrtuQ|rdltt,

fPAgPDr.ft m
pp.3A.9l b.61

e. Vioble 3ny
w.t6qsllty
st rdardrqw6b
di6dBrSp

pp.3A.t24to-28 No No No No lfo No No MM3A$I

b. Subhbny
del*
tround6E
auppliar c tntGflt
db6bntidly *i0r
$oundeH
rKtri8esh thrt
tlFrwdld ba,
H d.fidl in aquI6
vdwd a

lowainE d th.l@l
tr@dw.tE iibL
ldd (et,, tlE
ptuduaddraEof
plFlsdrg Hrby
wdb wiltd drop b
r l*.1 wl'lch wddd
dsuppod dilhg

pLmad usfoa

Pp.3A.%5lo fl NO No No No No No NO No NcnquN

Dec6b6,2019

Page 751

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvimM6tal
Isse Alea

bnqd
ChtdhwlF
NilCsniint

$bblylk
khF6?

ErdhthF!
qq$frilyMc

khF6?

Subrbbl

Xquldu k

&ftFEtuts

TlErudOIfrE
MftwhdrTh!

EdRtW@ldb

NotBoDl#
hrMmfrft

hEAda
kal ll-! Or

&hnre
hikkhTo
Tlc Poi.sIut WU
Nd&tub66$ly

Mturd By
Apptodd Of

Unlio.Ely AppH

Thrthwk

&tuffi
Thll w4 Nd

saldfdtg&h
AhROTte

Z6b8Ad6,
C€6i fhOr
tuttlh^
Whmldrrlt

4{bcadsf

1i!ni6c&t dFSb

CuDuHwhFG

Ddhtu
fthmRrp.d
kfth

tuezdts

kdff.d:iEniffdt
Ef,Gfui A!A

tdillOf toMud

hftmWfr

Mtltd6k

9. Hyftbryrd
WdqQuslty.

FPNlffiffi
pp,3A,'.1b€l

c. Su!.bdrly
.lu thc qi6ting
dniMtt piffin of
[h€iEore,
iftludingthrdgh
thedk8tis ol th.
o@daffi
6dc,tnr
ftMd whldr
would tult in
rutEbndrl@im
or dlbd6 otr- s
otf.iE?

pp,3A.S24b-24 No NO No No No No No MM iIA,}I

d. SuDEhtillly
alEr tt€si6dng
daiog! p.h of
the dte o. d4
lncludltr8 tkouth
the ,lkrd6 of tlE

or dwr, q
rub.hndrIy
lf,oo* lhe rab d
,munt of lufie
rutrdlinaffi
whldl muld Gult
inflmdinto'd

pp.3A.$2E b-7 No NO NO NO No No No No MM3A,92

Cr..&.ton. Pha.. 1 (MenBinl Rinch Ph-. 1 Lot 10)
CEqA Exnpdo^rrd Skordi.tlngAdlFb Dsnber,2019

4

Page 752

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviromal
Igue Arq

Clnl6 hwlw
t&w $grddont

$MyMoE

hdtrENd
$reilhps

grbdh&l

eqddrg Nd

ktutu
tut&khTo
ft! bdOrThe

tudlOn MhhTlE

NhhlW
h r Pda gnG Th.

bnvAdq
G6alft&e
CqBudyh

hfteEftF!
llEtk&qlbrTo
Th. Pnoidfrr Wil
Nd &gi.dlt

M$grt d 6t
Appliolim0

UddyAppH

Pdi*Gg:ndr&
ftdkh

enE SfiEc
frrweM

grtutgkh
AtumfrnE

hiryAe!
HhG

wtthffift
ki{bCffit?

kflEhdlly
srd0EtOfi'*!

DissdhIlE
hmhprd
forftH

ne*ht

hdldgtnmsl
Ufd TtEt & a

htuMWd

MrEd fo n.E

Mr&.Mtu

9. H,'lhlotor &d
W.hQsnry.

FPASDT.ft IIR
pp.3ll"*l b-sr

6 GaEa
seibqbdno{
wrEwhiahnuH
dc!€d d€ dFdty
ofdittBq
pLsldrM
mE &rinage
ryrh or pidide
rub6hnti.l
.dditi@1re

pp.3A92&.2

ALocgGaly
AadborE

lntiffiuE
MND

No No No No NO WS.FI
w3A.C2

f.othwir
iut{&ntblly
d6r.dcft
oudlF?

Setffiuypp.
ilA,9t b{t

No No No No No No No Nmrcqtrd

g. Pt @hoahg
*ilhia.l(xlybr

mppcd dr
fcd6dIl6d
Htard Boud.ry
dFlood lBur.re
Rrb Map ordtE
Roodl@rd
d.liclimlN?

F34.9,15 No No Nd No No No No NO Noe &quid

h nl$silna
1d}Fr food
hazrde

p.hs NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NO N@r.qdrd

Cft€krtose Phr.€ I (VraCni Ranch Phil. I Lot 10)

CEQA E6ptinildSEnlinlnttulydt Ds$6,2019
47-

Page 753

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envirmqrlal
lssue Alea

bl}!PG.d
ch!6hvolE
k Sl6dimt

htEttMe
Sltrdhl hFd

dStuEnyUd
S.@hp.c?

Impdha
R4rdfttk

blFbq

Tft*kMTo
tulhldGTt!

hlOrWrhft
Irotdwodd&
letdtuthE
Nd hDiido..d

h. dorm(lrTl:
Zdtk4
kdlkrC

m&Wl*h d.

&thatftcE

k h*dIh$wn
Nd&$hddly

xltErd Ey
ApplobOf

UdHyAppH
hd+'dlt

|ffiorShddi
tuthb

AEThelftS

gtdSfitEfsh
AHam&tu

ZonhS Adh!

MiyPlar

$!niktr-*

DdhtlE
tr.mhFEd
lorTtECffil

Fn G Z6hg

hfrStntui

Htd$bdnfl

NdfuAITh
rln1lEmw!
Cd6.d, e Nil
kndToB*

M6!.hkG

9. ttdFld8r rnl
weQldlry,

rPASP DnIl BIR
pp 3A.$1to 61

wuld iurpcdc a
Edtdflood
0d8?

Expe p..pbd
ffitoa
.itni6dnl rig oI
b* i{uyadalh
lnvotvhg doodirts,
ldludrEaodng
G E.alt oa ttE
ICluc oa, hvc o.

pp. 3A.9.€ b -t{ No No No M No No No No MM3A"94

Nddmnl No No No No NO NO NO Nd N@re+ilnd

cr..Lstona Pha4 I (M.ndrl
CEQAEFFiqNdSHnlinint

Ruch PhNE I Lot 10)
AMlyri! I]wtrlbq,Dlg

&

Page 754

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvircMstal
Irsue Area

chnF hvolE
Nd 9gilt6t

hp*or
tubfienyMG
*fthprG?

hvotdg NR
Slrntuihp.d

tr$*ddhlyMG

SN

hdhsk

EKEffi

ft.rydDT1€
h..dGffidrh
h+dwdh
Ldrh.th

hrkSnGft
tuf Adq

C-Hl Er! or
Cffiaynr

kkEk

TlsPEtd'}dWil
Not 6.9rlfrli.Iy

Mdtald 8y
Appbbd

hhlyAppH

Mkwh
PFrdrdyMad?

gEdhtEkh
AftdERGTh.

hBA&!
CdFd thO
CoMuliyEd
Wift mihTr

hjdbCffi[

$tffionlGtu

Dihr4d hft
hb EnkrPrGd
hftM

tu0hiry

Idadlbdliktu
Eft.FfuT &A

htOftud.l

TrmtlE IlRWE
Cdf.d, eNd
hiddTolfr*

m6ghk

9. Eydtlo$t sd
Wa!!Qullty.

FPA5PDfIfrER
pp.3A.'t to-51

DtMde

folldin8 nirigrrion 'Eu€ lrm rhe FPASP EIR MM 3A.9-1, MM 3A,te MM 3A9A MM 3A94 (W.CIdd E Ele Addsdull PP. 15&152.)

Mitt.li@Mau*
MM3A,+1
MM3A,9-2
MM3A"94
MM 3B.9ra
MM3ts.9-1b
W3A3tr
MM 3A3.1b
MM389&
MM3D.gnb

Cqrdudd
Wtdr ihplsmnb[on o( th..bove ndtitldon @c ldendf ed in UeFPASP BlIt, WeE AddsdrE.d Wdlrtd ErgteAddstdw Cabtft Ph.F 1

*ft, nrarib rhn,d. /Griddilf.61516fl- ts wNld lr rdlrlnnv lt* d!rt60nt iffi trt ile culir lodEm*s d ib ei€ (cuftldiG s 1518$.
wqdd trd h.ve ily rew rl8nlf,ont or ebd.ntidly mm4t@ hldtobs/ and

Cr.el.lon. Phi.e I lM.n3ld R.n.h Phr.c I Lot t0)
CEQA Brehpdd 6nd SMlining An.lFi!

4'
lM.r.2019

Page 755

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10. LAND USE ANDFLANNING

Creekrtone Fh.s I

"5G

Envircmmtal
lsue Area

ehPd
Chs6 hElE
N.PSttrot

tuEllyMd
*d66tt'Fb

tud

RAnnWk

tulkhlb.To
kffito!Th.

H&mdftc
frci.AwdB.

sthhH
h i EbrmOnnE

G.@lPh,&
MtyPLn

Th€ffiTlutWi[
Nor kikt.Iy

MifpLd Ey
App!trOt

Gffih

9tdd6t EfhG h
Abmoitu

Zdhgffi@

CoMtyh

sittrotffiF

Dixil$.dhft
hmPFpd
lortuh
PbrCmnly
PhOhg

hffi$gdG6t
EIi4r ftA & A

lbdr crl&t&nEl

hftmWG
hH,ek

Mtt8tuk

lO Lnd (h. [d
PlrMhg. Wdld

IPASPhtffi
pp. 3A.101 b -r,

a. Phyd.dly
dlvHee
*blbh.d
oMunlty?

p.3A.lG29 No No No No No No No No NNr€qrk.d

b, Corfid s&
lny lppllobL Lnd
u* ph& poucy,
orEtubtim
ol an
.8scy with

Ju.ildLdoos
dE proi*
(hduding, butffi
[hihd bdE
gmlplo
sFdncphe 16l
ffibl prc8Ba d
zdintordiane)
edoptad Id dE
pup*ot
ivoidtng 6
midgrdngan
@vi@m6lel
€ttu?

pp. 34.(ts34 b 4l No No No No No No N@raquia

Ds6bq,2019

Page 756

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvaoMatal
bsuc Ar€a

htubl
Cl5frhrlw
kgttrd

tnpdq
tuffiltXc

lEdffdtfrF!
agffirElyMd

shd

R.quti: k

kTEE Eft.b

Tt.ho;Ftonr
PartlIfrmft

Prcidw@u&
btsdTbtkw
NdhDkld.d

h.H6 BROttu
hgatu,

GrEdn& c

TIE hidltd wil
Nd bnrbsdJly

mugd Dy

Apdbdmd
Uddy Apdld

OrS5ffifrr

&IEkb

Sagdtrd{ EeGh
AhMfrIl:

hnlgetuv
CaElfl&&

Wi0r WhthTh.

AnDePohlrly
S4rtuOfi.gn

ClNLdElnFb

P&mhlprrd

HsGhE

ldF[t d5Silhl
E,5dlh& tuA

n6dt tr t hond.l

hftmwa

ffidrddkffi
&drEfuhFe

10, lad t i. ed
Plbtdng Wodd
$cmts

lPAg Dr.tt BIR
pp.3ArGl b+

c Con0id witft
ahy rpplkrbl€
h.Ubt
@vtdoPlirn
or Dhral
otNnity

PP, 3A.348 b 44 No No No No NO NO NO No N@FquH

d. Coftibure ro
dEdMy of e
odldngurban
6E?

Nd reIsnnq al5o
aFolemSqrlh

of U,S. HithMySO
Speddc Pbn

PrqedsC'EQA
findi€s o( Fd
&dSbffitoa

Ovaidi.E
CNldd.tirypp.

No No NO No No No No

Craekrtona Phe. 1
Dec!nb6, 2019

-51-

Page 757

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvircMmtal
Isue Ana

tuFhwlE
MwSlEtut

Sub.bblly V@
khF6?

Stdidhpxb
n $!6hb[y MoE

tubd
tobrbnul

R+!hg rew

11€ kqldefi.
Pml&ffift.

koi.riwdd &
bEdTrtbw
NdhDLld

hB HormOnTb
hiryM4

Cssll k! G

ftPn*ntufil
Mhghilt

SdpHty
Applj&OJ

UtuyapplH
fidopGtPdid6
OrM.drtu

k€36

fudddEft<! h
A hqmor TIE

KJhG
Cddyh
WiS lll'idr llr

BbCGbbt?

3!tuldf$b

hdhft
PtumPEprd
ldItFCdad

PhrChltr

Idad8d Crdtnt
Elt cbht AA

hllOftuMd.l

Cd0.d,hNo*
olhEdn dTolt E

Ad&*{qhFt.

r&hdEed
lhuhlli W@kl

;FSPMW
!t 3A.rGr b {

I)fudft

ad udvoldruc nE p.t6ltdhbd in 0E hbh sbov. @trindprel{et rnrlFie of the pobtttl irnFe

lhp.cBto l.nd uF wh6 mpcd b dE FPA* p(i$ s @lyz.d in th. mll EIR (Wctbd f.de Addode pp.1,6y.e.)

scpbdhbry dM b 0Elol!6 nmA.6 Sp€ctEc Plin and thc Fohom Pl.n AE Sp{ddc Phn Cmunlty Goiddine

'tts€4dgot$etb@npldcthesouthS.s.lfbHCP,whtchbrctdadlnthoFPASPEIR.DuttlnSoulhStarlBbHCPird!€kvdbdEocld@PlslPridbrdeth.Cltydldmlchfbpdticip.EindE HCP
.nd dr pr*c itE k dtti& o{ d€ bdrdrlg of rhc prepo..d HC? plrn f. (Se Sourh Safto HCP, aviLHe d httFJirw$uth6.drp.e/slicpdrF#nMthtnl 0d idrd Jur 13, f0191) !n my ddL tlE
Cr.Gtu@ Ple r Prqd w@ld d imp.d€ dr implffibtiG ol lhe Sdth Snadnb HC!.

Mld!.d6Mole
. MM3B.I0-5

CftlBb(

Wirh ihplftim oI iE .tbr fdtit lii @u6 ldrndn.d ln du rPASP 8tR. Wah Addlndq ,nd W€tLtd Erdc Add6der CrEb@ PIE 1 wdld d hrw rny H riFltidnt t iblbnti.lly mw s6c Lnd e imFc€
(GdddL6 81n6al M wdH it r6ull ln rnv |wdolfiont iffi th.t ae Gulisr b dE Droled o! ib ait. (Guideliu, S 1516:)).

Cre.Lrlonc Pha 1 (Mrngint n.!ch Phaaa 1 Lot 10)
CBQA BsFdsdd SffiIining Atdysb

-52-

Dcenbs,z)f9

Page 758

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvircMotal
b6ue Aru

c}t&8a hvdF
N.w Sttsinot

$bh&[y Ms
SlmhFtu?

$gffithp*
6 SoldbtHly MoE

kh!p.d?

9l'h6d

n qunht N!*

E]Ere
tut&h6rbtTo
nEPKi{Gn

PntfriWdU B.
hldThn&*
MhDhLcd
hiHrmOft

kld4o.

&mffi
tut&IMTo
fthidTirtWin
Ndh$ffiIy

Yfiprd Ey
Aptldo.rOl

UdtdyApdld

OrSbdrd.Tbt
hcb

n tWGNot

$Atr6ttuh
APtumorft

ZdhtAd@
Cft.dh0

Wifr mchttc

5lgd06t Oflgb

tuulrdEhp.G

Dkedhtu
h mftEp.nd

ror trF 6c..1
PI&Cimdty
PLn ehhE

Id6H6.d Si8trdt
E trb Th.i A A

h[ot&kd

ThTte UWa

Mfuek

lLldml
f,GWsld

IPAS Dnft EIR
pp 3A.7-1 b 4

. R6dtlrthelq
drvdLbility
d a lwnnimel
raacih{
mdd b€ oa v.lue
b0r.e$i&.id

pp. 34.7-36 b .38 No No No No No No No No w3A.?q

b. R-trltinllE
16oamiLulhy
drtEI)"
ihF.@trdEd

lc.t8@lpl.e
spedff. phn q
odEbnde
d.n?

S.r a (r) rbov. No NO No No No No NO No ftd a (r).bove

11. MINERALRESOURCES

crclkrtone Phre I (M.ngtnt R6nch Phas. 1 Lot 10)
CEQA EEnptiq &d Sffilining Andy6is Di(6bd,2019

5'

Page 759

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviromqtal
l$ue Area

hMlal
ClsFhwlw
N6w Sbnlfsl

Subtubuy M@
*rehFG?

gignrfielhF!

S.c!fnp6?

ffitlzl

R6quidqtu

IL PfttedOIE
PrNd orr Whkh Tl*

P!*{wdld E

MTh.ttl.E
MKHd

h.hdDn&frc
Zdt$Ace!

kdk!&

ftryGtfrtWn
Ndh&bdily

MH,.H By

APPlleOf
Udody ApdH

&d@dHld.t
Orb&!&Ih.t

$lnifiilttuh
AHdmOft

Z6iryAde

Cointutyh
WhmdTL

ggildttr-SlE

Dk hTlE
h.mhFd
rsftki

hOht

rhffiggdh
Etftcbtut AA

nddtOf $rbdrl

hftmWE

hh.dToh

rtrteYdc
Ma*f hp.cE

lI.I\'d!HI
RffiW@ld

FPASPDnftEIR
pp. 3A,7-t b "{0

It*lrd@

cl.y) IEMiE siFilidnr.nd wwidrble, G8f& pp. l{9 b 1- 95, DEIPr pF 3A,7-y b -3&)TL Fg6 irdiod ln dr bbL above dbln dE Elwill sBlysb d Ur Fhdll lrnp.s,

Addiriddly, ihe2012 WaH AddadM indudga dddision of low U6 chsn8Eb tlE W f*ilit'Bdp6 of tl.E FPASP prq.t woold h.w drffin 16 imFG b ds.l r6drc whd mpil.d bdE FPASP priql-

d&oElm ot hfl pmrd.ngdffits would h.w th.9r or r.drrad lnp-{g b dE l raG wlH Mp.Ed b thcFPASP p.otd a.uly..d in thE Z}ll 8lR (W6{,.nd Prtle Addclrdue p. {.(a)

Mldgdmit lEl
. NmtEquid

CotrdBim

wti implgmbrion of tJE abo€ d{dgetion ffi iddtitu itr llc FPAP EIR, W.u Addddu4 ittd W€tlerd Srgb Add€rdua Crelcrba Ph.c I wNld @l heve dy ns 3lgdnd d aubabntily M wE€ mindrl
ibErkaGridCilE s tsl62t- il dibrih (CuiddiE € 15183I

Cr..krlone Phiie 1 (Mtnglnl R6nch Phrre t Lot 10)
CEQA Exmptin lnd StsenlinintAndysb

"*
D.66.r,2019

Page 760

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



12. NOISE

Ci.ek.lonc Phrr. 1 (Mantlnl Rrnth Ph&. 1 Lol 10,
CEQA Ex6pti6.nd Shnillnlng Aolydt

-59

Envlrcmqtal
IE ue Area

OBU6hdE
l**Srtrdt

$hdyge

&dffi

**ni6dntb?Ibd
SbblutMre

$l{idd

R.qdh3k

fra&IMTo
IEPdelOrnE

Pd orr WhldrllE
4ctWd&

tdtidkE
NdhDffi

h. &b ffiOrThe
AnhgAde

Cds.lg& Ot
tudlyrbr
Hth Wtddr tlr

Iltryrlutwill
Nd &glMuitly

Mldtdty
App[&Ot

hift'dy ApplH

(t So^d.trtfut
kEk

gitdtnt tlk h
APddmOft

&fi8Ada
Cds.l PLnO!

kidbCc*ht?

$Fihtoff-58

Di$*d hTfi.
kmkprd
tuftC.s.l
n4C@Mit
tuGhg

hdfdgGdld
Eidn&ta

bnO(iMl

frrlt!mWE
h6.{,ek

Xlt rhthc

12. Mis, Wodd
th. tEq.d ndlt

PPASP D6't BIR
pp. 3A.11-1 to €2

r, Expoaw o{

PemEbOl
86@lim of nols
leef! inqcol
tbnd.rd!
sblkhdin dE
ldltedpLn
6 nol* ordlM@
or apPlioble
sEnd.lds oa oths

PP.3A.11-50 b€l No No No NO No No No No wnll4

b.Bxptr d
FrsG tod
ghmliond

tltudboft
vibdddG
Eroundbdne Fb.

pp. 3A.l l-1, to -35 No No NO No NO NO No MMitA.11€

c Alubahntirl
P.@6t
in@einambiot
nobe laeL in de
Prcict ekintty

dirdnS wtthout

pp.3A.lr-36 to{8 NO No No No No Nro No No MM3A.1l{
3A.lr-5

D<fib6,2(}19

Page 761

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmqtal
Isue Ar€a

tutFh*
kgtdd

SubldlyMG
gfddtbpdor
ffiltyMN

$b6hEl

nqdluk

& It€E BIftcb

Th. hq*ten4
P'ml6 WhlhnE

P.*qwdldE

Not h DkL..{'
ha &1or En&flF

hht Ado(
CrsilPLe e
CMtynn

enEEEf,cd
frl&MTo
IcrydlfdM
Not & S6#^trty

Md,dBy
Appled

Udiornly ApplH

Oriad.diTtd
HmBqr

g!trdl [ltcb h
AfuMhft

htActu!

tulrynr
trhWhhTh.

fiiFihOlf.3E

Ddhft
hmkF.d
D6Th.GaRl

Pl&GZ6hS

hffi9!dd6r
f,ft.b1bi tu A

btqSubtudd

ildftRW6

lr. NotR W6ld
dr Dndd ntl

FPASPDTdt EII'
pF 3A,11-1 to €2

d. A5UMH
hmPo.iry or
pgiodic lnow in
anhi6trciE
lsds tn [c prctd
v ld nlty .bove
lwdsai.tirg
witlput tlc
PNF?

pp. 34.11-z b S NO NO NO No NO NO No wu.ll-l
3Al1-3

e Fq.pri*
l@led wirhin m
airpdl land e
plan or wls€ ludr
a plft hae rct b(n
adoprd, within
iw hil€ ofr
puulc airport or
public u.€ atpo*,
muld the Foi.rt
apcdp€opt4
r6lCirud
worllryln OE
proi(tffi b
s6lwmhe
lev&?

pp. 34,1r-Z atd
3A11{9

No No NO No NO No N*r.quH

cteekitone Phtre I
CEQA D6rmb6,20l9

-5&

Page 762

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envitmqtal
Iasue Arq

tuFhhlE
N.w gttr.d

Subdedaly M@
ggn6dthFc d
Sub.hEUyMN

S{b.blirl

n q&ingk

eTlR E6rb

TtE Prid&tu
Pdaloltffik

Pr+{ Wqildk
hdhllbE

C6Fjk! Ot
CoMdtyR&

erkel&.b

fth*dn$wil
Not&Sbldy

Mdtd It
AppleOa

UnIdnlyAp0d

ch&M
HrEk

AETlRE666

SlsnhtElkh
ARkAnOrft

htHq
GdElPbnO
Cdudvna
HhHddrft

Pfr*dLffit?

klh@Pohuly
gtdblOl6E

Ekm@
Forftknl

H0OrhtE

Ieffisktur
trk!Ix* &A

ht0t,Mi

nDlh.mW6
C6rifi.d, Aa Nil

M{8.hM.Gre

12 IYdr Wdd
th. fFdtd tBlt

RSIHU
pp.3A.U-1b{a

f, Fc. Fqd
wt$tn thc ddnfry
of a priv.ts
.ldip, euld the
p(idqpo..
p.opl Ed.llt$ tr
m(lint in d€
p(*d@to
a6iEiokc

W.34.11-n NO No No No No No No Nftroqxn.d

Crectrlon. Phil. 1 (M.nlltrl Rar.h ph$e 1 Lot 10)

CEQA EEtrplid.rd sE8ilini^g Aolytb Decanber,2019

-57-

Page 763

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envimmstal
IsmeAru

Cfun!6 hblE
kggtror

hFdol
ShbUyMG

!&dn6t rnprb d
Su!;hdy M@ RqfrEk

&lhEffi
tutAEhlb.rTo
ftrn*d&ft

Pdd Qr t{hkin!
ffiWdl.
NdhOi.dd

h. ha rnOrft
264^&!
Gcsdk!G
ffiwElltu

&tuEh

ftPrcFtI$ wil
No. eg$dttdlt

Mll!*dBy

^rdbhOfUnilo.nlt ApdH

OrSbnd!&frt

Sgnnd [ft* h
AfuERhft
mE
h lbnG
ConMlyPh
Wtlft lvl{drTh.

PeidLCffit?

An]kPhtLly
Stn$ont Ofi-SlE

hFfted
CumdadE hlpr6

Dldsd h ft
H@Bkpd
ForftH
ftoCsndty
hOrZdE

IbdHggdbt
Efftd 1!Bl Ae A

nErhOf Snbh&l

IcThmWG

kioahffid

ilitFd6k
Addndubps

2N*. Wdd
th. fqd Eh

FNDdf,R
pp,3A.l1.l b 62

dlpendil lhgaB

ddidoDtldtl8.rbim$reftomthcWsdandFrtlcAddsdwMM3A.ll-1,lvtvU.ll-3.lAd3A.ll+MM3A.rttMM{12-L(W6tlrdE gbAddad@pp,{6647d)

5.c Ertdtir 3 fd disi6 of thec@b@ PhGe r prci(t'. Gbhcy wilh mi!. policic in 0E FPASP fiat dy b.rd.ead bnob.irw.fr Gd! 3, p 25.)

Mld!.d6f\r.!lrE
. Mlrl3Arl-l
r MM3All-3
. MM3A11-4
. MM3All-s
. MM3D,lr"ta
. MM3BJT-rb
. MMS,U.rc
. MMS.ll-td
. VM3B.tl-le
. MM 38.11-3
. W{t2-1

ER lnda wcda &€ N&Studvdid mrlind rnvluw im*tr. hv€dsth.tftffirlhr bth.atunDrd.d6ibd.nv ruhonttr llvrlm ffiimm6 dbnitlaanatvz€d in l-IEFPASP EIR Tl.NtuStdv ordidG

Cr..l.lort PhrF 1 {Mendnl f,ech Phare 1 Lor 10)
CEQA EMrptd.rd ShenlidngAMlFis

-5&
D.(6bq,20lt

Page 764

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmqtal
Issu€ Area

Myadh he Chbt6hvolE
kfttut

Subohd.ly U@
futukrtrdc
SubrE&IyM@

hlmdmof
sbffi

n $fi'AN.t

Th.t&IwrTo
ft hqdOrllF

hi(wdld &
l€dtubE

h.Huf,n(l!tL
h&EHs
G.Eltu,O
w6ffitu

IhnehqdrTo
Th 4dturhlx
Not &9Dtu6.Iy

mEg.tsdEt
Appudhq

Un{odyApFlil

oh&h
Hrwk

AETIEESftd3

tuly.de
Si8nfienl &6h
APdor mftTh.

CaRl A& Or
CollMlyPLfl
Mhffift

hTl@P*&lly
gtdddnttr-98

CmuLEEfrp*

IbmftAd
IsTt€Cssd

PhnO26tU

hffir&tu
skbtu! &A

blof tu!&dll

kftnW.
Cdi.4 kNd

FikEn$lldl

nilaidXs
A&H'Clnp6

zMWdd
tls Fold rult

FASD!ffK
pp.sA.llJ b52

trBus ln th. FPASP EIR ud rlnply rdd ruw d*ils about nol* bnirF (et" nquiEd Httt.rd @Fid4 !d buildinS dtst.br.quL.d ln tho p@iou.ly.dopred midtadd lr1dd6

TIE follo*iry Nof* Sbdy r(nuudatiN fc how to lnpl€qGt rhe FPASP ElRs miti8did ttEu6 wul b. equild t ffditi@ ohppFwl:

irlPuldslct Hwindowi
. Mrh.rddlqslsdon(d.qdtd@try)thdldbe gtoylddfora[t6idGinihir

(&t! 4 P' 16-) AdditiffiUy. Dolled nohd lhl ib cndsiffi rcbd.d tn Ffr 6 p.!po..d

Condsift

dqrdoFiartb.[w the Npeta b de d@ !trd
&Cd HSnfBbe h&dlnt6toot noiFberi6

wirdos 6 dadred lherDDlieble lnElor l* b,d sit6L,
dont E6t Bidwdl (Exh.4 p. r2.)

withtnplffitionotth€.bowmidg.Smh6u6iddtitid indrFPASFEn We^ddaduamdwdludE 6le^ddu4C(d€l@Ih.*t wuldndhtveeyffi slgnndorrulthtiruymeruernl*inP.(A
(GtrL{dl@ 51516a}, deuld h cultlndy tw.lgnlfioillnldr th.l.n Fuli.rbdFPn*scib.ih GrlddkqS 15180).

C!..krtor. Phse 1 (Mrnrlil nttr.h Pt8. I Lol 10'
CEQA Exdpdm and Slffirlhlng AnalFis

-59
D.qnb6,2019

Page 765

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmshl
IssueAH

h!6dln Hor OquhvolE
kgrtu

SuhEIyMN
sltffilb?*6
slbbulvM@

Sut6sbl
lnFrlre

n qdnitk

eIE6&G
frthhlhTo
fth*<orTle
klGWhidrrt

!!*dworld &

Nd36Dhld
h i hd ERfrn.

tugAe,
k.lPl$,O

&ftaEffd
Thrt & hltuTo
Th. froFr lht Wl[
Nd htutfrrfdly

Mdgr$By
AppudhOt

Uffiy^pdld
kdopnatFoUd6

Or Sbdrd. Th.t

erktu

g!trdtkh
Ahmoft

ZditrgMq
CGc.lgeOr
Cosmdt !h
wnhwhiarh

hidEColtffit?

$piffdnttr-h

Cljd{EhFd

DhEsdhrll
PtuBlRht?.cd
tutukd
neO!26h8

ffi99trd
kfr{eA

k*ol9e6l

T@lh. mW.
h6.4hMw
OddrHTolLi

hhtubl

VrifrdnMffi

ilt. Po!flldidmd
H@ing;Wodd

FPASP D'.fr EIR
pp. 3.{.r}1 b -16

a. Idue
rub6hn6!l
popubrion gwrh
ine@,.ilh6
dimly(tor
smplqby
propolng nd
hm-lnd
bu.lrBE)or
lndldly (ior
@mple lheuth
aFdqof md!
ordlE
inlra5lMwX

pp.3A.1!11 to -15 No No No No No No No No Nd Equind

b. Dbphe
guhsnlid
nudb69 0f
sildnthousir&
ffidlbtintth.
6strudldof
repLetw
housing

p3A19l6 No :vo No NO NO No NO No Nft.quircd

13. POPULATION AND HOUSING

Cr€claaonc Phaae I lM.ndni Rrnch Ph.te 1 Lot 10)
CBQA Ex6pti6 rnd SMliniry /lmlyli! D6anbs.2019

-60-

Page 766

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviffiatai
Issue Arca

EPftDd

ktsdddt
$gtuthFbd
$brEfrIt k

SubshrH

rq6tk

htus{*
hl&MrTo
ft Pr,.dortu

P.rl On WlilA Tfi.
Bwdld&
bbdturba
Noi h Dhdo.cd
h: ndn mOnTnr

krtu,ot
C@dlyPls
wlh whkh h

hTwgl&s

nEhFdhtm
Not&hdy

MtdFld Bt
appUl&S

Unilddy Applt d
Dqdlopmt Poltd6
eshdr&It*

Hrwh

lirtut E &$ h
AkUftllt!
hIRHQ
Gdtrln not
CoMryh
ffiffiTb

3!d6tffib

CunuhEhp.G

hsIRet?rd
krftkd
kvCGudty
Pl-Ohtu

bdHSaStu!
Ekttut,aA

n sltdsqt{dd

TirTl: ElRW$
cd&4&Nd
l)MToHTE

Mtigrumlbe
Adddngtrryd

UAoFldiq6q
Hodng w6ld

fNDdffi
pp. se.lll b -16

c epbe
ruba6{rl
nqfib.d of p.oplq
Galbtintth€
@Bhu.{dof
rephmt
houdng
ek wh@?

p.htll6 NO No NO NO No N@(qul.d

Dt*rsd@

.Mlyslr d tu pdstirl ihp*B

popubdon.ndhoulirgwhftorP.rGdb|h.FPASPprotd&.olyz.distlEZtllEIR(W6tLndE tloAddgdqpp.1fr46,,

sa ErhtHt 3 fq disrsio oI h@oePle r prqd'E d5iilsrJ with houdry polki.ln ttE !PASf lhrt @y be reLeDl to popu!:tion.nd hdshS ihFe GxfL 3, pF.6&)

Mldtrdon M.srl*
. N@rcqultrd

Condulm

b,tr' iillr*acril.llnaa lsol trsrH ireh h hr'Id {dkrI llu& tbiar.*ilh btlE Dlfu r tb itb lcdd.fiE S rsrml

Crecl.rloAe Fh..! 1

D.embq,2019
{1-

Page 767

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviffistal
lssue Am

MyEdhHq kSBh6lF
kSi$iidt

hts6o'
Sntrh&UyMc
S.wehF6?

Etildlhp-t
dsMutMoE

5e@hpr6?

Subhd.l

R.qrfing k

Th.i&MTo
fr P!d<rOrnc

PrctdwsldF
ledfrtkF
NdBGrDbd6.d

h r hor En Or Th.
Zrtute!
CdE lPl:!O

Wfr Whldrh

rUknFllhTo
Il-ry{tuml
NdkSbs.iy

Mt Hly
AppliohA

Udlo.hly ApdH
RFbf6lb
Ghdditu

Sfrlfhlfft6 h
Ahm6ft

klkG

HhWHdrft
hFtbCffi?

AFroffiUly
Sagnifonl Ctf{l!

Offihrl:
hmPry&d

hGhing

n ndfdstdst
Elldnut aA

HO{grbandd

tukmW6

ffigbee

lt PrtlL TPASPl,id NT,

!. wdtld 0E
pftld Bulth
iub.bnlirl.dy@
phylielinFd
6od.t d ilth U*
prcvtCdolrw
u phyidlly
dhd
8dffid
f.dllden dfa
twqphyrld8y
,lHrd
gomnl
,rilide dr
(Nftcdonoa
wldalr@ld dE
ritFilld
dvhdsarbl
funFcr* in 6d€r lo
mdnbin
rep6b!.svie
.!dG GpoE
lim6dodE
pdiorl'rc
oFiv6torary

pp. 3Ar+12 b -r3 No No No No No No No MM3A.TGl

fhp.ffion? pp.3A.r+8 b-a NO No No No No lv'o No No MM3A.142

14. PUBUCSERVICES

Crc.l.totr. fhu I (MmSlnl Rinch Phr* I Lot 10)
CEQA EMFim ed $rstlinint AillFtt D€cdber, 2019

42-

Page 768

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envirmotal
Issue Area

tuVz.d h HG
tu P6pc.d

OBE6 hvolt
N.w Slgdd

SubbddlyMm
Slrni66l hFB

or$hbnyUR

sd
k$r&tv N.w

kftEtu
Tlul&kf&To
ftERIOft

hOrffiT!
rbFdwdddL

r€ldnd}l.E
NdhDbdd

h.romOrlh'Z6hgA&!
kd&LG

NAffifu

&ftEkb
Tbt&ft@To
ftkidturm
k&slMy

MEIHBt
AplffiO{

Unltotrly ApFtrd
D.wlopFtme
&9drd.tu

&Tft Efftc!
Ihn WdNd

futrdBft6h
AHSUSft

halhO
C@dth
HhWhidTrE

kqdbC&P

!&nifionl Off-Slts

&mLdwhFb

PtumkFd
lor T}FCarnl

PLr&ffig

ld.nd6.d gSnk{
Efb6fl* e A

rbiltcItoMl

htumwe
C.dftd" hNow

PtuhumrEul

l{ Folllc IPASP DnJl BIR

Polkepffiifi? pPJ.lA.l&Bb-2-3 No NO No NO NO NO NO NorcEqdd

5cr@l* pp. 3A.1+24 b fl No NO NO No No No No No N@cqutrrd

frrB? pp3A,l2-!{bl7
(n Pals rnd

RgEdffchrptd,
nd lhe fuuic

SsviqctspE)

No No No NO No No No No Nmr.qdnd

0&6public
td$tu?

S.ft 6 (r) atdve No No NO M NO No NO s@a(.)rlm

CftcL.lon. Ph..e t (Man8ini Rdah Ph$c 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Erdptimad S6Enlirlng Artyrit D..ubs,2{19
6!

Page 769

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmqtal
Isue Area

etad h Hs
hPEpd

OhSs hvol€
kngdfld

sbhbltMm
khtsc?

grdiothFG
6ffiilyM@

ffi

&qu&tBk

Tf. h4ktOrIE

udwdh

Noth&H
h. H68R&ft

hlgA<$0r,
GGEd PIILC

Wilh Whkt' h

tut&hilbTo
Th.P(i{TB Will
Nd h tobrhblly

IldtrEd Dy
Appl|&Of

untulyApped
Hopdldd6

ignfdttuh
A hG morTlE

h!M@
C!s.lhO
Cmdty PLn
Wlh Whi<h n€

SiFifsl Oll'$ts

DiEEdhft
Hor mkped

FotTh! kr.nl

nsOhg

hurdCgtut
Efftclbt &A

R6ultOl$rffi

nEftmW!

IntffiklE

il. ?trb[. rPASP Draft EIR

INKaddl

o{ El Dondo ild 5.6lmto Costi6, or Cdtm 0mFct 3A,r{-1). (FEI& pp. l-134 to 1- l{l; DEt& p. :lAr4d}.) The p€6 lrdbbd ln fie trbl. lbove MUin lh. .cleet lBlFir od d! Ftadd IhP*!

Si Exhibit 3 for di@id of aha Catsft fh.e t p.oj<t'smi$Grcy wilh publk wic pdtir in lhefPASP thlt ny b. r&vtnt b putilc svic inP.cb. (Exh 3, pp.32-33.)

!,llritrdqM.Iua
. MM 3A.1+l
. MM3A"1+2
. MM3A.1A3

Co.rdui@

Wih lrnplffibdon of the rboE rdd8.d6 @E ldardrkd ln 0E FPASP EI& Wffi Add.odq ed Walrrd Ergle Addcdq Cr€dsh Pt@ I wU M hw€ any ffi rlsnlnd e 6ub.bnddly t@@puuic!&
imp.c (cuiddiE, S f 5162L rr would it r6ult h &y lw sitnifEnt imFds th.t epEirli.r to lhe Fqd q ib tiE (Gutddiq S rSr&D.

Craalatonr Phre. I (Mlnglni
CEQAEmpliq ed S{ranltnlnt

Rrnch Ph@ 1 Lot 10,
AElyrls

.#-
D€cdb6,2()lg

Page 770

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



15. RBCRBATION

Cr..k.ton. Phrco 1 (M.ntln! Ruch Phse 1 Lol l0)
Cf,QA Exsption and StuIninB AMlyrb

6t

Envircmatal
Ise Area

hl4dhh
tuftqd

CIEUEtwdF
iLegfdf,d

hFcor
g'LhElyMG

M

Siftr@tIq*6
SffiltMd

h-fundeof
Subreu.l

&quh$k

v&h?

tut AE P*ullr To
rfEMsOrlh.

MfrWhdrIt
rydwodd&
l@tsdtuthw
NdhIffi

h ! [d( BIROTTh.
Z6ht Ad@

tu6.1PLa! Q

wifrffidrtlE

1tute fhldTo
ThBfrrWil
Nd &Sub3htbly

MdE td Bt
ApplehOf

UffiyAFIH
kbpMtfole
OSt4tudrhl

hrh

SBnlldt E ft6 h
A PtumOnTh.

hh!Acd@
halPln&
CoMunlyk
ffihffidrTlF

bkrbCffit?

CtntlhtO*S

ClmSEhpG

DtocdhTh
hRPqd
lorD.CGr:
PL&Cmsiv
enCatt

IdidSigdht
ui6hi & A

IdOfirbed

tuftmk

Yldt,htu
lddldghp.s.

15.Rtcdm FASPDTd 8IR

.. Would 0E
projetincwthe
u* ot.rldnt
reithbchood rrd
rrgiorul p.rl3 ff
0lh66ad@l
fdtu 3uch thl
iubqbndal
phy!idl
d#imtim of th€
t*ilityFuld

aclmrcd?

pp,3A.U-U b-17 No No No No No No No No N@rrquird

b. DG dc prqet
lnclude
rcti@l
I*ili}6 o! taquiE
tlE(mhadmor
dp.Ei6ol
twtioDl
txtlidcwNdr
mlght hrve rn
edvmphFiol
elled on tl!

Ssm as (a) tbde No NO NO NO No No No S.m$ (.).borc

DFdt6,2019

Page 771

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnvirclrrMtal
lrsue Ara

CefBhvolE
kvSttu

grt sIyMft

Cla,l@
hvolvit'glk

S&diltkpdd
$bbd.[ykE

Iniomdid.r o(
tubsrdd

XqultE lL$

:iut AE Pculbr To
ft.rycnc

Pd G Wh'fiIIE
k(iswdld k

hdhtH.R
MbMd

h r Hor En Or Tlk
zdtAe,

Cdolga,q

WhffillE

tut&hlhrTo
fthRituWU
Notbbdy

Mld8.Ed Ey
AF[&Ot

udhlyAPdrd
hiSpnatPdb
Ghffifrr

Th.t Wb! Nd

futrclEkh
Altuuhft

kIh&
C6ddiyPh

rFlidbc&i?

glni6dlltr-SE

kmAlFd
FdftH
H&Cffimity
hehg

Iddfi.dSBffit
EIic th.l e A

Ast Of $!6bdd

ThnEmW-
Hfi.d, tu Now

Miu!ilid L6rr6

1r.R6..de I?ASPTXdEN

Dlxu.dm

pohtialinga6

Addttlduuy, the 2012 W.H Addsd@ irdrde . shqt dbcudo ot how [E c]dB6 b 0r w.E l*iltd6 -p*t of lhe FPASP proi<l
ln tlE 2ou EIR .ftd tnpl@btlon ot 0i. foldlng dtitdim tEw MM 38.12-1. (WeE Addsdw p' }l5') Tlp 2ol5 w6d.rd
6ducdinFsb66tionwhdmp.rtd6dEFASPp.oidsdatyzdinuE20lrBIR (WathrdEagl.AddodwP,4.79.)

rc{ld h.ve the @ 613 hp6 b @don *ho Mprnd b th€ FPASP prcF s mlyz.d

Se Erhiut3Iq dlr@sloaof dcC@IffiPh& I p#Effiirhct/ withpa*5ed op6spx!pdld6tnficrIASP rh.truyb€ rdcmtblffitidimPrd! (Erh 3, tp.3{, r2-fn)

MlttrdmMru
. MM3B.l2-l

ConclsitG

With inpkrmEtion ot th€.bovc miritrdon K6 idmtii€d in th. FPASP f,l& W6ts Addetd@ snd Wdlrnd E gte Addsde Cr€rlsbD Pha* 1 mold rbt h.E &y lw slgr{66nt or $b.bnti.lly N @ 'tGlldl6dmsilch 6l5lpl.'wgmuIrfrlIin.nvwMitunliffitut!rumkrohD!*ciorlb.lE(Guldelhdg6183).

Cr..krlon. Phu I (Mrnllnl
CEQA EmFid ed Sbflr'linirB

kn.h Ph:.. I Lot 10)
Ardyir

&
Dsnb.r,2019

Page 772

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



16. TNANSPONTATIOTVTM}FIC

Craclatona Phd 1 (Mrstlnl Rrach Phr.. I Lol l0)
C{QA Exnplionttd SsmliningAulyli3

47-

gnvirmqtal
Irue Area

DoPEpd
tuS6hvolK
erggrdbt

Sh&UyMtr
Skilidrhstd
Subbblt Mm kq68k

ftP6trdftft
hl& rvlddIlF

NdBAM
hiHdER&ft

z6EA&!
GrElPle! &
Cdnusly h

&]JE@

ft kFrlfr.tWllt
k kSltffUrly

ME8.dty
Apgt&Ol

unlffiyADIH

Or916.&H

l*trhttuh
Ahkmonft

hngA.dQ

HA Whidr It
hd lrcn{ht?

5td86tmiE

CMUbnEhp&!

Diord hnE
hmPqd
Portuh

Pl& Cmudty
HFGffig

ItrS.ditdnd

kttOISuMdd

ThtumW-
hh{,hNo*

16.lbil.t'qhlhn/
ftrlAo Woldlhr
frld

FPAIIPD6ftEIR
pp. 34.1'r b .r57

1 Cr@.n,
illmHhhrmc
*hi.ir i!
sb.hndj h
d.d6b tE
.xfrdrg hiflc ldd
.td eprcity d 0r.
#GyM(i&
Gultin a

shbd.l
irl@lndrha
o!"nunbt oa

v.ltlrJ. tipq tlE
vol@b6Fity
rarbnsEda d
@rBAiilal
inffii$)?

pp,3A.1$25 to-
lc/

No No No NO No NO No MM3,{"I$t.
3At9lb
3A.1t1c
3A,l$lf
3A"1&11

3 "1$u
3A"ltll
3A.lSlo
3A.l$lp
3A.1tlq
3.utlr
3A.1Sle
3A-l5.lu
3A.ltlv
3A,ltl w
3A.ltlx
!A-ltly
3A.l$12
9i,lsl*
3Arsrdd
3A.1tle
3A.l$1tf
34.1$1tt
3A15"1hh
3A.1$1ll
3A.l$2r
3A1r2l

D.c.mb6, ml9

Page 773

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmqtal
I$ue Area

heopd
Chn!6hwlE
Nc*Slrtut

tub.hEltMoE
kehP,c?

SiCdstbFtor
tob6b&Iy Me
k€hp6?

tufr
RqftEk

Vddah?

hIlEEs

ftnr*dOft
hl&ffin.
h+dwold&
bdturhF
NC Bq 0.do.d

h. hEnq'Tt
hhgld@
C-Edn-LC
Cd$unlytu
WhWhldr U.

It[ftl*To
Ih.PrcfdM m
Nd&tuddly

MmgrLd !t
AppleO{

thrtutApplH
DlEloFFtPoX*
Ghffifrr

hdilrlt Adopld?

Egd@t 5f6.G h
A Pf,6 EIROn fu

hlgAda
Gdt l PLnot
Cl,Mttn6

Rftfdl!Cffi?

AE]hIbwy
sttutdf-$E

Dissd hrlE
k mPap.Ed
lo!TlEGa.nl
tu,Cmdry
nrGhg

Id.id0d E!tut
86cd hl a A

k{tOt$bnd

rnIl.EnWa
Cddtu,hNd

fiv@hFd?

U6SrhlA'lG

16.Ilupdldoiv
T!.fqs Would lh.

IPASr Drrlt EIR

pp.3A.1$l b.ly/

:ral53
3Al5-L
3/Ll5-{D
3Al$.rc
3AI5{d
3A.r5{l
3 .15-lf
3A"15-d
3 .r5{i
3A1541
il,l541
34.1s-an
3A"15{
3At54o
3A,Is"lp
34"15-{q
:lA"lk
3A.tk
3Alt4r
3415.&
3.{.lSav
3rtgw
3A.15-{x
3Al5-{v

L Ece4dk
irdivtdulyd
oauldfudt,.
l.vd o{ svlF
tud.td

sam 6(a) ah€ No No No No No No No No Srna d (3) .bova

Cr..krton. Phe I (MrnSlnl Rrn.h PhlE r Lot 10)
CEQA EEnption .nd Sbdnlining Mlyrir Dcsnbs,201,

&

Page 774

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envimm6tal
Ilsue Area

htud
tuFhwlw
N.r SlgM6l

Suh6M&IyMc
Sifnfat lnpr& q
l*.hbtyMc
KhPftB?

$h.bfl

X.qrltE b

kk&hb
ThikhbrTo
th rydAIh€

l-al On Wkfirlte
rydwdld 0e
hdfrtkE
l{sBqDid
h. Ha Emfrft

hluAtu,
Cdsd Pl& Or

tuk+dturm
NdLgtrsdy

MSr.dBy
Applldhd

UfuyAPPH

ftgndrdsTh.t
HrEh

Sittrdttuh
Ahor ERhft

hin6Adioq
C4FI Plm Ot
CMtyh

hicrkcffil?

$tnifdnltr-g!

CunuhdE hprc!

Dlndhft
Ptu mPEp.Ed
FdkH

tuOrhE

rffiErtrmt
S(bo llul Ar A

kdtO{Subud

liclh.BW!

f6. Tmpoltadotv
Ti.ffc Would the

FPASDaft EN
PP.3A.1$1 b-157

MtysFliil
MEt.lMt
.gang for
dGitMtGd wrts
or hkhwavs?
q Rault ln.
chrnte in air tr.ffia
pan@ hcluding
ci{srf,ilrote
in hfric levels d a

dsnte in l6tim
that culb tn
subcblid ofdy
d*?

Not Elmnb m
abng6 b.ir

hrffic wqdd rsult
frm lh€ Prq*t

N6 No No No No No NO No

d, sEbnuily
lt@$haads
due b a d6ign
fcte (eg, shilp

d.ngr!ff
inbdi@)or
in@prdbleus
(e&fsm

No sitMent
b.fdchlzrd!

wdeidatilid in
tlG BR

No No NO No No No

e R€olt ln
fu[daquu
dsgftyrc6?

3A.l&',I2 b-13
(h PublicS.wi€

dupE,!d
Trangpcbtl@

No No No No No No No wil.ltl

cr..krton. Phaic I {MrnStnl Rrrch Phsc 1 Lol 10)

CEQA EMptim rnd S[eniliilngAD!'!l! DFabcr,2019
49

Page 775

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envlrcmqtal
Isue Area

hljEdhk OwFhrlw
Ndflgild

SslsnddtMG

hv.l*gN.w
SttrdlhFed
Sh6lttN

Sisfl

kqeEk

tbttr lhlafo
IhePoidOTtE

Psd& Urhthtu
Pn*dWdh&
bdturhE
NdBdrDAied

h a PdG morrTlk
hgAds

CMtytu
Wli Whlch tr

Thrt & Ih!.tTo
nrPft+dtutml
Nol &$Mtbly

MdgrEdBt
Applc&OI

thilimlt Apdld
:lq/dop@tPdB

Or g-d&d. Th.t

&rcffi

9Enlf,6lEft6h
Ab8RGft

Zohh8Ma
C6ail n na
C6dV Plrn
ffihWhdrTn

grdrbttr'*
hF6&!d

MGhFG

Dhs.d hft.
hUhrpd
hIEkd
PlraC@qlt
H$OhB

lffifrdht
6ftdn4 AA

Rstro.$rffil

fulh.mwa
66.4ek
Dd6h.dToHil

mhM

Mldtd6k
Ad&eiqhpc

16.T@p6f.{6,
Tdnq Would dE

IPNPDdBR
pp. 34.191 b -1t7

f. R6ult ln
iEd(qurle
pdllng@Fdty?

Dw.loprmt wil
be !.qui4d b

6olow (f,ty

No No No No No No No No

& Cof,nid wtth
.ded pollci6
pl[E dprograc
suppo.dnS
all6ildw
k rEpoetim
(a& brE tumtt
bicvd€ ncls)?

3Al$27 No No No No No No No No Nm Equir€d

CEel.lone PlEre I (M.ndnl Ratrct Ph..e 1 Ld 10)

CtQA Exmption hd StsamliniryAndFb
-70-

Dsmber,20f9

Page 776

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envirom6tal
lsgue Area

heqd
Caf6hvolE
kgldi@t

SQtrmrbpxBd
$&hblyMoE equiringk

khws

Tt PqdOft
lml&ffin

Not 96 Dkland
h.HqmGtu

hhrffi,
tulh,Oi

ftbdturwilt
Nd &Sh:nrbly

ffigrtsdBy
AppIod6d

unlrilnly App&d
klopdlblg
O.tud.rdsfrl

tuhffi
Tlui WaNot

sgtutE&$h

GaklenO

wffwhlhft

9til66lOff.Stl

hmPn?Gd
rtrftGard

hehiq

UodfdStdht
Etusfrb A A

ketOf tu!fiH

hTl!ffihe

W8ihtu

16',t:t@pGlrdn,
Thldc Wdld lh.

FPASF Drdr EtR
pp,:lAr91 re-tg

ItisiG

a[ 3A.lilo 3als-rp,3a15-1r.3.A"15{q, sA,lilL 3A.lg& 9.{,1ge 3Art{w, 3A.1S-{& 9A.1t4y.
Strd ,nd Ed Sillwall Sffi/Ld Point Rod; .rd irys .t r6dw.y i.tlmb, such il 6 e6lboutd

(FF.IR, pp. r.142 b 1.175.) Ths imFfr irdud€ inffiim isFlr $ch s tp ilMiffi al O.l Avaue P.tluy/T5l Bidftll
u.s. tE Zntddd Drive b Swis Bo$ldrd $tffi|, ilE narfr Cqd@a FarlMy b llral AFue setml! and tln

FdsEoul*dd loPrrid€CityRo.d s.8lMt (DEl& pp. in.5t57.)Ttr F86indiqtid in OEbbl€.boveqbln the

njdSrdil t@E MM{rei, MM d.162 (Wcd.ttd FrBlcAdddd@ pP- {&4f.)

5.. Exlillrlt 3 to dbcEld ol ilE clEli@ Ple 1 proid's udrh9 with ciNl,.li6 polLiE ir 0E FPAS! lhat fry be.dfldl b lBffi. and uaroF.btimlrnpr.E (EllL 3, PP. &U.)

The S.pmb6 4 dlr9 SuppldEbt Tl.ffic
rh. additlon of rhc Cralsm Phes l
int6s{oB of Eal Bidnll Std

dE FoFl bG.d c pd. ho!

Mtdt d6M.aq
. MMSAI+I
. MM3A,1'lallrdrshMMs.lllc
. MM3A"15-1(
. MM3A.Frldro€hMM3Altli
. MMSA.rtrt
. MM3Al$lolluol8hMM3Al$lr
. MMoA.ltluOuouthYM3^l$'rz
. W1A iitt:

Creeksione Pha.. I (M.nglni Ranch Phd. I Lot 10,
CEQA E6Vti6 rnd SMltnln8 Aulylk D.rmb€r,2019

Page 777

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Enviromatal
Issue Area

hltrdhftior
hffil

Do ltopo.d
ChaE* hrolE
New $8d66t

hFGd
guLhilyMN

CkdM
hvdtrBk

ggffilInp.<Ed
ffithlyMG

hJodnidd.sMu
nqffirNd

thrl& hhTo
ftudcft

terdTh*hE
NdhU.dd

h. Hq BnGft

CqFdPf!!G
Cotulynn
Wihffidr

Itd&MTo
fthdErtuffi
No.8.gtlddly

Mt!.Edlt
Applffiq

UdlnbltApPld
[L*pdPet

Or C-d.rdi ltd

Hd{t Ado?dt

kTlEcEftG
HWdNd

Stdattuh
AheER&ft

Zd€Mq
C€mlPhOt
CMtPbr
ffi6ffidrft

rydlcffit?

ArTlmFobEIt
Sftudf-gb

hFdM

Dhrcdhtu
Ptu! RPEprd
F6!TLGdBd

Phorhg

thdnd S{8ilfi@t
Efc611d AA

Hld9S6fll

ndtumW-

lrldStuk

fi.ft-orrd.r/
ltrffio Wold rlE

FPASP Drrn BIR
pp.:IA,lil b-157

MM3.dl}ldd tlE08h MM 3A-l5.lii
MM r{.r}2. tluulthMM 3A.rF2b
MM 

'AIF3MM SAlSar dsdgh MM tA.r$d
MM3A.lttf UEwth }'M3A1t4t
MM3A-154 dqdth MM3A.rt4y
W3B.ltl.
MMl8,t$lt
MM'1GI
!L\t {162

CrndudG
Wth ibplc6bri6 oa dE rbow ldq|ti@ miE idmdlled ir tlE I?ASP !IR, WaF Addadq srd Wdlnd Erd. Add€du4 (Blc PhE 1 Fu! mt hrve rny mw 3llnli€nt s .ub.bntLlly Il@ sw@
hrqcniavht6c itrrFc* (GriddtG 515162), @ would It r6ull in 8y w sittifidt imFb th{ * Fu&r b dE pni.d ctb Cr. (Gutd.fiq 9151t3}

CrllkrlonG Ph.re ! (MeSlnl nert Phrts I Lot 10,
CEQA ExEptim ard SMlinhg AElttb DMrb6,2O9

Page 778

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



17, UTILITIES

Cr..t.lor. Phar I {Mrntlnl Rrnsh Ph$. I Lot 10)
CEQA EEmptio and tu@linint ArElylis

-7'

Envircmatal
lssue Area

AMlfrdh Hd
8nuffid

DoPropo.cd
Chrr6 hwlE
N.*g8dddt

hp$o!
ffidyMm

hvodnf k
9td6drihp*t

o!glbb&Iy MG

Suldnd

8.q'ehg k

Ttd&kkTo
fthi.dorft

Prel On YrlehIE
4sW@!8.ldtuhE
l{oab Dl(t6.d

hrkqOTlr
Zolq Ac{d!

CrrE lPlho

whmdtu

tut&MTo
nEh'*dtum
Nor & *rb.hut try

uuStd Bt
AppIffiOf

Udffiyapdhd
hdoF6tlde
orsbd.*lhd

tutkiNol

$tddt8(!6h
Ah[RCrft
ZdryMa
tultuo
Comdtyh
WdrWdchIi.

CfdfqdOfi-$ts

CmfrdEhFG

|]hdhft
huPnPd
IorTn CaEi
Pb&Comdty
mhorhlf,

lhds.d gtdfiot
El&.sht &A

n6{rlr Ot Subd.ntd

kkMAtft
tuftffiwa
Cd6.4 hNm
D.6lrrdTok{

Mlif.hrrqE
Adddtrhpc

lz wut [d
SdloaFhi
WdhM

IPASP Dreft glR
pp.3A.161 b43

AK

E6ffit
rqdrffitsof
0'..pp[6l,le
Legl@lW.b
QuutyConhl
8@d?

pp,3A.1613 b-6 No No No No NO No wnl&t
aA.re3
3 "16-{u.1g

h R.quie@
rattlndu
.Ghrddoa

hrffiftdlitb

q&{iry 6.iliri.r,
tlr @tructl6ol
whi.hdld 6@
ritnlfidt
cnvLmtd
elftcB?

9ma (a) rtov€ No No No No No No No No Srmd(e)abd.

c ldlueorcdt
in thesBhrafld
olnd3@ *rh
dr.io6a frciliti6
dgFtBlo o{

pp.3A.F28b43

Al@@gffirny
Dr(kbqu

lntratuftE
lm

No No No No No No No

DcanbE,2019

Page 779

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envi$m6tal
Issue Area

kgftu
hFs or

srtb.h$Uy Mc
&wetnFG?

hvolvto!k
EgdfdhFs

d $td&d.!y l,16!
S.EPhFE?

$bd{Ll

nqffitk

ThdeMTo
IrFft{dOrItu

Pmlfrffith.
Pfti.tiWdd e

roc.ld 1lBt H.E
Ndl€rffi

h. Hd mOrT|.
ffi8ffi!

CdPLtC

hlel*To
rrE}k'dMWill
Nc &grbfrddly

Mid8ed By
AppIodd O{

Uiln!ily Applid
D6dopffitPo[d6
&ffi*frt

HrEh

ekffi
tutW.nM

flSMdt[&c! h
AHsmOrIh€
zsgH6,
GdrdhG
CodlyPbn
HrhffiTl:

ehlMEnt
$stutOfi-98

hp.d Ard
Cudhdclnp.6

DkEdhft
ldsUA.p.d
lorllrh
lLDCdBdty
hC}h!$

hfr$Gnih
EftGfuI Ar A

R6ultOf $tedll

ThTh. grRW-
Cd6!4 k Nd
MTOB€

Ym?ek
ldtudgldwu

17. Udlldged
tnd@ tFbn
WdldtuFinlG

IPASP Dr.Ir En
pp, 34.16r b .43

tlE@hc{ono(
whtchmld 6e
dgtrilidt
qviI@ld

d. fuveluffidl
wrt6iupplic
avallablebe
llFprFlffi
qbdry
6tid6@b$d
tts@€,daE
wd *p.rded
6dd6ffib
Edd?

WibrAddeduq
pp,2-l lo{.l.

9e!tffilly
DEn pp.3Al&7

b8

No No NO No No No NO

s R6ult in.
dtuimtidby

Effip@idd
whldts6or
mymthe
prqd t[l it hr3
.d€qut€ dFdty
b*m*E
pK*r(3pr*.d
d.0rd ln
.ddldNto$€
pr@Ltad! crrdtrt
dfrrlilffi6?

s.fr r (a) above No No No No No No No No 5.@s(.).boF

Clccklotrc Phr!. 1 (M.nglnl R.nch Ph!!. I Lot 10,
CEQA Exdptid.nd Shnlining AMly6b

-7+
I)rcdnbc,2019

Page 780

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnviromtEl
lsue AH

turEhdE
Ndlgdid

tutldlyMc

hddryk
SQdtothF<B

ori&ntdtyMre

$brh!.1

n $ffig N.w

TlBl&hlbTo
tuhoifrrGft

PNI On WhkhTh.

NdhDl$lo*d
h r h mOnIE

Zdltte,
klPLn,Ot
CffisityPL^
Wl8' Wdd lt

hb&ldel?

&tu[k
htkhtuTo
TIE k+dTr$Will
Mh$btuE{y

MdfdBy

Unl6.dly ApplH
MpnatPon&
Gsffiht

tu€b

& TfrE Bfi.d!
tuW@Nd

fitda{tE f,sh
AHcEn&tu

CsF iEac
Cmnuhy Pbr
WifrffiTL

rybCffin

kfEFoGdlUy
Stn$odofi*

mamE+rd
fsTlEC6Ed

lleGZd{E

Id€dt dfutut
EfKGTfui &A

dqM

tuftmwa
6f.rr, k Now
MTohE

Xllit hlrt6G
Ad&EdnghFB

17. UU[n6.d
96,tegFk

FSPlXM
pp. 3A.161 b 43

f. Be sv.d by a

lardfll widr
soflldart
pemittd op.cily
loMod.E
tlE ptoi..f! $fd
w*dlrpql

pp.3A,rG28 b.32 No No No No NO NO NO No N@a|ui6

g. cdply wis
f.d6.L shF, .rd
leal *ht6rnd
.!tuhliN rd!led

pp.3A.r&8b32 No No No No No No No No NoErquird

CEekstone Phse 1 (M.ndnl Rrfth Phsc 1 Lot 10,
CEQA Effiption and SMllning ADly6b D.t6nbd, ml9

-7'

Page 781

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envircmdtal
I$ue A16

DoEofed
OBf6hvolE
kgildfit

Subedyvc

hvoldng l$*
9lEni66thfs

dShb[t MoG

Med.l

fauLiry Nd

vd6tu?

&lhftb
ht&hhTo
Tlr htdCTt€

k6mft
@dwdu&
hdTh.tkF
Not h Di*io..d

hahdER(}rTh.
zmhtAet
Cqsdgrle
Comndyh
WidrWl{ddr

kkffi
tur&MTo
n rydft.trYll
N4&gblrlt

md?tdBy
Apphhd

Udfornly A?plld
OddopMtfou&
Ohtdrll'd

HrEb
Pnviqdy ep*d?

&rkffi

Sbnnd Eftrs h
Ahmfth

hnEAcn4
kdrbnOt
CotlmdtyPlrn

4rLGcbht?

tuftEl'ffily
S€nfdmS

hplGH

Dbcdhll
PtumPirPld
Sorftk6ll

HrOhng

ldnund tftrdt
UidIbI AA

hltdsM

tuftmwa
c.ditu eNil
kntrrdToHrE

khtubl

[tldttuX4iG

1ZUtrb6d
E riagt bd

rNlHru
pp.3A.16r io{

Dlsrstm

leth.FCgntftont l.vd (tnps 34.16-4, :lA-165). (F€IR, pF f -rZ b t-f&; DEIR, p. 3A,1Hr,) Tha Ft6 indiod in 0E hble rborc qhin dE id.vrt .slyrb of lhe Poffi*.I loprds

pp,3AlG36 to -39); lmp..r3A,r&r0 (Idsl:tMiotq pp.3.q-1639 b {0} Imp.d 3.{.1611 (C.ble TV, pp.3.{-15-401o -41} tnp.dgA.t612 (lnffi*d Eff8l Dnur4 pp.3A.lAr b -{3}.

3ArG1,MM3A163.MM3^t6a,MM3A.lG5,MM3A1&1,MM:lA.ls2aMM3A.1&25.(wdLdE tLAddeJdwpp.d9lars)

Addend@ erd/s 2015WdLrd Bld€Add6dm

MldS.rlonMN
MM 3 "161
MM3A.16F3
MM 34.16.t
MM3A,16-5
MM38.163a
w38.1&3b

Condudoil

C.r.kcton. Phue 1
Deffib6.21019

J7G

Page 782

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnviEmstal
IlsueAru

OEIIBhvdF
NdStdfiod

hFs0
S{r!.brilyMe

Sfhinmt hF!
or$H.frIy Mc

S.tRhF6?

tuhof
&hu

R.qul*r8 l!.r

ft.!*dOrft
PrdlOnWMft

rywolld&
tdFdTltrrHrw
Nd 86 Dtdo..d

h.hm(lrft
Zqdig A.dct

Cse.lPh.C
CdndtyPh

tul&MTo
ft hi$Ir6 hu
Ndt$Shrldly

Mdt r.d It
App{d.rOf

htuE{tAppH
h/d.pntd PoSd.3
Org.nd.atu

HaEh

Stniiiltturh
APtu morrTlt

ZGlryffi4
C.Ed Ph&
CffidlyPh
Ht! wlddrrh.

BLCffi?

gFtuidf-S*

CilmuLli{hFc

DiElid hft.
kmE?.rd

Fd TlEG6.al
Ph!tudly
Plm O! hh8

lbu0d lgdadt
St&d! IDt & A

S6ultOf hlerild

ThT}!SRWd
Cdfi.4 hNow

D.bDtadTo kE

MdSrBoks
AddEt{hpxE

17. UEili6 ed
SdleStraoa

IPASPDTdEIR

Fp. 
gA.r&1 to{t

With inpl€nmhdo d th€ aldw rddrat o lts16 ldddted in th€ SPASP ElIl Wrbr Addcrd@, .nd Wdhd E.gh Add6dE CtEdglw Pl@ 1 rqld d h.G ily w dgnindt or .u!.htlrlly m,e s@ udlilie. and
d.6lRlllrl* actrldd'g- S 15rdl. nd wd lrr6ult in rnv ffi ddfionthffi th.taE ffi[.r b dEorcid dibtiE(Guid.li6 6lsf n

cn.Lrron. Phe I {Mingini R.nch Ph.t. t Lol 10)
CBQA 8ffiptin.rd Stsilinint AEIFi!

-n-
DF.rtq,2019

Page 783

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SICNIFTCANCE

Envircmstal
Isue Area

Doeopd

N€w SEtrdt

$bhtblyMm
St!tront hpsn d

tubbnH

R!+hgk

&NEftE

Th.PnittGnE

lddtutHft

h!hdwOft
hESAd4

GqmlgaG

&ru&K
ftk*dTlEtffin
Nd&$bsrrlly

Mldt H By
Appn666 Ol

UilomlyAppH

OrSbndrdr tut

AE]hETffi

9Fi6mt&6h
A hor En&ft

ZdtUAtu,
C6E lPl$Ot

bdkhst6t?

liEnjidntG9!
hts6Ard

CumfrtEhp&

lMIntlr
PturmE?td

Fd th.Crrld

hOhB

Ihdfdfutrd{
EIGC hL AA

Htgtud

TEftrmW-

mUlrhf&aE

lallE&t
ftlibrot'

.. Dc 0E pKid
have the pot€ntial

b degrade 0r
qulig of thr

!ubobnd!uy
rrdue the hlblbt
of.filhdwildliG
3l,ad6 eue t
fbh d dldlile
popd.lion b drop
below 3df-
iddningkrds,
dl@t6b
€limiEte a plsnt or
.dmlffiunliy,
subshtialy
rEdue [E nhber
d Gtriat th€ ranF
of m endsnt664
lare or thE Eld
spedq or
€llmimG
idporbnt
@nplGot tE

Se Pobffi South
of U.S. HiShway 50

Sp€i6c Plsn
Proi€dsCEQA
Findings ofFa.r
.nd Sbt€Ml of

Ovdldhg
CoaidaatioN, pp.

H16

No No No No No No

Cre.k.totr€ Ph.ae 1 (Mantini Rtn.h Phse 1 Lot 10)
CEQA Empum and Sbe.nllnlnt hlFi3

-?8-

Ds'bd,ml9

Page 784

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Envirommtal
Isue Area

Dohr?d

kgGtrd
qttutlrpxbn
Subbth[y Mm

Subsnsd 'tuPrqd&tu
Pel ft Whidr Tt*

koFdwodd&

h a H6EIROTIIT
zd8Adbt

k lPb&G
Cmmdtyh

k ltPre Eftlrb

ftWlfi.tWU
Not&$Mily

ldrdgrEd By
Appriqhe

Unhd'lyApdH

O S.rntuds tut

&lts!gt$

St!trcet Efhc h
Ake monfi.

hh8ffi,
GaEd nDG
CotutyPh

AaftG!FoEnd.ny
$8tutSgE

hpdM

Dhed tnlh
rtuUrqFd
lorfth

hOhht

Itu&$Enihi
gftGlld, A A

blrs$b6fl

Thft&Wn
Cffi4eNw

Mlf8,lidk

lAhrbt
Ed$rCgrdlo&
@jd pdiod! of
C.litonda hlstory
or ptehlslory?

b. hhFotd
hrv€ lmp.ct that
.e individulry
Iturll.d, but
.uButNdwly
mide6ble?
("Cuulrtlvely
ddde$b1."
ffithetthp
tuffibldfEd!
of a pr<id are

@ldenbl.wlrn

with the etfs of
p$tprqs, UE
rffsof dhu
olmtpK+{t
ard the d6 ol
prcb.bletubre
pnt66)?

Fobm$u& d
U.S. Hi8hMy50
Sp.dgc PLn
PrffsCgQA
FlndinF o{ Fd
ardSulllMtof

Offiiding
Cdsid6.dG pp.

tlGt{t

NO No No No No N_o No

Craokston. Phr.. 1

CTQA D€emb.r,2019
-79

Page 785

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



EnviroM6tal
Isue Arca $bd4&UtMm

Sattrul hFbd
$hbuyM@

tubhu

R.quttt$ N*

IErydaft
Parcl On Whh lt€

hord Wolh &

MtbDi.ded
h a hd mOn$e

C6n lPh,G

WiftW*n [E

hhidlldHr
Nd&grhdy

Mdpd Ey

Uddr{yApplH

GMfri
H.Fh

kIE! Elhd

$ttutkh
AHdmfrft

hIPhG

Sttutdt-Slts

CnuhdhbFd

hmPqd
fdlfi.tud

bOrhlE

rdF{tugrffiilt

RaltOf &b66d

hftmwa
Cldtu tuNow

nIrct
lbrG!||oi
ndli*,
c. h he p.q.(
have
dvlrollmtal
.lf$ whldr wlll
carrubmi.l

huNn baint$
€irh6 dLdly tr
hditlcde?

Folm S@drd
U.S. lXthw.y 50
SFi6cPLn
ryd'SCEQA
F;ndin83 ofFd
.nd sbffit of

Owridi$
CdlidaatiG pp.

G3l6

No No No No NO NO NO No

Dieriw

fte City dndr dEtl
(a) irnFad m th€dvtrdmt un&r r wlde ilge of bptq ndtdtn8 dftlve ddil r€arding d{ib biolo8idl 60lrc.nd t}*it h.bibe rerndfad ad di$lo..d h 0! FPASPEIR;

(b) cmuLtiE inps ffie NlFed lor edrimpacl tcpic ihrilShot tfE FPASP EI& ind
(c) rdvee imp.G d hoMB Ge indudad.rd arl'.rsd wts. rdsft il Ffr of tlE svilmbl lmp.d ealylis of all r.qulred bpl6 uldd CEQA in d* FASP Eln (e& *qulily, h.a!d& [nP, *.].

lllti8.ddMrsl,G
Sd dB U..ed in sdoE E-l (A6lhdis) lo El7 (UtilitiB).bre.

Crc€hione Phse 1

CEQA EMptin.nd Dsilbcr,ml9
{G

Page 786

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



F. Conclusion

As indicated above, the City finds that the Creekstone Phase 1 Project is exempt from CEQA
under Govemment Code section 65457 artdGuidelines section \5182, subdivision (c).

Though not required to do so, the City also makes the following additional findit g" to facilitate
informed decision-making:

Based on the preceding review, the City's FPASP EIR, Water Addendum, and Westland Eagle

Addendum have adequately addressed the following issues, and no further environmental review
is required pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15183: Aesthetics, Agriculture and Forestry

Resources, Air Quality, Biological Resources, Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, Greenhouse
Gas Emissions, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Hydrology and Water Qudity, Mineral
Resources, Population and Housing, Public Services, and Recreation.

a

o

a

The following site-specific impacts have been analyzed and determined to be less than significant:
Land Use and Planning Noise, and Transportationffraffic. Thu+ pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
section 1518a no further environmental analysis is required.

The following site-specific issues reviewed in this document were within the scope of issues and
impacts analyzed in the FPASP EIR, and site-specific analyses did not identify new significant
impacb: Land Use and Planning, Noise, and Transportationffraffic.

Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phaee 1 Lot 10)
CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis

-81-
December,2019

Page 787

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



IV. REFERENCES

7. City of Folsom. City of Folsom General Plan. january 1993.

2. City of Folsom. Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. June 28,20'1.1.

3. City of Folsom. Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project Public Draft EmyEIS

(june 2010) and Final EWEIS (May 2011).

4. City of Folsom. Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project's CEQA Findings of Fact

and Statement of Overriding Considerations (May 2011).

5. City of Folsom. CEQA Addendum for the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project- Revised

Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative. November, 2012.

6. City of Folsom. South of Highway 50 Backbone lnfrastructure Project kritial StudyMitigated
Negative Declaration. December 9, 2014.

7. City of Folsom. FPASP Amendrnent: Westland/Eagle Properties. June 2015.

8. City of Folsom. CEQA Addendum and Environmental Checklist for the Westland Eagle Specific

Plan Amendment. ]une 2015.

a. Including Appendices and Attadrments:
r AQ/GHGCalculations
. Transportation Impact Study
. Cultural Resources Sfudy
r BiologicalResourcesTechnicalMemo
o Water, Sewer, Storm DrainageMemos
o Tri'Colored Blackbird Memo
r Urban Decay Analysis

Exhibit 1: Folsom Randl Central District Design Guidelines (Amended 2018)

Exhibit 2: ROD for the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project-City of Folsom

Backbone Infrastructurc (May 22, 20'J.4,

Exhibit3: Applican/s FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis (August 2019)

Exhibit 4: Noise Assessment by Bollard Acoustical Consultants (August 15,2019)

Exhibit 5: Mangini R,anch Phase 1 Supplemental Traffic Memo by Kimley-Hom (September 6,2019,

Creeketone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phaae 1 Lot 10)

CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis
-82-

December,2019

Page 788

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit I
Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines

(See Attachment 16)

Page 789

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit 2
ROD for Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50

Specific Plan Project

Page 790

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit C

AEPARITIENT OF THE ARftIY
U.T. ARIY ENCIT{EER DISTRIGT, EACRATEIITO

coRP$oF El{crt{EERs
1325 J STREET

sAcRAtEilTO, CALtFORiln eSEr a-Z9/zt

RECORD OF DECISIOil

ACIloH lD:3PK-200t{21$

APPLICAI{T: Clty of Folrom

PROJECT tlA,llE: Fohom South of U.S. Hlglury t0 $prclllc Plrn Prcfrct - Clty ef
Fohonr Brckbonr lnlrrrtnrctun

I hevc rrdrlcwcd ard avrluatcd, in light of thc owrell puUic interucl. tha doermqntr end frctors
oorrcomhg the permit applhation for thr City of Fokorn Bsdrbonc lnfrestuc{ure Projec{ as well
ae he gtrtd vlewa of lnbrEcied agcnclea srd ths p$llc. ln doirg so, I haw coneldered the
poaalble conscquenoeg of tha poposed actbn in *cordanct with regulalbns puHlehcd in 33
Codc of Fcdcral Rqulaffonr (CFR) Parta 320 through 332 end 40 CFR Prrt 230.

An Envilonrncntrel lmpact RopodErwionmcntal lmpact Statrmcnt (ElR/ElSlwas pr€Fsmd by
tha U.S. inmy Corpe of Enginccrc, Sgcremcnto Ohtdct (Gorps) and Urc City o{ Fohont (CIty) for
the Fobom South of U.S, Hlghway 50 Speclfic Plan Am {SPA} foe cqnpfancs urllh tha National
ErwlmnrncnhlPollcy Acr (NEPA) and thc Callforda EnvformmtrlOuelty Acl (CEOA). Tht
EIR/EIS cvalurled lha envimnmcnhl lrnprd: of thc poporad SFA o wlll es 5 on-rtb, rnd 11

ofrdb rvrtar suppty rltcmltivor. A F{otie of Avelbbflity of tha Orrf, EIR EIS vuae pubfirhed ln
thc Fcderal Rcgistor on July 2. 2010 (Fedenl Regbter, Vol. 75, No. 127, 38500). Esch d the 5
orclte attemallvec lndudcd ihc Olginal Ba*bonc lnfrEs[ndure Altcrnathe as dcscrlbed ln
Sctlon lll.a.2 brknr. A pr$llc mtlcc for thl Dnft EIRGIS una hacd on July g, 2010. A publlc
mctlng war hcld rrlth lh. Clty sf Fohom on Ar4tnt 2, 2010 rt lhc Fohom Communlty Canbr.
Drtrrg thc Dnfi EIR/EIS ptDllc reviat, pcrlod, 79 omment btton wrtu noeivcd.

ln May 2011 the Final EIFUEIS was rdcased by the Corpe and tha Cfty, A l.lotica of Awllabitty
wa g.tilbhcd ln thG Fcdcnl Rcghter on Mry 26, 2011 (Fcdcml R€btrr. Vol, 76, no. 102,
3{f,7g). A prrblb mtloc annourrclng thc Final ElRlElS wer iasucd }{ey 26, 20t1.

On Ar4uat 12, 20t 1 , a Rocord sf Dedclofl (ROO) waE i88uod, addamirry esch qf lho I
pmpertho located wiilrh lhs SPA, ae rriel as the on-slte and ofi+ite inhadnrctwe. Thc ROD did
not lndrdc any declsbn mgardhg the backbore ldredructurc" ln aooordence nl0t Fhdhg I d
gctton X ol lhc ROD, on February 1?, 2013, e publlc notlcc uer luucd on Fcbrurry 12,2A13,
for lho orlglnelly Proporcd Brctbonc lnfrarfuciurc Pro|ct, rrdrich ir thg bcue of hia docurnrnt,
and thc Carpcntcr Rendr and Folrom South eitcs. which u,ill bc evnlusted in future RODr or
supplemcntrl decision docunanh br thosa pr{ectr.

This docr.rrent lg a ROD spedllce$ for hc bockbonc infratfuc-ture porlbn of thc SPA rs
daoribcd ln tha EIR/E|$, and addnwe only thogr lmprclr eerocieicd wlh thc corutrucllon d
thc on sllc eld ofi-rlF infraalructure wiihin and adlrcrnt to th€ SPA. lmpectr tovnbc oltha
U,$. wouH be furlher a\roid€d and minimized ts s rGsult of the Arnonded Propaed Badtbone

Page 791

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pemil tlecbbn lD: SPt(-2007{2159

lnfraelruclure Altemative (ac dercrlbcd in Soction lll.a,3 bdow), and ihere b m eubdrntial
charqre h snvhorxnantal lmpacts lhel wsrarit lhe prryaratbn of e rupflcmontel Environrncntiel
Atccmment or ElS. Scprntr RODr or lrippbmcntrl ftcldon documcnta wlil ba compbbd ln
the futurc for tha I propcrlht propoecd for dcvthpmcnl wr'thh lhc SPA. Tha Orlgfnrlly
Propoecd Baokbone lnftartuduru Atcrnatiw lnw{vcr th6 dlt€hrtpc of flllmatcrial inlo 14,e7
acrgg o{ on+ilo end off-elte watars ol ths U.S" Aa euc{r, a Department ol tha Army pcrmil under
tha Raguhtory Progrern is required,

l. Brc*ground: $cs Scclfon I of thc Auguat 12,2011, ROD for r complotc background ol llte
SPA,lncluding the propccd Backbona lnfraelrudurc Prolcct,

ll. Proj.ci Purpoc rnd l{rrd

l. Purpor: Construct on-slla snd d-eile bed(bone lnfnclructurc, conelellng of rosd*.
utslty linar, snd wetcr iupily infnrtruoturu, to rcrr6 thc fulurr nrcdr of r hrg,c-rcele, mlxad-
use dawlopmcnt on lhe SPA,

b. l{rd: SacnEmonto C;ounly has bccn undcqo}g contlilrous growlh, and lrcrasd
lrcrltkrg nccdr hrvc bccn ldcntlflcd wlthh cerbm Sesemcnto C*nty, ln lddltlon, Oto Glty ol
Foltmr b ncr buiHoul withln tli cdrting llmilr rnd brlowc lhrtrddllbnC lcndr for lb futura
grcwlh wodd bc rcqulrud, ln rccordrncrwtth thc phnncd g?awth in routFocrlcm Srcnmrnio
Coufi, devrloperu purdresad propct! in 0re Fobont Sphcre of lnlluerrcc etcs, and th€ City of
Folsom *lgrr€d an MOU wlth thc Sacnarnenlo LAFCo for futtlre dovclopmant ol tha propoocd
prcJrci eruE, lo nrcct ldonllficd and cxprclrd hotlrirg dcmrndr. Backbona lnfraatructura (e.9.
roedt, hrllr. vrntcr tnd rulcr infnrfusluru, and rtom frh hfreltruc:turu) ir ncrdcd to
accomnrcdale thr mlrc6ueo dcwbgmcnt wlfi tha SPA.

lll. Albnrdvcr: A rcasonebb rerqe of altcmatlvu rruc coneldorcd in h€ EIR/EIS for both
lEnd<rre end wetar+upply, lndudlg badrbonc lrfrerlruclutc. Thc Atquet 12,2011, ROD b.
thr SPA tvtlrrrtod lhc precllcabiff d tha m-rttr elhnrthlrr tor lhc SPA, but dH not mdtl any
dccbbnr rtgrrdlng 0rc brckbonc Ffrr8uclurr, On S.etcmbcr 0, 2012, thc rpplicrnt
Eubmittcd Allemativee lnformation for 6 badtborp inhaatsudum alHnatlvc, ufidt muld furthor
rellne the Orginely Roporcd Eac*bone lrfaetrrrture l$terngtiw er snsryzcd ln thc EIRJEIS
by avoldhg and mlnlnldng watcc otthc U.S. Thc appflcertt Alarnailwr lnformrlbn rlro
sdr/!8 to provlla lnforneibn neemgsry to datcrmlnc conrgllence wlh lhc U.S. Envionmcnhl
Protrc-tlon A0pnc!/r Scction 1O{(bX1} Guidrliner (Guldalhar}. Thorr rlbmehru *ar: nd
aolr,ralcd ln thc EIR/EIS or ROD fur thc SPA. Any mc of thc tppfioutt't Ctrmrtilct for thc
backborn irfraslnrcturc, exood for one, appc.r b be prac{icottle bacad on coet, bglrlhs, and
exkfhg bdrrrclogy. Hor$av€r, Iorr d thc six alternatiwa urculd tstult ln avoHene of lc* then
lf3 rcrr of wetsrc of thc U.8. ln odrr to mrxlmlzc lhc svoldenca of wrtrn ol thc U.S, rnd to
dctcrmlnc wtrlch comblrrlbn of lhcre trrnrtivo lr pnctlceHc, tp 6 rllrmrtlwr provldd by
tho.ppfo.nt haw bcGn sombked lnto 4 albrrnthm, brrcd on locrlbn and rnaximhing
rrroidenoe ol ruatcre of th€ U.S. and irclude: tha Amended Propaed B$kbon€ lnfresfucfur€
Afbrnathe (Esrton Valhy Parhray (WGtlard Scotl Rmd Albrmthc); Earton Vallcy Prdwey
(Eastl end Emplrc Rencfr Rord Ntcrnrfvc: Sbrcl'A' rnd Orlt Annus Altrrnelhru; and Egton
Valby Perkwry (Wcrt), Eerton Vslley Prrkwry (Eert), Soo,il Rord, Emplro funcfi Ftotd. Shcct
'A'and Oak Awrruo Albrnatiw. Thr folowing backbone altrmetivcs era balng evrluelrd br
ompliance wiot thc Guidclines,

l. AllrrnrtfurConrldrnd:

Pe6 2 ol 20

Page 792

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Prnnll Elecirlon lD: SPK-2007-021 59

l. Af,rmrtw t; No Actlon Abrnrfv.: Thb allomrtlw weuld rffulth no inpecilE
lo weters of thc U,S. ae a feoult of tho oonstrrrlion of on{lb end ofi-rite infrrr0udure. Thle
albrnatlvc yuould ba acomfllshed ltr,or4fr the conrtrucfion of bddgee ovur rll wstGrt of the
U,S. br roedg and hc$r. end dlrectlonel dllllng bemdh rll retcrc of thc U,S, br thc lnthllation
of utlltty lhco. Bccrur of thc lmatlonof lhcwatrn diho U.S. wlhln Sr pmpo$d Brchbom
lnfrerlruduc ance, ! mlnimum of 30 rdrlillonelbrldga vroLdd ncrd to br aonr0urtad to fulfll
thls albrnativc. Thr Corf her dclrrmln d thrt hlr rltemative h not prec{lobb, dre lo lhc coet
for lhe conshudion of additionrl bddgree ard dlracilional drilfing for utllty linee.

2. Alrrnrtlvr 2: Odglnal Pmpomd Erclbonr lnlrrrtructrm Albrnrtlw: Tl{r
elhrnrtlvc nue rnrlyad h lhc ElRyElS rnd uosld rlow for pharod impbmcnhtlm of thc SPA

to rcrw thc comprchrnrivc nerdr of lhe enlire plsn eraa ln a rcgrncnted, phmcd rnrnner. Thc
propmed Beckbone lnfnEatnrcUre prcfec{ lndu&s maior roeds ard treils, walar and ccuar
inhrstructuru, end stom drdn hfrestudure. Seceu* of lhe unccrtchty ol ldFoGtlt
dcrulopmenl, lhls ellemrtlvc lncorporats thc phaccd implcauntatlon of lhc prcposcd
backbonc lnlraclnrc{un. Tha lmpacla h,r each rpcclflc phare unuld bc drtrrmincd prlor to
inlllalbn ol aomtrr.rcllon actMticr in uatrre of thr U.S, Thia rlttmrliw wouH rrrult ln imgsde to
14.97 asat of webrs of thc U.S,, hdudhg 12.62 acrrc on-sile ard 2.3{0 acrco of-rite.

Roada: Thle albmatlrc wouH hdudc mcJor dmrhtbn mede that would cert/€ the
cntirr SPA and rcglon.

Pedestrlan/Elcycla Treile: Thir rltanaliw rvould irrclude a rntuoA of Claar I and ll
bicycle tralle lhat would providr Glnn€ctiyity to trqils in Sacramcnto and El Dorado Cotlntiaa, A
multlqrsc lrell cyrEm would provldc pcdcttfun ard bicyde lnkege lhrougho.tt tha SPA area.
Tho proporcd ballr would tnlcdly omrld of & io f 2-fod uftc prwd lralle. Only thooe relb
occunirg wlthln opGn rp.ec .rrrc hrw hn h@rporst d wltHn thr propomd Bechbonc
lnfsrbuctup applbation. Propo$d br$6 loc.bd wnbin epcclfic profcct atuc {r,g, thr
Garpenter Rench s Foleom Soulh alte) treve bcan incorporated into thocc eppfitxtions.

Sanlhry Sc*or: Thb elternatlw hcludcr ruln rerilltry tatulr tyrtcm planrud forthc
$PA, lhoer r€wlm locehd in mrfor roedmyr gr ulrll as gepente tcwrrr llncr and ofrdtt
cmncclionr undar Highwry 5O.

Ordnage and Ftcod Conhol: Thls alts'metiw includca dcbntktn and wltsr quahy
baclffi trat rsrw ereaa gcstcr lhsn thc lndivldnl propcrtl€s on ufiidt thoy rru looattd,
lndudlng ona bcrln locrtcd drltc. lurt wctt of lhc SPA, on thc vul3t rldc of thc crlrffng Prairh
Clty Roed.

Wetsr Supply: This altcmative rvor.tld inclrdo the oonstnrotloo sf wster lima and e

watcr trlrtment phnt wtdc'tr rrvould bc locatcd ln tho tor.r0ruest pofllon d thc SPA.

Accoding to lnbrmcfon ruUnltbd bylhc rpplhrnt, fic rltcmrtlvc vtould raull ln
conrtn ption octc of rgpoxknrtely I 1 5, 781,000.

3. Altffirr$w 3: Arnudrd Prcgord Brclbonr lnfrrrtrudur Altrrntlvr
(Errton Vrlhy Prhny (W.dl rnd SoottRcd Albrntlw|: Thlr rltcrnellw would
inmrpontr lhe mepity Ef thr hehlrec d Atbrm6vu 2, bul wouH rrull kr ddl0oill lrroidrnca
of wetcrs of the U.S. through the rttfunmotrt d tfic propotd Easton Vrllay Frrkway on thc
Carpentrr Ranclr rilo on tha wectern eh of thc SPA. ard rualignment of the erirtng Scott
Road on the Folsom South Slte. and wouE avoil impact to an edllional 1.08 acras of a

Pago 3 of 20

Page 793

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pamit Dcclrbn lD: $PK-2fl)7-{121 59

soaeonal!ilrtlsnd locat€d nor$ ol the propoeed Eaebn Valley Parkway. ard 0.20 actes of
lnicrmlttcnt drrlnrgc on thr Folaorn So,rlh rltc. Realignmutt ol Eaeton VateyPedtway(Wcst)
would rqult ln th.lo.t si2.20 rcrcr ol dcwloprbla hnd prcpocod oo lhc Carpcnlr Rlndr
altc, rrrd rr llgnrmfit of Scott Roed rcdd Ecult h th6 larc of 1,$0 rcru of dcvcloprblc land
propacd on [p Folaom South Slte. Thlr clternaWc would be rcoomplirhcd hrough thc
constructlon of slope cmbeikm€nis and trc rtalnlng walle along the proposed Eaelon Valley
Parkway (Wctt). and ehiftlng Oro ccder$ne of thc axktlng Sodt Road 80-{bst to tho cesl ro thc
prcpced cdgc of prvcmcnt matchce thr cddlng cdgc of powmcnt, rcgleccmmt d crdcSng
undarstsd culvldr, rnd thc condrucllon of a hryc rrteinlrrg wall. Slmilrr rs Altcrmliw 2,
baceusa of thc uncsrbinty of rdjrcent dowlognonl, thir rtornrtlve hcorporrtsr thr ph$cd
implenrcnbtion of the propoaed badrbono inftaelrudure. Th€ impecils br eac'lt epecifr phaee
uould be deterninod pfurb hltlstlm olconsfucdon edlvltles ln walers dth. U.S, Baad on
informatbn c$mllt d by tha rppknl, thlc allcmrtlw rrculd ructlt kr addltlonelmnstruction
coete of $1,264,000 (epproxlmrtcly 7.9% gmetcr then tfic Origlnel Propoead Ba*bonc
I nfrarlrueturc Proird).

1. Albrrutlyr l: Emlon VdLy Prrltwey (Erlt) end Emphr Rrnch Rord
Altrmrllur: This slbrnetlw rvoukl hcuporate thc m$rity ol thc fuafurus of Altarnathp 2, hrt
urouH rcrull ln edctltlmal aroltlrncc ol waterc of hc U,S, firough thr rrallgnmrnt ol thc
pmporcd Erulon Vafiay Partway on lhc Folrqn South rlle, rnd rurlgnmcnt of hc propond
Emprire Rendr Rord gite, on lh€ Fobom Fbights pr4crty, on tha aestan cide of thc SPA, rnd
uouH resrjt ln tha awtsance of sn additional 0.0.2'l acrc of 6€€p, vcrnrl pool, and intemittent
dnlnagc on lhe couh sila ol thc ampomd Erslon Va[cy Farltuny, rnd 0.07 aorc of ceamnal
untlend to thc cmt d thc poporcd Emptre Rrnch Roed. Thir gllarnativc wonH rasult ln thc
ber of 0.40 acrrr of dcvtloprblc bnd proporad on tha Fobom South rllc. Rcrl[nmcnt d
Eecton Valey Pgrfirny (Eart) nould bc accomplLhcd thror4h rdiurting thc horlanbl rnd
verticelalignmcnt of Easlon Vellcy krlmily, and conatruciing r rctdnhg wellend slope
embankmcnb ncar the wetbnd btfura and raallgnrnent of thc proposrd Erplre Randr Roed
rrculd occr.rr throllgh tha conctrudbn of e ctahlng wall. BarGd on hfsmatbn rubtttlttcd by ttc
rppllcrnt, thb albmetlvc trouH rulr.di h eddltionelcorutructlm cortr of rp lo $750,000
{rpprorirnatcly 4.7596 gcel,cr thrn ttrc Odginrl ftoporcd tscslrbonr lnfrnrtrudurc Pndact}.

5. Alhrndiw 3: Strurt'A" rnd Odr Avrmr Albrnttn: Thls dtcrnatho wor.rH
lncorporatc lhe malodty of 0tc fcelurss of Altcmellw 2. but 'rrould rwull ln edlllonC avoldarrcs
ol welrre of the U.S. througtr lhc realgnmant sf thc propord Strud'A'on tht norlhem bordcr
of lhc proporcd Srcnmcnto Comtry Dey Schod eib, in thc :ouh-wnalcm porfrn of hc SP ,

arrd rcalprment of llp propoeed Odr Awnuc bcet d ncrrthe crrlcm bwndary of the
pmpoaed Folrcm 560 eite, in he soutlrurelcm portion of he SPA, Thls altemalive vvqrld avoH
an addltbnal 0.07 acra of scaaonel rw0and and intcrmittent drelnagc eouh of th. prcposed
$hrct "A,o tnd 0.76 rcru o{ rcronel uotlrnd nrvrlcl *r!t of lh6 proporcd Ork Avcnuc. Thls
rltcmetiva would rutull l: tlu loer 1.10 rccr of dctolopablc latd propccd m lhc Foborn
Sonth and Sacrsnanto Counby Dey Scfpol eilee, lnd he loa* 6 n.7 ecreg of davdopaUc
land proposed onthc Folsom 560sita. Reeligrmant ol Strual'A'would awid pwtlone of r
srasonal wotland swale and intermittcnl dralnagc through thc congffudion c rutahing utall.
wfilch woub lmprct r portlon of the lntsrmltlcnt drelnagc, and rcdlgnrmnl of Oak Avcruc to lhc
aad inrrolw thc mnctsrc'llon d e bddgc end rn addl0onal webr qudlty dctrntlon bgln.. grrad
on lnformrtbn cubmitted by thr applloanl, $ir elbrnativc wordd pault in d*lionel oonetnption
coctrc of S5,830,000 (apprcxlrnately 36.9% grcetcr than the Original Proporad Baqkbono
I nlraslruclua Prol€ct).

Pegc { of 10

Page 794

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pumlt Oeolslcn D: SPK-2fi)7-02159

!. Altrrndlvr 6: Enton Vrllry Prrkwry (tlbdl, 8ca'tl Xord, Etdon Vrllry
Prrlgry (Ertrl, Emdrr Rrnci Ro.d, 9lttil {Al tnd Ork Awnn AltrrnrtiYr: Thb
elternrtlrre b a comtlination of ell of the altematho derodbcd in lll(e[3) - (6) sbova, and would
avold an addltional 2.45 ecmc d rrvaters of the U.S. orrer the Orlglnal Proposed 8e*bone
lnfragfucture Atarnativc lhrough raallgnlncnt o{ rhr cxlstlng and proposcd roads throughout the
SPA. Thlt eltcmathlc wor.dd rceult h thc lorc of 41.0 rcrw of davcbpmcnt propocod on thc
Fobom South, Copenter Rrnsh, Srcramanlo Country Dry Schod, and Folcom 600 cltos. Thlr
altrnatlvs ruourld rsadt in addit'ronrloonrtudion meb of rpproxirnately 17,834,000'
(apprcrimately 49.6% gnater than thc Origlnal Prcpoeed Beckbone lnfrsslructut€ Proiect).

b. Drbrmlgtlon Ef Prrtlcrbh Albrnrtlvrr: Thc Colpe hm dctcrmlnrd lhat
Altcmrliwe t, 5, rnd 0 arc ml prrctlcrblc dus tq lha cortg urochtcd wlth lhe conrlrucilon of
additlonrl bridgca, dlrsclional ddlllng of utility linoe, and tha mnetruction of an eddilional storm
water quality delention besin. ln eddition, lhe Corps hss detarmined that sltemslivs 2, 3, and 4
meet the purpo66 and ned of the propo*d adhn, and are pracffcable ba$d on coets,
loglsllcs, rnd cxicUng tccfindogy.

c. Environmrntrlly Pnfrrcd Altrmrltw: Thc cnvkonmcnblly prcfcnld
elbmali\c is Atlcmativc 3. ths Amcnd€d Backbonc lnfrastructurc Altarnallw, wttictr consists of
the original propoead proi€cl. with ths incorporelion of arroldsne d rvetcrs d h. U.S. included
in lhe Eegton Vellay Parkwey (Wcct) Altemetiw and frre Sotl Roed Altcmaliw, Thlr
altrmrtlw nould rasull ln fmlr lmpactr to aquatlc rc(twc..lhrn pncticablc altmtr$wt 2 end
4, lmpec-tr to waten of the U.S. fronr frc envirsrmanlelly prufcncd rltcrnativc wouH bc ss
folloup:

WcllardrtV{atam 9c$b-lllhn
lrcl

Ofl€lto
Webn {acl

TotCWrbre
llq)

VamrlPool
Scaronrl Welland
Sr-gronal
9eep

Wetand_$q$€ _
Marah
CrcddChannol
TnlcmlGntffitrrsc

0.624 0.316 0.erm
t 0.06t
4.930 0,055 4.9E5

1 r.617

1,457
r.181 0.426 r.607
1.4s4 0.oll 1.53€

!!e[
Pond

0.356 0.007 0.369
0.052 0 ). t62

Total: 11 .302 2.349 13.651

lV. Commrntr on tln Frbnnry 12, 2013, Publlc l{odcc lorthr Prcpond Brdtbonr
lnftrdruclun, Crprntlr Rrnch, rnd Fobom Soullr Projrctr rnd Corge Rcrpolrr

l. Public ]{otlcr Gomnrnlr

1. U.S. Envtronm.iltlPl$.cllon trncy (EPA|: On March 11.2013. EPA
prwldcd the commrntc vlg cmrlon thr Fcbmry 12, 2013, public nolbc for lh. popoeod
Brckborp lnfrertnrctuta. Carpcntar Ronch, end Folrorn Sodh ProFcA. EPA'r comrnrnb
rclatad to dewloprnent ol erch of ths 3 prcrjecb ln tha publlo mtloe. snd thc anlio SPA, bul
wele not ralated to spaoifically tho proposed Backborr lrrfrestructure Prujcd belng evaluatcd in

Pap 6of20

Page 795

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pcrmlt Dcclsbn lO: SPK-2007-02139

tha$ ROD. EPA exprcssed conocmr about the'challengee tha applictnUt fH in findhg
epprryi.tc klndr end q6mlth! of mthnd h.bltst to ofhct thc ncrrly ilO rcru ol lmpct,' EPA
ehlcd thet thcy bcllcvc lhel thers ig e led( of rulbblc co,npGntatory mltlgrlbn avellrblc tor
imgec{r h th6 gPA. EPA rho Grprillcd eonorm thel thrru ir'inrdrqurtr lntlrttory lof rqurtc
rcrotrroll in exidhg brrkr to mctt lhe dcmendl' ol rll of fie proicclc orrelily propoiGd
wilhln stam Sacramento Cornty (e.9. SunCcek, Cordova l{ils, Mather Specific Phn}. ln
addlflon, EPA expcsscd thclr bclhf thst a ml[gethn ntro o{ 1:1 ]n Crllfornir is lnedcqutc, and
aftcr agglying lhc Corps mlilgrtion nello rcilng chrctllst, thay balar thtt thc retb would be
"wll ovcr 1:1.' EPA dro rhtcd thrt it ir uneoc.pbbh to ofirct the locs of thc typo gf w€Lrs
on lhc SPA rite with'dirtirrtivrly difhrcnf watcrt typce euch aa thoeg found et ttre Cosumnc
River Mltigatlon Bank. EPA'e commcnts further etrtcd thet while lt'might be reaaonrblc to
ollsat sodre of lhc prcjrrct lrprctr (c.9, comc dthe'riverlnc rcthnd!*), lhG resowcet !t thc
Ccumncs Rlrrr mltlgnffon bank crc luncNbnally and efuch.rslly dllfarcnt from thc low gredent
gardend hrbibti ol lhc Folrom tree."

ln additbn, EPA ettadrod theircomnunts on the FinalEtR/ElS forthe SPA. trthldt
contained the blbruing @mmsnt$:

te) EPA cxprarrad oonorm thrt thc epplicents rad thc Gl$ of Folsom hew rct
shown E ncrd for lhc pmporcd p'rojrdt in llgfil of dtangm in raplonrl ho$lng ma*cb, tnd
Gcommend€d lhC lhc Corpr mon thoroughly exrnfte lhe bsie furlho Ctty of Folgom'r
pndictims rqBrding popuhlbn groufrr and dawloprncnt nc€ds.

(b) EPA axprcared tficir bcllcf thrt lho No USACE Pcrnlt Alternatlvc end tha
Rcrourw lmprcl Mlnlmizrtbn Altrrnethc cvaluaicd in thc EIR/EIS providc algnlllcently rcduccd
edverrr tnvlrontmntal inprots snd rcoonmcrded thal thoee tulo altanralivcs be rafinad to
nreet tha Srcrrmento Arca Council of Govrmmetds (SACOG) densfty and srnert groe,lh goels,
srd lhst wllh thesc dcsign modllkatlon. ttr hsc damaging attcfliitlrrss may prow to be
pnc$crbb.

(c) EPA stst d thet preioct-lcvsl eltctnsliws may be lnconrirlenl wllh the
prognarmraltc nalure of tire EIR/EIS In that'mor€ avqdanoe and mlnimizetion may be
nec663gt et the pmjacl lewlto makc a flndlng lhatthe propoccd pr$d b the LEOPA' ln
eddltlon, EPA cxpncscd oonorrn thrl "oncr ho lergcr rvoldance rnd mlnlmlzrtlon depr haw
hn taton through the NEPA pnrccts, lhe ccopc d cftenga thst @{dd occur rt 0tr pqpoi trwl
rn y be lknltsd.' EPA alco contlnucd lo rxp.s!8lhc objoctlon thcy nhcd ln thc Dreft ElFi/ElS.
slating tret the oct crltcria urud within Ore DrEft EIR/EIS lo elirnlnate smte albrnathvec lor the
C.rpcnhr Rarch sile $€re lnappropdatc.

(d) EPA shbd that giwn ihc lnformaton provkhd ft lhc Fhal EIR/EIS, htl lt
hsc nol pt bccn damomtrctrd thst rddiliongl rrroidrncs ard mldmtsatlon lr lnprac{lcablc, and
until the dotorrrlnrton ol tho LEDPA b mede, dlccutsioo d cornpenesbry mfrgetion ie
premature. EPA fuilher commoottd that the Flnal EIR/EIS was deficbnt in thal it did not contaln
a dlccucgidt ol thc competing nccds on mitBa0on bcnk cradlt$ ln tha raglon. EPA cxpraaccd
lh. b.l$ thrt thc Sdih $loramcnlo Gounty Habnat Conscnnllon Plen (S$|-EP) would rcqulra
et rnrny, lf nol mors, of thc orcdilr thrt crc avalhblc st lhe .pprovod miligation bar*t in thc
araa, EPA arsrled Srat lhe ctrlsnmt rnithin the Finrl EIR/EIS thrt rmpb ctcdts an evailable
to compensete forthe irnpecta of Frc propoesd prolect, witroul taling lnlo acmunt addltlonal
futurc dcmsnd is mt adcquatc. ln addlthn. EPA conrnontsd that tha popoced mltlgsllon rado
ol 1:1 ls lnedcquetc, cltlng rtudlcr tlut hrvr found lhet lhrro eru fcw mitlgntion pofactr w{ttt

oonr0ug.tcd vcrnd pootr that oomprrr favorabty lo nalurrl planl corrmunllhe. Th'rrcfiorc. EPA

Pago 6 of 20

Page 796

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pernir o*iabn lor 8PX.ffi7{2159

rtatrd that a compcnllbry mlUgalbn ruUo of gtt.br thrn 1;1 lr nccdcd to rurllrlhelly ollrct
lorccr and moct the m-nct-loer of functiono threrhold. EPA rlro srcrtcd thrt rcvrnl dthc
licted mitiletirn benks ere locebd farftom the p$ecl aree and oul ol the immedlole waterehed,
end mrny cf the avaihble crcdG areoutof*lnd.

Coror Rrromrl Wlft rrgrrdrto EPA'rcommq{t nglrdiflg rultablc compcnratory
mlligrtlon for impeclr oroohtcd with thr pmporud prolcct, tha rpglicrnt hr ofritrd lo
compensete br impaots b untora of the U.S. through the grctnee of cradits frsm thc
Coewnncs River Floodplain MlUgaflon Bank for impacls to eeasonal wetlandr, ssaconal T,edand
awalcs, scops, manslxls, crseks. lnlermlttent dralnogcs, dllcfies, and ponda, and ttrough lhe
purchaac of crcdllr fmrn thc Tord Hl[ Ranch mltlgrlbn brnk fot lmprctr lo wmal pools. Bolh
Corumnca Rlver Fbodplrln Miligatbn Bank rnd Tord Hn Ranch oonlrln thc ptopoecd pql.ct
on.elte end ofiaite infiastructuru wittr*r lhair rervlo .rrr. ln qdar lo detsrrffne thr appropriatc
anrount d oonrpensstory mitigrtion ruquirsd, ttra Corps has ulili:ed the Soulh Pacilic OMsloo
Mlltgatlon Ratlo Seftlng Checkliet fur eadr type of water proposcd to bc lmpactcd. wt*ch b
locatad ln Appendlx A.

Vth comurwith thc EPA'r comnentlhrt ln rmtc ort l corttptnrrtory miligelbn would ba
oul-of-hlnd, parlicularly br improtcd t .F, dllchca, and ponde. ln emdarnc with 33 CFR
332.3(bX8), the Corpe has dotcmhod thet on-litr. intlnd mlt$ation h not prac{lcable q is
unlikcly to oompcnsetc for sre pmporcd impeots. The purcheec of flodplaln mocaic cnrdits to
coarpcnntc for lmpadc to rurlidlclloml dltdrca atd pondc rodd curlt ln oontonbn frmr e
rebtir,uly Esnmon wrbr typa to e nnr wabr typa. ard ir thcrrbtr appmpbtr. ln oddllbn.
bccausc Eoops cennot be repleood through permitbc regponsibb cornbuctirn or mltigetion
bank purc-hae, lhe Corpo hae determlned that lt is appmpdale to allw outcf-klnd
compsrgetory miilgatbn thmugfi tha purcheee of lloodpbh m6alc crtdltt et an lncrcascd ratlo.
Thc Corpr hm dcbnnincd lhat in*lrd oqnpcnrctory mUgotion crn oocw lor raaronel
wcllardr, scalonal rrrtlrnd rnnlrr, mrnhgc,6tork, rnd lnlarmitlent drelmgc lmpadr with thc
purchere of ffoodphin rpeaic and flmdplrh riperbn ctudltB rt thg Cotumnre Flmdphh
Mitigatbn Bank. and for vemal pools at the Toad Hlll Ranch Midgetbn Bsk, Bccau* the
propoced onalte and df*lte Backbonc lnfrealructurc would occurwlhin trlo dlfferrntS{lgil
HUG natsrahed. dlfrerent miligetlon rrlbe urrs delennlncd lortha watcrt of thc U.S. wihln
arch of lhcra *rtcrrhadr.

Tha Corps has det€rnined lhat the folhwing compenealory mitlgatlon is requitd ln order
to compcnsatc hr inpacfi to watem oil thG U.S. as a rasult of thc propored beckbone
lnftastudurc pcrmll:

.. To compnsstc for lhc loos of jurlcdialonal ditchce. pondr. rnd mrrthcr, thc rpplictnt
lvould be required lo purcfiecc lloodphin moeric rscabHiehment eredltg fiom the Columnes
Floodplah itfitlgation Bank at a ratio of 1:1.

b. Cruoke/chennab rnd lntcrmlttsnt dralnegce:

1. To compcnsste for the loes of oecks/channels erd intermittent draimgee locsted
in the Lourur American Rircr 8dlgil hfdrolodc unll cde (HUC) weterEhcd (018020111), the
app$cent umuld bc ruquirud tol purchecc lloodphln rlperbn re-csteb*chmenl crccllts fiom thc
Ccumncs Floodp{rin Miligetion Bank el a ntio ol2:1.

2. To cornpcneato for tha lsro of cruckr/channdc rnd intcmittont dreinagce locslcd
in Ole Upper Cosumnes River Fd'git HUC weiersh€d (18040013), the appllcant upuld bo

Page 7 ol 20

Page 797

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Permit Deciclon lD: SPK-X107O2,|59

r.qulred to pucfraee floodplaln ripaftn raetabllohrnant cr€dits from the Cozumnes Flmdplein
Mltlgatlon Bant et a nlio ol 1:1

c. Scrronrl uctlendt cnd tcmonrlwtllend rwalco:

1. To conpens.le for the locc of rearonal wetlends srd masonal wsdend walas
locatcd in thc Lmr Arnarlcan Rhrur &dlglt HUC unbdred. iltc rpplcrnt uotid be rcqulnd b
plrrcheu fiootlphin mcalc tu-cthbtstmcnt crdib lrom hc Cocumnec Floodplaln Mlflgrtlon
Bank et r nllo of 1,3;l

2. To compcmete forlhe toaa o{reoronelwtlends rnd serconelwslhnd swslss
located in 0re Uppcr Cocurnncs Rlwr Sdlglt HUC watershed, hc eppllcent uould be requhed to
prrcfiarc lloodplaln momlc recrbbLshment crcdltt from thc Goanmna Floodphin Mldge$on
Bank al a nlb of 1;1

d, Seaps

1. To compensate for thc bss ol rc.ps locabd h the Lorur Amedcan Rhor 8{igh
HUC wateahcd, tfic rppllcrnt nrould bc raquhed b purchrra floodpleln motrlc r*-
eeleHlehrn nt crcdltr hom thc Coa.mno Floodpbln Mlderllon Bank ol r ntlo of 4:1

2. To conponsate br the lors d csps locstrd h the Upgcr Cosqlnes Rhrer Edhit
HUC watanhcd, Urc rppllcanl would be raqulmd b purchasc floodplaln mordc re
cslabllahnrcnt credlts fiwn the CoLnrncg Fbodplaln !trtlgation Banh at r nlio of 3:1

!, To compcnrrb forthc locr of wrnrl @r, thc eppllcant upt{d br requited pwchaeo
vemeJ @ suatim credits ftsn the Tmd Hill Mltigalion Bank at e rtlo of 1:1

Barcd on thc abon ml0getlm retloc, thc rppllcrni $/ould bc rrqulod to pun*rerc tha
followlng cndllr b compcnutc for knprctr errocbtcd r.{th thc fpoc.d Br*bonc
lrdhcstruclun Prql.ct

Credit Tvoa EenkWcil.ndJWalss Amotnt Rrouhcd
erdlr

1 I
CosumnesI

I

'i

i

4.985

:-d.6f "-
1.45t--@_
1.536

-t4uL-
CruCt/Channcl
lntorrnittrnt

1.4€43r
6.319

2.911

2.1tr2

0.363
0.85a

Fhodplaln Mmalc

Floodplah Rlparlan

Marlc
Cosumncs

6;umn .0.363
0.662

13.0t{ 20,187Tolel:

P.go I of 20

Page 798

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Permfr Decleton lD: SPI(-2007-021 50

Eamd on tn April 24,2A11, rrd€r,v of the Roguhtory ln-Llcu Fcc md Bank lnlornatbn
Tnddng Systcm (RlBlTS), the Cosurnncs Floodptaln Mlllpffon Bet{t ius 113.96 avellablc
lloodplah mooelc credlti, erd 19.$5 rvrllebls flmdpldn rtgadrn onrdlb. erd lhc Toad Hlll
Ranch Mltlgnllon Bank hrs 8,07 rvalbblc rcrnal pool rrtrHlshmmt crudltr. Tharalora, hc
Co{pf hru datsmined that thc imprc'lr o{ ttrr foporcd Brdtbonr lnftrrtructura permlt can br
eppropriataty Fritigtt€d through tha purchrer of miliplion bar* sedlg re dcrcribcd abova, and
thel bolh lhc Cosumnes Riwr Floodphln Mlllgatbn Benk snd lha Toed HillRancfi Mltlgstioo
Bank haw sdllclent crtdl(e awllablc to compenrate lor these lrnpacG.

ln rceponrc tn EPA'I commrnl (elon hc Flnrl EIR/EIS, brucd on future growth
pr$ections, tho City qf Fdrcm gnd thc epplicrnt hew dctsrmincd lhel thcrc ir e nccd icr
housing end commerclal dovelopmont withh rorth-erstern Srcremcnto County. ln eddibn, on
Januery t8. 2012, the Local Agency Formatlon Convnlselon (LAFCo), approwd the appllcation
by the Cityof Foleonr to enn€x the propooed SPA arua hto lhc CiV of Folaom.ln addlllon, thc
car$flcgtion of the EIR and epprcnl of ltre Specilh Plen and zoning cnlltlcmcntl by thc City of
Folsom hdioolr € futurG nccd for rosldontlrl and comrncrcial uee in thc SPA, EPA hrt nd
prov{dad lolormatlcn lo hdicelc thet thrra lr nal r futurs nccd br danclopmonl ln roulh+*lem
Secramento County. Thcreilore, basad on aveila& infocnation. ttu Corps hag dslermined thet
th€fc ts a nd lor reskiEntbl and mmmcn:ial dcvcloprnent uitrln south-eeltcfn Secramento
County ln ordcr to mcct futwc growlh proJadbne.

ln rrrponr lo EPAI cornmcr{ (b)on lhc Finrl elR EhS, thc prciccl undcr oonrilrnlbn ia

not thc reddcntlaland ommercbldwelopment rvaluat d an tre EIFUEIS, but la lfie propottd
backbone Hrastructure to rupport thase propoaed dantcpmcnls. The backbone lrfraetructure
lrns locludcd as pcrt ol caclr ol thc dcwbpmmt eltcrnathcs wduatcd ln thc EIR/EIS. Ac
shlcd abo\o, lhc Copr hee dctcmlncd lhet th. tlo Ao{on Altcrnathrc lor thc bedtbonc
lnfrarlrwtun, ufiich b thc reme rg fic No USACE hrmit Albnntivr evalrebd in thc EIR/EIS,
is not practicebl€, due lo lhc nutnber ol bridgra lhst would bc ruquircd, and tlp dimc'tioosl
drfilng rcqukcd for lhe installation of utlllty [nee. Wth ngards b the Rcource lmpact
Mhlmlzation Altcmalive avahrehd ln thc EIR/EIS. thc bedGone hlrestructuru assoclattd wlth
thb rltrmatirc nould rcsult in thc rsmc ktpectr b wrtcn ol thc U.S. a lhr Origlnely
Propood Brdrbone lnfmeirucfi.rra Altcmatlvc. Thc cunrnty proporad Bsctbonc lnfrartusturs
PmJcct rcouH rcsull h tsursr impada to webrt ol the U.S. than thc bsct(bono inharbudura
unrH lor the Rgeouroe lmpact Mhrimization Albmethp clnlustod in lhc EIR/EIS, es tht
Resouroc lnpact Mlnlmizatlon Altemallw lncluded the sam€ hnpacle to walem ol the U.S. for
badtbone lnfraetructrre ag ths Orlglmlly Proposrd Backbonc lnftaafudure Altemathc,

Wllh rcgrrds lo EPA'a cornrncnt (c) on ttu Fkal EIR/EIS, lhc eppllcent hu inoorpontrd
addltlonal erroldencs of wat€rg ae r naeull of rddillonal cvalualion of rltocnrliwr. The Oorpo hae
deilermined lhgl wfrile thase sddltionel eltsmativet w6rE not cvslrrat€d in the EIRJEIS, they still
fal wl{hin the raaeonable rarqa ol allcmetlwc evalutod ln thc EIR/EIS, and do not rtpatant
an inccare in cnvironnrcnlel lmprctr bcyofid thore addrcread ln th. EIR/EIS. Thcnbrc, a
eup$mentrl dc&lon dooumcnt ir mt rcqulrcd b anrlyre thccc cfub. EPA'r commsnl
regedlng thc propossd Caponler Flenoh aitc lr mlcd, end wil ba addmarad wihln tha ROD or
clppbmenhl dsdaion documont for lhal projcct.

Wl[r rtgerdc to EPAI comment (d)on the Flnel EIR/EIS, wG colrctr wllh EPA'I rtrtsm€flt
thrt d tho Umc lha Flnal EIR/EIS wn puUirhrd, iltc epplicant'r for tha SPA hrd not
dcmonstsated lhat rddlilontl erridenoc end minimlzetion ir impncticebb, and thcrrforr
discussions of oompensetory mlthra0oft rvtro premsturs. Thu February 12, 2013, Pt$lb t'lotle
for lhe proposed Badtbone lnfraslructur€ pmJec-t hduded altematfuee lnformation prepared by

Pogc I d 20

Page 799

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pgmit Ocoisbn lD: SPK-20tlt-02159

the applieant for review md approval by EPA. EPA did not provide any spacific comments
regardlng tt{r altcrnatirae lnformetlon. Wlth regnrds lo EPA'r oommcnl thct thc Flnel EIR/EIS
is dcficbnt in lhat lt dld rct dlrcuec compotlng nccdr on mitlgriion hnk crdlb ln thc roglon, ro
ghtld lbovc, rufficlcnt cornpcnretuy rnitigEtirxr cndlr arc rvrlhble at thr Co*mnce Rlwr
Mitigrtlon Benk rnd Tod Hlll Rrnch Mi0grlion bcnl to comp€nEst€ brirnpadr of the propoeed
pror€sl m watss of he U.S. We acknowledge that if all propocad adions in the regitm ere
eppornd, there erc not sufllcient cradlts avalhbla et thc e)dsthg rnlUgtEtbn bar*s. Houcvcr. ll
ls not our rccponribHity to cnsurc thet suflkCcnl orudff3 ffc ewlleblc br ellprdcctr 0ut are
cuncntly proporcd. nor b lt fcrglbh for w b m.kc this detcrnlnetlon, Ee th€r€ may bc
addltlonal mltlgntlon banks epproved ln thc fuUre. .nd wr do not yct knorv whclher elt proposed
prujects monld be approrcd or what the raquirud compsrisatory n*tigatbn would be for thorc
proJects, lf there ars nol sufflcieni crudlts ewilablc for future pnofecll that are permltad wilhln
thc rcgbn, fic appllcant br thocc pmlecte rmuld need to althrr propoac end have epprorrcd
pcrmlttcc-rorponrlblc conrpansatory mltlgr0on, orunuld rct bc eblc to oomm.nor conrtrrclion
untll sufficlcnt crcdib arc avsllrblc.

2. l$r, Krryl Smlth, Prrldrnt, K.A Srnlth Coneultlttg, lnc; $rndy, Utrh: On
Fcbruery 13. 2013, hls. Srnith commGntd lhd'(Qllllrq almori 30 ectts ol wctlands in lhl ycar
2013 h rbturd rugrcil"li ol trowgood r corop.nrilory mfrgrtlon phn ic.'ln rddltloo, Mr-
$mth netcd lhci 'rlmplc trrchrrc of mitlgCbn ccilr fran rrtlend mtigrtlon brnkr b onty
rnaking mltlgatbn bar* dcwlopan rnd rcr6cntlrllinduffLldevdopcrs ridt while thc wildlifo
continuer to lcc critical h$itd nloasary to susteln thck conflnrcd survlvel.'Ms. Smilh Cso
provlded hcr bellef tlul only a unell pcrccntag oilrrvtthnd mligatlon prcJeda arc succars{ttl kt
ttu lmgr-lenn, eepeclally blbwing tha $yeer rnonlodng pmgrlm ruqulrad at plrl of a {14
pcrmit. Fhelly, Mr. Smlh ommcntod thrt'vund pool rrmlttvc rnd cndengrrqd rpcclc s€
migratory b{rde necd thoh nrturrlhebitrt ln thcirorlgind rroac of hleloric flyweys and olhrr
arare to be preeerued for their conlinucd euvival.'

Corn Rmoonr: Mr. Smflh's commcnt obiccllng to the pbomanl of fill mrtcrirl ffio'tlmort
30 acrao of uclhndr.'ir rpted ln e*ordcncc with Src Scclion 404(bX1) Guiddlncr, no pcntt
u,l[ bc lsluad for a proJrt unlcu il is slpwn to b. th.lcrrt erwirsnmcntdly drmrgfn!
pracdcabla allarndiw. Wi{fi regeda to Mc. Stt{th't comrnrnt rugrrding wctlatd mltlgation
prclccts, bdh lh€ Cocumnes Fbodflaln Miilgatlon Benk and the ToEd Hlll Mltigotion Bank hrw
gonc lhmqgh hc mlsgatlon bank rrylcw prm,rrt rGqdrad undcr 3lt CFR Fert 332, wtldt
includod cxtcntlw rurlry by lha lnlcregcncy Rrvbw Tcrm. rrqdrumenB for ahort-lxm rrd
brg-lrrm moniiorkrg, end ruquhanotta brfinenciel aerrrnrnoca b encurq tueotil. Thmfort,
lhc Corpc har detcrmined [rat there is a llkolihood thsl thc esteblished and GaetaUleh€d
hablht on thesc sltco will be swcsseful, arrd that he ueo of thess banke la agproprhte lor
oompensatory mlilgalion for the proporcd Bad6ons lnfreslruldute troJcct.

V. Conrldrrnlon ol Appllc.bL l,.rwr rnd Pollclr

l. l{rlionrl Elwhronmontrl Pollcy A.l (NEPA}: Thc EIR/EIS wst complded to cvaluate
a reasonablc rengc of hn&usc {includlng bedtbonc hfrrsfucturc}rnd nnter+upply
alicmrtlws and th€ cumula0w lmpr{ts ruodetcd wlth nlnc prcircrE ln thc SPA. Each of ttrc
lend ura ahcmrtiwr Includcd lho Ortglnilly Propoccd Bac*bone lnftgrfucture Alttmethru, rs
dercribed ln Ssction lll.a.2 rborae. Ttrs Corpe follorsd frta NEPA proecri) lnc{uding rotioir4
and llmelina ruquiramenF, lo pmduce a doctment that dlsclorcs to fte publlc thc probable
inpacts of the Prcpccd Aclkn. takhg into accourt dtlgalbn. Tho EIR/EIS wag uscd an tln
praparatlon of thle ROD br lhc on'eils and ofl-altc Btd$on6 lnfrestruclurr projcct.

Pege 10 ol ?0

Page 800

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pqrnlt Decirbn lDr SPX-2007{2169

b. Srcillon l0l of lhl Clnn UVrtrr Act 3rcrlon l0l of thr CUYA: A Srotion 401 W.lcr
Qurltty Certlfbrtlon WOC) war iaruod by thG Ccnlral Velhy Rcgbnal Wets Chr.[ty Conlrol
Boerd on Octobcr 18, 2013, br ttro propomd Bgckbmo lr*ectructurc prciod. The WQC wlll be
a mnditlon d hc permit.

c. Endrr[ff.d Eprcnu Aci ol ll73: orr DccembcrS, 2010, wc hlthted congulbtlon
$rih thc Unlted Suteg Firh end Wlldllh Scrvica (USFffS) for potcntlC lrprcla of thc propocad
proiod on th€ Federafiflieted wrnll pod faiy rhrimp (&rrcfilrpda tfiahtl, vorncl pool tedpob
shrimp (Lepklurus peckerdl), offisolancyfuiry shrimp l*archhada corcerve). Valley
elderbarry longhom b€etle (Dcwrearuc celffoalftxrs d/nrorpfius), Sacrancnto Orcutl gra*
l0rcuil/l vlsoi/e), and Stendar Orcutt gntr (Orcuilla /nnukl. USFWS drtermlncd h thc Aprll 2,
2014, Blobgkul Opinbn {8O, Flla Numbcr 81'U0-20t0-F-0820-l } lhrt hat ibt for conecrvanoy
faky ehrimp, Secramstto Orcutgresr. and Slcrrdsr Orsutt graer docr nol ocur in lfic o*citc or
ofi-site infrastuc-ture erBE, rrd autttorhod the takc of 0.294 acras of hrbiht forvemal poolfairy
shrlmp and remal pod bdpol€ shrimp, and slx alderb€ny sluubs. A specbl condition will be
addcd to ths pcrmlt, rcqdrlng ornpllance wlth lhc btued BO.

d. Flrh rnd gnEllfil Coordinrllon Ach The Corpc hae wortrd wilh ttc USFWS on lhe
proporod projoct, induding neetinge lo obtain hput, Dudng ElRiElS preperelion, the Corpe
requerted USFWS bo s cooperEting egcncy. Altfrough ll dedined, the USFWS revlcnud the
drstt ol fta ElRlElS and govHed commcntc.

r. llrgnurm-Ettvrnr Flrhrry Conmnrtlon rnd trnrgrmril Act (llrgnuron-
Stwrnr Ac{: The gopccd pror.ct ir lncompl[ance with thc irhgnr,nonStrvcnc Acl. Th€
poposed proiect and other En+{rr€ and wsler-ar.pply altarnatiwe upuld nol rasult in any
irpaAs to essentlelfish hatiist.

t Erctlon t0t of thr lldbnrl Hlrtclc Prrmrvrllon Acfi Thc Corpe har congultcd
nith thc Stale Hhtoric Prescnalirn Omfr (SHPO) and the Mvisory Gor.rncil on Hhtoric
Praserrratfon (ACHF). Thrangh consultikr with lhe SHPO, a Programmatic Agreement (PA)
bclwecn the Corps and thc Calibmia Omc6 of Historic Pruaenntlon was prupatcd and *ee
rrccuted on July 0. 2011. ln rddltbn. on Oclobcr 3, 2013, rn emcndcd PA wsr cxcattcd by thc
Gorps cnd SHPTO. A rpcirlcondlli0n wi[ br addcd to thc p.rntt, cquidng compllrncc wlth 0tc
PA.

g. Scctbn t7t{Glof thc Cban Ah Act IGAA} GcncrrlGonlormlty Ruh Rcvbu: The
pmposcd gc{bn has bccn analyzed for confurmlty appllcabilily purauant to rcgdatlons
implcmentlng Sacffon 170tc) of thc Clcan Alr Ac't. Thc Corpa har dctumhsd lhet dirucl
rmlrgionc Forn h. propoacd adivilbc thet rcquiru a OA permit will not crcccd de mlnimia
leruls of e crilrrris pofutrnt o its preonsss and cr€ oxcmphd by 40 CFR 93.15.?. Any hter
lndircd embslons er" gficrelly not withln thc Corpe'conliruing progrem resFmsltlilily ild
generally cannoi be pradicabfy contro0ad by the Corps. For lhcgs russong, a oonbrmlly
debrmlnatlon fs not rcqukrd for lh*r eclbn.

h. Exroutlw Ordrr lrgg0 (Floodf,dn lrnegemril): The area rlong Aldsr Creek
wlfttr flows through the SPA has been idenlifled by tfi€ California Department of Waier
Recourcas aa lying wlthln e l0Gyar ftoodplaln. \i/hlb the prcpoccd mlred-usa devclopment
would arnH lha 10O-year floodplaln cf Aldcr Crak, thcrt lr somc bsdbone inFartluctuc thtt
would nmd to br bcstcd wilhln thc fbodplaln, pafticulerly rcrds and bridgcl, Ar crplrlncd in
Scdlm 3A.9 of lh€ DraftElR/ElS, lhae impaota wsL{d ba ruduccd to bc-thapslgniftcont,
prwlded Mltigalion Maaeure 3A,92 is implemented. Tha prcpoeod Bac*bons lnFrastrudurc

Pege 1l of20

Page 801

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pcrrnil Dcc*don lD: SPK-200742169

prolact would csult h rnlnlmal lmpacts to the floodpleln of Alder Creck, and has bcan appmvod
ry thc Clty d Folrorn-

i. Errcuthr Ord.r ltl76 (Gomulffion wlth lndhn Trlb.f, Ah.k llrtlvr. rnd
Nrtlrr Hrwrllrnr|: Ourhg thc dcvaloprncnt of lhr PA, rnd tho rmstdcd PA, lht Corpr hea
ooneulted wtth lha two hhet thal may havi en inhrrrt ln tho lrtt. lhe Shhglc Smrys Brnd sf
MisEft lndlans. *rd lhc Unilod ArfiJrn lndhn Ccnmunily" BoOr kibcr an conorrlng pedles on
thG PA, end, pcr lhG PA. wfl bG mrudted durhg thc danchpncnt ol any Momorunda of
Agnrcmrnl (lytOA!) nqulrrd for lndlv{durlcomplhnca wllh Srlhn 1(E of thr NHP .

t, Erwlronmnhl Jurtlcr (Tltlr Vl of tft. Clvll Rlgfitr Act rnd Erreutlrr Ordrr
l2t$|: No low{nomc or mhority populatbnc are ldentlfied wllhin or adFooitt to thc SPA or
withln or rdfecnt to any of tho gopoocd watcr-supply eltamathrce. The ptoposcC adlon ls not
epcclcd to ncgrUvcty lmp.ct rny conmunity. rnd lhcralorc L nol cxpcotod to crurc
dhproportkrnelaly ttgh ard odverre impecb lo mhorlty or lorlrrcome oommmltltc.

Vl. CmgHrntlon of llUgrtlon llorurrr Sor thr Amrnff Pronomd Brclbme
lnftrrtrucrrr Prcfrct:

Thc EIR/EIS includrd I numbcr of mltlgrtion m.eiun6 to rcducc or ofrct lmprcL lhrt fell
outrHe of lhe Ctrpt rurgonslblllty and gorcmlly crmol bc pncficeUy mntmllrd by thr Corpe,
like lraffrc, air quelity, and miea. Many of the mifta0on m€aeureg arc reqdr'emonb of the bcal
land use ag€ncy (ClV of Folsotnl and uprc addrrsscd fr tho EIR/EIS fu ompllrncc wtth CEOA
and wor.ff bc apptornd thrcugh Erae€ tnd condructlon pcrnltr by lhc Clty of Foleorn. Ar
such, crSorwmcrt of thcsr nritlgnlion m..rur!e ir thc rerpomlHlty of lhc Ci$ of Fdeom end
not thc Corpr.

T?rG Coes ruqules miSgatlon rnalrunee lo rcduce or oftsat tnpaots to tratsm o{ tho U.S.
ar rpcdal condlthne of cech OA pcmlt lcsu€d. I?lcrs s@C cottdltom etc Hcnfllcd in
Sccllon Vlll, rnd bkr lnb eoount mltigntlm mc.Eurlg 3A.Sla, 343-1b,38.3-1a, 38.91b End
38.3-lc, gt dc*r0rd h Chrphn 3A.3 eM 38.3 of lhr Dnfi EIR/EIS, rnd rlro hdude
additbnrl endltlone lhat avo,ld, minimlap rnd cornpngstc fq inpods to *abr sf Irs U.S. Ird
thosr thd srsur€ canpliancc wl0r Scctbn 7 d tlu Endangpcd Sp€d€t Act and Secilb{t t00 of
thc Nathnrt Hltlorlc Pmserualbn Act.

Vll: Gcnfllrncr wlth a0qbflf l GuHrllnlr for thr Am.nd.d Propord Brclboor
lnfrrrtrudrn Proirct:

Besed on fta dlgcuBslon ln Sedion lll, arc here ava{ablc, practhablc rltemativcc havlng less
edvcrrc irpoct on thc equatlc acoayatcm and wllhorlt othrr rlgrilcant adversc cnvlmnmental
co{n qlrnorr thrl do mt tnuolva dirchrrgo into "nttcru of ha U.8," tr rl oth.r lqtkmr
w{thin llur untcc? Ya _ No X
]l the pdaa b ln a epecirsl aqrntic site and ia not water d@ndcnl, har the afficant deedy
damonstretsd lhet thore ert no practicable altamslhn eiies awlhble? Ycs X l'lo _
Willthq dlrcfirrgo;

Molstr sbte watar qu*ity sGndards? Yea 

- 
No X

Vlolstr toric ellluant alendards rndcr Scc{ion W7 6 ilu Clsan WebrAct? Yce hft X

Pegp 12 ol A)

Page 802

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Psmll Drchlol lD: SPK-2007{2169

Jropardirc cndangcrud or thuhnGd rpmicc or thcir crlticalhebltrt? Ycr- Nol-
Violalo standards g€l by the Depafimsnt of Commarce to pmlrc{ merinc ssnotuarbc?
Yes_ NoA

Eraluetlon of tht lrformetion ln thc EIFUEI$ krdlcrtct thrt lhc propolrd dbdurg€ mttcrhl
mrcts trltlng excltnlon crticria for the following rrmo{r}:

(X) based on he above informatbn, thc mstffial b not a canicr d oontrmfuiants,

t ) [rB lcvt of oonbmiunls arc subat nUdly slmlltr al thc cxtrecUon and dlepocrl rltre
and thc dbcfirrgc is not U(cly to ruult ln degrodrfion of the dlrporal rltc and pollutantr wlll not
be Fensporied lo leet contrminated are8.

( ) accept$le consbahrb are ewllable and will be lnplernented lo reduce contamlnatlon to
accaptablc lavcb witHn the dlepotl rlle and pmwnt conliaminants from belng lransportad
bcyond the boundarlac ol the dlrposel allc.

Wt lhe discharge confibutc lo rignifrcrrt dcgndrtion of Aatert of thc U.S,'through adverse
imgaclls to:

Humen hallh or *dhri. Orrough pollullcn of municiplnmtar atpplics, fidr, shcfish,
wiHllfc orrd/ot rpoclal rqurtb rllct? Yca 

- 
hfo X

Lile stages of aguath life and/or wildlife? Yes 

- 
No A

Divcnlty, produdivlty, end cbblllty of thc equrllc llfc end othct tttildllfc? Or wlHHtc trbttat
or lrss of tha cspadly of wrtlerd; lo .lrimilrtc outrlcnh. prlfy weter or rtduoe wrro cnelgy?
Ycs_ No X

Rccrealional, aesthelic and emnomic valueo? Ycs 

- 
No. X

Wtl a$ rppmpbta end prc{k:eblc rtcpc br lekrn to minimlzc rdvrrrc lmpob of tha dlrchlrgp
on thc rquetic rmyetcm? Docs Ure propotsl incftrdc aatlfic'tory ocnpcnnlory mlligalion fot
loses daquatir: rcsouros? Yes J No *
Vlll. Spcchl Condltlonr

Thc following rpcc*el mndllioru wlllbe hch.rded in thc pcrmitto cneurc tha prolact le nd
contnary lo thc puHic intereet end complire with lhe 4(H (bxl) Guldcfines end othcr applicab]c
laso:

1. Prbr to thc lnltlatlon o{ conglrudion ac'tlvllbs ln walcrg of lhe U.S. uroclatcd with
redr phme of concbuctlon of the badbonc infrasUudurt, you rlullautsnlt to the Cotpe. for
rqvtcw and approwl, r plan-view drawing of thc uork propoocO to be conductqd witl{n that
phaee, and croes-scctircn vhu drmings of all croslngs d watsrs of the U.S., as well rs pre-
construction cobr pholographs of the upstrum and domstrsam trraa of oaci crcslng. Thc
comprss anglc and locetion of aach pholognlph thril bc idmllft€d on thc plan-view drawiry. ln
addlllon, pu rhrll indudc r dcaor{ptlon o{ eny dcvietirnr (lncludlng c$rrryrc! in phrtlp
scquonco or bounderies of phesec) fiom hc authorlad wort, inchrding the amount and Vpc of
watcrs that uouH be impedcd, ard lhe amount and type of compensatory mitigalion thrl ulouH

Pagp 13 or 20

Page 803

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pcrmlt Declslon lO; SPI(-2007{2169

be requkcd. You ehEllensure lhat thc dcscrlplhn prwklcd includos informatlon rcgerding any
ternporary lmpade to weters o{ th. U.S.

Rrllonrh: Thts ctlndlbn /s ncccrrrry to ensarp oornpliutoo wllh lhe parmll and
aplicaffi mndltbne and to ens.rrr lhal rc chengee hew occunad lo lhc ptWsnd pt1fr,cl priu
{u eacfi plrcsc.. (33 USC 1344(t),33 USC 101 at. scg., 33 Cffi rl0.afift), 33 CFR
325.1(a)(3); ss CFR 326|

2. Prior to thc lnitlalion of cach pharc d dcvdopment, you rhrll compcnrate for 0tc loge
of waters of the U.S, within thet phrae through the purdrera of mitigation credlls from thc
Cosumneg Flmdplafi trfitlgntloo Bsr* and/or trc Tord Hlll Mitigelion Bsnk rt the following
mrnpematbn to impac{ radoe for aquatlc rsso(ncas ijofitlffed on thc Ftgure 20. Cunart
E*ltbotrc lmor,ct Plan (3/1112) drawing, prcparrd by ECORP Contulllng, lnc.:

E. To compansetc for thc loer of jurisdldiond dltchcc. pmdr. lnd marrhcc, you
ehall purchsse lloo$hin nrosab re+rtrbllrhmcrrl crodG from the Goewm€e Floodplaln
Miligalion Bank at a ratio ol 1:1;

b. Cmokc/channclr and lntarmlilcnl drrlntgce:

(1) To oompcmata for the lcss of crackCchanrple end inlermitcnt drrlnaget
located in the Lowr Arnericen Rlwr Edgit hydroloeic mil ode (HUC) waterehed (0180201 11),
you shall purchasc lloodplain rtgarlan re+stabllehmant crcdts frqn tht Cosumnrc Floodplaln
Mlllgatlon B.nh 6l e rstlo of 2:1,

(2) To oornpensate for the looe of creckglchsnnelr and inlermitlenl drainages
locabd in the Upper Cosumnes Rivar Sdidt HUC wrtcrshed (18O4(Xt13), you shallpurchase
lloodplaln rlparlan reestrabllshmenl credlls from tre Ccurnnet Floodphln Mitigatbn Bank et a
ralb of 1:1

c. Seaeonsl wetlerdB and ssagonaludhnd rvurlsl:

(1) To compeneatc for the lcs of seasqtal woilando rnd *asonal watland
smlel locrlrd in thc Lowcr Amedcrn Rrvcr $d[ft HUG Yvrtcnhcd, you rhefl purchoer
lloodplah moselo rc-astEbllshrn€nt crcdils from thc Cocumnct Flmdplrin ltlfthation Benh et a
rslb of 1.3:l

(2) To compensale for the loes of Eaeson€l wallanda and geasonal watland
swalcs locatcd ln lho Uppcr Coarmms Rlwr &dlglt HUC rveEmhcd, ltou rhall purdusc
lbodphln morelc rc.eebbllshmcnt cndltr from thc Cocumncc Floodphin MlUgatbn Brnk at a
rptio of l;1

d. Sccps

(l) To aompcnratc for thc lom of lspi locetad ln lhc Lorar Amlricsn Rhrur &
dbit HUC vratcrrhcd, yw rhsl{ purohare floodpleln mocalc rc-csl,eHbhmcnt crrdltr fr,om thc
Corumncc Floodplrin Mitlgntlon Ber* el a relio of 4;1

(2) To compenaale for tho bss of saeps located ln tha tJgpcr Goeunrnag Rinr &
digfl HUC wetcrthad, you shell purcherc tloodplsh moreh rc-ctlablbfirncnt crudlts from lhc
Cocunrnco Floodplrln Miligotion Banl at c ratio of 3:l

Pegt 14 o{ 20

Page 804

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Parmfi Dcolrlon lO: SPI(-2007{2150

c. To compenrate for tha loer of wmrl poola. yor rhall purchE$ vcmrl pool
creatiorr credits fmm the Tosd Hill Mitigation Bsnk et e rstb of 1:1

futbmhl: l?r/s speclal condillq /s necessely to c*our a npenutuy rrniilgrttbtt fq the
unav&cblc |ococs ol wdcrt otttre U.S. duc lo thc rcn&udoll al lhe prcposed polcot. (gg
cFR 320.4(r)flf ea CFR 326.1(a)(3; 33 CFR 3321.

3. You shall snsura thet ,npccts associrlod with dl aossings of Alder Creek are
lamprery ln naluro and do not result in lhe pemonent locs of watare in Aldor Crsek. Yott sfiell
delgn road crc!6lngr of Aldar Crack b mahtoln ttu pruonafuctbn bankfull wldth of the
creek. as wdl er accornmodata mesmsbly forceerblc wlldllfe prs3tgc end crpcclcd high
flowe. Thig ehafi bt ecoomplahed by (1] cmploylng bddgo dasQnt that span AHer Craekl (2]
utllizirp piar or pib sWported strucluree; (3) uliilzirg largO bottomlcse cuh€rte lhat do not
impacithe nat$al strsam bed: and/or (4) uflhing a lerge box culvert whlch spsns the wldth of
Alder Craek. and lg installad benaath lhe netunl b€d o{ Aldcr Creek. For thc Insiellalbn of any
prcgoced box culvrrtc in Aldar Crctk, you rhall rcdoru lhc natr.ret thimbed to cnert het
subctratc and rtrcemllow condition* approdmab orlghd chrnnal condltiona, ln ecoordancc
with Spedel Condilion 3. Al crpesingr of watere of ttre U.$.. inohrding Aldar Clrd(, rhlll bc
rervierled and approved by thc Gorps prior tu lniliatbn of construction aciivi0ts in waFrs ol he
U.S., ar Hcnttllod h SpeclalGondHon 1"

Rrlt/rc,tnh: Thfs sprial cr,nffin ts nsor,rcry b trisrrc mln*nizelfur of &npc/c to Aldtr
Creek, and fo ensurl t d tfufunclhns of tlrc aqrtCic cnvironmcril ao prctr,leld, ln edtfrbn,
this qndtlon crlr.res lhst the Corps is provded sryledlic inlqmetion rcgedlhtg croso*tgs of all
wd6rso/theU.S, prbrtothelntlalhrofconslruclbnaoffrnilics..(33CFR320.4(rl(l):33CFR
326.4(tX3; 39 CFR 332,40CFR 230t.

4. Witrin 30 dayt bllowing com$ction of cech crossing of Alder Cract, you thrll rurlore
arms of the crek tenporadly impocted. as wellas afi di8lurbed adiacent uphrd et€es, to pr6-
prqcd oonlolrs and condltlons. ln order to ensurc compllence wtth thls cordltion, you chaU:

L Prior to lha lnltietlon d rny concbudion of crocehgr of Abcr Creak, rubmil to the
Corps, for revicw end apg.wal, a glan fot tho reobralion of bmporary impect ansBt, You sheH

indude tho HlorvirU hformetion in this phn:

(1) A clcscrlpllon of and dnwlnge showing tha erbling contora (elavallon) and

cxirling wgrlalion of cech crorclng of Alder Clrr€t and tha sdJ&.nt uplmd eraee. Thls
inlormrlon ahall alro induda aitc pholographe lakrn upetrcam rnd downdrcam cf ccch
temporary lmprct arca.

(2) The mettrods r.u€d lo reelora Alder Grcek and the adJacent Whnd el rech
omcsing lo lhc orlglnal contour end condilion, Es wallaa a plen for thc r+vogctetlrn of hr rtr
lolloruing conetrudbn a ctivllh s, lf a ppliceble.

{3) The proposed echedub br the r€Btomtion ec'tMlies, and;

(4) A rnor*toring plen, to bc apporod by the Corpr, for rctlotufnn ol tha
tcmpocary lnpec,t erce to Gnsuro rucort of ths rartooson^ fulonibdng chr$ bc condwted for a
minimum of ihrae grodng Eeasons afrer cornfletbn d rctoretion edivities. Th€ plen rhall be

Prge 1i ol 20

Page 805

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pemll Dcdrbn lD: SPX-2007{2169

pcsontcd ln lhc format otfi. Secramcnto DlCrld's Heillat tffilgeffion and Nlonttoring Ptqposa,
Guldrrlltps, drtcd tlcocmbcr 30,2004, or eppmp.latc updrtac.

b, Wllfiin 30 dryr lollowlng cornpbllon of rcrtoratlon rotivltlcc, aubmlt to lhc Corpe e
report dcscribing tha mCoration ectiviticr imludlng cobr phobgnphr o{ thc nrstorrd rne. The
corngsEa rnglc end posidon ol atr photognphs shtll be similar to the pre-construcfion
photogrephc reqdr€d ln SpeealCondlthn 1.

c, Submit to thc Corpr r Monltorlrrg Rrport by Octobrr 1 of rgcfi par of tttc requlrcd
monitodng pcriod. Thir rcpoil shdl bo rubrnithd in thc formst ehown on thc andorcd Conlcnls
of l4onitoring Rcporls. Rcports may bs rubmlttcd ln had copy or electronicelly,

Frilonrh; Thls Wclal eindltlul As nccorscry fto cngnt succassfu, nslotdbn ol all
tcnplrry hnqats edrltrcrlzcd (33 CFR 3110,4(rxfi,33 CFR 325,1(a)(3),3it CFR 332,10CFR
2n).

5. You shafl 6nsur€ thal lrcnching adivlties in walcr o{ the U.S. aseodated wilh lha
lnstaltetbn d utlllty lkrs docr nol rcult h thc dnhlng cf eny welu of ho U.9., lncludlng
wrllancla. Thlr mry bc accompl$cd through thc urc d cby blodt!, bsrtonltc, or othar sulEblt
mrterlal (re approvcd by th. Corpr) lo acrlthc bGncfi. For utilty llnc lrtndur, dwing
aonslruclion, you :hel rcrnow and rilockpllo, seperataly, trc top 6 - 12 incficr d toproil.
Fdlowlrn lnrhlatbn of Ure dllity Ine(s). tori ehel rcdace the etocftplled bpcoil m bp and
sced lhc area wlltr nstlrru vcgrtatbn. Al utfrty llrut ln lvatan d lhc U.S. shall bc rcvlcwrd and
approvcd by thc Gorpr prlor to lnliletlon ol onrtructlon actlvlticr ln urrtcrr of ttrc U,S,. at
ldcntlflcd In SpcdelConditbn 1,

Rrllonrb.' Ifus spocial condltlott is ncceseary lo €nsure mbln{zatlon ol hnpar/.s due to
lrenching for ths faE/riilelfln of utffiy lhes, EN lo enswe rcstuatlon ol theso seec (33 CFR
sza.aft)fi\; ss CFR 325.4(sl(3; 3it CFR 932, 10 CFR 230).

0, Prior b iritirtlon eny plrrae sf corntruction rc{ivilica wlthin welrrt of lhc U.S,, yur
shall empby conEhudion bett menegomenl prectice (BMPo) withln 5${cat of al onslte end
ofi-sllc watcru of lhe U.S. to bc avol&d. ilcfiod! rhrll hduds thc usc of appropriaF
mGeluna lo lntrmpt end caplurr $dFn€nt pdor to cntcdng webrc o{ thG U.S., eg urol rr
eroslon control mcrEurut ehng thc pcrlnacrof rll$rort rruer to prcrtcltt ftc dlrdrocmcnt of
fil metcrial. All SMPI shrfl bc ln phcc prhr to inlUctim of eny c,omfuo'iion rclivltbr (or prbr to
the inltlatlon of eacfr ph*e of thc pniedl and shall rcmrin unlil onstruction ectivitcr ara
complded, Yotl shail meinbln crulm confol methods untilal orrsila solls elc sbHlized. You
shqll submll r dcrcrptlm of and phdo{ocrrrncnhtlon d your BMPo to ow oflbc wllh
lnlormaBon nqulmd ln Sp*lrf Condrlioo 1,

Etllqnle Thitt @ndil/rcn rs ncorsary to mhlmi* cdrurre funpc{s lo wetx qwllty, frorn
a n*udm adrlvtFls, to llrr- maxdmum extent przrlllceile (33 CFR 32A3$), 33 CFR 32A4q,
33 cFR 325.1(aX3)).

7. Yql rtrell lmplament tha stbchrd Prognmmatio Agrrcmanl (PA). enttcd First
Amcndsd @enmatlc Agrccmonl Edwtrn tfic U,S. kmy Corps of Errghtccrs aN llle
&llfqnia Ofrcn o( Hlstqlc ftesantdirt Regrdlry ffie Folsom tun Arr'a SpecflIc Pian,
Secrarncnto &urt;y, Cilfofiiie, and aigncd by thcea €nttllat, h lte stlirdy, Thc Corps lns bcsn
d*lgnetcd th. lcsd bdcrut sg.noy rGeportlblc fur lmpbmcntlng rnd cn{orclq thr PA rt
eigncd. lf you fall to comply wifi thr implomonhlton rrrd asloclelcd rnforocmcnl of thc PA th.

Prgr t0 ol 20

Page 806

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Prmh Orcblon lO: SPK-2007{2150

Corpr miy drtcrmlni lhat you !ru out of complbncc wlth thc oonditlonr ol thc Dcpartmrnt of
the Army pcrmlt rrd arapcnd fie pcrmlt, Sr,npcncnn may rerult ln modlllcrlion or rc\roc.lion ol
lhs aulhsizsd sarft.

Rrdonrh. This andltlon is necesserylo ensure compilarw wlfi Sectlcn 106 of lhe
NrlJoru, Hlcierdc Prcsrllrwttsln Act (16 UgC 170, 33 CFR 320.4e);33 CFR 926.2(b)(3);33 CFR
326, Appe/?d,Ix C: 3A CFR SttO).

8. This C.orps permil does not euthorize you to tekc an endengered sp€cbs, in pailicular
vemal pml falry shrfmp (Eranchinecta lyrchtl, vcmal pool hrlpole strimp lLcpldurus pac*xdfl,
and vdley eHerbeny hrghorn besUc {Dcsmoocruc cdllunbusdttnorplrus). ln order to lcgelly
tekc a llrtcd epcclar, you murt harre rcprrato eulhorlrstlon undcr ho Endengsred Spcdee Act
(c.9., an Endangarad Spcciar Acl Sac{ion 10 pcrmit, or r BiologlcalOpir$on undcr Endangerud
Species Aot Section 7, wilh 'inddental tahe'provisbns with which you must cunpty), Thc
enclos€d Fleh and WiHlih Servioe BlolqlioalOplnion (Number S1{2G2010-F{1620-t, dated
April 2, 2A141, contaids mandatory tcrms and condltlont to lmplenenl lhe rsasonsbla and
pnrdent m€slume lhat arc sseooialcd wilh "incklcntal lahe''lhat is aho rpccifiod in the
Eiologlcal Opir*rn. Your authorizelbn undcr this Corpr pcrmlt b oontlltlonrl upon your
complbnce with rll of ths mrndrtory terms andcondltlcnt essoclalad with kroHantelbtso of
lhe attachEd BiobgicalOplnbn, wfrich terms end conditims ars incorporated by rglertna in
thls permit, Faihrre to cunpf with he terns ard condillons assoclatad with incldontal tako of
tht SiologlcalOplnion, ndraru a bka of the lhtcd spaciot occurt, vrcuH conttltulr en
unrulhorizrd tshl, and lt would ebo conatllula norFcomplhmc with your CorF pcmil. Tha U.
8. Figh ad WiHlife SeMe ir the appropriab authority to dctcrminc compliena wilhths tcnne
and condiffons of ib/tlplr Bbloglcat Oplilrn, and with the Endengaed Spccies Act You must
cornpry wilh all corditbna of this Biological Oplnion, lnclding those ascrbed to the Corps.

Rrdonrb. Thie cmdltton ls rcceseriry lo ensura oompllttcs wilfi $ecilbn 7 o{thc
Errdlquora,d Specrs Act (1G USC t6tt cl oeg,'50 CFR 102;33 CFR 320.$)(4;33 CFR
32s.2(b)(51; 3E cFR 3?daF)0),

g. Yorr ehall notify the Corpc of thc gtert and comphtion detes br cadt phere of ihc
euthoficd vyork rrrflhln 10 oehnder dryr prior to tho lr{tlrtbn ol cmrtudion ecllvttice wlhln
wstcn of lh. U,S,, errd 10 crlcodrr drye followrng oompbtlon of conrlruc{lon rctlvillct.

frrflonrle: This cordlillon is necussery to asssl the Cups tn solndulhtg s@lera,re
dnqpeotlrrns o en$r? cora,li#,nce wllh the pxrnfr and afllcailc cp,ndilluts (33 CFR 326.4; 33
cFR 326).

10. You ar6 r€sporiabls for all work aulhothd hercin and onturing lhet all ontraclors
and nrxkers are made snarc and adhere to ihe terms ard condllions of this permit
eutho?izetlon, You slrellcnsur€ that a had copy ol the permlt authortsatbn and assodaled
drrr ,kigi rru avallablc fa qulck rdarencc at lhc pmfec{ eite unUl ell corutrucllm ac{Mtlar aru
complrlrd.

Rrtfovrrfo.' Thlscondttlonrsneccseaqytoensurethatall nryfersodsite ueanreof he
lerms aml wndlllqts ol ttta permll in o/d/q lo cnsute comgllarrcf wilh lhe p€/rlmil and agpllcable
cottdltlons (ilt CFR 326.1;33 CFR 326).

11. You shall clcelly lthn@ 0rc llmite orf all cnnetruc'llon srsaa loc.lsd withln 100 fcct of
avoidsd watero of the U.S, wilh hlghly vieible markere {e.9, constrrclion fencing,fbgging, silt

Page 17 of 20

Page 807

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Pcrnrit Decblon lDr SPK-2007{2180

banhrs, atc.) prior to cornrnoncement of orch phase of oonstruclion activltcs in wabrs of the
U.S, Yql chell nCnbln rrch ldentlflcatlon propary undl consfudion araar and sollt hrw bcen
tbbllrcd. You arn pohlbltad from mdsrtrklng rry sollylty {c.9, equlpmcnt u!.gt or metrrhb
tlongc) thtt lmpc{t wtLn ol lhe U.S. oulride of tha parmlt llmlts.

Rrttomlr This oottdlhn rg necpsoary fo enswe lhe andtwl*cn ectiritnr do rrct oqw
otsda olllrc prolacl araa, whhh could cause adwrse lnptslotfn qudlc ooocyrbm f33
cFR 325.1(eN3)).

12. You ehelt us€ only chan and rrcn'toxic fill materlC for thir pojrct. Th€ fill matcrill
shsll br Fro fiom items sudr ss tresh, dsbris, Eutomoliw prrt, mphelt ooneUudion rnotcrlab,
concrste wllh txpoecd relnhrcemsnt bars, and solle contrmlnetad with any toxic substence, in
toxlc amounls h acoordanm wlth Sectlon 307 sl tht Glcan Watcr Act.

R.dotrnL: This @ndffon is nocrocry to cnsrnt llult oontaarlmlcd mclr.:lal in not prcrd
wilhinyuttlrs of tlrc U.S. (33 CFR 326.1(a)(3);10CFR 230)"

13. Ai cmssings of e,rcaks, sGlEonel wetland rwalcs, lntcrmlttgtt or cphcrnaral dralnage,
wtpre tha upttrurm or downctrcrm porllom of thc hrturc rra hbndcd to bc evdded, chafr bc
condrcbd rtrcn thc proJcd arua lr neturelly dcwrlccd, or ir drwatrcd in rmordgnd urith r
Cprpe epprevsd dctrateiing phn. fS work rhdl bc cordlc{ad in frorlrp wttGrs.

f,rdonrh: Thls condlbn a nocescary to minlmln &wnstnem lmfis fic lts ag.ratb
cnvhorutpld lmm suqeadad godfucn|a end ftrffiW lo thc merimum cilcnt riadlcrlffc- (3:l
CFR 320.3(c), 3E CFR n0.4d); 33 CFR 925.1(tX3); 10 CFR zul
lX. PuUiclntmrt Rrvbrr

.. Thr nlrtlvr.d.nt of fto publlc rnd prlvetr nxd lor thr prcpord ra* hm
brn cquldr6d: Thc propocd Backbona lnfrertructrne PrQcci lr inbrdcd to mcct c privab
nccd for lrfrrctruduG arcoclatcd wlth mixcd-uaa dewlopment.

b. Thr prucilceHlltt of udng rrronrbb rlbnrtfur locrtlonr rndlor mr{rodr to
accompllrh th. obl.cihr. of th. pmpord dructtlr orwort hrl brn rvrlurtrd: Thc
Coes hee dGtemhcd that tharu rre no pracUceble eltcrnetc locdloru thrl would accomplbh
ihc purpocc dthr pmpomd v*ork, Thc Corpt hrr dso dcHmhrd thrtlft€fs ir m pncllcrbls
eltcrnatiw mcffrod to accompllrh the prrpca qtthe propoq€d um* thstumtld have fcprdirect
or hdhcd knpadc than lhe proposd project. The rppllcant's Amended Proposed Bac{tbonc
lnlrcstructlsc prolct repruacnb fre LEDPA, es dcocrlbcd h Sccflon ll(e).

c. Thr trbnt md Frnnrnrncr of lht brnrflcH ndlor d*ftmt*.| dlbdr thrt lh.
prcpcrd rhrtur.t or work rry heur on thr publkl rnd prtvrb uaaa utftich thr ru lr
eulbd hrr brn mvbwrd: The Arncnded hoposcd B.d6mc lnhartructureallarmtlvcwould
result ln lhc placemcnt ol flll mrtcrlol into, and the permrnent bcc of 13.85 ecres of untrrg ol
the U.S., lndudlng unllurdr, for ilro conslructlon of a backbonc infradruclure in thc SPA. Thc
br o( 13.06 acrce of wrltn ol lh. U.S would c.un e pormur.nt dctrNnmtal dhct. Thc brc
of wetcre of thc U.S er s Grull of the proporcd BcckbonG lnfnrbudurc would b€ oftal by tho
requhd mitigetion. Thc proposed beckbone lfifrestrudum, corirllrp of rooda, ulillty linct, and
tralls wotdd provlde a parrffinant beneficial efioct to reailcnts h and near lhe proposed pn{ecl
sib.

Prgr lE ol 20

Page 808

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Prnlt Dcclrlon lD: SPI(-2007.02'50

X. Flndlngt

r. The detarminatlonE made wilHn lhb ROD are consistent wtilr tho* madc in tfic
Ar€urt 12,201l, ROO br Up SPA

b. Ths rvrluetbn of Sre propos.d rcilon gnd dtrnrlivcg wrl dom in rcoordrncc wilh
ellappHcrblc hwr, exrcrdhr€ ordc(t, ard regtdetlono. Thc EIREIS rnd suppodtg docmantr
are edequate and contain sufficbnt lnformElion lo make g r€asonod pemit dedtion.

o. Thc rcbdcd eltcrnativr ir tlu rppla.nl'r Amondcd Proporcd Backbwrc lnfrertructure
Alhrnrliw, wlth eppppdair rnd prsdlolbb mltlgrtion rn rurr! u mlnimEc cnv{tofincntel
hrrm rnd pdentirl advrnc imp€ds ol ha dbcharg$ on lha aquatlc ecolydcm rnd the human
anvlronment, ar ldentilied in Section Vlll. Thc applicant'e Amended Pruposad Baclbone
lnfrssiructur€ Altcmslive, as mlllgeted by theee condltiors, b onsldcrad lhc cnvimnmentafly
pnlcncd altcrnatlw undcr NEPA,

d. The dircharyc mmpler with th. Scdbn {O{bXl}guidelinc rnd ir oonrldrrud thc
loest cnv*onmanblly damegirg pnrcticrbla altcrnrtlyu, wtth fF lnolwi,on d rpproprlata rrd
practicebh general and 3pecial condttbns ln the permlt b minimize pollutioo or edrece efiecb
to lhc afrodcd ccosyetcm.

c. lnurnos of r Dcprrtment of thr Amy pormit b not contrery lo lhr publb lntrratt, wllh
the lndudon of tfts epedal oonditinr ldcnllfird ln Saction Vlll.

t. ThG compensalory mit$atbn idenlllbd in thc spsdalcondltbns, was dctarmlned uslng
thc $oulh P.(ffi DMtlon M@ion Relb Srllhg Chrcftfid. and lr rulllciant to cnrulr rwrGt
lorr of equetlc rcsounBrt finc'tionr and mrvioc for impec{s to 13.65 ecrqa of nrtoru dhs U.S.

Pega 19ol20

Page 809

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Furnlt Hlm lD: SPK-2007{ZiE0

PREPARED IY;

dlo sIMH
Ortc

zD ini'!r.,, //
rhb /

22twrprl
Drlc

?crvL+y

Li.t M. GDlon
Srrfrr Pnrl.dt ltlungr
Caffonda Soilh Brendr

REYIEII'ED IY:

A,
Cltbt
Crtbmir Sq/th Erendr

RrulEwtD l\f:

',

Cley
of Couud

Srcnmrnb Olttlct

AFPROVED IY:

S. Jts/rl
Chlrf, Rcgunory

Prp 20 d20

Page 810

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit 3
Applicant's FPASP Consistency Analysis

Page 811

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1(Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small LotVestingTentativeSubdivision Map

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes

The street system is based on an

efficient grid system that connects the
project with nearby parlj school, and

open space land uses with roadways

and sidewalks.

4.1
Create pedestrian-oriented neighborhoods through the use of a grid system of streets

where feasible, sidewalks, bike paths and trails. Residential neighborhoods shall be

linked, where appropriate, to encourage pedestrian and bicycle travel.

The project is part of a residential

neighborhood, and connects to
schools, trails, and parks via the
roadwav and sidewalk network.

Yes4,2
Residential neiShborhoods shall include neighborhood focal points such as schools,

parks, and trails. Neighborhood parks shall be centrally located and easily accessible,

where appropriate.

n/a

The project is not directly adjacent to
open space. Access to nearby open

space is provided via the roadway and

sidewalk network.

Residential neighborhoods that are directly adJacent to open space shall provide al

least trvo defined points of pedestrian access into the open space area.
4,3

Yes

The project contains housing types

within the allowable density range of
the MLD zoning, which is the zoning

for the small lot vesting tentative
subdivision map souEht.

4.4
Provide a variety of housing opportunities for residents to participate in the home"

ownership market,

nla
The project does not propose MHD

residential uses.
4.5

All multl-family high density residential sites shall provide on-site recreatlonal

amenities for its residents, unless directly adjacent to a park site.

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Consistent

Map

No

December, 20L9

Exhibit 3
I

Page 812

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 tMangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes

The project does not exceed the total
number of dwelling units for the Plan

Area and does not inlcude commercial

uses.

As establlshed by the FPASp, the total number of dwelling units for the Plan Area is

11,461 and the total commercial square footage ls 2,788,844L, The number of unlts

within individual residential land use parcels may vary so long as the number ol

dwelling units falls within the allowable denslty range for a particular land use

designation. For purposes of CEQA compliance for discretionary proiects, th€

combination of the total maximum number of resldentlal units and commercial squar€

tootaSe analyzed in the Folsom Plan Area specific Plan Envlronmental

Report/Envlronmental lmpact Statement (scH#200092051) shall not be exceeded

$rlthout requiring further CEQA compllance.

4,6

nla
The project is not located at the
intersection of East Bidwell street and

Alder Creek Parkway.

t.6A

A maximum of 937 low, medium and high density residential dwelling units ar€

allowed only ln the three General Commercial (SP-GC) parcels and the Regional

Commercial (SP-RC) parcel located at the intersection of East Bidwell street and Alder

Creek Parkway. No more and no less thanJTT high density residential dwelling units

on a minimum of 15.7 acres shall be provided on these parcels. other than the sP-Rc

and three SP-GC parcels specifically identlfled hetein, thls pollcy 4.6A shall not apply to

any other Plan Area SP-RC or SP-GC parcels.

Y€s

The proposed transfer of 15 SFHD

development units from TPASP Parcel

143 to FPASP Parcels 24 (+6du) and

173 (+9du) will not exceed the
maximum density {7.0 units per acre

for Parcel 24; 7.0-12.0 unlts per acre

for Parcel 173) permitted within those

land use categories, nor will the overali

FPASP dwelling unit maximum be

exceeded,

Transfer of dwelling units is permitted betlveen residential parcels, or the residential

component of SP-RC and SP€C parcels, as long as 1) the maxlmum density within

each land use designation is not exceeded, unless the land use designatlon is revlsed

by a specitic plan amendment, and 2) the total number of Plan Area dwelling units

does not exceed 11,451.

4,7

Map
Co nsistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

Exhibit3

Dsember, 2019

Page 813

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Ana lysis

Each na^, residential development shall be designed with a system of local streets,

collector streets, and access to an arterial road that protects the residents from

through traffic.

Yes

The project has a heircharial street
layout to provide an efficient
circulation system consistent wlth the
Speclflc Plan.

4.8

nla
The project includes 71 dwelling units.

Therefore the pollcy does not apply to
the project.

4.9

Subdivisions of 200 dwelllngs unlts or more not immedlately adjacent to a

neighborlrood or community park are encouraged to develop one or more local parks

ls needed to provide convenient resident access to chlldren's plan areas, picnic areas

and unproBrammed open turf area, lf provlded. these local parks shall be maintalned

by a landscape and li8hting district or homeowne/s association and shall not receiv€

or provide substitute park land dedication credit for parks requlred by the FPASP.

Commerclal Potlcles

nla
The Project does not propose any

mixed-use development, Therefore the
policy does not apply to the project,

4.10
Ihe mixed-use town center should contain unique retall, entertainment and service'

bas€d establishments, as well as public gathering spaces.

nla
The Project does not propose any

mixed-use development, Therefore th€

policy does not apply to the project.
4.tL The mixed-use neighborhood center should contain retail and service-based

establishments that are intended to serve the immediate area in which it is located.

The Project does not propose any

commercial dwelopment, Therefore

the policy does not apply to the
oroiect.

nla4.12
Commercial and office areas should be accessible via public transit routes, wher€

feasible.

nla

The Project does not propose any

commercial development. Therefore

the policy does not apply to the
oroiect,

tl.13 lhe Plan Area land use plan should include commerclal, light industria/offlce park and

public/quasipublic land uses in order to create employment.

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Rema rks

ConsistentNo

Map

Dsember,2019

Exhibit 3
3

Page 814

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 {Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

lrn" ,,.nrr", of commercial

lnaministrative 
Procedures.

intensity ls permltted as provided in Section 13.3 -
4.L4

lThe Project does not propose any

I commerical development. Therefore

Ithe policy does not apply to the
loroiect.

nla

ODcn Saace Potlcles

Yes lrh" pro;".t *ttl not reduce the amount

lof 
preserved natural open space.

lrnirty p"r.unt (30%) of the Plan Area shall be preserved and maintained as natura

lop"n 
rna.e consistent with Artlcle 7.08.c ofthe Folsom CiW Charter.

.t.15

lrn" oo.n

lnreservea

space land use designatlon shall provide for the permanent protection 01
4.16

wetlands.

lrne prolect does not include open

lsnace 
land uses. Therefore the policy

ldoes 
not apply to the project.

nla

FPASP Policy Map
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No Consistent

D€cemb€r,2019

Exhibit 3

4

Page 815

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Pot&s Potlcles

nla

No park sites are proposed, and no
proposed park sites wlll be altered by

the project. Therefore the policl does

not apply to the project.

4.L7

Land shall be reserved for parks as shown in Figure 4.3 - Specific Plan Land Use

Deslgnations and Table 4.2 - Land Use Summary. on future tentative subdivision map!

or planned development applications, park sites shall be withln 1/8 of a mile of thc

locations shown in Figure 4.3 - Specific Plan tand Use Desi8nations. Perk sltes adjacenl

to school sites should remain adjacent to schools to provide forjoint use

opportunlties with the Folsom-Cordova Unified School District. Park sites adjacent tc

open space shall remain adjacent to open space to provide staging areas and accesr

points to the open space for the public.

Yes
The project does not reduce the land

to be dedicated for parks.
4.18

Sufficient land shall be dedicated for park to meet the City of Folsom requiremenl

(General Plan Policy 35.8) of 5-acres of parks for wery X,000 residents.

Yes
Adjacent parks will be accessible by all

residents in the project via sidewaik5.
4.19

Parks shall be located throughout the Plan Area and link€d to residentla

neighborhoods vla sidewalks, bike paths and trails. where appropriate. Durlng th€

review of tentative maps or planned development applicationt the city shall verif,

that parks are provlded ln the appropriate locations and that theY are accessible tc

resident via sidewalks, bike paths and tralls.

nla
The project does not propose school ot
park uses. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the prorect.
4.20

Elementary school sites shall be co-located with pa*s to encourage joint-use of parkr

where feasible.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No

December,2019

Exhibit 3
5

Page 816

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes

The infrastructure needed to serve the
Pro.iect area is consistent with the
adopted Specific Plan and the updated

infrastructure plans.

4.2L

Land shall be reserved for public servlces and facilities, as required by the City ol

Folsom. Public services and facllities sites shall be in the general locations as shown in

Figure 4.3 - Specific Plan Land Us€ Designations.

fhe project would not alter the
location of proposed school sites.

Yes4,2:2

Land shall be reserved for schools as required by the City of Folsom and the Folsom

Cordova Unified School District in accordance with state law. School sites shall be in

the general locations shown in Figure 4.3 - specific Plan Land Use Desi8nations and

have comparable acreages as establlshed in Table 4.2 - Land Use Summary'

nla
Ihe project does not propose school or

park uses. Therefore the pollcy does

not apply to the project.
Elementary school sites shall be co-located with parks to encoura8e joint-use of parks,4,29

Yes

Ihe project would not alter the
location of proposed public/quasi-

public sites.

4.4

All Public./Quasi-Public sites shown in Fi8ure 4.3 - Specific Plan Land Use Designations

may be relocated or abandoned as a minor admlnlstrative modification of the FPASP.

The land use deslgnatlon of the vacated site or sites will revert to the lowest denslty

adjacent residentlal land use. ln no event shall the maximum number of Plan Area

dwelling units exceed 11,461 and the total commercial building area exceed 2,788,EE4

square feet2. For purposes of CEQA compliance for discretionary projects, the

combination of the total maximum number of residential units and commercial square

footage analyzed in the Folsom Plan Area Speclfic Plan Environmental hpacl
Report/Environmental lmpact Statement (SCH#200809205) shall not be exceeded

without requirinB further CEOA compliance.

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Co nsiste ntNo.

Map

December, 2019

EqhibitS
6

Page 817

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Element Policies in the FPASPFolsom

nla

Thls policy directs the City in its

decision-makinB and planning

processes. The project proposes

residential land uses that comply with
the existlng zoning and land use

designation at the project site.

H-1.1
rhe city shall ensure that sufficient land is designated and zoned in a range of
residential densities to accommodate the city's regional share of housing.

nla

This policy directs the City in its

decision-makinS and planning

processes. The project proposes

residential land uses that comply with
the existing zoning and land use

desisnation at the project site.

H.1.2
Ihe city shall endeavor to designate future sites for higher density housing near transit

stops, commercial services, and schools where appropriate and feasible.

^/a

This polict directs the City in its

declsion-making and plannlng

processes. The project proposes a

density of 9.84 units per acre, which is

within the applicable range of 7-12

units per acre.

H.{.3
Ihe city shall encourage home builders to develop their proJects on multi-family

designated land at the high end of the applicable density range.

nla

This policl directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

processes. The project site is zoned

MID.

Ihe City shall support and facilitate the development of second units on single-family

designated and zoned parcels.
H-1.4

nla

This policy directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

processes. The project will comply with
all mitigation measures in the FPASP

EIR and Addendums. See MMRP.

The city shall ensure that new development pays its fair share in financing public

Facilities and seMces and pursues financial assistance techniques to reduce the cost

impact on the production of affordable houslng.
H-l.6

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
RemarksFPASP Policy Description

No

December,2019

Exhibit 3
7

Page 818

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Manginl Ranch Phase !., Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

nla
Ihis policy directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

0rocesses.

l{-t.8 The city shall strive to create additional opportunities for mixed-use and transit
oriented development,

H.3.1
The city shall encourage resldentlal projects affordable to a mix of household lncomes

and dlsperse affordable houslng prdects throughout the city to achieve a ba:ance of
housing ln all neighborhoods and communities.

nla

I nF polrca dlrects tne city ln lts decBlon-
making and plannint processes. The

Project proposes residentlal development
rvlthin the overall mlx of household

H-5.2

The city shall continue to use federal and state subsidies, as well as inclusionary

housinB in-lieu fees, affordable housinS impact fees on non-residential developm€nt,

and other fees collected into the Housing Trust Fund in a cost-efficient manner to
meet th€ needs of lower-income households, includlng extremely low-income

households.

nla
fhis policy dlrects the City in its decision-
makinE and plannlng processes. The
Drdect proposes resldentlal development,

nla
This pollcy dlrects the City in its decislon-

maklng and plannlng processes. The

Project does not seek a density bonus.

H-3.3
Ihe city shall continue to make density bonuses available to affordable and senior

housing projects, consistent with State law and Chapter 17.102 of the Folsom

irunicipal code.

nla

This policy directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

processes. The Proiect is subject to the
Amended and Revised Development

Arreement.

H-3.4
where appropriate, the city shall use development a8reements to assist housing

developers in complying with city afiordable housing Eoals.

nla

This policy directs the Clty in lts

declslon-maklng and plannlng

processes. The Project is subject to the
Amended and Restated Development

Acreement.

H€.5 The city shall make incentlves available to.property owners wlth existing development

agreements to encourage the development of affordable housing.

nla

Ihis policy directs the City in its

decision-maklng and planning

processes. The proJect does not
propose houslng for seniors or persons

wlth dlsabllities.

H-5.2

The city shall encourage housing for seniors and persons with disabilitles to be located

near publlc transportation, shoppln& medlcal, and other essential services and

facilities.

Map
Consiste nt

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No

Exhibit3
December, 2019

Page 819

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, lot L0] Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Ana lysis

nla

This policy dlrects the clty in its

decision-making and planning

processes. The Project complies with
the Folsom Ranch, Central District

Design Guidelines and City standards

for residential neisborhoods.

H.5.4

Ihe citv shall encourage prlvate efforts to remove physical barrlers and improve

accessibility for houslng units and residential neighborhoods to meet the needs of
person with dlsabilities.

nla
This policy directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

orocesseS,

H6.7 The city shall continue to provide zonlnB to accommodate future need for facilities to
serve city residents in need of emergency shelter.

nla

this policy directs the Clty in its

declsion-making and planning

processes. The Project does not
propose non-resldential uses.

ll.5.l0 The city shall encourage developers to include spaces in proposed buildings or sltes on

which child care facilities could be developed or leased by a child care operator'

nla
Ihis policy directs the City lo its

decision-making and planninB

processes.
H4..2

The clty shall asslst in the enforcement of falr housing laws by providing information

and referrals to organizations that can receive and investigate fair housing alle8ations,

monitor compliance with fair housing laws, and refer possible violations to enforcing

atencies.

nla
This policy directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

processes.
H:t.1

The city shall continue to lmplement state energy-efficient standards to new

resldential development.

nla
This policy directs the City in its

decislon-making and planning

Drocesses,

The city shall include energy conservation Suidelines as part of the development

standards for the speclfic plan area.
H-7.2

nla
This policy directs the city in its

decislon-maklng and planning

orocesses.
H.7.3

The city shall reduce residential cooling needs associated with the urban heat island

effect.

Ihis policy directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

orocesses,

nlaH-7.1
The city shall promote an increase in the energy efficiency of new and exlsting housine

beyond minimum state requirem€nts.

FPASP Policy

No.

Map
FPASP Policv Description Remarks

Consistent

Deember, 2019

Exhibit 3
9

Page 820

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

H-7.5 The city shall encourage the increased use of renewable energy. nla
This policy directs the City in lts

decision-making and planning

orocesses.

H-7.6
The clty shall encourage '!mart growth" that accommodates higher density residential

uses near transit, bicycle and pedestrian friendly areas of the city that encourage and

facilitate the conservation of resources by reducing the need for automobile use.

nle

fhis policy directs the City in its

decision-making and planning

processes. Both East Bidwell Street

and Mangini Parkway are part of the
FPASP transit corridor.

Citculotlon Policies

7.!

Ihe roadway nework in the Plan Area shall be organized in a grid-like pattern 01

streets and blockt except where topography and natural features make it infeasible,

for the majority of the Plan Area in order to create neighborhoods that encourag€

walklng, blking, public translt and other alternative modes of transportation.

Yes

Grid layout is provided connecting the
future residents of the project to
adjacent school, park, open space, and

commercial uses. Both East Bidwell

Street and Mangini Parkway are part

of the FPASP transit corridor.

7,2

Circulation within the Plan Area shall be ADA accessible and minimize barriers tc
access by pedestrians, the disabled, seniors and bicyclists. Physical barriers such as

walls, berms, and landscaping that separate resldentlal and nonresldential uses and

impede bicycle or pedestrian access or circulation shall be minimized.

Yes

The Project complies with the Folsom

Ranch, central District Design

Guidelines and City standards for
residential neigborhoods.

7.3
The Plan Area shall apply for permanent membership in the 50 Corridor TMA. Fundin8

to be provided by a Community Facilities District or other non-revocable funding

mechanism.

n/a

The Project does not effect the Plan

Area's permanent membership in the
50 corridor TMA.

7.4

Submit a General Plan Amendment to the city to modify General Plan Policy 17.U
regardlng Traffic Level of Service 'C'. This level of service may not be achieved

throughout the entire Plan Area at buildout.

nla

The applicable Level of Service under

the General Plan is 'D.'The streets are
designed to meet traffic requirements

and are consistent with the Specific

Plan.

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Consistent

Map
No.

D€cemb€r,2019
Exhibit 3

10

Page 821

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

'ication Policies

n/a

Proiect street layout is consistent u/ith

the Specific Plan. Both East Bidwell

Street and Mangini Parkway are part

of the FPASP transit corridor,

7,5
A framework of arterial and collector roadways shall be developed that accommodat€

Plan Area traffic while accommodating through-traffic demands to adjoining cit!
areas,

Yes

East Bidwell Street and Manginl

Parkway have separated sidewalks

from the street to enhance pedestrian

desien.

7,6

Major and minor arterlals. collectors, and minor collectors shall be provided with

sidewalk that safely separate pedestrians from vehicular trafflc and class ll bicycl€

lanes that encourage transportatlon choices withln the Plan Area.

Yes

The street system has been designed

to discourage traffic through the
neighborhood.

7,7

Iraffic calming measures shall be utilize4 where appropriate, to minimiz€

neighborhood cut-through $affic and excessive speeds in residential neighborhoods,

Roundabouts and traffic circles shall be considered on low volume nelghborhood

streets as an altemative to four-way stops or where traffic signals will be required al

project build-out. Traffic calmint features included in the city of Folsom's

Neighborhood Traffic Management Program Guidelines (NTMP) may also be utllized in

the Plan Area.

Yes

The streets are desiSned to meet
traffic requirements and are consistent

with the Speclfic Plan.
7,8

Roadway lmprovements shall be constructed to coincide with the demands of nerrr

development, as required to satisfy city minimum level of service standards.

PubllcTrcnslt Pollcles

nla

The project is not located at the
intersection of East Bidwell street and

Alder Creek Parkway. Therefore the
policy does not apply to the project.

7,84

Concurrent with development of the sP-Rc and sP-Gc parcels located at th€

intersection of East Bidwell Street and Alder Creek Parkway, the following roadwal

improvements will be constructed:
. Alder Creek Parkway from Prairie Clty Road to East Bidwell Street.
. East Bidwell Street from white Rock Road to u.s. HiShway 50.

. Rowberry Road (including the over-crossinE of U.S. HlShway 50).

Ihe timing, extent of improvements and inteim improvements shall be predicated on

the enent and type of development proposed for the above referenced parcels

Map

Co nsistent
FPASP Policy

FPASP Policy Description Remarks
No

December, 2019

Exhibit3
11

Page 822

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes

fhe project is consistent wlth the
adopted speclflc Plan, which addresses

public transportation opportunities.

7.9

Public transportation opportunities to, from, and wlthin the Plan Area shall be

coordinated with the City Public Works Transit Divislon and the Sacramento Regional

Transit District (RT). Regional and local fixed and circulator bus routes through the

Plan Area shall be an integral part of the overall circulation network to guarante€

public transportatlon s€rvice to major destinatlons for employment, shoppln& publlc

lnstltutions, multi-hmlly houslng and other land uses llkely to attract public transil
u3e.

Consistent with the most recent update of the RT master plan and the Plan Area

Master Transit Plan, a transit conidor shall be provided through the Plan Area fot
future regional 'Hi-gus' service (refer to Figure 7.29 and the FPASP Transit Master

Plan). Sufflcient riSht-of-way shall be dedicated fo. the transit corridor as described in

section 7.3 rnd Firures 7.2. 7.3.7.74 &7.t5.

Yes

Ihe project is consistent wlth the
adopted Speclflc Plan, which addresses

public transportation opportunities.

7.to

Yes

fhe project is consistent with the
adopted Specific Plan, which addresses

public transportation opportunities.

7,tl Future translt bus stops and associated amenities shall be placed at key locations ir
tfte Plan Area according to the recommendation of the FPASP Transit Master Plan.

Yes

The project is consistent with the
adopted specific Plan, whlch addresses

publlc transportation opportunities.

7.12
Provide interim park-and-ride facilities for public transit use as shown in the FPASF

Iransit Master Plan.

nla

This policy directs the City in its

decislon-maklng and planning

processes. Therefore the policl does

not aoolv to the orolect.

7.t7

The City of Folsom shall participate wlth the El Dorado County Transportation

Commission in an update of the "Folsom El Dorado Corridor Transit Strategy Finai

Report dated December 2005. The update shall include the Plan Area and Sacramento

Countv.

nla

This pollcy dlrects the City in its

declsion-making and plannlng

processes, Therefore th€ policy does

not aoolv to the oroiect.

,,t4
Ihe City of Folsom shall participate with the Sacramento Area Council of Govemmenl

in a revlslon of the City of Folsom Shoft-Range Translt Plan Update Final Report, dated

September 2005. The update shall include the Plan Area.

Yes

fhe guideline was used in the preparatlon

of the Specific Plan. The proiect ls

consistent wlth the specific Plan.
7.15

the Sacramento Regional Transit District {RT} "A Guide to Transit Orlented

Development (ToD)" shall be used as a design guldellne for subsequent proiect level

approvals for all projects along the Plan Area translt corrldor,

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Consistent

Map
No.

December, 2019

Exhibit 3

t2

Page 823

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes

The project includes sidewalks that are

consistent with the adopted specific

Plan and City standards.

A system of sldewalks, tralls, and bikeways shall internally link all land uses and

connect to all existing or planned external street and trail facilities contiguous wlth thc

Plan Area to provide safe routes of travel for pedestrians and biqclists as depicted in

Figwe 7.32 and as indicated on the applicable roadway sectlons. Pedestrlan and

blcycle facillties shall be designed in accordance with City design standards, includin€

the latest version of the Bikeway Master Plan, the FPASP and the FPASP Communit!

Design Guidelines.

7.L6

Yes
Access to nearby open space areas is

provided via roadway and sidewalks.
7.17

Public accessibility to open space and scenic areas within the Plan Area shall be

provided via roadway, sidewalkt trall and blkeway connectlons, where appropriate.

Yes

East Bidwell Street and Mangini

Parkway have separated sidewalks

from the street to enhance pedestrian

desien.

7.18
fraffic calming measures and signage shall be used to enhance the saf€ty of sidewalk,

lrail and blkeway crossings of arterial and coll€ctor streets.

Alder Creek is not located in this
phase. Therefore the pollcy does not
aoolv to the orolert.

nla7.I9
Class I bike path and trail crossings of Alder Creek and intermittent drainagee channels

shall be minimized and located and designed to cause the least amount of disturbance

lo the creek €nvironment,

Yes

The proposed project connects to the

separated sidewalk along Mangini

Parkway, which serves as the Safe

Route to School. Slgnage shall be

ldentified in the improvements plans.

Per state and federal programs, safe routes to schools shall be identified and siSned'7.20

Yes

The project is adjacent to East Bidwell

Street and Mangini Parkway, both of
which will be developed with class ll

bike lanes as part ofthe planned
gicycle network.

7,21
All Plan Area land uses shall be located wlthin approxlmately V2 mile of a class I bik€

path or a Class ll bike lane.

MapFPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

ConsistentNo

D$mb€r, 2019

Exhibit 3
13

Page 824

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Ihe Project complies with the Folsom

Ranch, Central District Design

Guidelines and City standards for
residential neithborhoods. Design

Review approval is not being sought at

this time.

nla

Slte design and building placement shall minimize barriers to pedestrian access and

interconnectivity. Physical barriers such as walls, berms, landscaping and slopes

between residential and non-residential land uses that unnecessarily impede bicycle ot

pedestrian circulation shall be minimized. Clearly marked shaded paths shall be

provlded through commercial and mixed use parking lots'

,.22

nla

The project proposes detached single-

family residential uses. The units

include driveways and two-car
garages, which provide adequate

bicycle parking for the use type.

7,23

Adequate short and long term bicycle parking shall be provided for all Plan Area land

uses (except for single-family and single-family hi8h density residential usesl as

specified in Table A.14.

furfdott8.OocnSooc

to thenot

project does not include open

uses. Therefore the policy does
^la

Open Space areas shall be created throughout the entirety ofthe Plan Area.8,1

The project does not include open

space uses. Therefore the policy does

not aDolv to the oroiect.
nla

zone that will include all of the preserved wetlands and

required buffers that are under the jurisdictlon of the U'S. Army Corp of Engineers

lusAcEl.

Create a preserve open space

4.2

The project does not include open

space uses. Therefore the policy does
h^t rnnh, t^ tho hrdie.t

nla8.3

@that may contaln limlted recieatlon uses ano

facilities, storm water quallty detention basins, water qualitY structuret wetland and

tree mltiSation areas and limited public utilities.

nla
The project does not include school or
park uses. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the proiect.
8.4 Where feasible, locate schools and parks adlacent or near to open space'

nla
The project does not include open

space uses. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.

Open space areas shall incorporate sensitive Plan Area natural resources, including oak

woodlands, Alder Creek and its trlbutaries, hillside areas, cultural resources, and

tributaries of Carson, Buffalo and Coyote Oeeks within the boundaries of the Plan

Area.

8.5

MapFPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

ConsistentNo.

Exhibit3
14oKffiber,2019

Page 825

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

nla
The project does not include open

space uses. Therefore the pollcy does

not aoolv to the oroiect.
8.6

open space lmprovements shall comply wlth CitV of Folsom General Plan Policy 27.1

and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) standards.

No natural parkways are proposed in

the project area. Therefore the pollcy

does not apply to lhe project.
nla8.7

Natural parkways, thirty-feet (30'l ln width or larger, shall be considered part of the

required thirty percent (30%) Plan Area natural open space provided the following

minimum criteria is met:
8.7a: They include a paved path or trail.

8.7.b; They have the abillty to be utilized for tree miti8ation plantings or other

appropriate mitlgation measures and;

8.7.c: They are planted primarily with California central valley and foothills native

plants as described in the most current edition of River-Friendly Landscape Guidelines.

nla
The project does not include op€n

space uses. Therefore the policy does

not aoolv to the prolect.
8.8 Locate Class I bicycle paths and paved and unpaved trails throuShout the open space.

Yes

No cultural resources identified to be

preserva4 oak woodlands/trees, or
hillsides are present in the project.

The project has been designed to
avoid the wetland areas to the extent
feasible.

8.9

Carefully site infrastructure, including roads, wastewater and water facilities,

trailheads, equestrian trails and the like to minimize impact to the oak woodlands,

Alder Creek and its tributaries, hillside areas, cultural resources and inte.mittent
tributaries of Carson, Buffalo and Coyote Creeks within the boundaries of the Plan

Area.

nla
The project does not include open

space uses. Therefore the policy does

not aDolv to the Droiect.
8.10

Provide the opportunity for educational programs that hiShliSht the value of the

varlous natural features of the Plan Area.

n/a
The project does not include open

space uses. Therefore the policy does

not aDolv to the Droiect.
8.11

All open space improvements, including erosion control planting and landscaping,

within the 200-year flood plain shall be designed to withstand inundation during a 200

year flood event,

nla
Alder Creek is not located in this
phase. Therefore the pollcy does not
applv to the prolect.

8.12

All open space improvements, including erosion control plantlng and landscaplng

adjacent to Alder creek and its tributarles shall be consistent with section 10.2.6

Alder creek & Floodplain Protection.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

December,2019

Exhibitg
15

Page 826

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

I

lThe FAsP open space Management Pltn shall describe the ownership, funding, and

lmaintenance ofopen space areas.

I

8.13
lrhe prolect does not propose open

lspace uses. Therefore the policy does

lnot 
apply to the proJect.

nla

Ithe FPAsP community Desi8n Guidelines shall include recommendations for the

ldesign of natural parkways and other passive open space recreatlon facilities, sto.m

lwater 
quality detentlon basins, water quality structures, wetland and tree mitigation

lareas, and publlc utilities.

8.14

lThe 
document submitted to the City

lcontains this information. Therefore

Ithe policy does not apply to the
lorolect.

nla

Yes

Ithe project does not reduce the

lurount of op.n space in the Plan

lar"..

lAll entitlements within the FPASP shall be reviewed to ensure that thirty percent (30%)

lof the Plan Area is maintained as natural open space to presewe oak woodlands and

lsensitive habitat areas.

8.15

promote walking and cyclin& community and neiShborhood patks shall
Yes9.1

in the Specific Plan
to the pedestrian and bicycle network.

project's sidewalks are consistent

the connected pedestrian

n/a
lThe project does not propose park

luses. Therefore the policy does not
laoolv to the oroiect.

lPark designs shall accommodate a varlety of actlve and passive recreational facilities

land 
activities that meet the needs of Plan Area residents of all ages, abllities and

lsoecial interest grouDs, includins the disabled.

9.2

nla
lThe project does not propose park

I uses. Therefore the policy does not
laoolv to the oroiect.

Itrteighborhood parks shall feature active recreational uses as a ptiority and provide

lR"ta lietting for nighttime sports uses and other activities as deemed appropriate by

Ithe Citv of rolsom Parks and Recreation Department.
9.3

nla
lThe project does not propose park

I uses. Therefore the policy does not
ladnlv to the oroiect.

Ithe sports facilities listed in Table 9.1 are suSgested facilities for inclusion in

lcommunity, neighborhood and local parks. The City may amend Table 9.1 as City

lneeds chanqe without amendins the FPASP.

9,4

n/a
lThe project does not propose park

luses. Therefore the policy does not
laoolv to the oroiect.

Inlt p.rk r..t", plans shall include a lighting plan and all park liShting fixtures shall be

lshielded 
and energy efficient.

9,s

December,2019

Exhtbit 3
16

Page 827

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

nla
The prolect does not propose park

uses. Therefore the policy does not
apply to the project.

9.5

Parks shall be designed and landscaped to provide shade, easy maintenance, watet
efflciency, and to accommodate a variety of recreational uses. Park lmprovements will
comply wlth Folsom Municlpal Code Chapter 13.26 water conservation and all

applicable mitigations measures set forth in the FPASP EIR/ElS.

9.' Park furniture and structures shall be selected based on durability, vandal resistance

and long term maintenance, as approved by the City.
nla

rhe project does not propose park

uses. Therefore the policy does not
apDlv to the proiect.

Public art is encouraged in parks where approprlate and feasible in compllance wlth

the CiVs Arts and Culture Master Plan.
nla

Ihe prolect does not propose park

uses, Therefore the policy does not
aDolv to the orolect.

9.8

nla
The proje Therefore the policl does

not apply to the project.ct does not
orooose oark uses.

9.9
Easements and designated open space shall not be credlted as pa,kland acreage.

These areas may be used for park activities, but not to satisfy Quimby park land

dedication requirements.

nla
Cell to$rers are not proposed with this

tpplication. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.
9.10

Placement of stand alone cell towers or antennae in parks in strongly discouraged

Cell tourers or antennae are permitted to be located on sports fleld liShting poles witl
a use permit,

9.11

All parks shall be sited and designed with special attention to safety and visibillty. Parl

designs shall follow the use restrictlons as outlined in the Folsom Municipal Code

chapter 9.58: Use of Park Facilities. The Parks and Recreation Commission shal

review all park master development plans and make recommendations to the Cit!

Council for aooroval.

nla
The project does not propose park

uses, Therefore the policy does not
apply to the project.

nla
This policy affects the city and does

not apply to individual developers.
9.12 A Parks Master Plan shall be prepared for the Plan Area.

nla
The project does not propose park

uses. Therefore the policy does not
apply to the project.

9.13

lf the existing slope of a park site shown on Figure 9.1 exceeds five percent, the sit€

shall be rough graded by owner/developer/builder dedicating the park land in

accordance wlth gradlng plans approved by the city of Folsom Parks and Recreation

Department. The cost to grade sites may be credited aSalnst park impact fees subjecl

to citv aoDroval.

Map
Co nsistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

Decemb€r, 2019

Exhibit3
r7

Page 828

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

to the
9.14 nla

proj€ct does not propose park

Therefore the policy does not
rlghts-of-way and steep slopes or structures.

rk land dedications are net areas in acres and exclude easements, wetlands,

loain".t.O wetlands shall be preserved to the greatest extent possible within openl

lspace 
areas and corridort or otherwise provided for in protected areas. 

I

lw"ttanA permlt has been issued

Ithe 
nroJea.

10.1 Yes
for

lwetland permit has been issued for

Ithe project.
; lWheie Oreservatlon ls not feaslble, mitigation measures shall be carrled out asl

lspecifled in the FPASP EIR/EIS. I
Yes

Dffemb€r, 2019

Exhibit3
18

Page 829

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes
A.water quality certification was

issued,
10.3

Water quality certification based on Section 401 of the Clean Water Act shell b€

obtained before issuance of the Section 404 permit.

Yes
Wetland permit has be€n issued for
lhe project.10.4

Construction, maintenance, and monitorinB of compensation wetlands shall be ir
accordance wlth requirements of the USACE, pursuant to the issuance of a Section 4o4

permit. Compensation lyetlands may consist of one of the follotflin8:

10.4a: Constructed wetlands within desl8nated open space areas or corridors in the

Plan Area;

10.4b: wetland credits purchased from a mitigatlon bank; and /or;
10.4c: The purchase of land at an off-site location to preserve or construct mitigation

wetlands.

To ensure successful compensation wetlands, wetland feasiblllty studles shall be

carried out in conjunction with request for permits from regulatory agencies prior to
anY constructlon.

Yes
Wetland permit has been issued for
the project.10.5

As part of the Section rt04 permitting process, the project appllcants shall prepare a

wetland mitigation and monitoring plan (MMPI. The plan shall include detailec

information on the habitats present within the preservation and mitigaUon areas, the

long-term management and monitorin8 of these habitats, legal protection for thc

preservation and mitlSatlon areas {e.g., conseruation easement, declaration 01

restrictions), and funding mechanism infotmation (e.9., endowment). The plan shal

identify particlpation within mitigation banks.

Yes
Wetland permit has been issued for
the project.10.5

Maintenance and monltoring of all compensatlon wetlandt whethet constructed or

purchased, shall be carried out by an approved monitoring agency or ortanlzation, and

shall be ln accordance wlth all federal, state, and local regulations. Monitoring shall

continue for a minimum of 5 years from completion of mitigation or until performance

standards have been met, uthlchever is longet

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
RemarksFPASP Policy Description

No.

Exhibtt3
t9De6mber,2019

Page 830

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

No special status species were

identified in the project area and any

impacts to offsite areas are covered by

the Biological Oolnlon.

to.7
Special status vernal pool invertebrates shall be protected as requited by State and

federal regulatory agencies. Where protection is not feaslblg vernal pool

lnvertebrates shall be mitlgated per the wetland mitigation and monltoring plan.
Yes

The Project wlll comply wlth mitigation

measures in the FPASP EIR and

Westland/Eagle SPA Addendum,

including conducting preconstruction

surveys. See MMRP.

Tricolored blackbird nesting colony habitat, if any, shall be protected as required by

State and federal regulatory agencles.
Yes10.8

Yes

It is the applicant's understanding that
the City will soon approve a Swainson's

Ha$rk Mitigatlon Plan. The project will
comply wlth all relevant mitigation

measures in this olan.

10,9
A Swainson's Hawk mltlgation plan shall be prepared to avoid loss of nestlng areas if
applicable.

Yes

The Project urill comply with mitigation

measures in the FPASP EIR and

Westland/Eagle SPA Addendum. See

MMRP. No Valley Elderberry Longhom

Beetle (VELB) were identified on the
DroDosed Droiect site.

10.10
An incidental take permit shall be obtained to avoid impacts on the Valley Elderberry

Longhorn Beetle (vELB), unless dellstlng has occurred.

Yes

The Project will comply with mitigation
measures in the FPASP EIR and

Westland/Eagle sPA Addendum,

lncluding conducting preconstructlon

survevs. See MMRP.

10.11
Special-status bat roosts shall be protected as required by State and federal regulatory

aBencies.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
Re ma rksFPASP Policy Description

No.

Offember,2019 20

Exhibit3

Page 831

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's F PASP Pol icy Consistency Ana lysis

10.12
The Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District will provide year-round

mosquito and vector control in accordance with state regulations and its Mosguito

Management Plan.

nla

I nE potrcy appfies to tne Sacramento-Yoto

lvlosquito and Vector Control Distrct.
fherefore the policy does not apply to the

ook Woodldnds & Isolated osk Tree Policies

10.13 Preserve and protect in perpetuity approximately 399-acres of existing oak woodlands. nla
The proposed proiect does not have

any oak woodlands or oak tree canopy

to be preserved. Therefore the policy

do€s not aoolv to the oroiect.

10.14
Ihe details of ownership, long term maintenance and monitoring of the preserved and

mitigated oak woodlands and lsolated oak tree canopy shall be specifled ln the FPASP

Open Space Management Plan approved concurrently with the FPASP.
^la

The proposed project does not have

any oak woodlands or oak tree canopy

to be prese.ved, Therefore the poliry

does not apply to the project.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

D€cefiber,2019

Exhibit3
21

Page 832

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

nla

Ihe proposed project does not have

any oak woodlands or oak tree canopy

to be preserved. Therefore the policy

does not apply to the proiect.

10.15

oak trees included in resldential and non-residential development parcel impacted

oak woodlands are encouraged to be preserved wherever practlcal, provided

preservation does not:
a) Cause a reduction in the number of lots or a significant reduction in the size of
residential lots.

b) Requlre mass grading that eliminates level pads or requires specialized

foundations.

c) Requlre the use of retalning wall or extended earthen slopes greater than 4 feet ln

height, as measured from the bottom of the footint to the top of the retaining wall.

d) Require the preservation of any trees certified by an atborist to be dead or in poor

or hazardous or non-corectable condition or trees the pose a safety rlsk to the public.

e) Cost more to preserve the tree than to mitlgate for its loss, based on the lsolated

Oak Tree Mitiration reauirements listed below.

nla

The proposed prolect does not have

any oak woodlands or oak tree canopy

to be preserved. Therefore the policy

does not apply to the proiect.

10.16

lsolated oak trees in residential and non-residential development patcels shall be

rated according to the followlng national ratlng system developed by the American

Society of ConsultinS Arborists (ASCA):

Rxrrtlc No, Re'rrxc Dr:scnrrrloxRlrrruc
No oroblcor(s)llxellcnr I

Cmd 4
3

No apparent prohlcnr(s)

Minor oroblcm(s)Frir
llxrr a Moior prohlcor{s)

Exrrcnrc urublcm(s)Hgrtlous or non-(Trrc{tablc

I)ed 0 t)<rd

MapFPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Co nsistentNo

Deember,2019

Exhibit 3
22

Page 833

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

10,17

As part of any small lot tentative subdivision map application submittal, prepare and

submit a site map, a tree preservation program and arborist's report and both a
canopy survey of oak trees in the development parcel as well as a survey of individual

free standing oak trees. The surveys will show trees to be preserved and trees to be

removed consistent with the requirements of FMC Chapter 12.16.

nla

Ihe proposed project does not have

any oak woodlands or oak tree canopy

to be preserved. Therefore the policl
does not apply to the project.

10.18

For small lot tentative subdivision parcels that contain oak trees, a pre-application and

conceptual proJect revlew ls requlred to ensure that every reasonable and practical

effort has been made by the applicant to preserve oak trees. At a minimum, the
submittal shall consist of a completed application form, the site map, the tree
preservation program, the-arborist's repoG an aerlal photograph of the project site,

the oak tree surveys, and a conceptual site plan and grading plan showing road and lot
layouts and oak trees to be preserved or removed.

nla

Ihe proposed small lot tentative
rubdivision does not contain oak tr€es.

Iherefore the policy does not apply to
lhe project.

10,19

MInor admlnistratlve modifications to the FPASP development standards, includlng

but not llmited to reduced parking requirements, reduced landscape requirement
reduced front and rear yard building setbacks, modifled drainage requirements,

increased building heights; and variations ln lot area, width, depth and site coverage

are permitted as part of the Design Review approval process in order to pres€rve

rdditional oak trees within development parcels.

nla

The proposed project does not have

any oak riroodlands or oak tree canopy

to be preserved, Therefore the policy

does not apply to the project.

10.20

When oak trees are proposed for pres€rvation In a development parcel, ensure their
protection during and after construction as outlined in FMC Chapter 12.15 - Tree

Preservation. Once an individual residence or commercial building has recelved an

cccupancy petmit, preserved trees on the property are subject to the requirements of
FMC Chapter 12.15 - Tree Preservation.

nla

The proposed project does not have

anV oak woodlands or oak tree canopy

to be preserved. Therefore the policy

does not apply to the project.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

December, 2019
Exhibit 3

23

Page 834

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Cu ku m I Reso utr€s Po llcles

Yesto,2l

The following shall be prepared prior to extensive grading or excavation:

10.2xa: Existing archeological reports relevant to the Plan Area shall be reviewed by a

qualified archaeologist.

10.21b: Areas found to contaln or likely to contain archaeological resources shall be

10,21c: An Archaeologlcal Resources Report shall be prepared, as appropriate.

10.21d: copies of all records shall be submitted to the appropriate information center

in the California Historical Resource lnformation svstem (CHRIS).

The proposed project has completed

the archaeological surveys and reports

described here and they have been

submitted to the California Historical

Resource lnformation System (CHRIS),

nla
Ihe project does not propose open

space uses. Therefore the pollcy does

not apply to the project.
ta.u

Publlcly accessible tralls and facilitles ln open space areas shall be located so as to
ensure the integrity and preservation of historical and cultural resources as speclfied in

the FPASP Community Design Guidelines and the Open Space Management Plan.

10.23
Vlews toward cultural resources from publicly accessible trails and facilities shall be
protected, where appropriate.

nla

lhe project does not propose publicly

accessible trials or facilities. Therefore

the policy does not apply to the
proiect.

nla

There are no cultural resources that
require displays on the project site.

Therefore the poliry does not apply to
the oroiect,

ro,24
lnterpretive displays near cultural resources shall be unobtrusive and compatible with

the visual form of the resources.

Wotet Quolitv Policies

Natural drainage courses withln the Plan Area along Alder, Catson, coyote, and guffalo

Creeks and their tributaries shall be preserved as required by state and federal

regulatory agencies and incorporated into the overall storm water d.ainage system,

Yes

The proposed project is consistent

with the drainage master plan,

including the preservation measures

for the referenced drainage features

and waterwavs.

10.25

nla
The project does not propose trials.

Therefore the policy does not apply to
the oroiect.

10.26

Irails locat€d within open space corridors and areas shall be designed to include soil

erosion control m€asures to minimize sedimentation of nearby creek and maintain

lhe naturel state of drainage courses.

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No. Consistent

Map

Ddember,2019
Exhibit 3

24

Page 835

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdlvision Map

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

fhe project does not paopose open

space uses. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.
nla1o.27

Public recreational facilities (e.9., plcnic areas and trails) located within open space

corridors or areas shall be subject to urban storm water best management practices,

as defined in Section 10.3 - Sustainable Deslgn.

Yes

fhe described BMPS will be

incorporated in the notes section for
the flnal improvement plans for the
proposed project.

10.28

Best management practices shall be incorporated lnto consruclion practices to
minimize the transfer of water borne particulates and pollutants lnto the storm $,ater

drainage system in conformance with FMC Chapters 8.70 - Stormwater Management

& Discharge Control and 14.29 - Gradlng as well as current NPDES permit

requirements and state wat€r Resources control Board's construction General Permlt

requlrements,

Yes
Mitigatlon Measures wlll be

implemented.10.29 All mltigation speclfied in the FPASP EIR/E15 shall be implemented.

Yes
Proiect will include measures in

improvement plans.

Preference shall be glven to biotechnical or non-structural alt€rnatlves, over

alternatives lnvolving revetmens, bank regrading or installation of stream training

structures-

10,30

Prctectlon Pollcles

nla
Ihe proposed project does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policy does

not aoDly to the Drolect.

10.31
Alder Creek shall be preserved in its natural statg to the extent feasible, to maintain

the riparian and wetland habitat adiacent to the creek.

Ihe proposed proiect does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the pollcv does

not apply to the proiect.
nla10.32

All improvements and maintenance activity, including creek bank stabilization,

adjacent to Alder Creek shall comply wlth the clean water Act section 404 permits and

the Central Valley Flood Protectlon Act of 2008 (SB 5).

ola
fhe proposed prolect does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policy do€s

not apply to the project.

Bank stabilization and other erosion control measure shall have a natural appearance,

wherever feasible. The use of biotechnical stabilization methods is required within

Alder Creek where it is technically suitable can be used instead of mechanical

steblllzation.

10.33

Map

Consistent
FPASP Policy

RemarksFPASP Policy Description
No.

December,2019

ExNbit3
25

Page 836

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Appllcant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

10,:14

New drainage outfalls within or near Alder creek, or improvements to existing outfalls,

shall be designed and constructed utilizing low impact development (LlD) practices in

conformance with the most current National Pollutant Dlscharge Ellrnination {NPDE)

regulations, Consistent with these practices, storm water collection shall be

decentralized, its quality improved and its peak flow contained in detentlon facilitles

that wlll slowly release it back lnto the creek drdinage outfalls and lmprovements shall

be unobtrusive and natural in appearance (refer to Section 12.5 - stormwater).

nla
Ihe proposed project does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.

10,35

All Plan Area development projects shall avoid encroaching on the Alder creek 20G

year flood plain to ensure that no adverse alterttions to the creek or the floodplain

occur where practical, However, in the event encroachment is unavoidable,

constructlon shall comply with the FPASP EIR/ElS mitigation measures, and all relevant
provisions of the Central Valley Flood Protection Plan and FMC Chapter 14.23 - Flood

DamaEe Prevention.

nla
Ihe proposed project does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.

nla
The proposed project does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.
10,36

Plan Area streets that 6oss Alder creek may be grade-separated from the creek to

allorv uninterrupted passage of wildlife and trail users. Adequate vertical clearance

rhall be provided under all such street crossings to allow safe, visible bicycle,

pedestrian and equestrian travel. Any streets that cross Alder creek and are grade-

reparated shall follow the standards established in FMC Chapter 10.28 - Brid8es.

nla
The proposed proiect does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.
10.37

Emergency vehicle access along Alder Creek may be provided on Class I bike paths

rnd/or separately deslgnated emergencv access roads (refer to FiSure 7.29).

nla
The proposed prolect does not impact

Alder creek. Therefore the pollcy does

not apply to the project.
10,!t8

All lighting adjacent to Alder Creek shall be limited to bridges, underpasses, trailheads,
publlc facilltles and for other public safety purposes. Llghtlng flxtures shall be fully

shielded and energy efficient.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

DKemb3,,2019

Exhibit 3

26

Page 837

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

10.39
Class I blke paths and other paved and unpaved trails may be constructed near Alder
Creek in the SP-OS2 pasive open space zone conslstent wlth the FPASP Community

Design Guldelines.

nla
fhe proposed project does not impact

Alder Creek. Ther'efore the policy does

not apply to the project.

10.40
Public access polnts shall be located in areas where they have the least impact to the
Alder Creek environment and designed to avoid sensitive plant wildlife habltat areas.

nla
The proposed project does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policT does

not apply to the project.

10.41

Re-vegetation and new planting along Alder Creek shall use california central valley

and foothllls natlve plants as described in the most current edltion of River-Friendly

Landscape Guidelines.

nla
Ihe proposed project does not impact

Alder Creek. Therefore the policy does

not apply to the project.

to.12 Adhere to the recommendations and pollcles of the Alder Creek Watershed

Management Actlon Plan where feasible.
nla

The proposed project does not lmpact

Alder Creek. Therefore the pollcy does

not applv to the project.

Alr Ouolltv Pollcles

An operational Air Quality Mitigatlon Plan has been prepared and approved by the
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District based on the Distrlct's

CEQA guidelines dated July 2@4, As required by tAFCo Resolution 1x95 (dated 6 June

2001) the plan aciieves a 35% reductlon in potential €mlssions than could occur

wlthout a mitieatlon oroeram.

Yes

The proposed project will comply with
all applicable air quality mitigation
measures.

10.43

Yes

Ihe proposed project will comply with
all applicable alr quality mitigation

measures,

10J4
rhe approved operatlonal Air Quallty Mitigation measures shall be included as pollcies

in the relevant sections of the FPASP,

Based on advisory recommendations included in Table 1-1 of the california Air

Resources Board document entltled Air quallty and Land use Handbook, avoid

ocntinp residential land uses within 500-feet of U.S. Hiehwav 50,

Yes

Proposed residential land uses are

more than 500-feet from U.S. Highway

50.

10.45

FPASP Policy

No.
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Co nsiste nt

Map

D€cemb€r,2019
Exhibit 3

27

Page 838

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot VestingTentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

lConsistent with the Specific Plan and

Ithe nir Quatity Mana8ement Plan,

lWood burning fireplaces are not
llncluded in the Droiect.

Yes

1,.n,0,,

wood burning fireplaces in all residential construction.10.46

lConsistent with specific Plan and Air

lQuality Management Plan, an electrlc

llawnmower will be provlded wlth each

ltor".
YeslprovlUe comptimentary electric lawnmowers to each residential buyer in the sF, SFHD

land 

the rvrLo land uses.
10.47

MapFPASP Policy
RemarksFPASP Policy Description

Cons istentNo.

Oec€mb€r, 2019

Exhibit 3

28

Page 839

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 {Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Nolse Pollcles

10.48
Residential developments must be designed and/or located to reduce outdoor noise
levels generated by traffic to less than 60 dB.

lThe Project will comply wlth mitigatlon
lmeasures ln the FPASP EIR and

I Westland/eagle SPA Addendum,

llncludlng noise reduction measures.

lsee tvttvtRP.

Yes

10.49
Noise from Aerojet propulslon system and routine component testing facilities

affecting sensitive receptor areas shall b€ miti8ated based on recommendations ln the
acoustical study.

lrne prolect witt not be impacted by

Ithe Aerojet facilities. Therefore the

Inolicv 
does not apply to the project.

nla

10.50
The Condltions, Covenants and Restrictions in the Department of Real Estate Public
Report shall disclose that the Plan Area is within the Mather Airport fllght path and
that over fliBht noise may be present at va,ious times.

llrigation ".rements 
have been

lrecorded on the property and

ldisclosures 
will be provided in CC&R'S.

Yes

10.51
Landowner shall, prior to n€r 2 Development Agteement record an easement over
the property relating to nolse caused by alrcraft ardvlng or departing from Mather
Airoort.

easements have been

on the property.
Yes lauisrtion

lrecorded

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No

December,2019
Exhibir 3

29

Page 840

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

specific development projects shall incorporate LID design strategies that include:

10.52a: Minimizing and reducing the impervious surface of site development by

reducing the paved area of roadways, sidewalks, drlveways, parking areas, and roof

10.2b: Breaking up large areas of impervious surface area and directing stormwater

away from these areas to stabilized vegetated areas; project ls consistent wlth the city's

10.52c: Minimizing the impact of development on sensitive site features such as
lnfrastructure Master Plan,

floodplains, wetlands, woodlands, and si8nlficant on-site vegetation;
includes stormwater

Yes
irements. The portion of the

10,52

Dsembs,2019

10.52d: Malntalnin8 natural drainage courses; and

10.52e: Provide runoff storage dispersed uniformly throughout the site, uslng a

of LID detention, retention, and runoff techniques that may include:

Bioretention facillties and swales {shallow vegetated depressions engineered to
store, and inflltrate runoff); and

proposed project that includes site-

specific development has lncorporated

LID design strategles as described in

section 10.52 of the EIR for the FPASP.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

Exhibit3
30

Page 841

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:

Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

. Landscape buffers, parkways, parking medians, filter strips, vegetated curb

extenslons, and planter boxes (containing grass or other close-growlnS vegetation

planted between polluting sources (such as a roadway or site development) and

downstream receivinr water bodies).

LandscdDina Policies

Yes

Ihe project is designed to be

consistent with the applicable design
guldelines,

10.53

Plan Area landscape palette shall consist of California Central Valley and foothills

native plant species as described in the most current edition of River-Friendly

Landscape Guidelines and drought tolerant adaptive plant species except at

neighborhood entry gateways and similar high visibility locatlons wh€re ornamental

Dlant sDecies mav be preferred.

rhe

nla
fhe project does not include any

rlopes greater than 25%. Therefore the
policy does not apply to the project.

The use of turf is not allowed on slopes greater than 25% where the toe of the slope ls

adjacent to an impermeable hardscape. Consistent with CALGreen Tier 2 voluntary

recommendatlons, all development projects within the Plan Area shall be encouraged

to limit the use of turf to 25% of the total landscaped area.

10,54

Yes

Ihe FPASP Open Space Management

Plan provides for fuel modification

measures,

Open space areas adjacent to bulldlngs and development parcels shall maintain a fuel

modificatlon and vegetetlon management area ln order to provide the minimum fuel

modificatlon flre break as required by state and local laws and ordinances.

Additionally, development parcels adjacent to open space areas may be required to

provlde eme8encv access through the property to the open space by means of 8ates,

access roads or other means approved bY the City of Folsom Fire Department.

ownership and maintenance of open space areas, including fuel modification

requirements and fire hazard reductlon measures are outlined in the FPASP Open

Space Management Plan,

10,55

shall be interspersed throughout parking lots so that in fifteen (15) years, forty
percent of the parking lot wlll be in shade at hlgh noon. At planting, trees shall be

to thecontainer or
10.56 nla

project does not any

lots. Therefore the pollcy does

Map
Consiste nt

FPASP Policy
RemarksFPASP Policy Description

No

Exhibit 3

31December,2019

Page 842

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes

the proposed project will employ

energy conservation standards for site

and building development, Each home

will include solar, tankless water
heaters, 2x5 exterior walls providlng

high-efficient insulation, radiant

barrier and independent third-party
testin[,

10.57
Conservation of energy resources will be encouraged through site and building

development standards,

nla

Design Review approval is not being
souSht at this time. Each home will
include solar, tankless water heaters,

2x6 exterior walls providing high-

efficient insulation, radiant barrier and

indep€ndent third-party testing.

10.s8
Buildings shall incorporate site design measures that reduce heatinB and cooling needs

by orienting buildings on the site to reduce heat loss and gain depending on the time

of day and season of the year.

nla

Design Review approval ls not being

sought at this time. Each home will
include solar, tankless water heaters,

2x5 enerior walls providing high-

eflicient insulation, radlant barrier and

independent third-party testlng.

10.59
Solar access to homes shall be considered in the design of residential neighborhoods

to optlmize the opportunity for passive and active solar energy st.ategles.

The project proposes detached singls
family residential units. Where site

conditions permlt, however, units will
be orlented ton ard sothern exposure.

10.60
Multi-family and attached residential units shall be oriented toward southern

exposures, where site conditions permit.
nla

FPASP Policy

No,

Map
Consist ent

FPASP Policy Description Remarks

December, 2019

Efibit3
32

Page 843

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

10.51
Bulldings shall be designed to incorporate the use of high quality, energy efficient
glazlng to reduce heat loss and galn.

nla

Ihe project is deslgned to comply with
the applicable Design Guidelines and

standards. Though Deslgn review

approval is not being sought at this

lime, the required features will be

,erified during the bullding plan check

process,

10.62
Energy efficient appllances, wlndows, insulation, and other available technologies to
reduce energy demands will be encouraged.

nla

Ihe project is designed to comply with
the applicable Design Guidellnes and

rtandards. Though Design review

approval is not belng sought at this

lime, the required features will be

verified during the building plan check
process,

nla
Ihe project does not include office
uses. Therefore the policy does not
aoolv to the oroiect.

10.63 Office park uses shall lnstall automatic liShting and thermostat features.

nla

The project do€s not include

commerical or public buildings.
Therefore the policy does not apply to
the oroiect.

10.54
commercial and public buildings shall use energy efficient lighting with automatic

controls to minimize enerSy use,

nla

The project is designed to comply wlth
the applicable Deslgn Guidellnes and

standards. Though Design review

approval is not being souBht at this

time, the required features will be

verlfled during the building plan check
process.

10,65

Energy Star certified equipment and appliances shall be installed, to include: 10.65a -

Residential appliances; heating and cooling systems; and roofing; and

10.55b - Nonresidential appllances and office equipment; heating, cooling and lighting

control systems; and roofing

FPASP Policy Description
Map

Consistent

FPASP Policy
Remarks

No.

Drcmb*,2019
Exhibit3

33

Page 844

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

nla

Design Review approval is not being

sought at this tlme. Each home will
Include solar, tankless water heaters,

2x6 exterior walls providing high-

efficient insulation, radiant barrler and

independent thlrd-party test:ng.

10.65

Commercial, resldential, and public projects shall be designed to allow for the posslble

installation of alternative energy technologies including active solar, wind, or other
emerging technologies, and shall comply with the following standards: 10.664 -

lnstallation of solar technology on buildings such as rooftop photovoltaic cell arrays

shall be installed in accordance with the state Fire Ma15hal safety regulations and
guidelines.

10.66b - Standard rooftop mechanical equipment shall be located in such a manner so

as not to preclude the installation of solar panels.

1 0.66c - Alternative energy mechanical equlpment and accessories installed on the
roof of a bulldlng, they shall be integrated with rooflng materials andlor blend with

lhe structure's architectural form.

nla

The project is designed to comply with
the applicable DesiSn Guidelines and

standards. Though Design review

approval ls not being sought at this
time, any required features will be

verified during the building plan check
paocess.

10.67
Radiant solar heating or similar types ofenergy efficient technoloSies, shall be

install€d ln all swlmming pools.

FPASP Policy

No.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Deembs,2019

Exhibit 3
34

Page 845

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

10,68
Electrical outlets shall be provided along the front and rear exterior walls of all slngle

family homes to allow for the use of electric landscape maintenance tools.
nla

The project is designed to comply with
the appllcable Design Guidelines and

standards. Though Design revlew

approval ls not belng sought at this

tlme. the required features will be

verified during the building plan check

process.

nla10.69
fhe clty wlll st.ive to ensure that all new publicly owned buildings within the Plan Area

will be designed, constructed and certified at LEED-NC certificatlon levels.

The project does not propose any
publicly owned buildings. Therefore

the policy does not apply to the
proiect.

nla

This is a City requirement, not a

project-specifi c requirement. The City

of Folsom has plans in place to
undertake the described cost-effectlve
operational and efficiency measures

and consider the installation of onsite

renewable energy technologies within
appropriate portions of the Plan Area,

including parks, landscape corridors

and ooen soace areas,

10.70

The city of Folsom shall undertake all cost-€ffectlve operational and efficiency

measures and consider the installation of onslte renewable energy technologies within
appropriate portions of the Plan Area, including parks, landscape corridors and open

space areas,

Wotet Efficie ncy P ol lcle s

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No

Dtrember,2019
Exhibit 3

35

Page 846

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1(Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small LotVestingTentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

nla

The project is designed to comply with
the applicable Design Guidelines and

standards. Though Design revlew

approval is not being sought at thls

time, the required features will be

verified during the building plan check

process.

10.71

All office, commercial, and residential land uses shall be required to install water
conservation devices that are generally accepted and used in the bulldlng industry at
the time of development, includlng low-flow plumblng fi)ftures and low-water-use

appliances.

nla

Purple pipe has been incorporated into

lhe Speclfic Plan for maJor collector

roadway landscaping and funding is

provided in the PFFP. Purple pipe

infrastructure is not the appllcant's

resoonsibllltv.

LO.72

A backbone "purple pipe" non-potable water system shall be designed and installed

lvhe.e feasible and practical to supply non-potable water to park sites, landscape

corridors, natural parkways and other public landscaped spaces within the Plan Area.

Yes

The proiect is designed to comply wit
the applicable Design Guidellnes.
Water efflclent irrigatlon systems will
be emplsyed for use in project-area

landscaping.

10.73

Water efficient irrigatlon systems, consistent with the requlrements of the latest

editlon of the Callfornia Model water Efflcient Landscape Ordinance, or similar

ordlnance adopted by the City of Folsom, shall be mandatory for all public agencl
projects and all private development projects with a landscape area equal to or
greater than 2,500 square feet requiring a bullding or landscape permit, plan check or
deslan review.

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No. Consistent

Map

Dcmber,2019
Exhibit3

36

Page 847

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Conseryation & nesoure Pollcles

LO.74 Use "Green" certified construction products whenever feasible. Yes

Builders ln the proposed prolect will
be requlred to use "Green" certified
construction products whenever

feasible. The project will comply with
all relevant requirements in the City

Code and state Bullding code.

10.75 Prepare a construction waste management plan for individual construction projects. Yes

Prior to construction, a construction

waste management plan will be
prepared for individual construction
proiects within the prooosed proiect.

A minimum of 50'6 ofthe non-hazardous constructlon waste generated at a

construction site shall be recycled or salvaged for reuse.
Yes

The plan described in Section 10.75

wlll provide for a mlnlmumn of 50% of
the non-hazardous construction waste

Benerated at a construction site to be

recycled or salvaged for reuse.

to.76

Yes

Iopsoil displaced during grading and

construction of the proposed project

shall be stockpiled for reuse in the Plan

Area.

1o.7,
Topsoil displaced during g.ading and construction shall be stockpiled for reuse ln the
Plan Area.

Yes

California outlawed the use of HFG in

2018. The project is designed to
comply with California law.

10.78 All HVAC and refrigeratlon equlpment shall not contain chlorofluorocarbons (cFcs).

FPASP Policy

No.

Map
Co nsistent

FPASP Policy Description Rema rks

D*€mber,2019

Exhibit3
37

Page 848

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase t (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

Yes

Ihe project is designed to comply with
the applicable Design Guidelines and

standards. Though Design review

approval is not being sought at this

lime, the required features will be

uerified during the building plan check

0rocess.

10.79 All fire suppression systems and equipment shall not contain halons.

Provide accessible screened areas that are identlfied for the depositing, storage and

collection of non-hazardous materials for recycling for commercial, industrial/office

oark. mixed-use. oublic-use and multi-familv residential Droiects.

Yes same remark as in section 10.79.10.80

Yes Same remark as in Section 10.79.10.81
Particleboard, medium density flberboard (MDF) and hardwood ply$rood shall comply

with low formaldehyde emission standards.

Yes same remark as In Section 10.79.10.82 Limit the use of volatile organic compounds (VOC) in all construction materials.

Public schools will be constructed in the Plan Area in accordance with the City Charter

and state law.
nla

There are no public schools or public

service facilities in the proposed

project. Therefore the policy does not
apply to the proiect.

11.1

nla
No public facilitles are being proposed

with this project. Therefore the policy

does not aoolv to the oroiect.

11.2 All publlc service facilities shall particlpate in the city's recycling program.

nla
No public facilities are being proposed

with this p.oject. Therefore the policl
does not aoolv to the oroiect,

1t.3

Enercv efficient technolosies shall be incorporated in all Public Service buildin8s

FPASP Policy
No.

FPASP Policy Description Remarks
Map

Consistent

Dsember,2019

Exhibit 3
38

Page 849

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot VestingTentative 5ubdivision Map
Applicant's FPASP Poliry Consistency Analysis

11.4
Passlve solar design and/or use of other types of solar technology shall be

incorporated in all public service buildings.
n/a

No public facilities are being proposed

wlth this project. Therefore the policy

does not apply to the proiect.

11.5
Ihe city shall strive to ensure that all public service buildings shall be built to silver

LEED NC standards.
nla

No public facllities are being proposed

with this proiect.

11.6
Utilize Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) principles in the
design of all public service bulldings.

nla
No public facilitles are being proposed

with this project. Therefore the policy

does not applv to the oroiect.

1'..7

lf the existing slope of a public facilities site shown on Figure 11.1 exceeds five
percent, the site shall be rough graded by the owner/developer/builder dedicating the
public facilities site in accordance with grading plans approved by the City of Folsom,

subject to a credit and/or reimbursement agreement.

nla

fhere are no public schools or public

service facilities in the proposed

project. Therefore the policy does not
apply to the project.

Yes

Project will comply with school district
and charter requirements with respect

lo Measure W.

11.8

Plan Area landowners shall, prior to approval of the annexation by IAFCo and prior to
any Tier 2 Development Agreement, whichever comes flrst, comply with the schools
provision in Measure W (Folsom Charter Provision Section 7.08D) and incorporate
feasible school impact mitigation requirements as provided in IAFCo Resolution No.

1196, Section 13.

'ctutr1,i2-U

12.1

Consistent with the provisions of City charter Article 7.08 (Al, the FPASP shall "identify
and secure the source of water supply(is) to serve the Plan Area, This new water
supply shall not cause a reduction in the water supplies designated to serve existing

water users north of Highway 50 and the new water supply shall not be paid for by

Folsom residents north of Hichwav 50.

Yes

This is a City requirement, not a

project-specific requirement. The
project is consistent with the FPASP

and complies with the City's water
suDplv agreement.

Map
Consistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No

Dsember,2019
Exhibit 3

39

Page 850

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

L2.2

Design and construct the necessary potable water, non-potable water for irrigation,
wastewater and stormwater infrastructure require to serve the Plan Area, All

infrastructure improvements shall follow the requirements established in the Water
Master Plan, Wastewater Master Plan and the Storm Drainage Master Plan.

lmprovements will be based on phasing of development.

n/a

The policy affects the City and does

not apply to individual developers.
Therefore the policy does not apply to
the project.

t2,t Land shall be reserved for the construction of public utility facilities that are not
planned within road rights-of-way, as required by the City of Folsom.

Yes
Land is being reserved for public

utilities as described where needed,

12.4 Utilize Best Management Practices (BMPs) where feasible and appropriate. Yes
BMPs will be utilized where feasible

and appropriate.

12.5
Urban runoff will be treated prior to discharging to a water of the state (i.e. cre€l!
wetland) in accordance with the City's most current Municipal Stormwater Permit

reouirements fof new develooment.

Yes
Project complies with permit
requirements.

t2,6
Employ Low lmpact Development (LlD) practices, as required by the City of Folsom, in

conformance with the City's stormwater quality development standards,
Yes

The project is consistent with the
Specific Plan requirements and the City

requirements as they are updated

from time to time.

13.1
Ihe Plan Area shall fund its proportional share of regional backbone infrastructure
costs and the full costs for primary and secondary backbone infrastructure.

Yes
Project is consistent with Public
Facilities Financing Plan.

13.2
The Plan Area shall fund the its proportional share of the costs for Plan Area public

facilities including the municipal center, police and fire department stations, the city
corp vard and community, neishborhood and local parks.

Yes
Project is consistent with Public

Facilities Financing Ptan.

13.3
The City of Folsom shall apply for Sacramento Count\ vide Transportation Mitigation
fee funding to help fund all eligible reSional road backbone infrastructure.

nla
This is a City requirement. Therefore

the policy does not apply to the
oroiect.

FPASP Policy

No.
Map

Co nsistent
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

Dec€mber,2019
Exhibit 3

40

Page 851

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1(Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small LotVestingTentativesubdivision Map
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

I

lA 
Plan Area fee wlll be created to fund backbone infrastructure and a proportlonal

lcost 
allocation system wlll be established for each of the Plan Area property owners.

I

Lt.4

lThe policy affects the City and does

lnot apply to individual developers.

lTherefore the policy does not apply to
Ithe oroiect.

nla

I

lclty of Folsom impact and capital improvement fees shall be used to fund Plan Area

lbackbone infrastructu.e and public facllitles where allowed by law.

I

13.5

lThe pollcy affects the City and does

lnot apply to individual developers.

Itherefore the policy does not apply to
Ithe oroiect.

nla

I

lone or more Community Facilities Dlstrlcts shall be created ln the Plan Area to help

lfinance backbone infrastructure and public facillties costs and other eligible

limprovements 
and/or fees.

13.6

lThe policy affects the Clty and does

lnot apply to indivtdual developers.

Itherefore 
the policf does not apply to

Ithe Drolect.

nla

Map
Co nsistent

FPASP Policy
FPASP Policy Description Remarks

No.

December, 2019
Exhibit 3

4!

Page 852

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lot 10) Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map:
Applicant's FPASP Policy Consistency Analysis

?hdslno Policies

nla

The policy affects the City and does

not applv to indlvidual developers.

Therefore the policy does not apply to
the project.

13.7

Submit a conceptual backbone infrastructure phaslng plan for the appropriat€

d€velopment area wlth the first tentative map or building permit submittal. Updatin8

of the conceptual backbone infrastructure phasing plan shall be a requlrement ol

subsequent tentative map or building permit applicatlons for each development area.

Malntenance Pollcles

Yes
A Community Facilities District will be

formed to implement policy.
r3.8

Create one or more Landscaping and Lighting Dlstricts in the Plan Area for the
maintenance and opemtlon of public improvements and facilities and open space.

FPASP Policy Map
Co nsistent

FPASP Policy Description Remarks
No.

D6ember,2019
Exhibit 3

42

Page 853

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit 4
Noise Assessment by Bollard Acoustical

(See Attachment 1l)

Page 854

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit 5

Supplement Traffic Memorandum by
Kimley-Horn

Page 855

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Kimley>)Horn

Memorandum
To:

From:

Date:

Re:

Rick Jordan

Chris Gregerson, P.E., T.E., PTOE, PTP

Alyssa Swanson

Supplemental Traffic Evaluation
Mangini Ronch Phose 1- Lots 10 & 1.5

September 6,2079

Per your request, we have evaluated the effects of adding an additional 118-units to our previously
prepared supplemental traffic evaluationl in which 833-units were considered for the above referenced
project in the City of Folsom. Per discussion with the City2, this analysis was completed to summarize the
impact of the additional units on the study facilities. As reflected in Table 1, the 951-unit proposed project

would be anticipated to generate 871 AM peak-hour and 1,004 PM peak-hour trips, representing an

increase of 88 and L18 trips during the AM and PM peak-hours, respectively. Trip distribution and

assignment for the revised proposed project are shown in Exhibit 1.

Table 1* Proposed Project Trip Generation

The following tables document the updated traffic analysis results and should be considered as

replacements to the tables in the prior supplemental studyl. ln addition, Exhibit 2 and Exhibit 3 provide

updated turning movement and average daily travel (ADT) volumes at the study intersections and along

roadways for plus project and plus project plus school conditions. Consistent with prior studies, the Level

of Service (LOS) analysis was conducted for the following facilities:

I ntersections
1,. East Bidwell Street @ lron Point Road

2. East Bidwell Street @ Placerville Road

3. East Bidwell Street @ US-50 Westbound Ramps

4. East Bidwell Street @ US-50 Eastbound Ramps

5. East Bidwell Street @ Mangini Parkway {formerly Street "A")
6. East Bidwell Street @ White Rock Road

1 Supplementol Trofiic Evoluotion, Mangini Ronch Phase 7, Folsom, Colifornia, Kimley-Horn and Associates, lnc., March 11,

2015.
2 Conversations with Steve Krahn at the City of Folsom. July 10, 2019.

AM Peal(-t{our PM Peal-Hour

IN OUT It OUTtand Use (lTE Code)
Slze (unlts/

studenB)

Dally

Trlps
Total

TrlDr .4. Trlps Yo Trlps

Total

Trlos ,6 Trlps % Trlps

Manh 2015 Anal

Sinrle-tamllv Detarhed Houiina l2 101 833 7.932 625 25% 156 75% 469 833 53% 525 37% 308

55% 87 45%Elementarv School (520) 350 452 r58 7l 53 49% 26 57% 27

8.384 783 243 540 886 551 335

Anal

Sinsle-Familv Detached Housinc {2101 951 9,0s4 713 25To L18 7s% 535 951 63% 599 37% 352

Elementarv School 1520) 350 452 158 ss% 87 4s% 7L 53 49% 26 51% 27

265 505 1.0(H 62S 37S9,506 871

trlflit ,W+;p,llilre: t.t :, I .22 "fit ,.ITEI

kimley-horn.com 555 capitol Mall, Suite 300, Sacramento, California 95814 916 858 5800

Page 856

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



KimleyDHorn
Roadwav Segments

1. US-50 Eastbound Ramps to Mangini Parkway
2. Mangini Parkway to White Rock Road

LOS Thresholds
The City of Folsom standards apply to all study intersections and roadways segments and require that
they operate at a minimum of LOS D3. The LOS threshold has decreased from LOS C to LOS D since the
previously completed supplemental study. The LOS threshold provided in the City's guidelines was used

to determine whether the project impacted an intersection or a roadway segment, however, the analysis

of roadway segments involved the comparison of daily segment volumes to the volume thresholds
provided in Sacramento County's traffic impact analysis guidelinesa. This was due to the fact that the
City's guidelines do not provide specific volume thresholds.

lntersection Results

As shown in Table 2, the study intersections operate between LOS A and F with the addition of the
proposed project traffic during the AM and PM peak-hours. Table 2 indicates that significant impacts
occur at lntersections #1, #5, and #5.

It should be noted that LOS analysis documented in this memorandum applies standards from the
Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) 6th Edition and HCM 2000, while the previous study only applied
standards from HCM 2000. The HCM 6th Edition is the most current version of the HCM and was chosen

to replace some of the results previously calculated using HCM 2000 methodology where possible to use

current best practices. lntersection #2 applied HCM 2000 standards due to phasing restrictions at the
intersection.

Roadwav Serment Results

As reflected in Table 3, the study roadway segments along East Bidwell Street meet the City's LOS

requirements.

Sisnal Warrant Analvsls
A peak-hour signal warrant analysis was performed for the unsignalized lntersections S5 and #6, The

analysis was completed using Figure 4C-3 from the most recent version of the California MUTCDS. The

signal warrant analysis indicated that a traffic signal is warranted at both intersections for all scenarios.
Table 4 summarizes the signal warrant analysis results.

Mltinatlons and Comparlson to Previous Study
As mentioned above, significant impacts occur at lntersections #1, #5 and #6. The significant impact at
lntersection #1 is considered significant and unavoidable as indicated in the previous study and the
proposed project's payment of fees is adequate mitigation. lndependently, the City of Folsom may elect
to pursue an operational analysis of this location, however this effort is considered to be beyond the
scope of the study.

The evaluation of the 951-unit proposed project results in additional impacts and mitigations beyond
what was previously documented for lntersections #5 and #6. The side-street stop-controlled intersection
of lntersection #5 operates at LOS F with the addition of the proposed project plus the school in the AM
and PM peak-hours. Since the completion of the previous study, lntersection f5 has been reconfigured

3 Policy M 4.1,.3, City of Folsom General Plon
4 Trolfic Impoct Anolysis Guidelines, County of Socromento, July 2004.
s California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 201.4 Edition, rev4. Caltrans. March 29, 2019.

Manglnl Ronch Phose 7 - Lols 70 & 75
Supplemental Traffic Evaluatlon

Page 2 of 6
September 6, 2019

Page 857

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



KimleyDHorn
such that the southbound left-turn lane has been extended, a northbound right-turn pocket has been

added, and a merge lane has been added to the receiving southbound lanes. After incorporating these

changes and studying the intersection with signalization, lntersection #5 operates at acceptable LOS for
all scenarios as shown in Table 5. Similar statements can be made for lntersection #5. Since the
completion of the previous study, lntersection #6 has been realignedto reflect previously recommended

mitigations and now includes free southbound and westbound right-turn lanes. By incorporating these

changes and analyzing the intersection with signalization, lntersection #6 operates at acceptable LOS for
all scenarios as shown in Table 5,

ln conclusion, the addition of 118 units to the proposed project with the incorporation of the lane
geometry improvements already constructed, does not results in any additional significant impacts. The

signal warrant analysis performed indicated that a signal is warranted for the Existing plus Project

scenario in the AM peak-hour where it was not previously warranted in the prior evaluation. The signal

warrant analysis is consistent with the prior evaluation for the Existing plus Project plus School scenario in

the AM and PM peak-hours.

Attachments

Exhibit 1- Project (Residential)Trip Distribution and Assignment

Exhibit 2 - Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions Peak Hour & Average Daily Traffic {ADT)Volumes
Exhibit 3 - Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions Peak Hour &

Average Daily Traffic (ADT) Volumes

Monglni Ranch Phose t - Lott rO & 15
Supplemental Traffic Evaluation

Page 3 of 6
September 6, 2019

Page 858

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Kimley>)Horn

Table 2 - lntersection Levels of Service Analysis Results

# East Bidwell Strect
lntersectlon (Trafflc Control) & Analysls Scenarlo

AM Peak-Hour PM Peak-Hour

Delay'
lsecondsl

l-os
Delay'

(secondsl tos

t lron Point Road (Slgnallzedl

Existing (2014) Conditions 46.3 I D L27.O F

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions 4a.2 D 141.8 F

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions 50.1 D L42.s F

2 Placerville Road (Signalized) *
Existing {2014) Conditions 27.6 c 37.O D

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions 27.5 c 36.4 D

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions 27.2 c 36.3 D

3 U5-50 Westbound Ramps (Signalized|

Existing (2014) Conditions 27.5 49.8

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions 30.2 c 49.8 D

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions 30.4 c 50.0 D

4 US-50 Eastbound Ramps (Signalized)

Existing (2014) Conditions 9.8

Existing {2014) plus Project Conditions 8.2 A tt.7 B

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions 8.4 A 11.8 B

5 Mangini Parkway (SSSCI

Existing (2014) Conditions Plus Project Conditions Only

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions 31.1 D 560.3 (WBl F

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions 76.9 F 6s4.9 (WBl F

5 White Rock Road (AWSC)

20.1 c 3t.7 DExisting (2014) Conditions

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions 88.3 F L13.7 F

Existing (201a) plus Project plus School Conditions 110.5 F tL4.4 F

^/otes.'+ Delay reported for worst minor approach (worst minor movement) for SSSC
++ lntersection analyzed using HCM 2000 Standards
BOLD signifies substandard operating conditlons (LOS D, E, or F)

Shaded signifies significant impact
SSSC = Side-Street Stop Control, AWSC = All-Way Stop Control

Manglnl Ranch Phase 7 - Lots 70 & 75
Supplemental Traffic Evaluation

Page 4 of 6
September 6, 2019

Page 859

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Kimley>)Horn

Table 3 - Roadway Segment Levels of Service Analysis Results

Table 4 - Traffic Signal Warrant Analysis Results

#
East Bidwcll Street / Scott Road

Roadwav Serment & Analwls Scenarlo
FacllityType

il
lanes

Volume
(ADTI vlc tos

1 US-50 to ManBinl Parkway

Existing (2014) Conditions
Secondary Road,

High Access Control
2

7,O72 0.35 A

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions 12,957 0.5s B

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions 13,296 0.66 B

2 Mangini Parkway to White Rock Road

7,A72 0.35 A
Secondary Road,

High Access Control
2 10,247 0.51 A

10,354 0.52 A

Existing (2014) Conditions

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions

Note.' Facility Type and Los per Ttdfflc lmpoct Anolysis guidelines, July 2004, County of Sacramento.

#
East Bldwell Street I Scott Road

lntersectlon ffrafflc Controll & Analvsls Scenarlo
AM

Peak-Hour
PM

Peak-Hour

5 Mangini Pa rkway (SSSC)

Existing (2014) Conditions PIus Project Conditions Only

Existing (2014) plus Proiect Conditions Yes Yes

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions Yes Yes

6 White Rock Road (AWSCI

Existing (2014) Conditions Yes Yes

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions Yes Yes

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions Yes Yes

Note: Peak-hour warrant is satisfied if warrant condition A or B is satisfied.

Monglnl Ronch Phdse t - Lots 70 & ts
Supplemental Traffic Evaluation

Page 5 of 6
September 5, 2019

Page 860

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



KimleyDHorn
Table 5 - lntersection Levels of Service with Mitigations

f Cast eidwell Street / Scott Road

lntercectlon ffiafflc Controll & Analysls Scenario

AM Peak-Hour PM Peak-Hour

Delay+

lsecondsl
ros DelaYi'

lsecondsl
ros

5 Maneini Parkwav (SSSCI

Existing (2014) Conditions Plus Project Conditions Only

Existing (20141 plus Project Conditions 31.1 D s60.3 (wBl F

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions with Signal 17.4 B 33.7 c

Existing (2014) plus Proiect plus School Conditions 76.9 F 6s4.9 (WB) F

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditions with Signal 12.9 B 37.8 D

5 White Rock Road {AWSCI

Existins (2014) Conditions 20.t c 3t.7 D

Existing (2014) plus Project Conditions 88.3 F tt3.7 F

Existing {2014) plus Project Conditions with Signal 11,1 B 20.L c

Existing {2014) plus Project plus School Conditions 110.5 F 1t4.4 F

Existing (2014) plus Project plus School Conditlons with Slgnal 11.5 B 20.4 c
ruates:
+ Delay reported for worst minor approach (worst minor rnovement) for SSSC

BOLD signifies substandard operating conditions (LOS D, E, or F), SSSC = Side-Street Stop Control

Manginl Ronch Phose I - Lots 70 & 75
Supplemental Traffic Evaluation

Page 6 of 6
September 6, 2019

Page 861

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Mangini Ranch - Lots 10 & 15

og
ct

I

e (30) -} 1
co

lsN

t
lnIt

s

q
lron point

gd

Exhibit 1

Project (Residential) Trip Distribution and Assignment

IIOT TO SCALE

lD

=lt
!
c
!J

!tAs0-!8-Flltrp-r

6
o)

N

I
Plecrrvllh Rd

t
d,g
oo

6
e9
F
AI

I

r
h
CI

t
t
o
1/'

;€

UE{OtTB

6 te(60)

E

us.to EB

71 (240)J

at
Eo
E
E
ut

6'
rot

I

tr
OFots
{!v(v' t

(\l

g)
g
(o

L

UI

Eo
!t L g+a (zzg)

7 187 l12sl

...ib!!Sl.0l ?h-'{rr
(t

0
N6

EI

flol
ul

lL
I

1

I

I

aO(r!Fu)vvF
oo
OFJL

T{!IF B9SEd,

zt lerryJ

36 (120)

m
q
a
€o
=
CN

5,885
Study lntersection

Study Roadway Segment
& ADT Volume

AM(PM) Peak-Hour
Volumes

+D Project Traffic
General Distribution

il Project site

xx(xx)

E
Er*

LEGEND

KimleyDHorn

Page 862

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



3
$
=e.

=.as
=ot

a

t-o
3t

C'
F
(n

N50s
SNgt
oNjq
N A CD^
t99lr.!9Jlt-u

rtr
5r{o!{r
ot o^
OJN(o(,t(D
aE ov

rss (163)
934 (12rs)

Lol (.,.r)

)L

c
an
dtc
tno
2t!a

Lsag (rraz)
+242(4571

E Bldnull St

2e6{3221+
263 (317).}

{
o(r(D^
NO6r
$ol

ls llarnplg 3
N
(o
(rt

-Ara
-JJ
7E-

v
-4o.-
IJ

4

c't
{o
5

E

too*
os
gom
>t.b+
0ia(Cl ^.o\)
UR$A
-.!\t
=l E-at u,

*+
s€og
iJ 61

s3 sF*q5.\-fd'qosqCt U, 1\)

I

-o{{o
oo
a
E

E

a
C
o.

5
o-aoo
6'
f,

90(/)
>c
9=o
s3ieJ€oqr

aocl
3
(D)

9=
: 'It
os
lnv

!
oo
FI
J-
o
L

I
1'
.d.
oo
a
o

!
xx

xx
xx

T-
m
m
z.
U

cp
6o-
E

r
(,
NO
s
(t

L
<_

f
676 (660)
737 (s?ol
244 (1s81

E Bldrell Sr

+406 (359)

r116(38e)
E Bid*llSt,rr

13 Ao
i= @5E {E
;:.- =G- NNL oct
t?

234(541)+
6z (210)1

E Bidnll St

+737(1515)

c
ct
&c{E-l
1r

\,| J(DO
^Nr@
tS^

(.t

91e (1250)
8e (87)

Llzaes€l
uq rfla(szl

(4)0

s
o

JN(or
a,t at)

*.lG
^@r{(t(,lJIL

rtr
^(r)o
-Oja or^.y^N

it o:
O:v

@J
(4)+
(0)-l

EBltult8t

0
0
0

Page 863

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Mangini Ranch - Lots 10 & 15

J

*.?J311
62 (286)+

2t3 (630) -}

rt'r t r
!:{N

@

o6

L
L zr (rzg)

+ 178(138)

{- 118(3e8)

^=^ 6

sg3 i
RP$ i€LN UJ IL

Ph€dlb Rd-17_-

ts

L e2s (lrs)

o

ts
N

I

t
us.60 utB

r
ts
I
t

Lrozs tr.tgr)

f73(1211

6

tr
ss (2e1) -}

F^

OF@F

Jl
trorelJ r

o
s,
s$

N

e6'

o€

lL
L aga rzgt
r 212(1&'t

r a^g
$38JIL

eee(stslJ
1A(195)+

r(rh

La5(zlr)
+305(226)

f o(ot

rir
ooo

mg
CLIg
(tt

lron point

Exhibit 3
Existing (2014) Plus Project P/us School Conditions

Peak Hour &Average Daily Tmffic (ADT) Volumes

ffiF$M

Study lntersection

Study Roadway Segment

AM(PM) Peak-Hour
Volumes

il Projectsite

&ADTVolume

xx(xx)

Eo

LEGEND

Kimley>Horn
Page 864

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 10

Access and Circulation Analysis
Dated April 14,2020

Page 865

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



KimleyDHorn
Memorandum

To:

From:

Re:

Date:

Rick Jordan

Matt Weir, P.E., T.E., PTOE

Access Evaluation

Mongini Ranch (MR) Phase 1- Lot 10

April14,202O

Per your request, we have prepared this access evaluation specific to Lot 10 of the above referenced

project. The assumptions upon which this evaluation was prepared were identified by the City of Folsoml

and the project team2. The following is a summary of these assumptions:

l. Land Usefrip Generation
o -TlsingreJ;[ii::r;:::ilh.',

46-trips lN (PM)

41-trips OUT (AM)

ll. Access Conditions
o I nterim t#l trf;:i!t: 

Right-rn/Right-out, Lert-rn
r Mangini Pkwy: Right-ln

o Ultimate (MR Phase 2+)

: ff:::f$i,l,i:' ;,:ff,il;[;i:1,,
Previously completed traffic studiesa are understood to form the basis of the ultimate East Bidwell Street

corridor and, in particular, the Mangini Parkway intersection geometrics. As such, these prior efforts are

included by reference allowing this access evaluation to focus exclusively on ingress and egress for Lot 10.

Accordingly, the following assumptions were incorporated as pertains to the sequencing of
improvements at the adjacent East Bidwell Street intersection with Mangini Parkway:

o rnterim 
$::::i:J:1,1',"i.:T;::?:'J.H$ dffllilt., .oairv existing traffic sisnar to
accornmodate northbound East Bidwell St u-turn

o Urtimate 
i:j::,T 

"t#li:',il::T:iln"J'#r1T;liate, 
*odiry existing trarric signar

Lastly it was necessary to approximate the peak-hour turning movements at the Lot 10 driveways to allow

for an evaluation and recommendation of treatments. The drivewaytrips were developed as summarized

below;

1 Teleconferences with Steve Krahn, City of Folsom, March 20 and April 7,2020.
2 Teleconference with Rick Jordan and Jennifer Lane, March 31, 2020,
3 Trip Generotion Manual, 16h Edition,lnstitute of Transportation Engineers (lTE).
a Regency at Folsom Ronch Transportatian lmpoct Study,F. Kear Transportation Planning & Management, lnc., November 20,

2Ot9; Supplemental Trafflc Evoluotion, Monglni Ronch Phose !, Kimley-Horn and Associates, lnc., March 11, 2015; and

Supplemental Trafltc Evoluatlon, Monginl Ronch Phose 1 - Lots 10 & 15, Kimley-Horn and Associates, lnc., September 6, 2019.

kitnlcy-horn.com 555 C,l)ito Ma l, surt(' i00, SiJcr,rrr.]ento, Calitorn;95814 91a' 853 5S00

Page 866

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



KimleyDHorn
Global Trip Assignments

o -85% of the trips originate from or are destined for points north
o *L5% trips originating from or destined for points south

Approximate Peak-Hour lngress Driveway Volumes

o East BidwellStreet
r Northbound Right: 15%* 46 = 7 trips
r Southbound Left; 85Yo* 50Yo* * 46 = 20 trips

o ManginiParkway
r Eastbound Right: 85%* 50%'* 46 = 20 trips

t Assumes that half of the southbound entering traffic turns left at the Mangini Parkway signalized intersection and half
continues south to use the southbound median left-turn.

Based on our coordination with the City and project team, and review of the prior studies and related
project documentation, we offer the following recommendations for Lot 10:

. Right-turn entering volumes from the arterial frontage (East Bidwell Street) are relatively low
(fewer than 10 peak-hour trips). Accordingly, based on direction from the City, a right-turn
auxiliary lane is not required at this location.

r To the extent possible, the southbound median left-turn pocket for Lot 10 should be constructed
to maximize the amount of deceleration distance. Maximizing deceleration will help to ensure

safe operations by allowing these slowing vehicles to exit the #1, high-speed southbound East

Bidwell Street through lane. Although queue storage is anticipated to be minimal, deceleration
distance of 31S-feet should be provided, representing an assumed entry speed of 40-mph which
includes a 10-mph speed reduction from the adjacent through lane6,

r General comments:
o Adequate corner sight-distance should be provided at all project driveway intersections.
o Physical medians and related signing should be provided at the Lot 10 East Bidwell Street

driveway to physically restrict outbound left-turns.
o As you are aware, the outbound right-turn from Lot 10 to Mangini Parkway should be

physically restricted until such a time that Westwood Drive is constructed Savannah

Parkway (Mangini Ranch Phase 2).

s Consistent with the methodology documente d in Regency at Folsom Ranch Tronsportotion lmpact Study,L Kear Transportation
Planning & Management, lnc., November 20,2019,
6 Section 405.2(d), Caltrans' Highwoy Design Monuol, caltrans, March 20, 2020.

Monglnl flonch Phase 7 - Lot 70
Access Evaluation

Page 2 of 2
April 14, 2020

Page 867

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



i
I

I

I

I

I

I

i

I

.

i

i
t0

' ttto
' t*Rinrc4
I

i

l\

Ez
i
I

tor 16

ffiRMre1
LEGEND

t:f
E
TJ

SXBTING PAVEM€M

PAVilENT BY I& BROIHERS

PROPOSEO PAVf MENI gY MANGITII
VIMG€ IO

FROPOSED SIRIPING 8Y MANGINI
VIUGE IO

EXENNG STRIPING

I
.-\ _

IMPROVEMENIS WITH EXISTING CONDIIIONSLOT NOTE
lBsrMosgrFil @tr{[fr o*l^lw wlr
lEAffiStOIOtft $tS (mOFttCd
ailttl

I

I

I

I

I

I

i

!

i
0

Lfr Ld ra
ls{ffirc1wrnM.eO

a

*
a

-#.
4

Roodwoy Confiourotion ol Lol l0

LOT 1 IMPROVEMENIS WITH PROPOSED TOLL BROTHERS IMPROVEMENTS

Mongini Porkwoy &
Eost BidwellSkeet

lmprovemenlso'dtu 
;gs!* ,;?;:

Page 868

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 11

Environmental Noise Analysis
Dated August 15,2019

Page 869

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Environmental Noise Assessment

Mangini Ranch Phase 1, Lots 10 & 15 Residbntial
Development

Folsom, California

BAC Job # 2019-138

Prepared For:

Mangini lmprovement Company, lnc.

Attn: Mr. Rick Jordan
4370 Town Center Blvd., Ste. 100
El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

Prepared By:

Bollard Acoustical Consu Itants, lnc.

Jonathan Lopez,
Senior Consultant

August 15, 2019

BOLLARD
Acousticdl Conzultants

Bollard Acoustical Consultants r 3551 Bankhead Road r Loomis, CA 95650 r Phone: (916) 663-0500 r WWW.BACNOISE.COMPage 870

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

lntroduction

The proposed Mangini Ranch Development (project) site is located within the Folsom South of
U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan. The specific component of the overall Mangini Ranch
development analyzed in this study is the proposed development of single-family residential lots
in Phase'1, Lots 10 and 15. The proposed lots are located at the northeast and southeast
quadrants of the East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway intersection, as indicated on Figure 1.

The proposed site plans are shown on Figures 2 and 3.

East Bidwell Road and Mangini Parkway traffic are considered to be potentially significant noise
sources which may affect the design of the residential project. As a result, Bollard Acoustical
Consultants, lnc. (BAC) was retained by the project applicant to prepare this acoustical analysis.
Specifically, this analysis was prepared to determine whether East Bidwell Road or Mangini
Parkway traffic noise would cause noise levels at the project site to exceed acceptable limits as
described in the Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan. ln addition, this analysis was
prepared to evaluate compliance with the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan EIR
Noise Mitigation Measures.

Noise Fundamentals and Terminology

Noise is often described as unwanted sound. Sound is defined as any pressure variation in air
that the human ear can detect. lf the pressure variations occur frequently enough (at least 20
times per second), they can be heard, and thus are called sound. Measuring sound directly in
terms of pressure would require a very large and awkr,vard range of numbers. To avoid this, the
decibel scale was devised. The decibel scale allows a million-fold increase in pressure to be
expressed as 120 dB. Anotherusefulaspectof the decibelscale is thatchanges in levels (dB)
correspond closely to human perception of relative loudness- Appendix A contains definitions of
Acoustical Terminology. Figure 4 shows common noise levels associated with various sources.

The perceived loudness of sounds is dependent upon many factors, including sound pressure
level and frequency content. However, within the usual range of environmental noise levels,
perception of loudness is relatively predictable, and can be approximated by weighing the
frequency response of a sound level meter by means of the standardized A-weighing network.
There is a strong correlation between A-weighted sound levels (expressed as dBA) and
community response to noise. For this reason, the A-weighted sound level has become the
standard tool of environmental noise assessment. All noise levels reported in this section are in
lerms of A-weighted levels in decibels.

Community noise is commonly described in terms of the "ambient" noise level, which is delined
as the all-encompassing noise level associated with a given noise environment. A common
statistical tool to measure the ambient noise level is the average, or equivalent, sound level (Leq)

over a given time period (usually one hour). The Leq is the foundation of the Day-Night Average
Level noise descriptor, Lon, dnd shows very good conelation with community response to noise.

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lote 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 1

Page 871

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15
Folsom, California

Project Area

Figure 1
BOTLARD

Acffitixl Cflsrds(D

N

h
Scale (feet)

IT
0 100 200

Legend

II

a
Project Border (Approximate)

Short-Term Noise Monitoring Location

Page 872

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ll
tl -_L

I

I

29c45

iti
:fl

iti

tl
rl

lr

23

3r

T"
I
I

l

I

I

I
I

I

UJ

e.o

A'' DRIVE--

eo

i

I

I

I

\
ilBil

I

IJJ

e,o
:
$

I
I

I

{
I

I

lrt
ul
v,
Fv,
J
UJ

=a
oo
F
at',

TIJ

_t

{
I

Legend

Proposed 6-Foot Tall Noise Barrier

Recommended Upper-Floor STC 32
Window Assemblies

N

h
Scale (feet)

04080

-

Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

Folsom, California

Lot 15 Site Plan

Figure 2 BOLIARD
A{odrd CmndrB(,)

Page 873

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Legdnd

Proposod 6-Foot Tall Noi$ Earier

Re@mmended Upper-Flod STC 32
Windw As$mblies h

Scale (feat)r----r
0

-

50 100

il MANGINI

I

Ir
lt v
!arl
ia
lp
rr{lu

!

L.- I

6

I

50

1€

49

45

17

t3

4

40

ill

a

9

I

l
I

i

!

l

I

I

!

I

!

!

I

l-
:>
IE
:6
lk
I

i

i
I

i

I

I

I

I

I

lo

Figure 3

Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15
Folsom, California

Lot 10 Site Plan

BOII-ARD(*)
Page 874

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultanls, lnc. (BAC)

The Day-Night Average Level (Lun) is based upon the average noise level over a 24-hour day,
with a +10 decibel weighing applied to noise occurring during nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a,m.)
hours. The nighttime penalty is based upon the assumption that people react to nighttime noise
exposures as though they were twice as loud as daytime exposures. Because Lun represents a
24-hour average, it tends to disguise short-term variations in the noise environment, Lan-based
noise standards are commonly used to assess noise impacts associated with traffic, railroad and
aircraft noise sources.

Flgure 4
Typical A-Weighted Sound Levels of Common Noise Sources

Decibel Scale (dBA)-

t'

*

-rr
ilt
(q

n
aoil

\

II 'SourcB:
\ffi w crh ofl/nlosi/t0picgn0is€/n0lsonslmhtnl
hltg//0.0.r-comlh€aringcrrssfl atiorvloq .maln ctn

12-Gauge Sholgun 160

Jet Takeotf 't 40

110Chainsaw
Hammer Drill 114

Pneumalic Hiveter 124

100Molorcycle
Rock Concert 1(E

Lawn tlower q)
Traolo/lland orill gl

Vacuum Oloaner .fl
Clty lallic t8

Pln Falling 15

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 5

Page 875

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc.

Criteria for Acceptable Noise Exposure

City of Folsom General Plan - Transportation Noise Sources

The City of Folsom General Plan Noise Element establishes an exterior noise level standard of
60 dB Lon at outdoor activity areas of residential land uses exposed to transportation noise sources
(i.e., traffic). The intent of this standard is to provide an acceptable exterior noise environment
for outdoor activities. For single-family residential uses, such as the proposed project, these limits
are normally applied at backyard areas.

The City of Folsom utilizes an interior noise level standard of 45 dB Lon or less within noise-
sensilive project dwellings, The intent of this interior noise limit is to provide a suitable
environment for indoor communication and sleep,

Gity of Folsom General Plan - Non-Transportation Noise Sources

The City of Folsom Municipal Code establishes acceptable noise level criteria for non-
transportation noise sources (e.g., parks, schools, commercial activities). Table I (Table 8.42.O4O

of the MunicipalCode)provides the City's noise level performance criteria which willbe applicable
to non-transportation noise sources once specific plans for the future school, park, and
commercial uses have been developed. The Table 1 standards are provided in terms of hourly
levels and include adjustments for the time of day the noise occurs, the duration of intrusive
sound, and the characteristics of the noise (e.9., impulsive, tonal, speech or music, etc.).

Envlronmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 'l Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, Califomia
Page 6

Table {
Exterior Hourly Noise Level Performance Standards for Stationary Noise Sources

Gity of Folsom Municipal Code

Gumulative Minutes/Hour of Nolse
Generation (Ln)r

Exterior Noise Level Standard (delz'l

Daytime (7 am - {0 pm} Nighttime (10 pm - 7 am)

30 (Lso)

1 5 (Lzo)

5 (Lo)

1 (Lz)

0 (L.a')

50

55

60

65

70

45

50

55

60

65

Notes:
rLn means the percentage of lime ihe noise level is sxceeded during an hour. Ls6 mesns the level exceeded 50o/o of the hour, Lze

ls the level exceeded 25o/o ollhe hour, etc.

2 ln ths event the measured amblent noise level exceeds the appliceble noise level standard in any category abov€, th€ applicable

standard shall be adjusted 60 as to equal he ambient noise level,

3 Each of the noise level standards specified above shall be reduced by 5 dB(A) for simple tone noises, noises consisting primarily

of speech or music, or for recuning noisag.

Page 876

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Noise Mitigation Measures

The noise mitigation measures shown below have been incorporated into the Folsom South of
U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan in order to mitigate identified environmental impacts. The noise-
related mitigation measures which are applicable to the development of single-family residential
land uses within the Mangini Ranch development are reproduced below. Following each
mitigation measure is a brief discussion as to lhe applicability of the mitigation measure to the
Mangini Ranch Residential Development.

MM 3A.tl-1 lmplement Noise-Reduclng Construction Practices, Prepare and lmplement
a Nolse Control Plan, and Monitor and Record Gonstructlon Nolse near
Sensitive Receptors.

To reduce impacts associated with noise generated during project-related construction activities,
the project applicantts) and their primary contractors for engineering design and construction of
all project phases shall ensure that the following requirements are implemented at each work site
in any year of project construction to avoid and minimize construction noise effects on sensitive
receptors. The project applicant(s) and primary construction contractor(s) shall employ noise-
reducing construction practices. Measures that shall be used to limit noise shall include the
measures listed below:

Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours between 7 a.m. and
7 p.m. Mondaythrough Friday, and between 8 a.m. and 6 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays.

All construction equipment and equipment staging areas shall be located as far as
possible ftom nearby noise-sensitive land uses.

All construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped with noise-
reduction intake and exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, in accordance with
manufacturers' recommendations. Equipment engine shrouds shall be closed during
equipment operation.

All motorized construction equipment shall be shut down when not in use to prevent idling.

lndividual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter procedures (e.9., using
welding instead of riveting, mixing concrete off-site instead of on-site).

Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating equipment
(e.9,, compressors and generators) as planned phases are built out and future noise
sensitive receptors are located within close proximity to future construction activities.

Written notification of construction activities shall be provided to all noise-sensitive
receptors located within 850 feet of construction activities. Notification shall include
anticipated dates and hours during which construction activities are anticipated to occur
and contact information, including a daytime telephone number, for the project
representative to be contacted in the event that noise levels are deemed excessive.

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 7

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

Page 877

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



a

a

Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior noise levels
(e.9., closing windows and doors) shall also be included in the notification.

To the extent feasible, acoustic baniers (e.9., lead curtains, sound barriers) shall be

constructed to reduce construction-generated noise levels at affected noise-sensitive land

uses, The barriers shall be designed to obstruct the line of sight between the noise-

sensitive land use and on-site construction equipment. When installed properly, acoustic
barriers can reduce construction noise levels by approximately I to 10 dB (EPA 1971).

When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to prolonged construction
noise, noise-attenuating buffers such as structures, truck trailers, or soil piles shall be

located between noise sources and future residences to shield sensitive receptors from
construction noise.

The primary contractor shall prepare and implement a construction noise management
plan. This plan shall identiff specific measures to ensure compliance with the noise

control measures specified above. The noise control plan shall be submitted to the City
of Folsom before any noise-generating construction activity begins. Construction shall not

commence until the construction noise management plan is approved by the City of
Folsom. Mitigation for the two off-site roadway connections into El Dorado County must
be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of the applicable project phase with El Dorado

County, since the roadway extensions are outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional

boundaries.

Mitigation Measure 3A.11-1 will be implemented duing prciect construction.

Mltt 3A.11-3 lmplement Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
Groundborne Noise or Vibration from Prolect Generated Construction
Activities.

To the extent feasible, blasting activities shall not be conducted within 275 feel of existing

or future sensitive receptors.

To the extent feasible, bulldozing activities shall not be conducted within 50 feet of existing
or future sensitive receptors.

All blasting shall be performed by a blast contractor and blasting personnel licensed to
oper:ate in the State of Califomia.

A blasting plan, including estimates of vibration levels at the residence closest to the blast,

shall be submitted to the enforcement agency for review and approval prior to the
commencement of the first blast.

Environmental Nolse Analysls
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 8

a

a

a

a

Page 878

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

Each blast shall be monitored and documented for groundborne noise and vibration levels
at the nearest sensitive land use and associated recorded submitted to the enforcement
agency.

Mitigation Measure 3A.11-g will be implemented duing project construction.

MM 3A.11.4 lmplement Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
lncreases In Noise from Prolect-Generated Operational Traffic on Off€ite
and On€lte Roadways.

To meet applicable noise standards as set forth in the appropriate General Plan or Code (e.9.,
City of Folsom, County of Sacramento, and County of El Dorado) and to reduce increases in
traffic-generated noise levels at noise-sensitive uses, the project applicant(s) of all project phases
shall implement the following:

Obtain the services of a consultant (such as a licensed engineer or licensed architect) to
develop noise-attenuation measures for the proposed construction of on-site noise-
sensitive land uses (i.e., residential dwellings and school classrooms) that will produce a
minimum composite Sound Transmission Class (STC) rating for buildings of 30 or greater,
individually computed for the walls and the floor/ceiling construction of buildings, for the
proposed construction of on-site noise-sensitive land uses (i.e., residential dwellings and
school classrooms).

o

a

a Prior to submittal of tentative subdivision maps and improvement plans, the project
applicant(s) shall conduct a site-specific acoustical analysis to determine predicted
roadway noise impacts aftributable to the project, taking into account site-specific
conditions (e.9., site design, location of structures, building characteristics). The
acoustical analysis shall evaluate stationary- and mobile-source noise attributable to the
proposed use or uses and impacts on nearby noise-sensitive land uses, in accordance
with adopted City noise standards. Feasible measures shall be identified to reduce
project-related noise impacts. These measures may include, but are not limited to, the
following:

o limiting noise-generating operational activities associated with proposed commercial
land uses, including truck deliveries;

o constructing exterior sound walls;

r constructing barrier walls and/or berms with vegetation;

r using "quiet pavement" (e.9., rubberized asphalt) construction methods on local
roadways; and,

. using increased noise-attenuation measures in building construction (e.9., dual-pane,
sou nd-rated windows ; exterior wal I insulation).

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 9

Page 879

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

Pursuanl to this mitigation measure, this rcport includes an analysis of traffic noise impacts at
proposed single-family residential lots within the Mangini Ranch development rcsufting from traffic
on East Bidwel/ Sfreef and Mangini Parkway. As determined by this analysis, which is presented
later in this repoft, future traffic noise levels generated by traffic on East Bidwell Street and
Mangini Parl<way are predicted to exceed the City of Folsom exterior noise standards at the
nearest proposed residential lots the roadway. As a result, this analysis prescnbes specific noise
control measures as required to achieve salisfaclrbn with the City's exterior and interior noise
level stand ard s appl icable to new residenti al developments.

MM 34.11-5 lmplement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary
Sources.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development project shall implement the
following measures to reduce the effect of noise levels generated by on-site stationary noise
sources that would be located within 600 feet of any noise-sensitive receptor:

Routine testing and preventive maintenance of emergency electrical generators shall be
conducted during the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e., 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). All
electrical generators shall be equipped with noise control (e.9., muffler) devices in
accordance with manufacturers' specifications.

a

a

a

a

External mechanical equipment associated with buildings shall incorporate features
designed to reduce noise emissions below the stationary noise source criteria. These
features may include, but are not limited to, locating generators within equipment rooms
or enclosures that incorporate noise-reduction features, such as acoustical louvers, and
exhaust and intake silencers. Equipment enclosures shall be oriented so that major
openings (i.e., intake louvers, exhaust) are directed away from nearby noise-sensitive
receptors.

Parking lots shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the
stationary noise source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in
every hour during the daytime [7 a.m. to 10 p.m.] and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of
every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to 7 a.m.]). Reduction of parking lot noise can
be achieved by locating parking lots as far away as feasible from noise sensitive land
uses, or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding for noise-
sensitive land uses.

Loading docks shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the
stationary noise source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in
every hour during the daytime [7 a.m. to 10 p.m.] and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of
every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to 7 a.m.]). Reduction of loading dock noise can
be achieved by locating loading docks as far away as possible from noise sensitive land
uses, constructing noise barriers between loading docks and noise-sensitive land uses,
or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding for noise-
sensitive land uses.

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 10

Page 880

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

When specific plans are developed for new stationary noise sources within the Mangini Ranch
development indicating the locations and grading of proposed noise generafrng uses sucfr as
schoo/ and park playgrcunds/playing fields, commercial loading docks, etc., a project-specific
nolse analysis will be required as outlined above to ensure compliance with City of Folsom noise
standards. Because no such specific plans are available af thr's time, this study focuses on lhe
evaluation of traffic noise impacts upon the proposed single-family residential lots within the
Mangini Ranch development.

Evaluation of Future Traffic Noise Levels at Proposed Single-Family
Residences within Mangini Ranch

Traffic Noise Prediction Methodology

The FederalHighwayAdministration HighwayTraffic Noise Prediction Model(FHWA-RD-77-108)
was used to predict future traffic noise levels at the project site. The model is based upon the
CALVENO noise emission factors for automobiles, medium trucks, and heavy trucks, with
consideration given to vehicle volume, speed, roadway configuration, distance to the receiver,
and the acoustical characteristics of the site. The FHWA Model was developed to predict hourly
Leq values for free flowing traffic conditions, and is considered to be accurate within 1.5 dB in most
situations.

Traffic Noise Prediction Model Calibration

The FHWA Model provides reasonably accurate traffic noise predictions under "ideal" roadway
conditions. ldealconditions are generally considered to be long straight roadway segments with
uniform vehicle speeds, a flat roadway surface, good pavement conditions, a statistically large
volume of traffic, and an unimpeded view of the roadway from the receiver location. Bollard
Acoustical Consultants, lnc. conducted a calibration of the FHWA Model through site-specific
traffic noise level measurements and concunent traffic counts to determine if offsets were
warranted for either East Bidwell Street or Mangini Parhray traffic noise.

East BidwellStreet

The calibration process was performed at the project site on the afternoon of July 22,2O19. The
short-term traffic noise level measurement location for East Bidwell Street is shown on Figure 1

and is denoted as site ST-1. The detailed results of the calibration process are provided in
Appendix B. Photographs of the short-term noise level measurement site are provided in
Appendix C. The FHWA Model was found to reasonably predict traffic noise levels at the
measurement site (within 1.6 dB). As a result, no calibration adjustment was applied to the FHWA
Model for the prediction of future East Bidwell Street traffic noise levels at the project site.

Environmental Nolse Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

Clly of Folsom, Califomia
Page 11

Page 881

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

ManoiniParlcway

The FHWA Model requires a statistically large volume of traffic in order to conduct the calibration
process. During BAC's site visit on the afiernoon of July 22,2019, fewer than 30 vehicles were
observed on the roadway. Due to the observed low traffic volume, the calibration procedure was
unable to be completed for Mangini Parkway. Therefore, no calibration offset was applied to the
FHWA Model for the prediction of future Mangini Parkway traffic noise levels at the project site.

Predicted Future Exterior Traffic Noise Levels

The FHWA Modelwas used with futuro traffic data contained in the Folsom South of Highway 50
Specific Plan EIR to predict future traffic noise levels at the proposed residential backyards and
building facades located closest to East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkuray. Because
residences are proposed adjacent to two segments of East Bidwell Street with significantly
differing traffic volumes, these segments were evaluated separately. According to the project site
plans and grading plans (dated March 18, 2019), the project is proposing 6-foot noise barriers
along East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway. For the baniers along East Bidwell Street, the
baniers will sit atop a 4-foot berm, effectively creating a 1O-foot tall noise barrier relative to the
proposed pad elevations. A cross section of East Bidwell Street illustrating the relationship
between the roadway, banier, and pad elevations is provided as Appendix D. For the baniers
along Mangini Parhray, it was assumed that the roadway, the base of barrier, and pad all share
similar elevations.

The predicted worst-case, future traffic noise levels at the lots proposed nearest to the project
roadways are summarized below in Table 2. Detailed listings of the FHWA Model inputs and
predicted future traffic noise levels at the project site are provided in Appendix E. Banier insertion
loss calculations are provided in Appendix F.

Table 2
Predicted Future Trafflc Noise Levelsr

Manglnl Ranch Phase I Lols {0 & t5 - Clty of Folsom, Callfornia

Lot Description

Distance From
Roadway

Genterline (feetfz

Pred lcted Exterlor Trafilc
Noise Level, Ldn (dBl

do Barrier wl Proposed Barrler

Lots adJacent to East Bidwell Street

(Norlh of Manginl Patkway)

Lots adjacent to East Bidwell Street

(South of Mangini Parkway)

Lots adjacent to Mangini Parkway

90

90

65

68

67

65

57

56

59

Notes:

t A complote llsling of FHWA Model inputs and results are provided in Appendix E.

2 Distances scaled from the centerline oflhe roadways to the nearest lots.

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase I Lols 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page'12

Page 882

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc, (BAC)

Analysls

Outdoor Activity Areas (Backyards)

The Table 2 data indicate that with the inclusion of the proposed noise baniers, future traffic noise
levels within the outdoor activity areas nearest to East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway are
predicted to be less than the 60 dB Lon exterior noise level standard applied by City of Folsom to
the outdoor activity areas of new residential developments. As a result, additional consideration
of noise mitigation measures would not be warranted.

lnterior Areas

Standard residential construction (wood or stucco siding, Sound Transmission Class (STC) 27
windows, door weather-stripping, exterior wall insulation, composition plprood roof) typically
results in a minimum exterior-to-interior noise level reduction (NLR) of 25 dB with windows closed,
and approximately 15 dB with windows open. Therefore, provided exterior noise levels at the
building facades nearest to the project roadways do not exceed 70 dB Ldn, no further
consideration of interior noise mitigation measures would be warranted.

Lofs Nearest fo Easf BidwellSfreef

After construction of the proposed baniers along East Bidwell Street, the exterior noise
environment at the residences proposed closest to the roadway is predicted to be approximately
56-57 dB Ldn or less at first-floor facades. After consideration of the 25 dB NLR provided by
standard residential building construction, future East Bidwell Street traffic noise levels are
predicted to be 31-32 dB Lon within the nearest first-floor living spaces. Therefore, standard
construction practices would be adequate for the first-floor facades nearest to East Bidwell Street.

Due to reduced ground absorption of sound at elevated positions, semnd-floor traffic noise levels
are predicted to be approxirnately 3 dB higher than first-floor levels. ln addition, second-floor
facades would not be shielded by the proposed noise barriers. As a result, second-floor traffic
noise exposure of the residences proposed adjacent to East Bidwell Street would be
approximately 70-71 dB Lon. To achieve compliance with the Cig's 45 dB Lon interior noise level
requirement within second-floor rooms, a building facade noise level reduction of 25-26 dB would
be required of the second-floor exterior wall construction. To provide a margin a safety for upper-
floor living spaces, further consideration of noise mitigation would be wananted. For lots located
nearest to East Bidwell Street, the north-, west-, and south-facing upper-floor building facades
should maintain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 32. Figure 2 illustrates the lots

requ iring improved building construction.

Lofs Nearest ta Mangini Parkway

At the proposed building facades nearest to Mangini Parkraay, future traffic noise levels are
predicted to be 59 dB and 68 dB Lon at first-floor and upper-floor facades, respectively. After
consideration of the 25 dB NLR provided by standard residential building construction, future

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase I Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 13

Page 883

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, lnc. (BAC)

Mangini Parkway traffic noise levels are predicted to be 34 dB and 43 dB Lan within the nearest
first-floor and upper-floor living spaces, respectively. The predicted interior traffic noise levels
would be in compliance with the City's 45 dB Lcn for residential developments. As a result, no
further consideration of noise mitigation would be warranted for the residences nearest to Mangini
Parkway.

Noise Generated During Project Construction

During the construction phases of the project, noise from construction activities would add to the
noise environment in the immediate project vicinity, Activities involved in construction would
generate maximum noise levels, as indicated in Table 3, ranging from 70 to 90 dB at a distance
of 50 feet. This noise increase would be of short duration, and would likely occur primarily during
daytime hours.

It should be noted that there are no existing residences or other noise-sensitive land uses in the
immediate project vicinity, so construction noise impacts at offsite locations are predicted to be
insignificant. As residences are constructed within the project development, noise from ongoing
construction-related activilies will be audible at completed residences, but is not expected to be
significant provided construction activities are limited to daytime hours.

It is possible that a portable aggregate crushing plant may be utilized during project site grading
but it is likely the on-site crushing will be completed prior to any new residences being occupied.
Nonetheless, if a portable crushing plant is utilized during project construction, and if that plant
remains in operation as new residences become occupied, then it may be necessary to implement
practical noise mitigation measures to ensure the City's noise standards are satisfied at the
occupied residences. Such measures would include the use of setbacks, limitations on hours of
crushing, and construction of temporary baniers around the crushing plant. Additional analysis
would be required to identiff more specific details pertaining to mitigation.

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, California
Page 14

Page 884

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acousticel Consultanls, lnc. (BAC)

Table 3
Typlcal Gonstructlon Equipment Noise

Equipment Description Maximum Noise Level at 50 feet, dBA

Auger drill rig
Backhoe
Bar bender
Boring jack power unit
Chain saw
Compactor (ground)
Compressor (air)
Concrete batch plant
Concrete mixer truck
Concrete pump truck
Concrete saw
Crane (moblle or stationary)
Dozer
Dump truck
Excavator
Flatbed truck
Front end loader
Generator (25 kilovoltamperes [kVAl or less)
Generator (more than 25 kVA)
Grader
Hydra break ram
Jackhammer
Mounted impact hammer (hoe ram)
Paver
Pickup truck
Pneumatic tools
Pumps
Rock drill
Scraper
Soilmix drill rig
Tractor
Vacuum street sweeper
Mbratory concrete mixer
Welder/Torch

85
80
80
80
85
80
80
83
85
82
90
85
85
84
85
84
80
70
82
85
90
85
90
85
55
85
77
85
85
80
84
80
80
73

Source: Federat Highway Adminislntlon (2006)

Environmental Noise Analysis
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

City of Folsom, Califomia
Page 15

Page 885

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bollard Acoustical Consultiants, lnc. (BAC)

Conclusions

The Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10 and 15 Residential Development project site will be exposed
lo future traffic noise levels that are satisfactory relative to the City of Folsom 60 dB Lun exterior
noise level standard. This assessment takes into consideration the significant screening of traffic
noise that will be provided by the proposed noise barriers along East Bidwell Street and Mangini
Parkway. However, the following specific noise mitigation measures are recommended to
achieve compliance with the City's interior noise level standard of 45 dB Lon:

r For the first-row of homes located along East Bidwell Street, the north-, west-, and south-
facing upper-floor building facades should maintain minimum window assembly STG
ratings of 32. Figure 2 illustrates the facades requiring improved STC rated windows.

o Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) should be provided for all residences in this
development to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve
compliance with the applicable interior noise level criteria.

These conclusions are based on the traffic assumptions cited in Appendix E, on the project site
plans and grading plans (dated March 18, 2019), and on noise reduc'tion data for standard
residential dwellings. Deviations from the Appendix E data, or the project site/grading plans, could
cause future trafiic noise levels to differ from those predicted in this analysis. ln addition, Bollard
Acoustical Consultants, lnc. is not responsible for degradation in acoustic performance of the
residential construction due to poor construction practices, failure to comply with applicable
building code requirements, or for failure to adhere to the minimum building practices cited in this
report.

This concludes BAC's trafiic noise assessment for the proposed Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10
and 15 Residential Development. Please contact BAC at (916) 663-0500 or JonL@bacnoise.com
with any questions regarding this assessment.

Environmental Noise Analysis
Manglni Ranch Phase '1 Lols 10 & 15

City of Folsom, Califomia
Page 16

Page 886

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



AppendhA
Acoustical Terminology

Amusths Thescience of scr.nd.

Artient
iloie

A[bnuaffon

A.WeigMng

Declbelor dB

CNEL

Frcquency

Ldr

Lsc

lrnil

Loudnes

Maddng

Nri*

Peak Nois

Sabin

SEL

Thrcshold
of Herlng

Thrcshold
of Fain

RTo

The dstindiw amslical dnnaderistics of a gMen space corsi$ing of all ncise sources
audible at that location. ln many cases, he term ambient is used to dessibe an existing
or prepject condition such as the setling in an environmenbl noise sfudy,

The reduc$on of an aousticsgnal.

A frequency*eponse adjustnent of a sound level meterthat conditions tre ouSrt signal
to appnximate humar response.

Fundarnenbl unit of sound, A Bdl is defined as he logarithm of tre natio of fre sound
presslre squared orcr he referene pressure quared. A Decibel is me-tenth of a Bell.

Cornrnunity Nc*se Equivalent Level. Defined asthe 24hour a,ef'age nolse levelwtfr
noise ocqJning dudng evening hours (7 - 10 p.m.)weiglrted by afactor of tnee and
nightime housrirrcighted bya fadorof 10 giorto averaging.

The measure of he napidity of albrations of a pedodic signal, ergressed in cydes per
secord or hertr.

Day/Nbht Arenage Sound Level. Smilarto ChIEL brJtwith no aening u,eighting.

Eqivalent or energya/eraged sound level.

The highest rocfi+nean+quare (RMS) sound ]evel rneasured orrer a given period d tinre.

As.tiective tennforhesensatimof tn rnagnitude of sound.

The arno.nt (w he process) by\r,/hich he hreshold of audibllity is for one sqrnd is naised
by he presence of andrer (masking) sound.

utwmtedsound.

The larel coresponding tro he highest (not RMS) somd pessure measured wer a girren
period dtinre. Thh term is ofien confused with the Matimum level, wtridr h fie highest
Rt!6levd.

The tirne it takes reverberant sound trc decay by 60 dB me lhe source h6 been
rcfnO\r€d.

Themitof sound absorptisr. One sqmrefootof nraterialabsorbing 100/oof lrcident
sound hasan absorplion of 1 sabin.

A ratlng, in decibds, of a dlsse{e event, sudr as an aircraft flywer or fain passby, trat
mmpesses he trtal sound eneryy of the event inb a 1-s lime period.

The lolr,rsst sound hat can be perceived bytre human auditory q6tem, generally
ssidercd b beO dBfor persons wifr perfuct hearing.

Appmximately 120 dB abwe tre hreshold of hearing.

\i\ BOLLARD
///l Acoustical Consultants

Page 887

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendix B

FHWA Trafffc Noise Prediction Model (FHWA-RD-77-1081
Gallbratlon Worksheet

ProJect lnformatlon: Job Number: 2019-138
Project Name: Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

Roadway Tested: East Bidwell Street
Test Location: ST-1

Test Date: July 22,2019

Weather Conditions: Temperature (Fahrenheit): 97
Relative Humidity: 21%

Wind Speed and Direction: WNW Tmph
Cloud Cover: Clear

Sound LevelMeter: Sound Level Meter: LDL Model 820 (BAC #6)
Calibrator: LDL Model CAL200

Meter Calibrated: lmmediately before
Meter Settings: A-weighted, slow response

Mlcrophone: Microphone Location: On project site
Distance to Centerline (feet): 65

Microphone Height 5 feet above ground
lntervening Ground (Hard or Soft): Soft
Elevation Relative to Road (feet): 5

Roadway Condition: Pavement Type Asphalt
Pavement Condition: Good

Number of Lanes: 2
Posted Maximum Speed (mph): 45

Tost Parameterc: Test Time: 11:55 AM
Test Duration (minutes): 15

Observed Number Automobiles: 1 26
Observed Number Medium Trucks: 8

Observed Number Heavy Trucks: 9
Observed Average Speed (mph): 45

Model Calibration: Measured Average Level (Leq): 67.6
Level Predicted by FHWA Model: 66.0

Difference: -1.6 dB

Concluelons: Modeled versus measured traffic noise levels within 2 dB, indicating close agreement. No
calibration offset wananted for the prediction of future East Bidwell Street traffic noise
levels at the projact site.

,ri BoLLARD
( Acoustical Consultants

Page 888

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



ii' i' *Et;'-:qk::i'"i .'r'
rir.i: ri 4r-

, {r.t
".1p,{

*?

*{t'.jm'f ..

t'
\

\

M

, ,t
..ri

*,:fl-.,,, .rr.

t'

/

t

'trII,

t

uollr?ool Aanrng asroN
JUltsr l 1o sqderOo1oq.1

erulo]rles 'uroslol
gt ? 0L slol t aseqd qoueu rurDueyl

qlnos Durrr:1 [E-l

lsa,u iiurcel fyl

puaEel

M,9e 6r,9 "lZt 'N,,/t/ 91,,10, g0

610Z ' Z(, A1n1 1o uoou:age at11 tio
pololriuro: 6ur.Lolluoru ulal porls :sloN

c xtpuoddv
0l) V,t 

.t 
C) t"l r

I.I-*'._r

Page 889

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendix D

ffi .t:

pt

I

d

It' d t

R/W Rlw

1OO' RIGHT-OF-WAY

EErt Bldwell $beet
r.t s.

Page 890

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendix E-l
FHWA Traffic Noise Predlctlon Model (FHWA-RD-77-1081
Noise Prediction Worksheet

Prcject lnformation:
Job Number: 2019-138

Project Name: Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & '15

Roadway Name: East Bidwell Street - North of Mangini Partway

Traffic Data:
Year:

Average Daily Traffic Volume:
Percent Daytime Traffic:

Percent Nighttime Traffic:
Percent Medium Trucks (2 axle):
Percent Heavy Trucks (3+ axle);
Assumed Vehicle Speed (mph):

lntervening Ground Type (hard/soft):

Future
29,300

83
17
2
1

45
Soft

Trafflc Noise Levels:

Locatlon Descrlptlon
Medium

Dlatance OffiBct (dB) Autoe Trucks

dB----------
Heavy
Trucks Total

1 Lots nearest to EaS Bidwell Street 90 0 67 59 60 68

Trafflc Nolse Contours (No Callbration Offeetl:

L6n Contour, dB Distance from Genterline, (ft|
75
70
65
60

33
70
152
327

Notes: 1. Distances scaled from the future centerline of East Bidwell Street to nearest lots.

,ri SoLLARD
( /)// Acoustical Consultonts

Page 891

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendix E-2

FHWA Traffic Noise Prcdiction Model (FHWA-RD-77-1081
Noise Prediction Worksheet

Prolect lnformation:
Job Number: 2019-138

Project Name: Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15
Roadway Name: East Bidwell Street - South of Mangini Parkway

Traffic Data:
Year:

Average Daily Traffic Volume:
Percent Daytime Traff ic:

Percent Nighttime Traffic:
Percent Medium Trucks (2 axle):
Percent Heavy Trucks (3+ axle):
Assumed Vehicle Speed (mph):

lntervening Ground Type (hard/soft):

Future
20,300

83
17
2
1

45
Soft

Traffic Noise Levels:

Location Description

Lon, dB-**
Medium Heavy

Distance Offset (dB) Autos Trucks Trucks Total
1 Lots nearest to East Bidwell Street 90 0 66 57 58 67

Traffic Noise Contours (No Callbratlon Oftsetf:

L6n Contour, dB Distance from Centerline, (ft)

75 26
55
119
256

7A

65
60

Notes: 1. Distances scaled from the future centerline of East Bidwell Street to nearest lots.

,r1\ SoLLARD
( tul Acoustical Consultants

Page 892

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendix E-3

FHWA Traffic Noise Predlctlon Model (FHWA-RD-77-1081
Nolse Predictlon Worksheet

Prolect lnformation:
Job Number: 2019-138

Project Name: Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15
Roadway Name: Mangini Parkway - East of East Bidwell Sheet

Traffic Data:
Year:

Average Daily Tratfic Volume:
Percent Daytime Traffic:

Percent Nighttime Traffic:
Percent Medium Trucks (2 axle):
Percent Heavy Trucks (3+ axle):
Assumed Vehicle Speed (mph):

lntervening Ground Type (hard/soft):

Future
12,200

83
17
2
1

40
Soft

Traffic Noise Levels:

Location Descrl Dietance Offieet

ho, dB..--.--
Medium Heavy

Autos Trucks Trucks Total
nearest 0 58 65

Traffic Noise Contours (No Calibration Offset):

Lan Contour, dB Dlstance from Centerllne, (ft)

75
70
65
60

15
32
70
151

Notes: 1. Distances scaled from the centerline of Mangini Parkway to nearest lots.

.,ri BoLLARD
( //// Acoustical Consultdnts

Page 893

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendlx F-l
FHWA Traffic Noise Prediction Model (FHWA-RD.77-{08)
Noise Barrier Effectiveness Prediction Worksheet

Proiect lnformation: Job Number: 2019-138
Project Name: Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

Roadway Name: East Bidwell Street - North of Mangini Parkway
Location(s): Lots nearest to East Bidwell Street

Noise Level Data: Year: Future
Auto L6n, dB: 67

Medium Truck Lon, dB: 59

HeavyTruck Lon, dB: 60

Stte Geometry: Receiver Description: Lots nearest to East Bidwell Street
Centerline to Banier Distance (Cr): 80

Barrier to Receiver Distance (Cz): 10

Automobile Elevation: 0
Medium Truck Elevation: 2

Heavy Truck Elevation: I
Pad/Ground Elevation at Receiver: 4

Receiver Elevationl: 9
Base of Barrier Elevation: 8

Starting Banier Height 6

Barrler Efiectiveness

Top of
Barrier Barrler

Ldn' dB Barrier Breaks Line of
ModIUm

Autos? Trucks?

Sightto.
tleavy

Eleyation {ft) Height2 (ft) Autos
Mgdlum
Trucks

Healry
Trucks Total Trucks?

14
15
16
17
18
't9

20
21

22

6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13
14

55 47 49 57 Yes Yes Yes
54 46 48 56 Yes Yes Yes
53 45 47 55 Yes Yes Yes
53 44 46 54 Yes Yes Y€s
53 44 46 54 Yes Yes Yes
52 43 45 53 Yes Yes Yes
51 43 45 53 Yes Yes Yes
51 42 44 52 Yes Yes Yes
51 42 44 52 Yes Yes Yes

NOtes: 'l.Standard recelver slevalion lg ffve feet above grade/pad elevatlons at the recelver localion(s)

,ri goLLARD
( //// Acoustical Consultants

Page 894

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendix F-2

FHWA Traffic Noise Predlctlon Model (FHWA-RD-77-1 08)
Noise Barrier Effectiveness Prediction Worksheet

Prolect Informatlon: Job Number: 2019-138
Projec{ Name: ManginiRanch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

Roadway Name: East Bidwell Street - South of Mangini Parkway
Location(s): Lots nearest to East Bidwell Street

Noise Level Data: Year: Future
Auto l-6n, dB: 66

Medium Truck L6n, dB: 57

Heavy Truck L6n, dB: 58

Slte Geometry: Receiver Description: Lots nearest to East Bidwell Street
Centerline to Banier Distance (C1): 80

Barrier to Receiver Distance (C): 10

Automobile Elevation: 0
Medium Truck Elevation: 2

Heavy Truck Elevation: 8
Pad/Ground Elevation at Receiver: 0

Receiver Elevationl: 5
Base of Barrier Elevation: 4

Starting Banier Height 6

Barrier Effectlveness:

Top of
Barrler

Elevatlon (ftl
Barrier

Hoiqhtz (ft|

Lan' dB
tledlum lleavy

Autos Trucks Trucks Total

Barrier Breaks Llne of
Medium

Autos? Trucks?

Sight to...
Heavy

Trucks?

10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

6
7
8
I
10
11

12
13
14

54
53
52
51

51

50
50
4S
49

46
45
44
43
42
42
42
41

41

48
47
46
45
44
44
43
43
43

66
54
54
53
52
52
51
5r
50

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Notes: l.Standard receiver elevatlon is tlve ftet above grade/pad €levations st the receiver location(s)

,ri goLLARD
( //// Acousticol Consultants

Page 895

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Appendix F-3

FHWA Trafflc Nolse Predictlon Model (FHWA-RD-77-10S)
Noise Barrier Effectiveness Prediction Worksheet

ProJect lnformation:

Noise LevelData:

Slte Geometry:

Barrier Effectiveness:

Job Number: 2019-138
Project Name: Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots 10 & 15

Roadway Name: Mangini Parkway - East of East Bidwell Street
Location(s): Lots nearest to Mangini Parkway

Year: Future
Auto L6n, dB: 64

Medium Truck L6n, dB: 56

HeavyTruck L6n, dB: 58

Receiver Description: Lots nearest to Mangini Parkway
Centerline to Banier Distance (C.,): 55

Barrier to Receiver Distance (Cj: 10

Automobile Elevation: 0
Medium Truck Elevation: 2

Heavy Truck Elevation: 8
Pad/Ground Elevation at Receiver: 0

Receiver Elevationl: 5
Base of Banier Elevation: 0

Starting Barrier Height 6

Top of
Barrler Barrier

- Lon, dB --*'-""-'-*Medium l{eavy
Autos Trucks Trucks Total

Barrier Breaks Llne of Sight to...
Medium Heavy

Autos? Trucks? Trucks?

7
I
I

10
11

12
13
14

6
7
8
I
10
't1
12

13
14

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

58
56
55
54
53
52
5l
51

52
50
49
47
46
45
44
44

48
47
46
45
43
43
42
41

56
il
53
52
51

50
49
49

Notes: l.Stanclard receiver elevation is flve feet above grade/pad elevations at the rec€iver locatlon(s)

(
,ri BoLLARD
//// Acoustical Consultonts

Page 896

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 12

Site Photographs

Page 897

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



a
,t

-

Page 898

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Page 899

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Page 900

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Affachment 13

Applic ant' s Inclusionary Housing Letter

Page 901

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Maructm InnrnovEMENr CovpANy, Iruc.

February 15,2019

Mr, Scott Johnson
Planning Manager
Community Development Department
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Sheet
Folsom, CA 95630

Re: Mangini Ranch - Phase I (Lot l0) Tentative Map Compliance with Chapter l?.104-
Inclusionary Housing

Dear Mr. Johnson,

In accordance with Chapter 17 JA4 of the Folsom Municipal Code, Mangini Improvement
Company, Inc. hereby elects to satisfy the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance requirements for the
proposed Small Lot Tentative Map (Mangrni Phase I - l,trt l0) with the payment of the In-Lieu
Fee as permitted in Section 17.104.060(G).

If you have any questions or comments. please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Mangini Improvement Company, Inc.
a California

By:

w B. Bunce, President

4370 Towru CUNTER DpJv& SUnE 100 o Er. Donaoo HrL$, CA 95762 c (g1,6rg3g_6gls

Page 902

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 14

Summary of Amendments to the

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

Page 903

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



a

Summary of Amendmenb to the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan,2011-2016

The FPASP, approved in 2011, is a development plan for over 3,500 acres of previously

undeveloped land located south of Highway 50, north of White Rock Road, east of Prairie

City Road, and adjacent to the Sacramento County/El Dorado County line in the

southeastern portion of the City.

The FPASP in its current form includes 11,461 residential units at various densities on

approximately 1,622 acres; 320 acres designated for commercial and industrial use; +/-

275 acres designated for public/quasi-public uses, elementary/middle school/high

schools, and community/neighborhood parks; and +/-1,109 acres for open-space areas.

Since FPASP adoption in 2011, the City Council has approved 7 amendments to the

Specific Plan with land use and density refinements as summarized below.

o ln Auouet 2014, the Folsom City Council approved an amendment to the FPASP
(Resolution No. 9420) relative to the alignment and design guidelines for the future

Capital Southeast Connector (White Rock Road).

On May 12. 2015, the Folsom City Councilapproved the Russell Ranch Specific Plan

Amendment (Resolution No. 9566), the Final Environmental lmpact Report
(Resolution No. 9564) and a General Plan Amendment (Resolution No. 9566) for the
Russell Ranch Project. The approved specific plan amendment (SPA) reduced the
Plan Area residential area by approximately 17.8 acres and 264 dwelling units and

reduced the commercial, office parUindustrial and mixed-use area by approximately
59.5 acres and 0.65 million square feet of potential building area.

On September 22. 2015, the Folsom City Council approved the Westland/Eagle
Specific Plan Amendment, an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution

No. 9655) and an Addendurn to the Final Environmental lmpact ReporUEnvironment
lmpact Statement (Resolution No. 9654) for the Westland/Eagle project. The

approved SPA increased the residential dwelling unit count by 889 units and

decreased the amount of commercial, office parUindustrial and mixed-use area by
approximately 82.5 acres and 1.4 million square feet of potential building area.

On Mav 24. 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Hillsborough Specific Plan

Amendment (Resolution No. 9763), an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan

(Resolution No. 9762), and an Addendum to the Final Environmental lmpact

ReporUEnvironmental lmpact Statement (Resolution No. 9761) for the Hillsborough

Project. The approved SPA includes 394 additional housing units with about 65

additional acres of residential uses, approximately 49 fewer acres of public/quasi-

public uses, approximately 16 acres less open space, approximately 5 additional

acres of park space, and approximately 4 fewer acres of community commercial land

a

Page 904

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



uses.

a On June 28. 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Carr Trust Specific Plan

Amendment and General Plan Amendment (Resolution No. 9789) and an Addendum
to the Final Environmental lmpact ReporUEnvironmental lmpact Statement
(Resolution No. 9788) for the Carr Trust Project. The approved SPA decreased the
residential dwelling unit count by 28 units by modifying the land use designation from
medium low density residentialto single-family high density residential.

r On June 28. 2016, the Folsom Crty Council approved the Folsom Heights Specific
Plan Amendment and an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No.

9785) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental lmpact ReporUEnvironmental
lmpact Statement (Resolution No. 9784) for the Folsom Heights Project. The
approved SPA did not change the number of dwelling units; however, the residential
density was decreased, and the amount of general commercial was reduced by 23

acres.

a On June 28. 2016, the Folsom City Councilapproved the Broadstone Estates Specific
Plan Amendment and an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No.

9787\ and an Addendum to the Final Environmental lmpact Report/Environmental
lmpact Statement (Resolution No. 9786) for the Broadstone Estates Project. The
approved SPA eliminated the industrial office and general commercial land uses (10.5

acres and 13.3 acres, respectively), increased the single-family residential land use

by approximately 21 acres and 71 additional dwelling units, and increased the open

space area by 2.7 acres.

o On March 10. 2020, the Folsom City Council approved the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan
(Resolution No. 10400) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental lmpact
ReporUEnvironmental lmpact Statement for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
project Project. The approved SPA changed the land use designations for several
planning sub-areas of the Specific Plan, generally to reduce the total number of
residential units which would be built within the proposed Toll Brothers project and
eliminated medium density development; changed the locations of planned uses in
the Toll Brothers pQect; and moved some planned residentialdevelopment (single-
family and multi family) and planned public parks to other parts of the FPASP. The
proposed amendment also changed the alignments of several internal roadways and
trails, and the location and arrangement of open space and park areas.

Page 905

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment l5

Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines

Page 906

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exhibit A

FOLSOM RANCH, CENTRAL DISTRICT

i.:

l

Page 907

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



2

ARCHITECTURAL
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Moy | 2015 wPage 908

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



SrcroN 2 - AncH[EcTURAT DEsrcN Gu

ARCHITECTURAL GUIDING
PRINCIPLES

The following residential guiding principles
will guide the architecture to ensure qualrty

development:

. Provide a varied and interesting streetscene.

. Focns of the home is the front elevation, not
the garage.

. Provide a variety of garage placements.

. Provide detail on rear elevations where visible
from the public streets.

. Choose appropriate massing and roof forms to
define the architectural styles.

. Enstrre that plans and styles provide a degree

of individuality.

. Use architectural elements and details to
reinforce individual architectural styles.

GENERAL ARCHITECTURAL
GUIDELINES

Edge Conditions

Rear elevations visible from open spaces and

major roadways shall incorporate enhanced details

used on the front elevation of the home. Rear

elevations observable from open spaces and major
roadways shall be visually aesthetically pleasing

from surrounding viewpoints and adjacencies.

Silhouettes and massing of homes along edges

require design sensitivity. A row of homes with a

single front or rear facing gable are prohibited. The

following should be considered, and at least one

element incorporated, in the design of the side and

rear elevations along edge conditions:

. A balance of hip and gable roof forms;

. Single-storyplan;

. Single-story elements on two-story homes;

. Offset massing or wall planes (on individual
plans or between plans);

. Roof plane breaks (on individual plans or
between plans);

. Detail elements on the front elevation shall be

applied to the side and rear elevations along
edge conditions.

Moy | 2015 MPage 909

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RRNcH, Crnrnnl DsrRcr I DesrcN GupruNes

Roof Forms

Rows of homes seen along major community

roadways are perceived by their contrast against

the skyline or background. The dominant impact

is the shape of the building and roofline. To

minimize the visual impact of repetitious flat

planes, similar building silhouettes and similar

ridge heights, discernibly different roof plans for
each home plan shall be designed, Individual
roof plans may be simple but, between different

plans, should exhibit variety by using front to

rear, side-to-side, gables, hipped roofs, and/or the

introduction of single story elements,

The following roof design guidelines should also

be considered:

. Provide a mix of gable and hip roofs along the

streetscene.

. Design roofs for maximum solar exposure for
the potential installation of solar features.

. Consider deep overhangs where appropriate

to the style to provide additional shade and

interior cooling,

. Offset roof planes, eave heights, and ridge

lines.

Corner Buildings

Buildings located on corners often times function
as neighborhood entries and highlight the

architecture for the overall Folsom Ranch, Central

District community. Buildings located on corners

shall include one of the following:

. Front and side facade articulation using

materials that wrap around the corner-side of
the building;

. Awning on corner side;

. Home entry on corner side;

. Corner facing garagei

. A pop-out side hip, gable, or shed form roof;

. An added single-story element, such as a
wrap-around porch or balconY;

. Recessed second- or third-story (up to 35'

max.); or

. Balcony on corner side.

Moy | 2015
Page 910

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Srcnox 2 - AncHrEcTURAl Drstcx

Front Elevqtions

Front elevations shall be detailed to achieve a

variety along the street scene. Each front elevation

shall incorporate a Feature Window treatment
(see Feature Window requirements on page 2-6).

In addition, each front elevation shall incorporate
one or more of the following techniques:

. Provide enhanced style-appropriate details on

the front elevation.

. Offset the second story from the first level for
a portion ofthe second story.

. VarI the wall plane by providing projections
of elements such as bay windows, porches, and

similar architectural features.

. Create recessed alcoves and/or bump-out
portions of the building,

. Incorporatesecond-storybalconies.

. Create interesting entries that integrate

features such as porches, courtyards, large

recessed entry alcoves, or projecting covered

entries with columns.

. Use a minimum of two building materials or
colors on the front elevation.

Multi-fqmily Entries

Entries for muki-family homes should create an

initial impression, locate and frame the doorway,

act as a link between public and private spaces,

and further identiff individual unit entries.

. Wherever possible, orient the front door and
principal access towards the roadway, paseo, or
common oPen space.

. Incorporate appropriate roof elements,

columns, Feature Windows and/or
architectural forms in the entry statement

to emphasize the building character and the

location of individual doorways.

If due to building configuration the front
entry location is not immediately apparent,

direct and draw the obseryer to it with
added elements such as signs, lighting, and

landscape.

a

Mqy I 2015Page 911

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RaHcs, CrNrRnl Dlsrnlcr I Desrcn GuroeuNEs

a

a

t

Feoture Windows
All front and visible edge elevations shall
incorporate one Feature Window treatment that
articulates the elevation. Feature Window options
include:

A window of unique size or shape;

Picture window;

A bay window projecting a minimum of 24
inches, or aL2 inch pop-out surronnd;

A window with a substantial surround
matching or contrasting the primary color of
the home;

A window recess a minimum of 2 inches;

Decorative iron window grilles;

Decorative window shelves or sill treatments;

Grouped or ganged windows with complete
trim surrounds or uni$ing head and/or sill
trim:

A luliet balcony with architectural style
appropriate materials;

Window shutters; or

Trellis protruding a minirnum of 12 inches
from the wall plane of the window.

Windows

Windows on south-facing exposures should
be designed, to the greatest extent possible, to
maximize light and heat entering the home in the
winter, and to minimize light and heat entering in
the summer.

West-facing windows should be shaded where
feasible to avoid prolonged sun exposure/
overheating of the homes,

For additional window requirements addressing
Sound Attenuation requirements refer to the
Mangini Ranch Residential Development
Environmental Noise Assessment document
prepared by Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc.
on |anuary 29,2015.

Excrmple of Feoture Window

t

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

r
;.

",|,

I
'fr 

:

.:

,vlsy | 2015

Exomple of Juliet Bolcony

Page 912

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



SecroN 2 - AncrilreeTuRnl,DFstcN G

Goroge Door Treotments

Appropriate treatment of garage doors will further
enhance the building elevation and decrease

the utilitarian appearance of the garage door.

Various garage door patterns, windows, and/or
color schemes should be applied as appropriate to
individual architectural styles, where feasible.

. Garag€ doors shall be consistent with the

architecture of the building to reduce the

overall visual mass of the garage.

. Garage doors shall be recessed 8 inches from
the wall plane.

. All garage doors shall be automatic section
roll-up doors.

. When appropriate, single garage doors are

encouraged.

. Carriage-style garcge doors of upgraded
design are encouraged.

Porte Cochere wilh goroge of reqr of house

Streef Focing Goroges

All street facing garages should vary the garage

door appearance along the streetscene. Below are

options for the door variety:

. Vary the garage door pattern, windows, and/or

color as appropriate to indMdual architectural

styles.

. Use an attached overhead trellis installed

beneath the garage roof fascia and/or above

gar age door header trim.

. Span the driveway with a gated element or

overhead trellis.

. Provide a porte cochere.

. Street facing garages on corner lots at

neighborhood entries shall be located on

the side of the house furthest away from the

corner.

Mcry | 2015 MPage 913

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RRNcH, CenrRnl DrsrRtcr I DesroN GutoeuNes

Alley Treotments

The use of alleys should be elevated from purely
functional, simple garage access to an enjoyable

space that residents experience and utilize daily.

Design of alleys shall address the functional and

aesthetic features of the space to create a positive

experience for the residents, At least one of the

following shall be implemented along the alley:

. Building size and shape shall have stepped

massing (recessed or cantilevered, i.€.,

stepping back upper floors or protruding
forward upper floors) of at least one foot.

' Window trim, color, and appropriate details

from the front elevation.

. Rear privacy walls and pedestrian gates

designed and located for ease of unit access.

. Enhanced garage door patterns or finishes;

garage door shall complement the design

intent of the home and neighborhood.

. Provide sufficient planting areas between

garages to soften the vertical architectural
planes at alleys.

Building Forms

Building form, detail, and placement greatly

influences how a structure is perceived based on

how light strikes and frames the building. The

effect of sunlight is a strong design consideration,

as shadow and shade can lend a sen$e ofstrbstance

and depth to a building. The following elements

and considerations can be used to facilitate the

dynamic of light and depth perception of the

building.

Ar chitect urol Proiecf ions

Projections can create shadow and provide strong

visual focal points. This can be used to emphasize

design features snch as entries, major windows,

or outdoor spaces. Projections are encouraged

on residential building forms. Projections may

include, but are not limited to:

. Awnings (wood, metal, cloth)

. Balconies

' Shutters

. Eaveoverhangs

. Projecting second- or third-story elements

. Window/doorsurrounds

. Tower elements

. Trellis elements

. Recessed windows

. Porch elements

. Bay windows or dormers

. Shed roof elements

Offsef Mossing Forms

Front and street-facing elevations may have offset

masses or wall planes (vertically or horizontally)
to help break up the overall mass of a building.

. Offset forms are effective in creating a

transition:

Vertically between stories, or

- Horizontally between spaces, such as

recessed entries.

. Offset massing features are appropriate for
changes in materials and colors.

. Offsets should be incorporated as a functional

element or detail enhancement.

. Over-complicated streetscenes and elevations

should be avoided.

Moy | 2015
Page 914

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



. Streetscenes should provide a mix of simple

massing elevation with offset massing elements

to compose an aesthetic and understandable

streetscape.

Floor Plon Plotting

In each single-farnily detached neighborhood with
a minimum of up to 80 homes, provide:

. Three floor plans.

. Four elevations for each floor plan using a

minimum of two architectural styles. If only
two styles are selected, elevation.s shall be

signiflcantly different in appearance.

. Four different color schemes for each floor
plan.

In each single-family detached neighborhood with
more than 80 homes, provide:

. Three floor plans.

. Four elevations for each floor plan using a

minimum of three architectural styles. tf
only three styles per floor plan are selected,

elevations shall be significantly different in

appearance.

. Four different color schemes for each floor
plan.

In each single-family detached neighborhood,

street facing garages on corner lots at

neighborhood entries shall be located on the side

of the house furthest away from entry corner.

Secnou 2 - AncHffEcTURAl DesrcN

Exomple of undesiroble Corner Lot
Sireet Focing Goroge Plocement

Exomple of undesiroble Corner Lot
Slreet Focing Goroge Plocement

Exomple of prefened Corner Lot
Plotting Goroge Plocemeni

Exomple of preferred Corner Lot
Plotting Goroge Plocement

I
a

F
I
a

a

I
I

o
7.
J6.

I
LI

I

€t

-

\

-
5c.

L

1

-a

i
't-

I

Ll-_

I

Mqy I 2015Page 915

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



oM RANcH, CemRer Dsrnrcr I DesrcN GuroruNes

Style Plotting

To ensure that architectural variety occurs,
similar elevations cannot be plotted adjacent
to or immediately across the street from one
another. No more than two of the same floor plan/
elevations shall be plotted next to each other or
directly across the street from one another. (Refer

to Section Four for Design Review process.) The
following describes the minimum criteria for style
plotting:

, For a home on a selected lot, the same floor
plan and elevation is not perrnitted on the lot
most directly across from it and the one lot on
either side of it.

. Identical floor plans may be plotted on
adjacent lots, provided a different elevation

style is selected for each floor plan.

. Identical floor plans may be plotted on lots
across the street from each other provided a
different elevation style is selected for each

floor plan.

Color Criterio

To enstrre variety of color schemes, like color
schemes cannot be plotted adjacent to or
immediately across the street from one another,
Color and material sample boards shall be

submitted for review along with the Master PIot
Plan. (Refer to Section Four.)

A color scheme for a home on a selected lot may

not be repeated (even if on a different floor plan)
on the three lots most directly across from it and

on the single lot to each side of it.

Lower Height Elemenfs

Lower height elements are irnportant to
streetscene variety, especially for larger buildings
or rnasses, as they articulate massing to avoid
monotonous single planes. These elements also

provide a transition from the higher story vertical
planes to the horizontal planes of sidewalk and

street, and help to transition between public
and private spaces. Lower height elements are

encouraged to establish pedestrian scale and add

variety to the streetscene. Lower height elements

may include, but are not limited to:

. Porches

. Entr| features

. Interior living spaces

. Courtyards

. Baywindows

. Trellises

Moy | 2015 Page 916

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Bolconies

Balconies break up large wall planes, offset
floors, create visnal interest to the facade, provide

outdoor living opportunities, and adds human

scale to a building. Scaled second- or third-story
balconies can have as much impact on stepped

massing and building articulation as a front porch

or lower height elements. Balcony elements:

. May be covered or open, recessed into or
projecting from the building mass.

. Shall be an integral element of, and in scale

with, the building mass, where appropriate.

. Are discouraged from being plotted side-by-

side at the same massing level (i.e. mirrored
second-story balconies).

Srcnox 2 - AncHFEcTURAt Drscx

Roof Considerofions

Composition and balance of roof forms are as

definitive ofa streetscape as the street trees, active

architecture, or architectural character.

. Rooflines and pitches, ridgelines and ridge

heights should create a balanced form to the

architecture and elevation.

. Direction of ridgelines and/or ridge heights

should vary along a streetscene.

. Roof overhangs (eaves and rakes) may be used

as projections to define design vocabulary and

create light and shade patterns.

. Hip, gable, shed, and conical roof forms may

be used separately or together on the same

roof or streetscene composition.

. Roof form and pitch shall be appropriate to the

massing and design vocabulary of the home.

Moy | 2015 ryffiPage 917

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RANcn, Cexrnru Drsrmcr I DrsroN GupeuuEs

Outdoor Living Spoces

Outdoor living spaces, including porches,

balconies, and courtyards, activate the streetscene

and promote interaction among neighbors.
Outdoor living spaces can also create indoor/
outdoor environments opening up the home to
enhance indoor environmental quality. Wherever
possible, outdoor living space is encouraged.

Moleriqls
The selection and use of materials has an
important impact on the character of each

neighborhood and the community as a whole,
Wood is a natural material reflective of many
architectural styles; however, maintenance
concerns, a design for long-term architectural
quality and new high-quality manufactured
alternative wood materials make the use of real

wood elements less desirable. Where "wood'
is referred to in these guidelines, it can also be

interpreted as simulated wood trim with style-
appropriate wood texture. Additionally, some

styles can be appropriately expressed without the
wood elements, in which case stucco-wrapped,
high-density foam trim (with style-appropriate
stucco finish) is acceptable. Precast elements can
also be satisfied by high-density foam or other
similar materials in a style-appropriate finish.

Brick, wood, and stone cladding shall appear

as structural materials, not as applied veneers.

Material changes should occur at logical break
points.

Columns, tower elements, and pilasters should
be wrapped in its entirety.

Materials and colors shotrld be varied to add
texture and dep& to the overall character of
the neighborhood.

The use of flashy or non-traditional materials
or colors that will not integrate with the overall
character of the community is prohibited.

Material breaks at garage corners shall have

a return dimension equal to or greater than
the width of the materials on the garage plane
elevation.

Use durable roofing and siding materials to
reduce the need for replacement.

Use local, recycled and/or rapidly renewable
materials to conserve resources and reduce

energy consumption associated with the
manufacturing and transport of the materials.
(Refer to Section Four for Design Review
process.)

I

a

a

a

a

a

a

Moy | 2015
Page 918

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Exterior Siruclures

Exterior structures, including btrt not limited to,

porches, patio covers, and trellises shall reflect the

character, color, and materials of the building to
which they are related.

. Columns and posts should project a

substantial and durable image.

. Stairs should be compatible in type and

material to the deck and landing.

. Railings shall be appropriately scaled,

consistent with the design vernacular of
the building, and constructed of durable

materials.

. Exposed gutters and downspouts shall be

colored to complement or match the fascia

material or surface to which they are attached.

Accessory Structures

Accessory structures should conforrn to the design

standards, setbacks, and height requirements of
the primary structure. If visible from the front
or side lot line, the visible elevation should be

considered a front elevation and should meet

the design criteria of the applicable architectural
style.

Secrpx 2 - AncHrEcTURAl DrsleN

Lighting

Appropriate lighting is essential in creating a

welcoming evening atmosphere for the Folsom

Ranch, Central District community. As a forward-
thinking community, The Folsom Ranch, Central
District will institute dark sky recommendations

to mitigate light pollution, cut energy waste, and

protect wildlife. All lighting shall be aesthetically
pleasing and non-obtrusive, and meet the dark sky

recommendations.

. All exterior lighting shall be limited to the

minimum necessary for public safety.

. All exterior lighting shall be shielded to
conceal the light source, lamp, or bulb,

Fixtures with frosted or heavy seeded glass are

permitted.

. Each residence shall have an exterior porch

light at its entry that complements the

architectural style of the building.

' Where feasible, lighting should be on a

photocell or timer.

. Low voltage lighting shall be used whenever
possible.

Address Numbers

To ensure public safety and ease of identiffing
residences by the Fire and Police Departments,

address numbers shall be lighted or reflective and

easily visible from the street.

Moy | 2015Page 919

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RRrlcH, CrNrnnl Dsrnrcr I Drsrcx GutoeuNes

RESIDENTIAL
ARCHITECTURAL STYLES

Folsom Ranch, Central District is envisioned as

a sustainable, contemporary community where

architectr.rral massing, roof forms, detailing, walls,
and landscape collaborate to reflect historic,
regional, and climate-appropriate styles.

The design criteria established in this section
encourages a minimum quality design and a level
of style through the use of appropriate elements.

Although the details are important elements that
convey the style, the massing and roof forms are

essential to establishing a recognizable style. The

appropriate scale and proportion of architectural
elements and the proper choice of details are all
factors in achieving the architectural style.

ARCH,IECTU RAL THEME : CAL,FORN,A
HERITAGE

The styles selected for Folsom Ranch, Central
District have been chosen from the traditional
heritage of the Catifornia home styles, a majority
of which have been influenced by the Spanish

Mission and Mexican Rancho eras. Over the
years, architectural styles in California became
reinterpreted traditional styles that reflect the
indoor-outdoor lifestyle choices available in the
Mediterranean climate. These styles included
the addition of western materials while retaining
the decorative detailing of exposed wood work,
wrought iron hardware, and shaped stucco

of the original Spanish styles. Mixing of style
attribtrtes occurs in both directions, such as

adapting Spanish detailing to colonial style form,
or introducing colonial materials and details to
the Hacienda form and function. The landscape
and climate of California has also generated

styles that acknowledge and blend with its unique
setting, The Italian Villa is a prime example of a
transplanted style developed in a climate zone

similar to the climate found in California.

The following styles can be used within Folsom

Ranch, Central District:

. Italian Villa

. Spanish Colonial

. Monterey

. Western Farmhorse

. European Cottage

. Craftsman

. Early California Ranch

. American Traditional

Additional architectrral styles compatible with the
intent of these guidelines may be added when it
can be demonstrated to the Architectural Review
Committee that they are regionally appropriate,

The following pages provide images and

individual "style elements" that best illustrate
and describe the key elements of each style. They

are not all mandatory elements, nor are they a

cornprehensive list of possibilities. Photographs of
historic and current interpretations of each style

are provided to inspire and assist the designer in
achieving strong, recognizable architectural style

elevations. The degree of detailing andlor finish
expressed in these guidelines should be relative to
the size and type of building upon which they are

applied.

These images are for concept and inspiration only
and should not be exactly replicated.

Moy | 2015 Page 920

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



lrnltnN VtLn
The Italian Villa was one of the most fashionable

architectural styles in the United States in
the 1860's. Appearing on architect-designed

landmarks in larger cities, the style was based

on formal and rigidly symmetrical palaces of the

ltalian Renaissance,

Although residential adaptations generated less

formality, traditional classical elements, such

as the symmetrical facade, squared tower entry

forms, arched windows, and bracketed eaves,

persisted as the enduring traits of this style. When

cast iron became a popular building material,

it became a part of the ltalianate vocabulary,

embellishing hornes with a variety of designs for
balconies, porches, railings, and fences.

Italion Villo Style Elemenfs;

. Eave and exaggerated overhangs.

. Wall materials typically consist of stucco with
stone and precast accents.

' Decorative brackets below eaves may be added

accents.

. Barrel tile or "S" tile roof

. The entry may be detailed with a precast

surround feature.

. Stucco or precast columns with ornate cap and

base trim are typical.

. Wrought iron elements, arched windows or
elements, and quoins are freguently used as

details.

Secnox 2 - ARcHtTEcTuRAt Deson

Exomple of ltolion Villo Architecture

Exomple of ltolion Villo Archiiecture

Exomple of ltolion Villq Architecture

I
r
I
I

q'{

l;

tr't

I
;

r. ti;lt '
ir

Moy | 2015 wPage 921

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RnNcu, CeNrnnl Dsrnrcr I DrsroN GuroruNes

SpnnrsH ColoNrni
This style evolved in California and the southwest
as an adaptation of Mission Revival infused
with additional elements and details from Latin
America. The style attained widespread popularity
after its use in the Panama-California Exposition
of 1915.

Key features of this style were adapted to the
California lifestyle. Plans were informally
organized around a courtyard with the front
elevation very simply articulated and detailed.
The charrn of this style lies in the directness,
adaptability, and contrasts of materials and

texfures.

Sponish Coloniol Style Elemenfs:

. Plan form is typically rectangular or "L'-
shaped.

. Roofs are typically of shallower pitch with "S"

or barrel tiles and tfpical overhangs.

. Roof forms are typically comprised of a main
front-to-back gable with front-facing gables.

. Wall materials are typically stucco.

. Decorative "woodo beams or trim are typical.

. Segmented or full-arch elements are typical
in conjunction with windows, entrp or the
porch.

' Round or half-round tile profiles are typical at

front-facing gable ends.

. Arcades are sometimes utilized.

. Windows may be recessed, have projecting
head or sill trim, or be flanked by plank-style
shutters.

. Decorative wrought-iron accents, grille work,
post or balcony railing may be used.

Exomple of Sponish Coloniol Architecture

Exomple of Sponish Coloniol Architecture

Mcy I 2015

Exomple of Sponish Coloniol Architecture

Page 922

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



SrcroN 2 - AncHrEcTURAt DrsloN Gul

MoNrrnrv
The Monterey style is a combination of the
original Spanish Colonial adobe construction
methods with the basic two-story New England

colonial house, Prior to this innovation in
Monterey, all Spanish colonial houses were of
single story construction.

First built in Monterey by Thomas Larkin in
1835, this style introduced two story residential
construction and shingle roofs to California.
This Monterey style and its single story
counterpart eventually had a major influence on

the development of modern architecture in the

1930's.

The style was popularized by the used of simple

building forms. Roofs featured gables or hips with
broad overhangs, often with exposed rafter tails.

Shutters, balconies, verandas, and porches are

integral to the Monterey character. Traditionally
the first and second stories had distinctly different
cladding material; respectively siding above with
stucco and brick veneer base below.

The introduction of siding and manufactured
materials to the home building scene allowed for
the evolution of the Monterey home from strictly
Spanish Adobe construction to a hybrid of local
form and contemporary materials. Siding, steeper

pitched flat tile roofing, and the cantilevered

balcony elements on the Monterey house define

this native California style.

Monterey Slyle Elemenfs:

. Plan form is typically a simple two-story box.

. Roofs are typically shallow to moderately

pitched with flat concrete tile or equa! "S" tile
or barrel tile are also appropriate.

. Roof forms are typically a front-to-back gable

with typical overhangs.

. Wall materials are typically comprised of
stucco, brick, or siding,

. Materials may contrast between first and

second floors.

. A prominent second-story cantilevered

balcony is typically the main feature of the

elevation; two-story balconies with simple
posts are also appropriate.

. Simple Colonial corbels and beams typically
detail roof overhangs and cantilevers.

. Balcony or porch is typically detailed by

simple columns without cap or base trim.

. Front entry is typically traditionally
pedimented by a strrround, porch, or portico.

. Windows are typically accented with window
head or sill trim of colonial-style and louvered

shutters.

. Corbel and post sometimes lean toward more
"rustiC' details and sometimes toward more
"Colonial" details.

Excmple of Monterey ArchitectureExomple of Monlerey Archilecture

Moy | 2015
Page 923

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RRNcH, Cexrnnl Dmnrcr I Desror.r Guorrnes

Wrsrenru FnnuHousr

The Farmhouse represents a practical and
picturesque country house, Its beginnings are

traced to both Colonial styles from New England
and the Midwest, As the American frontier
moved westward, the American Farmhouse style
evolved according to the availability of materials
and technological advancements, such as balloon
framing.

Predominant features of the style ilre large
wrapping front porches with a variety of wood
columns and railings. Two story massing,

dormers, and symmetrical elevations occrr
most often on the New England Farmhouse
variations. The asymmetrical, casual cottage look
with a rnore decorated appearance, is typical
of the Western American Farmhouse. Roof
ornamentation is a characteristic detail consisting
ofcupolas, weather vanes, and dovecotes.

Wesfern Formhouse Style Elemenfs:

. Plan form is typically simple.

. Roofs are typically of steeper pitch with flat
concrete tiles or equal.

. Roof forms are typically a gable roof with
front-facing gables and typical overhangs.

. Roof accents sometimes include standing-
seam metal or shed forms at porches.

. Wbll materials may include stucco, horizontal
siding, and brick.

. A front porch typically shelters the main entry
with simple posts.

. Windows are typically trimmed in simple

colonial-style; built-up head and sill trim is

typical.

. Shaped porch columns typically have knee

braces,

Exomple of Western Formhouse Architecture

Exomple of Western Formhouse Architecture

Moy 12015

Exomple of Wesfern Formhouse Architecture

Page 924

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



SrcroN 2 - AncHTECTURAL DrsrcN Gur

EunoprnN Conncr
'[he European Cottage is a style that evolved orrt of
medieval l'udor and Normandy architecture. This
evolving character that eventually resulted in the
English and French "Cottage" became extremely
popular when ti're addition of stone and brick
veneer details was developed in the 1920's.

Although the cottage is looked upon as small and
uttpretentious, the style was quickly recognizeci

as one of the rnost popular in America. I)esigns
for the homes typically reflected the rural setting
in which they evolved. Many established olcler
neighborhoods across the United States contain
homes with the charrn and character of this
unpretentious style.

Itoof pitches lbr these homes are steeper than
traditional hornes, and are comprised of gables,

hips, and half'-hip lbrms. The primary material is

stucco with heavy use of stone and brick at bases,

chinrneys, and entry elements. S<lmc of the most
recognizable features for this style are the accent
details in gable ends, sculptured swooping walls at

the front elevation, and tower or alcove elements
at the entry.

Europeon Coftoge Siy/e Flements:

. Rectangtrlar plan form massing with some
recessed second floor area is desirable.

. Maiu roof hip or gable with intersecting gable

roof's is tlpical of this style,

' Steep roof pitches with swooping roof forms
are encouraged.

. Roofappearance offlat concrete tile or eqnal is
typicai of the European Cottagc style.

. Rccessed entry alcoves are encouraged.

. Wall materials are typically comprised of
slucco with brick and/or stonc vcneer.

. Bay windows, curved or ronnd top accent

windows, and vertical windows with mullions
and simplc 2x trim are r"rtilized at front
elevations and high visibiliry areas.

. Stone or brick accent details at thc building
base, entry, and chimney elements are typical.

. I Iorizontal siding accents and wrought
iron or wood balconies and pot shelves are

encouraged.

Exomple of Europeon Coltoge ArchitectureExomple of Europeon Cottoge Architecture

Moy | 2015Page 925

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



RnrucH, CrNrnru Dsrnrcr I DesrcN GuoruNes

CnnrrsueN

Influenced by the English Arts and Crafts
movement of the late l9th century and stylized
by California architects like Bernard Maybeck in
Berkeley and the Greene brothers in Pasadena, the
style focused on exterior elements with tasteful
and artftrl attention. Originating in California,
Craftsman architecture relied on the simple house

tradition, combining hip and gable roof forms
with wide, livable porches, and broad overhanging
eaves. The style was quickly spread across the state

and across the country by pattern boola, mail-
order catalogs, and popular magazines.

Extensive btrilt-in elements define this style,

treating details such as windows and porches

as if they were furniture. The horizontal nature
is emphasized by exposed rafter tails and knee

braces below broad overhanging eaves constructed
in rustic-textured building materials. The overall
effect was the creation of a natural, warm, and
livable home of artful and expressive character.

Substantial, tapered porch columns with stone
piers lend a Greene character, while simpler
double posts on square brick piers and larger knee

braces indicate a direct Craftsman reference to
the style of California architect Bernard Maybech
who was greatly influenced by the English Arts
and Crafts Movement of the late 19th Century.

Exomple of Croftsmqn Architecture

Croffsmon Sfyle Elements:

' Plan form is typically a simple box.

. Roofs are typically of shallower pitch with
flat concrete tiles (or equal) and exaggerated

eaves,

. Roof forms are typically a side-to-side gable

with cross gables.

. Roof pitch ranges from 3:12 to 5:12 typically
with flat concrete tiles or equal.

. Wall materials may include stucco, horizontal
siding, and stone,

. Siding accents at gable ends are typical.

. A front porch typically shelters the main
entry.

. Exposed rafter tails are common under eaves.

. Porch column options are typical of the
Craftsman style:

Battered tapered columns of stone, brick,
or stucco

Battered columns resting on brick or stone
piers (either or both elements are tapered)

Simpler porch supports of double square
post resting on piers (brick stone, or
sblcco); piers may be square or tapered.

. Windows are typically fully trimmed.

. Window accents commonly include dormers
or ganged windows with continuous head or
sill trim.

Moy | 2015

Exomple of Croftsmon Archilecture

Page 926

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



SrcroN 2 - AncHrEcTURAr- Desron Gur

EnnLv Cnlrronnrn RnrucH

A building fornr rather than an architectural style,

the Ranch is primarily a one-story rambling home

with strong horizontal lines and connections

between indoor and outdoor spaces. The "LJ"- or
"f-shaped open floor plan focused on windows,
doors, and living activities on the porch or
courtyard. The horizontal plan form is what
defines the Ranch.

The applied materials, style, and character applied
to the Ranch have been mixed, interpreted,

adapted, and modernized based on function,
location, era, and popularity.

This single-story family oriented home became the
American dreatn with the development of tract
homes in the post-World War II era. Simple and
affordable to build, the elevation of the Ranch was

done in a variety of styles. Spanish sfyling with
rusticated exposed wood beams, rafter tails under
broad front porches, and elegantly simple recessed

windows were just as appropriate on the Ranch
as the clean lines of siding and floor to ceiling
divided-light windows under broad overhanging
laminate roofs.

Details and elements of the elevation of a Ranch

should be chosen as a set identifying a cohesive

style. Brick and stucco combinations with overly
simple sill trim under wide windows with no other
detailing suggests a Prairie feel, while all stucco,

recessed windows, and exposed rrrsticated wood
calls to mind a Hacienda ranch.

California Ronch Sfyle Elements:

. Plan form is typically one-story with strong

horiznntal design.

. Roofs are typically shallow pitched with "S"

tile, barrel tile, or flat concrete tile.

. Roof forms are typically gable or hip with
exaggerated overhangs.

' Wall materials are commonly comprised of
stuccc!, siding, or brick.

. A porch, terrace, or courtyard is typically the
prominent feature of the elevation.

. Exposed rafter tails are typical.

. Porch is commonly detailed by simple posts or
beams with simple cap or base trim.

. Front entry is typically traditionally
pedimented by a srrrround, porch, or portico.

. Windows are typically broad and accented

with window head and sill trim, shutters, or
are recessed.

. A strong indoor/outdoor relationship joined

by sliding or French doors, or bay windows is
common.

Exomple of Cqlifornio Ronch ArchitectureExomple of Colifornio Ronch Architeciure

Moy | 2015Page 927

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Rnucu, Cemnru Dstrucr I DescN GupeuNes

AnarnrcnN TnnorrroNAL

The American Traditional style is a combination
of the early English and Dutch house fotmd on the
Atlantic coast. Their origins were sampled from
the Adam style and other classical styles. Details
from these original styles are loosely combined in
many examples.

Current interpretations have maintained the
simple elegance of the early prototypes, but added

many ref,nements and new design details. This
style relies on its asymmetrical tbrm and colonial
details to differentiate it from the strict colonial
styles.

Highly detailed entries having decorative
pediments extended and supported by semi-
engaged columns typicalty. Detailed doors with
sidelights and symmetrically designed front
facades. Cornices with dentils are an important
feature and help identify this style.

Americon Traditionol Style EJemenfs:

. Plan form is typically asymmetric "f'-shaped,

. Roofs are typically of moderate to steeper
pitch with flat concrete tile (or equal) roof and

exaggerated boxed eaves,

. Roof forms are typically hip or gable with
dominant forward facing gables.

. Front facade is typically one solid material
which may include stucco, brick, or horizontal
siding.

. The front entry is typically sheltered within
a front porch with traditionally detailed
columns and rrilings.

. A curyed or round-top accent window is
commonly used on the front elevation.

. Windows are typically fully trimmed with
fl anking louvered shutters,

. Gable ends are typically detailed by ftill or
partial cornice, sometimes emphasized with
dentils or decorative molding.

. Decorative or pedimented head and sill trim
on windows is typical.

Exomple of Americon Trodilionol Architecture

Exomple of Americon Troditionol Architeclure

ljl ,

t- !1 ,,-! .

I
=.1 - tll !

Moy | 2015

Exomple of Americon Troditionol Architecture

Page 928

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Attachment 16

Planning Commission Staff Report
Dated May 6,202A

Page 929

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



IF(}]t.,S()NN

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4
Type: Public Hearing

Date: May 6, 2020

Planning Commission Staff Report
50 Natoma Street, Council Chambers

Folsom, CA 95630

Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision

PN-19-0s9

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

Planned Development Permit (Residential
Architectu relDevelopment Standards)

Minor Administrative Modification (Reallocation of Dwelling Units
to Other Parcels)

The proposed Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project is located
in the Mangini West sub-area of the Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan at the southeast corner of the intersection of East Bidwell
Street and Mangini Parkway

Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 9'16-461-6207
sbanks@folsom.ca.us

Proiect:

File #:

Requests:

Location:

Staff Contact:

Property Owner
Name: Mangini lmprovement Company, lnc
Address:4370 Town Center Blvd,
Suite 100, El Dorado Hills,
cA 95762

Applicant
Name: Mangini lmprovement
Company, lnc.
Address: 4370 Town Center
Blvd, Suite 100, El Dorado Hills,
cA 9s762

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion recommend
approval of the following, subject to the findings (Findings A-Z) and conditions of
approval (Conditions 1-52) attached to this report:

o Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

r Planned Development Permit

o Minor Administrative Modification for Transfer of Development Rights

Proiect Summary: The proposed project involves several related actions associated
with a proposed residential development:

Page 930

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



AGENDA ITEM NO.4
Type: Public Hearing

Date: May 6, 2020
ctrY oi

IF(oIt.," OI\4I

A Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to subdivide the 9.88-acre
project site into 71 residential lots.

A Planned Development Permit which contains detailed development and
architectural standards for the proposed homes.

e A Minor Administrative Modification to transfer 15 allocated dwelling units from
the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project to two other locations within the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan.

These proposed actions are described in detail and analyzed later in this report.

Table of Contents:

Attrachment 1 - Background and Setting

Attachment 2 - Project Description

r Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
r Planned Development Permit (Minor Changes to Development

Standards)
. Minor Administrative Modification (Shift of Dwelling Units to Other

Parcels)

Attachment 3 - Analysis

. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
r Planned Development Permit (Minor Changes to Development

Standards)
o Minor Administrative Modification (Shift of Dwelling Units to Other

Parcels)

Attachment 4 - Conditions of Approval

Attachment 5- VicinityMap

Attachment 6 - Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated April2l ,2020

Attachment 7 - Preliminary Grading, Drainage, and Utility Plan, dated April 21,2420

Attachment 8 - Conceptual Front Yard Landscaping, dated December 9, 2019

Attachment 9 - Wall and Fence Exhibit, dated January 31,2024

Attachment 10 - ResidentialSchematic Design, dated Feb.24,2024

a

t

Page 931

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



AGENDA ITEM NO.4
Type: Public Hearing

Date: May 6, 2020

]F() IT-,SCDN4I

Aftachment 1 1 - Exterior ColorlMaterials Specifications, dated February 24,2420

Attachment 12 - CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis for Creekstone Phase 1

Subdivision Project

Attachment 13 - Access and Circulation Analysis, dated April 14,2020

Attachmenll4 - Environmental Noise Analysis, dated August 15, 2019

Attachment 15 - Site Photographs

Attachment 16 - Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Booklet (Separate Bound Document)
including the following, except where superseded by separate
documents or illustrations listed above:

o lllustrative Site Plan (Booklet page 10)
r ResidentialArchitecture (Booklet page 12)
r Conceptual Landscape Design (Booklet page 16)

r Building Elevations and Floor Plans (Booklet page A0.0 to A3.5)

AttachmenllT -Applicant's lnclusionary Housing Letter, dated February 15,2019

Attachment 18 - Summary of Amendments to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, 2011-
2020

Attachment 19 - Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines

Attachment 20 - Planning Commission PowerPoint Presentation

Submitted,

<---:>.-

'-*t

PAM JOHNS
Comm unity Development Director

Page 932

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

ATTACHMENT {
BACKGROUND AND SETTING

A. Background: Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

The proposed project site is part of the approved Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
(FPASP), a comprehensively planned community that proposes new development based
upon principles of "Smart Growth" and Transit Oriented Development.

The FPASP, approved in 2011, is a development plan for over 3,500 acres of previously
undeveloped land located south of Highway 50, north of White Rock Road, east of Prairie
City Road, and adjacent to the Sacramento County/El Dorado County line in the
southeastern portion of the City.

The FPASP includes a mix of residential, commercial, employment and public uses,
complemented by recreationalamenities including a significant system of parks and open
space, all within close proximity to one another and interconnected by a network of
"complete streets", trails and bikeways. The Specific Plan is consistent with the SACOG
Blueprint Principles and the requirements of SB 375 (Sustainable Communities and
Climate Protection Act).

The FPASP includes 11,461 residential units at various densities on approximately 1,622
acres; 320 acres designated for commercial and industrial use; +/-275 acres designated
for public/quasi-public uses, elementary/middle school/high schools, and
community/neighborhood parks; and +/-1 ,109 acres for open-space areas.

Since FPASP adoption in 2011, the Cig Council has approved I amendments to the
Specific Plan with land use and density refinements (summarized in Attachment 18 to this
staff report).

Overall, the changes to the Specific Plan have reduced the amount of commercial
development planned for the area and incrcased the amount of residential development:

Approved 2011 As Amended to Date

Commercial: 5,199,409 SF 2,788,844 SF (-2,410,565 SF)

Residential Units: 1A,210 Units 11,461 Units (+1,251 Units)

Based on the approved changes, the projected population of the FPASP has increased
from 24,362 (based on approved development in 2A1q b 27,14A (as approved through
March, 242q.

ln addition to the amendments listed in Appendix 18, a number of Minor Administrative
Modifications have been approved (another is proposed for this project). These minor
modifications have moved allocated dwelling units to new locations in the FPASP area
but did not affect the overall number of approved units. Because they do not increase or
decrease units, these minor modifications are also not expected to affect the ultimate

Page 933

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

population of the FPASP area.

The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project site is designated MLD in the FPASP, which

provides for development at 7.0 to 12.0 units per acre. An excerpt from the FPASP Land

Use Map is shown below. This designation is consistent with the site's MLD designation

in the Folsom General Plan.

FIGURE 1: FPASP LAND USE MAP EXCERPT

SP.MLD
SP-SFHD

SP.SF SP.SFHD SP-SFHD SP.SFHD
SP.SFHD

sP-os1

SP.SFHD

SP.SFHD
sP-o51

sP-osl

SP-SFHD

sP-os2

oi\
6

'ii

sP-os2

. ,. i.]: .."* 1,

B. Physical Setting

The project site is vacant but has been mass graded as part of the development of the

Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Subdivision.

Figures 2 and 3, on the following pages, shows aerial photographs of the Creekstone

Phase 1 Subdivision project site. The balance of the Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Subdivision

project, currently under development, is visible to the right (east) of the Creekstone site.

As show on the aerial photographs, pre-existing vegetation on the site was removed as

part of the mass grading of the Mangini Ranch project, which was conduc-ted in

accordance with mitigation measures in the FPASP EIR/EIS and monitored by the City.

South of the project site is a drainage basin that serves the Mangini Ranch project.

SP^SFHDSP.POP
(ES)

SP-SFHD

q
U

5P.5FHD

SP.MLD
SF9QP

(Msl

PROJECT SITE I
E
o-

SP-SFHD

sP-os1

SP-MLD

sP-cc

Page 934

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19"059)
May 6, 2020

FIGURE 2: AERIAL PHOTO (2020)

PROJECT SITE

Page 935

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6,2020

FIGURE 3: SITE AERIAL (2020)

Page 936

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Greekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

ATTACHMENT 2
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL

The applicant is requesting approval of several related actions to allow the development
of 71 single family homes on a 9.88-acre project site. This Attachment examines the
following requested approvals:

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

B. Planned Development Permit (Minor Changes to Development Standards)

C. MinorAdministrative Modification (Reallocation of Dwelling Units to Other Parcels)

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

The first component of the applicant's proposal is a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map to create 71 single-family residential lots and 3 landscape lots. The
proposed subdivision layout is shown on the following page. (A more detailed version of
the subdivision map is included as Attachment 6 to this staff report.)

Page 937

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

FIGURE 4: PROPOSED SUBDIVISION LAYOUT

la

I

(o
.l I

------+
I

-.. - " ---.14$$UtL?ST.=e;ur. - -1'

i

I

It

I
I
!

U

E

'

J

t
t,

i
g

6
I

I

t

I

I

!

I

L

i
I

i r-
l,

I

A:

t
a{

I

rl

';

I

I

I

EI
8is
,ri
rl.
ul

I

i

I

I

I

i

i

I

I
t

-t
Eli

tlr
5i

Page 938

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

The proposed subdivision features interior lots with a minimum size of 2,925 SF, which is

75 SF smaller than the existing development standard for lots in the MLD Single Family

land use district of the Specific Plan. Corner lots with a minimum size of 3,300 SF are

proposed, which are 200 SF smaller than the existing development standard for lots in

the MLD land use district. (The applicant has requested a Planned Development Permit

to make these and other minor changes to the development standards for this subdivision.

See the discussion of the Planned Development Permit later in this staff report.)

Proposed minimum lot sizes and dimensions are shown below.

FIGURE 5: PROPOSED MINIMUM LOT DIMENSIONS

d5 Ml! 53 5 VtN

rYP

91 2

x6 E

1'SiOE
s€r6ACK.+

lsrREFrl ROW

MINIMUM LOT

DIAGRAM
MlN, IOT SIZE = 2,925 tf

MAX- tOT COVIRAGE = 507c

_. -t.

I

<O
12 s srDE

lcoRr€t?l
'2

B
I
?
b
i

I

The subdivision uses standard public street right-of-way dimensions, including an internal

roadway system with sidewalks on both sides of the street, as shown in Figure 6 on the

following page.

Page 939

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 SuMivision (PN 19-059)
May 6,2020

FIGURE 6: INTERNAL ROADWAY CROSS SECTION

TYPE 1 CEG
(TYP.)

3 3'

7', '|1' 11', 7' 4',

12.$

PUE

R I/ R/W

ln response to projected trafiic levels on East Bidwell Street and to minimize potential
noise impacts associated with these trafric levels, the project proposes a combination of
berms (4-foot-tall berm), soundwalls (6-foot-tall soundwall), and relatively deep 16-foot
rear yards (a 10-foot rear yard setback is required within the subdivision) for the homes
adjacent to this roadway, as shown below in Figure 7.

FIGURE 7: EAST BIDWELL STREET-TO-REAR YARD CROSS SECTION

v;

12.5'

PUE q.

44'.

WATL

EERTI

b

lil

LHI

6'

PI

I

1RAVEL
IANE

TRAVEL
tANE

u' 22'

10'

Page 940

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

B. Planned Development Permit

The applicant is seeking approval of a Planned Development Permit which provides

project-specific development standards for the project and architectural designs for the

proposed residential units. The Planned Development Permit includes the following major

components:

r Proposed Revised Development Standards

. Proposed Residential Designs

o Proposed Landscaping

These are discussed below.

Proposed Revised Development Standards

The applicant proposes changes to some FPASP development standards:

1. Minimum tot size for interior lots is proposed to be reduced from 3,000 SF to

2,925 SF. Minimum lot size for corner lots is proposed to be reduced from 3,500

SF to 3,300 SF,

2. Minimum front yard setbacks for the primary structure, which are proposed to
be reduced from 15 feet to 12.5 feet

3. Minimum garage setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 20 feet to {8
feet

4. Minimum side yard setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 5 feet to 4

feet

The applicant's justification for these proposed changes is based on providing a first-floor

bedroom for the homes. The following text from the applicant summarizes their
justification for the proposed changes in development standards:

As paft of our submiftat we are requesting a few minor modifications ta the MLD
development standards. The primary factor driving our rcquest for setback
modifications is so that we can offer a downstairc bedroom in two of the thrce
plans. This feature has become a very desirable amenity offering a space for a
home office, guesf accommodations or a family member bedrcom. Field
surueys in the Folsom market of active communities has shown this feature
being one of the top requests frcm buyers. Thirty-seven feet t's fhe ideal width
to achieve a functional downstairs bedroom. Placing the room forward of the
garage creafes a morc desirable fuont elevation and pedestrian experience.

Page 941

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Greekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

Our minor modification reguesfs assocrafed with architecture include front,
inteior side, and gaftrge setback modifications.

Proposed Residential Desions

The proposed project includes the construction of 71 single family homes in three different
configurations-1 ,2,and 3-and three architectural styles. All of the homes are proposed

in a two-story configuration, with downstairs bedrooms in Plan 2 and Plan 3.

Proposed architectural styles are:

o ltalian Villa
. Spanish Colonial
o Westem Farmhouse

All three architectural styles are proposed to be used for all unit types, with a variety of
colors and materials as shown in the applicant's bound submittalbooklet (Attachment 16).

The applicant's submittal describes the architectural styles as follows:

Creekstone elevation desrgns are Spanish Colonial, ltalian Villa and WeStem
Farmhouse. consisfent with the fabric of existing historic Folsom community.
Each plan offers each elevation style. Combined with nine pre-plofted color
schemes, ffiere r.s limited duplication of same plan, elevatian, and color
combination. These sfyles each carry a strong charccter and together, create
a neighborhood full of varying intercsfs. Roofs vary in forms, pitches, style, and
heights. Two-story buildings include one-story massrng. Thoughtful breaks in
massing arc achieved to provide visual interest at elevations exposed to public
view. The ftont door, garage door and coach light selections vary per elevation
and arc architectunlly compatible with the theme of each home. Combined, all
fhese design features, create visual interest and a pedestian friendly
streetscape.

r Spanr.sh Colonial - The simply articulated design combines light colored
sfucco wall finish, tena cotta colorcd villa roof tiles, with pops of color on
the window shufters. Lines arc clean, cantileverc arc highlighted with
curued corbels, and roof lines are traditionally low-pitched gables.

Westem Farmhouse - This asymmetrical cottage design integrates a senbs
of gable roofs in fhe massrng and the introduction of siding and brick, for
character and texture. The tnditional steep-pitched roof, accentuated by
the gable end boad and baft finish, provides for varie$ in the eave lines
within fhe sfreefs cape.

a

Page 942

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6,2020

t ltalian Villa - Strong punctuations of material and detail highlight the ltalian
Vitta, the most formal of the thrce sff/es. Sfone veneer-finished walls crcate
a strong base, comer trcatments frame the wall planes, and windows are

centered and highlighted with a wide trim surround. The style calls for a hip
roof design.

lllustrations of the proposed architectural styles applied to the proposed residential

designs are shown below and on the following two pages.

FIGURE 8: PLAN 1 ELEVATIONS

Front Elevolion - IA - Coloniol

Fronl Elevalion lC ltolion Villq Front Elevotion - lB - Weslern Formhouse

Page 943

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

FIGURE 9: PLAN 2 ELEVATIONS

Front Flevotlorl * 2C - llolion Villa

Front Elevolion - 24 - Sponish Coloniol

Front Elevollon - 28 - Western Formhouse

Page 944

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

FIGURE 10: PI-AN 3 ELEVATIONS

Front Elevolion - 3A - Sponish Coloniol

Front Elevolion - 3C - llolion VIlftl Fronl Elevotion - 38 - Weslern Formhouse

Typicalfloorplans for each unit type are shown in the figures on the following pages, As
noted earlier, Plans 2 and 3 include a downstjairs bedroom.

Page 945

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

FIGURE 1 1: PI-AN 1 FLOORPLAN

I

I i.
1'
Iil

.r.'.9, r --'1-.) 
'

I
I

i
-r'

.r !" .' !'
:. . h .'l,rti,i
lr JL ii

tii
l-'r r

Ei
t"

-l
ls
Ir

ia.

L
Lol Coverog€ Colculolio$
Fi6l rbs 84? Sq. fl.
Coroge a?5 5q. ft. i
Pqch 9l sq. fl. :1

Tolol: l3sBsq. Ft
Tolol Buildhg Covqoge 171

-1
Fks FloI
3 6edr@mi
2 5 8o'hi
lat6 rl-Second Floor

l[5r'1 r.t.

oPr [,{asrERiArd

l it

Firsi Floor
842 r,I

FIGURE 12: PIAN 2 FLOORPLAN

{t
r'l

.,t
I

-t
I

.i
I

,t
I

a "\. ,r" -,

tir,;
l l li r
'' . .l;

i

l,

I
I

I

T

t

Second Floor
lfia !.r.

Opt- Lofl

t -! r
iFirsl Ftoor
I tes rr.

I

4 aadoo$!
Opl lotl
3 Sollx
i049 r,t.

!9! @q!xl? ql,s!F!_.r
Itdfod t66tq tl.
Oqoge al9 Sq. ft.
Porch 72 Sq. Fl.'loroti l{56 so. Ft

Ior0! 8ur1in9 Cov€arge 501,

T
f::
;
,t

D ow n st a i rs b e d ro o m eEfiffiffi

Page 946

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6,2O20

FIGURE 13: PLAN 3 FLOORPLAN

-r
OPT IIASIER EATH

Second Floor

T Trlr-tr : ;l i:l ilR

ffi ffiq '---llj'sd
[''*""ti{
L--. SiFirst Floor

t]

h
tsl

b

I \lt t,
4 8..ri _.r'jj I irrll

tl"lt : ,

!,.,1 j,i.CslLrl.drr.D
, r: 96tt{l!
,.:r!,r,r' 1)l'sil il
P:a r !r la ar

k,l0 | {t/ trt tl
if,l{r l'- rn'.t C(irProilu lry.

D ow n sta i rs bed roo m h igh lighlr'd

Existinq and Proposed Landscaoing

Existing landscaping and sidewalks are present within a 20-foot-wide landscape corridor
located along the east side of East Bidwell Street and within a 30-foot-wide landscape
corridor located along the south side of Mangini Parkway. The applicant is proposing to
provide an additional five feet of landscaping along East Bidwell Street in order to
accommodate a four-foot-tall berm, increasing the width of this landscape buffer to 25
feet. Accordingly, the existing 20-foot-wide landscape easement located along the East
Bidwell Street frontage is being widening to 25 feet as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map.

The applicant is proposing to install new landscaping in the front yards and street side
yards of the new homes within the subdivision. Homeowners will be responsible for
landscaping the rear yards of the individual homes. Front yard landscaping has been
designed by the applicant to complement the proposed architecture and to work within
the front yard areas available.

Page 947

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

The applicant describes the landscaping concept for the front yards as follows:

"The front yard landscaping proposed for this community has been thoughtfully
ptanned providing an aesthetically pleasing design that includes a mix of shrub
accent ptanting and ornamental grasses combined with accent boulders for
added vertical interest. By omitting the furt, these desrgns are more water
efficient and require less maintenance.

Much effort was put into selecting the trces proposed for this community.
Working with the Folsom City Arborist, great care was taken in selecting trees
with appropriate characfen'sfics for the planting space provided. The proposed

trees are known to be successful in small planting areas, are considered non-
invasive and utility friendly. ln addition, they provide a combination of canopy
shapeg colors and heights ranging from 10'-50'. The desrgns provide a tree
planting zone averaging 206 square feet offering ample space forthe proposed

minimum one tree per lot. Additional planning is in place to mitigate concems
about long term tree success. First, ourtargettree planting zone avoids garage

sides of the lot entirely reducing utility conflicts considerably. ln addition, as we

do with any installation, contractors will be directed to maintain minimum
disfances from utitities and hardscapes. Sfrou/d any minimum distance not be
met, root bariers willbe added."

The applicant has discussed appropriate tree species with the City's Arborist and has

selected a list of trees which will fit within space available (shown below). The updated

tree list is included in the applicant's submittal book, attached to this staff report

(Attachment 16).

FIGURE 14: TREES IN FRONT YARD AREAS

20'Canopv
40' IItilqhr

l5' Canop.v
25' llaigltt

I

L- 12'.6- --12!6' I

Page 948

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

Selected trees for the front yard areas include:

r Arbutus unedo Marina "Strawberry Tree"
o Cercis occidentalis "Western Redbud"
. Lagerstroemia Hybrid Natchez "Crape Myrtle"
o Podocarpus macrophyllus "Yew Pine"
o Prunus caroliniana "Carolina Laurel Cherry"
o Pyrus calleryana Chanticleer "Chanticleer Pea/'

All of these trees have either a relatively small canopy size (e.9., the crape myrtle) or
have a tall, vertical form (e.9., the yew pine) that will fit in the proposed front yard areas.
Due to their size, these species are more commonly used as "accent" trees in a palette
that includes larger "canopy" trees when enough space is available.

C. MinorAdministrativeModification

The parcel (Parcel 143) on which the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project is located
is designated by the FPASP for the development of 86 residential units. Because the
applicant is proposing to construct only 71 residential units on the subject parcel, a Minor
Administrative Modification is proposed to reallocate the 15 unused residential units to
two other sites (Parcel24 and Parcel 173) within the Folsom Plan Area. These other two
sites or parcels have not been mapped, and no development applications are currently
on file with the City.

Parcel 24 and Parcel 173 are both designated MLD by the FPASP (as is the Creekstone
Phase 1 Subdivision parcel). The increase in the number of units allocated to these sites
(6 units added to Parcel 24 and I units added to Parcel 173) would not require a change
in the land use designation for either site as each parcel has available capacity to accept
additional units. The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision site and the proposed locations (all
of which are under the same ownership group/Mangini lmprovement Company, lnc.) for
the reallocated residential units are shown in Figure 15 on the following page.

Page 949

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

FIGURE 15: PROPOSED REALLOCATION OF 15 DWELLING UNITS

TO
HERE

FROM
HERE

|r.
,f

E

uI

)
il'-., -r

,
,

)
'\:-I
tI

t.)

'I

u
fl nr

a

fPASP Porcel I tl3
I {rrklki g r:u Lr oc it v,. 86.-tu

I l5(,ul
Reiuili rg Copo.rily" /: d!'

,l

tn
I

I

I

.D

-

.0

I

1l

TPASP Forcel 24
F;,til;n! iliilt.:i!] :lalti, {}&'lrr;

lpir riri !q C.r!i: r.. ;!y- l j\-l.9tl

TO
HERE

flu

t
t
I
T

- tD lth.d Nurhr
" larttrattormdl)

fJ
lr

n

rl.

L.gend

n
I

fl

s
I

c
13 n.

.d
o

I

I

arIt

Dwellirg tJnit Allocation
lblsom Plan Aren Specific Plrn

ffi
ls,!!-t-!!r=r kr".'rrir!..

FPASP Pdrcel I 73
t ! rlr,ilrlil C0!\lr, il v:.2r4!-:t!

',tdul
CorxtcllY-2f,3du

rt 5i D
-.1-

plt.

Page 950

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

ATTACHMENT 3
ANALYSIS

The following sections provide an analysis of the applicant's proposal. Staffs analysis

includes:

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

B. Planned Development Permit (Minor Changes to Development Standards)

. Proposed Revised Development Standards

. Proposed Residential Designs

. Proposed Landscaping

C. Traffic/Access/C ircu lation

D. Parking

E. Noise lmpacts

F. Walls/Fencing

G. lnclusionary Housing

H. Frontage lmprovements

l. Minor Administrative Modification (Shift of Dwelling Units to Other Parcels)

This section also includes a discussion of the project's performance with relation to
relevant policies in the Folsom General Plan and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan:

J. Conformance with Relevant Folsom General Plan Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan Objectives and Policies

A. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

As shown on the submitted Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (Attachment 6),

the proposed subdivision includes 71 single family residential lots, 3 landscape lots, and
two internal public streets (Cantor Drive and Cash Drive). The proposed project will be
required to dedicate public right-of-way for the two internal public streets. The project is

not required to dedicate any additional public right-of-way along East Bidwell Street or
Mangini Parkway as the right-of-way for these two roadways has previously been
dedicated. As shown on the Subdivision Map, the applicant is also proposing to expand
an existing landscape easement located along the East Bidwell Street frontage from 20
to 25 feet in width in order to accommodate a new landscape berm.

As mentioned previously, all roadways within the subdivision are proposed to be public

streets. As a result, staff has included a condition (Condition No. 41) that requires the
applicant to dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD,
Pacific Gas and Electric, cable television, telephone) on properties adjacentto the streets.

Page 951

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Greekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

As noted earlier, the applicant is proposing changes to the development standards of the
FPASP to accommodate the lots proposed. These include a minimum lot size o12,925
SF for interior lots and 3,300 SF for corner lots.

Based on the proposed subdivision map, more than half of the proposed lots (58%) are

larger than 3,000 SF, the minimum size that would apply if the applicant's proposed

change were not approved. A totalof six (6) lots would be at the minimum proposed size
(2,925 SF). All lots and their proposed size are shown below. lnterior lots below 3,000 SF

and corner lots smaller than 3,500 SF are highlighted to demonstrate which lots require

the revised development standards proposed by the applicant.

Creekstone Phase { Subdivision Proposed Lot Sizes

Lot # Size (SFl Lot # Size (SF) Lot # Size (SF)

1 3,640 25 (C) 3,M5 49 2,970
2 2,925 26 2,970 50 2,970
3 2,925 27 2,970 51 2,974
4 2,925 28 2,970 52 (c) 3,45
5 2,927 29 2,974 53 (C) 3,398

6 4,188 30 2,974 54 2,U1
7 6,327 31 2,974 55 3,000

I 4,271 32 2,970 56 5,187

9 3,357 33 2,970 57 5,392
10 3,367 34 2,970 58 3,199

11 3,377 35 2,970 59 3,195

12 3,388 36 2,970 60 3,195

13 3,398 37 2,970 61 3,195

14 3,447 38 (c) 3,445 62 3,195

15 3,418 3e (c) 3,45 63 3,195

16 3,428 40 2,970 M 3,195

17 3,438 41 2,974 65 3,195

18 3,448 42 2,970 66 3,195

19 3,458 43 2,970 67 3,195

20 3,468 44 2,970 68 3,195
21 3,478 45 2,970 69 3,195

22 3,488 46 2,970 70 3,195

23 3,498 47 2,970 71 (C) 3,713
24 3,914 48 2,974

(c) Corner Lot

Page 952

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

lnterior lot smaller than 2,950 SF

lnterior lot 2,951 to 3,000 SF
Corner lot smaller than 3,500 SF

Staff has determined that the proposed Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
complies with all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of the State
Subdivision Map Act.

B. Planned Development Permit

The following are proposed as part of the applicant's Planned Development Permit:

r Proposed Revised Development Standards

e Proposed Residential Designs

o Proposed Landscaping

These are discussed below.

Revised Develooment Standards

The applicant is requesting approval of a Planned Development Permit which would
deviate from the development standards established by the Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan for residential lots with an MLD designation. Changes are proposed to standards for
lot sizes, garage setbacks, and building setbacks, as described earlier in this staff report.

The applicant's justification for the revised development standards is provided below:

As part of our submiftal we are rcquesting a few minor modifications to the MLD
development standards. The primary factor driving our request for setback
modifications r.s so that we can offer a downstairs bedroom in two of the three
plans. This featurc has become a very desinble amenity offering a space for a
home office, guest accommodations or a family member bedroom. Field
su/yeys in the Folsom market of active communities has shown this feature
being one of the top naguesfs from buyers. Thirty-seven feet is the idealwidth
to achieve a functional downstairs bedrcom. Placing the room forwad of the
garage creates a more desirable frcnt elevation and pedestrian experience.
Our minor modification reguesfs associafed with architecture include front,
interior side, and garage setback modffications.

Page 953

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

Specific changes and staffs analysis are discussed below.

1. Minimum lot size for interior lots is proposed to be reduced from 3,000 SF to 2,925
SF. Minimum lot size for corner lots is proposed to be reduced from 3,500 SF to
3,300 sF.

Staff concurs with these proposed changes, which are consistent with other
subdivisions approved in the Folsom Plan Area and which will help provide ownership
housing at a more affordable price point than would be possible with larger lots. Staff
also notes that most of the proposed lots would be large enough to meet the 3,000 SF
minimum size that would otherwise apply, and that only five of 71 lots would be below
2,950 SF. Of five corner lots, four would be slightly smaller than 3,500 SF (the typical
minimum; the applicant is proposing 3,300 SF).

2. Minimum front yard setbacks for the primary structure, which are proposed to be
reduced from 15 feet to 12.5 feet

Staff concurs with these proposed standards, which are similar to setbacks provided
in other developments in the Folsom Plan Area. As noted by the applicant, this
reduced setback will also help accommodate the first-floor bedrooms in the Plan 2
and 3 homes, which staff views as a benefit. Plan t homes will not need the reduced
setback.

The proposed reduction in the front yard setback for living area will not detract from
the visual appearance of the street scene, as the design, materials, and colors of the
main residential structure and the garage have been coordinated,

3. Minimum garage setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 20 feet to 18
feet

Staff concurs with these proposed standards, which are similar to setbacks provided
in other developments in the Folsom Plan Area.

The proposed reduction in the front yard setback for garages will not detract from the
visual appearance of the street scene or the individual master plans as the design,
materials, and colors of the main residential structure and the garage have been
coordinated.

4. Minimum side yard setbacks, which are proposed to be reduced from 5 feet to 4 feet

Staff concurs with this reduction, which is similar to development standards that have
been approved for other projects in the Folsom Plan Area. However, staff notes that

Page 954

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19{59)
May 6, 2020

changes to the Crty's fire codes now require a 5' x 5' clear area below second floor

bedroom windows ("rescue openings"l). Projects approved before the adoption of the

updated Folsom Fire Code in 2019 are considered exempt from this requirement.

The implication for projects such as Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision is that standard

side yard fencing that separates homes could not be placed under these second-floor
"rescue openings." Side yard fencing for these homes will need to pushed back from

the front until it is located past the upper floor window, with the result that the affected

homes will have a smaller'private" side yard.

For the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project specifically, this will affect fences

adjacent to the second floor of Plan t homes, which are the only proposed homes in

this project which have a bedroom window that would qualify as a "rescue opening"

(see below). Both the Plan 2 and Plan 3 units have second-floor bedrooms, but these

open to either the front or rear yard, where there is sufficient clear area to meet the

City's Fire Code standards. Figure 16 on the following page shows an example of a

second floor bedroom with a rescue opening.

I Generally, a "rescue opening" is a window which provides for emergency exiting.

Page 955

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

o
&

lUo
a

FIGURE 16: SECOND FLOOR BEDROOM AND "RESCUE OPENING"

Based on the fact that a number of side yard fences within the subdivision will be required
to be placed further back from the front property line than is typical for a traditional
subdivision, staff recommends that trash, recycling, and yard waste containers be placed
behind the side yard fence so that they are not visible from the public right-of-way. ln
addition, staff recommends that air conditioning units also be placed behind the side yard
fence or located in the rear yard so that they are not visible from the public right-of-way.
(Condition No. 51 is included to reflect these requirements). Fence placement locations
will be addressed when detailed construction plans are submitted to the City.

As described above, the applicant is proposing to modify a number of development
standards for development of the subdivision including reducing the minimum lot size for
interior and corner lots, reducing the required front yard setback for the primary structure,
reducing the required front yard setback for garages, and reducing the required side yard
setbacks for the primary structure. The table (Figure 17) below shows the existing
development standards, the proposed development standards, and development
standards for similar single-family small-lot subdivisions that have recently been approved
in the City.

(-)

I

I
I

sholl &
w.r.c.
22 6 tt

.'I Lound

Bedroom 2
l|O ,ll jl

Bedroom 3
ll 0 x l2 J

q:ri Liiir I
toiv lhcnb

Mosier

---|-- cob lS-10 ): a6

Mqsier
Both

"11r1lt

Second Floor "Rescue Opening"

o
x,

tUo
U)

Page 956

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

FIGURE 17: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS TABLE

As shown in the Development Standards Table above, the proposed development
standards for the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project are similar to and comparable
with numerous other single-family small-lot subdivisions located throughout the City
including projects in the Folsom Plan Area and projects north of U.S. Highway 50. ln
addition, staff has determined that the development standards for the proposed project
meet the intent, purposes, and standards set forth in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
in that they will provide improved floor plans within the master plans (downstairs bedroom)
and enhanced front building elevations (front facing first floor bedroom).

Residential Desiorlg

The proposed project is located within the central portion of the Folsom Plan Area; thus,
it is subject to the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines (Attachment 19),
which were approved by the City Council in 2015. The Design Guidelines are a
complementary document to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan and the Folsom Plan
Area Specific Plan Community Guidelines.

The Design Guidelines, which are intended to act as an implementation toolfor residential
development within the Central District of the Folsom Plan Area, provide the design
framework for architecture, street soene, and landscaping to convey a master plan
identity. The Design Guidelines also establish the pattern and intensity of development
for the Central District to ensure a high quality and aesthetically cohesive environrnent.
While these Design Guidelines establish the quality of architectural and landscape
development for the master plan, they are not intended to prevent altemative designs
and/or concepts that are compatible with the overall project theme.

Development Standards Table
Minimum
Lot Size

Maximum
Lot Coveraoe

Front Yard
Setback

Front Garage
Setback

Side Yard
Setback

Rear Yard
Setback

SP.MLD
Standards

3,000 sF 50o/o 15 Feet 20 Feet 5 Feet 10 Feet

Proposed
Creekstone
Standards

2,925 SF 50o/o 12.5 Feet 18 Feet 4 Feet 10 Feet

Enclave
Subdivision

2,800 sF 50o/o 12.5 Feet 20 Feet 4 Feet 8 Feet

Meadows
Subdivision

2,925 SF 60o/o 7.5 Feet 7.5 Feet 3 Feet 5 Feet

Vizcaya
Subdivision

2,504 SF 50o/o 10 Feet 10 Feet 3.5 Feet 10 Feet

Farmhouse
SuMivision

2,850 SF 55o/o 8 Feet 8 Feet 4 Feet 5 Feet

Page 957

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Craekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

As a regulatory tool, the Design Guidelines are intended to assist applicants in creating
single-family residential neighborhoods that reflect the City's rich history, reinforce the
sense of community, and utilize sustainable best practices. The Design Guidelines also
provide the framework for design review approval of Folsom Ranch, Central District
residentialprojects. In addition, the Design Guidelines are intended to be used by builders
and developers when designing their Master Plot Plans. Any development project that is

submitted to the City must be reviewed for consistency with these Design Guidelines. The
following are the general architectural principles intended to guide the design of the
Folsom Ranch, Central District to ensure quality development:

o Provide a varied and interesting street scene

o Focus of the home is the front elevation, not the garage

o Provide a variety of garage placements

o Provide detail on rear elevations where visible from the public streets

o Choose appropriate massing and roof forms to define the architectural styles

r Ensure that plans and styles provide a degree of individuality

. Use architectural elements and details to reinforce individual architectural styles

ln addition to the general architectural principles referenced previously, the Design
Guidelines also provide specific direction regarding a number of architectural situations
and features including: edge conditions, corner buildings, building forms, off-set massing
forms, front elevations, roof forms, feature windows, architectural projects, balconies,
lower height elements, garage door treatments, outdoor living spaces, exterior structures,
building materials, and color criteria. The following are examples of architectural
situations and features that are relevant to the proposed project:

e Provide a mix of hip and gable roof forms along the street scene

r Provide off-set massing, forms, or wall planes

. Provide recessed second-story elements

o Provide enhanced style-appropriate details on the front building elevation

r Provide decorative window shelves or sill treatments

o Provide architectural projections (recessed windows, eaves, shutters, etc.)

r Provide garage doors that are consistent with the architecture of the building

. Provide variety in the garage door patterns

o Provide outdoor living spaces (porches, balconies, courtyards, etc.)

Page 958

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Gommission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

The architectural design styles selected for the Folsom Ranch Gentral District have been
chosen from the traditional heritage of California home styles, a majority of which have
been influenced by the Spanish Mission and Mexican Rancho eras. Over the years,
architectural styles in California have become reinterpreted traditional styles that reflect
the indoor-outdoor lifestyle choices available in the Mediterranean climate. Suggested
architectural styles in the Design Guidelines include American Traditional, Craftsman,
Early California Ranch, European Cottage, ltalian Villa, Monterey, Spanish Colonial, and
Western Farmhouse. Additional architectural styles compatible with the intent of the
Design Guidelines may be added if they are regionally appropriate.

As discussed earlier, the applicant has provided proposed architectural designs for the
homes to be built in the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision. As described in the applicant's
proposal, the proposed project features three architectural styles:

r Spanish Colonial
r ltalian Villa
o Western Farmhouse

ln evaluating the proposed project, staff also took into consideration building and design
elements that could be considered unique to the Folsom Plan Area. Staff has determined
that the proposed master plans are consistentwith the Folsom Ranch Design Guidelines.
Based on this analysis, staff forwards the following design recommendations to the
Comm ission for consideration :

1. This approval is for one product line with three two-story master plans in three
architectural styles with 12 color and material options. The applicant shall submit
building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building elevations
dated February 24,2420.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the single-family residential units shall be
consistent with the approved building elevations, materials samples, and color
scheme to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

3. The Community Development Department shall approve the individual lot permits
to assure no duplication or repetition of the same house, same roof-line, same
elevation style, side-by-side, or across the street from each other.

4. All mechanical equipment shall be ground-mounted and concealed from view of
public streets, neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings. For lots
abutting the open space areas (southern project boundary), mechanical equipment
shall be screened or located out of view from open space areas.

Page 959

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

5. Decorative light fixtures, consastent with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design
Guidelines and unique to each architectural design theme, shall be added to the
front elevation of each Master Plan to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

6. A minimum of one street tree shall be planted in the front yard of each residential
lot within the subdivision. A minimum of two trees are required along the street-
side of all corner lots. All front yard irrigation and landscaping shall be installed
prior to a Building Permit Final.

These recommendations listed above are included in the conditions of approval
presented for consideration by the Planning Commission (Condition No. 50).

C. Traffic/AccesslG i rcu I ation

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan established a series of plans and policies for the
circulation system within the entire Plan Area. The FPASP circulation system was
designed with a sustainable community focus on the movement of people and provides
a number of mobility alternatives such as walking, cycling, carpooling, and viable forms
of public transportation in addition to vehicular circulation. The circulation plan evaluated
regional travel, both in terms of connectivity and capacity as well as local internal
connections and access. The circulation plan also addressed the concerns of regional
traffic, including parallel capacity to U.S. Highway 50, and connectivity with sunounding
jurisdictions while considering community-wide connectivity, alternative modes of travel,
and the provision of complete streets.

The 2011 Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Environmental lmpact ReporUEnvironmental
lmpact Statement included not only a detailed analysis of traffic-related impacts within the
Plan Area, but also an evaluation of traffic-related impacts on the surrounding
communities. ln total, there are fifty-five (55) traffic-related mitigation measures
associated with development of the FPASP which are included as conditions of approval
for the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project. Many of these mitigation measures are
expected to reduce traffic impacts to East Bidwell Street. lncluded among the mitigation
measures are requirements to; fund and construct roadway improvements within the Plan
Area, pay a fair-share contribution for construction of improvements north of U.S.
Highway 50, participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program,
and Participate in the U.S. Highway 50 Corridor Transportation ManagementAssociation.
The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project is subject to all traffic'related mitigation
measures required by the 2011 FPASP EIR/EIS (Condition Nos 52-25 to 52-79).

Page 960

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6,2020

On September 6, 2019, Kimley Horn completed a Supplemental Traffic Evaluation
(included in the attachments to the CEQA Exemption Analysis, included as Attachment
12 to this staff report) for the proposed project2 to determine whether additional impacts
would occur that were not previously identified and addressed by the 2011 FPASP
EIR/EIS.

The Kimley Horn study analyzed traffic operations at six intersections and two roadway
segments:

lntersections

1. East Bidwell Street @ lron Point Road

2. East Bidwell Street @ Placerville Road

3. East Bidwell Street @ US-50 Westbound Ramps

4. East BidwellStreet @ US-50 Eastbound Ramps

5. East Bidwell Street @ Mangini Parkway (formerly Street "A")

6. East Bidwell Street @ White Rock Road

Roadway Segments

1. U.S Highway 50 Eastbound Ramps to Mangini Parkway

2. Mangini Parkway to White Rock Road

The Kimley Horn study concluded that the proposed project would not result in any traffic-
related impacts not already identifled and would not require any new traffic improvements
that have not already been required as mitigation by the prior environmental analyses.

As shown on the submitted Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (Attachment 6),
access to the project site is provided by a new driveway on the east side of East Bidwell
Street and a new driveway on south side of Mangini Parkway. lnternal circulation is
facilitated bytwo new public streets (Cantor Drive and Cash Drive) that provide circulation
throughout the project site.

On April 14, 2020, Kimley Horn completed a Supplemental Access and Circulation
Analysis (included as Attachment 13 to this staff report) that evaluated specific acoess
and circulation related issues associated with the proposed project under two different
scenarios (Scenario 1 and Scenario 2). Scenario 1 is an interim condition that assumes
the Toll Brothers project improvements have not been constructed, while Scenario 2 is
an uftimate condition that assumes the Toll Brothers project improvements have been

2 Note: The Kimley Horn study also included development of a separate project, Creekstone Phase 2.

Page 961

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Gommission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6,2020

constructed. Toll Brothers project improvements include modifications to East Bidwell
Street and the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway.

With respect to project access, the Analysis determined that the East Bidwell Street
project driveway will accommodate right-in, right-out, and left-in tuming movements, with
no left-out turning movements be permitted due to traffic safety concerns. The Analysis
also concluded that Mangini Parkway project driveway should be limited to right-in turning
movements until such time that Westwood Drive is constructed and ready to accept
vehicle traffic between Mangini Parkway and Alder Creek Parkway. The Analysis further
recommends that interim improvements be constructed to prohibit right-out turning
movements from the Mangini Parkway project driveway prior to issuance of the first
certificate of occupancy for the proposed project. The interim right-turn restriction for the
Mangini Parkway project driveway is necessary due to the fact that there is currently no
safe method for vehicles traveling east from the project site to return to East Bidwell Street
due to the fact that the Mangini ParkwayMestwood Drive intersection does not physically
accommodate U-turn movements. ln addition, there is currently no egress from Mangini
Parkway for vehicles heading north, south, or east from the project site.

The following are recommendations from the Supplemental Access and Circulation
Analysis which have been included as a condition (Condition Nos. 48 and No, 49) of
approval for the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project.

Condition No.48:

Scenario 1 (Toll Brothers Required lmprovements Completed)

A. The owner/applicant shall construct a southbound left turn lane with a minimum
storage length of 255 feet and a 60-foot taper to provide left turn acoess to Cantor
Drive. The owner/applicant shall install median improvements and required
signage and striping in East Bidwell Street to prohibit left tums out of Cantor Drive
to southbound East Bidwell Street.

B. The owner/applicant shall modiff the existing traffic signal, signing and striping at
the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway to the satisfaction of
the City Engineer.

Scenario 2 (Toll Brothers Required lmorovements Not Completed)

A. The owner/applicant shall;

1) Widen East Bidwell Street to include an additional southbound through lane
which extends from approximately 640 feet north of the intersection of Mangini
Parkway to the left turn lane into Cantor Drive.

2) Widen East Bidwell Street to provide a left turn lane with a minimum storage
length of 255 feet and a 60-foot taper into Cantor Drive. Construct median

Page 962

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 'l Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

island improvements together with signage and striping to the satisfaction of

the City Engineer to prohibit left turns out of Cantor Drive to southbound East

Bidwell Street.

3) Modify the existing traffic signal, signing and striping at the intersection of

Mangini Parkway and East Bidwell Street to accommodate revised lane

configurations and revised turning movements including a northbound East

Bidwell Street U-turn and a westbound left turn from Mangini Parkway to

southbound East Bidwell Street.

Condition No.49:

The owner/applicant shall construct interim improvements to the satisfaction of the

C1y Engineer at Cantor Drive on Mangini Parkway to prohibit right turns out of the

driveway until such time that Westwood Drive is constructed and ready for traffic

between Mangini Parkway and Alder Creek Parkway. The interim improvements

prohibiting right turns out of this driveway will be required to be complete and

operational prior to issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy in the Creekstone
phase 1 Subdivision. lf Westwood Drive is complete and open for traffic prior to

issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy in the subdivision, the interim

improvements prohibiting right turns out of the driveway will not be required.

D. Parking

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan requires that single-family residential units located

within a MultLFamily Low Density (MLD) designated area provide two covered parking

spaces per unit. The FPASP also requires that single-family residential units located

within an MLD designated area provide a minimum of 0.8 guest parking spaces per unit.

As shown on the submitted residential schematic design (Attachment 10), each of the

homes wilt include a two-car attached garage, thus meeting the covered parking

requirement of the FPASP. ln addition, the project provides 71 on-street parking spaces

(one space per unit), which exceeds the minimum of 0.8 on-street guest parking spaces

required by the FPASP.

E. Noise lmpacts

A Noise Assessment (Attachment 14) was prepared by Bollard Acoustical Consultants on

August 15,2019 to d'etermine whether East Bidwell Street or Mangini Parkway traffic-

relited noise would cause noise levels at the project site to exceed acceptable limits as

described in the Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan, and to evaluate

comptlance with the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan EIR Noise Mitigation

Measures.

Page 963

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

Outdoor Noise Levels

The study projected noise levels adjacent to these roadways (based on future traffic
levels) and determine what types of measures would be needed to ensure that noise
levels at homes adjacent to the roadways would not exceed City standards, which are:

. 60 dB Lcn3 for outdoor activity areas (such as rear yards)

o 45 dB Lon for interior areas in dwellings

The noise analysis concluded lhat, without mitigation, noise levels along East Bidwell
Street would reach 67 dB Lon in the rear yards of homes, and 65 dB Lon in the rear yards
of homes along Mangini Parkway. These levels exceed the City's standard (60 dB Lony for
outdoor activity areas,

However, the noise analysis also concluded that the installation of a 6-foot-high masonry
wall along both of these street frontages (East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway) would
reduce rear yard noise levels to 56 dB Ldn on East Bidwell Street and 59 dB Ldn on
Mangini Parkway, which would comply with the City's outdoor noise level standard. lt is
important to note that the noise analysis assumed that a four-foot-tall berm (as proposed
with this project) would be located along the project's East Bidwell Street frontage. The
six-foot-tall masonry wall referenced above would be located on top of a four-foot-tall
berm, resulting in a ten-foot-tall noise barrier (bermAryall) along the East Bidwell Street
frontage of the project site. The Mangini Parlarvay street frontage would include a 6-foot-
high masonry wall, this wall is not required to be located on top of a berrn feature due to
reduced noise levels on this roadway as compared to East Bidwell Street. A map of
recommended walls is shown in Figure 18 on the following page.

lnterior Noise Levels

The noise study concluded, based on projected noise adjacent to the adjacent roadways,
that standard residential construction (including STC 32 window assemblies on the
second floor of units adjacent to East Bidwell Parkway) would reduce interior noise levels
to acceptable levels.

3 dB Ldn is average noise level over a 24-hour day, measured in decibels (dB). The average includes a
+10 decibelweighing applied to noise occuring during nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) hours.

Page 964

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Gommission
Creekstone Phase 1 SuMivision (PN 19-059)
May 6,2020

FIGURE 18: RECOMMENDED NOISE WALL LOCATIONS

. . - . .|:!lllQl!t .sr'rgr':-- -tA8f.EAY.

'_-

'11 '

I

I

I

.t

-J:,.]:

.l
il
ig
ll

tli-

I
I

!

i

I
'I
'l
i

1

d
!r
t!

I

I
I
I

I

l.

I

I

!

:+

I

i

i

,i

rt
fi
1

I

:(,

:fi'6RhG.-

fi

.rt

',4

.)l

ll

b:

.\
,, I

3J

d
oa

i

1t)

}'

lrj

at

.0

aa

rl

F

at

:l)

'ii Dilvt-

i

!+
riiqt\

lp

_t

,

t
lo
tl
i

I

I

la

,.

A

'E

?l

,J

rt

t8

t!

ll

t2

lc,

FloFq.d 0 fsl lnli fbra Br(rr
Ro@6r6jnd Ut0cr.Fbdi S lt; V
'/llrch'i ,\gcfr*r lor A

Scnt! lltrllEI! 
'(l 

t(x,

Lago,d

-

Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lots t0 & 15
Folsom, California

Lot 10 Sile Plan

Figure 3

Page 965

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

F. Walls/Fencing

The applicant is proposing a combination of masonry walls and wood fencing for the
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project:

o Along the Mangini Parkway and East Bidwell Street frontages, a six-foot-high
masonry wall will be constructed to provide an attractive appearance for the
subdivision and to reduce traffic-related noise for the homes adjacent to these
roadways (see the previous discussion of Noise within this staff report). The six-
foot-tall masonry wall along East Bidwell will be positioned on top of a four-foot-tall
berm.

Wooden fencing will be provided between residential units. Wooden fencing will
be consistent with the guidelines for fencing provided in the Folsom Ranch Design
Guidelines. (As discussed elsewhere in this report, changes to the Fire Code will
affect the placement of fences between homes where second-floor windows
require a 5'x 5'clear area on the ground.)

a

o Along the eastern properg boundary, an existing masonrywallwill remain in place.

. Along the southern property boundary, adjacent to the existing storm detention
basin, a low retaining walltopped with an open, tubularsteelfence with a combined
height of six feet will be installed for Lots 2-7. One lot along the southern property

boundary (Lot 1) will have a six-foot-high masonry wall as required by the noise
analysis.

The recommended conditions of approval (Condition No. 18) require the applicant to
provide a final design for all walls and fences for review and approval by staff prior to
construction.

G. lnclusionary Housing

The applicant proposes to comply with Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 17.104
(lnclusionary Housing) by paying in-lieu fees per Municipal Code Section 17.104.060(G).
(See the applicant's lnclusionary Housing letter, included as Attachment 17 to this staff
report). Homes within the subdivision will be sold at market prices. Fees paid by the
applicant will help provide affordable housing elsewhere in the city. The applicant is

required to enter into an lnclusionary Housing Agreement with the City. The Final

lnclusionary Housing Plan is subject to approval by the City Council. ln addition, the
lnclusionary Housing Agreement, which will be approved by the City Attorney, must be
executed prior to recordation of the Final Map for the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision
project. Condition No. 39 is included to reflect these requirements.

Page 966

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

H. Frontage lmprovements

Although most of the physical improvements (streets, curbs, gutter, sidewalks, and

landscaping) to East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway adjacent to the project site have

been constructed, the applicant will be required to install landscaping in a five-foot-wide

area along the East Bidwell Street frontage where the four-foot-tall berm will be located.

ln addition, the applicant will be required to construct the perimeter masonry walls along

the frontages of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway (see the Noise discussion

earlier in this report). Walls and landscaping willbe required to complywith Folsom Ranch

Design Guidelines. The recommended conditions of approval require the applicant to

submit detailed plans for all landscaping and walls prior to construction.

l. Minor Administrative Modification

As described earlier within this report, the parcel (Parcel 143) on which the Creekstone

Phase 1 Subdivision project is located is designated by the FPASP for the development

of 86 residential units. Based on the fact that the applicant is proposing to construct only

71 residential units on the subject parcel, a Minor Administrative Modification is being

requested to reallocate the 15 unused residential units to two other parcels (Parenl24
and Parcel173) situated within the Folsom Plan Area.

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan provides for Minor Administrative Modifications,

"... that are consistent with and do not substantially change its overall intent,
such as minar adjustments to the land use locations and parcel boundaies
shown in Figure 4.1 - Land Use and Figure 4.4 - Plan Area Parcels and the
land use acreages shown in Table 4.1 ' Land Use Summary." [FPASP
Section 13.31

The FPASP states that Minor Administrative Modifications can be approved at a staff

level, provided the following criteria are met:

r The proposed modification is within the Plan Area.

o The modification does not reduce the size of the proposed town center.

o The modification retains compliance with City Charter Article 7.08, previously

known as Measure W.

r The generat land use pattern remains consistent with the intent and spirit of the
FPASP

o The proposed changes do not substantially alter the backbone infrastructure
network.

o The proposed modification offers equal or superior improvements to development
capacity or standards.

Page 967

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

The proposed modification does not increase environmental impacts beyond those
identified in the EIR/EIS.

Relocated park or school parcels continue to meet the standards for the type of
park or school proposed.

Relocated park or school parcels remain within walking distance of the residents
they serve.

Based on staffs review, the proposed reallocation of 15 residential units from the
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision site to two other parcels within the Folsom Plan Area
meets all of the required criteria mentioned above. As a result, staff is able to approve
the p roposed Minor Ad m i n istrative Mod ification.

J. Conformance with Relevant General Plan and Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
Objectives and Policies

The applicant prepared a detailed analysis of the project's consistency with all of the
policies in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan; that analysis is included in the CEQA
Exemption and Streamlining Analysis in Attachmenl 12 to this report. Staff concurs with
the applicant's analysis that the project is consistent with the Specific Plan.

The following is a summary analysis of the project's consistency with the Folsom General
Plan and with key policies of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan.

GP and SP OBJECTIVE H-1 (Housinol
To provide an adequate supply of suitable sites for the development of a range of
housing types to meet the housing needs of all segments of the population.

GP and SP POLICY H.1.1
The Gity shallensure that sufficient land is designated and zoned in a range of residential
densities to accommodate the City's regionalshare of housing.

Analysis: The City provldes residential lands at a variety of residentialdensities as
specified in the General Plan and in the Folsom MunicipalCode. The Folsom Plan
Area Specific Plan includes specialized zoning (Specific Plan Designations) that
are customized to the Plan Area as adopted in 2011 and as Amended over time.
The FPASP provides residential lands at densities ranging from 1-4 dwelling unit
per acre (SF), 4-7 dwelling units per acre (SFHD),7-12 dwelling units per acre
(MLD), 12-20 dwelling units per acre (MMD), 20-30 dwelling units per acre (MHD),
and 9-30 dwelling units per acre (MU).

The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project is designated MLD and is proposed
to be developed at7.2 units per acre, which is within the density range for the MLD
designation.

I

a

Page 968

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

sP POLTCY 4.1
Create pedestrian-oriented neighborhoods through the use of a grid system of streets
where feasible, sidewalks, bike paths and trails. Residential neighborhoods shall be
linked, where appropriate, to encourage pedestrian and bicycle travel.

Analvsis: The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision proposes a traditionalsingle-fami$
neighborhood with localstreets provided with sidewalks on both sides of the street.
Biking and walking will be accommodated within the project, which will be
connected via sidewalks and Class I and Class ll bicycle lanes with nearby
neighborhoods, parks, and schools.

sP POLTCY 4.4
Provide a variety of housing opportunities for residents to participate in the home-
ownership market.

Analysis: The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan provides home ownership
opportunities within the SF (Single-Family), SFHD (Single-Family High Density),
and MLD (Multi,Family Low Density) land use designated areas. Residential
development in the MLD (Multi-Family Low Density), MMD (Multi-Family Medium
Density), MHD (Multi-Family High Density) and MU (Mixed-Use) land use
categories may provide'for rent'opportunities; however home ownership may also
be accommodated in 'for sale'condos, townhomes, etc. at the time of development
of these particular parcels.

The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project is consistent with this policy in that it
will provide detached single-family home ownership opportunities within the MLD
designation zoned parcels at a more affordable price point than in other, less
dense residential developments.

sP POLTCY 4.6
As established by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the total number of dwelling units
for the Plan Area shall not exceed 11,461. The number of units within individual land use
parcels may vary, so long as the number of units falls within the allowable density range
for a particular land use designation.

Analvsis: There have been a number of Specific Plan Amendments approved by
the City Council within the Folsom Plan Area, which has generally led to an
increase in residentially-zoned land and a decrease in commercially-zoned land.
As a result, the number of residential units within the Plan Area increased from
10,210 to 11,461 from 2011 to 2018. The various Specific Plan Amendment ElRs
and Addenda analyzed impacts from the conversion of the commercial lands to
residential lands; impacts and associated mitigations measures can be found in

the individual project-specific environmental documents. The increase in
population was analyzed and can be accommodated in the excess capacity of the
schoolsites provided in the Plan Area.

Page 969

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

The proposed project does not result in any change in total dwelling units in the
FPASP. Allocated units originally planned to be constructed on this site that are
not part of the current proposalwill be reallocated to other parcels. The reallocation
of units to these parcels will not exceed the allowable density for the parcels, which
are designated MLD.

SP OBJECTIVE 7.1 (Circulationl
Consistent with the California Complete Streets Act of 2008 and the Sustainable
Communities and Climate Protection Act (SB 375), create a safe and efficient circulation
system for all rnodes of travel.

SP POLICY 7.1
The roadway network in the Plan Area shall be organized in a grid-like pattern of streets
and blocks, except where topography and natural features make it infeasible, for the
majority of the Plan Area in order to create neighborhoods that encourage walking, biking,
public transit, and other alternative modes of transportation,

Analvsis: Consistent with the requirements of the California Complete Streets Act,
the FPASP identified and planned for hierarchy of connect "complete streets" to
ensure that pedestrian, bike, bus, and automobile modes are travel are designed
to have direct and continuous connec'tions throughout the Plan Area. Every option,
from regional connector roadways to arterial and local streets, has been carefully
planned and designed. Recent California legislation to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions (AB 32 and SB 375) has resulted in an increased market demand for
public transit and housing located closer to service needs and employment
centers. ln response to these changes, the FPASP includes a regional transit
corridor that will provide public transportation links between the major commercial,
public, and multi-family residential land uses in the Plan Area.

The Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project has been designed with multiple
modes of transportation options (vehicles, bicycle, walking, access to transit)
consistent with the approved FPASP circulation plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provides that residential projects which
are consistent with an approved Specific Plan for which an EIR was prepared are exempt
from a requirement to prepare additional environmental analysis. CEQA Guidelines
section 15182(c) provides specific criteria to determine whether this exemption applies:

(c) ResrUential Projects lmplementing Specrlic Plans.

(1) Eligibility. Where a public agency has prepared an EIR on a specific plan
after January 1, 1980, a residential project undeftaken pursuant to and in

Page 970

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

conform$ to that specific plan is exempt from CEQA if the proiect meets the
requiremenfs of fhis secfrbn. Residential projects covered by this section
include but are not limited to land subdivisions, zoning changes, and residential
planned unit developments. [CEOA Guidelines section ',51823

The applicant has prepared an analysis (included as Attachment 12 to this staff report),

which determined that the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision project qualifies for the
exemption provided in CEQA Guidelines 15182(c), since it is consistent with the Folsom
Plan Area Specific Plan.

The applicant's analysis also includes a review of the impacts and mitigation measures
addressed in the EIR for the FPASP, which concluded that the project will not result in
any impacts not already identified, and that mitigation measures in the EIR will be
sufficient to address project impacts. None of the events described in CEQA Guidelines
15162 which would require preparation of a subsequent EIR (substantial changes to the
project, substantial changes in the circumstances under which the project is undertaken,
or new information of substantial importance) have occurred, as detailed in the CEQA
Exemption Analysis (Attachment 12 to this staff report).

The City has reviewed the applicant's analysis and concurs that the project is exempt
from additionalenvironmental review as provided in CEQA Guidelines 15182(c).

RECOMMENDATION/PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

Move to recommend that the City Council:

Approve the CEQA Exemption for the proposed project pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
section 15182(c),

Approve a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map creating 71 single-family
residential lots and three lettered landscape lots,

Approve a Planned Development Permit for changes to development standards and

residential designs, and

Approve a Minor Administrative Modification to reallocate 15 single family units to
other parcels in the FPASP area

These approvals are subject to the proposed findings below (Findings A.Z) and the
recommended conditions of approval (Conditions 1-52) aftached to this report.

a

a

a

Page 971

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

A.

B.

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN, THE FOLSOM
PI.AN AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN, AND THE FOLSOM RANCH CENTRAL
DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES.

CEQA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIRON MENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRO N ME NTAL I MPACT
STATEMENT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE CREEKSTONE PHASE 1

SUBDIVISION PROJECT IS UNDERTAKEN TO IMPLEMENT AND IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN,

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE IMPACTS OF THE CREEKSTONE
PHASE 1 SUBDIVISION PROJECT ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PLAN AND ASSOCIATED MITIGATION MEASURES AND THAT
THE CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 SUBDIVISION PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM
THE REQUIREMENTS OF CEQA PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 65457 AND CEQA GUIDELINES 15182(c).

NONE OF THE EVENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 21166 OF THE PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE OR SECTION 15182 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES HAVE
OCCURRED.

THIS PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65457 AND SECTION 15162 OF THE CEQA
GUIDELINES.

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOTVESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIV]SION MAP IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE CIryS SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THE
SUBDIVISION MAP ACT IN THAT THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL THAT WILL ENSURE THAT THE PROJECT IS
DEVELOPED IN COMPLIANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS.

c

D

E.

F

G

H

Page 972

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

J

THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION, TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISIONS FOR
ITS DESIGN AND IMPROVEMENT, IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENEML
PLAN, THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN, AND ALL APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE.

THE SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE ryPE OF DEVELOPMENT
PROPOSED.

THE SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE PROPOSED DENSITY OF
THE DEVELOPMENT.

AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT
LIKELY TO CAUSE SUBSTANTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE OR
SUBSTANTIALLY AND AVOIDABLY INJURE FISH OR WILDLIFE OR THEIR
HABITAT.

AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT
LIKELY TO CAUSE SERIOUS PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFEry PROBLEMS.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE TYPE OF IMPROVEMENTS WILL NOT CONFLICT WITH
EASEMENTS FOR ACCESS THROUGH OR USE OF PROPERTY WITHIN THE
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION.

SUBJECT TO SECTION 66474.4 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE LAND
IS NOT SUBJECT TO A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE
cALtFORNtA LAND CONSERVATTON ACT OF 1965 (COMMENCTNG WrrH
sEcTtoN s1200 oF THE GOVERNMENT CODE).

PLANNED DEVELOPTUIENT PERIUIIT FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES
OF CHAPTER 17.38 OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE, THE FOLSOM
PI.AN AREA SPECIFIC PIAN AND OTHER APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF
THE C]TY AND THE GENERAL PI.AN.

o. THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE OBJECTIVES,
POLICIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF
THE CITY. THE MINOR MODIFICATIONS TO THOSE STANDARDS
PROPOSED AS PART OF THIS PROJECT WILL RESULT IN A
DEVELOPMENT THAT IS SUPERIOR TO THAT OBTAINED BY THE RIGID
APPLICATION OF THE STANDARDS.

K

L.

M

N.

o

P

Page 973

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission
Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision (PN 19-059)
May 6, 2020

R

S

T

U

V

W

X.

THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILIry BETWEEN THE
PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND
AREA CHARACTERISTICS IS ACCEPTABLE.

AS CONDITIONED, THE PROJECT WILL MAKE AVAILABLE NECESSARY
PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATER, SEWER
AND DRAINAGE, AND THE PROJECT WILL PROVIDE FOR THE
FURNISHING OF SUCH FACILITIES.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACTS WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN MITIGATED TO AN ACCEPTABLE
LEVEL.

THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE UNACCEPTABLE VEHICUIAR
TMFFIC LEVELS ON SURROUNDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED
PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE INTERNAL CIRCULATION, INCLUDING
INGRESS AND EGRESS.

AS CONDITIONED, THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE
DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH, SAFEW AND GENERAL WELFARE OF
THE PERSONS OR PROPERTY WITHIN THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT
SITE, AND THE CITY AS A WHOLE.

ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE
DEVELOPMENT.

DESIGN REVIEW FINDINGS

THE PROJECT IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL PLAN,
THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND THE APPLICABLE ZONING
ORDINANCES.

THE PROJECT IS IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE FOLSOM RANCH
CENTRAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES.

THE BUILDING MATERIALS, TEXTURES, AND COLORS OF THE PROJECT
WILL BE COMPATIBLE WITH SURROUNDING DEVELOPMENT AND
CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL DESIGN THEME OF THE
NEIGHBORHOOD.

Y.

z.

Page 974

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Affachment 17

City Council PowerPoint Presentation

Page 975

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 976

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Creekstone Phase 1 

Subdivision

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision 

Map, Planned Development Permit, and

Minor Administrative Modification 

Page 977

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Vicinity Map

Project Site

Page 978

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Aerial View of Project Site

Site

Page 979

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Key Project Details

• Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision
• 71-Unit Single-Family Residential Subdivision

• 9.88-Acre Site at SE Corner of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway

• Located within Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Subdivision  

• Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
• Creation of 71 Single-Family Residential Lots and 3 Lettered Landscape Lots 

• Two Access Driveways (East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway)

• Internal Public Streets

• Planned Development Permit Proposed Development Standards
• Modification to Minimum Lot Sizes

• Reduce Front Yard Setbacks for Primary Structures from 15 to 12.5 Feet

• Reduce Garage Setbacks from 20 to 18 Feet

• Reduce Side Yard Setbacks from 5 to 4 Feet

Page 980

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Key Project Details

• Planned Development Permit Proposed Architecture/Design  
• Two-Story Homes with Two-Car Attached Garage

• 3 Master plans (1,896 to 2,300 S.F.)(3BR/2.5 to 4BR/3BA) 

• 3 Architectural Styles (Italian Villa, Spanish Colonial, Western Farmhouse)

• Minor Administrative Modification
• Transfer 15 Dwelling Units from Project Site to Two Locations in Plan Area

• Inclusionary Housing Plan
• Payment of In-Lieu Fee into Housing Trust Fund

• Inclusionary Housing Agreement

Page 981

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Illustrative Site Plan Exhibit

Page 982

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Tentative Subdivision Map

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
• 71 Single-Family Residential Lots

• Lots Range from 2,925 to 6,327 S.F. in Size 

• Interior Lots (2,925 SF Min, Lot Size)

• Corner Lots (3,300 SF Min Lot Size)

• All Public Streets within Subdivision

• Map Meets Subdivision Map Act Requirements

Page 983

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planned Development Permit

• Proposed Development Standards 
• Reduce Minimum Lot Size for Interior Lots from 3,000 to 2,925 SF

• Reduce Minimum Lot Size for Corner Lots from 3,500 to 3,300 SF

• Reduce Front Yard Setback from 15 to 12.5 Feet

• Reduce Garage Setback from 20 to 18 Feet

• Reduce Side Yard Setbacks from 5 to 4 Feet 

• Applicant’s Justification 
• Allows Placement of Bedroom on First Floor of Residence

• First Floor Bedroom Strongly Desired by Home Buyers

• Forward Placement of Downstairs Bedroom Improves Front Building

Elevation

• Deviations from Development Standards Similar to Other Subdivisions in

Folsom

Page 984

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planned Development Permit

Development Standards Table

Minimum

Lot Size

Maximum

Lot Coverage

Front Yard

Setback

Front Garage

Setback

Side Yard

Setback

Rear Yard

Setback

SP-MLD

Standards

3,000 SF 50% 15 Feet 20 Feet 5 Feet 10 Feet

Proposed 

Creekstone

Standards

2,925 SF 50% 12.5 Feet 18 Feet 4 Feet 10 Feet

Enclave

Subdivision

2,800 SF 60% 12.5 Feet 20 Feet 4 Feet 8 Feet

Meadows

Subdivision

2,925 SF 60% 7.5 Feet 7.5 Feet 3 Feet 5 Feet

Vizcaya

Subdivision

2,504 SF 50% 10 Feet 10 Feet 3.5 Feet 10 Feet

Farmhouse

Subdivision

2,850 SF 55% 8 Feet 8 Feet 4 Feet 5 Feet

Page 985

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Traffic/Access/Circulation

• Traffic Impact Analysis 9-19
• Six Study Intersections and Two Roadway Segments Analyzed

• No New Impacts that were not Previously Identified in FPA EIR/EIS

• Project Subject to 55 Traffic-Related Mitigation Measures from FPA EIR/EIS

• Supplemental Access and Circulation Analysis 4-20 (2 Scenarios) 
Interim Scenario (without Toll Brothers Project Improvements):

• East Bidwell Street Project Driveway Allows Right-In, Right-Out, and Left-In 

Turning Movements

• Mangini Parkway Driveway Allows Right-In Turning Movements Only 

Ultimate Scenario (with Toll Brothers Project Improvements): 

• East Bidwell Street Project Driveway Allows Right-In, Right-Out, and Left-Out 

Turning Movements

• Mangini Parkway Driveway Allows Right-In and Right-Out Turning 

Movements 
Page 986

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Traffic/Access/Circulation

Supplemental Access and Circulation Analysis Recommendations: 

Scenario 1 (Toll Brothers Improvements Completed)

• Construct South-Bound Left-Turn Lane into East Bidwell Street Driveway (Cantor Drive)

• Install Median Improvements in East Bidwell Street to Prevent Left-Turn Out Movements on to 

East Bidwell Street from Cantor Drive

• Modify Traffic Signal and Striping at Intersection of East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway

Scenario 2 (Toll Brothers Improvements not Constructed) 

• Widen East Bidwell Street to Provide Additional Southbound Through-Lane Which Extends 64 

Feet North of Mangini Parkway to Cantor Drive

• Widen East Bidwell Street to Provide Left-Turn and Storage into Cantor Drive

• Install Median Improvements in East Bidwell Street to Prevent Left-Turn Out Movements on to 

East Bidwell Street from Cantor Drive

• Modify Traffic Signal and Striping at Intersection of East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway

• Construct Interim Improvements on Mangini Parkway to Prevent Right-Turn Out Movements 

Until Westwood Drive is Constructed and Open
Page 987

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Traffic/Access/Circulation

Page 988

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Noise Analysis

Noise Analysis
• Noise Impact Analysis

• Noise Mitigation Measures

• Noise Barriers

• Enhanced Construction Methods

Page 989

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Wall and Fencing Exhibit

Page 990

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Architecture/Design

• Proposed Architecture/Design 
• Two-Story Detached Homes with Attached Two-Car Garage

• Three (3) Master plans (1,896 S.F. to 2,300 S.F.)(3BR/2.5 to 4BR/3BA) 

• Three (3) Architectural Styles

• Twelve (12) Color and Materials Alternatives

• Proposed California-Themed Architectural Styles:
• Italian Villa  

• Spanish Colonial

• Western Farmhouse

Page 991

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Folsom Ranch Central District 

Design Guidelines

• Provide a varied and interesting streetscene

• Focus of the home is the front elevation, not the garage 

• Provide a variety of garage placements 

• Provide detail on rear elevations where visible from the public streets 

• Appropriate massing and roof forms to define the architectural styles

• Ensure that plans and styles provide a degree of individuality 

• Use architectural elements and details to reinforce individual 

architectural styles

• Recessed second-story elements

• Architectural projections (recessed windows, eaves, shutters)
Page 992

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Streetscape Exhibit

Page 993

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Building Massing Exhibit

Page 994

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Master Plan 1

Page 995

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Master Plan 2

Page 996

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Master Plan 3

Page 997

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Architectural Details

Page 998

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Streetscape Perspectives

Page 999

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Minor Administrative 

Modification

Page 1000

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Environmental Review

• CEQA Exemption and Streamlining Analysis Prepared for 

Proposed Project (Attachment 11)

• Concluded that Prior Environmental Documents (FPASP 

EIR/EIS, FPASP Water Addendum, Westland-Eagle Addendum) 

have Adequately Addressed Required Issues and No Further 

Environmental Review is Required (CEQA Guidelines Section 

15183)  

• Site Specific Impacts (Land Use and Planning, Noise, 

Transportation/Traffic) were Analyzed and Determined to be 

Less Than Significant and No New Impacts Identified

Page 1001

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Site Photographs

Page 1002

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Site Photographs

Page 1003

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Planning Commission

• Evaluated Project at its May 6, 2020 Meeting

• No Members of Public Spoke at Meeting

• Commission Debated Limited Issues
• Site Design

• Placement and Orientation of Homes on Specific Lots

• Proposed Development Standards

• Architecture/Design of Master Plans

• Timing of Roadway Improvements

• Commission Voted to Recommend Approval of Project (5-0-0-2)

Page 1004

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Staff Recommendation

Staff Forwards Planning Commission 

Recommendation to the City Council for

Approval of the Creekstone Phase 1 

Subdivision Project (PN 19-059)

Page 1005

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



This page intentionally left blank

Page 1006

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 18 

 

Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Booklet 

 

Also available online at  

 
https://www.folsom.ca.us/community/planning/current_project_information.asp 

 

 

  

Page 1007

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 1008

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 1 

 

FEBRUARY 26, 2020 
 

Creekstone Phase 1 
PROJECT NARRATIVE 
We are pleased to submit to the City of Folsom the Planning Entitlement Application for the CREEKSTONE Phase 1 

project, a part of the FOLSOM RANCH of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP).  

 

The requested Planning Entitlements / Approvals include the following: 

1. Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 

2. Planned Development Permit – Residential Architecture/Development Standards 
3. Minor Administrative Modification-Transfer of Development Rights 

 

Items submitted include the following items: 

1. Application Form 

2. Development Permit Fees ($21,739) 

3. Project Narrative (herein) 

4. Preliminary Title Report with Exceptions 

5. Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (includes lotting plan, preliminary grading/drainage plan, preliminary 

utility plan) 

6. PD Permit – residential Architecture – (includes floorplans, elevations, street scene, typical front-yard landscape 

plan) 

7. PD Permit-Color and Materials Binder 

8. PD Permit – Development Standards Exhibits (contained herein) 

9. Inclusionary Housing Plan   

10. 300’ Radius Map/List/Two Sets of Envelopes (subject to change-will complete prior to hearings) 

11. One set of all Maps and Exhibits reduced to 8 ½” x 11” 

12. CD with .pdf files of the above information 

 

     
LOT 10 

Page 1009

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 2 

 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 

 

The FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN (FPASP) was adopted by the City of Folsom on June 28, 2011(Resolution No. 8863). The Plan encompasses 3,513.4 undeveloped acres located south of 

Highway 50, north of White Rock Road, east of Prairie City Road and bordering the Sacramento County/El Dorado County Line, as shown below. 

 

FPASP Regional Context Map  

SACRAMENTO 

COUNTY 

EL DORADO 

COUNTY  

FOLSOM  

Page 1010

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 3 

 

The Folom Plan Area Specific Plan 

was updated in 2018 to include all of 

the various approved plan 

amendments and mapping 

modifications to the Plan Area to 

date. 

 
 

 

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan 

2011-2018 Entitlements exhibit is 

shown here. This exhibit illustrates the 

current entitlement history and land 

planning status for the FPASP Plan 

Area.    

    
The CREEKSTONE Phase 1 Project Site 

is a proposed residential subdivision 

located at the southeast corner of 

Mangini Parkway and East Bidwell 

Street inthe south-central portion of 

the Plan Area.  

    
  

PROJECT AREA 
 

Page 1011

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 4 

 

The FPASP 2019 Ownership Map is shown 

here.   

The Project Site subject properties are 

identified by APN 072-3370-013.  

The project owner/applicant is Mangini 

Improvement Company Inc. 

  

PROJECT AREA 
 

Page 1012

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 5 

 

The Folsom Plan Area 

Specific Plan 2011-2018 

Entitlements BAR CHART 

exhibit is shown here. This 

exhibit provides a graphic 

depiction of the Plan 

Area’s “holding 

capacities” relative to 

residential dwelling units, 

population and 

commercial building area 

(gross square feet).  

The proposed 

CREEKSTONE Phase 1 

entitlements include:  

• Small Lot Tentative 

Subdivision Map 

• Planned Development 

Permit for residential 

architecture & 

development standards 

• Minor Administrative 

Amendment-Transfer of 

Development Rights 

The CREEKSTONE Phase 1 

project proposes a Small 

Lot Vesting Tentative Map 

to create 71 dwelling 

units; the holding 

capacity for this Parcel is 

86 dwelling units. The 15 

unmapped residential 

units will be the subject of 

a Minor Administrative 

Amendment-Transfer of 

Development Rights 

(described herein) 

therefore no change to 

the FPASP total unit 

allocation, total 

population, or 

commercial gross square 

feet will occur from these 

entitlements. 

  

Page 1013

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 6 

 

APPROVED MANGINI RANCH PHASE 1 LARGE LOT & SMALL LOT TENTATIVE 

SUBDIVISION MAPS 

Shown here is the Mangini Ranch Phase1 1 Large Lot Vesting Tentative 

Subdivision Map. On June 25, 2015, the Mangini Ranch Mangini Ranch Mangini Ranch Mangini Ranch Phase 1Phase 1Phase 1Phase 1 Large Lot & 
Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps were approved by the City of Folsom City 

Council.  That approval subdivided the lands of Mangini    Ranch Phase 1Ranch Phase 1Ranch Phase 1Ranch Phase 1 into 40 large 
lots as shown on here. 

The Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, (shown on the next page) mapped only 

the portion of this Large Lot Map that included the SFHD parcels as allocated by the FPASP 

2011.  

 

 

  

PROJECT AREA 
 

Page 1014

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 7 

 

MANGINI RANCH ILLUSTRATIVE MASTER PLAN 

 

Shown here is the Mangini Ranch Illustrative Master Plan. The illustrative master plan exhibit shown here shows Mangini Ranch Phase 

1 & 2; The CREEKSTONE Phase 1 area, highlighted in blue, is designed to blend seamlessly into the existing fabric of the community. 

 

FOLSOM RANCH CENTRAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES (Approved 2015; 

Amended 2018) 

The CREEKSTONE Phase 1 project is located within the FOLSOM RANCH CENTRAL 

DISTRICT as defined by the approved “Folsom Ranch Central District Design 

Guidelines” (dated May 2015).  

These design guidelines apply to all the SF, SFHD and MLD residential areas of the 

Central District as shown on Page 1-3 of these Guidelines. The approved Mangini 

Ranch Phase 2 project amended these Guidelines to include the MLD, MMD and 

MHD sites in the Folsom Ranch Central District area. The CREEKSTONE Phase 1 

project is designed to comply with these Guidelines. 

  

PROJECT AREA 
 

Page 1015

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 8 

 

PROPOSED ENTITLEMENTS SOUGHT WITH THIS APPLICATION 
 

Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 

The proposed Creekstone Phase 1 Small Lot Vesting Tentative Map is shown here. The Small Lot Vesting Tentative Map seeks 

to further subdivide CREEKSTONE Phase 1 into (71) 45’x65’ detached residential lots for future development. Standard city 

streets are proposed with parking on both sides. 

Planned Development (PD) Permit – Development Standards  

Residential homesites at CREEKSTONE Phase 1 feature a downstairs bedroom, which has become a very desirable amenity 

to have a space for an office, guest accommodations or even a space for an additional relative.  Field surveys in the 

Folsom market at active communities has shown this feature being one of the top requests from buyers.  To achieve this 

the downstairs footprint of the home must expand, therefore, front and side setbacks are impacted.  Private rear yard 
space is not compromised, and smaller front yard square footage reduces overall water consumption and homeowner 

maintenance.  

 

The Project seeks a PD Permit seeks 

approval of specific modifications to the 

development standards to suit the project 

architecture and homebuyer preferences. 

See Development Standards Table and 

Diagram shown on this page. Modifications 

to the approved Development Standards 

contained in the FPASP are anticipated 

and may be requested to accommodate 

a variety of homebuyer and design 

preferences.  

  

CATEGORY NOTES APPROVED MLD PROPOSED MLD
DEGREE OF 

CHANGE

Lot Size
interior Lot 3,000sf min. 2,925sf min. (-75')

corner Lot 3,500sf min. 3,300sf min. (-200')

Building Coverage 7

interior Lot 50% max. 50% max.

corner Lot 50% max. 50% max.

Lot Width 2, 6

interior Lot 30' min. 30' min.

corner Lot 35' min 35' min

Setbacks 6

Front Yard Setbacks 3

porch 4 12.5' min. 12.5' min.

primary structure 4 15' min. 12.5' min. (-2.5') 

garage (front elevation/doors) 5 20' min. 18' min. (-2')

Side Yard Setbacks 6

interior side yard 1, 6 5' min. 4' min. (-1')

street side yard (corner lot) 3, 4 12.5' min. 12.5' min.

garage facing side street (corner lot) 3, 5 20' min. 20' min.

accessory structures (interior lot lines) 6 3' min. 3' min.

Rear Yard Setbacks 6

main building 8 10' min. 10'min.

accessory structure (interior lot lines) 5' min. 5' min.

detached garage 5' min. 5' min.

Building Height
main building 35' max. 35' max.

detached garage 18' max. 18' max.

accessory building 15' max. 15' max.

Off-Street Parking

6. Measured from property line.

7. Coverage includes covered porches and patios; excludes eaves and projections.

8. Second story is allowed to encroach into the minimum rearyard setback by 1'.

1. 8' minimum between buildings.

2. Measured at front setback.

3. Measured at ROW/back of sidewalk.

4. Measured to foundation line.

5. Measured to face of garage door.

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Refer to 2018 FPASP Table A.14 for Parking 

Requirements

Notes:

12/16/2019 MLD Single-Family

Page 1016

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 9 

 

Minor Administrative Amendment - Transfer of Development Rights  

CREEKSTONE Phase 1 is also known as FPASP Parcel 143 in the Folsom Plan 

Area Specific Plan Allocation Map and Table (Allocation Map shown 

here). A Minor Administrative Amendment is also sought for the transfer of 

15 unutilized units from CREEKSTONE Phase 1 as shown and described 

below. 

Minor Administrative Amendment Compliance  

The proposed entitlements seek a Minor Administrative Amendment (MAM) 

to the FPASP 2011 with a Transfer of Development Rights (TDR), as 

anticipated and permitted in the FPASP 2011, Chapter 13 Implementation, 

Section 13.3.1 Minor Administrative Amendment. The FPASP 2011 permits 
flexibility in transferring residential unit allocations (and commercial building 

area allocations) to reflect changing market demand. Transfer of 

residential unit allocations are allowed as a MAM consistent with FPASP 

2011, Chapter 13 Implementation, Section 13.3.2 Transfer of Development 

Rights. This entitlement application seeks approval of a MAM-TDR to transfer 

15 dwelling units from FPASP MLD Parcel 143 (CREEKSTONE Phase 1) to 

FPASP MLD Parcel 24 (+9du) and FPASP MLD Parcel 173 (+9du) (former 

Hillsborough SPA area). This transfer of units does not add additional 

dwelling units to the FPASP, and the overall total dwelling units remains 

unchanged +at 11,461du in the FPASP; no change in population results 

from this transfer of units and the overall estimated population in the FPASP 

remains at 27,965.  

 

FPASP 2011 Section 4.7 describes the context in which transfer of residential 

units is expected or likely to occur. “The FPASP permits adjustments to the 

residential land use mix to reflect sensitive natural features as well as 

changing market demand for a particular housing type. Transfer of units is 

permitted between residential parcels provided that the Plan Area 

maximum entitlement of 11,461 dwelling units is not exceeded except by 

amendment of the FPASP. Each residential development parcel is 

allocated a certain number of dwelling units (see FPASP Table 4.3). If a 

parcel is developed at less than its allocation number, the remaining un-

built units may be transferred to another residential parcel or parcels. 
Increases or decreases in residential density resulting from unit transfers shall 

not be less than the minimum or exceed the maximum allowable density 

for each residential land use category unless a request to increase or 

decrease the density is accompanied with a Specific Plan Amendment 

application pursuant to Section 13.3.1.” 

 

In addition to the requirements as set forth in Section 4.7 of the FPASP 2011 

(above), the City shall approve residential dwelling unit transfers or density 

adjustments between any Plan Area residential land use parcel or parcels, 

provided the following conditions are met (below). (Justification for 

compliance with FPASP Minor Administrative Modification criteria are 

shown are shown in blue italics.) 

 

• The transferor and transferee parcel or parcels are located within the 

Plan Area and are designated for residential use. (The transferor {FPASP MLD Parcel 143} and transferee {FPASP MLD Parcels 24 and 173} parcels are located within the Plan Area, are designated for residential use.} 

• The transferor and transferee parcel or parcels conform to all applicable development standards contained in Appendix A. (The transferor and transferee parcels will conform to all applicable development standards contained in Appendix A.) 

• The transfer of units does not result in increased impacts beyond those identified in the FPASP EIR/EIS. (The transfer of units does not result in increased impacts beyond those identified in the FPASP EIR/EIS.} 

• The transfer of units does not adversely impact planned infrastructure, roadways, schools, or other public facilities; affordable housing agreements; or fee programs and assessment districts unless such impacts are reduced to an acceptable level though project-

specific mitigation measures. (The transfer of units will not adversely impact planned infrastructure, roadways, schools, or other public facilities; affordable housing agreements; or fee programs and assessment districts.) 

  

FPASP Parcel 143 
Holding Capacity=86du 

(-15du) 

Resulting Capacity=71du 

FPASP Parcel 24         
Holding Capacity=147du 

(+6du) 

Resulting 

 

FPASP Parcel 173         
Holding Capacity=224du 

(+9du) 

Resulting Capacity=233du 

Page 1017

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 10 

 

 
Illustrative Site Plan 

The CREEKSTONE Phase 1 Illustrative Site Plan is shown here. The Project is located 

at the gateway to the approved Mangini Ranch Phase 1 community in Folsom 

Ranch. Primary access to the site is located off East Bidwell Street and Mangini 

Parkway via tree-lined streets with sidewalks on both sides to facilitate walking to 

nearby schools, parks and commercial uses. On-street guest parking is provided 

within the Project and meets the city’s requirements for on-street guest parking. 

Also nearby are trail heads to the Plan Area public trail system. (Project area 

enlargement at right.) 

 

Illustrative Project imagery shown below. 

  

Page 1018

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 11 

 

Walkability Map 

Walking is the number one reported 

outdoor activity among Folsom’s 

residents, with biking reported as a 

close second-favorite activity. The 

FPASP will be home to a vast trail 

system, as shown in the adopted 

FPASP. The Project is located nearby 

two planned trail heads and 

provides easy and convenient 

sidewalk access to these trail heads. 

The Creekstone Phase 1 Walkability 

Map, shown here, illustrates the 

locations to the trail heads and the 

distances from the Project to various 

Plan amenities. (Project area 

enlargement shown below.) 

Page 1019

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 12 

 

Planned Development (PD) Permit – Residential Architecture 

The PD Permit seeks approval of the residential architecture, floorplans, elevations and street scene, colors & materials, and typical frontyard landscaping.  

CREEKSTONE elevation designs are Spanish Colonial, Italian Villa and Western Farmhouse, consistent with the fabric of existing historic Folsom community. Each plan offers each elevation style.  Combined with nine pre-plotted color schemes, there is limited duplication 

of same plan, elevation and color combination.  These styles each carry a strong character and together, create a neighborhood full of varying interests.  Roofs vary in forms, pitches, style and heights.  Two-story buildings include one-story massing.  Thoughtful breaks 

in massing are achieved to provide visual interest at elevations exposed to public view.  The front door, garage door and coach light selections vary per elevation and are architecturally compatible with the theme of each home.  Combined, all these design features, 

create visual interest and a pedestrian friendly streetscape.   

 

• Spanish Colonial - The simply articulated design combines light colored stucco wall finish, terra cotta colored villa roof tiles, with pops of color on the window shutters. Lines are clean, cantilevers are highlighted with curved corbels, and roof lines are traditionally 

low-pitched gables.  

• Western Farmhouse - This asymmetrical cottage design integrates a series of gable roofs in the massing and the introduction of siding and brick, for character and texture. The traditional steep-pitched roof, accentuated by the gable end board and batt finish, 

provides for variety in the eave lines within the streetscape. 

• Italian Villa - Strong punctuations of material and detail highlight the Italian Villa, the most formal of the three styles. Stone veneer-finished walls create a strong base, corner treatments frame the wall planes, and windows are centered and highlighted with a 

wide trim surround. The style calls for a hip roof design.  

 

  

SPANISH COLONIAL WESTERN FARMHOUSE ITALIAN VILLA 

Page 1020

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 13 

 

In response to the concerns shared by the City, TRI Pointe Homes has developed a new program for the Creekstone Lot 10 community that we believe resolves most, if not all, of the prior 

comments.  We seek to provide 71 detached small lot homesites at an attainable price to the highly desired Folsom market.  Extensive market research shows this density is under served in the 

Folsom market and there is a large population of homeowners seeking homes that are offered at an attainable price point and have the lifestyle of a single-family home.  The Creekstone 

series was designed specifically for first-time buyers consisting of renters looking to purchase, single professionals, and young couples possibly starting a family.  The homes in Creekstone provide 

two bay garages with parking for full size vehicles in the driveway, private entries and private yards.  The community is walkable with sidewalks on both sides of the street and trail heads within 

0.11 miles (less than 600 feet) and parks within 0.35 miles.  These distances are typical of Mangini Ranch as demonstrated in the Walkability Exhibit.   

 

Architecture 

Updated from the initial range of 2,017 to 2,455, we are now proposing three two-story plans ranging from 1,896 to 2,300 square feet.   These smaller plans occupy less of the proposed 45x65 

minimum lot size which meets the 50% or less lot coverage development standard.  In addition, these new designs provide more horizontal, vertical and single-story massing.   These revised 

designs now include outdoor covered areas that can be offered at homesites that have lot depths of seventy-one feet (71’), which is 48% of the lots in the community.  These new designs also 
now achieve a twelve and a half foot (12’-6”) front setback for all plans vs. the previously suggested ten feet (10’). 

 

With 1,896 square feet of living space, the first plan (top right) offers a sizable standard front porch.  The considerable amount of single-story massing combined with a six-foot-deep porch and 

12’-6” front setback makes this an inviting home that provides a favorable pedestrian experience. 

 

Offset massing is provided at the rear of the home with a horizontal plane break between the first-floor great room and kitchen as well as the second-floor master bath and master bedroom.  

At the rear of the home a covered patio option will be offered off the kitchen providing additional single-story massing, a variation in the rear street scene and a shaded area for homeowners 

to enjoy the outdoors. 

 

With 2,049 of living space, plan 2 (at left) was specifically designed for the corner lots and 

includes the widely desired bedroom downstairs. The corner entry, second floor set-back and 

wrapped architectural treatments soften the ends of the block and provide additional 

massing variation when plotted mid-block. The single-story massing runs along the entire length 

of the home making it visible from both front and rear.  At the house side of the home, this 

vertical plane break provides sixteen feet separation between the second floor of the 

neighboring home.  

 

Plan 3 (bottom right) provides 2,300 square feet of living space and includes the bedroom 

downstairs Folsom homebuyers often seek.  This home includes a variety of both horizontal and 

vertical wall breaks providing ample single-story massing at the front elevation.  At the rear a 

covered patio is offered providing additional single-story massing. This combined with the 

projection at the master bedroom provides additional variety to the rear street scene.   

 

  

The large porch at Creekstone Plan 1 is a welcoming addition to the 

street scene. 

Single story massing softens the street scene at street corners. 

Vertical and horizontal plane breaks at Plan 3 add variety to the street 

scene. 

Page 1021

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 14 

 

Although not required, all Creekstone plans will have window trim at all windows, even areas not visible from main 

roads.  Creekstone is adjacent to East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway so the homes will be highly visible to both 

Mangini Ranch residents and traffic circulating to other parts of Folsom and beyond.  Therefore, elevations adjacent 

to edge conditions will receive additional elevation design elements appropriate to the theme of the home.   

 

As demonstrated in the Building Articulation Exhibit (at right), ample single-story massing, vertical plane breaks and 

placing the living space forward of the garage are important elements in the neighborhood design.  Combined all 

these elements provide many points of interest to focus on and support a favorable pedestrian experience.   

 

Site Planning 

Given the amount of traffic 

expected along East 
Bidwell the site was 

designed to provide forty-

one feet between the 

existing road right-of-way 

and the rear of the homes.  

This includes a twenty-five-

foot landscape buffer and 

a sixteen-foot private rear 

yard.  In addition, a six-foot 

sound wall on top of a four-

foot berm will be provided.  

 

Addressing conditions that 

exist when homes have 

close adjacencies, the 

revised site plan incorporates opportunities that will have positive impacts to the homeowners and the community 

overall.  Plan 2 will be plotted on all corner lots providing a single-story element along the street edge in the 

community.  Air conditioning units for each home are planned to be placed on side yards toward the front of the 

home and behind a screen to shield from public view.  This thoughtful placement provides unobstructed 

use of the private rear yard as well as reducing noise at key gathering areas within the home.  In a review 

of adjacencies of key areas such as outdoor living and master bedrooms, privacy exists regardless of what 

plans are plotted adjacent to one another.  No plotting combination results in the master bedroom areas 

directly adjacent to one another and in the case of Plan 2 the master bedroom enjoys a sixteen-foot 

building separation from the neighbor.   

 

Though the smallest lot proposed is 45x65, only six (6) lots with only 65’ of depth are proposed, with the 

remaining 92% of lots having additional rear yard depth over the minimum of ten feet (10’).  In fact, 49% 

of the proposed lots have rear yards depths of sixteen feet (16’) and deeper which also favorably reduces 

lot coverage to 45% or lower.  Even with the addition of the outdoor patio option, coverage remains 48% 

or lower at these larger lots. 

 

Plan Area Coverage on Lot with 16’ Deep Rear Yard  

45 x 71, 3,195 sq. ft. lot  

Plan 1  1,358 43% 

Plan 1 with Outdoor Patio 1,428 45% 

Plan 2 1,456 46% 

Plan 2 with Outdoor Patio 1,516 47% 

Plan 3 1,457 46% 

Plan 3 with Outdoor Patio 1,556 48% 

 

  

Rear of homes along East Bidwell are additionally enhanced and set back substantially from the road. 

Page 1022

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 15 

 

Front Yard Landscape 

The front yard landscaping proposed for this community has been thoughtfully planned providing an aesthetically pleasing 

design that includes a mix of shrub accent planting and ornamental grasses combined with accent boulders for added 

vertical interest.  By omitting the turf, these designs are water efficient, low maintenance, and provide more flexibility 

relative to tree planting locations.   

 

Much effort was put into selecting the trees proposed for this community.  Working with the Folsom City Arborist, great care 

was taken in selecting trees with appropriate characteristics for the planting space provided.  The proposed trees are 

known to be successful in small planting areas, are considered non-invasive and utility friendly.  In addition, they provide a 

combination of canopy shapes, colors and heights ranging from 10’-50’. The designs provide a tree planting zone 

averaging 206 square feet offering ample space for the proposed minimum one tree per lot.  Additional planning is in place 
to mitigate concerns about long term tree success.  First, our target tree planting zone avoids garage sides of the lot entirely 

reducing utility conflicts considerably.  In addition, as we do with any installation, contractors will be directed to maintain 

minimum distances from water lines and hardscapes.    Should any minimum distance not be met, root barrier will be 

added.   

 

Creekstone is located at the intersection of East Bidwell and Mangini Parkway.  As a result, this community receives 

the added benefit of additional shade from the surrounding street landscape buffers.  In addition, the six corner 

lots within the community will include two additional trees along the side of the lot. 

 

 

Modification Request 

 

As part of our submittal we are requesting a few minor modifications to the MLD development standards.  

The primary factor driving our request for setback modifications is so that we can offer a downstairs bedroom 

in two of the three plans.  This feature has become a very desirable amenity offering a space for a home 

office, guest accommodations or a family member bedroom.  Field surveys in the Folsom market of active 

communities has shown this feature being one of the top requests from buyers. Thirty-seven feet is the ideal 

width to achieve a functional downstairs bedroom.  Placing the room forward of the garage creates a more 

desirable front elevation and pedestrian experience. Our minor modification requests associated with 

architecture include front, interior side and garage setback modifications. 
 

 

 

  

Category Approved MLD Proposed MLD Note 

Primary Structure 15’ 12’-6” Not applicable to Plan 1 whose 

primary structure setback is at 18’ 

Interior Side Yard 5’ 4’  

Garage Setback 20’ 18’  

Lot Area 3,000 Interior 

3,500 Corner 

2,925 Interior 

3,300 Corner 

58% of the lots are over 3,000sf. 

Tree success is augmented through no turf designs and by providing a tree planting zone averaging 206 square feet located away from the garage 

side where most of the home’s utility lines exist. 

Creekstone community includes large landscape buffers on two sides providing additional shade to the homes along Mangini 

Parkway and East Bidwell Street. 

East Bidwell Street 

M
an

g
in

i 
P

ar
k
w

ay
 

Page 1023

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10101010     CREEKSTONE Phase 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Lot 10) 

 

CREEKSTONE PHASE 1 (MR PH1.LOT 10) 16 

 

Conceptual Landscape Design 

 
A benefit to the proposed architecture is a compact landscape area, reducing overall water consumption and homeowner maintenance.  As demonstrated in the Conceptual Front Yard Landscaping exhibit shown here, the space available to landscape does not 

compromise aesthetics. Shrub and groundcover plantings will vary depending on the elevation theme adding more interest and diversity to the street scene. Street and accent trees will be placed thoughtfully adhering to the design guideline minimum planting 

distances and Folsom Master Tree List. 

 

The following pages illustrate the proposed Tentative Subdivision Map, Architecture and Landscape Architecture package.  

 

Page 1024

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Page 1025

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Page 1026

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Page 1027

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



First Floor
842 s.f.

45'-0"

4'-0" 37'-0" 4'-0"11
'-0

"
36

'-0
"

18
'-0

"

65
'-0

"

11
'-0

"
41

'-6
"

12
'-6

"

Garage
20'-0" x 20'-0"

meters

Tankless
W.h.

Entry

up

coats /
storage

Great Room
23'-6" x 14'-6"

media
wall

Kitchen

ac pad

Opt. Covered
Patio

12'-7" x 5'-7"

42" high hinged
A/C screen

Porch

Pdr.

pantry

6'
-0

"
6'

-1
"

4'
-0

"

17r

Second Floor
1054 s.f.

Master
Bedroom
15'-10" x 14'-6"

Bath
2

Bedroom 2
11'-0" x 11'-0"

opt.
Sink

Bedroom 3
11'-0" x 12'-3" 17r

Laund.

W.I.C.
22'-6" l.f.

Master
Bath

Linen
5 Shelves

3'-6"

5'
-0

"

dn

Low
Shelf & Pole

opt.
cab./

Opt. Sink

opt.
dr.

opt. Tech /
Low Linen

A1.1 PLAN 1 FLOOR PLAN
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Floor Plan
3 Bedrooms
2.5 Baths
1896 s.f.

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Lot Coverage Calculations
First Floor           842 Sq. Ft.
Garage            425 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  91 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1358 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage   47%

Page 1028

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



First Floor
842 s.f.

meters
Entry

up

ac pad

42" high hinged
A/C screen

Porch

Pdr.

17r

Second Floor
1068 s.f.

2 Linen
5 Shelves

opt. Tech /
Low Linen

Second Floor
1054 s.f.

Bath
2

Bedroom 3
11'-0" x 12'-3" 17r

Linen
5 Shelves

dn

opt. Tech /
Low Linen

First Floor
842 s.f.

meters
Entry

up

coats /
storage

ac pad

42" high hinged
A/C screen

Pdr.

17r

A1.1.1 PLAN 1 FLOOR PLAN ADDENDA
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Lot Coverage Calculations 1C
First Floor           842 Sq. Ft.
Garage            421 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  18 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1281 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage   44%

Lot Coverage Calculations 1B
First Floor           842 Sq. Ft.
Garage            421 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  91 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1354 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage   46%

Page 1029

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"

High Heel

FF

1'
-3

"

PL

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-6

"

High Heel

9'
-1

"

High Heel

FF

1'
-3

"

PL

ROOF PLAN 1A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12

4:124:12

RIDGE

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

VALLEYVALL
EY

VALL
EY

9'
-1

"

High Heel

FF

1'
-3

"

PL

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

 2
6'

-1
"

PL

FF

PL

FF

NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

1'
-6

"

High Heel

A1.2EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 1A
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 1A - Spanish Colonial

Right Elevation

SPANISH COLONIAL
Characterized by simply articulated
details and adaptability

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Villa Shaped Concrete Tile
     Gently Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Corbel Details
     Shutters
     Faux Clay Outlookers

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Right at Enhanced Lots Rear at Enhanced Lots
0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1030

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

27
'-1

1"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-6

"

High Heel

ROOF PLAN 1B
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

6:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:12

6:12

6:126:12

RIDGE

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

VALLEYVALL
EY

VALL
EY

NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

27
'-1

1"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-6

"

High Heel

A1.3EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 1B
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 1B - Western Farmhouse

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Right at Enhanced Lots Rear at Enhanced Lots

WESTERN FARMHOUSE
Characterized by an asymmetrical,
casual cottage look. It represents a
practical and picturesque country
home.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Flat Concrete Tile
     Steeper Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Board and Batt
     Brick Veneer

Shutters

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1031

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"

PL

FF

1'
-3

"
9'

-1
"

PL / FF

1'
-0

" High Heel

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

" 1
'-7

"

High Heel Typ.

High Heel

ROOF PLAN 1C
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12

4:12

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

VALLEY

HIP

HIP
4:12

RI
D

G
E

HIP

VALL
EY

HIPVALL
EY

HIP

HIP

HIP

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12
4:12

4:12

4:12

HIP

HIP
HIP

9'
-1

"

PL

FF

1'
-3

"
9'

-1
"

1'
-0

"

PL / FF

PL

High Heel

NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

" 1
'-7

"

High Heel Typ.

High Heel

A1.4EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 1C
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 1C - Italian Villa

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Right at Enhanced Lots Rear at Enhanced Lots

ITALIAN VILLA
      Characterized by a formal and elegant

facade.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Villa Shaped Concrete Tile
     Gently Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Corbels      
Stone Veneer

     Faux Clay Outlookers

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1032

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-6

"

High Heel

ROOF PLAN 1A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12

4:124:12

RIDGE

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

VALLEYVALL
EY

4:12

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

27
'-1

1"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-6

"

High Heel

ROOF PLAN 1B
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

6:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:12

6:12

6:126:12

RIDGE

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

VALLEYVALL
EY

VALL
EY

4:12

ROOF PLAN 1C
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12

4:12

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

VALLEY

HIP

HIP
4:12

RI
D

G
E

HIP

VALL
EY

HIPVALL
EY

HIP

HIP

HIP

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12
4:12

4:12

4:12

HIP

HIP
HIP

4:12

4:
12HIP

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

" 1
'-7

"

High Heel Typ.

High Heel

A1.5OPT .OUTDOOR ROOMS - PLAN 1
0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

                         Rear Elevation - 1A

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room
                         Right Elevation - 1A

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Rear Elevation - 1B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Right Elevation - 1B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Rear Elevation - 1C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Right Elevation - 1C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Page 1033

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Architecture + Planning 
The Leamington Building 
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400 
Oakland, CA 94612 
510.272.2910 
ktgy.com 

Front Elevation - 2A - Spanish Colonial 

lg) lg) 

Front Elevation - 2C - Italian Villa 

CREEKSTONE 
FOLSOM. CA # 2018--0956 

SCHEMATIC DESIGN 
FEBRUARY 24, 2020 

[c!EJ BEi EIB BEi -

DJ□□□□□□□
ITJ□□□□□□□
DJ□□□□□□ 

Front Elevation - 2B - Western Farmhouse 

0 2 4 8 

PLAN 2 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS A2.0 

Page 1034

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



45'-0"

4'-0" 37'-0" 4'-0"

10
'-0

"
37

'-0
"

18
'-0

"

65
'-0

"

10
'-0

"

Garage
20'-0" x 20'-0"

meters

Tankless
W.h.

Porch

Entry

Bedroom 4
11'-0" x 10'-9"

Bath
3

up

Great Room
27'-0" x 15'-7"

media
wallKitchen

walk-in
pantry

42" high hinged
A/C screen

setback at
corner

condition

ac pad

18" deep
opt. cabinets

storage

6'
-0

"
6'

-1
"

3'
-6

"

1'
-6

"

First Floor
965 s.f.

Opt.
Shower

Opt. Covered
Patio

12'-0" x 5'-0"

6'
-0

"

17r

Second Floor
1084 s.f.

dn

Master
Bedroom
16'-11" x 16'-0"

Bath
2

Bedroom 2
11'-0" x 11'-0"

linen

Laund. Bedroom 3 /
Opt. Loft
11'-0" x 11'-0"

Hall

opt.
cab.

5 shelves

opt.
Dbl Sinks

17r

Master
Bath

W.I.C.
23'-0" l.f.

5'
-0

"

3'-6"

Opt. Loft

dn

Bath
2

linen

Hall

5 shelves

opt.
Dbl Sinks

17r

Loft
11'-1" x 13'-3"

dn

Bedroom

5 shelves

17r

Master
Bath

W.I.C.
17'-0" l.f.

A2.1 PLAN 2 FLOOR PLAN
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Floor Plan
4 Bedrooms
Opt. Loft
3 Baths
2049 s.f.

Lot Coverage Calculations
First Floor           965 Sq. Ft.
Garage            419 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  72 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1456 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage  50%

OPT.  MASTER BATH

Page 1035

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



meters

Porch

Bedroom 4
11'-0" x 10'-9"

3
42" high hinged

A/C screen

setback at
corner

condition

First Floor
965 s.f.Second Floor

1084 s.f.

Bath
2

Bedroom 2
11'-0" x 11'-0"

11'-0" x 11'-0"

opt.
Dbl Sinks

Second Floor
1084 s.f.

Bath
2

Bedroom 2
11'-0" x 11'-0"

opt.
Dbl Sinks

Second Floor

meters

Porch

Bedroom 4
11'-0" x 10'-9"

A/C screen

setback at
corner

condition

First Floor
965 s.f.

A2.1.1 PLAN 2 FLOOR PLAN ADDENDA
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Lot Coverage Calculations 2C
First Floor          965 Sq. Ft.
Garage            419 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  27 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1411 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage  48%

Lot Coverage Calculations 2B
First Floor          965 Sq. Ft.
Garage            419 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  27 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1411 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage  48%

Page 1036

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-2

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

High Heel

FF

9'
-1

"
1'

-1
0"

PL

9'
-1

"
1'

-0
"High Heel

FF

PL

ROOF PLAN 2A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RIDGE

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12
VALLEYVALL

EY

R.

NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-2

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

A2.2EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 2A
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 2A - Spanish Colonial

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Right at Enhanced Lots Rear at Enhanced Lots

SPANISH COLONIAL
Characterized by simply articulated
details and adaptability

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Villa Shaped Concrete Tile
     Gently Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Corbel Details
     Shutters
     Faux Clay Outlookers

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1037

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
1'

-0
"

High Heel

FF

PL
High Heel

1'
-3

"

PL

9'
-1

"

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

27
'-7

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

9'
-1

"
1'

-0
"

High Heel

FF

PL

High Heel

1'
-3

"
9'

-1
"

PL

ROOF PLAN 2B
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :             12"

5:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

5:12

6:
12

4:
12

6:
12

5:12

RI
D

G
E

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

6:
12

6:
12

4:12

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

VALLEY

VALL
EY

9'
-1

"
1'

-0
"

High Heel

FF

PL

High Heel

1'
-3

"

PL

9'
-1

" NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

27
'-7

"

FF

PL

FF

A2.3EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 2B
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 2B - Western Farmhouse

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Right at Enhanced Lots Rear at Enhanced Lots

WESTERN FARMHOUSE
Characterized by an asymmetrical,
casual cottage look. It represents a
practical and picturesque country
home.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Flat Concrete Tile
     Steeper Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Board and Batt
     Brick Veneer

Shutters

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1038

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"

High Heel

FF

1'
-3

"

PL

9'
-1

"
1'

-0
" High Heel

PL

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-4

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

"High Heel

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

1'
-0

"

PL / FF

FF

PL

High Heel

1'
-3

"

PL

ROOF PLAN 2C
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

RI
D

G
E

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12

VALLEY

R.

HIP

HIPVALLEY

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

4:
12

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

V.

4:
12

4:12

4:12

RID.

4:12

9'
-1

"
1'

-0
"

High Heel

FF

PL

High Heel

1'
-3

"

PL

9'
-1

" NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-4

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

"High Heel

A2.4EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 2C
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 2C - Italian Villa

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Right at Enhanced Lots Rear at Enhanced Lots

ITALIAN VILLA
      Characterized by a formal and elegant

facade.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Villa Shaped Concrete Tile
     Gently Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Corbels      
Stone Veneer

     Faux Clay Outlookers

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1039

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-2

"

FF

FF

4:12

ROOF PLAN 2A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RIDGE

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12
VALLEYVALL

EY

R.

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

27
'-7

"

FF

PL

FF

4:12

ROOF PLAN 2B
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :             12"

5:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

5:12

6:
12

4:
12

6:
12

5:12

RI
D

G
E

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

6:
12

6:
12

4:12

RIDGE

RI
D

G
E

VALLEY

VALL
EY

4:12

ROOF PLAN 2C
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

RI
D

G
E

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:12

4:12

VALLEY

R.

HIP

HIPVALLEY

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

4:
12

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

V.

4:
12

4:12

4:12

RID.

4:129'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-4

"

FF

FF

1'
-0

"High Heel

PL

A2.5OPT .OUTDOOR ROOMS - PLAN 2
0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

                         Rear Elevation - 2A

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room
                         Left Elevation - 2A

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room
                         Right Elevation - 2A

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Left Elevation - 2B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Rear Elevation - 2B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Right Elevation - 2B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Rear Elevation - 2C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Right Elevation - 2C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Left Elevation - 2C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Page 1040

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



Architecture+ Planning 

The Leamington Building 

1814 Franklin St., Suite 400 

Oakland, CA 94612 

510.272.2910 

ktgy.com 

TRI 

Front Elevation - 3A - Spanish Colonial 

Front Elevation - 3C - Italian Villa 

Pointe 
H O M E S 

CREEKSTONE 
FOLSOM. CA # 2018-0956 

SCHEMATIC DESIGN 
FEBRUARY 24. 2020 

□□□□□□□
□□□□□□□ 
□□□□□□□

Front Elevation - 3B - Western Farmhouse 

0 

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

2 4 

PLAN 3 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 
8 A3.0 

Page 1041

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



First Floor
989 s.f.

45'-0"

4'-0" 37'-0" 4'-0"

10
'-0

"
37

'-0
"

18
'-0

"

65
'-0

"

10
'-0

"
42

'-6
"

12
'-6

"

Garage
20'-0" x 20'-0"

meters

Tankless
W.h.

Porch

Entry

Bedroom 4
10'-8" x 11'-0"

Bath
3

up

pantry Great Room
16'-0" x 22'-4"

Kitchen

ac pad
coats

1'
-0

"

Opt.
shower

Opt. Covered
Patio

16'-3" x 6'-0"6'
-0

"

6'-0" 7'-5"

Second Floor
1311 s.f.

Master
Bedroom
16'-0" x 17'-3"

Master
Bath

W.I.C.
30'-0" l.f.

opt.
dr.

Bedroom 2
11'-0" x 11'-0"

Bedroom 3
11'-0" x 11'-0"

Bath
2

opt. cab
& sink

Laund.
Loft

11'-2" x 12'-11"

dn

opt.
Sink

linen

5'
-1

0"

Master
Bedroom
16'-0" x 17'-3"

Master
Bath

W.I.C.
26'-0" l.f.

opt.
dr.

A3.1 PLAN 3 FLOOR PLAN
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Floor Plan
4 Bedrooms + Loft
3 Baths
2300 s.f.

Lot Coverage Calculations
First Floor          989 Sq. Ft.
Garage            420 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  48 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1457 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage  50%

OPT.  MASTER BATH

Page 1042

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



First Floor
989 s.f.

meters

Porch Bedroom 4
10'-8" x 11'-0"

ac pad
coats

Second Floor
1311 s.f.

Bedroom 2
11'-0" x 11'-0"

Bedroom 3
11'-0" x 11'-0"

Second Floor
1311 s.f.

Bedroom 2
11'-0" x 11'-0"

Bedroom 3
11'-0" x 11'-0"

First Floor
989 s.f.

meters

Porch Bedroom 4
10'-8" x 11'-0"

ac pad
coats

A3.1.2 PLAN 3 FLOOR PLAN ADDENDA
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Lot Coverage Calculations 3C
First Floor          989 Sq. Ft.
Garage            420 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  48 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1457 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage  50%

Lot Coverage Calculations 3B
First Floor          989 Sq. Ft.
Garage            420 Sq. Ft.
Porch                  48 Sq. Ft.
Total:               1457 Sq. Ft.
Total Building Coverage  50%

Page 1043

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
1'

-3
" High Heel

PL

FF

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

ROOF PLAN 3A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:12

4:12

4:12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

R.

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

VALLEY VALL
EY

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

A3.2EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 3A
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 3A - Spanish Colonial

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Rear at Enhanced Lots

SPANISH COLONIAL
Characterized by simply articulated
details and adaptability

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Villa Shaped Concrete Tile
     Gently Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Corbel Details
     Shutters
     Faux Clay Outlookers

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1044

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
1'

-0
" High Heel

PL

FF

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

28
'-4

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

ROOF PLAN 3A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

6:12

6:12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

6:
12

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

R.

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

VALLEY VALL
EY

4:12

6:12

NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

28
'-4

"

FF

PL

FF

A3.3EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 3B
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 3B - Western Farmhouse

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Rear at Enhanced Lots

WESTERN FARMHOUSE
Characterized by an asymmetrical,
casual cottage look. It represents a
practical and picturesque country
home.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Flat Concrete Tile
     Steeper Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Board and Batt
     

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1045

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
1'

-3
"

9'
-1

"
1'

-0
"

PL

PL / FF

PL

FF

High Heel

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

"High Heel

ROOF PLAN 3C
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:12

4:12

4:12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

VALLEY VALL
EY

4:12

VALL
EYHIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP
HIP

4:12

4:12

4:
12

R.

4:
12

8'
-0

"

HDR. HGT.

FF

NOTE: 4' BERM + 6' WALL AT LOTS
WHERE REAR ENHANCED
ELEVATIONS OCCUR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

"High Heel

A3.4EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - PLAN 3C
0 2 4 8

Scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

         Left ElevationRear Elevation

                         Front Elevations - 3C - Italian Villa

Right Elevation

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

Rear at Enhanced Lots

ITALIAN VILLA
      Characterized by a formal and elegant

facade.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Two Story Massing
     Stucco Exterior Finish
     Villa Shaped Concrete Tile
     Gently Pitched Roofs

ENHANCED DESIGN ELEMENTS

     Corbels      
Stone Veneer

     Faux Clay Outlookers

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Page 1046

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

25
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

4:12

ROOF PLAN 3A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:12

4:12

4:12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

R.

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

VALLEY VALL
EY

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

28
'-4

"

FF

PL

FF

4:12

ROOF PLAN 3A
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:12

4:12

4:12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

R.

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

VALLEY VALL
EY

4:12

ROOF PLAN 3C
OVERHANG : 12"
RAKE :               6"

4:12 U.N.OROOF PITCH :

4:12

4:12

4:12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

RI
D

G
E

RI
D

G
E

RIDGE

VALL
EY

VALLEY

VALLEY VALL
EY

4:12

VALL
EYHIP

HIP

HIP

HIP

HIP
HIP

4:12

4:12

4:
12

R.

4:
12

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

26
'-6

"

PL

FF

PL

FF

1'
-0

"High Heel

A3.5OPT .OUTDOOR ROOMS - PLAN 3
0 4 8 16

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

                         Rear Elevation - 3A

Architecture + Planning
The Leamington Building
1814 Franklin St., Suite 400
Oakland, CA  94612
510.272.2910
ktgy.com

#
CREEKSTONE
FOLSOM. CA 2018-0956

SCHEMATIC DESIGN
FEBRAURY 24, 2020

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room
                         Left Elevation - 3A

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room
                         Right Elevation - 3A

                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Left Elevation - 3B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Rear Elevation - 3B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Right Elevation - 3B
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Rear Elevation - 3C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Right Elevation - 3C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

                         Left Elevation - 3C
                         Opt. Covered Outdoor Room

Page 1047

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

01.10.2020

CREEKSTONE
Folsom, CA

Pl ANNING sUBmITTAl
Exterior Color/material Design

A T  D E s I G N  C o N s U l T I N G ,  I N C
2211 michelson Drive   suite 450    Irvine, CA  92612

P:  949.724.1619   WWW.ATDEs IGNCo NsUl TING.Com

Page 1048

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



2Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

All samples are approximate. All photo images only represent the 
general characteristics and colors of the materials, but may not 
satisfactorily represent the actual color/material or availability at 
the time of construction.  

In our continuing efforts to improve our communities, these 
��������are subject to change without notice. Some colors 
on this form may be shown with upgrades.

Page 1049

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



3Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

��������������������

These color / material ��������and creative design concepts are the 
intellectual property of AT Design Consulting, a California Corporation. 

This creative work is privileged, �������and exempt from disclosure under 
applicable law.  The use of these materials is restricted. 

These materials are intended for the use within this �����project only during the 
course of development and may not be used for any other reason without the 
expressed written authorization of AT Design Consulting, Inc.  

AT Design Consulting, Inc. is responsible for aesthetic choices.  All colors and 
materials listed are for color purposes only.  manufacturer for all products will be 
designated and appointed by Client.

All unauthorized use, dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of these 
materials is strictly prohibited.  Any unauthorized use, dissemination, distribution or 
reproductions will be prosecuted to the full extent of the law.

© AT Design Consulting, Inc.

Page 1050

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



4Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

REVISIONS      5

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR PAINTING   6

EXTERIOR COLOR + MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS 7
Elevation A, Spanish Colonial   7

 scheme 1     7
 scheme 2     8
 scheme 3     9
 scheme 4     10
  

Elevation B, Western Farmhouse   11
 scheme 5     11
 scheme 6     12
 scheme 7     13
 scheme 8     14
  

Elevation C, Italian Villa    15
 scheme 9     15
 scheme 10     16
 scheme 11     17
 scheme 12     18

TABl E of Co NTENTs

Page 1051

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



5Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

REVIs Io Ns

Page 1052

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



6Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

NON-DECORATIVE ITEMS

ROOFTOP METALS

All non-decorative items such as meter doors, non-decorative vents, etc. to be painted the same color as the 
����������� 

All rooftop metals to be painted to match the darkest color from the roof tile blend from the Color scheme 
�����������������

All paint to be sherwin Williams, unless otherwise stated differently.PAINT MANUFACTURER 

Typical, all paint colors should finish in inside corners. 

Fascia boards, overhangs, eaves, headers, etc. should be painted their �������designated colors with the 
color being applied on all sides of each item, including the undersides.

mIsCEll ANEo Us ITEms for PAINTING

PAINT APPLICATION

Page 1053

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



7Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 1:  Elevation A, spanish Colonial
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7551, Greek Villa

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Corbels, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 7054, suitable Brown

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7054, suitable Brown

Front Door sherwin Williams 7061, Night o wl

Shutters sherwin Williams 7054, suitable Brown

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - 3645, sunrise Blend

Page 1054

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



8Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 2:  Elevation A, spanish Colonial
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7569, s tucco

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Corbels, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 7047, Porpoise

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7047, Porpoise

Front Door sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Shutters sherwin Williams 7047, Porpoise

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - 3636, Piedmont Blend

Page 1055

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



9Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 3:  Elevation A, spanish Colonial
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 6133, muslin

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Corbels, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 7034, s tatus Bronze

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7034, s tatus Bronze

Front Door sherwin Williams 2811, Rookwood Blue Green

Shutters sherwin Williams 7034, s tatus Bronze

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - sCC8806, Tucson Blend

Page 1056

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



10Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 4:  Elevation A, spanish Colonial
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7527, Nantucket Dune

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Corbels, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 7060, Attitude Gray

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7060, Attitude Gray

Front Door sherwin Williams 7048, Urbane Bronze

Shutters sherwin Williams 7060, Attitude Gray

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - 3646, sunset Blend

Page 1057

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



11Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 5:  Elevation B, Western Farmhouse
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7011, Natural Choice

Board & Batten sherwin Williams 7061, Night o wl

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 7011, Natural Choice

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7011, Natural Choice

Front Door sherwin Williams 2814, Rookwood Antique Gold

Shutters sherwin Williams 7061, Night o wl

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (shake) ������� Ponderosa - 5690, Pewter Bronze Blend

M
A

SO
N

RY

Brick Boral Brick, Insignia series stags Creek Crest, Queen

Brick Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) soft White

Brick 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
������������������������

Brick Lay-Up: Brick to be laid in running bond.  Unless otherwise directed differently on 
architectural drawings.

Brick Joints: ����������������������������������������
minor obscuring of bricks edge detail.  Joints should be brushed and sponged to bring out 
the sand in the mortar.

Brick Face: Do  No T cover brick face with mortar.  Continually use clean water to brush or 
sponge the mortar.  Brick face should remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged.  

see sample image to left.

Page 1058

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



12Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 6:  Elevation B, Western Farmhouse
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7541, Grecian Ivory

Board & Batten sherwin Williams 2843, Roycroft Brass

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 7551, Greek Villa

Garage Door sherwin Williams 2843, Roycroft Brass

Front Door sherwin Williams 7710, Brandywine

Shutters sherwin Williams 2843, Roycroft Brass

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (shake) ������� Ponderosa - 5502, Arcadia Canyon Brown

M
A

SO
N

RY

Brick Eldorado stone Tundra Brick - l atigo

Brick Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) soft White

Brick 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
������������������������

Brick Lay-Up: Brick to be laid in running bond.  Unless otherwise directed differently on 
architectural drawings.

Brick Joints: ����������������������������������������
minor obscuring of bricks edge detail.  Joints should be brushed and sponged to bring out 
the sand in the mortar.

Brick Face: Do  No T cover brick face with mortar.  Continually use clean water to brush or 
sponge the mortar.  Brick face should remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged.  

see sample image to left.

Page 1059

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



13Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 7:  Elevation B, Western Farmhouse
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7542, Naturel

Board & Batten sherwin Williams 7053, Adaptive shade

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 6385, Dover White

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7053, Adaptive shade

Front Door sherwin Williams 7055, Enduring Bronze

Shutters sherwin Williams 7055, Enduring Bronze

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (shake) ������� Ponderosa - 5582, Fawn Gray Flashed

M
A

SO
N

RY

Brick Eldorado stone Tundra Brick - Chalk Dust

Brick Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) soft White

Brick 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
������������������������

Brick Lay-Up: Brick to be laid in running bond.  Unless otherwise directed differently on 
architectural drawings.

Brick Joints: ����������������������������������������
minor obscuring of bricks edge detail.  Joints should be brushed and sponged to bring out 
the sand in the mortar.

Brick Face: Do  No T cover brick face with mortar.  Continually use clean water to brush or 
sponge the mortar.  Brick face should remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged.  

see sample image to left.

Page 1060

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



14Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 8:  Elevation B, Western Farmhouse
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 9170, Acier

Board & Batten sherwin Williams 6070, Heron Plume

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, Window Trim, 
Garage man-Door, etc.) sherwin Williams 6070, Heron Plume

Garage Door sherwin Williams 6070, Heron Plume

Front Door sherwin Williams 0006, Toile Red

Shutters sherwin Williams 7069, Iron o re

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (shake) ������� Ponderosa - 5679, l ight Gray Range

M
A

SO
N

RY

Brick Eldorado stone Tundra Brick - Ashland

Brick Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) Chloe

Brick 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
������������������������

Brick Lay-Up: Brick to be laid in running bond.  Unless otherwise directed differently on 
architectural drawings.

Brick Joints: ����������������������������������������
minor obscuring of bricks edge detail.  Joints should be brushed and sponged to bring out 
the sand in the mortar.

Brick Face: Do  No T cover brick face with mortar.  Continually use clean water to brush or 
sponge the mortar.  Brick face should remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged.  

see sample image to left.

Page 1061

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



15Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 9:  Elevation C, Italian Villa
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7516, Kestrel White

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, etc.) sherwin Williams 6080, Utterly Beige

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7019, Gauntlet Gray

Front Door sherwin Williams 7020, Black Fox

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - 3605, san Benito Blend

M
A

SO
N

RY

Stone Boral s tone (Cultured stone) Cast-Fit - French Gray

Stone Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) smoke

Stone 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
an �����������������������

Stone Lay-Up:  s tones should be laid in a horizontal orientation.  s tone offset should be 
50%.  

Stone Joints:  Stone joints should be 1/4”. 

Stone Face:  s tone face must remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged. Use only 
clean water to sponge off the mortar from face of stone.  Do  No T cover stone face and 
edge with mortar. 

see sample l ay-Up image to left.

Page 1062

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



16Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 10:  Elevation C, Italian Villa
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 6157, Favorite Tan

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, etc.) sherwin Williams 7013, Ivory l ace

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7013, Ivory l ace

Front Door sherwin Williams 6201, Thunderous

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - 3645, sunrise Blend

M
A

SO
N

RY

Stone Eldorado stone l ongitude24 - snowdrift

Stone Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) soft White

Stone 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
an �����������������������

Stone Lay-Up:  s tones should be laid in a horizontal orientation.  s tone offset should be 
50%.  

Stone Joints:  Stone joints should be 1/4”. 

Stone Face:  s tone face must remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged. Use only 
clean water to sponge off the mortar from face of stone.  Do  No T cover stone face and 
edge with mortar. 

see sample l ay-Up image to left.

Page 1063

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



17Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 11:  Elevation C, Italian Villa
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 6101, sands of Time

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, etc.) sherwin Williams 7516, Kestrel White

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7516, Kestrel White

Front Door sherwin Williams 7041, Van Dyke Brown

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - 3646, sunset Blend

M
A

SO
N

RY

Stone Boral s tone (Cultured stone) Cast-Fit - Parchment

Stone Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) smoke

Stone 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
an �����������������������

Stone Lay-Up:  s tones should be laid in a horizontal orientation.  s tone offset should be 
50%.  

Stone Joints:  Stone joints should be 1/4”. 

Stone Face:  s tone face must remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged. Use only 
clean water to sponge off the mortar from face of stone.  Do  No T cover stone face and 
edge with mortar. 

see sample l ay-Up image to left.

Page 1064

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



18Planning Submital - 01.10.20

© Copyright - AT Design Consulting Inc.   www.atdesignconsulting.com

CREEKSTONE
Fol Som, CA Exterior Color/material Design

ExTEr Ior Color/ mATEr IAl SPECIFICATIon S 

Photo images seen on screen and/or printed material may not represent actual colors & textures accurately. 
r efer to actual materials for color & texture accuracy.

SCHEME 12:  Elevation C, Italian Villa
Item Manufacturer Color # & Name

Main Body  (s tucco) sherwin Williams 7539, Cork Wedge

Trim  (Wood Trim, Fascia Boards, etc.) sherwin Williams 7010, White Duck

Garage Door sherwin Williams 7053, Adaptive shade

Front Door sherwin Williams 9100, Umber Rust

Faux Clay Outlookers sherwin Williams 6061, Tanbark

Gutters & Downspouts sherwin Williams Paint to match adjacent surface

Windows White

Concrete Roof Tile  (“s”-Tile) ������� Capistrano - sCC8806, Tucson Blend

M
A

SO
N

RY

Stone Eldorado stone l ongitude24 - snowdrift

Stone Mortar o RCo  Blended Products (o BP) soft White

Stone 
Lay-Up

Bonding Surface:  All surfaces must be clean, free of any dirt and loose debris to create 
an �����������������������

Stone Lay-Up:  s tones should be laid in a horizontal orientation.  s tone offset should be 
50%.  

Stone Joints:  Stone joints should be 1/4”. 

Stone Face:  s tone face must remain clean, not mortar washed or sponged. Use only 
clean water to sponge off the mortar from face of stone.  Do  No T cover stone face and 
edge with mortar. 

see sample l ay-Up image to left.

Page 1065

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 1066

05/26/2020; Item No. 8.



I l; l,'r i l'\'[

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10456 - A Resolution
Adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operating and Capital Budgets for the City
of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, and the Folsom
Ranch Public Financing Authority

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On January 14, 2020, a preliminary budget discussion was held with the City Council, to
provide preliminary projections and to ask questions as to City Council priorities for Fiscal
Year 2020-21. On January 28,2020, a second preliminary budget discussion was held to
provide the City Council the Fiscal Year 2020-21 "As-is" budget comparison and provide
answers to questions asked on January 14,2020 . On February 25 , 2020 , aFY 2020-2 1 Outlook
and Budget Workshop was held to provide an economic outlook, major revenue, and major
expense by categories. Direction provided by the City Council at these three meetings
provided the framework for staff to begin the preparation of the FY 2020-21 Budget. The City
Manager's Fiscal Year 2020-21 Preliminary Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan
(CP) was presented to the City council on May 12, 2020, during which time staff reviewed
the different components of the proposed budget, highlighted the various projects proposed

and answered questions by Council Members.

1

MEETING DATE: s12612020

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10456 - A Resolution Adopting the City
Manager's Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operating and Capital Budgets
for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public
Financing Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Public Financino
Authority

FROM: Finance Department

Page 1067

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



POLICY / RULE

Folsom Municipal Code. Section 3.02.030" Budget
"An Annual Budget shall be prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance

Director. . . . (G) The City Council shall adopt the annual budget by Resolution by fund and

program by affirmative vote of at least three members, on or before the last working day of the

last month of the current fiscal year. If the City Council fails to adopt the budget by the last

working day of the current fiscal year, the budget as presented by the City Manager shall be

deemed adopted."

ANALYSIS

The FY 2020-2I Operating Budget as presented totaled 5213,133,664. Below is a breakdown

by Fund category:

Fund Gategory
General Fund
Enterprise Funds
Special Rer,enue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Project Funds
lnternal Service funds
Fiduciary Funds

Total

FY21 Proposed Amount
$89,538,474
$46,420,394
$12,044,170
$13,070,864
$10,938,101
$22,516,693
$18,604,968
$213,133,664

The FY 2020-2I Operating Budget and CIP also includes 452.5 full and permanent part time
positions across all funds. No new positions have been added in this budget.

Due to the COVID-19 emergency it is expected that staff will be returning to the City Council
during the fiscal year for possible additional budget appropriations as we ramp up temporally
cancelled programs as public health orders and general fund fevenues allow.

The proposed Operating and CIP Budgets are available on the City's web site, under the Office
of Management and Budget/Financial Reports/FY2}2} -2I Budget.

2Page 1068

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10456 - A Resolution adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Yeu 2020-
2l Operating and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the

Folsom Public Financing Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority
2. Summary of Revenues, pages Il-26throughll-32
3. Summary of Appropriations, pages II-34 through II-39
4. Staffing Detail, pages VII-18 through YII-26

Submitted,

Stacey Tamagni, Finance uilector

I

JPage 1069

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 1070

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10456

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY MANAGER'S FISCAL YEAR 2O2O-2I

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR THE CITY OF FOLSOM, THE
SUCCESSOR AGENCYO THE FOLSOM PUBLIC F'INANCING AUTHORITY, AND

THE FOLSOM RANCH PUBLIC F'INANCING AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, section 3.02.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code states ooAn Annual Budget
shall be prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance Director ...."; and

WHEREAS, on the I2thday of May 2020,the City Manager presented to the City Council
the FY 2020-21Preliminary Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Budget includes the budget recommendations of each office
and department of the City, including the FY 2020-2I Preliminary Budget for the Successor

Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority and the Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority
as well as the FY 2020-21 Capital lmprovement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is on
file and available for inspection on the City website; and

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the Preliminary Operating Budget, CIP, and all
components thereof on May 12,2020 andMay 26,2020,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the summary of revenues, summary of appropriations by funds and staffing levels as attached

to this resolution, are hereby appropriated to the departments' offices and operations in the
amounts and for the objects and purposes therein stated.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following roll-call vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10456
Page I of I

Page 1071

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 1072

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budga

*' 'r), 't
l,!rti.

, rt i :irrrrr

., t{

Creneral Fund $$ $

CommunityDevelopnrentBlockGant $

Transportation System Management

Folsom Arts & Culture Commission

Housing Trust

Humbug Willow Creek

Ceneral Plan

Tree Planting & Replacement

Community Affordable Housing

Park Dedication

Planning Services

lncal Transportation Tax

Historical District

Cas Tax- Road Maint & Repair

Gas Tax2106

Gas Tax2107

Cas Tax2107.5

Gas Tax2105

Measure A
Traffic Congestion Relief

losCenosL&L
BriggsRanchL&L
Natoma Station L& L
FolsomHeights L&L
Broadstone Unit 3 L& L
Broadstone L & L
Hannaford Cross L& L
lake Natoma Shores L & L
Cobble Hills/Reflections L & L
Siena Btates L& L
NatomaValleyL&L
Cobble Ridge L& L
Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L
Silverbrook L & L
Willow Cleek East L & L
Blue Ravine Oals L& L
Steeplechase L & L
Willow Creek South L & L
American River Canyon North L & L
WillowSprings L&L
Willow Springs CFD ll Mtn. Dist.

CFD#12Mtn. Dist.

CFD#13 ARCMtn. Dist.

ARCNorthL&LDist.#2
The Residences at ARC, North L & L
Folsom Plan Area-Sphere of Influence

Oala at Willow Springs

ARCNorth L&LDist. #3

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 L & L
Folsom Heights #2 L & L
Broadstone #4

CFD # 16 The Islands

Willow CYeek Estate East L & L Dst
Prospect fudge L& LDist
CFD#18 Maint Dist

CFD#19Maint Dst
Police Special Revenue

Zoo Special Revenue

$ $ $ 165,000

115,000

1,507,831

300,900

547,824

7ts263
4s8,868

2,693470

Maintenance

It-26

40,000

Page 1073

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Summary of Revenues by Fund

Charges

for Services

trInes &
Forfeitures

Interest

Rerenue

Transfers [.be of
Flud BalanceMsc In Totrl

General

$ 10,319,34s $ 196,500 $ 230.000 $ 566,144 $ 10,906,012 $ $ 89,538,474

$ 10319,345 $ 196,s00 $ 230.000 $ 566,144 $ 10,906,012 $ $ 89,538y'74

Ceneral Fund

Suhobl Gcneral trln&

$

50,000

87,790

80,000

125,000

150,000

50,000

200,000

500

18,000

150,000

20,000

8,000

2,000

150

10,000

15,000

8,000

4,000

8,500

2,100

2,000

1,500

12,000

2,200

800

8,000

24,000

1,800

3,500

1,500

4,000

450

r6,000

3,400

4,500

1,800

2,500

1,500

200

2,000

3,000

12,000

2,000

9.000

2,257 $
? 05?

18,300

41,956

(8,3 r8)

(21,466)

287,972

'12,360

128;783

(l 8,497)

53,000

(460)

387,t69

(e0,886)

95,979

(152,178)

85,434

(628,730)

8,188

32,443

48,37s

(2,887)

18,710

(r83,662)

22,804

20,356

10,063

12,902

(6,528)

I 1,145

105,419

19,919

(6,280)

(t2,4s4)

6,237

(1t,233)

30,367

3 1,430

16 l,8l I

2s9,946

48,99s

1,004

9,731

(4,000)

(450)

(36,234)

35,796

(t2,200)

Qt,043)
(6,388)

t3,284

14,1 l0

Q64,706)
(8 1,449)

(8,873)

66,246

1,698

168,457

30,457

20,000

1 0 1,956

79 472
53,034

430,972

372,360

I 98,763

1 89,503

1 70,000

s,190

I,905,000

225,014

6s 1,803

s67,085

552,802

2,064,7 40

52,588

113,643

220,375

19,613

41,010

206,338

42,404

42,556

I 13,013

22,252

62,972

26,145

300,4 I 9

22,019

s2,820

25,546

31J37
162,767

137,367

46,230

279,811

878,946

1 53,295

17,004

31,231

$$ $ $

1,500

1,200

1,500

200

10,000

$

Special Rewnuc trlmt
Community Development Block Crant

Transportation System Management

Folsom Arts & Culture Commission

Housing Trust

Humbug Willow Creek

Crneral Plan

Tree Planting & Replacement

Commu nity A ffordable Hous tng

Park Dedication

Planning Servtces

[ocal Transportation Tax

Hrstorical District

Cas Tax- Road Marnt & Repair

Cas Tax2l06

Cns Tax2l07

Cas Tax2l07.5

Cns Tax2l05

Measure A
Traffic Congestion Relief

tosCenosL&L
BriggsRanchL&L

Natoma Station L& L

FolsomHeights L& L

BroadstoneUnit3L&L
Broadstone L & L

Hannaford Cross L& L

lake Natonra Shores L & L
Cobble Hills/Reflections L& L

SienaBtatesL&L
NatomaValleyL&L
CobbleRidgeL&L

Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L
Silverbrook L & L

Willow Creek East L & L
Blue Ravine Oaks L & L

Steeplechase L & L
Willow Creek South L & L

American River Canyon North L & L
Willow Springs L& L

Willow Springs CFD I I Mtn. Dist.

CFD # t2 Mtn. Dist.

CFD # 13 ARC Mtn. Dist.

ARCNorth L&.LDist.#2
The Residences at ARC, North L & L

Folsom Plan Area-Sphere of Influence

Oaks at Willow Springs

ARCNorth L&LDist.#3
Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 L & L

Folsom Heights #2 L & L

Broadstone #4

CFD # 16 The Islands

Willow Creek Btate East L & L Dist

ProspectRidgeL&LDist
CFD # l8 Maint dist

CFD # l9 Maint dist

Police Special Revenue

Zoo Special Revenue

Wetland Open Space Maintenance

25,000

5,500

41,900

80,700

172,000

22,t00

20,500

390,000

19,000

20,'700

42,500

9,000

66,500

13,400

195,000

59,100

36,000

24,000

162,000

104,800

14,000

1 10,000

595,000

102,500

12,500

20,000

200,000

32,500

61,300

306,000

125,000

95,500

10,000

325,000

100,000

10,000

22,000 70,000

179,766

71,696

53,600

286,757

tzt,ltz
110,284

24310
62294
21,551

53,127

160,246

10,698

2,500

500

400

r,800

600

1,500

450

350

3,000

1,600

s 439tJ90 $ $ 391,500 s 71500 $

tr-27

s 643224 $ 12,044,170 Subtotrl Special Rerenue

Page 1074

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Cityof Folsom FY2020-21 Budget

CCF Debt Service

G0 School Facilities Bonds DS

Folsom South AD Refunding

1982-l Nimbus AD

Traffic Signal Refunding

Recreation Facility COP DS

Folsom Public Financing Authority

Folsom Ranch

Supplemental Park Fee

Park Lnprovement

Johnny Cash Trail Art

Zoo Capital Projects

Police Capital

&ntral Folsom Area Capital Projects

Fire Capital

Cieneral Capital

Transportation Lnprovement

Drainage Capital

Light Rail Transpotation

General Paft Equipnrnt Capital

Waterhpact

Library Development

Folsom Plan Arca Infrastructure

Folsom Plan Area Transit Capital

Folsom Plan Area Corp Yard Capital

FolsomPlan Area Hway 50 kp
Folsom Plan Area Hwy 50 Intch,

Folsom Plan Area Capital

Major Capital and Renovation

Praide Oak 1915 AD

CFD #10 Russell Ranch

cFD#14 il

Transit

Water

Water Capital

WaterMeters

Wastewater

Wastewater Capital

CriticalAugmentation

General Augnrntation

Solid Waste

Solid Waste Capital

Iandfill Closure

Solid Waste Plan Area

$ $ $ $ $ $

,r,lt!:t rt i i1 rl,!t{ii

II.28

404s,

Page 1075

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Summary of Revenues by Fund

Chrrges

for Senices

trlnes &

Forfeitures

Interest

Rertnue

Transfen

h
lle of

Msc F[nd Total

$ 13,070,703 $ $ 22,500 $ $ (22,339) $ 13,070,864

DehSenice trtmft

CCF Debt Seryice

G 0 School Facilities Bonds DS

Folsom South AD Refunding

1982-lNimbus AD

Traffic SignalRetunding

Recreation Facility COP DS

Folsom Public Frnancing Authotity

Folsorn Ranch Fnancing Authority

Suhohl lhhSenice trhn&

9,166,034

3,904,669

(3,500)3,500

9,000

10,000

4,000

2,0003,000

(e,000)

(e,839) 9,1 66,1 95

3,904,669

$

2,X8,800

270,052

506,100

80qr0s

2,843,060

498,330

248,000

45,080

204,480

660,745

417,665

640,t45

1,301,920

6,830,445

25,000

10,000

2,000

30,000

18,000

200,000

20,000

6,000

1,000

40,000

300,000

(4,000)

(1,779,336)

549,948

(1,73'

128,n4

(325,523)

t,436,648

536,035

(29,043)

74,057

I r7,006

670,74t

Q,0n)

040,14t
(r,201,920)

6,7e0,44t
48,000

(40,000)

584,464

5,000

34

830,000

265

664,214

501,582

4,719,708

1,054J65

224,957

120,137

361,486

34

Ca$bl Project trirnA

Supplemental Part Fee

Park Improvement

Johnny Cash Trail Art

Zoo Capital Projects

Police &pital

Cbntral Fols om Area Capital Prcjects

Firc Capital

c'eneral capital

Trans portation Inprovenrnt

Drarnage Capital

Light Rail Transportation

C,eneral Park fo uipment Cap ital

Water Inpact

Library Developnent

Folsom Plan Area Intastructure

Folsom Plan Area Transit Capital

FolsomPlan Area Corp Yard &pital

Folsom Plan Area Hwy 50 Imp

Folsom Plan Area Hwy 50 Intch

Folsom Plan Area Capital

Major Capital and Renovation

Prairie Oak l9l5 AD

CFD # l0 Russell Ranch

CFD#14 Paftway ll

Suhohl Crpihl Project ftnA

10,000

5,000

100,000

420,588

I 00,000

100,000

1,040,000

50,0002,000

10,000

40,000

(8,6e) 1,301

s 17,613927 $ $ 426,000 $ 2,000 $ 300,034 $ (7103,860) $ 10838,101

$ $ $

hterprise thn&
Transit

Water

Water Capital

Water Meten

Wastewater

Wastewater &pital

Critical Augnrcntation

Gneral Augmentation

Solid Waste

Solid Waste Capital

Iandfill Closure

Solid Waste Plan Area Capital

Suhobl hterprise tirn&

$ $

15,706,000

467,490

180,000

8, I 12,200

206,215

12J90,107

175,000

259,045

145,000

75,000

12,000

130,000

5,000

800

1,200

45,000

4,000

2,t36,106

2$,4n

139,529

3,3t4,74t

2U,734

(656)

3,770

440,918

2f,,465

(r60,54t

1 8,470,939

745,980

331,529

I 1,587,074

495,949

144

4,970

14,142,344

441,465

100,000

I 00,000

80,0m 253,833

30,r33

787,500 438,320

100,000

1,500

$ 37,496,057 $ $ 419,500 $ 1,017,500 $

tr-29

$ 6,624,552 $ 46,420J94

Page 1076

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Cityof Folsom FY2020-21 Budget

fruipment Replacement

RiskManagement

lpaves

AssessrBnt & CFD Agency Funds

Redevelopnent hop TaxTrust

Redevelopment SA Trust - Housing

FolsomPlan Area Plan Fee

3,759,514

II-30Page 1077

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Summary of Revenues by Fund

''t,r iilr '

i,:r''rttr tl irtirft i, ti,ri,

16,124,093

$ 15,444,906 $

45,000

65,000

110,000 $

70,000

3,000

r,000

2,014,674

3,69r,y26

2,059,614

19,882,019

14669,968

3B35,000

fruipment Replacement

Risk Management

lBaves

Assessrrcnt & CFD Agency Funds

Redevelopment Prop TaxTrust

Redevelopment SA Trust - Housing

FolsomPlan Area Plan Fee

$ $ 91,207 $ (e76,145) $

105,486

(3,000)

II-31Page 1078

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budget

II-32Page 1079

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 1080

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Cityof Folsom FY20l9-20 Budget

$

$$$

t'7

Cornrnunity Development Block Gant
Traffic System Management
FolsomArts & Culture Commission
Housing Trust
Humbug Willow Creek
General Plan
Tree Planting & Replacement
Cornrnunity A fficrdable Hous ing
Park Dedication
Planning Services
I-o cal Transportation Tax
Flistorical District
Cras Tax- Road Maint & Repair
Gas Tax2lo6
C:as Tax2lOT
Cns Tax2lO7.5
Gas Tax2lO5
Measure A
Traffrc Congestion Relief
I-os Ceros L& L
Briggs Ranch L& L
NatomaStationL&L
FolsomHeights L& L
BroadstoneUnit3L&L
Broadstone L & L
Hannaford Cross L& L
I-ake Natoma Shores L& L
Cobble Hills/Reflections L& L
Sierra Estates L& L
Natoma YaIley L&L
Cobble Ridge L& L
Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L
Silverbrook L & L
Willow Creek East L & L
Blue Ravine Oaks L& L
Steeplechase L & L
Willow Creek South L& L
American River Canyon North L & L
Willow Springs L& L
Willow Springs CFD 11 Mtn. Dist.
CFD#12 Mtn. Dist.
CFD # 13 ARC Mtn. Dist.
ARCNorth L&LDilst.#2
The Residences at ARC, North L & L
Fols om Plan Area-Sphere of Lrfluence
Oaks at Willow Springs
ARCNorth L& LDist. #3
Blue Ravine Oaks L& LDist.#2
Folsom Heights L & LDist. #2
Broadstone #4
CFD #16 The Islands
Willow Creek Estates East L & L Dist
ProspectRidgeL&LDist
CFD # 18 Maint Dist
CFD # 19 Maint Dist
Police SpecialRevenue
Zoo Specialrevenue

$ 16s,OOO

30,ooo
20,ooo

100,ooo

so,ooo
260,OOO
260,OOO

so,o00
l80,ooo
lo,ooo
s,ooo

100,ooo

46,724
97,2@

183,100
18,900
39,714

139,55s
37,725
38,993

101,913
20,8so
s4,437
2/1.,526

234,O22
20,454
50,809
2A,375
26,9t2

tst,462
131,900
45,424

262,934
801,957
129,7v2

16,574
26,659

t59,442
66,805
47,4a6

275,776
to5,4o5
93,400
14,927
6t,174
21,o50
so,o00

t60,ooo

Creneral Fund

W'etland

II.34Page 1081

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Summary of Appropriations by Fund

Caprtal Transfers
Deh Service Total

$ 89,538,474$ 904,881 $

$ 3530.OOO $ 3.4a7.7s4 $ 12,044,17{)

General Fbnds
C'eneral Fund

Subotsl General F\rnds

S pecial Rer'enue F\rnds
Comn'runity Development Blo ck C:rant

Traffic System Management
FolsomAfts & Culture Commission

Housing Trust
Humbug Willow Creek

General Plan
Tree Planting & Replacement

Commun ity A fFordab le Hous in g
Park Dedication

Planning Serwices
I-,ocal Tran s po rtation Tax

Historical District
Cas Tax- Road Maint & Repair

Gas Tax2lO6
Gas Tax21O7

Cas Tax27O7.5
Cas Tax21O5

Measure A
Traffic Congestion Relief

Los Cenos L& L
BriggsRanchL&L

Natoma Station L& L
FolsomHeights L& L

Broadstone Unit 3 L& L
Broadstone L & L

Hannaford Cross L& L
Lake Natoma Shores L & L

Cobble Hills/Reflections L& L
SienaEstatesL&L

NatomaValleyL&L
CobbleRidgeL&L

Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L
Silverbrook L & L

Willow Creek East L & L
Blue Ravine Oaks L & L

Steeplechase L & L
Willow Creek South L& L

American River Canyon North L & L
Willow Springs L& L

Willow Springs CFD l l Mtn. Dist.
CFD#72 Mtn. Dist.

CFD #13 ARC Mtn. Dist.
ARCNorth L&LDist.#2

The Residences at ARC, North L & L
Fols om Plan Area-Sphere of Influence

Oaks at Willow Springs
ARCNofthL&LDist.#3

Blue Ravine Oaks L & LDist. #2
FolsomHeights L &.LDist. #2

Broadstone #4
CFD #16 The Islands

Willow Creek Estates East L & L Dist
ProspectRidgeL&LDist

CFD # 18 Maint Dist
CFD # 19 Maint Dist

Police Special Revenue
Zoo SpecialRevenue

'Wetland Open Space Maintenance

$

$ 904,881 $ 2 $ $ 89.538.474

$$

1,905,OOO

loo,ooo
t,525,OOO

225,O74
651,803
s67,Oas
352,402
539,740

1,956
79,472

3,O34
170,972
772,360
144,743

9,503
l60,ooo

190

5,860
16,443
37,275

713
7,292

66,743
4,679
3,563

1 1,100
7,402
8,535
1,619

66,397
1,561
2,O71
I,t7t
4,425

I1,305
5,467

ao2
76,477
76,949
23,sO3

426
4,572

20,2A4
4,497
6,714

10,981
75,707
16,884
5,383
1,720

501
3,727

246
698

t6a,4s7
3O,457
2O,OOO

1O1,956
79,472
53,O34

43O,972
372.360
t9a,7a3
189,503
170,OOO

s,19O
1,9O5,OOO

225,O14
651,803
s67,Oa5
ss2,ao2

2,064,740

52,588
113,643
22O375

19,613
41,O 10

2O6'334
42,4O4
42,556

113,O13
)t alt

62,972
26,145

3OO,419
22,O19
s2,a2o
25,546
31,737

162,767
137 '367

46,23O
279,att
474,946
rs329s
t7,oo4
31,231

t79,766
71,696
53,6OO

286,757
l2l,l12
tto2a4
24,31O
62,294
2t,ssl
s3,t27

r60246
10,698

3,457
457

$$

$

II-35

Subtotal Special Rerenue

Page 1082

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2019-20 Budget

CCF Debt Service
G O School Facilities Bonds DS

Folsom South AD Refunding
1982-l Nimbus AD
Traffic Signal Retunding
Recreation Facility COP DS

Fols om Public Financing Authority
FolsomRanch

Supplemental Park Fee

Park Improvement
Johnny Cash Trail Att
Zoo CapitalProjects
Police Capital
Central Fo ls om Area Cap ital Projects
Fire Capital
Cieneral Capital
Transportation Improvement
Drainage Capital
Light Rail Trans portation
General Park Equipment C-apital

Water Irpact
Library Development
Fols om Plan Area Infras tructure
FolsomPlan Area Transit Capital
FolsomPlan Area Corp Yard Capital
FolsomPlan Area Hwy 50 Improvement
Folsom Plan Area Hwy 50 Interchange
Fols om Plan Area C-ap ital
Major Capital and Renovation
Prairie Oak 1915 AD
CFD #10 Russell Ranch
CFD#I4

Transit
Water
Water Capital
Water Meters
Wastewater
Wastewater C-apital

Critical Augmentation
General Augmentation
Solid Waste
Solid Waste C-apital

Landfill Closure
Solid Waste Plan Area

34,000

3,L59,943

l,60l,l14

3,281,185

2,601

2,296,088

1,238,988

126,335

5,000

830,000

150,000

50,000

50,000

120,000

155,000

100,000

50,000
100,000

100,000

50,000

50,000

5,950,568

50,000

325,000

t,983,322
20,000

5,277,692

85,000
100,000

215,000

215,000

II.36

2,609,912 1,500,000

Page 1083

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Summary of Appropriations by Fund

Deh Se

Caftal Transfers
Out Total

$ $ $

$ 12.979.496 $ $ 91,368 $ 13,070,864

Deh Service Fhnds
CCF Debt Service

GO School Facilities Bonds DS

Folsom South AD Refunding
1982-l Nimbus AD

Traffic Signal Refunding
Recreation Facility COP DS

Fols om Public Financing Authority
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Subtotal Deh Senice Funds

CFD#14 Parkway II
Suhotal Caftal Project Fhnds

Enterprise Fhn&
Transit
Water

Water Capital
Water Meters

Wastewater
Wastewater Capital

Critical Augmentation
Crneral Augmentation

Solid Waste
Solid Waste Capital

Landfill Closure
Solid Waste Plan Area Capital

Suhotal Enterprise Fhnds

$

9,074,827

3,904,669

91,368 90166,195
3,904,669

$ $$$

34

Caftal Project trhn&
Supplemental Park Fee

Park Inprovenrent
Johnny Cash Trail Art

Zoo CapitalProjects

Police Capital
Central Folsom Area Capital Projects

Fire Capital
Creneral Capital

Tran sp ortation Improvernent
Drainage Capital

Light Rail Trans portation
Cpneral Park Equipment Capital

Water Impact
Library Development

Folsom Plan Area Infiastructure
FolsomPlan Area Transit Capital

Folsom Plan Area Corp Yard Capital
rolsomPlan Area Hway 50 Improvement

Folsom Plan Area Hwy 50 Interchange
Folsom Plan Area Capital

Major Capital and Renovation
Prairie Oak 1915 AD

CFD # l0 Russell Ranch

370,000

r00,000

532,500

4,160,000

700,000

75,000

990,000

321,528

265

131,714

351,582

619,708

304,36s

99,957

137

206,486

1,301

584,464
5,000

34

830,000
26s

664,214
501,582

407790708

1,054,365
224,957
120,137
361,4_86

100,000
420,588
100,000
100,000

1,040,000
50,000

1J01

s88

$$

$ 370,000 $ 6,557,500 $ 2,037,665 $ 10,938,101

$ $

1,891,604 18,470,939
745,980
331,529

11,587,074
495,949

144
4,970

14,142344
441,465
100,000
100,000

$ 1,891,604 $ ll,ll7 959 $ 3,403,019 $ 46,420394

4,088,505

686,011

5,868,443

475,000

870,231

9,969

6,529

680,207

949
144

4,970

1,473,555

356,465

tr-37Page 1084

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City ofFolsom FY 2019-20 Budget

Capital Replacement
Risk Management

ensated kaves

Assessment & CFD Agency Funds
Redevelopment Prop Tax Trus t
Redevelopment SA Trust - Housing
FolsomPlan Area Plan Fee

$$$$

$$$$

t57,3tO 10,714,372 9,303,337

985,750
200,000

:lt]iif,:i]ti ri r:'t 1t.

II.38Page 1085

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Summary of Appropriations hy Fund

$ 13,351,139
3,735,000

2,059,674

707,000

2,0591674
19,882,019

t4,669,968
3,935,000

333,079 $

Capital Replacement
RiskManagement

ensated kaves

Assessment & CFD Agency Funds
Redevelopment Prop Tax Trust

Redevelopment SA Trust - Housing
FolsomPlan Area ecific Plan Fee

II.39Page 1086

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 1087

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Staffing Detail
Below is a comparison of full time (FT) and permanent part time (PPT) positions for the FY 2017 through

FY 2020 Budgets and the proposed FY 2020-21 Budget. All positions are listed as full-time equivalent

except for City Council which is listed as number of members.

FY 17

Approved

FY 18

Approved

FY 19

Approved

FY20
Approved

FY21
Proposed

City Council
Mayor
Council Member

r.00
4.00

1.00

4.00
1.00

4.00
1.00

4.00
r.00
4.00

Total City Council s.00 5.00 s.00 s.00 s.00

City Manager's Office
Administration

City Manager
Assistant City Manager
Administrative Support Specialist

Public Information
Pub li c Information Offi cer
Marketing & Graphics Coordinator
Media Specialist

Animal Care Services
Animal Control Offrcer

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.s0
1.00

1.00

0.s0
1.00

1.00

0.50

1.00

0.s0
1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

Total Citv l\tlanaser 5.50 5.50 5.00 4.50 4.s0

City Attorney
City Attorney
Deputy/As st City Attorney
kgal Analyst
Legal Secretary

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

r.00
r.00
l 00
1.00

Total Citv Attorney 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00

City Clerk
City Clerk
DepW City Clerk
Assistant City Clerk
City Clerk Technician II
City Clerk Technician I

1.00 1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

Total City Clerk 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Community Development
Administration

Community Devel opment Director
Admini strative Ass i stant

Office Assistant
Senior Ofiice Assistant

0.40
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

l.00

1.00 1.00

VII-18Page 1088

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budget Staffing Detail

FY 17

Approved

FY 18

Approved
FY 19

Annroved
FY20

Approved
FY2I

Proposed

Community Development (cont.)
Building

Building Inspector I/II
Building Plans Coordinator
Building Technician I/II
Chief Bui I ding Official
Plan Check Engineer
Senior Building Inspector
Principal Civil Engineer

Code Enforcement
Code Enforcement Officer I/II
Code Enforcement Supervisor

Bngineering
Arborist
Construction Inspector I/II
Engineering Technician I/II
City Engineer
Senior Civil Engineer

Planning
Building Inspector II
Building Tradesworker I/II
Planner I (Asst)/Planner II (Associate)
Planning Manager
Principal Planner
Senior Planner

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

i.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

3.00
1.00

r.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

2.OO

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

r.00
l 00
2.OO

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.OO

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

Total Community DeveloDment 22.40 24.OO 26.00 26.00 26.00
Fire Department

Administration
Fire Chief
Fire Division Chief
Accounting Technician I/II
Administrative Technician
Admini strative Assistant
Office Assistant
Senior Equipment Mechanic
Senior Office Assistant

Emergency Operations
Fire Division Chief
Fire Battalion Chief
Fire Captain- Suppression
Fire Engineer
Firefiehter

12.00
t2.oo
36.00

3.00
1.00

t2.00
12.00
42.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00

l.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

4.00 4.00 2.00
1.00

15.00
15.00
36.00

2.00
1.00

15.00
15.00
36.00

12.00
72.00
33.00

VII-19Page 1089

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budget Staffing Detuil

FY 17

Approved
FY18

Approved
FY 19

Approved
F'Y20 F'Y21

Proposed

Fire Department (cont.)
Fire Prevention

Deputy Fire Marshall
Fire Prevention Officer
Fire Protection Engineer

2.00
1.00

2.00
l.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00
2.OO

Total Fire 69.00 71.00 77.00 77.00 77.00

Human Resources
Human Resources Director
Administrative Assistant
Human Resources Technician VII
Senior Management Analyst

0.s0
1.00

2.OO

2.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

0.50

1.00

2.00
2.00

0.50
1.00

2.00
2.00

0.25

1.00

2.00
2.OO

Total Human Resources 5.00 5.50 5.50 s.25 s.50

Library
Library Director
Administrative Assistant
Librarian
Library Assistant
Library Assistant - PPT

Library Circulation Coordinator
Library Technician
Marketing & Graphics Coord
Senior Librarian
Senior Office Assistant

1.00
1.00

r.00
1.00

2.00
4.00

1.00
3.00

0.s0
1.00
2.OO

1.00

3.00
0.50
1.00
2.00

r.00 1.00 1.00

1.00

2.00
4.00

1.00

1.00
2.00
4.00

1.00
2.00
0.75
1.00

1.00

2.00
0.75
1.00

1.00

2.00
0.75
1.001.00

1.00

Total Librarv 10.50 10.50 12.75 12.75 12.75

1.00

4.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

0.25
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Office of Management and Budget
Administration

Chief Financial Offi cerlFinance Director
Finance Director
Admini strative As s i stant

Finance Technician
Disbursements

Disbursements Specialist
Payroll Specialist
Di sbursements Technici an

Payroll Technician
Revenue

Revenue Technician I/II
Revenue/Di sbursements Manager
Senior Revenue Technician

1.00 0.s0 0.50

1.00

l 00

1.00

1.00

1.00

4.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

4.00
l.00
1.00

1.00

2.OO

1.00

4.00
1.00

1.00

4.00
l.00
1.00

VII-20Page 1090

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budget Staffing Detail

FY 17

Approved
FY 18

Approved
FY 19

Approved
FY20

Approved
FY21

Proposed

Office of Management and Budget (cont.)
Financial Services

Accounting Technician II
Financial Specialist
Financial Analyst I/II
Senior Financial Analyst
Deputy Treasurer
Financial Services Manager

Information Systems
lnformati on Systems Manager
Informati on Systems Analyst
Information Systems Technician VII
GIS Analyst
Process Improvement Speci ali st

1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

r.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

3.00

3.00 3.00
1.00

3.00
1.00
1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Total Office of l\tlanaqement and Budget 21.00 2t.so 23.s0 24.25 24.00

Parks & Recreation
Administration

Parks & Recreation Director
Administrative Assistant
Marketing & Graphics Coordinator
Management Analyst
Senior Management Analyst
Senior Office Assistant

Park Maintenance
Maintenance Specialist
Maintenance Worker VII
Parks/FaciIities Maintenance Manager
Parks Supervisor
Senior Maintenance Worker

Park Development
Senior Park Planner

Park Planner
Trails

Senior Trails Planner
7-no

Zookeeper I I lI
Lead Zookeeper
Recreation Coordinator I
Recreation Coordinator II
Zoo Supervisor

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

0.50
2.50

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
2.OO

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00 l 00 1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

5.00
1.00
1.00

5.00
1.00
1.00

s.00
1.00

1.00

5.00
1.00

1.00

5.00
1.00

1.00

1.001.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

vrt-21Page 1091

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budget Stafftng Detuil

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 FY2O FY2I

Parks & Recreation (cont.)
Aquatics

Recreation Coordinator I
Recreation Coordinator II
Recreation Manager

Recreation Supervisor
Senior Maintenance Worker
Senior Recreation Coordinator

Community & Cultural Services /
Community Facilities

Community & Cultural Services Manager

Recreation Coordinator I
Recreation Coordinator II
Recreation Supervisor
Senior Recreation Coordinator

Recreation / Sports Complex
Recreation Coordinator I
Recreation Coordinator II
Recreation Manager
Recreation Supervisor
Senior Recreation Coordinator

Facility Services
Facil ities Maintenance Supervi sor
Senior Building Tradesworker
Building Tradesworker I/II

Municipal Landscaping
Lighting & Landscape District Manager
Construction Inspector I
Maintenance Specialist
Mai ntenance Superv i sor
Senior Maintenance Worker
Maintenance Worker VII

0.25
0.50
0.50
0.75

0.s0
0.75

0.50
1.00

0.50
1.00

1.00

0.50
1.00

0.s0
1.00

1.00

0.50
r.00

1.00

0.50

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00
0.50
1.50

1.00
2.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

l 00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

2.25 l 50

l 00

0.50
1.00

1.00

l 50
l 00

0.s0
1.00
1.00

1.50

1.00

1.00

1.50

0.50
0.75
1.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

r.00

1.00

2.50
l 00

3.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00 I .00 1.00 1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00
0.50 l.00

1.00

1.00

l.00
1.00

1.001.50

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

Total Parks & Recreation 46.00 46.00 48.00 48.00 48.00

Police Depaftment
Administration

Police Chief
Police Commander
Administrative Assistant
Police Sergeant
Police Officer

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

r.00

vtt-22Page 1092

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Falsom FY 2020-21 Budget Staffing Detail

FY 17
Approved

FY 18
Approved

FY 19

Approved
FY20

Approved
FY21

Proposed

Police Department (cont.)
Support Services

Police Comnrander
Police Lieutenant
Police Support Services Manager
Communications Supervisor
Dispatcher VII
Admini strative Technician
Senior Records Clerk
Police Records Clerk
Police Records Clerk - PPT
Police Records Supervisor
Police Technical Services Manager
Police Volunteer Coordinator

Operations
Police Commander
Community Service Offi cer
Police Lieutenant
Police Sergeant
Police Corporal
Police Officer
Police Volunteer Coordinator

Investigations
Police Lieutenant
Police Sergeant
Police Ofiicer
Property and Evidence Technician
Community Service Offi cer
Crime & Intelligence Analyst

Animal Care Serryices
Animal Control Officer

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

2.OO

14.00
1.00

3.00
0.50
1.00
1.00
1.00

3.00
0.50
1.00
1.00

1.00

2.OO

t2.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
2.00
8.00
5.00

43.OO

1.00
1.00

3.00
9.00
4.00

41 .00

1.00

2.00
10.00

2.OO

1.00
3.00

13.00
1.00

1.00
2.OO

0.s0
1.00

1.00
1.00
3.00
9.00
5.00

43.00
1.00

1.00
2.00

10.00
2.00

1.00

3.00
13.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
0.s0
r.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
9.00
5.00

43.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
10.00
2.00

1.00

3.00
13.00
i.00
l.00
2.00
0.50
1.00

1.00

l 00
3.00
9.00
5.00

43.00
1.00

1.00
2.00

10.00
2.OO

1.00
2.00

10.00

2.OO

1.001.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00

Total Police Deoartment 101.50 103.50 107.50 107.s0 107.50
Public Works Department

Administration / Enginee ring
Public Works Director
Admini strative Assistant
Associate Civil Engineer
Construction Inspector VII
Engineering Technician I/II
Environmental Specialist
Management Analyst
PWUti lities Section Manager
Office Assistant
Senior Civil Engineer
Senior Management Analyst
Senior Office Assistant

1.00
1.00

0.40
1.00

1.00

0.80
1.00

1.00

r.00
i.00

0.80
1.00

0.80
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.80
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
o.75

1.00

3.00
0.75
1.00

1.00
1.00
1.00
2.OO

2.OO

0.50
1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
0.50

vrt-23Page 1093

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budget Staffing Detail

FY 17

Approved
FY 18

Approved
FY 19

Approved
FY20

Approved
FY21

Proposed

Public Works Department (cont.)
Fleet Maintenance

PW / Utilities Section Manager
Fleet / Solid Waste Manager
Administrative Assistant
Inventory Clerk
Lead Senior Mechanic
Mechanic II
Maintenance Worker I/II
Senior Equipment Mechanic

Streets
Maintenance Specialist
Maintenance Worker VII
Senior Maintenance Worker
Streets Operations Manager
Streets Operations Supervisor

Traffic Maintenance
Associate Civil Engineer
Maintenance Specialist
Senior Maintenance Worker
Senior Traffic Conkol & Lighting Technician
Traffic Control & Lighting Supervisor
Traffic Control & Liglrting Technician I/II

Transit
PW / Utilities Section Manager
Administrative Assistant
Senior Management Analyst
Transit Chief
Transit Bus Driver
Transit Bus Driver - PPT (@,80%)
Transit Coordinator
Transit Scheduler
Transit Trainer

0.10
1.00
1.00
4.00
0.10
1.00

0.35
0.20
0.10
1.00

1.00

4.00
0.10
1.00

0.35
0.20
0.l0
r.00
1.00

4.00
0.10
1.00

0.10

1.00

4.00

0.30 0.30
0.20
0.10
1.00

1.00

4.00
0.10
1.00

0.10
0.40
0.2s
1.00

4.00
6.40
1.00

1.00
1.00

2.00
5.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
4.10
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

l.00
1.00

3.00

2.00
5.l0
1.00

0.10
0.40

3.00
4.10
1.00

3.00
4.10
1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

3.00 3.00 4.00

2.OO

1.00
1.00
1.00
3.00

r.00
2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

l 00
0.40

8.80
1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00 1.00
2.00
8.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

Total Public Works Department 47.70 48.40 49.25 34.40 34.40
Environmental and Water Resources

Wate r Resources Administration
Director
Administrative Assistant
Associate Civil Engineer
Engineering Technician I/II
Marketing & Graphics Coord
PW / Utilities Section Manager
SCADA Programmer
Senior Civil Engineer
Senior Office Assistant

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.25
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

r.00
0.25
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.2s
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.50
1.00

1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
0.50
l.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

vtt-24Page 1094

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



City of Folsom FY 2020-21 Budget Staffing Detail

FY 17

Approved
FY 18

Approved
FY 19

Approved
FY20

Approved
FY21

Proposed

Environmental and Water Resources (cont.)
Wastewater

Senior Wastewater Collection Technician
Utilities Technician
Wastewater Col lection Supervisor
Wastewater Collection Tech I/II

Water Conservation
Water Management Coordinator
Water Management Special ist

Water Utility Maintenance
Senior Water Utility Worker
Uti lity Maintenance Supervisor
Water Utility Worker I/II

Water Treatment Plant
Lead Plant Mechanic
Plant Mechanic
Senior Office Assistant
Water Treatment Plant Chief Operator
Water Treatment Plant Operator III
Water Treatment Plant Operator I / II
Water Treafinent Plant Supervisor

Water Quality
Water Distribution Chief Operator
Water Distribution Operator I/II
Water Quality Technician
Water Distribution Supervisor

Water Metering Progmm
Utility Maintenance Supervisor
Senior Water Utility Worker
Senior Water Meter Worker
Water UtiliW Worker I/II

2.00
1.00

1.00

10.00

2.00
1.00
1.00

10.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

10.00

1.00

1 1.00

1.00

I 1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00
5.00

1.00
1.00
5.00

1.00

1.00

5.00

1.00

1.00

5.00

1.00

1.00

5.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00
2.00

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

3.00
1.00

1,00

1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
l 00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00
3.00
1.00

l 00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

2.OO 2.00

1.00

2.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00
3.00
1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
i.00
1.00

1.001.00 1.00 1.00

l 00
1.00

3.00
r.00
3.004.00 4.00 3.00

Total Environmental and Water Resources 52.50 52.50 53.25 53.25 53.25

VII-25Page 1095

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.



Cityof Folsom FY2020-21 Budget Staffing Detail

Solid Waste Department
Solid Waste Collections

Public Works Director
PW / Utilities Section Manager
Solid Waste / Fleet Manager
Solid Waste Supervisor
Admini strative Assi stant
Account Technician
Managenrcnt Analyst
Senior Management Analyst
Maintenance Worker VII
Mechanic II
Refuse Driver
Senior Maintenance Worker
Senior Office Assistant

Ifazardous Materials
Environmental Specialist Supervisor
Hazardous Materials Coordinator
Maintenance Speciali st

Senior Environmental Specialist
Recycling

Environmental Special ist Supervi sor
Senior Environmental

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00

0.20 0.20
0.60

0.s0 0.s0

0.50

0.20
0.60
0.80
1.00

0.s0
1.00

0.25
1.80
1.00

31.00
2.00
3.00

0.20
0.6s
0.80
1.00

0.90
1.00

0.25
1.80
1.00

31.00
2.00
3.00

1.00

1.00
r.00

0.20
0.65

0.80
1.00

0.90
1.00

1.00

32.00
2.00
3.00

0.80
1.00

32.00
2.00
3.00

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

0.25
1.80
1.00

31.00
2.00
3.00

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

vrt-26Page 1096

05/26/2020; Item No. 9.


	Top
	1. City Manager's Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20 Third Quarter Financial Report
	SR FY 19-20 THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT
	SR FY 19-20 THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT - POWER POINT 05-26-20

	2. Approval of the May 12, 2020 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	CC MINS 05 12 2020

	3. Resolution No. 10454 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Murraysmith Inc. for Design and Construction Administration Services for the Misc. Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1 and Folsom Zoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of Funds.
	SR RES 10454 AGMT WITH MURRAYSMITH

	4. Resolution No. 10455 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Prairie City at Blue Ravine Road Project, Project No. PW2002
	SR RES 10455 SIERRA NATIONAL CONST

	5. Resolution No. 10457– A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to the Contract with Aquatic Design Group for Additional Design Services for the Steve Miklos Aquatic Center Renovation Project (Contract No. 173-21 17-063)
	SR RES 10457 AQUATIC DESIGN GROUP

	6. Resolution No. 10459 - A Resolution Authorizing the Automatic Extension of Zoning Related Entitlements and Grading Permits for One-Year
	SR RES 10459 AUTO EXTENSION OF PERMITS

	7. Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
	SR CFD 23 - PART 1 OF 5 - PG 1-100
	SR CFD 23 - PART 2 OF 5 - PG 101-200
	SR CFD 23 - PART 3 OF 5 - PG 201-300
	SR CFD 23 - PART 4 OF 5 - PG 301-400
	SR CFD 23 - PART 5 OF 5 - PG 401-484
	CFD 23 Power Point Presentation

	8. Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision - Southeast Corner of East Bidwell Street and Mangini Parkway Within the Folsom Plan Area (PN 19-059)
	SR CREEKSTONE SUBDIV (1) - PART 1 OF 4 - PG 1-100
	SR CREEKSTONE SUBDIV (2)  - PART 2 OF 4 - PG 101-200
	SR CREEKSTONE SUBDIV (3) - PART 3 OF 4 - PG 201-300
	SR CREEKSTONE SUBDIV (4) - PART 4 OF 4 - PG 301-398
	SR CREEKSTONE SUBDIV (5) - Power Point Presentation
	SR CREEKSTONE SUBDIV (6) - Attachment 18 cover sheet
	SR CREEKSTONE SUBDIV (7) - Booklet (002)

	9. Resolution No. 10456 - A Resolution Adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operating and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority and the Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority
	SR RES 10456 BUDGET ADOPTION

	Bottom

